
 

DRAFT 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Meeting: Metro Council        

Date: Thursday, December 18, 2014                 
Time: 2 p.m.  

Place: Metro, Council Chamber 
 

   
CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL   

 1. CITIZEN COMMUNICATION   

 2.  METRO BUDGET PROCESS AUDIT Suzanne Flynn, Metro  
 

 3. METRO BUDGET PERFORMANCE MEASURES AUDIT Suzanne Flynn, Metro  
 

 4. CONSENT AGENDA 
 
 
 

 

 4.1 Resolution No. 14-4594, For the Purpose of Metro 
Council’s Acceptance of the Results of the Independent 
Audit for Financial Activity During Fiscal Year Ending June 
30,2014 

 

 4.2 Consideration of Council Meeting Minutes for December 11, 
2014 
 

 

 5. ORDINANCES (SECOND READ)  

 5.1 Ordinance No. 14-1350, For the Purpose of Amending 
Metro Code 2.02.010 Personnel Code 

Nathan Sykes, Metro 

 5.1.1 Public Hearing on Ordinance No. 14-1350  

 5.2 Ordinance No. 14-1346B, For the Purpose of Adopting a 
Climate Smart Strategy and Amending the Regional 
Framework Plan to Comply with State Law 

John Williams, Metro 
Kim Ellis, Metro 

 5.2.1 Public Hearing on Ordinance No. 14-1346B  

 6. CHIEF OPERATING OFFICER COMMUNICATION  Martha Bennett, Metro 

 7. COUNCILOR COMMUNICATION  

ADJOURN 
 

 

 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 



Television schedule for December 18, 2014 Metro Council meeting 
 

Clackamas, Multnomah and Washington 
counties, and Vancouver, WA 
Channel 30 – Community Access Network 
Web site: www.tvctv.org  
Ph:  503-629-8534 
Date: Thursday, December 18, 2:00 p.m. 

Portland  
Channel 30 – Portland Community Media 
Web site: www.pcmtv.org  
Ph:  503-288-1515 
Date: Sunday, December 21, 7:30 p.m. 
Date: Monday, December 22, 9 a.m. 

Gresham 
Channel 30 - MCTV  
Web site: www.metroeast.org 
Ph:  503-491-7636 
Date: Monday, December 22, 2 p.m. 

Washington County and West Linn  
Channel 30– TVC TV  
Web site: www.tvctv.org  
Ph:  503-629-8534 
Date: Friday, December 19, 12 p.m. 
Date: Sunday, December 21, 11 p.m. 

Oregon City and Gladstone 
Channel 28 – Willamette Falls Television  
Web site: http://www.wftvmedia.org/  
Ph: 503-650-0275 
Call or visit web site for program times. 

  

 
PLEASE NOTE: Show times are tentative and in some cases the entire meeting may not be shown due to length. 
Call or check your community access station web site to confirm program times. Agenda items may not be 
considered in the exact order. For questions about the agenda, call the Metro Council Office at 503-797-1540. Public 
hearings are held on all ordinances second read. Documents for the record must be submitted to the Regional 
Engagement and Legislative Coordinator to be included in the meeting record. Documents can be submitted by e-mail, fax 
or mail or in person to the Regional Engagement and Legislative Coordinator. For additional information about testifying 
before the Metro Council please go to the Metro web site www.oregonmetro.gov and click on public comment 
opportunities.  
 

http://www.tvctv.org/�
http://www.pcmtv.org/�
http://www.metroeast.org/�
http://www.tvctv.org/�
http://www.wftvmedia.org/�


 

   November 2014 

Metro respects civil rights 

Metro fully complies with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 and related statutes that ban discrimination.  If any person believes they have been discriminated against 
regarding the receipt of benefits or services because of race, color, national origin, sex, age or disability, they have the right to file a complaint with Metro. For information 
on Metro’s civil rights program, or to obtain a discrimination complaint form, visit www.oregonmetro.gov/civilrights or call 503-797-1536. Metro provides services or 
accommodations upon request to persons with disabilities and people who need an interpreter at public meetings. If you need a sign language interpreter, communication 
aid or language assistance, call 503-797-1890 or TDD/TTY 503-797-1804 (8 a.m. to 5 p.m. weekdays) 5 business days before the meeting. All Metro meetings are wheelchair 
accessible. For up-to-date public transportation information, visit TriMet’s website at www.trimet.org. 
 

Thông báo về sự Metro không kỳ thị của  
Metro tôn trọng dân quyền. Muốn biết thêm thông tin về chương trình dân quyền 
của Metro, hoặc muốn lấy đơn khiếu nại về sự kỳ thị, xin xem trong 
www.oregonmetro.gov/civilrights. Nếu quý vị cần thông dịch viên ra dấu bằng tay, 
trợ giúp về tiếp xúc hay ngôn ngữ, xin gọi số 503-797-1890 (từ 8 giờ sáng đến 5 giờ 
chiều vào những ngày thường) trước buổi họp 5 ngày làm việc. 

Повідомлення Metro про заборону дискримінації  
Metro з повагою ставиться до громадянських прав. Для отримання інформації 
про програму Metro із захисту громадянських прав або форми скарги про 
дискримінацію відвідайте сайт www.oregonmetro.gov/civilrights. або Якщо вам 
потрібен перекладач на зборах, для задоволення вашого запиту зателефонуйте 
за номером 503-797-1890 з 8.00 до 17.00 у робочі дні за п'ять робочих днів до 
зборів. 

Metro 的不歧視公告 
尊重民權。欲瞭解Metro民權計畫的詳情，或獲取歧視投訴表，請瀏覽網站 
www.oregonmetro.gov/civilrights。如果您需要口譯方可參加公共會議，請在會

議召開前5個營業日撥打503-797-
1890（工作日上午8點至下午5點），以便我們滿足您的要求。 

Ogeysiiska takooris la’aanta ee Metro 
Metro waxay ixtiraamtaa xuquuqda madaniga. Si aad u heshid macluumaad ku 
saabsan barnaamijka xuquuqda madaniga ee Metro, ama aad u heshid warqadda ka 
cabashada takoorista, booqo www.oregonmetro.gov/civilrights. Haddii aad u baahan 
tahay turjubaan si aad uga  qaybqaadatid kullan dadweyne, wac 503-797-1890 (8 
gallinka hore illaa 5 gallinka dambe maalmaha shaqada) shan maalmo shaqo ka hor 
kullanka si loo tixgaliyo codsashadaada. 

 Metro의 차별 금지 관련 통지서   
Metro의 시민권 프로그램에 대한 정보 또는 차별 항의서 양식을 얻으려면, 또는 
차별에 대한 불만을 신고 할 수www.oregonmetro.gov/civilrights. 당신의 언어 
지원이 필요한 경우, 회의에 앞서 5 영업일 (오후 5시 주중에 오전 8시) 503-797-
1890를 호출합니다.  

Metroの差別禁止通知 
Metroでは公民権を尊重しています。Metroの公民権プログラムに関する情報

について、または差別苦情フォームを入手するには、www.oregonmetro.gov/ 
civilrights。までお電話ください公開会議で言語通訳を必要とされる方は、 
Metroがご要請に対応できるよう、公開会議の5営業日前までに503-797-
1890（平日午前8時～午後5時）までお電話ください。 

េសចកត ីជូនដំណឹងអំពីការមិនេរសីេអើងរបស់ Metro 
ការេគារពសិទិធពលរដឋរបស់ ។ សំរាប់ព័ត៌មានអំពីកមម វធិីសិទិធពលរដឋរបស់ Metro 

ឬេដើមបីទទួលពាកយបណត ឹងេរសីេអើងសូមចូលទសសនាេគហទំព័រ 
 ។www.oregonmetro.gov/civilrights

េបើេលាកអនករតវូការអនកបកែរបភាសាេនៅេពលអងគ 
របជំុសាធារណៈ សូមទូរស័ពទមកេលខ 503-797-1890 (េម៉ាង 8 រពឹកដល់េម៉ាង 5 លាង ច 

ៃថងេធវ ើការ) របាំពីរៃថង 
ៃថងេធវ ើការ មុនៃថងរបជុំេដើមបីអាចឲយេគសរមួលតាមសំេណើរបស់េលាកអនក ។ 

 
 

 

 
 Metroإشعار بعدم التمييز من 

للحقوق المدنية أو لإيداع شكوى  Metroللمزيد من المعلومات حول برنامج . الحقوق المدنية Metroتحترم 
إن كنت بحاجة . www.oregonmetro.gov/civilrightsضد التمييز، يُرجى زيارة الموقع الإلكتروني 

صباحاً حتى  8من الساعة (  1890-797-503إلى مساعدة في اللغة، يجب عليك الاتصال مقدماً برقم الھاتف
 .أيام عمل من موعد الاجتماع) 5(قبل خمسة ) مساءاً، أيام الاثنين إلى الجمعة 5الساعة 

 

Paunawa ng Metro sa kawalan ng diskriminasyon   
Iginagalang ng Metro ang mga karapatang sibil. Para sa impormasyon tungkol sa 
programa ng Metro sa mga karapatang sibil, o upang makakuha ng porma ng 
reklamo sa diskriminasyon, bisitahin ang www.oregonmetro.gov/civilrights.  Kung 
kailangan ninyo ng interpreter ng wika sa isang pampublikong pulong, tumawag sa 
503-797-1890 (8 a.m. hanggang 5 p.m. Lunes hanggang Biyernes) lima araw ng 
trabaho bago ang pulong upang mapagbigyan ang inyong kahilingan.Notificación de 
no discriminación de Metro. 
 
Notificación de no discriminación de Metro  
Metro respeta los derechos civiles. Para obtener información sobre el programa de 
derechos civiles de Metro o para obtener un formulario de reclamo por 
discriminación, ingrese a www.oregonmetro.gov/civilrights . Si necesita asistencia 
con el idioma, llame al 503-797-1890 (de 8:00 a. m. a 5:00 p. m. los días de semana) 
5 días laborales antes de la asamblea. 

Уведомление о недопущении дискриминации от Metro  
Metro уважает гражданские права. Узнать о программе Metro по соблюдению 
гражданских прав и получить форму жалобы о дискриминации можно на веб-
сайте www.oregonmetro.gov/civilrights. Если вам нужен переводчик на 
общественном собрании, оставьте свой запрос, позвонив по номеру 503-797-
1890 в рабочие дни с 8:00 до 17:00 и за пять рабочих дней до даты собрания. 

Avizul Metro privind nediscriminarea  
Metro respectă drepturile civile. Pentru informații cu privire la programul Metro 
pentru drepturi civile sau pentru a obține un formular de reclamație împotriva 
discriminării, vizitați www.oregonmetro.gov/civilrights. Dacă aveți nevoie de un 
interpret de limbă la o ședință publică, sunați la 503-797-1890 (între orele 8 și 5, în 
timpul zilelor lucrătoare) cu cinci zile lucrătoare înainte de ședință, pentru a putea să 
vă răspunde în mod favorabil la cerere. 

Metro txoj kev ntxub ntxaug daim ntawv ceeb toom  
Metro tributes cai. Rau cov lus qhia txog Metro txoj cai kev pab, los yog kom sau ib 
daim ntawv tsis txaus siab, mus saib www.oregonmetro.gov/civilrights.  Yog hais tias 
koj xav tau lus kev pab, hu rau 503-797-1890 (8 teev sawv ntxov txog 5 teev tsaus 
ntuj weekdays) 5 hnub ua hauj lwm ua ntej ntawm lub rooj sib tham.     

 



 

 

Agenda Item No. 2.0 

 
 
 

METRO BUDGET PROCESS AUDIT 
 

Presentations  

Metro Council Meeting 
Thursday, December 18, 2014 

Metro, Council Chambers 

 



Budget Process:
Strengthen practices that increase transparency

November 2014
A Report by the Office of the Auditor

Suzanne Flynn
Metro Auditor

Brian Evans
Principal ManagementAuditor

Mary Hull Caballero
Principal ManagementAuditor

~METRO 



Budget Process
November 2014

Office of the Metro Auditor

Metro Accountability Hotline

The Metro Accountability Hotline gives employees and citizens an avenue to report misconduct, waste 
or misuse of resources in any Metro or Metro Exposition Recreation Commission (MERC) facility or 
department.

The Hotline is administered by the Metro Auditor's Office.  All reports are taken seriously and responded to 
in a timely manner.  The auditor contracts with a hotline vendor, EthicsPoint, to provide and maintain the 
reporting system.  Your report will serve the public interest and assist Metro in meeting high standards of 
public accountability. 

To make a report, choose either of the following methods: 

Dial 888-299-5460 (toll free in the U.S. and Canada) 
File an online report at www.metroaccountability.org 

Knighton Award
 for Auditing 

Audit receives recognition

The Auditor’s Office was the recipient of the Bronze Award for Small Shops 
by ALGA (Association of Local Government Auditors).  The winning audit 
is entitled “Tracking Transportation Project Outcomes:  Light rail case studies 
suggest path to improved planning.  Auditors were presented with the award at 
the ALGA conference in Tampa Bay, FL, in May 2014.   Knighton Award winners 
are selected each year by a judging panel and awards presented at the annual 
conference.



Office of the Metro Auditor Budget Process
November 2014

SUZANNE FLYNN
Metro Auditor

600 NE Grand Avenue
Portland, OR   97232-2736

Phone:  (503)797-1892     Fax: (503)797-1831

MEMORANDUM

November 12, 2014

To:  Tom Hughes, Council President
  Shirley Craddick, Councilor, District 1
  Carlotta Collette, Councilor, District 2
  Craig Dirksen, Councilor, District 3
  Kathryn Harrington, Councilor, District 4
  Sam Chase, Councilor, District 5
  Bob Stacey, Councilor, District 6

From: Suzanne Flynn, Metro Auditor  

Subject: Audit of Metro’s Budget Process

This report covers our audit of Metro’s budget process.  Our objectives were to determine if Metro 
followed recommended practices.  This audit was included in our FY 2014-15 Audit Schedule.

In recent years, Metro has worked to improve the budget process by increasing the accuracy of 
revenue forecasts, identifying Council priorities earlier and reducing last minute adjustments.  We 
reviewed Metro’s compliance with 59 recommended practices for budgeting and concluded that there 
was general compliance with most.  We reviewed in-depth 12 of these practices and identified some 
improvements that could be made.

It was our conclusion that some practices limited stakeholder involvement.  Most budget discussions 
were done internally and the general public was only given an opportunity to provide input 
towards the end of the process.  The amount of time allowed for review, the reduction of detail and 
explanation in the budget document, and lack of clarity about the relationship between goals and 
program allocations reduced transparency. 

We have discussed our findings and recommendations with Martha Bennett, COO; Scott Robinson, 
Deputy COO; and Tim Collier, Director, Finance & Regulatory Services.  A formal follow-up to 
this audit will be scheduled within 2 years.  We would like to acknowledge and thank all of the 
management and staff who assisted us in completing this audit.



budget Process
November 2014

Office of the Metro Auditor



Summary       1

Background      3

Scope and methodology      5

Results       7
Limited stakeholder involvement       7•	
Links between outcomes and funding decisions unclear    9•	
Less information was provided   •	    10

Recommendations      13

Management response      15

Table of  Contents

Office of the Metro Auditor Budget Process
November 2014





Office of the Metro Auditor Budget Process
November 2014

1

Summary The Government Finance Officers Association recommends best practices for 
the budget process, based upon four principles:

Establish broad goals to guide decision-making;•	
Develop approaches to achieve goals;•	
Develop a budget consistent with approaches to achieve goals; and •	
Evaluate performance and make adjustments.•	

After a preliminary review, we examined 12 recommended practices for in-
depth study  As a result, we concluded that transparency could be improved 
by increasing stakeholder involvement, clarifying the link between goals and 
funding decisions, and providing additional information.

Metro’s FY 2014-15 budget process was well managed to meet public budgeting 
requirements.  Changes were made to improve the accuracy of revenue 
forecasts and identify the Council’s priorities earlier.  Timelines were changed 
to reduce the need for last minute adjustments to the budget.  The response to 
these changes was mostly positive.

Finding the right balance between administrative efficiency and providing 
opportunities for input is complicated.  Most stakeholder groups engaged 
with Metro about programs.  Specific discussions about budget decisions were 
mostly done internally between department directors, the Chief Operating 
Officer and the Metro Council.  The public was usually offered opportunities to 
participate toward the end of the process.  These opportunities were not always 
well publicized and the length of time allowed for discussion was shortened.

The budget document included a description of a framework for making 
decisions based upon regional goals, Council strategic priorities and a 
management prioritization tool.  However, the majority of the budget decisions 
was to maintain existing programs.  It was unclear how decisions related to the 
framework.

In recent years, Metro published less detail in its budget.  This made it more 
difficult to see how resources were allocated to programs and to achieve goals. 
At least three reductions were made.  A separate budget linking activities 
and expenditures to broad program goals was eliminated.  There were also 
reductions in the detail provided about units with the department and staffing 
levels.

We recommend that Metro make improvements in the areas of stakeholder 
participation, review time available and information detail.



Budget Process
November 2014

Office of the Metro Auditor2



Office of the Metro Auditor Budget Process
November 2014

3

Metro’s budget process is governed by Oregon law, the requirements of the 
Tax Supervising and Conservation Commission (TSCC) and internal policies 
and procedures.  The budget development process begins in July and ends the 
following June.  Metro’s Fiscal Year (FY) 2014-15 budget totaled about $484 
million, including 794 full-time equivalent employees.  Exhibit 1 shows the 
process used to create Metro’s budget.

Background

Exhibit 1
Metro budget cycle

Source:  FY 2014-15 Adopted Budget, Detail (pg. E-5)

In the fall, Finance and Regulatory Services (FRS) developed a forecast of 
Metro’s expected revenues and established the financial assumptions that 
guided budget requests from each department.  While the financial groundwork 
was being developed, the Metro Council convened to set priorities for the 
coming year.  Those priorities were intended to become the basis of subsequent 
spending decisions.  

In January, departments submitted funding requests to the Chief Operating 
Officer (COO).  These requests formed a base budget and generally reflected 
the same level of funding as the previous year.  When more revenue became 
available, departments submitted requests for additional funding to expand 
service levels or add new programs.  The Metro Council met again in February 
to review funding priorities and the revenue forecast. 

In April, the COO presented the proposed budget to the Council.  Councilors 
had authority as Metro’s Budget Committee to make changes or accept it 
without changes.  Once they voted on it, the approved budget was submitted to 
the Tax Supervising and Conservation Commission (TSCC) in May.  The TSCC 
held a public hearing and determined whether it complied with the law.  Once 
certified, the Council, acting as the governing body for the region, could make 
further changes within certain limits.  After Council voted again, the document 
became the adopted budget.  This budget went into effect July 1.

  February - March          September -
 Ja

nu
ar

y

Review previous budget process.

Develop policy for upcoming year.

Develop budget calendar.

Define budget assumptions and priorities.

Distribute budget instructions.

Budget and 5-Year Capital Budget preparation.

Chief Operating Officer review of requests.

Proposed budget submitted to Council.

Review and approval of budget by Council.

Review and certification by TSCC.

Council adopts budget prior to June 30.

Chief Operating Officer review 

completed.

Proposed budget prepared.

Council briefings.

Budget
cycle

   
   

  A
pr

il -
 Ju

ne        July - August
New fiscal
year begins

Previous fiscal
year ends

units detailed information for budgeting capital projects already approved in the 
�ve-year Capital Improvement Plan, for proposing new capital projects for future 
years and for undertaking scheduled renewal and replacement projects to safe guard 
Metro’s public assets.

Budget requests

Staff in operating units apply the instructions and assumptions from Financial 
Planning and the direction received from the COO to forecast their base program 
activities and �nancial needs for the next �scal year. In addition, programs prepare 
a series of proposals to add, cut or change program activities, functions or funding 
levels. The base forecasts along with the add, cut or change proposals form the basis 
of the requested budgets. 

Review and analysis resulting in proposed budget 

The Financial Planning division reviews, analyzes and consolidates the base budget 
requests, meeting with each operating unit to verify and re�ne the requests, as needed. 
The COO, serving as the agency’s Budget Of�cer, conducts review meetings to 
discuss identi�ed issues and program changes. The COO presents preliminary budget 
information to the Metro Council identifying early issues and revenue constraints, 
seeking additional guidance on program and policy direction. Following additional 
review, analysis and discussion and budget modi�cation, the COO may hold a work 
session with the Senior Management Team and the Finance Team to discuss the 
Council’s additional guidance, the operating proposals and budget balancing options. 
The COO, as Budget Of�cer, makes the �nal decisions, and delivers a budget message 
and proposed budget to the Metro Council and the public.

Review and analysis by the Metro Council resulting in approved budget

The Metro Council, sitting as the Budget Committee, holds one or more public work 
sessions to review the budget, take program and public testimony, and make any 
additions, deletions or modi�cations to the proposed budget. After due consideration, 
the Metro Council approves a budget and determines the amount required and 
allowed to be levied from property taxes. The approved budget and tax levy are then 
submitted to the Multnomah County Tax Supervising and Conservation Commission 
(TSCC).

E-5Budget and financial structure- The budget process



Budget Process
November 2014

Office of the Metro Auditor4



Office of the Metro Auditor Budget Process
November 2014

5

Scope and 
methodology

The objective of this audit was to determine if Metro’s budget process followed 
recommended practices.  The scope of the audit was the process that led to 
the adoption of the FY 2014-15 budget. 

To accomplish our objective, we reviewed Metro’s budget process and 
compared it to practices recommended by the Government Finance Officers 
Association.  That group organizes 59 practices among the following four 
principles:

Establish broad goals to guide government decision-making;•	
Develop approaches to achieve goals;•	
Develop a budget consistent with approaches to achieve goals; and•	
Evaluate performance and make adjustments.•	

After an initial assessment, we identified 12 practices for in-depth review.  We 
collected documents for each phase of the process and interviewed employees 
and managers in Finance and Regulatory Services.  We also interviewed the 
Metro Council President, Metro councilors and the Chief Operating Officer. 
We compared the published budget books and timelines to previous years. 
We used the information we gathered to determine whether Metro’s process 
conformed to the recommended practices.  Recommended practices related 
to performance measures were not included in our review because a separate 
audit on that topic was in process. 

This audit was included in the FY 2014-15 audit schedule.  We conducted 
this performance audit in accordance with generally accepted government 
auditing standards.  Those standards require that we plan and perform the 
audit to obtain sufficient, appropriate evidence to provide a reasonable basis 
for our findings and conclusions based on our audit objectives.  We believe 
that the evidence obtained provides a reasonable basis for our findings and 
conclusions based on our audit objectives.



Budget Process
November 2014

Office of the Metro Auditor6



Office of the Metro Auditor Budget Process
November 2014

7

Results The process to develop the FY 2014-15 budget was well managed to meet 
public budgeting requirements.  The process included changes from previous 
years to improve the accuracy of revenue forecasts and identify Council 
priorities earlier.  To accomplish this, timelines were intentionally changed to 
reduce last minute adjustments to the budget.  The response to the new process 
was mostly positive.  However, we found that additional information and time 
would improve transparency.

The Government Finance Officers Association recommends 59 practices 
for the budget process.  After preliminary review of all the recommended 
practices, we concluded that Metro appeared to be in general compliance 
with most.  Nevertheless, our in-depth review of 12 practices indicated that 
improvements could be made in the following areas:

Identifying stakeholder concerns, needs, priorities;•	
Disseminating goals and reviewing them with stakeholders;•	
Developing procedures to facilitate budget review, discussion, •	
modification and adoption; 
Identifying opportunities for stakeholder input, and; •	
Providing a guide to operations.•	

Finding the right balance between administrative efficiency and providing 
enough opportunities for input is complicated.  Clearly defining budget 
stakeholders is an important step in making that determination.  If 
stakeholders are defined narrowly, less time may be needed to get input. 
Conversely, defining stakeholders broadly may require more time to obtain 
input.  Recommended practices define stakeholders as anyone affected by 
resource allocation plans and program decisions.   

During the audit, there was a variety of opinions about who should be 
considered a stakeholder of Metro’s budget (Exhibit 2).

Limited stakeholder 
involvement

Residents of the region•	 Metro Council•	
Advisory •	 committees to Metro’s 
programs

City and County go•	 vernments in the 
region

Department directors•	 Employees•	
State of Oregon•	 Advocacy groups•	
Users/customers of Metro’s services•	 Employee unions•	

Exhibit 2
Potential stakeholders in 
Metro’s budget process

Source:  Auditor’s Office summaries of interviews



Budget Process
November 2014

Office of the Metro Auditor8

Most of these stakeholder groups engaged with Metro about its programs 
in some form, but specific discussions of the budget were primarily done 
internally between department directors, the COO and Metro Council.  
Opportunities for the general public to participate occurred near the end of 
the process when public hearings were held.  By that time, most of the budget 
decisions had been made.  

There were other opportunities to participate in budget discussions, but it 
would have been difficult for citizens to know about them.  Agendas for the 
Council retreats, during which Metro’s priorities were discussed, did not 
connect the meetings’ purpose to the budget.  Also, one of the retreats was not 
held in Council Chambers, where the Council usually meets.

Similarly, the TSCC’s public meeting to discuss Metro’s compliance with 
Oregon budget law was not included in Metro’s meeting agendas.  Although 
TSCC provided notice of meetings on its website, it would be helpful for 
Metro to also notify the public since the focus was on Metro’s budget.  In 
addition, the meeting was held prior to a regular Council meeting in a 
separate room from the Council Chambers.  This made it more difficult for 
the public to learn about that step in the process.   

Metro councilors’ participation in the budget process was constrained 
by organizational factors.  Six of the seven Metro Council positions are 
considered to be part-time positions (less than 40 hours per week).  In 
addition, staff assigned to each councilor focused primarily on administrative 
tasks, which reduced the Council’s ability to research issues on their own.

Another constraint was a decrease in the amount of time between the budget 
presentation by the COO and Council’s approval.  In FY 2010-11 and FY 
2011-12, Council had at least 21 days to discuss the proposed budget before 
approving it.  The next year, they had 14 days and in FY 2013-14 they had 
seven days.  Last year they had 14 days.  Some councilors said they needed 
more time to review the proposed budget before voting on it.

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

FY 2010-11 FY 2011-12 FY 2012-13 FY 2013-14 FY 2014-15

Da
ys

Exhibit  3
Days between proposed and 

approved budgets

Source:  Metro Auditor’s Office analysis



Office of the Metro Auditor Budget Process
November 2014

9

Links between 
outcomes and 

funding decisions 
unclear

The time between the presentation of the proposed budget and the date it was 
adopted in its final form was also reduced.  In FY 2010-11, there were 77 days 
compared to 56 days in FY 2014-15, a difference of three weeks.

Management stated that the timeline was changed to improve the quality 
of information presented to the Council.  In prior years, early estimates of 
Metro’s revenue were based on limited information.  Early forecasts indicated 
there would be a large shortfall, which improved as more information became 
available.  By waiting, decision-makers could avoid unnecessary discussion 
about budget cuts that did not materialize.  Management viewed it as a trade-
off; provide more time with less accurate data or less time with more accurate 
data. 

While the shortened timeline may have improved the process, it may also 
have reduced its effectiveness by giving the Council and the public fewer days 
for review.  Another consequence of less time was that councilors had fewer 
opportunities to amend the proposed budget.

The COO described the budget decision process as first, setting aside money 
in reserve funds for future needs, second, maintaining current programs, and 
third, allocating any remaining resources to new or expanded programs that 
aligned with Metro’s broad goals. 

After funding reserves and existing programs, there was little revenue left 
for other options.  In FY 2014-15, $5.3 million (1% of the total budget) was 
approved for additional spending requests.  As a result, the vast majority of the 
budget was devoted to maintaining existing programs.

The practice of carrying forward existing funding levels from one year to the 
next was a missed opportunity to consider whether some spending helps the 
region achieve its goals better than others.  Part of the challenge in having 
those discussions may be the variety of outcomes, goals, strategies and 
initiatives at Metro. 

The budget included a description of a framework for making funding 
decisions.  The framework described in the budget referenced:  (1) the six 
desired outcomes, which were adopted by Council in 2010; (2) strategic 
priorities, which were identified by Metro Council for the FY 2014-15 budget, 
and (3) the Metro Compass, which has been a tool used by management since 
FY 2012-13.  See Exhibit 4 for outcomes and goals the budget was trying to 
achieve.



Budget Process
November 2014

Office of the Metro Auditor10

Less information 
was provided

Exhibit  4
Metro’s framework for 

 budget decisions

The description of each of these elements of the framework was followed by a 
summary for each department.  The budget did not explain how the six desired 
outcomes, strategic priorities, Compass and departments fit together.  We were 
told that the framework was typically only used to evaluate proposals for new 
or expanded programs or as a screening tool for Council initiatives.  This was 
contrary to what was described in the budget document. 

In recent years, Metro published less detail in its budget.  Less information 
made it difficult to understand how Metro’s programs aligned with its goals 
and the resources allocated to each.  It also left readers unable to compare 
programs over time.

There were at least three reductions of information in recent years. The 
first was the discontinuation of the Program Budget in FY 2012-13.  The 
Program Budget was a separate document that organized Metro’s activities 
and expenditures by broad program goal.  The goals were great communities, 
healthy environment, regional services and responsible operations.

Organizing budget information in that manner provided a clearer picture 
to the public about what Metro was attempting to accomplish and what 
resources were devoted to each goal.  Rather than presenting information 
by departments, the Program Budget focused instead on how individual 
programs worked together to address the goals. 

Management provided three reasons for discontinuing the Program Budget.  It 
was not being used by management; there were questions about the accuracy 
of the data it contained; and it was time-intensive to create.  However, some 
Metro councilors said more information about how programs were aligned 
with Metro’s goals would be helpful to them.  Recent changes in the software 
Metro uses to create its budget may make it easier to document the linkages 
between resources, programs and goals. 

Source:  FY 2014-15 Adopted Budget, Summary (pgs. A-11 to A-15)

 

 

 

  

 

  

 

  

 

 

 

Regional 
Outcomes 

• Vibrant communities 
• Climate change 

leadership 
• Transportation 

choices 
• Economic prosperity 
• Clean air and water 
• Equity 

Council 
Strategic 
Priorities 

• Public infrastructure 
investment 

• Innovative planning 
• Preserve & enhance 

the natural 
environment 

• Increase high wage 
jobs 

• Respond to the 
increasing diversity of 
residents 

 

Compass 

 
• What can we be the 

best in the world at 
doing? 

• What are we 
passionate about? 

• What generates the 
resources that 
enable us to serve? 

 

Proposed 
Budget 



Office of the Metro Auditor Budget Process
November 2014

11

The second change was a reduction in the spending detail published in the 
budget.  The FY 2013-14 budget contained information about programs and 
organizational units within a department.  Without that information in the 
FY 2014-15 budget, there was no way to determine how much was allocated 
for programs or compare budgeted amounts with actual expenditures from 
previous years.  The effect of this change was a significant reduction in the 
amount of information.  The FY 2013-14 budget detail for the General Fund 
contained 97 pages of information.  The same section of the FY 2014-15 budget 
was 41 pages.

The third change reduced the amount of detail about staffing levels.  In the 
FY 2013-14 budget, the job titles and number of positions (FTE) were provided 
in the summaries of personnel services for programs and organizational units 
within departments.  Without that information in the FY 2014-15 budget, it was 
not possible to determine how specific positions and their corresponding FTE 
were allocated in the budget.   Management stated this action was to eliminate 
the ability to identify individual salaries, however, this is public record.

All of these changes made it less clear how Metro was organized and how it 
allocated resources to meet its goals.  That information was critical to inform 
stakeholders about Metro’s work and to meet basic standards of transparency.  

Providing transparency about how public resources are being used is an 
important aspect of achieving two of Metro’s goals for the FY 2014-15 budget.  
During the first meeting about budget priorities last fall, Council identified 
the need to keep local governments in the region informed to build trust. In 
addition, one of Metro’s strategic goals was to increase citizen engagement and 
involvement throughout the region and with Metro.  



Budget Process
November 2014

Office of the Metro Auditor12



Office of the Metro Auditor Budget Process
November 2014

13

Recommendations

To increase opportunities for stakeholder participation and review in 
the budget process, Metro should:

Define budget process stakeholders.1. 

Enable stakeholder participation by indicating on public notices 2. 
when retreats and other meetings will include discussions about 
budget priorities.

Ensure that stakeholders have enough time to review and discuss 3. 
the proposed budget before approval.

Provide sufficient information in the budget to show how programs 4. 
and resources are aligned with Metro’s strategic framework.



Budget Process
November 2014

Office of the Metro Auditor14



Office of the Metro Auditor Budget Process
November 2014

15

Management response



Budget Process
November 2014

Office of the Metro Auditor16



Office of the Metro Auditor Budget Process
November 2014

17

1

Date: November 10, 2014
To: Suzanne Flynn
From: Martha Bennett, Chief Operating Officer
 Scott Robinson, Deputy Chief Operating Officer
 Tim Collier, Director of Finance and Regulatory Services
Subject: Management Response to Budget Audit

Thank you for the opportunity to respond to your recent audit on the Metro budget process. The 
audit will help improve our budget process and enhance transparency. This memorandum 
summarizes our response to your recommendations.

We are not surprised the audit confirmed Metro’s budget process is well managed to meet public 
budget requirements consistent with the expectations of the Government Finance Officers 
Association. We are proud of Metro’s double Triple-A bond rating. We are proud of the numerous 
awards our Comprehensive Annual Financial Reports receive. We are very proud of the work we do 
with a vast range of citizen oversight committees. And, we are proud of the independent, governor-
appointed Tax Supervising and Conservation Commission’s ongoing praise for our budget work.

But even with our ongoing successes, we continually strive to improve accountability and 
transparency. Your recommendations will help us build on the solid body of work we currently 
have in place.

While your audit makes one passing reference to it, we want to highlight the recent implementation 
of an agency wide budgeting system, Team Budget. Although your audit did not include much 
information about the new system it already has made a significant positive impact on our 
budgeting and will continue to provide improved transparency because of the enhanced data 
analysis and reporting capabilities it provides.

The new tool also has eased the administrative burden on many staff and allows for more accuracy 
in the development of the budget. While it is true that during this early portion of implementation 
the data in the new system currently is limited compared with the outdated system, more data will 
be added moving forward, allowing for even better reporting.

Metro also has improved its public notice capabilities. More than 100 links are generated when 
searching the Metro website for “budget news.” Those links include substantial coverage of budget-
related questions, draft proposals and COO and Council deliberations and decisions. They also 
include detailed reports about budget actions. Significantly, despite the claim in your audit, Metro 
advertised the TSCC meeting you reference consistent with public notice rules.

Your report also focuses on what you perceive as a reduction in information, although you include 
changes that occurred outside the scope of the current audit. More importantly, we believe that 
information largely was reorganized, not reduced. Specifically, the presentation of staffing data was 
changed readers could identify FTE totals by department with more historical information than was 
previously available. We believe this actually enhances the information for the reader.

As to the audit’s recommendations, we believe many agencies similarly struggle with balancing the 
technical process with the need to provide sufficient time for review and input. We recognize we 
can always do better and generally welcome your recommendations.



Budget Process
November 2014

Office of the Metro Auditor18

2

Recommendation: 1. Define budget process stakeholders.

Response: The potential stakeholder list provided in Exhibit 2 is extensive. Fortunately, it is the 
list of stakeholders Metro typically engages at a programmatic level. Departments and the 
Council directly engage with stakeholders on priorities, and therefore, about budget. For 
example, the work programs for the Parks and Natural Areas Levy was developed by a large 
group of diverse stakeholders who made specific suggestions about what Metro should try to 
accomplish and how much should be spent in particular areas. Staff then took that direction and 
built the budget for those programs.

At the same time, Metro’s departments and major programs also rely on citizen oversight 
committees to help define program and spending priorities. In addition to the independent 
TSCC, a partial list of Metro oversight committees includes but is not limited to the Cemetery 
Advisory Committee; the Natural Areas Program Performance Oversight Committee; the Joint 
Policy Advisory Committee on Transportation, the Equity Strategy Advisory Committee, the 
Nature in Neighborhoods Capital Grants Review Committee, the Transportation Policy 
Alternatives Committee, the North Portland Enhancement Grant Committee, the Metro Audit 
Committee, the Powell-Division Transit and Development Project Steering Committee, the 
Metro Central Enhancement Grant Committee, Smith and Bybee Wetlands Management 
Committee, the Metro Exposition and Recreation Commission, the Southwest Corridor Plan 
Steering Committee, the Metro Policy Advisory Committee, the Transit Oriented Development 
Steering Committee, the Metro Public Engagement Review Committee, The Metro Solid Waste 
Advisory Committee, the Oregon Zoo Bond Oversight Committee and the Metro Technical 
Advisory Committee.

Each of these groups, while not solely focused on budget, provides direct oversight of Metro 
programs and projects, and by definition therefore, over spending priorities. When 
performance or fiscal questions emerge, these groups dig in and staff provides the needed 
information.

That said, we will continue to look for ways to better define budget stakeholders. Metro 
currently is building a new contact management system that we believe has the potential to 
better track residents and others who are specifically interested in budget development. In the 
meantime, our experience suggests the general public and most stakeholders are more 
interested in the programmatic aspects of our work than in the technical details of budget 
development. Spending more time and money to engage people who are not interested is not in 
the best interest of the public. This is certainly case when there already is an exceptionally high 
level of engagement in Metro programs and projects and a high level of transparency for all 
public budget documents. 

Recommendation 2. Enable stakeholder participation by indicating on public notices when 
retreats and other meetings will involve discussions about budget priorities.

Response: We believe that we can always improve in transparency with noticing. We will work 
on more clearly defining the notice when a particular meeting can discuss budget priorities.

Recommendation 3: Ensure that stakeholders have enough time to review and discuss the 
proposed budget before approval.



Office of the Metro Auditor Budget Process
November 2014

19

3

Response: We will work with Council and Metro’s public engagement team as we develop the 
budget calendar to determine where and when Councilors and the public might benefit from 
more time to review materials.

Recommendation 4: Provide sufficient information to show how programs and resources are 
aligned with Metro’s strategic framework.  

Response: We will work to better provide information on how programs are better aligned with 
the strategic framework. One new tool we will be using is a “Budget in Brief” document 
currently in development for the fiscal 2015-16 year. We believe this will provide high level 
information about how we invest resources. We also will ask our departments to expand their 
budget narratives to better describe how they are aligned with the strategic framework and 
how their work impacts the region. And finally, as the data in Team Budget becomes more 
robust over time we will be able to provide better reports and more detailed information.



Office of the Metro Auditor Budget Process
November 2014

21

 Office of  the Metro Auditor
 600 NE Grand Avenue
 Portland, Oregon 97232
 503-797-1892
 www.oregonmetro.gov



 

 

Agenda Item No. 3.0 

 
 
 
 

METRO BUDGET PERFORMANCE MEASURES AUDIT 
 

Presentations  

Metro Council Meeting 
Thursday, December 18, 2014 

Metro, Council Chambers 

 



Budget Performance Measures:
Clarify goals and increase measurement of efficiency and effectiveness

December 2014
A Report by the Office of the Auditor

Suzanne Flynn
Metro Auditor

Angela Owens
Senior Management Auditor

Kathryn Nichols
Senior Management Auditor

eMETRO 



Metro Accountability Hotline

The Metro Accountability Hotline gives employees and citizens an avenue to report misconduct, waste 
or misuse of resources in any Metro or Metro Exposition Recreation Commission (MERC) facility or 
department.

The Hotline is administered by the Metro Auditor's Office.  All reports are taken seriously and responded to 
in a timely manner.  The auditor contracts with a hotline vendor, EthicsPoint, to provide and maintain the 
reporting system.  Your report will serve the public interest and assist Metro in meeting high standards of 
public accountability. 

To make a report, choose either of the following methods: 

Dial 888-299-5460 (toll free in the U.S. and Canada) 
File an online report at www.metroaccountability.org 

Knighton Award
 for Auditing 

Audit receives recognition

The Auditor’s Office was the recipient of the Bronze Award for Small Shops 
by ALGA (Association of Local Government Auditors).  The winning audit 
is entitled “Tracking Transportation Project Outcomes:  Light rail case studies 
suggest path to improved planning.  Auditors were presented with the award at 
the ALGA conference in Tampa Bay, FL, in May 2014.   Knighton Award winners 
are selected each year by a judging panel and awards presented at the annual 
conference.



SUZANNE FLYNN
Metro Auditor

600 NE Grand Avenue
Portland, OR   97232-2736

Phone:  (503)797-1892     Fax: (503)797-1831

MEMORANDUM

December 10, 2014

To:  Tom Hughes, Council President
  Shirley Craddick, Councilor, District 1
  Carlotta Collette, Councilor, District 2
  Craig Dirksen, Councilor, District 3
  Kathryn Harrington, Councilor, District 4
  Sam Chase, Councilor, District 5
  Bob Stacey, Councilor, District 6

From: Suzanne Flynn, Metro Auditor  

Subject: Audit of Metro’s Budget Performance Measures

This report covers our audit of the performance measures that are reported in Metro’s budget.  
Our objective was to determine if Metro’s performance measures were sufficient to provide public 
transparency and accountability.  This audit was included in our FY2014-15 Audit Schedule.

We assessed whether the performance measures in the budget met recommended practices.  We 
focused on whether measures tracked main activities and progress toward goals.  We did not test data 
accuracy or reliability. 

Our audit found that there was room for improvement.  About 30% of the 53 measures we reviewed 
were relevant.  Some departments lacked measures for one or more of their goals and many tracked 
inputs and outputs, which do not give the public information on effectiveness and efficiency.   Half 
of Metro’s departments had outcome measures that tracked effectiveness, six had measures to track 
efficiency, and only three departments had measures that tracked both.  A lack of clear goals may have 
contributed to the quality of performance measures.

We have discussed our findings and recommendations with Martha Bennett, COO; Scott Robinson, 
Deputy COO; and Tim Collier, Director, Finance & Regulatory Services.  A formal follow-up to 
this audit will be scheduled within two years.  We would like to acknowledge and thank all of the 
management who assisted us in completing this audit.

.

Office of the Metro Auditor Budget Performance Measures
December 2014



Budget Performance Measures
December 2014

Office of the Metro Auditor



Table of  Contents

Summary        1

Background        3

Scope and methodology      5

Results        7

 Measure relevancy  could be improved    7•	
 Unable to determine performance improvement    9•	
 Budget goals cold be clearer    10•	
 Lack of adopted agency goals    11•	

    
Recommendations         13

Management response         15

Office of the Metro Auditor Budget Performance Measures
December 2014



Budget Performance Measures
December 2014

Office of the Metro Auditor



Office of the Metro Auditor Budget Performance Measures
December 2014

1

Summary
Performance measures provide accountability and transparency in the 
management of public resources.  When combined with budget information 
they allow the public to make a connection between the effectiveness of 
government services and the resources used to provide them.  In the FY 2014-
2015 budget, Metro reported 53 performance measures.  Each department had 
its own set of measures that included two years of actual data and five years of 
forecasted data.

The purpose of this audit was to compare Metro’s performance measures to 
criteria found in best practices.  These criteria state that measures should 
be relevant to main activities and goals, understandable, able to show 
performance over time or benchmarked to others, consistently calculated 
and accurate.  Applying criteria for relevancy, we found that 30% of budget 
performance measures were relevant and could assess accomplishment toward 
department goals.

The budget document should give the public information about results.  Many 
of the measures did not demonstrate to the public how efficiently or effectively 
Metro was working.  Over half of those we found that were relevant could be 
improved. 

Overall, measures could not be used to make comparisons.  Although Metro 
reported budget measures for a seven-year time span, only two of those years 
were actual data.  The other five years were in the future.  Two years would not 
provide an adequate picture of improvement or decline.

A lack of clear goals may have contributed to the quality of the performance 
measures.  Department goals were not specifically stated in the budget and 
were difficult to infer.  The public cannot hold a government accountable if 
goals are ambiguous and cannot be measured. 

Using measures from reliable sources can save staff resources when reporting 
annual measures.  Some measures already reported elsewhere in Metro 
documents can be adapted for the budget, as well as measures from outside 
sources such as the Greater Portland Pulse.

We recommend that Metro formally adopt agency-wide goals and develop 
clear and measurable department goals.  Once adopted, Metro should develop 
measures that track outcomes and efficiency related to these goals.  Metro 
should also include five years of historical data to allow for comparisons.



Budget Performance Measures
December 2014

Office of the Metro Auditor2



Office of the Metro Auditor Budget Performance Measures
December 2014

3

Performance measures provide accountability and transparency in the 
management of public resources.  They assess how well programs and 
services achieve intended results.  When combined with budget information, 
performance measures allow the public to make a connection between 
government services and the resources used to provide those services.

Best Practices recommend that performance measures meet certain criteria. 
These criteria include:

Relevancy:  measures track main activities and progress toward •	
goals
Understandability:  measures are clear and easily understood •	
Comparability:  measures show performance over time and whether •	
it is getting better or worse. Measures are compared to benchmarks 
to show performance relative to others 
Reliability:  measures are consistently calculated •	
Accuracy:  measures are correctly calculated using valid and •	
verifiable data sources

In the FY 2014-2015 budget, Metro reported 53 performance measures.  Each 
department had its own set of measures.  They included two years of actual 
data and five years of forecasted data (Exhibit 1).

Background

Exhibit 1
Example of  performance 

measures in the budget

Source:  FY 2014-2015 Metro Budget

Material recovery rate at Metro Central Transfer Station.
 11/12 12/13 13/14 14/15 15/16 16/17 17/18
 32.7%   34%   34%   34%   34%   34%   34%

Material recovery rate at Metro South Transfer Station
 11/12 12/13 13/14 14/15 15/16 16/17 17/18
   17%   17%   17%   17%   18%   18%   18%

Revenues as a percentage of total expenses at MetroPaint.
 11/12 12/13 13/14 14/15 15/16 16/17 17/18
  115% 110% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%

Annual percentage increase in cemetery sales and service revenue.
 11/12 12/13 13/14 14/15 15/16 16/17 17/18
   10%    5%   5%  10%  10%  10%  10%

Revenues as a percentage of total direct expenses at Oxbow, Blue Lake and 
marine facilities.
 11/12 12/13 13/14 14/15 15/16  16/17 17/18
 66.5% 66.5% 65.5%   65% 64.5%   64%  64%



Budget Performance Measures
December 2014

Office of the Metro Auditor4



Office of the Metro Auditor Budget Performance Measures
December 2014

5

Scope and 
methodology

The objective of this audit was to determine whether Metro’s performance 
measures were adequate to provide public transparency and accountability. 

To accomplish this objective, we analyzed recommended practices on 
performance measurement and management to gain a general understanding 
of the topic and we used that information to determine the adequacy of 
Metro’s measures.  We also reviewed similar audits conducted by other audit 
offices.  We reviewed budget documents and other reports from jurisdictions 
that had performance measurement systems in place.

We analyzed the performance measures and department goals as presented 
and implied in the FY 2014-2015 budget.  We focused on department level 
narrative in the organizational summary to determine the goals.  In some 
cases, we reviewed program summaries as well.  Our review focused on 
measure relevancy and we did not test data accuracy or reliability.  We 
included non-departmental measures under Finance and Regulatory 
Services and counted Visitor Venues as a department in addition to the Expo 
Center, the Oregon Zoo, Portland’5 and the Convention Center.  Using this 
methodology, we counted 16 total Metro departments. 

Because the audit was conducted to focus on public transparency and 
accountability, our testing relied solely on the information presented in the 
budget.  During our assessment, we did not consider other Metro plans or 
consult with program or department management.  We did not audit the 
measures presented in other reports, such as the annual balanced scorecard 
report. 

This audit was included in the FY 2014-2015 audit schedule.  We conducted 
this performance audit in accordance with generally accepted government 
auditing standards.  Those standards require that we plan and perform the 
audit to obtain sufficient, appropriate evidence to provide a reasonable basis 
for our findings and conclusions based on our audit objectives.  We believe 
that the evidence obtained provides a reasonable basis for our findings and 
conclusions based on our audit objectives.



Budget Performance Measures
December 2014

Office of the Metro Auditor6



Office of the Metro Auditor Budget Performance Measures
December 2014

7

Results

Measure relevancy 
could be improved

Metro could increase its public transparency and accountability by ensuring 
performance measures communicated in the annual budget are relevant in 
assessing accomplishment toward department goals.  One cause for the lack of 
relevancy might be a lack of goal clarity.  The budget could also be improved 
by including measures that show progress toward larger agency goals.

Performance measures show the public how governments use resources to 
accomplish goals.  Only 30% of Metro’s performance measures were relevant 
and could assess accomplishment toward department goals.  The remaining 
70% of measures were not relevant.  Some did not track outcomes or 
efficiency, and some were not related to department goals (Exhibit 2).

Department Total Relevant
Parks & Environmental Services 5 1
Planning & Development 4 0
Research Center 4 0
Sustainability Center 5 2
Visitor Venues 1 1
Oregon Convention Center 3 2
Portland’5 Centers for the Arts 3 1
Portland Expo Center 3 1
Oregon Zoo 2 0
Communications 4 1
Finance & Regulatory Services 6 2
Information Services 5 1
Human Resources 3 2
Office of  the Metro Attorney 1 0
Metro Council 1 0
Metro Auditor 3 2

Total 53 16 (30%)

Exhibit 2
Performance measure relevancy

Source:  Auditor’s analysis of FY 2014-2015 Metro Budget

Best practices recommend governments use a mix of measure types.  Measure 
types include inputs, outputs, customer service, efficiency, and outcomes.  
Inputs track resources such as staff or equipment.  Outputs measure work 
that was accomplished, such as the number of plans completed or customers 
served.  Efficiency measures calculate the amount of effort needed to create an 
output, such as the staff or cost per customer served.  Outcome measures track 
effectiveness and results achieved.



Budget Performance Measures
December 2014

Office of the Metro Auditor8

The budget document should give the public information about results.  Many 
Metro measures tracked inputs and outputs and would not show the public 
how efficiently or effectively Metro was working.  Adding more efficiency 
and outcome measures would improve budget information.  Half of Metro’s 
department’s had outcome measures that tracked effectiveness, six had measures 
to track efficiency, and only three departments had measures that tracked both. 

As an example, one department measured the number of “complete plans or 
projects that will increase access to nature.”  This measured output.  It counted 
the work completed.  An outcome measure that shows the public Metro is using 
public resources to get desired results would be a better choice.  The “percentage 
of properties with public access available” or the “percentage of regional citizens 
living within X miles of a park, trail, or natural area” are two potential measures 
that could do that.  

Many Metro departments lacked measures of efficiency.  These measures 
typically reflect the amount of staff or money needed to achieve goals or deliver 
a product or service.  Lack of this type of information in the budget would make 
it difficult to determine productivity or whether Metro was responsibly spending 
public funds.  Including measures of workload per employee (FTE) would be one 
way to improve the quality of Metro’s measures.  In a different Metro document, 
the Balanced Scorecard, total zoo visits per FTE and number of desktops and 
devices supported per Information Services FTE were tracked, both of which 
would improve budget measures. 

Some departments relied too heavily on customer surveys to gauge performance. 
For example, all of one department’s measures were based on survey data and 
measured customer satisfaction.  None measured accomplishment toward the 
goal, which was to provide accurate and reliable data.  A measure showing 
forecast accuracy could provide a better indication of whether department goals 
were being met.  

Some departments lacked measures for one or more of their goals.  Without 
such measures, the public would be unable to hold Metro accountable.  One 
department did not have a measure to capture public engagement, which 
seemed important given its goals to build trust and help the public understand 
and respond to Metro.  Another department listed four goals but there were 
no measures in the budget related to them.  Similarly, some measures were too 
narrow and described performance for only a small portion of a department’s 
responsibilities. 

Over half of Metro’s relevant measures could be improved.  Some were poorly 
written and others could be improved to better measure goals.  One goal was to 
create a significant economic impact throughout the region.  The measure used 
to track progress toward that goal was the “estimated economic impact”.  Some 
measure of actual economic impact may have provided for a better assessment of 



Office of the Metro Auditor Budget Performance Measures
December 2014

9

the department’s progress.  One of the governments we reviewed tracked hotel 
occupancy rates as a measure of economic impact. 

One measure reported on the maintenance of a AAA bond rating.  The bond 
rating is used by other governments to demonstrate financial management and 
health.  However, by the time the status of this measure changed from a “yes” to 
a “no,” recovery from poor performance could be difficult.  Including additional 
measures could help identify negative trends before they become problematic.  
An improvement would be a financial indicator showing Metro’s ability to meet 
its financial obligations.

Unable to determine 
performance 
improvement

Metro’s measures could not be used to compare its performance over time or 
to others.  Metro reported measures in the budget for a seven-year time span.  
However, only two of those years represented actual performance. With only 
two years of data, determining long-term trends or whether performance was 
improving would be difficult. 

For example, a measure of  “a biennial public survey in which an increasing 
percentage of respondents can identify Metro and one or more of its 
programs” was presented with only one year of actual data.  Similarly, the 
data included in the budget to measure “no annual increase in regional per 
capita solid waste generation” could not adequately communicate whether 
generation was increasing or decreasing with only two years of data (Exhibit 
3).  In contrast, several of the measures presented in Metro’s Balanced 
Scorecard provided multiple years of actual data so performance could be 
compared over time.

Exhibit 3
Example of  department measure

No annual increase in regional per capita solid waste generation (in pounds).

 11/12 12/13 13/14 14/15 15/16 16/17 17/18
 2,528 2,584 2,528 2,528 2,528 2,528 2,528

Source:   FY 2014-2015 Metro Budget
Note:  The numbers in bold represent actual values

It was also not possible to determine Metro’s performance in relation to others 
because measures were not benchmarked to accepted standards or comparable 
services.  Measures show that material recovery rate at the transfer stations 
averaged about 25% for both facilities in FY 2012-13.  Depending on industry 
standards, this could be satisfactory or poor performance.



Budget Performance Measures
December 2014

Office of the Metro Auditor10

Exhibit 4
Current goals and suggested

 alternatives

Lack of clear goals may have contributed to the quality of performance measures. 
The cornerstone of good performance measurement is a set of goals that can be 
clearly understood.  Department goals were not specifically stated in the budget 
and were difficult to infer.  At times, it was hard to determine what departments 
were supposed to accomplish.

For example, one goal was  to “build communities consistent with the Region 
2040 Growth Concept and local goals.”  It was not clear from the rest of the 
information in the budget what those local goals and the 2040 Growth Concept 
were.  To understand this goal, the public would need to be knowledgeable about 
multiple plans and planning efforts throughout the region.  Exhibit 4 shows 
examples of some current goals and suggestions for alternatives.

Budget goals could
 be clearer

Finance and 
Regulatory 

Services

Current
Provide financial management, administrative, regulatory 
and operational services to Metro’s elected officials, 
operating centers and services, employees and the public

Improved Oversee and ensure internal and external compliance with 
financial and regulatory requirements

Why?
The improved version is a specific goal, it applies to many 
FRS responsibilities, and it gives an indication of  the 
department’s desired results

Information 
Services

Current

Provide the professional skills, strategies, services and tools 
to deliver technical and information solutions with results 
that balance client need with cost and ability to support the 
solution

Improved Provide cost effective services

Why?

The goal as currently stated is not clear, but it seems 
to suggest providing services that leverage the current 
infrastructure in a cost effective way. More clearly stated 
goals provide better guidance to program operations and are 
easier to track

Source:  Auditor’s analysis of  FY 2014-2015 Metro Budget

The public cannot hold a government accountable if goals are ambiguous and 
cannot be measured.  One goal was to “inspire visitors to learn about endangered 
species…”  It is not clear what actions would be necessary to achieve this goal, or 
how one would measure another person’s inspiration. 

A more direct goal, to “educate visitors about endangered species…” would 
clearly express what the department is trying to achieve—the education of 
others—and more adequately lends itself to being measured.  Exhibit 5 provides 
additional examples of department goals and suggestions for improvement.



Office of the Metro Auditor Budget Performance Measures
December 2014

11

Exhibit 5
Current goals and suggested

 improvements
Communications

Current Helps the public understand and respond to Metro’s 
portfolio of  projects

Improved Increase public engagement

Why?

The improved goal provides direction and leads to a final 
desired outcome. The level of  public engagement could be 
more easily measured and tracked than how much someone 
was helped

Portland’5

Current Foster an entrepreneurial environment in which diverse 
arts, events, and audiences may flourish

Improved

Provide a variety of  event types without impacting financial 
stability 
- OR -
Maintain financial stability without impacting the diversity 
of  event type

Why?

It is not clear what constitutes an “entrepreneurial 
environment” or what types of  activities would “foster” 
one. This goal lends itself  too much to interpretation.  
Clear goals demonstrate what activities become a priority

Source:  Auditor’s analysis of  FY 2014-2015 Metro Budget

Some Metro departments did not have goals related to their main 
responsibilities.  This could make it difficult for the public to hold Metro 
accountable.   For example, The Oregon Convention Center, Portland’5, 
Portland Expo Center, and the Zoo did not have goals capturing visitor 
experience.  Further, the Zoo did not have a goal related to animals or animal 
welfare.

Lack of  adopted 
agency goals

Department goals should be based on agency goals. Metro’s six desired 
outcomes were adopted by Council to guide regional planning. The outcomes 
have been included in the framework used to make agency-wide budget 
decisions. It seems reasonable to assume the six outcomes represent agency 
goals. However, according to management these outcomes have not been 
formally adopted as agency goals. The six outcomes are:

Vibrant communities:  People live, work and play in vibrant  •
communities where their everyday needs are easily accessible
Climate change leadership:  The region is a leader in minimizing  •
contributions to global warming
Transportation choices:  People have safe and reliable transportation  •
choices that enhance their quality of life
Economic prosperity:  Current and future residents benefit from the  •
region’s sustained economic competitiveness and prosperity
Clean air and water:  Current and future generations enjoy clean air,  •
clean water, and healthy ecosystems
Equity:  The benefits and burdens of growth and change are distributed  •
equitably



Budget Performance Measures
December 2014

Office of the Metro Auditor12

To better achieve results, measures at the department level and their 
corresponding goals should link to higher level agency goals.  Likewise, specific 
activities that take place within a program should support department goals.  
Clear agency goals provide a foundation for department and program goals and 
activities (Exhibit 6).

Program Department Agency

Fund  
neighborhood 
projects that 

enhance natural 
features

Provide 
accessible 

regional natural 
areas, parks and 

trails

Vibrant 
communications

Exhibit 6
Link between activities and 

agency goals

Source:  Auditor’s analysis of  FY 2014-2015 Metro Budget

Metro could improve some of its department measures by reporting on how 
they relate to agency goals.  For example, assuming the six outcomes represented 
agency goals, measuring the percentage of the population within a certain 
distance to a recreation area could help track Metro’s success in achieving 
Vibrant Communities.  A measure tracking the same thing, except broken down 
by county or demographic group, could assess accomplishment toward Equity.

Similarly, there are many measures that could track Transportation Choices. 
Some of these such as the number of vehicle miles traveled per person or 
measurements of air quality were mentioned in previous audits and may already 
be measured by Metro programs. Including benchmarks for these measures 
based on industry standards or other jurisdictions could measure success in 
Climate Change Leadership. 

Using measures from existing reliable sources can save Metro staff resources 
when reporting annual performance measures.  The Greater Portland Pulse 
collects and publishes several datasets that could be used for assessing Metro 
outcomes.  These include the unemployment rate, voting rates, vehicle miles 
traveled, and unhealthy air days.  Other measures are tracked throughout 
Metro that could be used as well. For example,  Metro’s Balanced Scorecard has 
measures to track customer satisfaction at the visitor venues.  Metro’s Climate 
Smart Communities Scenarios Project has identified several measures. These 
include the percentage of households within ¼ mile from frequent bus service 
and daily vehicle miles traveled per capita.



Office of the Metro Auditor Budget Performance Measures
December 2014

13

Recommendations

To increase public transparency and accountability in the budget, Metro 
should:

Formally adopt a set of agency goals.1. 

Develop clear and measurable department goals.2. 

Develop department performance measures related to department 3. 
goals.  Measures should track outcome and efficiency.

Develop some department measures that also track progress toward 4. 
agency goals.

Include five years of actual data to allow for comparisons.5. 

 



Budget Performance Measures
December 2014

Office of the Metro Auditor14



Office of the Metro Auditor Budget Performance Measures
December 2014

15

Management response



Budget Performance Measures
December 2014

Office of the Metro Auditor16



Office of the Metro Auditor Budget Performance Measures
December 2014

17

 

  

1 

Date: November 13, 2014 
To: Suzanne Flynn 
From: Martha Bennett, Chief Operating Officer 
 Scott Robinson, Deputy Chief Operating Officer 
 Tim Collier, Director of Finance and Regulatory Services 
Subject: Management Response to Performance Measures Audit 

 
Thank you for the opportunity to respond to your recent audit on the Metro performance measures.  
The audit is very useful in helping us further identify how to improve our linkage and reporting 
tools in meeting the goals of the agency. 
  
In this memorandum we respond to how we will implement your recommendations and highlight 
some of the areas of the report that we believe have significance to our processes. 
 
The audit does point out that we do have several areas that currently have good performance 
measures, but that there is benefit in strengthening the relevance of the measures in multiple areas.  
As an agency we need to better clarify goals and targets and the reporting functions on how well we 
are doing or where we can improve. 
 
We firmly believe in continuous improvement and recognize that additional work in this area will 
help to ensure that the agency prioritizes and focuses its efforts on outcomes of importance to the 
Council and public. We recognize that similar government agencies struggle with this process as 
well, however we believe we can do a better job of setting the trend.   We believe that the audit 
recommendations are very useful in helping us remain focused on this work and to improve our 
linkage between agency goals and department and program reporting. 
 

 Recommendation: 1. Formally adopt a set of agency goals. 
 
Response:  While we currently have Council adopted six desired outcomes, the agency has not 
formally adopted a set of Council goals. We believe that dialoguing with Council on moving 
towards a more formal adoption of goals would be the next natural evolution of our 
improvement in alignment efforts.   We will work with Council to develop a process for 
establishing a set of Council adopted agency wide goals.  
 
Recommendation 2. Develop clear and measurable department goals. 

 
Response:  We believe that linking department goals and actions to Council goal is an 
appropriate task to undertake. Once having engaged Council on adoption of a set of agency 
goals, we will work with departments to more clearly align their goals   As we work to formally 
adopt the agency wide goals, we believe that the department goals will become clearer through 
alignment.  Until we have Council adopted goals, we anticipate continuing our use of the six 
desired outcomes as an appropriate tool for alignment and prioritization.  
 



Budget Performance Measures
December 2014

Office of the Metro Auditor18

2 

Recommendation 3: Develop department performance measures related to department goals. 
Measures should track outcome and efficiency. 
 
Response: As part of the process of completing recommendation 2, we anticipate beginning to 
develop improved performance measures to create linkage with goals and improved reporting.  
We concur with the recommendation that the measures should track both outcomes and 
efficiency and will use that context as we develop the measures. 
 
Recommendation 4: Develop some measures that also track progress towards agency goals.   
 
Response: As a part of the development of department goals, we will look towards aligning them 
with the overarching agency goals.  We believe that, if we design both the agency and 
department goal development process properly they should more naturally align and the 
development of measures that reflect overall progress on agency goals should come about as 
part of that process. 

 
 Recommendation 5: Include 5 years of actual data to allow comparisons 
 
Response:  We will look to include the five years of actual data and still include the forecasted 
targets for the upcoming five year period.  This will provide both comparative data and future 
targets. 
 



 Office of  the Metro Auditor
 600 NE Grand Avenue
 Portland, Oregon 97232
 503-797-1892
 www.oregonmetro.gov



 

 

Agenda Item No. 4.1 

 
 
 
 

Resolution No. 14-4594, For the Purpose of Metro Council’s 
Acceptance of the Results of the Independent Audit for 

Financial Activity During Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2014 
 
 

Consent Agenda  

Metro Council Meeting 
Thursday, December 18, 2014 

Metro, Council Chambers 

 



1  Resolution 14-4594 
 

 
BEFORE THE METRO COUNCIL 

 
 

FOR THE PURPOSE OF METRO COUNCIL’S 
ACCEPTANCE OF THE RESULTS OF THE 
INDEPENDENT AUDIT FOR FINANCIAL 
ACTIVITY DURING FISCAL YEAR ENDING 
JUNE 30, 2014 

) 
) 
) 
) 
) 

 RESOLUTION NO. 14-4594 
 
Introduced by Chief Operating Officer Martha 
Bennett in concurrence with Council 
President Tom Hughes 

 
 

 WHEREAS, Oregon Revised Statute 297.425 requires an annual independent audit of Metro’s 
financial statements; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Metro Code Section 2.15.80 requires the Metro Auditor to appoint the external 
certified public accountant to conduct certified financial statement audits as specified in state and local 
laws; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Metro engaged in Contract No. 929814 with Moss Adams LLP, independent 
Certified Public Accountants to provide the following audit services for each of the fiscal years ending 
June 30, 2010-12, and amended to provide auditing services for each of the fiscal years ending June 30, 
2013 and June 30, 2014: 
 

1. Audit of Metro’s financial statements (including all costs associated with the Comprehensive 
Annual Financial Report and applicable management recommendations and comments); 

2. Single Audit and applicable management recommendations and comments; 

3. Metro Natural Areas Bond Measure Expenditures and applicable management 
recommendations and comments; and 

4. Oregon Zoo Construction Bond Measure Expenditures and applicable management 
recommendations and comments. 

 
WHEREAS, the annual independent audit for fiscal year ended June 30, 2014 has been completed 

and an unmodified opinion received from Moss Adams LLP; and 
 
WHEREAS, a separate letter was delivered to management and a management plan of action 

completed; now, therefore,  
 
 BE IT RESOLVED that the Metro Council hereby acknowledges and receive the results of the 
independent audit for fiscal year ended June 30, 2014 (Attachment A). 
 
  
ADOPTED by the Metro Council this _____ day of __________ 2014. 
 
 

 
Tom Hughes, Council President 

 
Approved as to Form: 
 
 
      
Alison R. Kean, Metro Attorney 



2  Resolution 14-4594 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 

IN CONSIDERATION OF RESOLUTION NO. 14-4594 FOR THE PURPOSE OF METRO 
COUNCIL’S ACCEPTANCE OF THE RESULTS OF THE INDEPENDENT AUDIT FOR 
FINANCIAL ACTIVITY DURING FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2014 

              
 
Date: December 2, 2014     Prepared by:  Suzanne Flynn 
                                                                                                                                Metro Auditor 
                                                                                                                                503/797-1891 
BACKGROUND 
 
State ORS provision 297.425 requires an annual independent audit of Metro’s financial statements.  The 
current contract (No. 929814) was awarded to Moss Adams LLP for audit services and is effective May 1, 
2010 through June 30, 2015. 
 
Metro Code Chapter 2.15 specifies at Section 2.15.80 that the Auditor shall appoint external certified 
public accountants to conduct certified financial statement audits.  Metro Charter Section 18 also specifies 
that the auditor shall be responsible for financial auditing of all aspects of Metro’s operations.  
 
The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) has been completed by Metro Finance and 
Regulatory Services.  Moss Adams LLP has audited the financial statements and issued an opinion that 
these statements fairly represent Metro’s financial position as of June 30, 2014.  The results have been 
reviewed by the Metro Auditor and Metro Audit Committee members. 
 
ANALYSIS/INFORMATION 
 
1. Known Opposition    none 
 
2. Legal Antecedents 

State ORS provision 297.425 requires an annual independent audit of Metro’s financial statements.   
Metro contract No. 929814 with Moss Adams LLP for audit services will expire on June 30, 2015. 
 
Metro Code Chapter 2.15 specifies at Section 2.15.80 that the Auditor shall appoint external certified 
public accountants to conduct certified financial statement audits.  The Metro Charter Section 18 also 
specifies that the auditor shall be responsible for financial auditing of all aspects of Metro’s 
operations. 

 
3. Anticipated Effects  

Finance and Regulatory Services management and staff will review and implement the best practices 
suggestions as appropriate. 

 
4. Budget Impacts   None known at this time. 
 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION 
  
The Metro Auditor recommends approval of Resolution No. 14-4594. 
 
 



Metro CAFR - Financial Section 

 

REPORT	OF	INDEPENDENT	AUDITORS	
	
	
	
Metro	Council	and	Metro	Auditor	
Portland,	Oregon	
	
Report	on	the	Financial	Statements	

We	have	 audited	 the	 accompanying	 financial	 statements	 of	 the	 governmental	 activities,	 the	 business‐
type	activities,	the	discretely	presented	component	unit,	each	major	fund,	and	the	aggregate	remaining	
fund	 information	 of	Metro,	 as	 of	 and	 for	 the	 year	 ended	 June	 30,	 2014,	 and	 the	 related	 notes	 to	 the	
financial	statements,	which	collectively	comprise	Metro’s	basic	financial	statements	as	listed	in	the	table	
of	contents.			
	
Management’s	Responsibility	for	the	Financial	Statements	

Management	 is	 responsible	 for	 the	 preparation	 and	 fair	 presentation	 of	 these	 financial	 statements	 in	
accordance	with	accounting	principles	generally	accepted	in	the	United	States	of	America;	this	includes	
the	 design,	 implementation,	 and	maintenance	 of	 internal	 control	 relevant	 to	 the	 preparation	 and	 fair	
presentation	of	financial	statements	that	are	free	from	material	misstatement,	whether	due	to	fraud	or	
error.	
	
Auditor’s	Responsibility	

Our	responsibility	is	to	express	opinions	on	these	financial	statements	based	on	our	audit.	We	did	not	
audit	 the	 financial	 statements	 of	 the	Oregon	 Zoo	 Foundation,	 a	 discretely	 presented	 component	 unit,	
which	represents	100%	of	the	assets,	net	position,	and	revenues	of	the	discretely	presented	component	
unit	 of	Metro.	 Those	 financial	 statements	were	 audited	 by	 other	 auditors,	 whose	 report	 thereon	 has	
been	furnished	to	us,	and	our	opinion,	insofar	as	it	relates	to	the	amounts	included	for	the	Oregon	Zoo	
Foundation,	 is	based	solely	on	the	report	of	the	other	auditors.	We	conducted	our	audit	 in	accordance	
with	auditing	standards	generally	accepted	in	the	United	States	of	America	and	the	standards	applicable	
to	financial	audits	contained	in	Government	Auditing	Standards,	issued	by	the	Comptroller	General	of	the	
United	 States.	 Those	 standards	 require	 that	 we	 plan	 and	 perform	 the	 audit	 to	 obtain	 reasonable	
assurance	about	whether	 the	 financial	 statements	are	 free	 from	material	misstatement.	 	The	 financial	
statements	of	The	Oregon	Zoo	Foundation	were	not	 audited	 in	 accordance	with	Government	Auditing	
Standards.	

An	audit	involves	performing	procedures	to	obtain	audit	evidence	about	the	amounts	and	disclosures	in	
the	 financial	 statements.	 The	 procedures	 selected	 depend	 on	 the	 auditor’s	 judgment,	 including	 the	
assessment	of	 the	risks	of	material	misstatement	of	 the	 financial	statements,	whether	due	 to	 fraud	or	
error.	 In	making	those	risk	assessments,	 the	auditor	considers	internal	control	relevant	 to	 the	entity’s	
preparation	and	 fair	presentation	of	 the	 financial	 statements	 in	order	 to	design	audit	procedures	 that	
are	 appropriate	 in	 the	 circumstances,	 but	 not	 for	 the	 purpose	 of	 expressing	 an	 opinion	 on	 the	
effectiveness	of	Metro’s	internal	control.	Accordingly,	we	express	no	such	opinion.	An	audit	also	includes	
evaluating	 the	 appropriateness	 of	 accounting	 policies	 used	 and	 the	 reasonableness	 of	 significant	
accounting	 estimates	 made	 by	 management,	 as	 well	 as	 evaluating	 the	 overall	 presentation	 of	 the	
financial	statements.	

16

braun
Text Box
Attachment "A" to Resolution 14-4594



Metro CAFR - Financial Section

 

We	believe	that	the	audit	evidence	we	have	obtained	is	sufficient	and	appropriate	to	provide	a	basis	for	
our	audit	opinions.	
	
Opinions	

In	our	opinion,	based	on	our	audit	and	the	report	of	other	auditors,	the	financial	statements	referred	to	
above	 present	 fairly,	 in	 all	 material	 respects,	 the	 respective	 financial	 position	 of	 the	 governmental	
activities,	 the	business‐type	 activities,	 the	discretely	presented	 component	unit,	 each	major	 fund,	 and	
the	aggregate	remaining	fund	information	of	Metro,	as	of	June	30,	2014,	and	the	respective	changes	in	
financial	position	and,	where	applicable,	cash	flows	thereof	for	the	year	then	ended	in	accordance	with	
accounting	principles	generally	accepted	in	the	United	States	of	America.	
	
Other	Matters	

Required	Supplementary	Information	

Accounting	principles	generally	accepted	in	the	United	States	of	America	require	that	the	management’s	
discussion	and	analysis	on	pages	19	through	35;	the	schedules	of	revenues,	expenditures	and	changes	in	
fund	balance	 –	 budget	 and	 actual	 and	 related	notes	 (the	 “budgetary	 schedules”);	 and	 the	 schedule	 of	
funding	 progress	 for	 the	 other	 postemployment	 benefits	 on	 pages	 87	 through	 90,	 be	 presented	 to	
supplement	the	basic	 financial	statements.	Such	information,	although	not	a	part	of	the	basic	 financial	
statements,	 is	 required	 by	 the	 Governmental	 Accounting	 Standards	 Board	 who	 considers	 it	 to	 be	 an	
essential	 part	 of	 financial	 reporting	 for	 placing	 the	 basic	 financial	 statements	 in	 an	 appropriate	
operational,	economic,	or	historical	context.		

We	 have	 applied	 certain	 limited	 procedures	 to	 the	 management’s	 discussion	 and	 analysis	 and	 the	
schedule	 of	 funding	 progress	 for	 the	 other	 postemployment	 benefits	 described	 in	 the	 preceding	
paragraph	 in	 accordance	with	 auditing	 standards	 generally	 accepted	 in	 the	United	 States	 of	 America,	
which	 consisted	 of	 inquiries	 of	 management	 about	 the	 methods	 of	 preparing	 the	 information	 and	
comparing	 the	 information	 for	 consistency	 with	management's	 responses	 to	 our	 inquiries,	 the	 basic	
financial	 statements,	 and	 other	 knowledge	 we	 obtained	 during	 our	 audit	 of	 the	 basic	 financial	
statements.	We	 do	 not	 express	 an	 opinion	 or	 provide	 any	 assurance	 on	 the	 information	 because	 the	
limited	 procedures	 do	 not	 provide	 us	 with	 sufficient	 evidence	 to	 express	 an	 opinion	 or	 provide	 any	
assurance.	

Our	 audit	 was	 conducted	 for	 the	 purpose	 of	 forming	 opinions	 on	 the	 financial	 statements	 that	
collectively	comprise	Metro's	basic	financial	statements.	The	budgetary	schedules	described	above	are	
the	 responsibility	 of	 management	 and	 were	 derived	 from	 and	 relate	 directly	 to	 the	 underlying	
accounting	and	other	records	used	to	prepare	the	basic	financial	statements.	The	budgetary	schedules	
have	been	subjected	to	the	auditing	procedures	applied	in	the	audit	of	the	basic	financial	statements	and	
certain	 additional	 procedures,	 including	 comparing	 and	 reconciling	 such	 information	 directly	 to	 the	
underlying	accounting	and	other	records	used	to	prepare	the	basic	financial	statements	or	to	the	basic	
financial	statements	themselves,	and	other	additional	procedures	in	accordance	with	auditing	standards	
generally	accepted	 in	 the	United	States	of	America.	 In	our	opinion,	 the	budgetary	 schedules	are	 fairly	
stated,	in	all	material	respects,	in	relation	to	the	basic	financial	statements	as	a	whole.	

Supplementary	Information	

Our	 audit	 was	 conducted	 for	 the	 purpose	 of	 forming	 opinions	 on	 the	 financial	 statements	 that	
collectively	 comprise	 Metro's	 basic	 financial	 statements.	 The	 other	 supplementary	 information	 and	
other	financial	schedules,	and	the	schedule	of	expenditures	of	federal	awards	which	is	required	by	Office	
of	 Management	 and	 Budget	 Circular	 A‐133,	 Audits	 of	 States,	 Local	 Governments,	 and	 Non‐Profit	
Organizations;	each	as	listed	in	the	table	of	contents	(collectively,	the	supplementary	information),	are	

17



Metro CAFR - Financial Section 

 

presented	 for	 purposes	 of	 additional	 analysis	 and	 are	 not	 a	 required	 part	 of	 the	 basic	 financial	
statements.	

The	Supplementary	Information	is	the	responsibility	of	management	and	was	derived	from	and	relates	
directly	to	the	underlying	accounting	and	other	records	used	to	prepare	the	basic	financial	statements.	
Such	 information	 has	 been	 subjected	 to	 the	 auditing	 procedures	 applied	 in	 the	 audit	 of	 the	 basic	
financial	 statements	 and	 certain	 additional	 procedures,	 including	 comparing	 and	 reconciling	 such	
information	directly	to	the	underlying	accounting	and	other	records	used	to	prepare	the	basic	financial	
statements	 or	 to	 the	 basic	 financial	 statements	 themselves,	 and	 other	 additional	 procedures	 in	
accordance	with	auditing	standards	generally	accepted	in	the	United	States	of	America.	In	our	opinion,	
the	other	supplementary	information,	other	financial	schedules,	and	schedule	of	expenditures	of	federal	
awards	are	fairly	stated,	in	all	material	respects,	in	relation	to	the	basic	financial	statements	as	a	whole.	

Other	Information	

Our	 audit	 was	 conducted	 for	 the	 purpose	 of	 forming	 opinions	 on	 the	 financial	 statements	 that	
collectively	 comprise	 Metro’s	 basic	 financial	 statements.	 	 The	 introductory	 section	 and	 statistical	
information	are	presented	 for	purposes	of	additional	analysis	and	are	not	a	required	part	of	 the	basic	
financial	statements.	

The	introductory	section	and	statistical	information	have	not	been	subjected	to	the	auditing	procedures	
applied	in	the	audit	of	the	basic	financial	statements,	and	accordingly,	we	do	not	express	an	opinion	or	
provide	any	assurance	on	it.	

	
Other	Reporting	Required	by	Government	Auditing	Standards	

In	accordance	with	Government	Auditing	Standards,	we	have	also	issued	our	report	dated	November	18,	
2014,	on	our	 consideration	of	Metro's	 internal	 control	over	 financial	 reporting	and	on	our	 tests	of	 its	
compliance	 with	 certain	 provisions	 of	 laws,	 regulations,	 contracts,	 and	 grant	 agreements	 and	 other	
matters.	 The	 purpose	 of	 that	 report	 is	 to	 describe	 the	 scope	 of	 our	 testing	 of	 internal	 control	 over	
financial	 reporting	 and	 compliance	 and	 the	 results	 of	 that	 testing,	 and	 not	 to	 provide	 an	 opinion	 on	
internal	 control	 over	 financial	 reporting	or	on	 compliance.	That	 report	 is	 an	 integral	 part	 of	 an	 audit	
performed	 in	 accordance	with	Government	Auditing	Standards	 in	 considering	Metro's	 internal	 control	
over	financial	reporting	and	compliance.	
	

Report	on	Other	Legal	and	Regulatory	Requirements	

In	 accordance	 with	 the	 Minimum	 Standards	 for	 Audits	 of	 Oregon	 Municipal	 Corporations,	 we	 have	
issued	our	report	dated	November	18,	2014,	on	our	consideration	of	Metro’s	compliance	with	certain	
provisions	of	 laws	and	regulations,	 including	the	provisions	of	Oregon	Revised	Statutes	as	specified	 in	
Oregon	 Administrative	 Rules.	 	 The	 purpose	 of	 that	 report	 is	 to	 describe	 the	 scope	 of	 our	 testing	 of	
compliance	and	the	results	of	that	testing	and	not	to	provide	an	opinion	on	compliance.	

	
For	Moss	Adams	LLP	
Eugene,	Oregon	
November	18,	2014	

18



600 NE Grand Ave. 
Portland, Oregon 
97232-2736

COMPREHENSIVE

ANNUAL
FINANCIAL
REPORT
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014

www.oregonmetro.gov

braun
Text Box
Cover only - entire report may be downloaded from Metro's website (192 pages)



Metro CAFR - Audit Comments and Disclosures

 

	

REPORT	OF	INDEPENDENT	AUDITORS	ON	COMPLIANCE	AND	ON	INTERNAL	CONTROL	OVER	
FINANCIAL	REPORTING	BASED	ON	AN	AUDIT	OF	FINANCIAL	STATEMENTS	PERFORMED	IN		

ACCORDANCE	WITH	OREGON	MINIMUM	AUDIT	STANDARDS	
	
Metro	Council	and	Metro	Auditor	
Portland,	Oregon	
	
We	have	 audited	 the	basic	 financial	 statements	of	Metro	 as	of	 and	 for	 the	 year	 ended	 June	30,	 2014	and	have	
issued	 our	 report	 thereon	 dated	 November	 18,	 2014.	 	 We	 conducted	 our	 audit	 in	 accordance	 with	 auditing	
standards	generally	accepted	 in	the	United	States	of	America	and	the	provisions	of	the	Minimum	Standards	for	
Audits	of	Oregon	Municipal	Corporations,	prescribed	by	the	Secretary	of	State.		Those	standards	require	that	we	
plan	and	perform	the	audit	to	obtain	reasonable	assurance	about	whether	the	basic	financial	statements	are	free	
of	material	misstatement.	
	
Compliance	
As	part	of	obtaining	reasonable	assurance	about	whether	Metro’s	basic	financial	statements	are	free	of	material	
misstatement,	we	performed	tests	of	its	compliance	with	certain	provisions	of	laws,	regulations,	contracts,	grants,	
including	provisions	of	Oregon	Revised	Statutes	as	specified	in	Oregon	Administrative	Rules	OAR	162‐10‐000	to	
162‐10‐330,	 as	 set	 forth	 below,	 noncompliance	 with	 which	 could	 have	 a	 direct	 and	 material	 effect	 on	 the	
determination	of	financial	statement	amounts:		

OAR Section
Instances	of	Non‐Compliance	

Identified?

162‐010‐0000 Preface None	Noted
162‐010‐0010 Definitions None	Noted
162‐010‐0020 Introduction None	Noted
162‐010‐0030 General	Requirements None	Noted
162‐010‐0050 Financial	Statements None	Noted
162‐010‐0115 Required	Supplementary	Information	(RSI) None	Noted
162‐010‐0120 Other	Supplementary	Information None	Noted

162‐010‐0130 Schedule	of	Revenues,	Expenditures	/	Expenses,	and	Changes	in	Fund	
Balances,	/	Net	Position,	Budget	and	Actual	(Each	Fund) None	Noted

162‐010‐0140 Schedule	of	Accountability	for	Independently	Elected	Officials Not	applicable
162‐010‐0150 Schedule	of	Property	Tax	Transactions	or	Acreage	Assessments None	Noted
162‐010‐0160 Schedule	of	Bonded	or	Long‐Term	Debt	Transactions None	Noted

162‐010‐0170 Schedule	of	Future	Requirements	for	Retirement	of	Bonded	or	Long‐Term	
Debt None	Noted

162‐010‐0190 Other	Financial	or	Statistical	Information None	Noted
162‐010‐0200 Required	Disclosures	and	Independent	Auditors	Comments None	Noted
162‐010‐0230 Accounting	Records	and	Internal	Control None	Noted
162‐010‐0240 Public	Fund	Deposits None	Noted
162‐010‐0250 Indebtedness None	Noted
162‐010‐0260 Budget None	Noted
162‐010‐0270 Insurance	and	Fidelity	Bonds None	Noted
162‐010‐0280 Programs	Funded	from	Outside	Sources None	Noted
162‐010‐0295 Highway	Funds Not	applicable
162‐010‐0300 Investments None	Noted
162‐010‐0310 Public	Contracts	and	Purchasing None	Noted
162‐010‐0315 State	School	Fund Not	applicable
162‐010‐0316 Public	Charter	Schools Not	applicable
162‐010‐0320 Other	Comments	and	Disclosures None	Noted
162‐010‐0330 Extensions	of	Time	to	Deliver	Audit	Reports Not	applicable 	

169



Metro CAFR - Audit Comments and Disclosures

 

	

	
	
	
	
	
However,	providing	an	opinion	on	compliance	with	those	provisions	was	not	an	objective	of	our	audit	and,	
accordingly,	 we	 do	 not	 express	 such	 an	 opinion.	 	 The	 results	 of	 our	 tests	 disclosed	 no	 instances	 of	
noncompliance	 that	 are	 required	 to	 be	 reported	 under	 Minimum	 Standards	 for	 Audits	 of	 Municipal	
Corporations.	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
Internal	Control	Over	Financial	Reporting	

In	planning	and	performing	our	audit	of	the	financial	statements,	we	considered	Metro’s	internal	control	over	
financial	 reporting	 (internal	 control)	 to	 determine	 the	 audit	 procedures	 that	 are	 appropriate	 in	 the	
circumstances	for	the	purpose	of	expressing	our	opinions	on	the	financial	statements,	but	not	for	the	purpose	
of	expressing	an	opinion	on	the	effectiveness	of	Metro’s	internal	control.	Accordingly,	we	do	not	express	an	
opinion	on	the	effectiveness	of	Metro’s	internal	control.	

A	deficiency	in	internal	control	exists	when	the	design	or	operation	of	a	control	does	not	allow	management	or	
employees,	 in	 the	normal	 course	of	 performing	 their	 assigned	 functions,	 to	 prevent,	 or	detect	 and	 correct,	
misstatements	 on	 a	 timely	 basis.	 A	material	weakness	 is	 a	 deficiency,	 or	 a	 combination	 of	 deficiencies,	 in	
internal	 control	 such	 that	 there	 is	 a	 reasonable	 possibility	 that	 a	 material	 misstatement	 of	 the	 entity's	
financial	 statements	 will	 not	 be	 prevented,	 or	 detected	 and	 corrected,	 on	 a	 timely	 basis.	 A	 significant	
deficiency	 is	 a	 deficiency,	 or	 a	 combination	 of	 deficiencies,	 in	 internal	 control	 that	 is	 less	 severe	 than	 a	
material	weakness,	yet	important	enough	to	merit	attention	by	those	charged	with	governance.	

Our	 consideration	 of	 internal	 control	was	 for	 the	 limited	 purpose	 described	 in	 the	 first	 paragraph	 of	 this	
section	and	was	not	designed	to	identify	all	deficiencies	in	internal	control	that	might	be	material	weaknesses	
or	 significant	deficiencies.	Given	 these	 limitations,	 during	 our	 audit	we	did	not	 identify	 any	deficiencies	 in	
internal	control	 that	we	consider	 to	be	material	weaknesses.	However,	material	weaknesses	may	exist	 that	
have	not	been	identified.		
	
Purpose	of	this	Report	

The	purpose	of	this	report	is	solely	to	describe	the	scope	of	our	testing	of	internal	control	and	compliance	and	
the	results	of	that	testing,	and	not	to	provide	an	opinion	on	the	effectiveness	of	the	entity’s	internal	control	or	
on	compliance.	This	report	is	an	integral	part	of	an	audit	performed	in	accordance	with	Minimum	Standards	
for	Audits	of	Oregon	Municipal	Corporations,	prescribed	by	the	Secretary	of	State,	in	considering	the	entity’s	
internal	control	and	compliance.	Accordingly,	this	communication	is	not	suitable	for	any	other	purpose.	
	

	
	
For	Moss	Adams	LLP	
Eugene,	Oregon	
November	18,	2014 

170



Metro CAFR - Audit Comments and Disclosures

 

	

	
	
	
	
	
However,	providing	an	opinion	on	compliance	with	those	provisions	was	not	an	objective	of	our	audit	and,	
accordingly,	 we	 do	 not	 express	 such	 an	 opinion.	 	 The	 results	 of	 our	 tests	 disclosed	 no	 instances	 of	
noncompliance	 that	 are	 required	 to	 be	 reported	 under	 Minimum	 Standards	 for	 Audits	 of	 Municipal	
Corporations.	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
Internal	Control	Over	Financial	Reporting	

In	planning	and	performing	our	audit	of	the	financial	statements,	we	considered	Metro’s	internal	control	over	
financial	 reporting	 (internal	 control)	 to	 determine	 the	 audit	 procedures	 that	 are	 appropriate	 in	 the	
circumstances	for	the	purpose	of	expressing	our	opinions	on	the	financial	statements,	but	not	for	the	purpose	
of	expressing	an	opinion	on	the	effectiveness	of	Metro’s	internal	control.	Accordingly,	we	do	not	express	an	
opinion	on	the	effectiveness	of	Metro’s	internal	control.	

A	deficiency	in	internal	control	exists	when	the	design	or	operation	of	a	control	does	not	allow	management	or	
employees,	 in	 the	normal	 course	of	 performing	 their	 assigned	 functions,	 to	 prevent,	 or	detect	 and	 correct,	
misstatements	 on	 a	 timely	 basis.	 A	material	weakness	 is	 a	 deficiency,	 or	 a	 combination	 of	 deficiencies,	 in	
internal	 control	 such	 that	 there	 is	 a	 reasonable	 possibility	 that	 a	 material	 misstatement	 of	 the	 entity's	
financial	 statements	 will	 not	 be	 prevented,	 or	 detected	 and	 corrected,	 on	 a	 timely	 basis.	 A	 significant	
deficiency	 is	 a	 deficiency,	 or	 a	 combination	 of	 deficiencies,	 in	 internal	 control	 that	 is	 less	 severe	 than	 a	
material	weakness,	yet	important	enough	to	merit	attention	by	those	charged	with	governance.	

Our	 consideration	 of	 internal	 control	was	 for	 the	 limited	 purpose	 described	 in	 the	 first	 paragraph	 of	 this	
section	and	was	not	designed	to	identify	all	deficiencies	in	internal	control	that	might	be	material	weaknesses	
or	 significant	deficiencies.	Given	 these	 limitations,	 during	 our	 audit	we	did	not	 identify	 any	deficiencies	 in	
internal	control	 that	we	consider	 to	be	material	weaknesses.	However,	material	weaknesses	may	exist	 that	
have	not	been	identified.		
	
Purpose	of	this	Report	

The	purpose	of	this	report	is	solely	to	describe	the	scope	of	our	testing	of	internal	control	and	compliance	and	
the	results	of	that	testing,	and	not	to	provide	an	opinion	on	the	effectiveness	of	the	entity’s	internal	control	or	
on	compliance.	This	report	is	an	integral	part	of	an	audit	performed	in	accordance	with	Minimum	Standards	
for	Audits	of	Oregon	Municipal	Corporations,	prescribed	by	the	Secretary	of	State,	in	considering	the	entity’s	
internal	control	and	compliance.	Accordingly,	this	communication	is	not	suitable	for	any	other	purpose.	
	

	
	
For	Moss	Adams	LLP	
Eugene,	Oregon	
November	18,	2014 

 

REPORT	OF	INDEPENDENT	AUDITORS	ON	INTERNAL	CONTROL	OVER	FINANCIAL	REPORTING	
AND	ON	COMPLIANCE	AND	OTHER	MATTERS	BASED	ON	AN	AUDIT	OF	FINANCIAL	

STATEMENTS	PERFORMED	IN	ACCORDANCE	WITH	GOVERNMENT	AUDITING	STANDARDS	
	
	
	
Metro	Council	and	Metro	Auditor	
Portland,	Oregon	
	
We	have	audited,	 in	accordance	with	the	auditing	standards	generally	accepted	in	the	United	States	of	
America	 and	 the	 standards	 applicable	 to	 financial	 audits	 contained	 in	Government	Auditing	Standards	
issued	 by	 the	 Comptroller	 General	 of	 the	United	 States,	 the	 financial	 statements	 of	 the	 governmental	
activities,	 the	business‐type	 activities,	 the	discretely	presented	 component	unit,	 each	major	 fund,	 and	
the	aggregate	remaining	fund	information	of	Metro,	as	of	and	for	the	year	ended	June	30,	2014,	and	the	
related	notes	to	the	financial	statements,	which	collectively	comprise	Metro’s	basic	financial	statements,	
and	have	issued	our	report	thereon	dated	November	18,	2014.	Our	report	includes	a	reference	to	other	
auditors	who	audited	the	financial	statements	of	the	Oregon	Zoo	Foundation,	as	described	in	our	report	
on	 Metro’s	 financial	 statements.	 The	 financial	 statements	 of	 the	 Oregon	 Zoo	 Foundation	 were	 not	
audited	in	accordance	with	Government	Auditing	Standards	and	accordingly	this	report	does	not	include	
reporting	 on	 internal	 control	 over	 financial	 reporting	 or	 instances	 of	 reportable	 noncompliance	
associated	with	the	Oregon	Zoo	Foundation.		
	
Internal	Control	Over	Financial	Reporting	

In	planning	and	performing	our	audit	of	the	financial	statements,	we	considered	Metro’s	internal	control	
over	financial	reporting	(internal	control)	to	determine	the	audit	procedures	that	are	appropriate	in	the	
circumstances	 for	 the	purpose	of	expressing	our	opinions	on	 the	 financial	 statements,	but	not	 for	 the	
purpose	of	expressing	an	opinion	on	the	effectiveness	of	Metro’s	internal	control.	Accordingly,	we	do	not	
express	an	opinion	on	the	effectiveness	of	Metro’s	internal	control.	

A	 deficiency	 in	 internal	 control	 exists	 when	 the	 design	 or	 operation	 of	 a	 control	 does	 not	 allow	
management	or	employees,	in	the	normal	course	of	performing	their	assigned	functions,	to	prevent,	or	
detect	 and	 correct,	 misstatements	 on	 a	 timely	 basis.	 A	 material	 weakness	 is	 a	 deficiency,	 or	 a	
combination	of	deficiencies,	in	internal	control	such	that	there	is	a	reasonable	possibility	that	a	material	
misstatement	of	the	entity's	financial	statements	will	not	be	prevented,	or	detected	and	corrected,	on	a	
timely	basis.	A	significant	deficiency	 is	a	deficiency,	or	a	combination	of	deficiencies,	in	internal	control	
that	is	less	severe	than	a	material	weakness,	yet	important	enough	to	merit	attention	by	those	charged	
with	governance.	

Our	consideration	of	internal	control	was	for	the	limited	purpose	described	in	the	first	paragraph	of	this	
section	 and	 was	 not	 designed	 to	 identify	 all	 deficiencies	 in	 internal	 control	 that	 might	 be	 material	
weaknesses	or	significant	deficiencies.	Given	these	limitations,	during	our	audit	we	did	not	identify	any	
deficiencies	 in	 internal	 control	 that	 we	 consider	 to	 be	 material	 weaknesses.	 However,	 material	
weaknesses	may	exist	that	have	not	been	identified.	

171



Metro CAFR - Audit Comments and Disclosures

 

Compliance	and	Other	Matters	

As	 part	 of	 obtaining	 reasonable	 assurance	 about	 whether	Metro’s	 financial	 statements	 are	 free	 from	
material	 misstatement,	 we	 performed	 tests	 of	 its	 compliance	 with	 certain	 provisions	 of	 laws,	
regulations,	 contracts,	 and	 grant	 agreements,	 noncompliance	 with	 which	 could	 have	 a	 direct	 and	
material	effect	on	the	determination	of	financial	statement	amounts.	However,	providing	an	opinion	on	
compliance	with	those	provisions	was	not	an	objective	of	our	audit,	and	accordingly,	we	do	not	express	
such	an	opinion.	The	results	of	our	tests	disclosed	no	instances	of	noncompliance	or	other	matters	that	
are	required	to	be	reported	under	Government	Auditing	Standards.	
	
Purpose	of	this	Report	

The	 purpose	 of	 this	 report	 is	 solely	 to	 describe	 the	 scope	 of	 our	 testing	 of	 internal	 control	 and	
compliance	 and	 the	 result	 of	 that	 testing,	 and	 not	 to	 provide	 an	 opinion	 on	 the	 effectiveness	 of	 the	
entity’s	 internal	 control	 or	 on	 compliance.	 This	 report	 is	 an	 integral	 part	 of	 an	 audit	 performed	 in	
accordance	 with	 Government	 Auditing	 Standards	 in	 considering	 the	 entity’s	 internal	 control	 and	
compliance.	Accordingly,	this	communication	is	not	suitable	for	any	other	purpose.	
	

	
	
Eugene,	Oregon	
November	18,	2014	

172



Metro CAFR - Audit Comments and Disclosures

 

Compliance	and	Other	Matters	

As	 part	 of	 obtaining	 reasonable	 assurance	 about	 whether	Metro’s	 financial	 statements	 are	 free	 from	
material	 misstatement,	 we	 performed	 tests	 of	 its	 compliance	 with	 certain	 provisions	 of	 laws,	
regulations,	 contracts,	 and	 grant	 agreements,	 noncompliance	 with	 which	 could	 have	 a	 direct	 and	
material	effect	on	the	determination	of	financial	statement	amounts.	However,	providing	an	opinion	on	
compliance	with	those	provisions	was	not	an	objective	of	our	audit,	and	accordingly,	we	do	not	express	
such	an	opinion.	The	results	of	our	tests	disclosed	no	instances	of	noncompliance	or	other	matters	that	
are	required	to	be	reported	under	Government	Auditing	Standards.	
	
Purpose	of	this	Report	

The	 purpose	 of	 this	 report	 is	 solely	 to	 describe	 the	 scope	 of	 our	 testing	 of	 internal	 control	 and	
compliance	 and	 the	 result	 of	 that	 testing,	 and	 not	 to	 provide	 an	 opinion	 on	 the	 effectiveness	 of	 the	
entity’s	 internal	 control	 or	 on	 compliance.	 This	 report	 is	 an	 integral	 part	 of	 an	 audit	 performed	 in	
accordance	 with	 Government	 Auditing	 Standards	 in	 considering	 the	 entity’s	 internal	 control	 and	
compliance.	Accordingly,	this	communication	is	not	suitable	for	any	other	purpose.	
	

	
	
Eugene,	Oregon	
November	18,	2014	

 

REPORT	OF	INDEPENDENT	AUDITORS	ON	COMPLIANCE	FOR	EACH	MAJOR	FEDERAL	
PROGRAM;	REPORT	ON	INTERNAL	CONTROL	OVER	COMPLIANCE	

	
Metro	Council	and	Metro	Auditor	
Portland,	Oregon	
	
Report	on	Compliance for	the	Major	Federal	Program	
We	have	audited	Metro’s	compliance	with	the	types	of	compliance	requirements	described	in	the	OMB	
Circular	A‐133	Compliance	Supplement	 that	 could	have	a	direct	 and	material	 effect	on	each	of	Metro's	
major	federal	program	for	the	year	ended	June	30,	2014.	Metro's	major	federal	program	is	identified	in	
the	summary	of	auditor's	results	section	of	the	accompanying	schedule	of	findings	and	questioned	costs.	
	
Management’s	Responsibility	
Management	 is	 responsible	 for	 compliance	with	 the	 requirements	 of	 laws,	 regulations,	 contracts,	 and	
grants	applicable	to	its	federal	program.	
	
Auditor’s	Responsibility	
Our	responsibility	is	to	express	an	opinion	on	compliance	for	Metro's	major	federal	program	based	on	
our	 audit	 of	 the	 types	 of	 compliance	 requirements	 referred	 to	 above.	 We	 conducted	 our	 audit	 of	
compliance	 in	accordance	with	auditing	standards	generally	accepted	 in	the	United	States	of	America;	
the	standards	applicable	to	financial	audits	contained	in	Government	Auditing	Standards,	 issued	by	the	
Comptroller	General	of	the	United	States;	and	OMB	Circular	A‐133,	Audits	of	States,	Local	Governments,	
and	 Non‐Profit	 Organizations.	 Those	 standards	 and	 OMB	 Circular	 A‐133	 require	 that	 we	 plan	 and	
perform	 the	 audit	 to	 obtain	 reasonable	 assurance	 about	 whether	 noncompliance	 with	 the	 types	 of	
compliance	 requirements	 referred	 to	 above	 that	 could	 have	 a	 direct	 and	 material	 effect	 on	 a	 major	
federal	 program	 occurred.	 An	 audit	 includes	 examining,	 on	 a	 test	 basis,	 evidence	 about	 Metro's	
compliance	with	those	requirements	and	performing	such	other	procedures	as	we	considered	necessary	
in	the	circumstances.	
We	 believe	 that	 our	 audit	 provides	 a	 reasonable	 basis	 for	 our	 opinion	 on	 compliance	 for	 the	 major	
federal	program.	However,	our	audit	does	not	provide	a	legal	determination	of	Metro's	compliance.	
	
Opinion	on	the	Major	Federal	Program	
In	 our	 opinion,	 Metro	 complied,	 in	 all	 material	 respects,	 with	 the	 types	 of	 compliance	 requirements	
referred	to	above	that	could	have	a	direct	and	material	effect	on	its	major	federal	program	for	the	year	
ended	June	30,	2014.	
	

173



Metro CAFR - Audit Comments and Disclosures

 

Report	on	Internal	Control	Over	Compliance	
Management	 of	 Metro	 is	 responsible	 for	 establishing	 and	maintaining	 effective	 internal	 control	 over	
compliance	with	 the	 types	of	compliance	requirements	referred	 to	above.	 In	planning	and	performing	
our	 audit	 of	 compliance,	 we	 considered	 Metro's	 internal	 control	 over	 compliance	 with	 the	 types	 of	
requirements	that	could	have	a	direct	and	material	effect	on	each	major	federal	program	to	determine	
the	 auditing	 procedures	 that	 are	 appropriate	 in	 the	 circumstances	 for	 the	 purpose	 of	 expressing	 an	
opinion	on	compliance	for	each	major	federal	program	and	to	test	and	report	on	internal	control	over	
compliance	in	accordance	with	OMB	Circular	A‐133,	but	not	for	the	purpose	of	expressing	an	opinion	on	
the	effectiveness	of	internal	control	over	compliance.	Accordingly,	we	do	not	express	an	opinion	on	the	
effectiveness	of	Metro's	internal	control	over	compliance.	
	
A	deficiency	 in	 internal	control	over	compliance	exists	when	 the	design	or	operation	of	 a	 control	 over	
compliance	 does	 not	 allow	 management	 or	 employees,	 in	 the	 normal	 course	 of	 performing	 their	
assigned	 functions,	 to	 prevent,	 or	 detect	 and	 correct,	 noncompliance	 with	 a	 type	 of	 compliance	
requirement	 of	 a	 federal	 program	 on	 a	 timely	 basis.	 A	 material	 weakness	 in	 internal	 control	 over	
compliance	is	a	deficiency,	or	a	combination	of	deficiencies,	in	internal	control	over	compliance	such	that	
there	is	a	reasonable	possibility	that	material	noncompliance	with	a	type	of	compliance	requirement	of	a	
federal	 program	 will	 not	 be	 prevented,	 or	 detected	 and	 corrected,	 on	 a	 timely	 basis.	 A	 significant	
deficiency	in	internal	control	over	compliance	is	a	deficiency,	or	a	combination	of	deficiencies,	in	internal	
control	over	compliance	with	a	type	of	compliance	requirement	of	a	federal	program	that	is	less	severe	
than	a	material	weakness	in	internal	control	over	compliance,	yet	important	enough	to	merit	attention	
by	those	charged	with	governance.	
	
Our	consideration	of	internal	control	over	compliance	was	for	the	limited	purpose	described	in	the	first	
paragraph	 of	 this	 section	 and	 was	 not	 designed	 to	 identify	 all	 deficiencies	 in	 internal	 control	 over	
compliance	 that	 might	 be	 material	 weaknesses	 or	 significant	 deficiencies.	 We	 did	 not	 identify	 any	
deficiencies	in	internal	control	over	compliance	that	we	consider	to	be	material	weaknesses.	However,	
material	weaknesses	may	exist	that	have	not	been	identified.	
 
The	purpose	 of	 this	 report	 on	 internal	 control	 over	 compliance	 is	 solely	 to	describe	 the	 scope	 of	 our	
testing	of	internal	control	over	compliance	and	the	results	of	that	testing	based	on	the	requirements	of	
OMB	Circular	A‐133.	Accordingly,	this	report	is	not	suitable	for	any	other	purpose.	
	

	
Eugene,	Oregon	
November	18,	2014	

174



Metro CAFR - Audit Comments and Disclosures

METRO

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014

 Federal
CFDA Federal

Grantor  and  Program  Title Number Grant/Pass Through Number Expenditures
U. S. DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE

Forest Service-
Direct Programs:

UNO Program 10.XXX 09-CS-11062200-010  Mod #5 10,500$            
Total U. S. Department of Agriculture 10,500              

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF DEFENSE

Department of the Army, Office of the Chief of Engineers 
Passed through Washington Department of Fish & Wildlife:

Planning Assistance to States - Water Resources Development Act 12.110 WDFW #13-1708 57,000              
Total U.S. Department of Defense 57,000              

U. S. DEPARTMENT OF THE INTERIOR

Bureau of Land Management-
Direct Program:

Fish, Wildlife and Plant Conservation Resource Management;
Federal Land Policy and Management Act (FLPMA) 15.231 L07AC20271  Task order-HAF079Q05 40,000              

Fish and Wildlife Service-
Passed through Oregon Department of Parks and Recreation:

Cooperative Endangered Species Conservation Fund 15.615 FY13-E28TW5  OZ 20,528              

Passed through Ducks Unlimited:
North American Wetlands Conservation Fund 15.623 OR-208-1-SSA 63,200              
North American Wetlands Conservation Fund 15.623 US-OR-191-1 300,000            

Subtotal North American Wetlands Conservation Fund 363,200            

Passed through Washington Department of Fish & Wildlife:
State Wildlife Grants 15.634 WA-S-2013-002-0 8,598                

Endangered Species Conservation-Recovery Implementation Funds 15.657 F13AP00612 25,000              
Total U. S. Department of the Interior 457,326            

 

Report	on	Internal	Control	Over	Compliance	
Management	 of	 Metro	 is	 responsible	 for	 establishing	 and	maintaining	 effective	 internal	 control	 over	
compliance	with	 the	 types	of	compliance	requirements	referred	 to	above.	 In	planning	and	performing	
our	 audit	 of	 compliance,	 we	 considered	 Metro's	 internal	 control	 over	 compliance	 with	 the	 types	 of	
requirements	that	could	have	a	direct	and	material	effect	on	each	major	federal	program	to	determine	
the	 auditing	 procedures	 that	 are	 appropriate	 in	 the	 circumstances	 for	 the	 purpose	 of	 expressing	 an	
opinion	on	compliance	for	each	major	federal	program	and	to	test	and	report	on	internal	control	over	
compliance	in	accordance	with	OMB	Circular	A‐133,	but	not	for	the	purpose	of	expressing	an	opinion	on	
the	effectiveness	of	internal	control	over	compliance.	Accordingly,	we	do	not	express	an	opinion	on	the	
effectiveness	of	Metro's	internal	control	over	compliance.	
	
A	deficiency	 in	 internal	control	over	compliance	exists	when	 the	design	or	operation	of	 a	 control	 over	
compliance	 does	 not	 allow	 management	 or	 employees,	 in	 the	 normal	 course	 of	 performing	 their	
assigned	 functions,	 to	 prevent,	 or	 detect	 and	 correct,	 noncompliance	 with	 a	 type	 of	 compliance	
requirement	 of	 a	 federal	 program	 on	 a	 timely	 basis.	 A	 material	 weakness	 in	 internal	 control	 over	
compliance	is	a	deficiency,	or	a	combination	of	deficiencies,	in	internal	control	over	compliance	such	that	
there	is	a	reasonable	possibility	that	material	noncompliance	with	a	type	of	compliance	requirement	of	a	
federal	 program	 will	 not	 be	 prevented,	 or	 detected	 and	 corrected,	 on	 a	 timely	 basis.	 A	 significant	
deficiency	in	internal	control	over	compliance	is	a	deficiency,	or	a	combination	of	deficiencies,	in	internal	
control	over	compliance	with	a	type	of	compliance	requirement	of	a	federal	program	that	is	less	severe	
than	a	material	weakness	in	internal	control	over	compliance,	yet	important	enough	to	merit	attention	
by	those	charged	with	governance.	
	
Our	consideration	of	internal	control	over	compliance	was	for	the	limited	purpose	described	in	the	first	
paragraph	 of	 this	 section	 and	 was	 not	 designed	 to	 identify	 all	 deficiencies	 in	 internal	 control	 over	
compliance	 that	 might	 be	 material	 weaknesses	 or	 significant	 deficiencies.	 We	 did	 not	 identify	 any	
deficiencies	in	internal	control	over	compliance	that	we	consider	to	be	material	weaknesses.	However,	
material	weaknesses	may	exist	that	have	not	been	identified.	
 
The	purpose	 of	 this	 report	 on	 internal	 control	 over	 compliance	 is	 solely	 to	describe	 the	 scope	 of	 our	
testing	of	internal	control	over	compliance	and	the	results	of	that	testing	based	on	the	requirements	of	
OMB	Circular	A‐133.	Accordingly,	this	report	is	not	suitable	for	any	other	purpose.	
	

	
Eugene,	Oregon	
November	18,	2014	

175



Metro CAFR - Audit Comments and Disclosures

METRO

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014

U. S. DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

Federal Highway Administration-
Highway Planning and Construction Cluster-

Passed through Oregon Department of Transportation:
Chimney Pier Park pedestrian/bike bridge 20.205 ODOT # 26482 1,091                

Westside Trail Master Plan 20.205 ODOT # 27275 (2,547)               

Blue Lake Trail - 40 Mile Loop 20.205 ODOT # 25858 842,564            

2014 Planning Fund 20.205 ODOT # 29435-01 1,401,586         

2012 Planning Fund Carryover funds 20.205 ODOT # 29435-01 118,990            

2014 STP funds 20.205 ODOT # 29435-01 662,170            

2012 STP Carryover funds 20.205 ODOT # 29435-01 104,665            

2014 Powell Division STP funds 20.205 ODOT # 29435-01 133,307            

2014 TSMO STP funds 20.205 ODOT # 29435-01 7,712                

2014 Technical Studies (Sec 5303) 20.205 ODOT # 29435-01 359,233            

Loaned Planner Assignment - D.Kaempff 20.205 ODOT # 28383 8,845                

Drive Less Connect - Spanish Language Outreach 20.205 ODOT # 28609 42,055              

RCTO - Multimodal Arterial Performance Mgmt 20.205 ODOT # 28088 2,546                
Total Highway Planning and Construction Cluster 3,682,217         

Federal Transit Administration-
Capital Investment Grants-

Passed through Tri-County Metropolitan Transportation District of Oregon (TriMet)
Milwaukie Light Rail Final Design 20.500 GH120250TL 8,937                

Metropolitan Transportation Planning Grants-
Passed through Oregon Department of Transportation :

2013 Technical Studies (Sec 5303) 20.505 ODOT # 28815 166,500            

Federal Transit - Formula Grants (Federal Transit Cluster)-
Direct Programs:

Congestion Mitigation & Air Quality Improvement  Program (CMAQ)
Regional Travel Options 20.507 OR-95-X037 116,816            

Surface Transportation Funds
Regional Travel Options 20.507 OR-95-X051 1,145,805         

Subtotal Regional Travel Options Grants  1,262,621         

Alternative Analysis-
Direct Programs:

Streetcar/Eastside/LO-PDX (Sec 5339) 20.522 OR-39-0002 119,665            
Total U.S. Department of Transportation 5,239,940         

Total Expenditures of Federal Awards 5,764,766$      

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this schedule.

176



Metro CAFR - Audit Comments and Disclosures

	
METRO	
NOTES	TO	SCHEDULE	OF	EXPENDITURES	OF	FEDERAL	AWARDS	
FOR	THE	FISCAL	YEAR	ENDED	JUNE	30,	2014	

 
 

	
	
NOTE	1	–	BASIS	OF	PRESENTATION	
	
The	accompanying	Schedule	of	Expenditures	of	Federal	Awards	(the	Schedule)	includes	all	federal	grant	activity	
of	Metro,	under	programs	of	the	federal	government	for	the	year	ended	June	30,	2014.		The	information	in	this	
Schedule	 is	 presented	 in	 accordance	with	 the	 requirements	 of	 the	 Office	 of	Management	 and	 Budget	 (OMB)	
Circular	 A‐133,	 Audits	 of	 States,	 Local	 Governments,	 and	 Non‐Profit	 Organizations.	 	 Because	 this	 Schedule	
presents	 only	 a	 selected	 portion	 of	 the	 operations	 of	 Metro,	 it	 is	 not	 intended	 to	 and	 does	 not	 present	 the	
financial	position,	changes	in	net	position	or	cash	flows	of	Metro.	
	
NOTE	2	–	SUMMARY	OF	SIGNIFICANT	ACCOUNTING	POLICIES	
	
Expenditures	 reported	 on	 the	 Schedule	 are	 reported	 on	 the	 modified	 accrual	 basis	 of	 accounting,	 which	 is	
described	in	note	II.C	to	Metro's	basic	financial	statements.	Such	expenditures	are	recognized	following	the	cost	
principals	 contained	 in	 OMB	 Circular	 A‐87,	 Cost	 Principals	 for	 State,	 Local	 and	 Indian	 Tribal	 Governments,	
wherein	certain	 types	of	expenses	are	not	allowable	or	are	 limited	as	 to	 reimbursement.	 	Pass‐through	entity	
identifying	 numbers	 are	 presented	 where	 available.	 	 Negative	 amounts	 shown	 on	 the	 Schedule	 represent	
adjustments	 or	 credits	made	 in	 the	 normal	 course	 of	 business	 to	 amounts	 reported	 as	 expenditures	 in	 prior	
years.	
	
NOTE	3	–	SUBRECIPIENTS	
	
Included	within	the	federal	expenditures	presented	on	the	Schedule	are	federal	awards	subrecipients	as	follows:	
	

SUBRECIPIENT FEDERAL	CFDA	# FEDERAL	GRANT	# TOTAL	EXPENDITURES

Bicycle	Transportation	Alliance	(BTA) 20.507 FTA	OR95‐X051 43,569$																													
City	of	Portland	‐	#	931970 20.507 FTA	OR95‐X051 63,000																															
City	of	Portland	‐	#	931983 20.507 FTA	OR95‐X051 50,063																															
City	of	Tigard 20.507 FTA	OR95‐X051 204																																					
Clackamas	County 20.507 FTA	OR95‐X051 2,594																																		
Community	Cycling	Center 20.507 FTA	OR95‐X051 39,688																															
Drive	Oregon 20.507 FTA	OR95‐X037 51,534																															
EnviroMedia 20.507 FTA	OR95‐X051 25,283																															
Gresham	Area	Chamber	of	Commerce 20.507 FTA	OR95‐X051 52,306																															
Home	Forward 20.507 FTA	OR95‐X051 28,195																															
Lloyd	District	TMA 20.507 FTA	OR95‐X051 28,648																															
OPAL	Environmental	Justice	Oregon 20.507 FTA	OR95‐X051 (11,751)																													
Ride	Connection	Inc 20.507 FTA	OR95‐X051 33,755																															
Swan	Island	Business	Association 20.507 FTA	OR95‐X051 42,968																															
Tri	Met 20.507 FTA	OR95‐X051 14,082																															
Verde 20.507 FTA	OR95‐X051 56,187																															
Westside	Transportation	Alliance	Inc 20.507 FTA	OR95‐X051 66,985																															

Total	Subrecipient	Federal	Expenditures 587,310$																									 	

177



Metro CAFR - Audit Comments and Disclosures

METRO	
SCHEDULE	OF	FINDINGS	AND	QUESTIONED	COSTS	
FOR	THE	YEAR	ENDED	JUNE	30,	2014	
	

Section	I	‐	Summary	of	Auditor’s	Results	

Financial	Statements	

Type	of	auditor’s	report	issued:	 Unmodified			
Internal	control	over	financial	reporting:	

 Material	weakness(es)	identified?	 	 Yes	 	 No	

 Significant	deficiency(ies)	identified?	 	 Yes	 	 None	reported	

Noncompliance	material	to	financial	statements	noted?	 	 Yes	 	 No	

Federal	Awards	

Internal	control	over	major	federal	programs:	

 Material	weakness(es)	identified?	 	 Yes	 	 No	

 Significant	deficiency(ies)	identified?	 	 Yes	 	 None	reported	

Any	audit	findings	disclosed	that	are	required	to	be	reported	
in	accordance	with	section	510(a)	of	Circular	A‐133?	 	 Yes	 	 No	

Identification	of	Major	Federal	Programs	

CFDA	Numbers	 Name	of	Federal	Program	or	Cluster	

Type	of	Auditor’s	
Report	Issued	For	
Major	Federal	
Programs	

20.205	 Highway	Planning	and	Construction	Cluster	 Unmodified			

	

Dollar	threshold	used	to	distinguish	between	type	A	and	type	
B	programs:	 $300,000	

	

Auditee	qualified	as	low‐risk	auditee?	 	 Yes	 	 No	

	

Section	II	‐	Financial	Statement	Findings	
	
None	reported	
	
	

Section	III	‐	Federal	Award	Findings	and	Questioned	Costs	
	
None	reported	

178



Metro CAFR - Audit Comments and Disclosures

METRO	
SUMMARY	SCHEDULE	OF	PRIOR	AUDIT	FINDINGS	

FOR	THE	YEAR	ENDED	JUNE	30,	2014	
	
	
Finding	2013‐001	‐	Procurement, Suspension and Debarment	
	
Federal	Agency:	U.S.	Department	of	the	Interior,	Fish	and	Wildlife	Service;	Passed	through	Oregon	
Department	of	Fish	&	Wildlife	
	
Federal	Programs:	15.605	Sport	Fish	Restoration	Program	
	
Condition/Context:	During	our	 testing	of	 the	procurement,	 suspension	and	debarment,	we	noted	
one	 contract	 tested	 did	 not	 comply	 with	 the	 competition	 requirement	 that	 procurement	
transactions	shall	be	conducted	in	a	manner	to	provide,	to	the	maximum	extent	practical,	open	and	
free	competition.			
	
Recommendation:	Moss	 Adams	 recommends	 that	Metro	 enforce	 their	 procurement	 policies	 and	
procedures	and	monitor	compliance.	
	
Current	Status:	 In	 July,	 2014,	Metro	 Procurement	 completed	 Phase	 1	 of	 a	 project	 to	 clarify	 and	
strengthen	 purchasing	 policies	 and	 procedures.	 	 Metro	 believes	 that	 these	 changes	 will	 help	 to	
prevent	 this	 type	 of	 non‐compliance	 in	 the	 future.	 	 Additionally,	 this	 specific	 grant	 closed	 in	 the	
previous	fiscal	year	and	there	were	no	additional	expenditures	during	the	current	year.	

179



Metro CAFR - Audit Comments and Disclosures180

~Metro 



 

 

Agenda Item No. 4.2 

 
 
 
 
Consideration of Council Meeting Minutes for December 11, 

2014 
 

Consent Agenda  

Metro Council Meeting 
Thursday, December 18, 2014 

Metro, Council Chambers 

 



 

 

Agenda Item No. 5.1 

 
 
 
 

Ordinance No. 14-1350, For the Purpose of Amending 
Metro Code 2.02.010 Personnel Code 

 
Ordinances (Second Read)  

Metro Council Meeting 
Thursday, December 18, 2014 

Metro, Council Chambers 

 



Page 1 Ordinance No. 14-1350 

BEFORE THE METRO COUNCIL 
 
 

FOR THE PURPOSE OF AMENDING METRO 
CODE SECTION 2.02.010 AND DECLARING AN 
EMERGENCY 

) 
) 
)
)
) 

 ORDINANCE NO. 14-1350 
 
Chief Operating Officer Martha Bennett in 
concurrence with Council President Tom 
Hughes 

 
 

 WHEREAS, Metro Code Section 2.02.010 requires that the Metro Council approve written 
employment agreements with staff of Metro; and 
  
 WHEREAS, the Metro Council wishes to provide the Chief Operating Officer (COO) with more 
flexibility to execute certain written employment agreements; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Metro Council will delegate this authority by resolution either on an individual 
employment contract, or on a group of written employment agreements with identical terms except for 
salary.  
 
  
 THE METRO COUNCIL ORDAINS AS FOLLOWS: 
 

1. The Metro Code Section 2.02.010 is amended as attached in Exhibit “A” to this Ordinance; 
2. That this Ordinance being necessary for the health, safety, and welfare of the Metro area an 

emergency is declared to exist, and this Ordinance shall take effect immediately, pursuant to 
Metro Charter Section 39(1). 

 
  
ADOPTED by the Metro Council this _____ day of December, 2014. 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
Tom Hughes, Council President 

 
 
 

Attest: 
 
 
_________________________________________ 
Alexandra Eldridge 
Regional Engagement and Legislative Coordinator 
 

Approved as to Form: 
 
 
       
Alison R. Kean, Metro Attorney 

 



              EXHIBIT A to Ordinance 14-1350 

(Effective 8/10/2011) 2.02 - 1 of 12 

CHAPTER 2.02 
 

PERSONNEL CODE* 
 
SECTIONS TITLE 
 
2.02.010 Personnel Code 
2.02.020 Exemptions 
2.02.030 Definitions of Personnel Terms 
2.02.040 New Positions 
2.02.050 Charitable Solicitations 
2.02.060 Affirmative Action Policy 
2.02.070 Recruitment and Appointment 
2.02.080 Drug and Alcohol Policy 
2.02.090 Smoking Policy 
2.02.100 Employee Organizations and Representation 
2.02.110 Political Activity 
2.02.120 Ethical Requirements for Employees, Officers, Elected 

and Appointed Officials 
 
* Formerly "Personnel Rules"; renamed and amended by Ordinance No. 05-1082, 

Sec. 1. 
 
 
2.02.010  Personnel Code 
 
Sections 2.02.001 to 2.02.120 of this Metro Code shall be known 
as and may be cited as the "Metro Personnel Code." 
 
The provisions in this chapter do not constitute a contract of 
employment.  Moreover, in order to meet future challenges, the 
Council retains the flexibility to change, substitute, and 
discontinue the policies and benefits described herein, at any 
time, with or without notice to employees.  No person shall be 
deemed to have a vested interest in, or legitimate expectation 
of, continued employment with Metro, or any policy or benefit 
described herein or otherwise generally followed by Metro.  No 
contract of employment can be created, nor can an employee's 
status be modified, by any oral or written agreement, or course 
of conduct, except by a written agreement signed by the Council 
President or Chief Operating Officer and the employee, and 
subject to the approval of the Council.  Notwithstanding the 
foregoing, however, the Metro Council may delegate by resolution 
to the Chief Operating Officer the authority to execute written 
employment agreements on a case by case basis, or as a group for 
Director level employment agreements where all terms in those 
employment agreements are identical except salary. 



              EXHIBIT A to Ordinance 14-1350 

(Effective 8/10/2011) 2.02 - 2 of 12 

 
 
 
 (a) Duties of Chief Operating Officer 
 

Administration and enforcement of the personnel code 
shall be the responsibility of the Chief Operating 
Officer.  The Chief Operating Officer, or his or her 
delegee, shall: 

 
  (1) Establish and maintain: 
 
   (A) A record of all employees in Metro service; 
 
   (B) The Metro employee classification plan; 
 
 (C) The salary plan and salary administration 

policies, including employee benefits, 
including employee benefits. 

 
(2) Prepare such rules, policies, and procedures as 

are necessary to carry out the duties, functions 
and powers of this personnel code, and to 
effectively administer Metro personnel. 

 
(3) Establish a system of personnel administration 

based on merit, governing recruitment, 
appointment, tenure, transfer, layoff, 
separation, discipline of employees. 

 
(4) Devise and employee training programs, for the 

purpose of improving the quality of service 
rendered by Metro personnel. 

 
(5) Conduct labor negotiations with the authorized 

collective bargaining representatives of Metro 
employees 

 
(6) Serve as the final grievance adjustment officer 

in personnel matters. 
 

(7) Make quarterly reports to the Council regarding 
the personnel administration of Metro. 

 
 (b) The Metropolitan Exposition-Recreation Commission 
shall adopt personnel rules consistent with and subject to 
Section 6.01.040 of the Metro Code notwithstanding any provision 



              EXHIBIT A to Ordinance 14-1350 

(Effective 8/10/2011) 2.02 - 3 of 12 

of this chapter to the contrary.  The Chief Operating Officer 
shall through the General Manager administer the policies 
adopted by the Commission.   
 
(Ordinance 05-1082, Sec. 1.  Amended by Ordinance No. 09-1229, Sec. 2.) 
 

 
2.02.020  Exemptions 

 (a) Notwithstanding any provision of this chapter, 
individual positions in the Office of Chief Operating Officer 
assigned to provide services to the Council may be designated as 
exempt from and not subject to this chapter, provided that the 
Council President has given written approval of the exemption 
after 10 days prior notice has been given to members of the 
Council. 
 
 (b) Notwithstanding any provision of this chapter, 
employees in the Office of Auditor shall be exempt from and 
shall not be subject to this chapter, except as expressly 
determined in writing by the Auditor, limited however to 
budgeted funds allocated to the Office of Auditor. 
 
(Ordinance No. 81-116, Sec. 46.  Amended by Ordinance No. 94-523B; Ordinance 
No. 02-965A, Sec. 1; and renumbered by Ordinance No. 05-1082, Sec. 1.) 
 

 
2.02.030  Definitions of Personnel Terms 

For the purposes of this chapter unless the context requires 
otherwise, the following terms shall have the meanings 
indicated: 
 
 (a) "Auditor" means the elected Auditor of Metro or 
his/her designee. 
 
 (b) "Chief Financial Officer" means the person responsible 
for managing the financial affairs and budget of Metro and 
designated as such by the Chief Operating Officer. 
 
 (c) "Chief Operating Officer" means the person holding the 
position of Chief Operating Officer established by Section 
2.20.010 of the Metro Code. 
 
 (d) "Council" means the elected governing body of Metro. 
 
 (e) "Department" means a major functional unit of Metro as 
designated by the Chief Operating Officer. 
 



              EXHIBIT A to Ordinance 14-1350 

(Effective 8/10/2011) 2.02 - 4 of 12 

 (f) "Department Director" means a person designated by the 
Chief Operating Officer to be responsible for the administration 
of a department or his/her designee. 
 
 (g) "Employee" means an individual who is salaried or who 
receives wages for employment with Metro. 
 
 (h) "Full-time" means a position in which the scheduled 
hours of work are 40 hours per week and which is provided for in 
the adopted budget. 
 
 (i) "Layoff" means a separation from employment because of 
organizational changes, lack of work, lack of funds, or for 
other reasons not reflecting discredit upon the employee. 
 
 (j) "Part-time" means a position in which the scheduled 
hours of work are less than 40 hours per week but at least 20 
hours or more per week and which is provided for in the adopted 
budget. 
 
 (k) “Human Resources Director” means the employee 
appointed by the Chief Operating Officer to administer the 
provisions of this chapter, regardless of whether the person is 
also a Department Director. 
 
 (l) "Represented employee" means an employee who is in a 
recognized or certified bargaining unit. 
 
 (m) "Separation" is the cessation of employment with Metro 
not reflecting discredit upon the employee. 
 
 (n) "Status" refers to the standing of an employee. 
 
 (o) "Termination" means the cessation of employment with 
Metro. 
 
(Ordinance No. 81-116, Sec. 6.  Amended by Ordinance No. 94-523B; Ordinance 
No. 95-602A, Sec. 1; Ordinance No. 02-965A, Sec. 1; and Ordinance No. 05-
1082, Sec. 1.) 
 

 
2.02.040  New Positions 

Any new positions added to the budget require Council approval. 
 
(Ordinance No. 81-116, Sec. 26.  Amended by Ordinance No. 94-523B.) 
 

 
2.02.050  Charitable Solicitations 



              EXHIBIT A to Ordinance 14-1350 

(Effective 8/10/2011) 2.02 - 5 of 12 

 (a) Charitable solicitations of Metro employees while on 
the job during working hours shall be conducted in compliance 
with this section.  No other solicitations of Metro employees 
while on the job during working hours by a charitable 
organization shall be permitted. 
 
 (b) The Chief Operating Officer and/or his/her designee(s) 
shall by executive order establish policies and procedures to 
implement this section, including procedures for applications, 
time and length of solicitation campaigns, charitable approved 
for the campaign, and payroll deductions.  
 
(Ordinance No. 05-1082, Sec. 1.  Amended by Ordinance No. 05-1088, Sec. 1 and 
Ordinance No. 11-1259, Sec. 1.) 
 

 
2.02.060  Affirmative Action Policy 

 (a) Policy Statement.  Metro states as its policy a 
commitment to provide equal employment opportunities without 
regard to race, color, religion, national origin, sex, age, 
disability, sexual orientation, or marital or familial status, 
except where a bona fide occupational qualification exists. 
 
 (b) Affirmative Action Program.  The Chief Operating 
Officer or his/her designee will adopt an affirmative action 
policy and program, as well as appropriate anti-discrimination 
and harassment policies, which will be set forth in separate 
documents.  Such policies and programs will be distributed to 
employees at hire and be made available throughout Metro 
facilities.  All employees are expected to familiarize 
themselves with these policies. 
 
 (c) Recruitment Efforts.  Recruitment efforts will be 
coordinated by the office of human resources in cooperation with 
the hiring department.  Recruiting publicity will be distributed 
through appropriate media and/or other organizations to meet 
affirmative action guidelines.  Such publicity will indicate 
that Metro is an affirmative action, equal opportunity employer 
and will be designed to attract a sufficient number of qualified 
applicants. 
 
(Ordinance No. 81-116, Sec. 53.  Amended by Ordinance No. 94-523B; Ordinance 
No. 03-993A, Sec. 4; and Ordinance No. 05-1082, Sec. 1.) 
 

 
2.02.070  Recruitment and Appointment 

 (a) Except as otherwise provided for in this Code, all 
appointments of employees shall be the sole responsibility of 



              EXHIBIT A to Ordinance 14-1350 

(Effective 8/10/2011) 2.02 - 6 of 12 

the Chief Operating Officer, subject to the provisions of this 
chapter. 
 
 (b) All appointments of employees to the Office of the 
Metro Attorney shall be the sole responsibility of the Metro 
Attorney. 
 
 (c) All appointments of employees to the Office of Auditor 
shall be the sole responsibility of the Auditor. 
 
 (d) Appointments of Department Directors, the Chief 
Financial Officer, the Human Resources Director, the Metro 
Attorney, staff in the Office of the Chief Operating Officer, 
and staff in the Office of the Auditor, may be made without 
going through the normal recruitment and selection process.  The 
Human Resources Director, the Chief Financial Officer, all 
Department Directors, and all appointed staff in the Office of 
the Chief Operating Officer shall serve at the pleasure of the 
Chief Operating Officer.  Staff in the Office of Auditor shall 
serve at the pleasure of the Auditor. 
 
(Ordinance No. 81-116, Sec. 8.  Amended by Ordinance No. 84-183, Sec. 1; 
Ordinance No. 87-218, Sec. 1; Ordinance No. 88-255, Sec. 1; Ordinance No. 91-
378A, Sec. 5; Ordinance No. 94-523B; Ordinance No. 95-602A, Sec. 1; Ordinance 
No. 02-965A, Sec. 1; and Ordinance 05-1082, Sec. 1.) 
 

 
2.02.080  Drug and Alcohol Policy 

 (a) Purpose:  The purpose of the Drug and Alcohol Policy 
is to assist Metro in providing and maintaining a safe, healthy, 
and productive work environment for employees.  The Metro Drug 
and Alcohol Policy is applicable to all Metro employees.  This 
policy authorizes drug and alcohol testing if there is 
reasonable suspicion of drug or alcohol impairment, as well as 
return-to-duty and follow-up testing.  Drug testing shall be 
conducted in accordance with procedures established and 
administered by the Human Resources Director. 
 
 (b) Employee Conduct: 
 

(1) All employees are prohibited from engaging in the 
unlawful possession, dispensation, distribution, 
manufacture or use of alcohol or any controlled 
substance at any time while on duty, or in a 
Metro owned or operated vehicle(s). 

 
(2) It is the responsibility of any employee with a 

substance abuse problem to seek assistance, 



              EXHIBIT A to Ordinance 14-1350 

(Effective 8/10/2011) 2.02 - 7 of 12 

including any resources which may be required 
from Metro or Metro’s employee assistance 
program, before drug and alcohol problems 
adversely affect the ability to perform his or 
her job or lead to violations of this policy. 

 
(3) All employees shall report to work in an 

appropriate mental and physical condition to work 
safely and effectively.  No employee shall report 
to work or engage in work while under the 
influence of alcohol, or having the presence of 
illegal drugs, or any other disabling or 
controlled substance in his or her system. 

 
(4) Any employee who observes or has knowledge of 

another employee on duty in violation of this 
policy, and in a condition which poses a hazard 
to the safety or welfare of others, shall report 
the information to his or her immediate 
supervisor, the employee’s supervisor, or the 
Human Resources Director. 

 
(5) This policy is not violated when an employee 

possesses and uses a physician-prescribed 
medication in accordance with the prescription. 

 
 (c) Drug and Alcohol Testing:  Metro may require a current 
employee to undergo drug and alcohol testing if there is 
reasonable suspicion that the employee is under the influence of 
drugs or alcohol during work hours.  "Reasonable suspicion" 
means an articulable belief based on specific facts and 
reasonable inferences drawn from those facts that an employee is 
under the influence of drugs or alcohol.  Testing shall be 
conducted pursuant to standards and procedures administered by 
the Human Resources Director. 
  
 (d) Definitions:  For the purposes of this policy: 
 

(1) An employee has a controlled substance "in his or 
her system" when the employee tests "positive" in 
any blood or urine test administered if the 
result of such test meets or exceeds the level 
set forth in 49 CFR Part 40. 

 
(2) An employee is "under the influence" of alcohol 

when the employee has an alcohol test with the 



              EXHIBIT A to Ordinance 14-1350 

(Effective 8/10/2011) 2.02 - 8 of 12 

result showing an alcohol concentration level of 
0.02 or greater. 

 
(3) The term "controlled substance" means marijuana, 

cocaine, opiates, amphetamines, and phencyclidine 
(PCP), as specified in Schedule 1 or Schedule II 
of the Controlled Substances Act (21 USC § 812). 

 
 (e) Drug Related Convictions:  As required by the Drug-
Free Workplace Act of 1998, Metro employees shall notify Metro 
of any criminal drug statute conviction for a violation 
occurring in the workplace no later than five (5) days after 
such conviction. 
 
 (f) Refusal to Consent; Employees:  An employee who 
refuses to consent to drug and alcohol testing when reasonable 
suspicion of drug or alcohol use has been identified is subject 
to disciplinary action up to and including termination.  The 
reasons for the refusal shall be considered in determining the 
appropriate disciplinary action. 
 
 (g) Program Administration:  The Drug and Alcohol Policy 
and program are administered by the Human Resources Director. 
 
(Ordinance 03-993A, Sec. 3.  Renumbered by Ordinance No. 05-1082, Sec. 1.) 
 

 
2.02.090  Smoking Policy 

Smoking (cigarettes, pipes and cigars) is prohibited inside all 
Metro facilities.  Notwithstanding the provisions of this 
section, smoking is prohibited in any public meeting as defined 
in ORS 192.710. 
 
(Ordinance No. 94-523B.  Renumbered by Ordinance No. 05-1082, Sec. 1.) 
 

 
2.02.100  Employee Organizations and Representation 

 (a) Employees of Metro have the right to form, join and 
participate in the activities of labor organizations of their 
own choosing for the purpose of representation and collective 
bargaining on matters relating to wages, hours and working 
conditions in accordance with the Oregon Revised Statutes and 
Regulations of the State Employment Relations Board. 
 
 (b) Pay plans for represented employees are developed 
through collective bargaining and are subject to ratification by 
the Council. 
 



              EXHIBIT A to Ordinance 14-1350 

(Effective 8/10/2011) 2.02 - 9 of 12 

(Ordinance No. 94-523B.  Amended by Ordinance No. 05-1082, Sec. 1.) 
 

 
2.02.110  Political Activity 

 (a) Nothing contained within this chapter shall affect the 
right of the employee to hold membership in and to support a 
political party, to vote as they choose, to privately express 
their opinions on all political subjects and candidates, to 
maintain political neutrality and to attend political meetings.  
An employee must exercise all due caution in such activities to 
prevent public misunderstanding of such actions as representing 
Metro, or to bring discredit to Metro, the Council, or his/her 
supervisor. 
 
 (b) No official, employee or any other person shall 
attempt to coerce, command or require any Metro employee to 
influence or give money, service or other thing of value to aid 
or promote any political committee or to aid or promote the 
nomination or election of any person to public office. 
 
 (c) No public employee shall solicit any money, influence, 
service or other thing of value or otherwise promote or oppose 
any political committee or promote or oppose the nomination or 
election of a candidate, the gathering of signatures on an 
initiative, referendum or recall petition, the adoption of a 
measure or the recall of a public office-holder while on the job 
during working hours.  However, nothing in this section is 
intended to restrict the right of a public employee to express 
personal political views.  (ORS 260.432) 
 
(Ordinance No. 94-523B.  Renumbered by Ordinance No. 05-1082, Sec. 1.) 
 

 

2.02.120  Ethical Requirements for Employees, Officers, Elected 
and Appointed Officials 

 (a) The purpose of this section is to establish a Code of 
Ethics for Metro public officials which is consistent with 
current public policy established by the Oregon Legislative 
Assembly.  Failure to comply with the provisions of this Code 
shall be grounds for disciplinary action for employees of Metro. 
 
 (b) "Public official" means any employee, officer, elected 
official or appointed member of a board, commission or committee 
of Metro. 
 
 (c) All public officials of Metro shall strictly comply 
with the following requirements: 
 



              EXHIBIT A to Ordinance 14-1350 

(Effective 8/10/2011) 2.02 - 10 of 12 

(1) No public official shall use official position or 
office to obtain financial gain for the public 
official, other than official salary, honoraria 
or reimbursement of expenses, or for any member 
of the household of the public official, or for 
any business with which the public official is 
associated. 

 
(2) No public official or candidate for office or a 

member of the household of the public official or 
candidate shall solicit or receive, whether 
directly or indirectly, during any calendar year, 
any gift or gifts with an aggregate value in 
excess of $100 from any single source who could 
reasonably be known to have a legislative or 
administrative interest in any governmental 
agency in which the official has or the 
candidate, if elected, would have any official 
position or over which the official exercises or 
the candidate, if elected, would exercise any 
authority. 

 
(3) No public official shall solicit or receive, 

either directly or indirectly, and no person 
shall offer or give to any public official any 
pledge or promise of future employment, based on 
any understanding that such public official's 
vote, official action or judgment would be 
influenced thereby. 

 
(4) No public official shall further the personal 

gain of the public official through the use of 
confidential information gained in the course of 
or by reason of the official position or 
activities of the public official in any way. 

 
(5) No person shall offer during any calendar year 

any gifts with an aggregate value in excess of 
$100 to any public official or candidate therefor 
or a member of the household of the public 
official or candidate if the person has a 
legislative or administrative interest in a 
governmental agency in which the official has or 
the candidate, if elected, would have any 
official position or over which the official 
exercises or the candidate, if elected, would 
exercise any authority. 



              EXHIBIT A to Ordinance 14-1350 

(Effective 8/10/2011) 2.02 - 11 of 12 

 
 (d) The Auditor and every member of the Council of Metro 
shall be required to comply with the reporting requirements 
established by ORS 244.060, including the filing of a Statement 
of Economic Interest on an annual basis as required by state 
law. A copy of the Statement of Economic Interest shall be filed 
with the Chief Operating Officer at the time of filing with the 
appropriate state agency. 
 
 (e) The Chief Operating Officer, the Metro Attorney, the 
Chief Financial Officer, and all members of the Metropolitan 
Exposition-Recreation Commission and all Department Directors 
shall file annually with the Chief Operating Officer a Statement 
of Economic Interest which is substantially consistent with that 
required by ORS 244.060. 
 
 (f) Public officials shall comply with the following 
requirements regarding the declaration of potential conflicts of 
interest and recording the notice of a potential conflict: 
 

(1) If the public official is an elected public 
official or an appointed public official serving 
on a board or commission, announce publicly the 
nature of the potential conflict prior to taking 
any action thereon in the capacity of a public 
official. 

 
(2) If the public official is any other appointed 

official subject to this chapter, notify in 
writing the person who appointed the public 
official to office of the nature of the potential 
conflict, and request that the appointing 
authority dispose of the matter giving rise to 
the potential conflict.  Upon receipt of the 
request, the appointing authority shall designate 
within a reasonable time an alternate to dispose 
of the matter, or shall direct the official to 
dispose of the matter in a manner specified by 
the appointing authority. 

 
(3) Nothing in subsection (1) of this section 

requires any public official to announce a 
potential conflict of interest more than once on 
the occasion which the matter out of which the 
potential conflict arises is discussed or 
debated. 

 



              EXHIBIT A to Ordinance 14-1350 

(Effective 8/10/2011) 2.02 - 12 of 12 

(4) Nothing in this section authorizes a public 
official to vote if the official is otherwise 
prohibited from doing so. 

 
(5) When a public official gives notice of a 

potential conflict of interest, the potential 
conflict shall be recorded in the official 
records of the public body. 

 
(Ordinance No. 89-305A, Sec. 3.  Amended by Ordinance No. 94-523B; Ordinance 
No. 02-965A, Sec. 1; and renumbered by Ordinance No. 05-1082, Sec. 1.) 
 

********** 
 



STAFF REPORT 
 
 

IN CONSIDERATION OF ORDINANCE NO. 14-1350, FOR THE PURPOSE OF AMENDING 
CODE SECTION 2.02.010     
 

              
 
Date: December 1, 2014     Prepared by: Nathan A. S. Sykes,   

Deputy Metro Attorney, 503-797-1544                                                                                                        
 
BACKGROUND 
 
Code Section 2.02.010 requires that the Metro Council approve all written employment agreements.  The 
COO desires the authority to have this function delegated to her so that the COO has more flexibility in 
executing employment agreements with employees at Metro.  The Metro Council would still need to 
delegate the authority to the COO to approve individual employment contracts or delegate approval of a 
group of employment contracts for Director level employees by resolution. 
 
 
ANALYSIS/INFORMATION 
 
1. Known Opposition:  None. 
 
2. Legal Antecedents:  Metro Code Section 2.02.010 

 
3. Anticipated Effects: The Metro Council may delegate authority to the COO to approve written 

employment agreements without Metro Council approval. 
 

 
 
4. Budget Impacts:  Salary and terms of individual employment contracts. 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION 
 
Approve an ordinance revising the Metro Code provision.  
 



Agenda Item No. 5.2 

 
 
 
 

Ordinance No. 14-1346B, For the Purpose of Adopting a 
Climate Smart Strategy and Amending the Regional 

Framework Plan to Comply with State Law 
 

Ordinances (Second Read)  

Metro Council Meeting 
Thursday, December 18, 2014 

Metro, Council Chambers 

 



Page 1 Ordinance No. 14-1346B 

BEFORE THE METRO COUNCIL 
 
 

FOR THE PURPOSE OF ADOPTING A 
CLIMATE SMART STRATEGY AND 
AMENDING THE REGIONAL FRAMEWORK 
PLAN TO COMPLY WITH STATE LAW 

) 
) 
) 
) 
) 

 ORDINANCE NO. 14-1346B 
 
Introduced by Chief Operating Officer  
Martha Bennett in concurrence with  
Council President Tom Hughes 

 
 WHEREAS, the State of Oregon’s 2007 greenhouse gas emissions reductions goals direct Oregon 
to stop increases in greenhouse gas emissions by 2010, reduce emissions to at least 10 percent below 
1990 levels by 2020, and reduce emissions to at least 75 percent below 1990 levels by 2050; and 
 

WHEREAS, the cities of Beaverton, Forest Grove, Gladstone, Gresham, Hillsboro, Lake 
Oswego, Milwaukie, Oregon City, and Portland which together represent 66 percent of the population 
under Metro’s jurisdiction, have all signed onto the U.S. Mayor’s Climate Protection Agreement, 
pledging to reduce their greenhouse gas emissions by 7 percent below 1990 levels by 2012; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Oregon Legislature passed House Bill 2001, also known as the Jobs and 
Transportation Act (“JTA”), in 2009; and 

 
WHEREAS, Section 64 of the JTA included $960 million for 14 projects identified by local 

governments in eastern Oregon and 37 highway projects across Oregon, including construction of Phase 1 
of the Sunrise Corridor (Units 1-3) in Clackamas County, widening US 26 and improvements to US 26 
interchanges at Shute and Glencoe roads in Washington County, and reconstruction of the OR 
43/Sellwood Bridge interchange in Multnomah County, the I-5/I-205 interchange in Tualatin, the I-
205/OR 213 interchange in Oregon City, and the I-84/257th Avenue interchange in Troutdale; and 

 
WHEREAS, the JTA also included $100 million for the ConnectOregon III program that is 

building rail, port, transit and aviation projects across the state; and 
 

WHEREAS, Section 37 of the JTA requires Metro in the Portland metropolitan region to prepare 
and cooperatively select a preferred land use and transportation scenario for achieving greenhouse gas 
emission reductions from motor vehicles with a gross vehicle weight rating of 10,000 pounds or less 
(light vehicles); and 

 
WHEREAS, the Metro Council, with the advice and support of the Metro Policy Advisory 

Committee (“MPAC”) and the Joint Policy Advisory Committee on Transportation (“JPACT”), adopted 
the 2035 Regional Transportation Plan (“RTP”) in 2010 and directed staff to conduct greenhouse gas 
scenario planning; and 

 
WHEREAS, on December 16, 2010, the Metro Council, with the advice and support of MPAC, 

established six desired outcomes to reflect the region's desire to develop vibrant, prosperous and 
sustainable communities with safe and reliable transportation choices that minimize greenhouse gas 
emissions and equitably distribute the benefits and costs of growth and change in the region; and 

 
WHEREAS, in 2011 the Land Conservation and Development Commission (“LCDC”) adopted 

Oregon Administrative Rules 660-044-0000 to -0060, which included per capita greenhouse gas 
emissions reduction targets for each of Oregon’s six metropolitan areas, including the Portland 



Page 2 Ordinance No. 14-1346B 

metropolitan region, to help meet statewide goals to reduce greenhouse gas emissions to 75 percent below 
1990 levels by the year 2050; and 

 
WHEREAS, the target adopted by LCDC directs the Portland metropolitan region to reduce per 

capita roadway greenhouse gas emissions from light duty vehicles by 20 percent below 2005 levels by 
2035; and  

 
WHEREAS, the target reduction is in addition to significantly greater reductions anticipated to 

occur from state and federal actions related to advancements in cleaner, low carbon fuels and more fuel-
efficient vehicle technologies, including electric and alternative fuel vehicles; and 

 
WHEREAS, in 2012 LCDC amended OAR 660-044-0040 to direct Metro to evaluate a reference 

case that reflects implementation of existing adopted comprehensive and transportation plans and at least 
two alternative land use and transportation scenarios that accommodate planned growth while achieving a 
reduction in greenhouse gas emissions from light vehicles and to guide Metro in the evaluation and 
selection of a preferred land use and transportation scenario by December 31, 2014; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Portland metropolitan region conducted scenario planning through the Climate 

Smart Communities Scenarios Project to demonstrate leadership on addressing climate change, maximize 
achievement of all six of the region’s desired outcomes, implement adopted local and regional plans and 
visions, including the 2040 Growth Concept, local comprehensive and transportation system plans and the 
regional transportation system plan, and respond to Section 37 of the JTA and OAR 660-044; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Climate Smart Communities Scenarios Project was completed through a three-

phase collaborative effort designed to support communities in the Portland metropolitan region in 
realizing their aspirations for healthy and equitable communities and a strong economy, and reduce 
greenhouse gas emissions from light vehicles as required by the State; and 
 

WHEREAS, Phase 1 of the Scenarios Project focused on understanding the region’s land use and 
transportation choices by conducting a review of published research and testing 144 regional scenarios in 
2011; and 

 
WHEREAS, Phase 2 of the Scenarios Project, in 2012 and 2013, focused on shaping future 

choices for the region to advance implementation of community visions by conducting further analysis of 
the Phase 1 scenarios, confirming local land use visions, preparing eight community case studies and 
engaging community and business leaders, city and county officials and staff, county coordinating 
committees, responsible state agencies, a technical work group and Metro’s technical and policy advisory 
committees to develop assumptions for three scenarios to test and evaluation criteria to be used to 
measure and compare them; and 

 
WHEREAS, Phase 2 of the Scenarios Project found that adopted local and regional plans, if 

implemented, can meet the state mandated target for reducing greenhouse gas emissions from light duty 
vehicles by 2035; and 
 

WHEREAS, Phase 3 of the Scenarios Project, in 2014, considered the results of the Phase 2 
evaluation, the region’s six desired outcomes, feedback received from public officials, business and 
community leaders, and interested members of the public to draft a preferred land use and transportation 
scenario to meet the targeted reductions under state law, called the “Climate Smart Strategy”; and 

 



Page 3 Ordinance No. 14-1346B 

WHEREAS, on June 19, 2014, the Metro Council directed staff to evaluate the draft Climate 
Smart Strategy, a product of four years of research, analysis, community engagement and discussion, that 
was unanimously recommended by MPAC and JPACT for testing on May 30, 2014; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Climate Smart Strategy accommodates expected growth, exceeds the state 

mandate, and relies on implementing adopted local and regional land use and transportation plans, 
including investment priorities adopted in the 2014 Regional Transportation Plan (“RTP”) on July 17, 
2014; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Climate Smart Strategy reflects assumptions used by the state when adopting the 

region’s reduction target for state and federal actions related to advancements in cleaner, low carbon fuels 
and more fuel-efficient vehicle technologies, including electric and alternative fuel vehicles; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Climate Smart Strategy reflects the financially constrained 2014 RTP level of 

investment for streets, highways and active transportation, and higher levels of investment for (1) transit 
service and related capital improvements needed to support increased service levels, (2) transportation 
system management technologies, and (3) travel information and incentive programs; and 

 
WHEREAS, while the recommended level of investment for transit service and related capital, 

transportation system management technologies, and travel information and incentive programs is more 
than what is adopted in the financially constrained 2014 RTP, the estimated costs fall within the adopted 
2014 Regional Transportation System Plan funding assumptions the region has agreed to work toward as 
part of meeting statewide planning goals; and 

 
WHEREAS, analysis shows, if implemented, the Climate Smart Strategy achieves a 29 percent 

reduction in per capita greenhouse gas emissions from light duty vehicles by 2035 and provides 
significant community, public health, environmental and economic benefits to communities and the 
region; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Climate Smart Strategy reduces air pollution, improves safety, helps people live 

healthier lives, manages congestion, reduces freight truck travel costs due to delay, expands travel 
options, improves access to jobs and essential destinations, and makes the most of investments already 
made in the region's transportation system – all of which help save businesses and households money and 
support job creation and economic development; and 

 
WHEREAS, the results further demonstrate that the Portland metropolitan region is already a 

leader in planning for lower greenhouse gas emissions from transportation; and 
 
WHEREAS, on September 15, 2014, Metro staff launched an online survey and released the 

preferred land use and transportation scenario under OAR 660-044-0040 for review and comment through 
October 30, 2014, as set forth in the recommended Climate Smart Strategy, Regional Framework Plan 
Amendments, Toolbox of Possible Actions (2015-2020) and Performance Monitoring Approach; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Regional Framework Plan guides Metro’s land use and transportation planning 
and other activities and does not mandate local government adoption of any particular policy or action; 
and 

 
WHEREAS, the Regional Framework Plan Amendments identify refinements to existing regional 

policies that integrate the key components of the Climate Smart Strategy, including policies and strategies 
to guide implementation of the strategy and performance measures for tracking the region’s progress on 
implementing the strategy; and 



Page 4 Ordinance No. 14-1346B 

 
WHEREAS, the Toolbox of Possible Actions (2015-2020) identifies an advisory menu of 

possible near-term actions that state, regional and local governments and special districts can take in the 
next five years to begin implementation of the Climate Smart Strategy; and 

 
WHEREAS, the toolbox does not require state, regional and local governments or special districts 

to adopt any particular policy or action; and  
 
WHEREAS, MPAC and JPACT recommend the toolbox be a living document subject to further 

review and refinement by local governments, the Oregon Department of Transportation (ODOT), TriMet 
and other stakeholders as part of regularly scheduled updates to the RTP to reflect new information and 
approaches to reducing greenhouse gas emissions; and 

 
WHEREAS, MPAC and JPACT agree updates to local comprehensive plans and development 

regulations, transit agency plans, port district plans and regional growth management and transportation 
plans present continuing opportunities to consider implementing the toolbox actions in locally tailored 
ways; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Performance Monitoring Approach identifies measures and performance 
monitoring targets for tracking the region’s progress on implementing the Climate Smart Strategy adopted 
by the Metro Council that build on the existing land use and transportation performance monitoring Metro 
is already responsible for as a result of state and federal requirements; and 

 
WHEREAS, Metro sought and received comments on public review drafts of the Climate Smart 

Strategy, Regional Framework Plan Amendments, Toolbox of Possible Actions (2015-2020) and 
Performance Monitoring Approach from MPAC, JPACT, its Metro Technical Advisory Committee 
(“MTAC”), its Transportation Policy Alternatives Committee (“TPAC”), state agencies and commissions, 
including the Oregon Department of Transportation, the Oregon Department of Environmental Quality, 
the Oregon Department of Land Conservation and Development, LCDC, local governments in the region, 
the Port of Portland, public, private and non-profit organizations and the public; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Metro Council held public hearings on October 30 and December 18, 2014; and 
 
WHEREAS, Metro identified amendments in response to comments received on the draft Climate 

Smart Strategy, draft Regional Framework Plan Amendments, draft Toolbox of Possible Actions (2015-
2020) and draft Performance Monitoring Approach for consideration by MTAC, TPAC, MPAC and 
JPACT; and 

 
WHEREAS, MTAC, TPAC, MPAC and JPACT have considered the results of the evaluation, the 

Climate Smart Strategy and supporting implementation recommendations released for public review on 
September 15, 2014, subsequent public and stakeholder input received and amendments identified to 
address input received prior to recommending the Climate Smart Strategy and supporting implementation 
recommendations be adopted by the Metro Council by December 31, 2014; and 

 
WHEREAS, adoption of the Climate Smart Strategy and supporting implementation 

recommendations presents an opportunity for the region to act together to continue to demonstrate 
leadership on climate change and address challenges related to transportation funding and implementing 
adopted local and regional plans, including transit service plans; and 

 
WHEREAS, MPAC and JPACT acknowledge that implementation of adopted local and regional 

plans, including transit service plans, as called for in the Climate Smart Strategy and supporting 



Page 5 Ordinance No. 14-1346B 

implementation recommendations, will require new resources and active participation from a full range of 
partners over the long-term; and  

 
WHEREAS, MPAC and JPACT have agreed to work together with the Metro Council and other 

public and private partners to begin implementation in 2015 and recommend a short list of three Climate 
Smart Strategy actions as a starting point; and 

 
WHEREAS, the 2018 RTP update will serve as a major vehicle for implementing the preferred 

scenario under OAR 660-044-0040; and 
 
WHEREAS, MPAC, on December 10, 2014, and JPACT, on December 11, 2014, recommended 

Council adoption of the preferred scenario under OAR 660-044-0040, as reflected in the Climate Smart 
Strategy and supporting implementation recommendations, to achieve state and regional climate goals 
and support many other state, regional and local goals, including expanded transportation choices, clean 
air, healthy and equitable communities, and a strong economy; now, therefore, 
 
 BE IT ORDAINED THAT: 

1. The Climate Smart Strategy, attached to this ordinance as Exhibit A, is hereby adopted as part of 
the preferred land use and transportation scenario under OAR 660-044-0040. 

2. The amendments to the Regional Framework Plan, attached to this ordinance as Exhibit B, are 
hereby adopted as part of the preferred land use and transportation scenario under OAR 660-044-
0040 to provide policy direction on efforts to reduce per capita greenhouse gas emissions from 
light duty vehicles and identify performance measures to evaluate and report on the region’s 
progress toward implementing key components of the Climate Smart Strategy.  

3. The amendments to Chapter 2 of the Regional Framework Plan, attached to this ordinance as 
Exhibit B, are also incorporated into Chapter 2 of the Regional Transportation Plan. 

4. The Toolbox of Possible Actions (2015-2020), attached to this ordinance as Exhibit C, is hereby 
adopted as part of the preferred land use and transportation scenario under OAR 660-044-0040 
and will be updated and incorporated into the technical appendix for the Regional Transportation 
Plan as part of the next update.  

5. The toolbox is acknowledged as a living document that is expected to evolve and change over 
time to reflect new information and approaches for reducing greenhouse gas emissions. Toolbox 
actions are not mandatory, but, rather are intended to provide guidance to state, regional and local 
governments and be tailored to meet individual jurisdictions’ needs. The Metro Council directs 
staff to provide opportunities for further review and refinement of the toolbox by local 
governments, ODOT, TriMet and other stakeholders as part of regularly scheduled updates to the 
Regional Transportation Plan. 

6. The Performance Monitoring Approach, attached to this ordinance as Exhibit D, is hereby 
adopted as part of the preferred land use and transportation scenario under OAR 660-044-0040 
and will be reviewed and potentially updated before being incorporated into the Regional 
Transportation Plan.  

7. Metro’s on-going regional performance monitoring program will evaluate and report on the 
region’s progress over time toward implementing key components of the Climate Smart 
Communities Strategy through regularly-scheduled updates to the Regional Transportation Plan 



Page 6 Ordinance No. 14-1346B 

and Urban Growth Report, and in response to Oregon State Statutes ORS 197.301 and ORS 
197.296. 

8. The Short List of Climate Smart Strategy Actions for 2015 and 2016, attached to this ordinance 
as Exhibit E, is hereby adopted to demonstrate the region’s commitment to work together to begin 
implementing the Climate Smart Strategy. 

9. The Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law in Exhibit F, attached and incorporated into this 
ordinance, explain how adoption of Exhibits A through E by the Council satisfies Metro’s 
responsibility under state law to prepare and cooperatively select a preferred land use and 
transportation scenario that achieves the adopted LCDC target for greenhouse gas emission 
reductions from light vehicles in the Portland metropolitan region by 2035 pursuant to OAR 660-
044. 

10. Metro staff is directed to prepare a final report that consolidates Exhibits A, C, D and E and 
transmit the report and decision record, including this ordinance and exhibits to the ordinance, to 
LCDC in the manner of periodic review. 

11. The preferred scenario under OAR 660-044-0040, adopted by this ordinance and reflected in the 
Climate Smart Strategy and supporting implementation recommendations, will be further 
implemented through the next scheduled update to the Regional Transportation Plan. Metro staff 
is directed to begin scoping the work plan for the next update to the Regional Transportation 
Plan, and identify a schedule and outline of policy decisions and resources needed. 

 
ADOPTED by the Metro Council this 18th day of December, 2014. 
 
 
 

 
Tom Hughes, Council President 

 
Approved as to Form: 
 
 
       
Alison Kean, Metro Attorney 



	  

	  

	   	   Exhibit	  A	  to	  Ordinance	  No.	  14-‐1346B

December	  9,	  2014	  

Climate	  Smart	  
Strategy	  

Recommended	  Draft	  
This	  document	  reflects	  changes	  recommended	  to	  respond	  to	  public	  
comments	  received	  and	  subsequent	  advisory	  committee	  review	  
	  

Exhibit A to Ordinance No. 14-1346B



	  

	   	   	  

	  

	  
About	  Metro	  
Clean	  air	  and	  clean	  water	  do	  not	  stop	  at	  city	  limits	  or	  county	  lines.	  Neither	  does	  the	  need	  for	  jobs,	  a	  
thriving	  economy,	  and	  sustainable	  transportation	  and	  living	  choices	  for	  people	  and	  businesses	  in	  the	  
region.	  Voters	  have	  asked	  Metro	  to	  help	  with	  the	  challenges	  and	  opportunities	  that	  affect	  the	  25	  cities	  
and	  three	  counties	  in	  the	  Portland	  metropolitan	  area.	  	  
	  	  
A	  regional	  approach	  simply	  makes	  sense	  when	  it	  comes	  to	  providing	  services,	  operating	  venues	  and	  
making	  decisions	  about	  how	  the	  region	  grows.	  Metro	  works	  with	  communities	  to	  support	  a	  resilient	  
economy,	  keep	  nature	  close	  by	  and	  respond	  to	  a	  changing	  climate.	  Together	  we’re	  making	  a	  great	  place,	  
now	  and	  for	  generations	  to	  come.	  
	  	  
Stay	  in	  touch	  with	  news,	  stories	  and	  things	  to	  do.	  	  	  
	  	  
www.oregonmetro.gov/climatescenarios	  
	  

Metro	  Council	  President 

Tom	  Hughes 
Metro	  Councilors 
Shirley	  Craddick,	  District	  1                                                                                                        
Carlotta	  Collette,	  District	  2	  
Craig	  Dirksen,	  District	  3	  
Kathryn	  Harrington,	  District	  4	  
Sam	  Chase,	  District	  5	  
Bob	  Stacey,	  District	  6 
Auditor 
Suzanne	  Flynn 
	  

	  

08	  Fall	  

Exhibit A to Ordinance No. 14-1346B



1Climate Smart Strategy | December 9, 2014

TABLE OF CONTENTS
Introduction ..................................................................................................... 3

About the Climate Smart Strategy ................................................................. 4

Regional context .............................................................................................. 7
Our region is changing ................................................................................. 7

Project background .......................................................................................... 8

Where we are today ......................................................................................... 11

Overview of policy areas.................................................................................12
Implement adopted local and regional land use plans ................................ 13 

Make transit more convenient, frequent, accessible and affordable  ........... 15 

Make biking and walking safe and convenient ........................................... 17 

Make streets and highways safe, reliable and connected ............................19

Use technology to actively manage the transportation system ..................21

Provide information and incentives to expand the use of travel options ... 23

Manage parking to make efficient use of  vehicle parking and land 
dedicated to parking spaces  ...................................................................... 25

Support transition to cleaner, low carbon fuels and more fuel-efficient 
vehicles ...................................................................................................... 27

Secure adequate funding for transportation investments ......................... 29 

Glossary .......................................................................................................... 32

Exhibit A to Ordinance No. 14-1346B



2 Climate Smart Strategy | December 9, 2014

CLACKAMAS

W
A

SH
IN

G
TO

N

YAMHILL

M
A

R
IO

N

C
LA

C
K

A
M

A
S

WASHINGTON
WASHINGTON

CLACKAMAS

WASHINGTON

MULTNOMAH

CL
A

RK
M

U
LT

N
O

M
A

H

Y
A

M
H

IL
L

M
U

LT
N

O
M

A
H

C
LA

C
K

A
M

A
S

M
U

LT
N

O
M

A
H

C
LA

C
K

A
M

A
S

St
 J

o
h

n
s 

B
et

h
an

y 

Ta
n

as
b

o
u

rn
e 

O
re

n
co

 
H

o
lly

w
o

o
d

 

Su
n

se
t

R
o

ck
w

o
o

d

H
ill

sd
al

e 

Le
n

ts

Pl
ea

sa
n

t 
V

al
le

y 
W

es
t 

Po
rt

la
n

d
 

La
ke

 G
ro

ve
 

G
at

ew
ay

 

W
as

h
in

g
to

n
 

Sq
u

ar
e 

St
 J

o
h

n
s 

B
et

h
an

y 

Ta
n

as
b

o
u

rn
e 

O
re

n
co

 
H

o
lly

w
o

o
d

 

Su
n

se
t

R
o

ck
w

o
o

d

H
ill

sd
al

e 

Le
n

ts

Pl
ea

sa
n

t 
V

al
le

y 
W

es
t 

Po
rt

la
n

d
 

La
ke

 G
ro

ve
 

G
at

ew
ay

 

W
as

h
in

g
to

n
 

Sq
u

ar
e 

10
0

10
0

M
ile

s

43

99
W

21
0

10

8

50
0

99
E

99
E 

 
 

 
 

 
 

47

30

26

26

26

26

22
4

21
7

21
2

14

14
20

5

20
5

20
5

84

84

5

5

5

Po
rt

la
n

d
Po

rt
la

n
dV
an

co
u

ve
r

V
an

co
u

ve
r

Fo
re

st
G

ro
ve

C
am

as

Tr
o

u
td

al
e

Ti
g

ar
d

M
ilw

au
ki

e

La
ke

O
sw

eg
o

Tu
al

at
in

Sh
er

w
o

o
d

G
la

d
st

o
n

e

W
es

t
Li

n
n

O
re

g
o

n
C

it
y

W
ils

o
n

vi
lle

C
an

b
y

N
ew

b
er

g

D
am

as
cu

s

Fo
re

st
G

ro
ve

C
am

as

W
as

h
o

u
g

al
W

as
h

o
u

g
al

Tr
o

u
td

al
e

Ti
g

ar
d

M
ilw

au
ki

e

La
ke

O
sw

eg
o

Tu
al

at
in

Sh
er

w
o

o
d

G
la

d
st

o
n

e

W
es

t
Li

n
n

O
re

g
o

n
C

it
y

W
ils

o
n

vi
lle

C
an

b
y

N
ew

b
er

g

D
am

as
cu

s

H
ill

sb
o

ro

B
ea

ve
rt

o
n

G
re

sh
am

H
ill

sb
o

ro

B
ea

ve
rt

o
n

G
re

sh
am

C
la

ck
a

m
a s

 R
i v e r

B
an

ks

B
u

rl
in

g
to

n

N
o

rt
h

Pl
ai

n
s

C
o

rn
el

iu
s

R
o

ck
cr

ee
k O

ak
H

ill
s

C
ed

ar
M

ill

A
lo

h
a

G
as

to
n

C
ed

ar
H

ill
s

M
ay

w
o

o
d

Pa
rk

R
al

ei
g

h
H

ill
s

Fa
ir

vi
ew

W
o

o
d

V
ill

ag
e

K
in

g
C

it
y

D
u

rh
am

H
ap

p
y

V
al

le
y

C
an

em
ah

O
ak

G
ro

ve

Sa
u

vi
e’

s
Is

la
n

d
Sa

u
vi

e’
s

Is
la

n
d

R
iv

er
g

ro
ve

Jo
h

n
so

n
C

it
yC
la

ck
am

as
B

o
ri

n
g

B
ar

to
n

O
ri

en
t

Ea
g

le
 C

re
ek

R
ed

la
n

d

W
ill

am
et

te

C
ar

ve
r

D
u

n
d

ee

Fa
rm

in
g

to
n

W
es

t 
U

n
io

n

M
u

rr
ay

/S
ch

o
lls

St
af

fo
rd

Sa
n

d
y

Es
ta

ca
d

a 

B
an

ks

B
u

rl
in

g
to

n

N
o

rt
h

Pl
ai

n
s

C
o

rn
el

iu
s

R
o

ck
cr

ee
k O

ak
H

ill
s

C
ed

ar
M

ill

Pa
rk

ro
se

Pa
rk

ro
se

A
lo

h
a

G
as

to
n

C
ed

ar
H

ill
s

M
ay

w
o

o
d

Pa
rk

R
al

ei
g

h
H

ill
s

Fa
ir

vi
ew

W
o

o
d

V
ill

ag
e

K
in

g
C

it
y

D
u

rh
am

H
ap

p
y

V
al

le
y

C
an

em
ah

O
ak

G
ro

ve

R
iv

er
g

ro
ve

Jo
h

n
so

n
C

it
yC
la

ck
am

as
B

o
ri

n
g

B
ar

to
n

O
ri

en
t

Ea
g

le
 C

re
ek

B
ar

lo
w

R
ed

la
n

d

W
ill

am
et

te

C
ar

ve
r

D
u

n
d

ee

Fa
rm

in
g

to
n

W
es

t 
U

n
io

n

M
u

rr
ay

/S
ch

o
lls

St
af

fo
rd

Sa
n

d
y

Es
ta

ca
d

a 

C o l u m b i a
 R

i v
e r

C o l u m b i a
 R

i v
e r

W

i l
l a

m

e t t
e  

R
i v

e r

C
la

ck
a

m
a s

 R
i v e r

T
u

a
l a

ti
n

 R
i v

e r

C
o

lu
m

b
i a

 R
i v

e r

C
o

lu
m

b
i a

 R
i v

e r

Wi l l

a
m

e
tt

e  
R

iv
e r

V
a

n
c

o
u

v
e

r
L

a
k

e

Tua
la

ti
n

 R
i v

e r

S a n
d

y
 R

iv
er

S a n
d

y
 R

iv
er

Ju
ri

sd
ic

ti
o

n
al

 m
ap

 o
f 

th
e 

Po
rt

la
n

d
 m

et
ro

p
o

lit
an

 r
eg

io
n

U
rb

an
 g

ro
w

th
 

bo
un

da
ry

C
ou

nt
y 

bo
un

da
ry

O
R
E
G
O
N

W
A
S
H
IN

G
T
O
N

Exhibit A to Ordinance No. 14-1346B

<' 

o 

• 

0 

w/ 

,/ 

;' ,.. 
; 

I ./ 

0
: ./ , ' 

I :' 

r 

! 
" • .-i , , 

, .' , , 

! 

r 

'J 
! 

i 

:. 
.--" 

• 

/ " 
, ~~ 

,-:/ 
, ; 

" : , , 
" \' 
.",.-

o 

, 
~ 

, ___ J 

o 

---, 
J ,-

, __ J ''',?"~~T __ 
r./~;~:-'-'~ + ~-' 

.. >.s-·~!.~~f:-
:.i> r-

i 
1---' 
r 
~ 

o 

r 

9 0"--' , .. -,,-' 
", , 
~;. 
" 

I', / 

o 

o 

If 
0 

o 

'>. 
\ 

./ ., 
.. .' 

~·i\r 

o 

i--:::-'J"'\·, 
,~ ) 

.' ro' 

" _.' 
" 

.' 

r: 
. ,~ r 

;·-:·:_...'~ I 

..... , 
r 
r 

" L _ - ---, 
'll:.. __ 

.. ; 

, 
- / 

.. , 
() 

,- - -' 

" 



3Climate Smart Strategy | December 9, 2014

INTRODUCTION
The Climate Smart Communities Scenarios Project responds to a 
state mandate to develop and implement a strategy to reduce per 
capita greenhouse gas emissions from cars and small trucks by 
2035. 

The project engaged community, business, public health and 
elected leaders to shape a strategy that supports local plans for 
downtowns, main streets and employment areas; protects farms, 
forestland, and natural areas; creates healthy and equitable 
communities; increases travel options; and grows the economy 
while reducing greenhouse gas emissions. 

After four years of research, analysis, community engagement and 
discussion, the Metro Policy Advisory Committee (MPAC)  and Joint 
Policy Advisory Committee on Transportation (JPACT) finalized 
their recommendation to the Metro Council on the Climate Smart 
Strategy and supporting implementation recommendations 
(Regional Framework Plan amendments, toolbox of possible actions 
and performance monitoring approach) in December 2014.  

ATTRIBUTES OF GREAT 
COMMUNITIES
The six desired outcomes 
for the region endorsed by 
the Metro Policy Advisory 
Committee and approved by 
the Metro Council in 2010.

The Climate Smart Strategy 
and implementation 
recommendations support 
all six of the region’s desired 
outcomes.

Making 
a great 
place

Transportation
choices

Regional 
climate change 

leadership

Vibrant 
communities

Equity

Clean air 
and water

Economic 
prosperity

Exhibit A to Ordinance No. 14-1346B



4 Climate Smart Strategy | December 9, 2014

ABOUT THE CLIMATE SMART 
STRATEGY
The results are in and the news is good. After a four-year collaborative 
process informed by research, analysis, community engagement and 
deliberation, the region has identified a Climate Smart Strategy that achieves a 
29 percent reduction in per capita greenhouse gas emissions. The strategy does 
more than just meet the target. Analyses show it supports many other local, 
regional and state goals, including clean air and water, transportation choices, 
healthy and equitable communities, and a strong economy. 

This overview  is designed to help elected, business, and community leaders, 
and residents better understand the strategy and supporting implementation 
recommendations as Metro Policy Advisory Committee (MPAC)  and Joint 
Policy Advisory Committee on Transportation (JPACT) continue working to 
finalize their recommendation to the Metro Council in December 2014. 

After a four-year collaborative process informed by research, 
analysis, community engagement and discussion, the region 
has identified a Climate Smart Strategy that achieves a 29 
percent reduction in per capita greenhouse gas emissions and 
supports the plans and visions that have already been adopted 
by communities and the region.

Analyses demonstrate 
significant benefits can be 
realized by implementing 
the Climate Smart 
Strategy. 

More information on the 
results, expected benefits 
and estimated costs is 
available at :
oregonmetro.gov/
climatescenarios

 

Exhibit A to Ordinance No. 14-1346B



5Climate Smart Strategy | December 9, 2014

EXPECTED BENEFITS OF 
THE STRATEGY

By 2035, the Climate Smart 
Strategy can help people 
live healthier lives and save 
businesses and households 
money through benefits like:

• Reduced air pollution and 
increased physical activity 
can help reduce illness and 
save lives. This helps save 
money that can be spent on 
other priorities.

•  Less air pollution also means 
fewer environmental costs. 
This helps save money 
that can be spent on other 
priorities.

•  Spending less time in traffic 
and reduced delay on the 
system saves businesses 
money, supports job 
creation, and promotes the 
efficient movement of goods.

•  Households save money by 
driving more fuel-efficient 
vehicles fewer miles and 
walking, biking and using 
transit more. This allows 
people to spend money on 
other priorities, of particular 
importance to households of 
modest means.

WHAT IS THE CLIMATE SMART STRATEGY?
The Climate Smart Strategy is a set of policies, strategies and near-term 
actions to guide how the region moves forward to integrate reducing 
greenhouse gas emissions with ongoing efforts to create the future we want 
for our region. Key components of the strategy include:

CLIMATE SMART STRATEGY
•  The key policies and strategies recommended to continue demonstrating 

the region’s leadership in reducing greenhouse gas emissions from light-
duty vehicles. 

• The strategy relies on adopted local and regional land use and 
transportation plans and expected advancements in cleaner, low carbon 
fuels and more fuel-efficient vehicles.

REGIONAL FRAMEWORK PLAN (RFP) AMENDMENTS 
•  Refinements to existing regional policies to integrate the key components 

of the Climate Smart Strategy, including policies and strategies to guide 
implementation and performance measures for tracking the region’s 
progress.

TOOLBOX OF POSSIBLE ACTIONS
• An advisory menu of possible near-term actions that state, regional and 

local governments and special districts can take in the next five years to 
begin implementing the strategy. 

• A living document subject to further review and refinement as part of 
scheduled updates to the Regional Transportation Plan to reflect new 
information and approaches to reducing greenhouse gas emissions.

• Updates to local comprehensive plans and development regulations, 
transit agency plans, port district plans and regional growth management 
and transportation plans present ongoing opportunities to consider 
implementing the toolbox actions in locally tailored ways.

SHORT LIST OF CLIMATE SMART ACTIONS
•  A list of three actions for 2015 and 2016 to demonstrate the region’s 

commitment to work together to begin implementing the strategy.
• The actions focus on transportation funding, advancements in clean fuels 

and vehicle technologies and collaboration among multiple partners to 
seek opportunities to implement projects that combine the most effective 
greenhouse gas emissions reduction strategies.

PERFORMANCE MONITORING APPROACH
•  Identifies measures and performance monitoring targets for tracking the 

region’s progress on implementing the strategy.
• Monitoring and reporting system that builds on existing performance 

monitoring requirements per ORS 197.301 and updates to the RTP and 
Urban Growth Report.

Exhibit A to Ordinance No. 14-1346B



6 Climate Smart Strategy | December 9, 2014

1980

B L A C K

11%

A S I A N5%
H I S P A N I C

3%O T H E R / T W
O  O R  M O R E

1%

W H I T E
80%

2010

B
L

A
C

K
8%

A
S I A

N
6%

O
T

H
E

R
/ T

W
O

 O
R

 M
O

R
E

14%

W H I T E
52%

H I S P A N I C
20%

P O V E R T Y  &  E T H N I C I T Y

WHI TE
HISPANIC
BL ACK
ASIAN
OTHER/TWO OR MORE

RACE AND ETHNICITY IN THE PORTLAND METROPOLITAN REGION

People of color are an 
increasingly significant 
percentage of the Portland 
metropolitan region’s 
population. Areas with high 
poverty rates and people of 
color are located in all three 
of the region’s counties – 
often in neighborhoods with 
limited transit access to 
family wage jobs and gaps 
in walking and bicycling 
networks.

Exhibit A to Ordinance No. 14-1346B



7Climate Smart Strategy | December 9, 2014

REGIONAL CONTEXT
OUR REGION IS CHANGING
The Portland metropolitan region is an extraordinary place to call home. 
Our region has unique communities with inviting neighborhoods, a diverse 
economy and a world-class transit system. The region is surrounded by 
stunning natural landscapes and criss-crossed with a network of parks, trails 
and wild places within a walk, bike ride or transit stop from home. Over the 
years, the communities of the Portland metropolitan region have taken a 
collaborative approach to planning that has helped make our region one of the 
most livable in the country.

Because of our dedication to planning and working together to make local and 
regional plans a reality, we have set a wise course for managing growth – but 
times are challenging. With a growing and increasingly diverse population and 
an economy that is still in recovery, residents of the region along with the rest 
of the nation have reset expectations for financial and job security. 

Aging infrastructure, rising energy costs, a changing climate, and global 
economic and political tensions demand new kinds of leadership, innovation 
and thoughtful deliberation and action to ensure our region remains a great 
place to live, work and play for everyone. 

In collaboration with city, county, state, business and community leaders, 
Metro has researched how land use and transportation policies and 
investments can be leveraged to respond to these challenges and meet state 
targets for reducing greenhouse gas emissions from cars and small trucks. 

The region expects to welcome nearly 500,000 new residents 
and more than 365,000 new jobs within the urban growth 
boundary by 2035.

1910

1940

1960

2000

2010

Exhibit A to Ordinance No. 14-1346B



8 Climate Smart Strategy | December 9, 2014

PROJECT BACKGROUND
The Climate Smart Communities Scenarios Project responds to a 2009 mandate 
from the Oregon Legislature for Metro to develop and implement a strategy to 
reduce per capita greenhouse gas emissions from cars and small trucks by 2035. 

Metro is the regional government serving a population of 1.5 million people in 
the Portland metropolitan region. In that role, Metro has been working together 
with regional technical and policy advisory committees and community, busi-
ness and elected leaders across the region to shape the Climate Smart Strategy 
and supporting implementation recommendations. 

Development and adoption of the strategy was completed in three phases.

Phase 1 began in 2011 and concluded in early 2012. This phase consisted of 
testing strategies on a regional level to understand which strategies can most 
effectively help the region meet the state greenhouse gas emissions reduction 
mandate. 

Most of the investments and actions under consideration are already being 
implemented to varying degrees across the region to realize community visions 
and other important economic, social and environmental goals. 

As part of the first phase, Metro staff researched strategies used to reduce 
emissions in communities across the region, nation and around the world. This 
work resulted in a toolbox describing the range of potential strategies, their 
effectiveness at reducing emissions and other benefits they could bring to the 
region, if implemented. 

2011
Phase 1

2013 – 14
Phase 3

choices
Shaping 
choices

Shaping and
adoption of 
Climate Smart 
Strategy

Jan. 2012
Accept 
findings

 
 

Dec. 2014
Adopt Climate 
Smart Strategy

Climate Smart Communities Scenarios Project timeline

Direction on
Climate Smart 
Strategy

Understanding

June 2013
Direction on
alternative
scenarios 

2012 – 13
Phase 2

June 2014

Climate Smart Communities Scenarios Project

Understanding
Our Land Use and
Transportation Choices
Phase 1 findings   i   JanUaRY 12, 2012

We found there are many ways 
to reduce emissions while 
creating healthy, equitable 
communities and a strong 
economy, but no single solution 
will enable the region to meet 
the state’s target. 

Exhibit A to Ordinance No. 14-1346B



9Climate Smart Strategy | December 9, 2014

We found there are many ways to reduce emissions while creating healthy, 
more equitable communities and a strong economy, but no single solution will 
enable the region to meet the state’s target, including anticipated changes to 
fleet and technology.  

The Phase 1 findings reinforced that investing in communities in ways that 
support local visions for the future will be key to reducing greenhouse gas 
emissions. Providing schools, services and shopping near where people live, 
improving bus and rail transit service, building new street connections, using 
technology to manage traffic flow, encouraging electric cars and providing safer 
routes for walking and biking all can help.  

The second phase began in 2012 and concluded in October 2013. In this 
phase, Metro worked with regional technical and policy advisory committees 
and business and community leaders to shape three approaches – or scenarios 
– and the criteria used to evaluate them. In 2013, Metro analyzed the three 
approaches to investing in locally adopted land use and transportation plans 
and policies.

The purpose of the analysis was to better understand the impact of those 
investments to inform the development of the Climate Smart Strategy in 
2014.  Each scenario reflects choices about how and where the region invests 
to implement locally adopted plans and visions. They illustrate how different 
levels of leadership and investment could impact how the region grows over 
the next 25 years and how those investments might affect different aspects of 
livability for the region. The results of the analysis were released in fall 2013, 
and summarized in a Discussion Guide For Policymakers.

Three approaches that we evaluated in 2013

Recent Trends 
This scenario shows the 
results of implementing 
adopted land use and 
transportation plans to 
the extent possible with 
existing revenue.

A
SCENARIO

Adopted Plans
This scenario shows the 
results of successfully 
implementing adopted 
plans and achieving the 
current Regional 
Transportation Plan which 
relies on increased 
revenue.

B
SCENARIO

New Plans and Policies 
This scenario shows the 
results of pursuing new 
policies, more investment 
and new revenue sources 
to more fully achieve 
adopted and emerging 
plans.

C
SCENARIO

The analysis showed that if 
we continue investing at our 
current levels  we will fall 
short of what has been asked 
of our region, as well as other 
outcomes we are working 
to achieve – healthy and 
equitable communities, clean 
air and water, reliable travel 
options, and a strong economy. 

Exhibit A to Ordinance No. 14-1346B



10 Climate Smart Strategy | December 9, 2014

 WHERE WE ARE TODAY
The third phase began in November 2013. Building on the previous analyses 
and engagement, in February 2014, the Metro Policy Advisory Committee and 
Joint Policy Advisory Committee on Transportation approved a path for moving 
forward to shape and adopt a Climate Smart Strategy by December 31, 2014. 

As recommended by MPAC and JPACT, the draft strategy started with the 
plans cities, counties and the region have already adopted – from local zoning, 
capital improvement, comprehensive, and transportation system plans to 
the 2040 Growth Concept and regional transportation plan – to create great 
communities and build a strong economy.  This includes managing the urban 
growth boundary through regular growth management cycles (currently every 
six years). 

In addition, MPAC and JPACT agreed to include assumptions for cleaner, low 
carbon fuels and more fuel-efficient vehicles as defined by state agencies 
during the 2011 target-setting process. A third component they recommended 
be included in the draft approach is the Statewide Transportation Strategy 
assumption for pay-as-you-drive vehicle insurance. 

From January to May 2014, the Metro Council engaged community and busi-
ness leaders, local governments and the public on what mix of investments and 
actions best support their community’s vision for healthy and equitable com-
munities and a strong economy while reducing greenhouse gas emissions. 

In May 2014, policymakers considered the results of prior engagement activities 
and analyses, and their February 2014 policy direction to recommend a draft 
strategy for testing during summer 2014. The recommendation carried forward 
their February recommendations related to adopted plans and assumptions 
for fleet and technology, and provided further direction around the remaining 
policy areas.

The draft strategy and supporting implementation recommendations were 
subject to a 45-day public comment period from Sept. 15 to Oct. 30, 2014. Metro 
received 90 letters and emails from local governments, community based 
organizations and individuals. An online survey attracted nearly 2,400 people, 
who shared their thoughts on each of the  key policy areas recommended in 
the overall strategy. Metro staff identified changes to the draft documents for 
consideration by the Metro Council and regional policy and technical commit-
tees, who continued to fine-tune their recommendations to the Metro Council 
in November and December 2014.

The Climate Smart Strategy 
includes assumptions for 
cleaner, low carbon fuels and 
more fuel-efficient vehicles 
as defined by state agencies 
during the 2011 target-setting 
process.

Exhibit A to Ordinance No. 14-1346B



11Climate Smart Strategy | December 9, 2014

OVERVIEW OF CLIMATE 
SMART STRATEGY
The goal of the Climate Smart Strategy is to demonstrate leadership on 
climate change by  meeting adopted targets for reducing greenhouse gas 
emissions from light-duty vehicles  while creating healthy and equitable 
communities and a strong economy.

This section provides an overview of the policies and strategies recommended 
in the Climate Smart Strategy:

1. Implement adopted local and regional land use plans

2. Make transit  convenient, frequent, accessible and affordable

3. Make biking and walking safe and convenient

4. Make streets and highways safe, reliable and connected

5. Use technology to actively manage the transportation system

6. Provide information and incentives to expand the use of travel options

7. Make efficient use of vehicle parking and land dedicated to parking spaces

8. Support Oregon’s transition to cleaner, low carbon fuels and  more fuel-
efficient vehicles

9. Secure adequate funding for transportation investments

Each section includes a description of the policy and strategies, the potential 
climate benefit, cost, implementation benefits and challenges, and a summary 
of the how the policy is implemented in the strategy. 

A one-size-fits-all approach 
won’t meet the needs of 
our diverse communities. 
A combination of all of the 
investments and actions 
under consideration is needed 
to help us realize our shared 
vision for making this region 
a great place for generations 
to come.

Exhibit A to Ordinance No. 14-1346B



12 Climate Smart Strategy | December 9, 2014

EXPLANATION OF THE CLIMATE BENEFIT RATINGS
In Phase 1 of the project, staff conducted a sensitivity analysis to better understand the greenhouse gas 
emissions reduction potential of individual policies. The information derived from the sensitivity analysis 
was used to develop a simplified five-star rating system for communicating the relative climate benefit of 
different policies. The ratings represent the relative emissions reduction effects of individual policy areas 
in isolation and do not capture variations that may occur from synergies between multiple policies or other 
benefits the policies may provide. 

The ratings, in combination with fiscal, economic, equity, public health, transportation and environmental 
criteria and public input, informed development of the Climate Smart Strategy and all of these factors will 
continue to inform future implementation and investment decisions.

«««««less than 1%

1 – 2%

3 – 6%

7 – 15%

16 – 20%

Estimated reductions assumed in climate benefit ratings

«««««
«««««
«««««
«««««

Source Memo to TPAC and interested parties on Climate 
Smart Communities: Phase 1 Metropolitan GreenSTEP 
scenarios sensitivity analysis (June 21, 2012)

A NOTE ON THE STATEWIDE TRANSPORTATION STRATEGY (STS)
The Oregon Statewide Transportation Strategy (STS): A 2050 Vision for Greenhouse Gas Emissions 
Reduction, was accepted by the Oregon Transportation Commission in March 2013. The strategy resulted 
from a state-level scenario planning effort that examined all aspects of the transportation system, including 
the movement of people and goods, and identified a combination of strategies to reduce greenhouse gas 
emissions. The STS was developed as part of a larger effort known as the Oregon Sustainable Transportation 
Initiative (OSTI), an integrated statewide effort to reduce greenhouse gas emissions from Oregon’s 
transportation sector. The effort responded to two bills passed by the Oregon Legislature, House Bill 2001 
(2009) and Senate Bill 1059 (2010), which were crafted to help meet state GHG reduction goals set forth in 
Oregon Revised Statute 468a.205.  

The STS was developed over the course of two years involving extensive research and technical analysis, as 
well as policy direction and technical input from local governments, industry representatives, metropolitan 
planning organizations (MPOs), state agencies and others. The STS identifies the most effective greenhouse 
gas emissions reduction strategies in transportation systems, vehicle and fuel technologies, and urban 
land use patterns. Beyond reducing GHG emissions, these strategies were found to provide other benefits, 
including improved health, cleaner air, and a more efficient transportation system. The most promising 
strategies identified in the STS informed the development of the recommended Climate Smart Strategy. 

Exhibit A to Ordinance No. 14-1346B



13Climate Smart Strategy | December 9, 2014

In 1995, the Portland region adopted the 2040 Growth Concept, the long-range 
plan for managing growth that merges land use and transportation design 
elements to reinforce the objectives of both. The unifying theme of the 2040 
Growth Concept is to preserve the region’s economic health and livability and 
plan for growth in the region in an equitable, environmentally-sound and 
fiscally-responsible manner. 

The 2040 Growth Concept includes land use and transportation building 
blocks that express the region’s aspiration to incorporate population growth 
within existing urban areas as much as possible and expand the urban growth 
boundary only when necessary. It concentrates mixed-use and higher density 
development in urban centers (e.g., Portland central city, regional centers and 
town centers), station communities, corridors, and main streets that are well-
served by transit and a well connected street network that supports biking 
and walking for short trips. Employment lands serve as hubs for regional 
commerce and include industrial land and freight facilities for truck, marine, 
air and rail cargo sites that enable goods to be generated and moved in and 
out of the region. Access is centered on rail, the freeway system and other road 
connections. 

Since 1995,cities and counties across the region have updated their 
comprehensive plans, development regulations and transportation system 
plans  to implement the 2040 Growth Concept vision in locally tailored ways. 
The 2040 Growth Concept and adopted local plans provide the foundation for 
the Climate Smart Strategy.

Implement adopted local and regional 
land use plans RELATIVE CLIMATE BENEFIT  

«««««  

NO COST ESTIMATE     

AVAILABLE

BENEFITS
•  compact urban form that uses land 

and public investments efficiently
• generates jobs and business 

opportunities
• protects air quality, farms, forestlands 

and natural areas
• provides a balanced transportation 

system to move people and goods
• supports housing for people of all 

income levels
• ensures safe and stable neighborhoods

CHALLENGES
• lack of sufficient funding to make 

investments needed to make adopted 
plans a reality

• not all designated growth areas have 
developed as planned

• lack of civic amenities, such as 
public gathering places, parks and 
community centers in some urban 
centers

• changing demographics

Exhibit A to Ordinance No. 14-1346B



14 Climate Smart Strategy | December 9, 2014

W
as

h.
Or

e.

S E
S t

a r
k

St

P
o

rt
la

n
d

G
a

te
w

a
y

H
ill

sb
o

ro

G
re

sh
a

m

B
ea

ve
rt

o
n

W
a

sh
in

g
to

n
S

q
u

a
re

C
la

ck
a

m
a

s

O
re

g
o

n
C

it
y

S
t.

Jo
h

n
s

B
e

th
a

n
y

O
re

n
co

Tr
o

u
td

a
le

H
o

ll
y

w
o

o
d

C
e

d
a

r
M

il
l

F
o

re
st

G
ro

ve
S

u
n

se
t

R
o

ck
w

o
o

d

A
lo

h
a

R
a

le
ig

h
H

il
ls

H
il

ls
d

a
le

Le
n

ts

P
le

a
sa

n
t

V
a

ll
ey

W
e

st
P

o
rt

la
n

d

M
il

w
a

u
ki

e
M

u
rr

a
y

S
ch

o
ll

s

La
ke

O
sw

e
g

o
La

ke
G

ro
ve

D
a

m
a

sc
u

s
K

in
g

C
it

y

Tu
a

la
ti

n

G
la

d
st

o
n

e

W
il

so
n

vi
ll

e

T
ig

a
rd

H
a

p
p

y
V

a
ll

ey

Ta
n

a
sb

o
u

rn
e/

A
m

b
e

rG
le

n
C

o
rn

e
li

u
s

F
a

ir
vi

ew
W

o
o

d
V

ill
a

g
e

S
h

er
w

o
o

d

V
a

n
co

u
ve

r

O
rc

h
a

rd
s

M
il

l
P

la
in

C
a

m
a

s

W
a

sh
o

u
g

a
l

S
a

lm
o

n
C

re
e

k

Ba
tt

le
Gr

ou
nd

SWHallBlvd

N
E

Sa
nd

y
Bl

vd

SW
El

lig
se

n
R

d

N
E

K
ill

in
g

sw
o

rt
h

St

N
E 

W
ei

dl
er

 S
t

NW 185th Ave

N
Lo

m
ba

rd
St

NE 82nd Ave

N
E

M
ar

in
e

D
r

NE 122nd Ave

SW T er w illi
ger Blvd

N
W

 L
ov

ej
oy

 S
t

SE
 P

ow
el

l 
Bl

vd

S E
S t

ar
k

S t

N
W

C
or

nel
l

R
d

SE
Fo

st
er

Rd

N
M

ar
in

e
D

r

SW
 N

yb
er

g 
St

SW
W

ils
o

n
v i

l le
R

d

NDenverAve

E
B

u
r n

si
d

e
St

N Portla
nd Rd

SE
 D

iv
is

io
n 

St

S E
Su

n
n

ys
i d

e
Rd

N
C o lu

m
b ia

Blvd

SW
Staffo

rd
Rd

S
W

Bar
nesR

d

SE M cLough lin
Blvd

W
B

u
rn

si
d

e
St

S
W

C
an

yo
n

Rd

Front St

SW
Fa

rm
in

g
to

n
R

d

SW
Fa

rm
in

g
to

n
R

d

N
W

M
ar

in
e

D
r

SE82ndAve

SE
Ta

co
m

a
St

N
W

 6
th

 A
ve

S Sprin

g
w

at
er

Rd

S

Springwater Rd

19
th

 A
ve

P
io

n
ee

r
B

lv
d

N
E 

Ar
nd

t R
d

SW
 C

la
y 

St

NE 242nd Dr

S
W

Tu
al

at
in

Sh
er

w
ood

R
d

K
ru

se
W

ay

Quince St

S
Be

av
erc

re
ek

Rd

SE
O rie

nt

D
r

7t
h S

t

Sunset Dr

E
Po

w
e l

l B
lvd

Boones

FerryRd

SW
D

u
rh

am
Rd

E 
Bu

rn
sid

e 
St

SE
 O

ak
 S

t

N 1st Ave

SE
1s

tAve

C
o

un
t r

y
C

lu
b

R
d

N
W

A
m

be
r w

o

od
Dr

SE Fo ster Rd

SW
S p rin

g H ill Rd

G
al

es
C

re
ek

Rd

SBarlowRdSBarlowRd

SW 185th Ave

S
M

cL
o

ughlin
Blvd

N
A

d
ai

r
St

SW
SchollsFerryRd

N
W

Ye
on

A
ve

SE Hogan Rd SE 242nd Ave

W
ill

am
et

te
Fa

lls
Dr

SW
Bal

d
Pe

ak
Rd

S
Un

io
n

Mills
Rd

N
E

C
o

rn
el

lR
d

SE

Blu ff
Rd

SW
D

ix

on

M
il

l
Rd

S
R ed

la
n d

R
d

S
Clackam

as
R

iv
er

D
r

N W
Gale s C re

ek Rd

SW M acA dam Ave

W
ill

am
et

te

D r

NWGlencoeRd

SE Grand Ave

SW
Bar

burBlv
d

B St
S Main St

SW River side D r

SE 122nd Ave

SW Murray Blvd

N Holly St

N Molalla Ave

E St

SE Kane Dr

SE 182nd Ave

Molalla Ave

S
H

en
r i

c i

Rd

SE

Rive
r

R
d

Spring Hill Rd

SW 257th Ave

BluffRd

FrenchPrairie
Rd

SWRiverRd

SW
U

n
g

er
R

d

N
E

A
ir

p
or

t
W

ay

A
ur

or
a

B
an

ks

B
ar

lo
w

C
an

by

C
ar

lt
on

D
ay

to
n

D
on

al
d

Es
ta

ca
da

G
as

to
n

Hu
bb

ar
d

La
fa

ye
tt

e

M
cM

in
nv

ill
e

M
ol

al
la

N
ew

be
rg

N
or

th
Pl

ai
ns

Sa
nd

y

St
. P

au
l

W
oo

db
ur

n

Ya
m

hi
ll

D
un

de
e

W
e

st
 L

in
n

W
il

la
m

et
te

2
0

4
0

 G
ro

w
th

 C
on

ce
pt

 M
ap

Ja
nu

ar
y 

20
14

0
2

4m
ile

s

T
h

e
 M

e
tr

o
 2

0
4

0
 G

ro
w

th
 C

o
n

ce
p

t 
d

e
fin

e
s 

th
e

fo
rm

 o
f 

re
g

io
n

a
l g

ro
w

th
 a

n
d

 d
e

ve
lo

p
m

e
n

t 
fo

r
th

e
 P

o
rt

la
n

d
 m

e
tr

o
p

o
lit

a
n

 r
e

g
io

n
. T

h
e

 G
ro

w
th

C
o

n
ce

p
t 

w
a

s 
a

d
o

p
te

d
 in

 D
e

ce
m

b
e

r 
19

9
5

th
ro

u
g

h
 t

h
e

 R
e

g
io

n
 2

0
4

0
 p

la
n

n
in

g
 a

n
d

 p
u

b
lic

in
vo

lv
e

m
e

n
t 

p
ro

ce
ss

. T
h

is
 c

o
n

ce
p

t 
is

 in
te

n
d

e
d

to
 p

ro
vi

d
e

 lo
n

g
-t

e
rm

 g
ro

w
th

 m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

o
f

th
e

 r
e

g
io

n
.

T
h

e
 m

a
p

 h
ig

h
lig

h
ts

 e
le

m
e

n
ts

 o
f p

a
ra

ll
e

l
p

la
n

n
in

g
 e

ff
o

rt
s 

in
cl

u
d

in
g

: t
h

e
 2

0
3

5
 R

e
g

io
n

a
l

Tr
a

n
sp

o
rt

a
tio

n
 P

la
n

 t
h

a
t 

o
u

tl
in

e
s 

in
ve

st
m

e
n

ts
 in

m
u

lt
ip

le
 m

o
d

e
s 

o
f t

ra
n

sp
o

rt
a

tio
n

, a
n

d
 a

co
m

m
itm

e
n

t 
to

 lo
ca

l p
o

lic
ie

s 
a

n
d

 in
ve

st
m

e
n

ts
th

a
t 

w
ill

 h
e

lp
 t

h
e

 r
e

g
io

n
 b

e
tt

e
r 

a
cc

o
m

m
o

d
a

te
g

ro
w

th
 w

ith
in

 it
s 

ce
n

te
rs

, c
o

rr
id

o
rs

 a
n

d
e

m
p

lo
y

m
e

n
t 

a
re

a
s.

Sa
nd

y R
.

Co
lu

m
bi

a
Ri

ve
r

W
illa

met
te

R.

Tualatin
R.

Ha
gg

La
ke

St
ur

ge
on

La
ke

Va
nc

ou
ve

r
La

ke

Cl
ac

ka
m

as
R.

Th
e 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

on
 t

hi
s 

m
ap

 w
as

 d
er

iv
ed

 fr
om

 d
ig

ita
l d

at
ab

as
es

 o
n 

M
et

ro
's

 G
IS

.  
C

ar
e 

w
as

 ta
ke

n 
in

 t
he

 c
re

at
io

n 
of

 t
hi

s 
m

ap
.  

M
et

ro
 c

an
no

t 
ac

ce
pt

 a
ny

re
sp

on
si

bi
lit

y 
fo

r 
er

ro
rs

, o
m

is
si

on
s,

 o
r 

po
si

tio
na

l a
cc

ur
ac

y.
  

Th
er

e 
ar

e 
no

 w
ar

ra
nt

ie
s,

 e
xp

re
ss

ed
 o

r 
im

pl
ie

d,
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

th
e 

w
ar

ra
nt

y 
of

 m
er

ch
an

ta
bi

lit
y 

or
fit

ne
ss

 fo
r 

a 
pa

rt
ic

ul
ar

 p
ur

po
se

, a
cc

om
pa

ny
in

g 
th

is
 p

ro
du

ct
.  

H
ow

ev
er

, n
ot

ifi
ca

tio
n 

of
 a

ny
 e

rr
or

s 
ar

e 
ap

pr
ec

ia
te

d.

W
ill

am
et

te
R.

M
ak

in
g

 a
 g

re
at

 p
la

ce

Em
pl

oy
m

en
t l

an
d

Pa
rk

s 
an

d 
na

tu
ra

l a
re

as

N
ei

gh
bo

rh
oo

d

U
rb

an
 g

ro
w

th
 b

ou
nd

ar
ie

s

R
ur

al
 r

es
er

ve

U
rb

an
 r

es
er

ve

N
ei

gh
bo

rin
g 

ci
tie

s

In
te

rc
ity

 r
ai

l t
er

m
in

al

A
irp

or
ts

Ex
is

tin
g 

hi
gh

 c
ap

ac
ity

 tr
an

si
t

Pl
an

ne
d 

hi
gh

 c
ap

ac
ity

 tr
an

si
t

Pr
op

os
ed

 h
ig

h 
ca

pa
ci

ty
 tr

an
si

t t
ie

r 
1

C
ou

nt
y 

bo
un

da
rie

s

M
ai

nl
in

e 
fr

ei
gh

t

H
ig

h 
sp

ee
d 

ra
il

Fo
r 

m
o

re
 in

fo
rm

a
tio

n
 o

n
 th

e
se

 in
iti

a
tiv

e
s,

 v
is

it
ht

tp
://

w
w

w
.o

re
g

o
nm

e
tr

o
.g

o
v/

2
0

4
0

M
ai

n 
st

re
et

s

C
or

rid
or

s

C
en

tr
al

 c
ity

Re
gi

on
al

 c
en

te
r

To
w

n 
ce

nt
er

St
at

io
n 

co
m

m
un

iti
es

Washington Co.
Multnomah Co.

C
ol

um
bi

a 
C

o.

M
ul

tn
om

ah
C

o.
C

la
rk

C
o.

Sk
am

an
ia

C
o.

M
ul

tn
om

ah
 C

o.
C

la
ck

am
as

 C
o.

C
la

ck
am

as
 C

o.
M

ar
io

n 
C

o.

W
as

hi
ng

to
n 

C
o.

Clackamas Co.

Yamhill Co.

W
as

hi
ng

to
n 

C
o.

Ya
m

hi
ll 

C
o.

OUR SHARED VISION: THE 2040 GROWTH CONCEPT
An integrated land use and transportation vision for building healthy, equitable communities and a strong 
economy while reducing greenhouse gas emissions. 

Exhibit A to Ordinance No. 14-1346B



15Climate Smart Strategy | December 9, 2014

There are four key ways to make transit service convenient, frequent, accessible 
and affordable. The effectiveness of each will vary depending on the mix of 
nearby land uses, the number of people living and working in the area, and the 
extent to which travel information, marketing and technology are used.  

Frequency  Increasing the frequency of transit service in combination with 
transit signal priority and bus lanes makes transit faster and more convenient.

System expansion  Providing new community and regional transit 
connections improves access to jobs and community services and makes it 
easier to complete some trips without multiple transfers. This includes local 
services like GroveLink, a partnership between the City of Forest Grove, Ride 
Connection and TriMet to improve neighborhood access to regional transit 
service  and jobs and other destinations in the community.

Transit access  Building safe and direct biking and walking routes and 
crossings that connect to stops makes transit more accessible and convenient. 

Fares   Providing reduced fares makes transit more affordable; effectiveness 
depends on the design of the fare system and the cost.

Transit is provided in the region by TriMet and South Metro Area Rapid Transit 
(SMART) in partnership with Metro, cities, counties, employers, business 
associations and non-profit organizations.

Make transit convenient, 
frequent, accessible and affordable 

BENEFITS
•  improves access to jobs, the workforce, 

and goods and services, boosting 
business revenues

•  creates jobs and saves consumers and 
employers money

•  stimulates development, generating 
local and state revenue

•  provides drivers an alternative to 
congested roadways and supports 
freight movements by taking cars off 
the road

•  increases physical activity
•  reduces air pollution and air toxics 
•  reduces risk of traffic fatalities and 

injuries

CHALLENGES
•  transit demand outpacing funding
•  enhancing existing service while 

expanding coverage and frequency to 
growing areas

•  reduced revenue and federal funding, 
leading to increased fares and service 
cuts

•  preserving affordable housing 
options near transit

•  ensuring safe and comfortable access 
to transit for pedestrians, cyclists and 
drivers

•  transit-dependent populations 
locating in parts of the region that are 
harder to serve with transit

RELATIVE CLIMATE BENEFIT  

«««««  

ESTIMATED COST  
TO IMPLEMENT BY 2035 
(2014$)

Capital $4.4 billion

Operations $8 billion

Exhibit A to Ordinance No. 14-1346B



16 Climate Smart Strategy | December 9, 2014

Beaverton

HillsboroCornelius
Forest
Grove

Gateway

Oregon
City

26

NE Sandy Blvd

W Burnside St

NE Columbia Blvd

N
W

 1
8

5t
h 

A
ve

N Lombard St

N
E 

8
2n

d
 A

ve

N
Columbia Blvd

SW Canyon Rd

N
Marine

Dr

SE Stark St
E Burnside St

N
Intersta

te
A

ve

SSp
r ing water Rd

S Springw
ater

Rd

SW

S ta

ffo
rd

Rd

7th St

SE Powell Blvd

S Redland
Rd

NW 6th Ave

NE Marine Dr

SE
O

r ient Dr

W Powell Blvd

SE Bluff Rd

SE
 2

42
nd

 A
ve

NE Airport Way

SE
 1

2
2n

d 
A

ve

N

W
C

or
ne

liu
sP

as
s

Rd

SW
 M

ur
ra

y 
B

lv
d

Portland

Washington
Square

Gresham

Clackamas

St.
Johns

Bethany

Orenco

TroutdaleHollywood
Cedar
Mill

Sunset
Transit

Aloha

Raleigh
Hills

Hillsdale Lents

West
Portland

Milwaukie
Murray/Scholls

Lake
Grove DamascusKing

City

Gladstone

Wilsonville

Fairview

Tualatin

West
Linn

West
Linn

Sherwood

Tigard
Happy
Valley

Wood
Village

Pleasant
Valley

Rockwood

Lake
Oswego

0 2 4
Miles

Frequency (minutes)

UGB

County line

Employment

Urban center

Over 45

16 -  25

26 -  45

5 -  10

11 -  15

Date: 7/9/2014 -  MRH

STRATEGY

STRATEGY

TRANSIT SERVICE

Daytime and evening
(9 am-4 pm, 6 pm-close)

Beaverton

HillsboroCornelius
Forest
Grove

Gateway

Oregon
City

26

NE Sandy Blvd

W Burnside St

NE Columbia Blvd

N
W

 1
8

5t
h 

A
ve

N Lombard St

N
E 

8
2n

d
 A

ve

N
Columbia Blvd

SW Canyon Rd

N
Marine

Dr

SE Stark St
E Burnside St

N
Intersta

te
A

ve

SSp
r ing water Rd

S Springw
ater

Rd

SW

S ta

ffo
rd

Rd

7th St

SE Powell Blvd

S Redland
Rd

NW 6th Ave

NE Marine Dr
SE

O
r ient Dr

W Powell Blvd

SE Bluff Rd

SE
 2

42
nd

 A
ve

NE Airport Way

SE
 1

2
2n

d 
A

ve

N

W
C

or
ne

liu
sP

as
s

Rd

SW
 M

ur
ra

y 
B

lv
d

Portland

Washington
Square

Gresham

Clackamas

St.
Johns

Bethany

Orenco

TroutdaleHollywood
Cedar
Mill

Sunset
Transit

Aloha

Raleigh
Hills

Hillsdale Lents

West
Portland

Milwaukie
Murray/Scholls

Lake
Grove DamascusKing

City

Gladstone

Wilsonville

Fairview

Tualatin

West
Linn

West
Linn

Sherwood

Tigard
Happy
Valley

Wood
Village

Pleasant
Valley

Rockwood

Lake
Oswego

0 2 4
Miles

Frequency (minutes)

UGB

County line

Employment

Urban center

Over 45

16 -  25

26 -  45

5 -  10

11 -  15

Date: 7/9/2014 -  MRH

STRATEGY

TRANSIT SERVICE

Rush hour
(7-9 am, 4-6 pm)

CLIMATE SMART
STRATEGY

55% jobs
49% households
62% low-income 
households 
Estimated jobs and 
households within 
¼-mile of 15-minute 
or better service by 
2035

52% jobs
37% households
49% low-income 
households 
Estimated jobs 
and households 
within ¼-mile 
of 15-minute or 
better service by 
2035

Note: The 
maps and cost 
estimates reflect 
the transit service 
operations and 
frequencies 
adopted in the 
full 2014 RTP and 
transit capital 
investments 
adopted in the 
constrained RTP 
plus additional 
capital to support 
operations level.

Exhibit A to Ordinance No. 14-1346B



17Climate Smart Strategy | December 9, 2014

Active transportation is human-powered travel that engages people in 
healthy physical activity while they go from place to place. Examples include 
walking, biking, pushing strollers, using wheelchairs or other mobility 
devices, skateboarding, and rollerblading. Active transportation is an essential 
component of public transportation because most of these trips begin and end 
with walking or biking. 

Today, about 50 percent of the regional active transportation network is 
complete. Nearly 18 percent of all trips in the region are made by walking and 
biking, a higher share than many other places. Approximately 45 percent of all 
trips made by car in the region are less than three miles and 15 percent are less 
than one mile. With a complete active transportation network supported by 
education and incentives, many of the short trips made by car could be replaced 
by walking and biking. (See separate summary on providing information and 
incentives to expand use of travel options.)

For active travel, transitioning between modes is easy when sidewalks and 
bicycle routes are connected and complete, wayfinding is coordinated, and 
transit stops are connected by sidewalks and have shelters and places to sit. 
Biking to work and other places is supported when bicycles are accommodated 
on transit vehicles, safe and secure bicycle parking is available at transit 
shelters and community destinations, and adequate room is provided for 
walkers and bicyclists on shared pathways. Regional trails and transit function 
better when they are integrated with on-street walking and biking routes.

Make biking and walking safe and 
convenient 

BENEFITS
•  increases access to jobs and services
•  provides low-cost travel options
•  supports economic development, 

local businesses and tourism
•  increases physical activity and 

reduces health care costs
•  reduces air pollution and air toxics 
•  reduces risk of traffic fatalities and 

injuries

CHALLENGES
•  major gaps exist in walking and 

biking routes across the region
•  gaps in the active transportation 

network affect safety, convenience 
and access to transit

•  many would like to walk or bike but 
feel unsafe

•  many lack access to walking and 
biking routes

•  dedicated funding is limited and in 
decline

RELATIVE CLIMATE BENEFIT  

«««««  

ESTIMATED COST  
TO IMPLEMENT BY 2035 
(2014$)

$2 billion

Exhibit A to Ordinance No. 14-1346B



18 Climate Smart Strategy | December 9, 2014

663
Miles of bikeways, 
sidewalks and trails 
added by 2035

61
Estimated lives 
saved annually from 
increased physical 
activity by 2035

$500 million
Societal value of the 
lives saved each 
year by 2035 (from 
increased physical 
activity)

Beaverton

HillsboroCornelius
Forest
Grove

Gateway

Oregon
City

26

NE Sandy Blvd

W Burnside St

NE Columbia Blvd

N
W

 1
8

5t
h 

A
ve

N Lombard St

N
E 

8
2n

d
 A

ve

N
Columbia Blvd

SW Canyon Rd

N
Marine Dr

SE Stark St
E Burnside St

N
Intersta

te
A

ve

SS
p

r ing water Rd

S Springw
ater

Rd

SW

S ta

ffo
rd

Rd

7th St

SE Powell Blvd

S Redland
Rd

NW 6th Ave

NE Marine Dr

SE
O

r ient Dr

W Powell Blvd

SE Bluff Rd

SE
 2

42
nd

 A
ve

NE Airport Way

SE
 1

2
2n

d 
A

ve

N

W
C

or
ne

liu
sP

as
s

Rd

SW
 M

ur
ra

y 
B

lv
d

Portland

Washington
Square

Gresham

Clackamas

St.
Johns

Bethany

Orenco

TroutdaleHollywood
Cedar
Mill

Sunset
Transit

Aloha

Raleigh
Hills

Hillsdale Lents

West
Portland

Milwaukie
Murray/Scholls

Lake
Grove DamascusKing

City

Gladstone

Wilsonville

Fairview

Tualatin

West
Linn

West
Linn

Sherwood

Tigard
Happy
Valley

Wood
Village

Pleasant
Valley

Rockwood

Lake
Oswego

 

0 2 4
Miles

 

Date: 7/17/2014 -  mrh

Bikeways, 
sidewalks,
 &  trails

Planned ATP
network

UGB

County line

Employment

Urban center

STRATEGY

ACTIVE
TRANSPORTATION

CLIMATE SMART
STRATEGY

Note: The map and estimated cost reflect the active transportation investments adopted in the 
constrained 2014 Regional Transportation Plan. 

Exhibit A to Ordinance No. 14-1346B



19Climate Smart Strategy | December 9, 2014

Today, nearly 45 percent of all trips in the region made by car are less than three 
miles, and 15 percent are less than one mile. When road networks lack multiple 
routes serving the same destinations, short trips must use major travel corridors 
designed for freight and regional traffic, adding to congestion.

There are three key ways to make streets and highways more safe, reliable and 
connected to serve longer trips across the region on highways, shorter trips on 
arterial streets, and the shortest trips on local streets. 

Maintenance and efficient operation of the existing road system  Keeping 
the road system in good repair and using information and technology to manage 
travel demand and traffic flow help improve safety, and boost efficiency of the 
existing system. With limited funding, more effort is being made to maximize 
system operations prior to building new capacity in the region. (See separate 
summaries describing the use of technology and information.) 

Street connectivity  Building a well connected network of complete streets 
including new local and major street connections shortens trips, improves 
access to community and regional destinations, and helps preserve the capacity 
and function of highways in the region for freight and longer trips. These 
connections include designs that support walking and biking, and, in some 
areas, provide critical freight access between industrial areas, intermodal 
facilities and the interstate highway system. 

Network expansion  Targeted widening of streets and highways along with 
other strategies helps manage congestion and connect goods to market and 
support travel across the region.

Make streets and highways safe, 
reliable and connected

BENEFITS
•  improves access to jobs, goods and 

services, boosting business revenue
•  creates jobs and stimulates 

development, boosting the economy
•  reduces delay, saving businesses 

time and money
•  reduces risk of traffic fatalities and 

injuries
•  reduces emergency response time

CHALLENGES
•  declining purchasing power of 

existing funding sources, growing 
maintenance backlog, and rising 
construction costs

•  may induce more traffic
•  potential community impacts, such 

as displacement and noise
•  concentration of air pollutants and 

air toxics in major travel corridors

RELATIVE CLIMATE BENEFIT  

«««««  

ESTIMATED COST  
TO IMPLEMENT BY 2035 
(2014$)

Capital $8.8 billion

Operations, maintenance, 
and preservation (OMP)
$12 billion

Exhibit A to Ordinance No. 14-1346B



20 Climate Smart Strategy | December 9, 2014

 

52
Lane miles of 
freeways added by 
2035 to support 
people and goods 
movement

386
Lane miles of arterials  
added by 2035, 
nearly two-thirds 
of which include 
bike and pedestrian 
improvements

Beaverton

HillsboroCornelius
Forest
Grove

Gateway

Oregon
City

26

Portland

Washington
Square

Gresham

Clackamas

St.
Johns

Bethany

Orenco

TroutdaleHollywood
Cedar
Mill

Sunset
Transit

Aloha

Raleigh
Hills

Hillsdale Lents

West
Portland

Milwaukie

Murray/Scholls

Lake
Grove DamascusKing

City

Gladstone

Wilsonville

Fairview

Tualatin

West
Linn

West
Linn

Sherwood

Tigard
Happy
Valley

Wood
Village

Pleasant
Valley

Rockwood

Lake
Oswego

 

0 2 4
Miles

Date: 7/10/2014 -  mrh

UGB

County line

Employment

Urban center Reconstruction

New Connection

Widening

STRATEGY

STREETS and
HIGHWAYS

CLIMATE SMART
STRATEGY

Note: The map reflects capital investments adopted in the constrained 2014 Regional 
Transportation Plan for streets, highways and bridges in the region. The estimated costs 
includes capital costs adopted in the constrained 2014 RTP and preliminary estimates for local 
and state road-related operations, maintnance and preservation needs in the region.

Exhibit A to Ordinance No. 14-1346B



21Climate Smart Strategy | December 9, 2014

Using technology to actively manage the Portland metropolitan region’s trans-
portation system means using intelligent transportation systems (ITS) and 
services to reduce vehicle idling associated with delay, making walking and 
biking more safe and convenient, and helping improve the speed and reliability 
of transit. Nearly half of all congestion is caused by incidents and other factors 
that can be addressed using these strategies.  

Local, regional and state agencies work together to implement transportation  
system technologies. Agreements between agencies guide sharing of data and 
technology, operating procedures for managing traffic, and the ongoing mainte-
nance and enhancement of technology, data collection and monitoring systems.

Arterial corridor management includes advanced technology at each inter-
section to actively manage traffic flow. This may include coordinated or adap-
tive signal timing; advanced signal operations such as cameras, flashing yellow 
arrows, bike signals and pedestrian count down signs; and communication to a 
local traffic operations center and the centralized traffic signal system.

Freeway corridor management includes advanced technology to manage 
access to the freeways, detect traffic levels and weather conditions, provide 
information with variable message signs and variable speed limit signs, and 
deploying incident response patrols that quickly clear breakdowns, crashes and 
debris. These tools connect to a regional traffic operations center.

Traveler information includes using variable message and speed signs and 511 
internet and phone services to provide travelers with up-to-date information 
regarding traffic and weather conditions, incidents, travel times, alternate 
routes, construction, or special events. 

Use technology to actively manage 
the transportation system

BENEFITS
•  provides near-term benefits
•  reduces congestion and delay
•  makes traveler experience more 

reliable
•  saves public agencies, consumers 

and businesses time and money
•  reduces air pollution and air toxics 
•  reduces risk of traffic fatalities and 

injuries

CHALLENGES
•  requires ongoing funding to 

maintain operations and monitoring 
systems

•  requires significant cross-
jurisdictional coordination 

•  workforce training gaps

RELATIVE CLIMATE BENEFIT  

«««««  

ESTIMATED COST  
TO IMPLEMENT BY 2035 
(2014$)

$206 million

Exhibit A to Ordinance No. 14-1346B



22 Climate Smart Strategy | December 9, 2014

35% on arterials 
and freeways 
Estimated delay 
reduction by 2035

SE Powell Blvd

N Columbia Blvd30

NE Arndt Rd

Canby

North  
Plains

Banks

Boring

Estacada

Carver

Carus

Redland

Camas

Washougal

West
Linn

MU LT N OM AH C O.
C L A C K A M A S C O .

WA SH I N G T ON CO.
Y A M H I L L C O .

CL A CK A MA S CO .

MU LT N O MA H CO.

CL AC K A MA S CO.
Y A M H I L L C O .

V a n c o u v e r  
L a k e

C o l u m b i a
R i v e r

W
i

l l
a

m
e

t t e

R
i v e r

O s w e g o L a k e

M

u

l
t

n o m
a

h
C

h
a

n
n

e

l

Newberg

Gaston

St 
Johns

Cornelius

SE Tualatin Valley Hwy

Sunset
Rockwood

Aloha

Raleigh
Hills

Hillsdale
Lents Pleasant

Valley

West
Portland Milwaukie

Happy 
Valley

Murray/Scholls

Cedar
Mill

Lake
OswegoLake Grove

Damascus
King City

Tualatin Gladstone

Willamette

Wilsonville

Bethany

Tanasbourne
Orenco

Troutdale
Hollywood

Tigard

Forest
Grove

Fairview   Wood 
Village

Sherwood

Gresham

Vancouver

Gateway

Hillsboro

Beaverton

Washington
Square

Clackamas

Oregon
City

Portland

30

W
illam

ette Dr

N
E

1 8
1s

t
Av

e

NE M arine Dr

N
E

1 2
2 n

d
A

ve

SW
W

ils
onville

Rd

N
D

en
v e

r
Av

e

SW Elligsen R d

SE Su nnys id e R d

N Columbia Blvd

SW
St

af
fo

rd
Rd

N
W

18
5t

h
A

v e

S
M

a i
n

S t

SE
M

clough lin
Blvd

SW
B orland

R d

Kru se W a y

7th
St

SW Canyon Rd

N W W ilso n R iver Hw y

S
B

ar
lo

w
R

d

N W M arine Dr

N
In

te
rs

ta
t e

A
ve

Sunset H w y

Sta
ffo

rd
Rd

E
S t

B
S t

E B aseline Rd

SW
H

al
lB

lv
d

N
Bu

rg
a r

d
Rd

NE D ivision St

Sp ring
H

ill R d

Beavercreek
Rd

SE
Ka ne

D
r

SE Tacom a St

Pacific Ave

SE
1 8

2n
d

Av
e

S W
25

7t
h

A
ve

S
Ivy

St
SW G aston Rd

Gales Creek Rd

Co un try C lu b R d

N W Burnside Rd
SW Sunset Hw y

M
ol alla

Ave

Tu a lat in Va lle
y Hw

y

SE
12

2n
d

A
ve

S M clou gh lin
Blvd

NE Portland H w y

SW
Co

r n
el

i u
s

Pa
ss

Rd

SE H aw thorne Blvd

N A dair St

N
Portl

and
Rd

SE
24

2n
d

Av
e

S E
82

n d
A

ve

SW
18

5 t
h

A v
e

SE
22

2n
d

D
r

NW Yeon Ave

SW
Boones

Ferry
Rd

SW Tu alatin Va lley Hw y

W Bu rn sid e R d

N E Lom bard St

E B urnside St

SW
Spring

H
il lRd

SW
R

i v
er

si
de

D
r

SE
O

r ie n t D r

N E Co rn e ll Rd

SW Tualatin Sherw ood Rd

N
or

th
Va

lle
y

Rd

SE Powell Blvd

NE
M

L K
Jr

.
Bl

v d

SE D iv ision St

SW Unger Rd

N E Sa ndy Blvd

SW Laure lwood Rd

SW
M

ur
r a

y
B

lv
d

SE Stark St

N
M

arine D r

NE Airport W ay

N Lombard St

SW
River

Rd

SW B ald Peak Rd
N

W
G

le
n c

oe
Rd

SW
Fa

rm
ington Rd

S H enric i R d

SW
D ix

on
M

i ll
R

d

S Red land Rd

N
W

N
eh

al
em

H
w

y

SW
H

ill
sb

or
o

H
w

y

SW Scholls Ferry R d

S C lacka m as Rive r D r

S
B

ea
v erc re e k R d

N W Co rn ell Rd

N
W

C o
rn

e l
iu

s
Pa

ss
R

d

NW

St H elens
Rd

SW
Pa

cif
ic

Hwy

SE Foster R d

S Springwate r Rd

0 5.5Miles

 

Freeway management

Arterial management

Variable speed limit

Transit signal priority

Urban centers

Employment 

Industry

Urban Growth
Boundary

County boundary

Variable message sign

Ramp meter

Date: 7/17/2014 -  mrh

STRATEGY

TRANSPORTATION 
SYSTEM
MANAGEMENT 
AND OPERATIONS

CLIMATE SMART
STRATEGY

Note: The map and estimated cost reflect the full 2014 Regional Transportation Plan 
transportation system management and operations investments  plus additional investments to 
support expanding incident response and transit signal priority across the region.

Exhibit A to Ordinance No. 14-1346B



23Climate Smart Strategy | December 9, 2014

Public awareness, education and travel options support tools are cost-effective 
ways to improve the efficiency of the existing transportation system through 
increased use of travel options such as walking, biking, carsharing, carpooling 
and taking transit. Local, regional and state agencies work together with 
businesses and non-profit organizations to implement programs in coordination 
with other capital investments. Metro coordinates partners’ efforts, sets strategic 
direction, evaluates outcomes, and manages grant funding.

Public awareness strategies include promoting information about travel 
choices and teaching the public about eco-driving: maintaining vehicles to 
operate more efficiently and practicing driving habits that can help save time 
and money while reducing greenhouse emissions. 

Commuter programs are employer-based outreach efforts that include (1) 
financial incentives, such as transit pass programs and offering cash instead 
of parking subsidies; (2) facilities and services, such as carpooling programs, 
bicycle parking, emergency rides home, and work-place competitions; and (3) 
flexible scheduling such as working from home or compressed work weeks. 

Individualized Marketing (IM) is an outreach method that encourages 
individuals, families or employees interested in making changes in their 
travel choices to participate in a program. A combination of information and 
incentives is tailored to each person’s or family’s specific travel needs. IM can be 
part of a comprehensive commuter program. 

Travel options support tools reduce barriers to travel options and support 
continued use with tools such as the Drive Less. Connect. online carpool 
matching; trip planning tools; wayfinding signage; bike racks; and carsharing.

Provide information and incentives 
to expand the use of travel options

BENEFITS
•  increases cost-effectiveness 

of capital investments in 
transportation

•  saves public agencies, consumers 
and businesses time and money

•  preserves road capacity 
•  reduces congestion and delay
•  increases physical activity and 

reduces  health care costs
•  reduces air pollution and air toxics 

CHALLENGES
•  program partners need ongoing tools 

and resources to increase outcomes
•  factors such as families with 

children, long transit times, night 
and weekend work shifts not served 
by transit

•  major gaps exist in walking and 
biking routes across the region

• consistent data collection to support 
performance measurement

RELATIVE CLIMATE BENEFIT  

«««««  

ESTIMATED COST  
TO IMPLEMENT BY 2035 
(2014$)

$185 million

Exhibit A to Ordinance No. 14-1346B



24 Climate Smart Strategy | December 9, 2014

Effectiveness of employer commuter programs (1997-2013) 

 
 
Over the last sixteen years, employee commute trips that used non-drive alone modes 
(transit, bicycling, walking, carpooling/vanpooling, and telecommuting) rose from 20 
percent to over 39 percent among participating employers.  
 
 

0% 

5% 

10% 

15% 

20% 

25% 

30% 

35% 

40% 

45% 

19
97

 

19
98

 

19
99

 

20
00

 

20
01

 

20
02

 

20
03

 

20
04

 

20
05

 

20
06

 

20
07

 

20
08

 

20
09

 

20
10

 

20
11

 

20
12

 

20
13

 

Carpool Transit Bike/Walk 

Telecommute Compressed Workweek Non-SOV Total 

EFFECTIVENESS OF 
EMPLOYER COMMUTER 
PROGRAMS 
(1997 – 2013)
The TriMet, Wilsonville SMART 
and TMA employer outreach 
programs have made significant 
progress with reducing drive-
alone trips. Since 1996, employee 
commute trips that used non- 
drive-alone modes (transit, 
bicycling, walking, carpooling/
vanpooling and telecommuting) 
rose from 20% to over 39% 
among participating employers.

EFFECTIVENESS OF COMMUNITY AND NEIGHBORHOOD 
PROGRAMS
Community outreach programs such as Portland Sunday Parkways and 
Wilsonville Sunday Streets encourage residents to use travel options by exploring 
their neighborhoods on foot and bike without motorized traffic. Sunday Parkways 
events have attracted 400,000 attendees since 2008 and the Wilsonville Sunday 
Streets event attracted more than 5,000 participants in 2012.

Other examples of valuable community outreach and educational programs 
include the Community Cycling Center’s program to reduce barriers to biking 
and Metro’s Vámonos program, both of which provide communities across the 
region with the skills and resources to become more active by walking, biking, 
and using transit for their transportation needs.

In 2004, the City of Portland launched the Interstate TravelSmart 
individualized marketing project in conjunction with the opening of the MAX 
Yellow Line. Households that received individualized marketing made nearly 
twice as many transit trips compared to a similar group of households that did 
not participate in the marketing campaign. In addition, transit use increased 
nearly 15 percent during the SmartTrips project along the MAX Green Line in 
2010. Follow-up surveys show that household travel behavior is sustained for at 
least two years after a project has been completed.

Exhibit A to Ordinance No. 14-1346B



25Climate Smart Strategy | December 9, 2014

Parking management refers to various policies and programs that result in more 
efficient use of parking resources. Parking management is implemented through 
city and county development codes. Managing parking works best when used in 
a complementary fashion with other strategies; it is less effective in areas where 
transit or bicycle and pedestrian infrastructure is lacking.

Planning approaches include conducting assessments of the parking supply to 
better understand needs. A typical urban parking space has an annualized cost of 
$600 to $1,200 to maintain, while structured parking construction costs averages 
$15,000 per space.

On-street parking approaches include spaces that are timed, metered, 
designated for certain uses or have no restriction. Examples of these different 
approaches include charging long-term or short-term fees, limiting the length of 
time a vehicle can park, and designating on-street spaces for preferential parking 
for electric vehicles, carshare vehicles, carpools, vanpools, bikes, public use 
(events or café “Street Seats”) and freight truck loading/unloading areas.

Off-street parking approaches include providing spaces in designated areas, 
unbundling parking, preferential parking (for vehicles listed above), shared 
parking between land uses (for example, movie theater and business center), 
park-and-ride lots for transit and carpools/vanpools, and parking garages in 
downtowns and other mixed-use areas that allow surface lots to be developed 
for other uses.

Make efficient use of vehicle parking 
and land dedicated to parking spaces

BENEFITS
•  allows more land to be available for 

development, generating local and 
state revenue

•  reduces costs to governments, 
businesses, developers and 
consumers

•  fosters public-private partnerships 
that can result in improved 
streetscape for retail and visitors

•  generates revenues where parking is 
priced

•  reduces air pollution and air toxics 

CHALLENGES
•  inadequate information for motorists 

on parking and availability
•  inefficient use of existing parking 

resources
•  parking spaces that are inconvenient 

to nearby residents and businesses
•  scarce freight loading and unloading 

areas
•  low parking turnover rate
•  lack of sufficient parking
•  parking oversupply, ongoing costs 

and the need to free up parking for 
customers

RELATIVE CLIMATE BENEFIT  

«««««  

ESTIMATED COST  
TO IMPLEMENT BY 2035 
(2014$)

No cost estimated. This 
policy area is primarily 
implemented through 
local development codes.

Exhibit A to Ordinance No. 14-1346B



26 Climate Smart Strategy | December 9, 2014

30% work trips
30% other trips 
Estimated share of 
trips to areas with 
actively managed 
parking

Note: The map 
reflects the 
constrained 
2014 Regional 
Transportation Plan 
parking assumptions

Beaverton

HillsboroCornelius
Forest
Grove

Gateway

Oregon
City

26

NE Sandy Blvd

W Burnside St

NE Columbia Blvd

N
W

 1
8

5t
h 

A
ve

N Lombard St

N
E 

8
2n

d
 A

ve

N
Columbia Blvd

SW Canyon Rd

N
Marine

Dr

SE Stark St
E Burnside St

N
Intersta

te
A

ve

SSp
r ing water Rd

S Springw
ater

Rd

SW

S ta

ffo
rd

Rd

7th St

SE Powell Blvd

S Redland
Rd

NW 6th Ave

NE Marine Dr

SE
O

r ient Dr

W Powell Blvd

SE Bluff Rd

SE
 2

42
nd

 A
ve

NE Airport Way

SE
 1

2
2n

d 
A

ve

N

W
C

or
ne

liu
sP

as
s

Rd

SW
 M

ur
ra

y 
B

lv
d

Portland

Washington
Square

Gresham

Clackamas

St.
Johns

Bethany

Orenco

TroutdaleHollywood
Cedar
Mill

Sunset
Transit

Aloha

Raleigh
Hills

Hillsdale Lents

West
Portland

Milwaukie
Murray/Scholls

Lake
Grove DamascusKing

City

Gladstone

Wilsonville

Fairview

Tualatin

West
Linn

West
Linn

Sherwood

Tigard
Happy
Valley

Wood
Village

Pleasant
Valley

Rockwood

Lake
Oswego

0 2 4
Miles

Level of parking management

UGB

County line

Employment

Urban centerMost

Least

Date: 7/9/2014 -  mrh

STRATEGY

MANAGING 
PARKING

CLIMATE SMART
STRATEGY

Exhibit A to Ordinance No. 14-1346B



27Climate Smart Strategy | December 9, 2014

There are a variety of strategies, vehicle technologies and fuels available to 
reduce greenhouse gas emissions including the development of higher fuel 
economy standards, lowering the carbon content of fuels, and deployment of 
electric vehicles and plug-in hybrids. The greenhouse gas emissions reduction 
potential of these strategies is directly related to the combination and pace at 
which these strategies are implemented over time, and the types, convenience 
and affordability of vehicle technologies and supporting infrastructure made 
available to businesses and consumers.

Much work is being done at state and federal levels to expand the number 
of vehicles available with higher fuel efficiency and lower emissions, and 
to reduce the carbon content of fuels. Oregon has made great strides in 
increasing the electric vehicle charging network; anxiety related to distances 
between charging stations is among the issues that need to be addressed. 

Pilot projects and other policies can be implemented at the local and regional 
levels to support these efforts. Policies include developing a reliable network 
of public and private electric vehicle charging stations and supportive 
infrastructure, providing consumer and businesses incentives to make the 
higher initial purchasing costs of hybrid and electric vehicles more affordable, 
government and corporate purchases to increase visibility, supportive 
permitting and codes for electric vehicle charging and alternative fueling 
stations, and public education. 

Support transition to cleaner, low   
carbon fuels and more fuel-efficient     
vehicles

RELATIVE CLIMATE BENEFIT  

«««««  

NO COST ESTIMATE     

AVAILABLE

BENEFITS
•  reduces fuel consumption
• reduces costs to governments, 

businesses and consumers
•  reduces air pollution and air toxics 

and associated healthcare costs
• creates economic development and 

job opportunities

CHALLENGES
• legislative actions needed at state 

and federal level
• permitting and development code 

changes may be needed to allow 
for provision of charging and 
alternative fueling infrastructure

• more alternative fuel vehicles 
results in reduced fuel consumption, 
which reduces revenue to finance 
transportation investments

• concern about the potential costs 
associated with low carbon and 
alternative fuels

Exhibit A to Ordinance No. 14-1346B



28 Climate Smart Strategy | December 9, 2014

Fleet mix (proportion of autos to light 
trucks)

Fleet turnover rate (age)

Fuel economy (miles per gallon)

Carbon intensity of fuels

Light-duty vehicles that are electric 
vehicles (EV) or plug-in hybrid electric 
vehicles (PHEV)

Electric vehicle battery range (miles)

Fl
ee

t
Te

ch
n

o
lo

g
y

auto: 57%
light truck: 43%

10 years

auto: 71%
light truck: 29%

8 years

auto: 68.5 mpg
light truck: 47.7 mpg

72 g CO2e/megajoule

EV or PHEV
auto: 8%

light truck: 2%

auto: 215 miles
light truck: 144 miles

Base Year

Reflects existing 
conditions

Climate Smart 
Strategy

20352010

Strategy assumptions

All fleet and technology assumptions reflect the values defined in the State Agencies‘ Tech-
nical report (3/1/11) available at arcweb.sos.state.or.us/pages/rules/oars_600/oar_660/_ta-
bles_660/660-044-0010_5-26.pdf. 

auto: 29.2 mpg
light truck: 20.9 mpg

90 g CO2e/megajoule

EV or PHEV
auto: 1%

light truck: 1%

auto: 50 miles
light truck: 25 miles

FLEET AND TECHNOLOGY ADVANCEMENTS ASSUMED 
IN THE CLIMATE SMART STRATEGY

Exhibit A to Ordinance No. 14-1346B



29Climate Smart Strategy | December 9, 2014

Secure adequate funding for          
transportation investments

BENEFITS
•  transforms community visions into 

reality
•  improves access to jobs, goods and 

services, boosting business revenues
•  creates jobs and stimulates 

development, boosting the regional 
economy

•  reduces delay, saving businesses 
time and money

•  reduces air pollution and air toxics
•  reduces risk of traffic fatalities and 

injuries

CHALLENGES
•  changing driving habits and 

declining purchasing power of 
existing funding sources due to 
inflation and improvement in fuel 
efficiency

•  potential disproportionate impact of 
higher taxes and fees on drivers with 
limited travel options

•  limited public support for higher fees 
and taxes

•  patchwork of funding sources
•  statutory or constitutional 

limitations on funding

RELATIVE CLIMATE BENEFIT  

N/A  

RELATIVE COST  

N/A

Communities have long relied upon state and federal funding to help fund local 
transportation system needs, financed largely through through gas taxes and 
other user fees. However, the purchasing power of federal and state gas tax 
revenues is declining as individuals drive less and fuel efficiency increases. 
The effectiveness of this revenue source is further eroded as the gas tax is not 
indexed to inflation.

Diminished resources mean reduced ability to expand, improve and maintain 
existing transportation infrastructure. Federal and state funding is not keeping 
pace with infrastructure operation and maintenance needs, so a substantial share 
of funding for future Regional Transportation Plan investments has shifted to 
local revenue sources.

Local governments in Oregon have increasingly turned to tax levies, road 
maintenance fees, system development charges and traffic impact fees in an 
attempt to keep pace, although some communities have been more successful 
than others. Expansion and operation of the transit system has relied heavily 
on payroll taxes and competitive federal funding for high capacity transit 
capital projects. But the region’s demand for frequent and reliable transit service 
exceeds the capacity of the payroll tax to support it.

The adopted RTP calls for stabilizing existing transportation revenue sources 
while securing new and innovative long-term sources of funding adequate to 
build, operate and maintain the regional transportation system for all modes 
of travel. The next update to the RTP will include updating the financial 
assumptions and potential funding mechanisms to advance implementation of 
adopted local and regional plans and the Climate Smart Strategy..

Exhibit A to Ordinance No. 14-1346B



30 Climate Smart Strategy | December 9, 2014

Federal Highway Trust Fund1

Federal Transit Fund 

Gas tax

Vehicle fees (e.g. registration, licensing fees)

Heavy truck weight-mile fee

Local portion of State Highway Trust Fund2

Development-based fees3

Payroll tax

Transit passenger fares

Special funds and levies4

Tolls (I-5 Columbia River Crossing) 

FUNDING MECHANISMS ASSUMED IN 2014 REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION 
PLAN AND CLIMATE SMART STRATEGY

EXISTING FUNDING MECHANISM

SOURCE

Federal LocalState

1The Federal Highway Trust Fund includes federal gas tax receipts and other revenue.
2The State Highway Trust Fund includes state gas tax receipts, vehicle fees and heavy truck weight-mile fees.
3Development-based fees include system development charges, traffic impact fees, urban renewal districts and 
developer contributions.

4Special funds and levies include tax levies (e.g. Washington County MSTIP), local improvement districts, 
vehicle parking fees, transportation utility fees and maintenance districts (e.g. Washington County Urban Road 
Maintenance District).

CLACKAMAS

1
WASHINGTON

MULTNOMAH

2

3 /$19 VRF

23

2
$3.18

$8.01

$3.35

$11.56

$5.56

$1.42

$10.31

$4.03

$2.00

$9.50

BEAVERTON

CORNELIUSFOREST GROVE

GLADSTONE

GRESHAM

HAPPY VALLEY

HILLSBORO

LAKE OSWEGO

MILWAUKIE

OREGON CITY

PORTLAND

SHERWOOD

TIGARD

TROUTDALE

TUALATIN

WEST LINN

WILSONVILLE

WOOD VILLAGE

Property Tax/Levy

Street Utility Fee

System Development
 Charges

Utility Franchise Fee

Gas Tax

Local/Special Benefit
Assessment Area

Parking Fee

Metro Boundary

County Line

LOCAL TRANSPORTATION 
FUNDING MECHANISMS 
(2013)

Exhibit A to Ordinance No. 14-1346B



31Climate Smart Strategy | December 9, 2014

A NOTE ON CLIMATE CHANGE ADAPTATION AND RESILIENCY
House Bill 2001 directed the region to develop and implement a strategy to reduce greenhouse gas emissions 
from light-duty vehicles by 2035 to help meet state greenhouse gas emissions reduction goals for 2050. The 
goal of the Climate Smart Strategy is to meet the state target for reducing greenhouse gas emissions and 
support other local, regional and state goals including clean air and water, transportation choices, healthy 
and equitable communities, and a strong economy. Most of the investments and actions proposed in the 
Climate Smart Strategy to reduce -- or mitigate -- greenhouse gases going into the atmosphere are already 
being implemented to varying degrees across the region to realize community visions and other important 
economic, social and environmental goals. It is also important to recognize that scientists believe Oregon 
is already being impacted by physical changes in temperatures and precipitation patterns due to climate 
change, and that more changes are coming.

While specific strategies to help the region adapt to a changing climate are not called out in the Climate 
Smart Strategy, it is important to acknowledge that this work will be highly important to mitigating risks and 
developing resilient communities.

Recent studies1 for the state of Oregon say there is a greater than 90 percent chance that in coming decades, 
our state will face increases in average annual air temperatures and the likelihood of extreme heat events. 
Additionally, changes in hydrology and water supply are likely to occur, including reduced snowpack and 
water availability in some basins, changes in water quality, and the timing of water availability. These 
changes are expected to impact the region’s economy, infrastructure, natural systems, and human health in a 
variety of ways.

To prepare for these changes, a short list of regional actions is suggested:
• Apply the insights from the Oregon Climate Assessment Report and the Oregon Climate Change 

Adaptation Framework to understand the scientists’ expected changes for our state and potential low- and 
no-cost first steps in preparing for and responding to these changes.

• Consider physical climate risks as potential natural hazards. With this in mind, continue to implement the 
policies identified in Chapter 5 of the Regional Framework Plan  (Regional Natural Hazards). The policies 
were developed to protect citizens, critical facilities, infrastructure, private property, and the environment 
from natural hazards. 

• Engage with public health officials, universities, and state agencies to identify strategies to address 
the potential impact of climate change on human health, such as developing public health adaptation 
resources, integrating planning at various government levels, and creating programs to monitor and 
respond to public health issues.

1 2013 Oregon Climate Assessment Report, Oregon Climate Change Research Institute, available at www.oc-
cri.net/wp-content/uploads/2013/11/ClimateChangeInTheNorthwest.pdf.

    2010 Oregon Climate Change Adaptation Framework, Department of Land Conservation and Development, 
available at www. www.oregon.gov/LCD/docs/ClimateChange/Framework_Final.pdf

Exhibit A to Ordinance No. 14-1346B



32 Climate Smart Strategy | December 9, 2014

Adaptation Adjustment in natural or human systems to a new or changing environment that 
exploits beneficial opportunities or moderates negative effects. “Climate adaptation” typically 
references efforts to respond to and minimize the impacts of a changing climate.

Brownfield A property for which the expansion, redevelopment, or reuse  may be complicated by 
the presence or potential presence of a hazardous substance, pollutant, or containment. Cleaning 
up and reinvesting in these properties increases local tax bases, facilitates job growth, utilizes 
existing infrastructure, takes development pressures off of undeveloped, open land, and both 
improves and protects the environment.

Carsharing  A membership-based system of short term automobile rental. Such programs are 
attractive to customers who make only occasional use of a vehicle, as well as others who would like 
occasional access to a vehicle of a different type than they use day-to-day. The organization renting 
the cars may be a commercial business or the users may be organized as a company, public agency, 
cooperative, or peer-to-peer. Zipcar and car2go are local examples. 

Climate change Any change in climate over time, whether due to natural variability or as a result 
of human activity that persists for an extended period. 

Complete streets  A transportation policy and design approach where streets are designed, 
operated and maintained to enable safe, convenient and comfortable travel and access for users of 
all ages and abilities, regardless of their mode of transportation. 

Concept planning A planning process to create a blueprint for the future of land brought 
inside the urban growth boundary for urbanization. The process is required to address the 
provisions listed in Title 11 of the Urban Growth Management Functional Plan. These provisions 
include a minimum level of residential units per acre, a diversity of housing stock, an adequate 
transportation system, protection of natural resource areas and needed school facilities.

Drive Oregon A nonprofit 501(c)(6) trade association dedicated to growing the electric mobility 
industry in Oregon. Members include innovators, entrepreneurs, and established industry leaders 
throughout the entire supply chain. Drive Oregon is funded in part with Oregon State Lottery 
Funds administered by Business Oregon.

Eco-driving  A combination of public education, in-vehicle technology and driving practices that 
result in more efficient vehicle operation and reduced fuel consumption and emissions. Examples 
of eco-driving techniques include avoiding rapid starts and stops, matching driving speeds to 
synchronized traffic signals, avoiding excessive idling, and keeping tires properly inflated. 

GLOSSARY

Exhibit A to Ordinance No. 14-1346B



33Climate Smart Strategy | December 9, 2014

ECO Rule An Oregon Department of Environmental Quality administrative rule (OAR 340-
242) that is also called the Employee Commute Options Program. Under the DEQ ECO program, 
employers with more than 100 employees must provide commute options and incentives to 
employees designed to reduce the number of cars driven to work in the Portland metropolitan 
region. The employers must provide incentives for employee use of commute options like biking, 
walking, use of transit, carpooling, guaranteed ride home, and financial incentives. The incentives 
must have the potential to reduce drive alone commute trips to the work site by 10 percent from 
an established baseline. The ECO program is one of several strategies included in the Ozone 
Maintenance Plan for the Portland Air Quality Maintenance Area. The Ozone Maintenance Plan 
will keep the area in compliance with the federal ozone standard. 

Employer-based commute programs  Work-based travel demand management programs 
that can include transportation coordinators, employer-subsidized transit pass programs, ride-
matching, carpool and vanpool programs, telecommuting, compressed or flexible work weeks and 
bicycle parking and showers for bicycle commuters.

Energize Oregon A coalition of public and private partners working to expand electric vehicle 
sales and use in Oregon. The voluntary partnership was created in 2013 through a memorandum 
of understanding (MOU) between Governor Kitzhaber’s office, the Oregon Department of 
Transportation, and Drive Oregon. The coalition has  received state funding and includes Nissan, 
Honda, Ford, and General Motors as members.

Fleet mix  The percentage of vehicles classified as automobiles compared to the percentage 
classified as light trucks (weighing less than 10,000 lbs.); light trucks make up 43 percent of the 
light-duty fleet today.

Fleet turnover  The rate of vehicle replacement or the turnover of older vehicles to newer vehicles; 
the current turnover rate in Oregon is 10 years.

Geometric changes to add capacity Road design and engineering strategies to help alleviate 
bottlenecks, such as the addition or reconfiguration of turning lanes, strategic lane widening, 
realignment of intersecting streets, improved acceleration or deceleration lanes at interchange 
ramps, removal of a physical constriction that delays travel, such as widening an underpass, 
providing lane continuity (i.e., replacing a two-lane bridge that connects pieces of four-lane 
roadway), or eliminating a sight barrier. Such strategies may be applied to highways, arterials, or 
local streets. 

Greenhouse gas emissions  The six gases identified in the Kyoto Protocol and by the Oregon 
Greenhouse Gas Mandatory Reporting Advisory Committee as contributing to global climate 
change:  carbon dioxide (CO2), nitrous oxide (N2), methane (CH4), hydrofluorocarbons (HFCs), 
perfluorocarbons (PFC s), and sulfur hexafluoride (SF6). More information is available at www.epa.
gov/climatechange

Exhibit A to Ordinance No. 14-1346B



34 Climate Smart Strategy | December 9, 2014

GreenSTEP  A modeling tool developed by the Oregon Department of Transportation to estimate 
GHG emissions at the individual household level. It estimates greenhouse gas emissions 
associated with vehicle ownership, vehicle travel, and fuel consumption, and is designed to 
operate in a way that allows it to show the potential effects of different policies and other factors 
on vehicle travel and emissions. GreenSTEP travel behavior estimates are made irrespective of 
housing choice or supply; the model only considers the demand forecast components – household 
size, income and age – and the policy areas considered in this analysis. 

Guaranteed Ride Home Program Through a Guaranteed Ride Home program, commuters who 
use modes such as carpool/vanpool, bicycle, walk, or public transportation, receive a subsidized 
ride home from work when an unexpected emergency arises. 

House Bill 2001 (Oregon Jobs and Transportation Act)  Passed by the Legislature in 2009, this 
legislation provided specific directions to the Portland metropolitan region to undertake scenario 
planning and develop two or more land use and transportation scenarios that accommodate 
planned population and employment growth, while achieving the GHG emissions reduction 
targets approved by LCDC in May 2011. Metro, after public review and consultation with local 
governments, is to adopt a preferred scenario, called the Climate Smart Strategy. Following 
adoption of the Climate Smart Strategy, local governments within the Metro jurisdiction are to 
amend their comprehensive plans and land use regulations as necessary to be consistent with 
the preferred scenario. More information can be found at www.oregonlegislature.gov/bills_laws/
lawsstatutes/2009orLaw0865.html

Health  A condition of complete physical, mental and emotional well-being, not merely the 
absence of disease.

Health Impact Assessment A combination of procedures, methods, and tools by which a policy, 
program or project may be evaluated as to its potential effects on the health of a population, and 
the distribution of these effects within the population. 

Individualized marketing  Travel demand management programs focused on individual 
households. IM programs involve individualized outreach to households that identify household 
travel needs and ways to meet those needs with less vehicle travel.

Induced demand Refers to the process whereby improvements in the transportation system 
intended to alleviate congestion and delay result in additional demand for the transportation 
segment, offsetting some of the improvement’s potential benefits. For instance, when a congested 
roadway is expanded from 2 to 3 lanes, some drivers will recognize the increased capacity and take 
this roadway though they had not done so previously. 

Exhibit A to Ordinance No. 14-1346B



35Climate Smart Strategy | December 9, 2014

Infill development Refers to the development or redevelopment of vacant, bypassed or under-
utilized lands in an area that is largely developed. An alternative to development that occurs 
outside existing urban areas. 

Intelligent transportation systems  Refers to advanced communications technologies that are 
integrated with transportation infrastructure and vehicles to address transportation problems 
and enhance the movement of people and goods. ITS can include both vehicle-to-vehicle 
communication (which allows cars to communicate with one another to avoid accidents) and 
vehicle-to-infrastructure communication (which allows cars to communicate with the roadway to 
identify congestion, crashes or unsafe driving conditions).

Light-duty vehicles  Vehicles weighing 10,000 pounds or less, including passenger cars, light 
trucks, sport utility vehicles, motorcycles and small delivery trucks.

Low Carbon Fuel Standard  In 2009, the Oregon legislature authorized the Environmental 
Quality Commission to develop low carbon fuel standards (LCFS) for Oregon. The program has 
since been renamed the Clean Fuels Program. Each type of transportation fuel (gasoline, diesel, 
natural gas, etc.) contains carbon in various amounts. When the fuel is burned, that carbon turns 
into carbon dioxide (CO2), which is a greenhouse gas. The goal is to reduce the average carbon 
intensity of Oregon’s transportation fuels by 10 percent below 2010 levels by 2022 and applies to 
the entire mix of fuel available in Oregon. Carbon intensity refers to the emissions per unit of fuel; 
it is not a cap on total emissions or a limit on the amount of fuel that can be burned. The lower the 
carbon content of a fuel, the fewer greenhouse gas emissions it produces. 

Mitigation To moderate a quality or condition in force or intensity. “Climate mitigation” typically 
references efforts taken to eliminate or reduce greenhouse gas emissions to reduce the long-term 
risk and hazards of climate change.

Mixed-use development Refers to portions of urban areas where commercial (e.g., retail, office, 
entertainment) and non-commercial uses (such as residential space), are located near one another. 
Different uses may be mixed vertically (e.g., housing above retail) or horizontally (e.g., housing 
within walking distance of retail). Mixed-use development reduces demand for motorized 
transportation by locating common destinations near residences where transit, pedestrian and 
bicycle access is convenient. 

Mobility corridor  Mobility corridors represent sub-areas of the region and include all regional 
transportation facilities within the sub-area as well as the land uses served by the regional 
transportation system. This includes freeways and highways and parallel networks of arterial 
streets, regional bicycle parkways, high capacity transit, and frequent bus routes. The function 
of this network of integrated transportation corridors is metropolitan mobility – moving people 
and goods between different parts of the region and, in some corridors, connecting the region 
with the rest of the state and beyond. This framework emphasizes the integration of land use and 
transportation in determining regional system needs, functions, desired outcomes, performance 
measures, and investment strategies.

Exhibit A to Ordinance No. 14-1346B



36 Climate Smart Strategy | December 9, 2014

Oregon Sustainable Transportation Initiative (OSTI)  An integrated statewide effort to reduce 
GHG emissions from the transportation sector by integrating land use and transportation. OSTI is 
the result of several bills passed by the Oregon Legislature designed to help Oregon meet its 2050 
goal of reducing greenhouse gas emissions by 75 percent below 1990 levels. Guided by stakeholder 
input, the initiative has built collaborative partnerships among local governments and the state’s 
six Metropolitan Planning Organizations to help meet Oregon’s goals to reduce GHG emissions. 
The effort includes five main areas: Statewide Transportation Strategy development, GHG 
emission reduction targets for metropolitan areas, land use and transportation scenario planning 
guidelines, tools that support MPOs and local governments and public outreach. More information 
can be found at www.oregon.gov/odot/td/osti 

Oregon Zero Emission Vehicles (ZEV) Program A program administered by the Oregon 
Department of Environmental Quality to advance the state’s transition to zero emission vehicles. 
The program adopted California ZEV requirements to stimulate development of emission-free 
vehicles and bring them to commercial-scale production beginning with the 2018 model year. It 
is difficult to predict how many zero emission vehicles the rules will bring to Oregon. However, 
some estimates suggest that electric vehicles and plug-in hybrid electric vehicles could make up 5 
percent of new vehicle sales in 2018, growing to 13 percent of sales in 2025. More information can 
be found at http://www.deq.state.or.us/aq/orlev

Parking cash-out program A transportation demand management strategy where the market 
value of a parking space is offered to an employee by the employer. The employee can either spend 
the money on a parking space, or pocket it and use an alternative mode to travel to work. The 
program is intended to reduce vehicle trips and increase the use of alternative travel modes. Also 
referred to as an employer buy-back program. 

Parking management Strategies that encourage more efficient use of existing parking facilities, 
improve the quality of service provided to parking facility users, and improve parking facility 
design. Examples include developing an inventory of parking supply and usage, reduced parking 
requirements, shared and unbundled parking, parking-cash-out, priced parking, bicycle parking 
and providing information on parking space availability. More information can be found at www.
vtpi.org/park_man.pdf

Pay-as-you-drive insurance (PAYD)  A method of insuring vehicles in which premiums are based 
in large part on the vehicle miles traveled within a given period of time. PAYD is also sometimes 
referred to as distance-based, usage-based, or mileage-based insurance. This pricing strategy 
converts a portion of liability and collision insurance from dollars-per-year to cents-per-mile to 
charge insurance premiums based on the total amount of miles driven per vehicle on an annual 
basis and other important rating factors, such as the driver’s safety record. If a vehicle is driven 
more, the crash risk consequently increases. PAYD insurance charges policyholders according to 
their crash risk.

Peer-to-peer carsharing A car sharing program where the vehicle fleet is composed of privately 
owned vehicles that are available to rent to others at rates set by the car owners. 

Exhibit A to Ordinance No. 14-1346B



37Climate Smart Strategy | December 9, 2014

Policy areas Categories of land use and transportation strategies used in GreenSTEP to show how 
the application of different policies may impact GHG emissions. 

Preparation  Assessing the risks and vulnerabilities and identifying actions to protect residents 
and businesses from the most significant impacts of climate change. Many agencies have used the 
term “adaptation” to refer to similar efforts. 

Ramp meter A traffic signal used to regulate the flow of vehicles entering the freeway. Ramp 
meters smooth the merging process resulting in increased freeway speeds and reduced crashes. 
Ramp meters are automatically adjusted based on traffic conditions. 

Reliability Refers to consistency or dependability in travel times, as measured from day to day 
and/or across different times of day. Variability in travel times means travelers must plan extra 
time for a trip. 

Resilience An ability to anticipate, prepare for, respond to and recover from significant multi-
hazard threats with minimum damage to social well-being, the economy and the environment. 
 
Rideshare  A transportation demand management strategy where two or more people share a 
trip in a vehicle to a common destination or along a common corridor. Private passenger vehicles 
are used for carpools, and some vanpools receive public/private support to help commuters. 
Carpooling and vanpooling provide travel choices for areas underserved by transit or at times 
when transit service is not available.

Scenario  A term used to describe a possible future, representing a hypothetcal set of policies and 
strategies or sequence of events. 

Scenario planning  A process that tests different actions and policies to see their affect on GHG 
emissions reduction and other quality of life indicators.

Social costs In the context of the Climate Smart Communities Strategy, social costs refer to the 
unintended consequences of transportation, such as carbon emissions that contribute to climate 
change, air pollution that causes health and environmental problems, energy security costs 
associated with importing fossil fuels from foreign nations, and other such impacts.

Statewide Transportation Strategy  The strategy, as part of OSTI, defines a vision for Oregon to 
reduce its GHG emissions from transportation systems, vehicle and fuel technologies and urban 
form by 2050. The strategy was accepted by the Oregon Transportation Commission in March 2013. 
More information can be found at www.oregon.gov/ODOT/TD/OSTI/STS.shtml.

System efficiency  Strategies that optimize the use of the existing transportation system, 
including traffic management, employer-based commute programs, individualized marketing 
and carsharing.

Exhibit A to Ordinance No. 14-1346B



38 Climate Smart Strategy | December 9, 2014

Traffic incident management  Planned and coordinated processes followed by state and local 
agencies to detect, respond to, and remove traffic incidents quickly and safely in order to keep 
highways flowing efficiently.

Traffic management  Strategies that improve transportation system operations and efficiency, 
including ramp metering, active traffic management, traffic signal coordination and real-time 
traveler information regarding traffic conditions, incidents, delays, travel times, alternate routes, 
weather conditions, construction, or special events.

Transportation management associations (TMA)  Non-profit coalitions of local businesses 
and/or public agencies, and residences such as condo Home Owner Associations all dedicated to 
reducing traffic congestion and pollution while improving commuting options for employees, 
residents and visitors. 

Transportation system management A set of strategies for increasing travel flow on existing 
facilities through improvements such as ramp metering, traffic signal synchronization and access 
management.

Travel (or transportation) demand management (TDM) The application of techniques 
that affect when, how, where, and how much people travel, done in a purposeful manner by 
government or other organizations. TDM techniques include education, policies, regulations, and 
other combinations of incentives and disincentives, and are intended to reduce drive alone vehicle 
trips on the transportation network.

Travel time reliability Refers to consistency or dependability in travel times, as measured from 
day to day and/or across different times of day. Variability in travel times means travelers must 
plan extra time for a trip.

TripCheck An Oregon Department of Transportation website that displays real-time data 
regarding road conditions, weather conditions, camera images, delays due to congestion and 
construction, and other advisories. Additionally, TripCheck provides travelers with information 
about travel services such as food, lodging, attractions, public transportation options, scenic 
byways, weather forecasts, etc. This information is also available through the 511 travel 
information phone line. 

Unbundled parking A policy tool to encourage or require that residential or commercial parking 
be rented or sold separately, rather than automatically included with building space. Separate 
pricing can help reduce demand for parking as well as the combined housing/transportation costs 
for residents or business owners since occupants only pay for the parking they need. Unbundling 
can be done in several ways:
• Parking can be bought or rented separately when the apartment, condo, or office space is bought 

or leased.
• Renters can be offered a discount on their rent for not using parking spaces.
• Parking costs can be listed as a separate line item in lease agreements to show tenants the cost 

and enable them to negotiate reductions.

Exhibit A to Ordinance No. 14-1346B



39Climate Smart Strategy | December 9, 2014

• Unbundling can be encouraged informally by creating a market for available parking spaces; 
building managers can keep a list of tenants or owners with excess spaces available for rent.

U.S. Conference of Mayors Climate Protection Agreement An agreement where supporting 
mayors pledge to reduce greenhouse gas emissions by 7 percent below 1990 levels by 2012. On 
February 16, 2005, the Kyoto Protocol, the international agreement to address climate change, 
became law for the countries that have ratified it. On that day, Seattle Mayor Greg Nickels 
launched this initiative to advance the goals of the Kyoto Protocol through leadership and 
action by U.S. cities. By the 2005 U.S. Conference of Mayors Annual Meeting in June, 141 mayors 
had signed the Agreement – the same number of nations that ratified the Kyoto Protocol. 

Since 2005, more than 1,000 mayors across all 50 states and Puerto Rico had signed on. Under 
the Agreement, participating cities commit to take following three actions: 
•  Strive to meet or beat the Kyoto Protocol targets in their own communities, through actions 

ranging from land-use and transportation policies to urban forest restoration projects to 
public information campaigns;

•  Urge their state governments, and the federal government, to enact policies and programs to 
meet or beat the greenhouse gas emission reduction target suggested for the United States in 
the Kyoto Protocol 7 percent reduction from 1990 levels by 2012; and 

• Urge the U.S. Congress to pass the bipartisan greenhouse gas reduction legislation, which 
would establish a national emission trading.

More information can be found at www.usmayors.org/climateprotection

Vehicle-to-vehicle communication technology Wireless technology that allows for the 
transfer of information between vehicles. One major goal behind this research is to improve 
roadway safety. The Research and Innovative Technology Administration of the U.S. 
Department of Transportation (DOT) is currently investigating many potential benefits of this 
new technology. 

Vision Zero Strategy An action plan for eliminating traffic fatalities and serious injury crashes 
for all modes of travel. The action plan typically includes a combination of enforcement, 
improved engineering, operations,  design and emergency response, public education 
campaigns that  identify dangerous or unsafe behavior on roads and streets to improve safety, 
and performance monitoring to track progress. Examples of adopted strategies can be found 
at: www.nyc.gov/html/visionzero/pdf/nyc-vision-zero-action-plan.pdf and www.mdt.mt.gov/
homepage/articles/vision-zero.shtml.

Wayfinding Signage, maps, street markings, and other graphic or audible methods used to 
convey location and directions to help travelers orient themselves and reach destinations easily. 

Exhibit A to Ordinance No. 14-1346B



40 Climate Smart Strategy | December 9, 2014

West Coast Green Highway An initiative to advance the adoption and use of electric and alternative-
fuel vehicles along the I-5 corridor in Washington, Oregon, and California. More information can be 
found at  www.westcoastgreenhighway.com

Workplace charging challenge Part of the U.S. Department of Energy’s (DOE’s) EV Everywhere Grand 
Challenge, the Workplace Charging Challenge aims to achieve a tenfold increase in the number of U.S. 
employers offering workplace charging by 2018. More information can be found at http://energy.gov/
eere/vehicles/ev-everywhere-workplace-charging-challenge

Exhibit A to Ordinance No. 14-1346B



	  

Exhibit	  B	  to	  Ordinance	  No.	  14-‐1346.

December	  9,	  2014	  

Regional	  
Framework	  Plan	  
Amendments	  
Recommended	  Draft	  
This	  document	  reflects	  changes	  recommended	  to	  respond	  to	  
public	  comments	  and	  subsequent	  advisory	  committee	  review	  	  

Exhibit B to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 1 of 44



	   	   	  

	  

	  

About	  Metro	  
Clean	  air	  and	  clean	  water	  do	  not	  stop	  at	  city	  limits	  or	  county	  lines.	  Neither	  does	  the	  need	  for	  jobs,	  a	  
thriving	  economy,	  and	  sustainable	  transportation	  and	  living	  choices	  for	  people	  and	  businesses	  in	  the	  
region.	  Voters	  have	  asked	  Metro	  to	  help	  with	  the	  challenges	  and	  opportunities	  that	  affect	  the	  25	  cities	  
and	  three	  counties	  in	  the	  Portland	  metropolitan	  area.	  	  
	  	  
A	  regional	  approach	  simply	  makes	  sense	  when	  it	  comes	  to	  providing	  services,	  operating	  venues	  and	  
making	  decisions	  about	  how	  the	  region	  grows.	  Metro	  works	  with	  communities	  to	  support	  a	  resilient	  
economy,	  keep	  nature	  close	  by	  and	  respond	  to	  a	  changing	  climate.	  Together	  we’re	  making	  a	  great	  place,	  
now	  and	  for	  generations	  to	  come.	  
	  	  
Stay	  in	  touch	  with	  news,	  stories	  and	  things	  to	  do.	  	  	  
	  	  
www.oregonmetro.gov/climatescenarios	  
	  

Metro	  Council	  President 

Tom	  Hughes 
Metro	  Councilors 
Shirley	  Craddick,	  District	  1                                                                                                        
Carlotta	  Collette,	  District	  2	  
Craig	  Dirksen,	  District	  3	  
Kathryn	  Harrington,	  District	  4	  
Sam	  Chase,	  District	  5	  
Bob	  Stacey,	  District	  6 
Auditor 
Suzanne	  Flynn 

08	  Fall	  

Exhibit B to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 2 of 44



REGIONAL FRAMEWORK PLAN  |  CHAPTER 1 - LAND USE Effective 12/16/10 
Original RFP adopted 12/11/97, Metro Ord. No. 97-715B  
RFP Updated 8/15/05, Metro Ord. 05-1086; 9/29/05, Metro Ord. 05-1077C, 04/25/07, Metro Ord. 06-1129B, Metro Ord. 10-1238, Metro Ord. 10-1244B 

 

C
hapter 1

 

Land U
se 

Recommended changes  (December 9, 2014) 
All of Chapter 1 of the Regional Framework Plan is provided for reference.  Changes shown in single 
strikethrough and single underscore were included in the Sept. 15, 2014 public review draft.  Changes 
shown in double strikethrough and double underscore reflect additional recommended changes to 
respond to comments received during the comment period and subsequent discussions by Metro’s 
regional advisory committees. 

Exhibit B to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 3 of 44



Table of Contents  
REGIONAL FRAMEWORK PLAN  |  CHAPTER 1 - LAND USE Effective 12/16/10 
Original RFP adopted 12/11/97, Metro Ord. No. 97-715B  
RFP Updated 8/15/05, Metro Ord. 05-1086; 9/29/05, Metro Ord. 05-1077C, 04/25/07, Metro Ord. 06-1129B, Metro Ord. 10-1238A, Metro Ord. 10-1244B 

REGIONAL FRAMEWORK PLAN 
CHAPTER 1 LAND USE 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

CHAPTER 1 LAND USE .............................................................................................................. 1 

Introduction ................................................................................................................................. 1 

Six Outcomes, Characteristics of a Successful Region ......................................................... 1 

Performance Measures and Performance Targets .................................................................. 1 

Policies ........................................................................................................................................ 2 

1.1 Compact Urban Form ....................................................................................................... 2 

1.2 Centers, Corridors, Station Communities and Main Streets ............................................. 3 

1.3 Housing Choices and Opportunities ................................................................................. 4 

1.4 Employment Choices and Opportunities ........................................................................... 5 

1.5 Economic Vitality ............................................................................................................... 6 

1.6 Growth Management (Repealed, Ord. 10-1244B, 12/16/10) ............................................ 7 

1.7 Urban and Rural Reserves ............................................................................................... 7 

1.8 Developed Urban Land ..................................................................................................... 8 

1.9 Urban Growth Boundary ................................................................................................... 8 

1.10 Urban Design .................................................................................................................. 10 

1.11 Neighbor Cities ............................................................................................................... 11 

1.12 Protection of Agriculture and Forest Resource Lands.  (Repealed, Ord. 10-1238A, 
09/08/10, § 2 ) ................................................................................................................. 11 

1.13 Participation of Citizens .................................................................................................. 11 

1.14 School and Local Government Plan and Policy Coordination ........................................ 12 

1.15 Centers (Repealed, Ord. 10-1244B, 12/16/10) ............................................................... 12 

1.16 Residential Neighborhoods ............................................................................................. 12 

 

 

 

 

Exhibit B to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 4 of 44



Page 1  
REGIONAL FRAMEWORK PLAN  |  CHAPTER 1 - LAND USE Effective 12/16/10 
Original RFP adopted 12/11/97, Metro Ord. No. 97-715B  
RFP Updated 8/15/05, Metro Ord. 05-1086; 9/29/05, Metro Ord. 05-1077C, 04/25/07, Metro Ord. 06-1129B, Metro Ord. 10-1238A, Metro Ord. 10-1244B 

Chapter 1 Land Use  

Introduction 
The Metro Charter requires that Metro address growth management and land use planning 
matters of metropolitan concern. This chapter contains the policies that guide Metro in such 
areas as development of centers, corridors, station communities, and main streets; housing 
choices; employment choices and opportunities; economic vitality; urban and rural reserves; 
management of the Urban Growth Boundary (UGB); urban design and local plan and policy 
coordination.  

This chapter also addresses land use planning matters that the Metro Council, with the 
consultation and advice of the Metro Policy Advisory Committee (MPAC), determines will benefit 
from regional planning, such as affordable housing.  

A livable region is an economically strong region. This chapter contains policies that supports a 
strong economic climate through encouraging the development of a diverse and sufficient 
supply of jobs, especially family wage jobs, in appropriate locations throughout the region. The 
policies in this chapter are also a key component of the regional strategy to reduce per capita 
greenhouse gas emissions from light-duty vehicle travel. 

Six Outcomes, Characteristics of a Successful Region 
It is the policy of the Metro Council to exercise its powers to achieve the following six outcomes, 
characteristics of a successful region: 
 
1. People live, work and play in vibrant communities where their everyday needs are easily 

accessible. 

2. Current and future residents benefit from the region’s sustained economic 
competitiveness and prosperity. 

3. People have safe and reliable transportation choices that enhance their quality of life. 

4. The region is a leader in minimizing contributions to  global warmingclimate change. 

5. Current and future generations enjoy clean air, clean water and healthy ecosystems. 

6. The benefits and burdens of growth and change are distributed equitably. 

(Added 12/16/10, Metro Ord. 10-1244B.) 
 

Performance Measures and Performance Targets 
It is also the policy of the Metro Council to use performance measures and performance targets 
to:  

a. Evaluate the effectiveness of proposed policies, strategies and actions to achieve 
the desired Outcomes; 

Exhibit B to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 5 of 44



Page 2  
REGIONAL FRAMEWORK PLAN  |  CHAPTER 1 - LAND USE Effective 12/16/10 
Original RFP adopted 12/11/97, Metro Ord. No. 97-715B  
RFP Updated 8/15/05, Metro Ord. 05-1086; 9/29/05, Metro Ord. 05-1077C, 04/25/07, Metro Ord. 06-1129B, Metro Ord. 10-1238A, Metro Ord. 10-1244B 

b. Inform the people of the region about progress toward achieving the Outcomes; 

c. Evaluate the effectiveness of adopted policies, strategies and actions and guide 
the consideration of revision or replacement of the policies, strategies and 
actions; and 

d. Publish a report on progress toward achieving the desired Outcomes on a 
periodic basis. 

(Added 12/16/10, Metro Ord. 10-1244B.) 
 
The Metro Code provisions, the Urban Growth Management Functional Plan, a background 
discussion and policy analysis for this chapter are included in the Appendices of this plan.  

Policies 
The following section contains the policies for land use.  These policies are implemented in 
several ways.  The Metro Council implements the policies through its investments in planning, 
transportation and other services.  The Council also implements the policies by adopting and 
occasionally revising Metro’s functional plans for local governments.  The functional plans 
themselves are implemented by the region’s cities and counties through their comprehensive 
plans and land use regulations.  

1.1 Compact Urban Form 
It is the policy of the Metro Council to: 

1.1.1. Ensure and maintain a compact urban form within the UGB. 

1.1.2 Adopt and implement a strategy of investments and incentives to use land within the 
UGB more efficiently and to create a compact urban form.  

1.1.3 Facilitate infill and re-development, particularly within Centers, Corridors, Station 
Communities, Main Streets and Employment Areas, to use land and urban services 
efficiently, to support public transit, to promote successful, walkable communities and to 
create equitable and vibrant communities. 

1.1.4 Incent and Eencourage elimination of unnecessary barriers to compact, mixed-use, 
pedestrian and bicycle-friendly and transit-supportive development within Centers, 
Corridors, Station Communities and Main Streets.  

1.1.5 Promote the distinctiveness of the region’s cities and the stability of its neighborhoods. 

1.1.6 Enhance compact urban form by developing the Intertwine, an interconnected system of 
parks, greenspaces and trails readily accessible to people of the region. 

1.1.7 Promote excellence in community design. 

1.1.8 Promote a compact urban form as a key climate action strategy to reduce greenhouse 
gas emissions. 

Exhibit B to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 6 of 44



Page 3  
REGIONAL FRAMEWORK PLAN  |  CHAPTER 1 - LAND USE Effective 12/16/10 
Original RFP adopted 12/11/97, Metro Ord. No. 97-715B  
RFP Updated 8/15/05, Metro Ord. 05-1086; 9/29/05, Metro Ord. 05-1077C, 04/25/07, Metro Ord. 06-1129B, Metro Ord. 10-1238A, Metro Ord. 10-1244B 

(RFP Policy 1.1 amended 12/16/10, Metro Ord. 10-1244B.) 

1.2 Centers, Corridors, Station Communities and Main Streets 
It is the policy of the Metro Council to: 

1.2.1. Recognize that the success of the 2040 Growth Concept depends upon the success of 
the region’s Centers, Corridors, Station Communities and Main Streets as the principal 
centers of urban life in the region.  Recognize that each Center, Corridor, Station 
Community and Main Street has its own character and stage of development and its own 
aspirations; each needs its own strategy for success. 

1.2.2. Work with local governments, community leaders and state and federal agencies to 
develop an investment strategy for Centers, Corridors, Station Communities and Main 
Streets with a program of investments in public works, essential services and community 
assets, that will enhance their roles as the centers of urban life in the region.  The 
strategy shall: 

a. Give priority in allocation of Metro’s  investment  funds to Centers, Corridors, 
Station Communities and Main Streets;  

b. To the extent practicable, link Metro’s investments so they reinforce one another 
and maximize contributions to Centers, Corridors, Station Communities and Main 
Streets; 

c. To the extent practicable, coordinate Metro’s investments with complementary 
investments of local governments and with state and federal agencies so the 
investments reinforce one another , maximize contributions to Centers, Corridors, 
Station Communities and Main Streets and help achieve local aspirations; and 

d. Include an analysis of barriers to the success of investments in particular 
Centers, Corridors, Station Communities and Main Streets. 

1.2.3. Encourage employment opportunities in Centers, Corridors, Station Communities and 
Main Streets by: 

a. Improving access within and between Centers, Corridors, Station Communities 
and Main Streets; 

b. Encouraging cities and counties to allow a wide range of employment uses and 
building types, a wide range of floor-to-area ratios and a mix of employment and 
residential uses; and 

c. Encourage investment by cities, counties and all private sectors by 
complementing their investments with investments by Metro. 

1.2.4. Work with local governments, community leaders and state and federal agencies to 
employ financial incentives to enhance the roles of Centers, Corridors, Station 
Communities and Main Streets and maintain a catalogue of incentives and other tools 

Exhibit B to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 7 of 44



Page 4  
REGIONAL FRAMEWORK PLAN  |  CHAPTER 1 - LAND USE Effective 12/16/10 
Original RFP adopted 12/11/97, Metro Ord. No. 97-715B  
RFP Updated 8/15/05, Metro Ord. 05-1086; 9/29/05, Metro Ord. 05-1077C, 04/25/07, Metro Ord. 06-1129B, Metro Ord. 10-1238A, Metro Ord. 10-1244B 

that would complement and enhance investments in particular Centers, Corridors, 
Station Communities and Main Streets.  

1.2.5. Measure the success of regional efforts to improve Centers and Centers, Corridors, 
Station Communities and Main Streets and report results to the region and the state and 
revise strategies, if performance so indicates, to improve the results of investments and 
incentives. 

1.3 Housing Choices and Opportunities 
It is the policy of the Metro Council to: 

1.3.1. Provide housing choices in the region, including single family, multi-family, ownership 
and rental housing, and housing offered by the private, public and nonprofit sectors, 
paying special attention to those households with fewest housing choices. 

1.3.2. As part of the effort to provide housing choices, encourage local governments to ensure 
that their land use regulations: 

 a. Allow a diverse range of housing types; 

 b. Make housing choices available to households of all income levels; and 

 c. Allow affordable housing, particularly in Centers and Corridors and other areas 
well-served with public services and frequent transit service. 

1.3.3. Reduce the percentage of the region’s households that are cost-burdened, meaning 
those households paying more than 50 percent of their incomes on housing and 
transportation. 

1.3.4. Maintain voluntary affordable housing production goals for the region, to be revised over 
time as new information becomes available and displayed in Chapter 8 
(Implementation), and encourage their adoption by the cities and counties of the region. 

1.3.5. Encourage local governments to consider the following tools and strategies to achieve 
the affordable housing production goals: 

a. Density bonuses for affordable housing; 

 b. A no-net-loss affordable housing policy to be applied to quasi-judicial 
amendments to the comprehensive plan; 

 c. A voluntary inclusionary zoning policy; 

 d. A transferable development credits program for affordable housing; 

 e. Policies to accommodate the housing needs of the elderly and disabled; 

 f. Removal of regulatory constraints on the provision of affordable housing; and 

Exhibit B to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 8 of 44



Page 5  
REGIONAL FRAMEWORK PLAN  |  CHAPTER 1 - LAND USE Effective 12/16/10 
Original RFP adopted 12/11/97, Metro Ord. No. 97-715B  
RFP Updated 8/15/05, Metro Ord. 05-1086; 9/29/05, Metro Ord. 05-1077C, 04/25/07, Metro Ord. 06-1129B, Metro Ord. 10-1238A, Metro Ord. 10-1244B 

 g. Policies to ensure that parking requirements do not discourage the provision of 
affordable housing. 

1.3.6 Require local governments in the region to report progress towards increasing the 
supply of affordable housing and seek their assistance in periodic inventories of the 
supply of affordable housing. 

1.3.7 Work in cooperation with local governments, state government, business groups, non-
profit groups and citizens to create an affordable housing fund available region wide in 
order to leverage other affordable housing resources. 

1.3.8 Provide technical assistance to local governments to help them do their part in achieving 
regional goals for the production and preservation of housing choice and affordable 
housing. 

1.3.9 Integrate Metro efforts to expand housing choices with other Metro activities, including 
transportation planning, land use planning and planning for parks and greenspaces. 

1.3.10 When expanding the Urban Growth Boundary, assigning or amending 2040 Growth 
Concept design type designations or making other discretionary decisions, seek 
agreements with local governments and others to improve the balance of housing 
choices with particular attention to affordable housing. 

1.3.11 Consider incentives, such as priority for planning grants and transportation funding, to 
local governments that obtain agreements from landowners and others to devote a 
portion of new residential capacity to affordable housing. 

1.3.12 Help ensure opportunities for low-income housing types throughout the region so that 
families of modest means are not obliged to live concentrated in a few neighborhoods, 
because concentrating poverty is not desirable for the residents or the region. 

1.3.13 Consider investment in transit, pedestrian and bicycle facilities and multi-modal streets 
as an affordable housing tool to reduce household transportation costs to leave more 
household income available for housing. 

1.3.14 For purposes of these policies, “affordable housing” means housing that families earning 
less than 50 percent of the median household income for the region can reasonably 
afford to rent and earn as much as or less than 100 percent of the median household 
income for the region can reasonably afford to buy. 

(RFP Policy 1.3 updated 9/10/98, Metro Ord. 98-769; Policies 1.3, 1.3.1 through 1.3.7. updated, Metro 
Ord. 00-882C; RFP Policies 1.3.1 through 1.3.4, updated 2/05; RFP Policy 1.3 updated 4/25/07, 
Metro Ord. 06-1129B; and amended 12/16/10, Metro Ord. 10-1244B.) 

1.4 Employment Choices and Opportunities 
It is the policy of the Metro Council to: 

Exhibit B to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 9 of 44



Page 6  
REGIONAL FRAMEWORK PLAN  |  CHAPTER 1 - LAND USE Effective 12/16/10 
Original RFP adopted 12/11/97, Metro Ord. No. 97-715B  
RFP Updated 8/15/05, Metro Ord. 05-1086; 9/29/05, Metro Ord. 05-1077C, 04/25/07, Metro Ord. 06-1129B, Metro Ord. 10-1238A, Metro Ord. 10-1244B 

1.4.1. Locate expansions of the UGB for industrial or commercial purposes in locations 
consistent with this plan and where, consistent with state statutes and statewide goals, 
an assessment of the type, mix and wages of existing and anticipated jobs within 
subregions justifies such expansion.   

1.4.2. Balance the number and wage level of jobs within each subregion with housing cost and 
availability within that subregion. Strategies are to be coordinated with the planning and 
implementation activities of this element with Policy 1.3, Housing Choices and 
Opportunities and Policy 1.8, Developed Urban Land. 

1.4.3. Designate, with the aid of leaders in the business and development community and local 
governments in the region, as Regionally Significant Industrial Areas those areas with 
site characteristics that make them especially suitable for the particular requirements of 
industries that offer the best opportunities for family-wage jobs. 

1.4.4. Require, through the Urban Growth Management Functional Plan, that local 
governments exercise their comprehensive planning and zoning authorities to protect 
Regionally Significant Industrial Areas from incompatible uses.  

1.4.5. Facilitate investment in those areas of employment with characteristics that make them 
especially suitable and valuable for traded-sector goods and services, including 
brownfield sites and sites that are re-developable. 

1.4.6. Consistent with policies promoting a compact urban form, ensure that the region 
maintains a sufficient supply of tracts 50 acres and larger to meet demand by traded-
sector industries for large sites and protect those sites from conversion to non-industrial 
uses. 

(RFP Policy 1.4 updated 10/26/00, Metro Ord. 00-879A; and Policies 1.4.1 and 1.4.2 added 12/05/02, 
Metro Ord. 02-969B-06; Policies 1.4.1 through 1.4.2 updated and 1.4.3 and 1.4.4 added 2/05)  

1.5 Economic Vitality  
It is the policy of the Metro Council to: 

1.5.1 Include all parts of the region in the region’s economic development, including areas and 
neighborhoods which have been experiencing increasing poverty and social needs, even 
during periods of a booming regional economy.  

1.5.2 Recognize that to allow the kinds of social and economic decay in older suburbs and the 
central city that has occurred in other larger and older metro regions is a threat to our 
quality of life and the health of the regional economy.  

1.5.3 Ensure that all neighborhoods and all people have access to opportunity and share the 
benefits, as well as the burdens, of economic and population growth in the region.  

1.5.4 Support economic vitality throughout the entire region, by undertaking the following 
steps:  

Exhibit B to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 10 of 44



Page 7  
REGIONAL FRAMEWORK PLAN  |  CHAPTER 1 - LAND USE Effective 12/16/10 
Original RFP adopted 12/11/97, Metro Ord. No. 97-715B  
RFP Updated 8/15/05, Metro Ord. 05-1086; 9/29/05, Metro Ord. 05-1077C, 04/25/07, Metro Ord. 06-1129B, Metro Ord. 10-1238A, Metro Ord. 10-1244B 

a. Monitoring regional and subregional indicators of economic vitality, such as the 
balance of jobs, job compensation and housing availability. 

b. Facilitating collaborative regional approaches which better support economic 
vitality for all parts of the region if monitoring finds that existing efforts to promote 
and support economic vitality in all parts of the region are inadequate.  

1.5.5 Promote, in cooperation with local governments and community residents, revitalization 
of existing city and neighborhood centers that have experienced disinvestment and/or 
are currently underutilized and/or populated by a disproportionately high percentage of 
people living at or below 80 percent of the region’s median income.  

1.6 Growth Management (Repealed, Ord. 10-1244B, 12/16/10) 
(RFP Policy 1.6 updated 10/26/00, Metro Ord. 00-879A; RFP Policy 1.6 updated 2/05; RFP Policy 1.6 

repealed 12/16/10.)  

1.7 Urban and Rural Reserves 
It is the policy of the Metro Council to:  

1.7.1 Establish a system of urban reserves, sufficient to accommodate long-term growth, that 
identifies land outside the UGB suitable for urbanization in a manner consistent with this 
Regional Framework Plan. 

1.7.2 Collaborate with Multnomah, Clackamas and Washington Counties and Neighbor Cities 
to establish a system of rural reserves to protect agricultural land, forest land and natural 
landscape features that help define appropriate natural boundaries to urbanization, and 
to keep a separation from Neighbor Cities to protect their identities and aspirations. 

1.7.3 Designate as urban reserves, with a supply of land to accommodate population and 
employment growth to the year 2060, those lands identified as urban reserves on the 
Urban and Rural Reserves Map in Title 14 of the Urban Growth Management Functional 
Plan. 

1.7.4 Protect those lands designated as rural reserves on the Urban and Rural Reserves Map 
in Title 14 of the Urban Growth Management Functional Plan from addition to the UGB 
and from re-designation as urban reserves at least until the year 2060. 

1.7.5 In conjunction with the appropriate county, cities and service districts, develop concept 
plans for urban reserves prior to their addition to the UGB.  Provide technical, financial 
and other support to the local governments in order to: 

a. Help achieve livable communities and reduce greenhouse gas emissions. 

b. Identify the city or cities that will likely annex the area after it is added to the 
UGB. 

c. Identify the city or cities or the service districts that will likely provide services to 
the area after it is added to the UGB. 

Exhibit B to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 11 of 44



Page 8  
REGIONAL FRAMEWORK PLAN  |  CHAPTER 1 - LAND USE Effective 12/16/10 
Original RFP adopted 12/11/97, Metro Ord. No. 97-715B  
RFP Updated 8/15/05, Metro Ord. 05-1086; 9/29/05, Metro Ord. 05-1077C, 04/25/07, Metro Ord. 06-1129B, Metro Ord. 10-1238A, Metro Ord. 10-1244B 

d. Determine the general urban land uses, key local and regional multi-modal 
transportation facilities and prospective components of the regional system of 
parks, natural areas, open spaces, fish and wildlife habitats, trails and 
greenways. 

1.7.6 Twenty years after the initial designation of the reserves, in conjunction with Clackamas, 
Multnomah and Washington Counties, review the designated urban and rural reserves 
for effectiveness, sufficiency and appropriateness. 

(RFP Policy 1.7 updated 10/26/00, Metro Ord. 00-879A, RFP Policy 1.7 updated 2/05; RFP Policy 1.7 
updated Ord. 10-1238A, 09/08/10.) 

1.8 Developed Urban Land  
It is the policy of the Metro Council to: 

1.8.1 Identify and actively address opportunities for and obstacles to the continued 
development and redevelopment of existing urban land using a combination of 
regulations and incentives to ensure that the prospect of living, working and doing 
business in those locations remains attractive to a wide range of households and 
employers.  

1.8.2 Encourage, in coordination with affected agencies, the redevelopment and reuse of 
lands used in the past or already used for commercial or industrial purposes wherever 
economically viable and environmentally sound.  

1.8.3 Assess redevelopment and infill potential in the region when Metro examines whether 
additional urban land is needed within the UGB, and include the potential for 
redevelopment and infill on existing urban land as an element when calculating the 
buildable land supply in the region, where it can be demonstrated that the infill and 
redevelopment can be reasonably expected to occur during the next 20 years.  

1.8.4 Work with jurisdictions in the region to determine the extent to which redevelopment and 
infill can be relied on to meet the identified need for additional urban land.  

1.8.5 Initiate an amendment to the UGB, after the analysis and review in 1.8.3, to meet that 
portion of the identified need for land not met through commitments for redevelopment 
and infill.  

(RFP Policy 1.8 updated 2/05.)  

1.9 Urban Growth Boundary  
It is the policy of the Metro Council to:  

1.9.1 Establish and maintain an urban growth boundary to limit urbanization of rural land and 
facilitate the development of a compact urban form. 

1.9.2 Consider expansion of the UGB only after having taken all reasonable measures to use 
land within the UGB efficiently. 

Exhibit B to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 12 of 44



Page 9  
REGIONAL FRAMEWORK PLAN  |  CHAPTER 1 - LAND USE Effective 12/16/10 
Original RFP adopted 12/11/97, Metro Ord. No. 97-715B  
RFP Updated 8/15/05, Metro Ord. 05-1086; 9/29/05, Metro Ord. 05-1077C, 04/25/07, Metro Ord. 06-1129B, Metro Ord. 10-1238A, Metro Ord. 10-1244B 

1.9.3 Expand the UGB, when necessary, from land designated Urban Reserves unless they 
cannot reasonably accommodate the demonstrated need to expand. 

1.9.4 Not to expand the UGB onto lands designated Rural Reserves at least until the year 
2060. 

1.9.5 Consult appropriate Neighbor Cities prior to addition of land to the UGB in their vicinity.  

1.9.6 Add land to the UGB only after concept planning for the land has been completed by the 
responsible local governments in collaboration with Metro unless participants cannot 
agree on the plan and addition of the land is necessary to comply with ORS 197.299.   

1.9.7 Provide the following procedures for expansion of the UGB: 

a. A process for minor revisions 

b. A complete and comprehensive process associated with the analysis of the 
capacity of the UGB required periodically of Metro by state planning laws 

c. A process available for expansion to accommodate non-residential needs 
between the state-required capacity analyses 

d. An accelerated process for addition of land to accommodate an immediate need 
for industrial capacity. 

1.9.8 Use natural or built features, whenever practical, to ensure a clear transition from rural to 
urban land use. 

1.9.9 Ensure that expansion of the UGB enhances the roles of Centers, Corridors and Main 
Streets. 

1.9.10 Determine whether the types, mix and wages of existing and potential jobs within 
subareas justifies an expansion in a particular area. 

1.9.11 Conduct an inventory of significant fish and wildlife habitat that would be affected by 
addition of land, and consider the effects of urbanization of the land on the habitat and 
measures to reduce adverse effects, prior to a decision on the proposed addition. 

1.9.12 Use the choice of land to include within the UGB as an opportunity to seek agreement 
with landowners to devote a portion of residential capacity to needed workforce housing 
as determined by the Urban Growth Report adopted as part of the UGB expansion 
process. 

1.9.13 Prepare a report on the effect of the proposed amendment on existing residential 
neighborhoods prior to approving any amendment or amendments of the urban growth 
boundary in excess of 100 acres and send the report to all households within one mile of 
the proposed UGB amendment area and to all cities and counties within the district.  The 
report shall address: 

Exhibit B to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 13 of 44



Page 10  
REGIONAL FRAMEWORK PLAN  |  CHAPTER 1 - LAND USE Effective 12/16/10 
Original RFP adopted 12/11/97, Metro Ord. No. 97-715B  
RFP Updated 8/15/05, Metro Ord. 05-1086; 9/29/05, Metro Ord. 05-1077C, 04/25/07, Metro Ord. 06-1129B, Metro Ord. 10-1238A, Metro Ord. 10-1244B 

a. Traffic patterns and any resulting increase in traffic congestion, commute times 
and air quality. 

b. Whether parks and open space protection in the area to be added will benefit 
existing residents of the district as well as future residents of the added territory. 

c. The cost impacts on existing residents of providing needed public services and 
public infrastructure to the area to be added. 

(RFP Policy Nos. 1.9.1 thru 1.9.4 updated to 1.9.1 thru 1.9.3, 10/26/00, Metro Ord. 00879A; RFP Policy 
1.9.3 regarding Measure 26-29 updated 5/15/03, Metro Ord. 03-1003; RFP Policies 1.9 through 
1.9.3 updated 2/05 and RFP Policies 1.9.4 through 1.9.11 added 2/05; RFP Policy 1.9.12 added 
9/29/05, Metro Ord. 05-1077C, Exb. B, Amend. 3; and RFP Policy No. 1.9 updated 09/08/10, 
Metro Ord. 10-1238A, § 2.)  

1.10 Urban Design  
It is the policy of the Metro Council to:  

1.10.1 Support the identity and functioning of communities in the region through:  

a. Recognizing and protecting critical open space features in the region.  

b. Developing public policies that encourage diversity and excellence in the design 
and development of settlement patterns, landscapes and structures.  

c. Ensuring that incentives and regulations guiding the development and 
redevelopment of the urban area promote a settlement pattern that:  

i) Links any public incentives to a commensurate public benefit received or 
expected and evidence of private needs.  

ii) Is pedestrian “friendly,” Makes biking and walking the most convenient, 
safe and enjoyableconvenient transportation choices for short trips, 
encourages transit use and reduces auto dependence and related 
greenhouse gas emissions.  

iii) Provides access to neighborhood and community parks, trails, schools, 
and walkways bikeways, and other recreation and cultural areas and 
public facilities.  

iv) Reinforces nodal, mixed-use, neighborhood-oriented community designs 
to provide walkable access to a mix of destinations to support meeting 
daily needs, such as jobs, education, shopping, services, transit, and 
recreation, social and cultural activities.  

v) Includes concentrated, high-density, mixed-use urban centers developed 
in relation to the region’s transit system. 

Exhibit B to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 14 of 44



Page 11  
REGIONAL FRAMEWORK PLAN  |  CHAPTER 1 - LAND USE Effective 12/16/10 
Original RFP adopted 12/11/97, Metro Ord. No. 97-715B  
RFP Updated 8/15/05, Metro Ord. 05-1086; 9/29/05, Metro Ord. 05-1077C, 04/25/07, Metro Ord. 06-1129B, Metro Ord. 10-1238A, Metro Ord. 10-1244B 

vi) Is responsive to needs for privacy, community, sense of place and 
personal safety in an urban setting. 

vii) Facilitates the development and preservation of affordable mixed-income 
neighborhoods. 

viii) Avoids and minimizes conflicts between urbanization and the protection 
of regionally significant fish and wildlife habitat. 

1.10.2 Encourage pedestrian-, bicycle- and transit-supportive building patterns in order to 
minimize the need for auto trips, reduce greenhouse gas emissions and to create a 
development pattern conducive to face-to-face community interaction.  

(RFP Policy 1.10.1 (c)(viii) added 9/29/05, Metro Ord. 05-1077C, Exb. B, Amend. 4.)  

1.11 Neighbor Cities  
It is the policy of the Metro Council to:  

1.11.1 Coordinate concept planning of Urban Reserves with Neighbor Cities Sandy, Canby, 
Estacada, Barlow, North Plains, Banks and Vancouver to minimize the generation of 
new automobile trips between Neighbor Cities and the Metro UGB by seeking 
appropriate ratios of dwelling units and jobs within the Metro UGB and in Neighbor 
Cities. 

1.11.2 Pursue agreements with Neighbor Cities, Clackamas and Washington Counties and the 
Oregon Department of Transportation to establish “green corridors” along state 
highways that link Neighbor Cities with cities inside the Metro UGB in order to maintain a 
rural separation between cities, to protect the civic identities of Neighbor Cities, and to 
protect the capacity of those highways to move people and freight between the cities.  

1.11.3 Coordinate with Vancouver, Clark County and the Southwest Washington Transportation 
Council through the Bi-State Coordinating Committee and other appropriate channels on 
population and employment forecasting; transportation; economic development; 
emergency management; park, trail and natural area planning; and other growth 
management issues. 

(RFP Policy 1.11.3 updated 10/26/00, Metro Ord. 00-879A; RFP Policy 1.9 updated 2/05; and RFP 
Policy1.11 updated 09/08/10, Metro Ord. 10-1238A, § 2.)  

1.12 Protection of Agriculture and Forest Resource Lands.  (Repealed, Ord. 10-
1238A, 09/08/10, § 2 ) 

(Policies 1.12.1 through 1.12.4 updated 9/22/04, Metro Ord. 04-1040B-01; RFP Policy 1.12 updated 2/05; 
and repealed Metro Ord. 10-1238A, § 2.)  

1.13 Participation of Citizens  
It is the policy of the Metro Council to:  

Exhibit B to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 15 of 44



Page 12  
REGIONAL FRAMEWORK PLAN  |  CHAPTER 1 - LAND USE Effective 12/16/10 
Original RFP adopted 12/11/97, Metro Ord. No. 97-715B  
RFP Updated 8/15/05, Metro Ord. 05-1086; 9/29/05, Metro Ord. 05-1077C, 04/25/07, Metro Ord. 06-1129B, Metro Ord. 10-1238A, Metro Ord. 10-1244B 

1.13.1 Encourage public participation in Metro land use planning.  

1.13.2 Follow and promote the citizen participation values inherent in the RFP and the Metro 
Citizen Involvement Principles.  

1.13.3 Encourage local governments to provide opportunities for public involvement in land use 
planning and delivery of recreational facilities and services.  

1.14 School and Local Government Plan and Policy Coordination  
It is the policy of the Metro Council to: 

1.14.1 Coordinate plans among local governments, including cities, counties, special districts 
and school districts for adequate school facilities for already developed and urbanizing 
areas.  

1.14.2 Consider school facilities to be “public facilities” in the review of city and county 
comprehensive plans for compliance with the Regional Framework Plan.  

1.14.3 Work with local governments and school districts on school facility plans to ensure that 
the Urban Growth Boundary contains a sufficient supply of land for school facility needs.  

1.14.4 Use the appropriate means, including, but not limited to, public forums, open houses, 
symposiums, dialogues with state and local government officials, school district 
representatives, and the general public in order to identify funding sources necessary to 
acquire future school sites and commensurate capital construction to accommodate 
anticipated growth in school populations.  

1.14.5 Prepare a school siting and facilities functional plan with the advice of MPAC to 
implement the policies of this Plan.  

(RFP Policy 1.14.2 updated 11/24/98, Metro Ord. 98-789; RFP Policy 1.14.2 updated 12/13/01, Metro 
Ord. 01-929A; RFP Policy 1.14 updated 2/05.)  

1.15 Centers (Repealed, Ord. 10-1244B, 12/16/10) 
(RFP Policy 1.15 added 12/05/02, Metro Ord. 02-969B-06; RFP Policy 1.15 updated 2/05; RFP Policy 1.5 

repealed 12/16/10.)  

1.16 Residential Neighborhoods  
It is the policy of the Metro Council to: 

1.16.1 Recognize that the livability of existing residential neighborhoods is essential to the 
success of the 2040 Growth Concept.  

1.16.2 Take measures, in order to protect and improve the region’s existing residential 
neighborhoods, by:  

Exhibit B to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 16 of 44



Page 13  
REGIONAL FRAMEWORK PLAN  |  CHAPTER 1 - LAND USE Effective 12/16/10 
Original RFP adopted 12/11/97, Metro Ord. No. 97-715B  
RFP Updated 8/15/05, Metro Ord. 05-1086; 9/29/05, Metro Ord. 05-1077C, 04/25/07, Metro Ord. 06-1129B, Metro Ord. 10-1238A, Metro Ord. 10-1244B 

a. Protecting residential neighborhoods from air and water pollution, noise and 
crime. 

b. Making community services accessible to residents of neighborhoods by walking, 
bicycle and transit, where possible. 

c. Facilitating the provision of affordable government utilities and services to 
residential neighborhoods. 

1.16.3 Not require local governments to increase the density of existing single-family 
neighborhoods identified solely as Inner or Outer Neighborhoods.  

(RFP Policy 1.16 added 12/05/02, Metro Ord. 02-969B-06, pursuant to Measure 26-29, enacted by the 
Metro Area voters on 5/21/02.) 

 
********** 

Exhibit B to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 17 of 44



	  

Exhibit B to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 18 of 44



 

C
hapter 2 

Transportation 
 

 

Recommended changes (December 9, 2014) 
All of Chapter 2 of the Regional Framework Plan is provided for reference.  Changes shown in single 
strikethrough and single underscore were included in the Sept. 15, 2014 public review draft.  Changes 
shown in double strikethrough and double underscore reflect additional recommended changes to 
respond to comments received during the comment period and subsequent discussions by Metro’s 
regional advisory committees. 

Exhibit B to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 19 of 44



Page 1 METRO’s REGIONAL FRAMEWORK PLAN (RFP) Effective  
 CHAPTER 2  -  TRANSPORTATION 
 Original RFP Adopted pursuant to Ordinance No. 97-715B, 12/11/97 

 RFP Updated 8/15/05, Metro Ord. 05-1086, Metro Ord. 10-1241B 

REGIONAL FRAMEWORK PLAN 
CHAPTER 2 TRANSPORTATION 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 

CHAPTER 2 TRANSPORTATION ........................................................................................... 2 

Introduction ................................................................................................................................. 3 

Goal 1: Foster Vibrant Communities and Efficient Urban Form ........................................ 4 
Objective 1.1 Compact Urban Form and Design ..................................................................... 4 
Objective 1.2 Parking Management ......................................................................................... 4 
Objective 1.3 Affordable Housing ............................................................................................. 4 

Goal 2: Sustain Economic Competitiveness and Prosperity ............................................. 4 
Objective 2.1 Reliable and Efficient Travel and Market Area Access ...................................... 4 
Objective 2.2 Regional Passenger Connectivity ...................................................................... 4 
Objective 2.3 Metropolitan Mobility .......................................................................................... 4 
Objective 2.4 Freight Reliability ................................................................................................ 4 
Objective 2.5 Job Retention and Creation ............................................................................... 4 

Goal 3: Expand Transportation Choices ............................................................................. 5 
Objective 3.1 Travel Choices ................................................................................................... 5 
Objective 3.2 Vehicle Miles of Travel ....................................................................................... 5 
Objective 3.3 Equitable Access and Barrier Free Transportation ............................................ 5 
Objective 3.4 Shipping Choices ............................................................................................... 5 

Goal 4: Emphasize Effective and Efficient Management of the Transportation System 5 
Objective 4.1 Traffic Management ........................................................................................... 5 
Objective 4.2 Traveler Information ........................................................................................... 5 
Objective 4.3 Incident Management ......................................................................................... 5 
Objective 4.4 Demand Management ........................................................................................ 5 
Objective 4.5 Value Pricing ...................................................................................................... 5 

Goal 5: Enhance Safety and Security .................................................................................. 6 
Objective 5.1 Operational and Public Safety ............................................................................ 6 
Objective 5.2 Crime .................................................................................................................. 6 
Objective 5.3 Terrorism, Natural Disasters and Hazardous Material Incidents ........................ 6 

Goal 6: Promote Environmental Stewardship ..................................................................... 6 
Objective 6.1 Natural Environment .......................................................................................... 6 
Objective 6.2 Clean Air ............................................................................................................ 6 
Objective 6.3 Water Quality and Quantity ................................................................................ 6 

Exhibit B to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 20 of 44



Page 2 METRO’s REGIONAL FRAMEWORK PLAN (RFP) Effective  
 CHAPTER 2  -  TRANSPORTATION 
 Original RFP Adopted pursuant to Ordinance No. 97-715B, 12/11/97 

 RFP Updated 8/15/05, Metro Ord. 05-1086, Metro Ord. 10-1241B 

Objective 6.4 Energy and Land Consumption .......................................................................... 6 
Objective 6.5 Climate Change ................................................................................................. 6 

Goal 7: Enhance Human Health ............................................................................................ 6 
Objective 7.1 Active Living ....................................................................................................... 6 
Objective 7.2 Pollution Impacts ................................................................................................ 6 

Goal 8: Ensure Equity ............................................................................................................ 6 
Objective 8.1 Environmental Justice ........................................................................................ 7 
Objective 8.2 Coordinated Human Services Transportation Needs ......................................... 7 
Objective 8.3 Housing Diversity ............................................................................................... 7 
Objective 8.4 Transportation and Housing Costs ..................................................................... 7 

Goal 9: Ensure Fiscal Stewardship ...................................................................................... 7 
Objective 9.1 Asset Management ............................................................................................ 7 
Objective 9.2 Maximize Return on Public Investment .............................................................. 7 
Objective 9.3 Stable and Innovative Funding ........................................................................... 7 

Goal 10: Deliver Accountability .............................................................................................. 7 
Objective 10.1 Meaningful Input Opportunities ........................................................................ 7 
Objective 10.2 Coordination and Cooperation ......................................................................... 7 

 
Goal 11. Demonstrate Leadership on Reducing Greenhouse Gas Emissions….…………8 

Objective 11.1  Land Use and Transportation Integration ………………...…………………..…8 
Objective 11.2 Clean Fuels and Clean Vehicles………………………………  ………….....……8 
Objective 11.3 Regional and Community Transit Access……-----------------…………………..…8 
Objective 11.4 Active Transportation Network ………………………..………  ……………..……8 
Objective 11.5 Transportation Systems Management and Operations……………….……….…8 
Objective 11.6 Transportation Demand Management ………………………………..…….…..…8 
Objective 11.7 Parking Management………………..…………………...……………………..……8 
Objective 11.8 Streets and Highways Network ………………….………......………………..……8 
Objective 11.9 Metro Actions……….. ………………….………...………………………...…..……9 
Objective 11.10 Partner Actions………………… ………………….………...………………..……9 
 

Exhibit B to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 21 of 44



Page 3 METRO’s REGIONAL FRAMEWORK PLAN (RFP) Effective  
 CHAPTER 2  -  TRANSPORTATION 
 Original RFP Adopted pursuant to Ordinance No. 97-715B, 12/11/97 

 RFP Updated 8/15/05, Metro Ord. 05-1086, Metro Ord. 10-1241B 

Chapter 2 Transportation 

Introduction 
In 1992, the region’s voters approved a charter for Metro that formally gave responsibility for 
regional land use planning to the agency, and requires adoption of a Regional Framework Plan 
that integrates land use, transportation and other regional planning mandates.  The combined 
policies of this framework plan establish a new framework for planning in the region by linking 
land use and transportation plans.  Fundamental to this plan is a transportation system that 
integrates goods and people movement with the surrounding land uses.   
 
This chapter of the Regional Framework Plan presents the overall policy framework for the 
specific transportation goals, objectives and actions contained in the Regional Transportation 
Plan (RTP).  It also sets a direction for future transportation planning and decision-making by 
the Metro Council and the implementing agencies, counties and cities.  The policies in this 
chapter are also a key component of the regional strategy to reduce per capita greenhouse gas 
emissions from light-duty vehicle travel. 
 
The policies aim to implement the 2040 Growth Concept and: 

• Protect the economic health and livability of the region. 

• Improve the safety of the transportation system. 

• Provide a transportation system that is efficient and cost-effective, investing our limited 
resources wisely. 

• Make the most of the investments the region has already made in our transportation 
system through system and demand management strategies, such as by expanding the 
use of technology to actively manage the transportation system, and providing traveler 
information and incentives to expand the use of travel options. 

• Make transit more convenient, frequent, accessible and affordable. 

• Provide access to more and better choices for travel in this region and serve special 
access needs for all people, including youth, elderly seniorsolder adults and disabled 
people with disabilities and people with low income. 

• Provide adequate levels of mobility for people and goods within the region. 

• Protect air and water quality and, promote energy conservation, and reduce greenhouse 
gas emissions. 

• Provide transportation facilities that support a balance of jobs and housing. 

• Make biking and walking the most safe and convenient, safe and enjoyable 
transportation choices for short trips. 

• Limit dependence on any single mode of drive alone travel, and increaseing the use of 
transit, bikingbicycling, walking, and carpooling, and vanpooling and the use of transit. 

• Make streets and highways safe, reliable and connected to pProvideinge for the 
movement of people and goods through an interconnected system of street, highway, 
air, marine and rail systems, including passenger and freight intermodal facilities and air 
and water terminals. 

Exhibit B to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 22 of 44



Page 4 METRO’s REGIONAL FRAMEWORK PLAN (RFP) Effective  
 CHAPTER 2  -  TRANSPORTATION 
 Original RFP Adopted pursuant to Ordinance No. 97-715B, 12/11/97 

 RFP Updated 8/15/05, Metro Ord. 05-1086, Metro Ord. 10-1241B 

• Integrate land use, automobile, bicycle, pedestrian, freight and public transportation 
needs in regional and local street designs. 

• Use transportation demand management and system management strategies. 

• Limit the impact of urban travel on rural land through use of green corridors. 

• Manage parking to make efficient use of vehicle parking and land dedicated to vehicle 
and parking spaces. 

• Demonstrate leadership on climate changereducing greenhouse gas emissions. 

Goal 1: Foster Vibrant Communities and Efficient Urban Form 
Land use and transportation decisions are linked to optimize public investments, reduce 
greenhouse gas emissions and support active transportation options and jobs, schools, 
shopping, services, recreational opportunities and housing proximity. 

Objective 1.1 Compact Urban Form and Design 
Use transportation investments to reinforce focus growth in and provide multi-modal access to 
2040 Target Areas and ensure that development in 2040 Target Areas is consistent with and 
supports the transportation investments. 

Objective 1.2 Parking Management 
Minimize the amount and promote the efficient use of land dedicated to vehicle parking. 

Objective 1.3 Affordable Housing 
Support the preservation and production of affordable housing in the region. 

Goal 2: Sustain Economic Competitiveness and Prosperity 
Multi-modal transportation infrastructure and services support the region’s well-being and a 
diverse, innovative, sustainable and growing regional and state economy. 

Objective 2.1 Reliable and Efficient Travel and Market Area Access 
Provide for reliable and efficient multi-modal local, regional, interstate and intrastate travel and 
market area access through a seamless and well-connected system of throughways, arterial 
streets, freight services, transit services and bicycle and pedestrian facilities. 

Objective 2.2 Regional Passenger Connectivity 
Ensure reliable and efficient connections between passenger intermodal facilities and 
destinations in and beyond the region to improve non-auto access to and from the region and 
promote the region’s function as a gateway for tourism. 

Objective 2.3 Metropolitan Mobility 
Maintain sufficient total person-trip and freight capacity among the various modes operating in 
the Regional Mobility Corridors to allow reasonable and reliable travel times through those 
corridors. 

Objective 2.4 Freight Reliability 
Maintain reasonable and reliable travel times and access through the region as well as between 
freight intermodal facilities and destinations within and beyond the region to promote the 
region’s function as a gateway for commerce. 

Objective 2.5 Job Retention and Creation 
Attract new businesses and family-wage jobs and retain those that are already located in the 
region. 
  

Exhibit B to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 23 of 44



Page 5 METRO’s REGIONAL FRAMEWORK PLAN (RFP) Effective  
 CHAPTER 2  -  TRANSPORTATION 
 Original RFP Adopted pursuant to Ordinance No. 97-715B, 12/11/97 

 RFP Updated 8/15/05, Metro Ord. 05-1086, Metro Ord. 10-1241B 

Goal 3: Expand Transportation Choices 
Multi-modal transportation infrastructure and services provide all residents of the region with 
affordable and equitable options for accessing housing, jobs, services, shopping, educational, 
cultural and recreational opportunities, and facilitate competitive choices for goods movement 
for all businesses in the region. 

Objective 3.1 Travel Choices 
Achieve modal targets for increased walking, bicycling, use of transit and shared ride and 
reduced reliance on the automobile and drive alone trips. 

Objective 3.2 Vehicle Miles of Travel 
Reduce vehicle miles traveled per capita. 

Objective 3.3 Equitable Access and Barrier Free Transportation 
Provide affordable and equitable access to travel choices and serve the needs of all people and 
businesses, including people with low income, youth, children, elders older adults andand 
people with disabilities and people with low incomes, to connect with jobs, education, services, 
recreation, social and cultural activities. 

Objective 3.4 Shipping Choices 
Support multi-modal freight transportation system that includes air cargo, pipeline, trucking, rail, 
and marine services to facilitate competitive choices for goods movement for businesses in the 
region. 

Goal 4: Emphasize Effective and Efficient Management of the Transportation System 
Existing and future multi-modal transportation infrastructure and services are well-managed to 
optimize capacity, improve travel conditions for all users and address air quality and 
greenhouse gas emissions reduction goals. 

Objective 4.1 Traffic Management 
Apply technology solutions to actively manage the transportation system. 

Objective 4.2 Traveler Information 
Provide comprehensive real-time traveler information to people and businesses in the region. 

Objective 4.3 Incident Management 
Improve traffic incident detection and clearance times on the region’s transit, arterial and 
throughways networks. 

Objective 4.4 Demand Management 
Implement services, incentives and supportive infrastructure to increase telecommuting, 
walking, biking, taking transit, and carpooling, and shift travel to off-peak periods. 

Objective 4.5 Value Pricing 
Consider a wide range of value pricing strategies and techniques as a management tool, 
including but not limited to parking management to encourage walking, biking and transit 
ridership and selectively promote short-term and long-term strategies as appropriate. 
  

Exhibit B to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 24 of 44



Page 6 METRO’s REGIONAL FRAMEWORK PLAN (RFP) Effective  
 CHAPTER 2  -  TRANSPORTATION 
 Original RFP Adopted pursuant to Ordinance No. 97-715B, 12/11/97 

 RFP Updated 8/15/05, Metro Ord. 05-1086, Metro Ord. 10-1241B 

Goal 5: Enhance Safety and Security 
Multi-modal transportation infrastructure and services are safe and secure for the public and 
goods movement. 

Objective 5.1 Operational and Public Safety 
Reduce fatal and severe injury injuries and crashes for all modes of travel. 

Objective 5.2 Crime 
Reduce vulnerability of the public, goods movement and critical transportation infrastructure to 
crime. 

Objective 5.3 Terrorism, Natural Disasters and Hazardous Material Incidents 
Reduce vulnerability of the public, goods movement and critical transportation infrastructure to 
acts of terrorism, natural disasters, climate change, hazardous material spills or other 
hazardous incidents. 

Goal 6: Promote Environmental Stewardship 
Promote responsible stewardship of the region’s natural, community, and cultural resources. 

Objective 6.1 Natural Environment 
Avoid or minimize undesirable impacts on fish and wildlife habitat conservation areas, wildlife 
corridors, significant flora and open spaces. 

Objective 6.2 Clean Air 
Reduce transportation-related vehicle emissions to improve air quality so that as growth occurs, 
the view of the Cascades and the Coast Range from within the region are maintained. 

Objective 6.3 Water Quality and Quantity 
Protect the region’s water quality and natural stream flows. 

Objective 6.4 Energy and Land Consumption 
Reduce transportation-related energy and land consumption and the region’s dependence on 
unstable energy sources. 

Objective 6.5 Climate Change 
Reduce transportation-related greenhouse gas emissions and meet adopted targets for 
reducing greenhouse gas emissions from light vehicle travel. 

Goal 7: Enhance Human Health 
Multi-modal transportation infrastructure and services provide safe, comfortable and convenient 
options that support active living and physical activity, and minimize transportation-related 
pollution that negatively impacts human health. 

Objective 7.1 Active Living 
Provide safe, comfortable and convenient transportation options that support active living and 
physical activity to meet daily needs and access services. 

Objective 7.2 Pollution Impacts 
Minimize noise, impervious surface and other transportation-related pollution impacts on 
residents in the region to reduce negative health effects. 

Goal 8: Ensure Equity 
The benefits and adverse impacts of regional transportation planning, programs and investment 
decisions are equitably distributed among population demographics and geography, considering 
different parts of the region and census block groups with different incomes, races and 
ethnicities. 

Exhibit B to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 25 of 44



Page 7 METRO’s REGIONAL FRAMEWORK PLAN (RFP) Effective  
 CHAPTER 2  -  TRANSPORTATION 
 Original RFP Adopted pursuant to Ordinance No. 97-715B, 12/11/97 

 RFP Updated 8/15/05, Metro Ord. 05-1086, Metro Ord. 10-1241B 

Objective 8.1 Environmental Justice 
Ensure benefits and impacts of investments are equitably distributed by population 
demographics and geography. 

Objective 8.2 Coordinated Human Services Transportation Needs 
Ensure investments in the transportation system provide a full range of affordable options for 
people with low income, elders and people with disabilities consistent with the Tri-County 
Coordinated Human Services Transportation Plan (CHSTP). 

Objective 8.3 Housing Diversity 
Use transportation investments to achieve greater diversity of housing opportunities by linking 
investments to measures taken by the local governments to increase housing diversity. 

Objective 8.4 Transportation and Housing Costs 
Reduce the share of households in the region spending more than 50 percent of household 
income on housing and transportation combined. 

Goal 9: Ensure Fiscal Stewardship 
Regional transportation planning and investment decisions ensure the best return on public 
investments in infrastructure and programs and are guided by data and analyses. 

Objective 9.1 Asset Management 
Adequately update, repair and maintain transportation facilities and services to preserve their 
function, maintain their useful life and eliminate maintenance backlogs. 

Objective 9.2 Maximize Return on Public Investment 
Make transportation investment decisions that use public resources effectively and efficiently, 
using performance-based planning approach supported by data and analyses that include all 
transportation modes. 

Objective 9.3 Stable and Innovative Funding 
Stabilize existing transportation revenue while securing new and innovative long-term sources 
of funding adequate to build, operate and maintain the regional transportation system for all 
modes of travel at the federal, state, regional and local level. 

Goal 10: Deliver Accountability 
The region’s government, business, institutional and community leaders work together in an 
open and transparent manner so the public has meaningful opportunities for input on 
transportation decisions and experiences an integrated, comprehensive system of 
transportation facilities and services that bridge governance, institutional and fiscal barriers. 

Objective 10.1 Meaningful Input Opportunities 
Provide meaningful input opportunities for interested and affected stakeholders, including 
people who have traditionally been underrepresented, resource agencies, business, institutional 
and community stakeholders, and local, regional and state jurisdictions that own and operate 
the region’s transportation system in plan development and review. 

Objective 10.2 Coordination and Cooperation 
Ensure representation in regional transportation decision-making is equitable from among all 
affected jurisdictions and stakeholders and improve coordination and cooperation among the 
public and private owners and operators of the region’s transportation system so the system can 
function in a coordinated manner and better provide for state and regional transportation needs. 
 
  

Exhibit B to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 26 of 44



Page 8 METRO’s REGIONAL FRAMEWORK PLAN (RFP) Effective  
 CHAPTER 2  -  TRANSPORTATION 
 Original RFP Adopted pursuant to Ordinance No. 97-715B, 12/11/97 

 RFP Updated 8/15/05, Metro Ord. 05-1086, Metro Ord. 10-1241B 

Goal 11: Demonstrate leadership on climate changereducing greenhouse gas emissions 
It is the policy of the Metro Council to: 

11.1 Adopt and It is the policy of the Metro Council to implement the regional climate strategy 
to meet adopted targets for reducing greenhouse gas emissions from light-duty vehicle travel 
while creating healthy and equitable communities and a strong economy. The strategy shall 
includes: 

Objective 11.1 Land Use and Transportation Integration 
Continue to implementing the 2040 Growth Concept through regional plans and functional plans 
adopted by the Metro Council for local governments to support a compact urban form to reduce 
vehicle miles traveled and increase the use of transit and zero or low carbon emissions travel 
options, such as bicycling, walking, and electric vehicles. 

Objective 11.2 Clean Fuels and Clean Vehicles 
Support state efforts to transition Oregon to cleaner, low carbon fuels and increase the use of 
more fuel-efficient vehicles, including electric and alternative fuel vehicles. 

• Expanding the use of low carbon transportation options across the region by: 

Objective 11.3 Regional and Community Transit Network and Access 
Make transit convenient, frequent, accessible and affordable by investing in new community and 
regional transit connections, expanding and improving existing transit services, improving 
bicycle and pedestrian access to transit, and implementing reduced fare programs for transit-
dependent communities, such as youth, older adults, people with disabilities and people with 
low income to make transit convenient, frequent, accessible and affordable. 

Objective 11.4 Active Transportation Network 
Makeing biking and walking safe the safest, and most convenient and enjoyable transportation 
choices for short trips for all ages and abilities by completing gaps and addressing deficiencies 
in the region’s network of bicycle and pedestrian networks that connect people to their jobs, 
schools and other destinations. 

Objective 11.5 Transportation Systems Management and Operations 
Making the most of investments the region has already made in the transportation system  
Enhance fuel efficiency and system investments and reduce emissions by using technology to 
actively manage and fully optimize the transportation system. 

Objective 11.6 Transportation Demand Management 
Implement programs, services and other tools that provide commuters, households, and 
businesses with and providing information and incentives to expand the use of travel options, 
including carsharing, and reduce drive alone trips. 

Objective 11.7 Parking Management 
Implement locally-defined approaches to parking management of parking in Centers, Corridors, 
Station Communities and Main Streets served by frequent transit service and active 
transportation options Managing parking to make efficient use of vehicle parking and land 
dedicated to parking. 

Objective 11.8 Streets and Highways Network 

Exhibit B to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 27 of 44



Page 9 METRO’s REGIONAL FRAMEWORK PLAN (RFP) Effective  
 CHAPTER 2  -  TRANSPORTATION 
 Original RFP Adopted pursuant to Ordinance No. 97-715B, 12/11/97 

 RFP Updated 8/15/05, Metro Ord. 05-1086, Metro Ord. 10-1241B 

Investing strategically in streets and highways to make them safe, reliable and connected to 
support the movement of people and goods. 

• Supporting and building upon Oregon's transition to cleaner, low carbon fuels and more 
fuel-efficient vehicles;  

• Securing adequate funding for transportation investments.; and  

• Demonstrating leadership on climate change. 

11.3Objective 11. 9 Metro Actions 
Take actions recommended to implement the regional climate strategy Toolbox of Possible 
Actions to meet adopted targets for reducing greenhouse gas emissions from light-duty vehicle 
travel, including such as: 

Implement the 2040 Growth Concept through regional plans and functional plans. 

i. Maintain and periodically update the Toolbox of Possible Actions and encourage local, 
state and federal governments and special districts to implement the toolbox actions in 
locally tailored ways. 

ii. Work with local, state and federal governments, community and business leaders and 
organizations, and special districts to implement the strategy, including securing 
adequate funding for transportation and other investments needed to implement the 
strategy.  

iii. Build a diverse coalition that includes elected official and business and community 
leaders at local, regional and state levels to secure adequate funding for transportation 
and other investments needed to implement the strategy. 

iii. Provide technical assistance, best practices and grant funding to local governments and 
other business and community partners to encourage and support implementation of the 
strategy. and 

iv. Report on the potential light-duty vehicle greenhouse gas emissions impacts of Metro’s 
major land use and transportation RTP policy and investment decisions to determine 
whether they help the region meet adopted targets for reducing greenhouse gas 
emissions. 

v.  Monitor and measure the progress of local and regional efforts to meet adopted targets 
for reducing greenhouse gas emissions from light-duty vehicle travel as described in 
Chapter 7 of the Regional Framework Plan, report the results to the region and state on 
a periodic basis, and guide the consideration of revision or replacement of the policies 
and actions, if performance so indicates, as part of federally-requiredregularly scheduled 
updates to the Regional Transportation Plan. 

11.4 Objective 11.10 Partner Actions 
Encourage local, state and federal governments and special districts to take locallytailored 
consider implementing actions recommended in the climate strategy Toolbox of Possible 
Actions in locally tailored ways to help the region meet adopted targets for reducing greenhouse 
gas emissions from light-duty vehicle travel, .including such as: 

Exhibit B to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 28 of 44



Page 10 METRO’s REGIONAL FRAMEWORK PLAN (RFP) Effective  
 CHAPTER 2  -  TRANSPORTATION 
 Original RFP Adopted pursuant to Ordinance No. 97-715B, 12/11/97 

 RFP Updated 8/15/05, Metro Ord. 05-1086, Metro Ord. 10-1241B 

i. Implement plans and zoning that focus higher density, mixed-use zoning and 
development near transit. 

ii. Implement capital improvements in frequent bus corridors, such as dedicated bus lanes, 
stop/shelter improvements, and intersection priority treatments, to increase service 
performance. 

iii. Complete gaps in pedestrian and bicycle access to transit. 

• build infrastructure and urban design elements that facilitate and support bicycling and 
walking (e.g., completing gaps, crosswalks and other crossing treatments, wayfinding 
signs, bicycle parking, bicycle sharing programs, lighting, separated facilities); 

• link active transportation investments to providing transit and travel information and 
incentives 

iv. Adopt “complete streets” policies and designs to support all users. 

• invest in making new and existing streets “complete” and connected to support all users; 
v. Integrate multi-modal designs in road improvement and maintenance projects to support 

all users. 

• expand use of intelligent transportation systems (ITS), including active traffic 
management, incident management and travel information programs and coordinate 
with capital projects; 

• partner with transit providers to expand deployment of transit signal priority along 
corridors with 15-minute or better transit service; 

• partner with businesses and/or business associations and transportation management 
associations to implement demand management programs in employment areas and 
centers served with active transportation options, 15-minute or better transit service, and 
parking management; 

• expand local travel options program delivery through new coordinator positions and 
partnerships with business associations, transportation management associations, and 
other non-profit and community-based organizations; 

vi. Implement safe routes to school and transit programs. 
vii. Prepare community inventory of public parking spaces and usage. 

• adopt shared and unbundled parking policies; 

• provide preferential parking for electric vehicles, vehicles using alternative fuels and 
carpools; 

• adopt policies and update development codes to support private adoption of alternative 
fuel vehicles (AVFs), such as streamlining permitting for fueling stations, planning for 
access to charging and compressed natural gas (CNG) stations, allowing charging and 
CNG stations in residences, work places and public places, providing preferential 
parking for AFVs, and encouraging new construction to include necessary infrastructure 
to support use of AFVs; 

• prepare and periodically update a community-wide greenhouse gas emissions inventory;  

• adopt greenhouse gas emissions reduction policies and performance targets; and 
viii. Develop and implement local climate action plans. 

Exhibit B to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 29 of 44



Page 11 METRO’s REGIONAL FRAMEWORK PLAN (RFP) Effective  
 CHAPTER 2  -  TRANSPORTATION 
 Original RFP Adopted pursuant to Ordinance No. 97-715B, 12/11/97 

 RFP Updated 8/15/05, Metro Ord. 05-1086, Metro Ord. 10-1241B 

11.45 Monitor and measure the progress of local and regional efforts in meeting adopted 
targets for reducing greenhouse gas emissions from light vehicle travel, report the 
results to the region and state on a periodic basis, and guide the consideration of 
revision or replacement of the policies and actions, if performance so indicates, as 
part of updates to the Regional Transportation Plan. 

 
******************* 

 
The following is a clean version of the updated Goal 11 (and 
objectives) to help readability: 
 
Goal 11: Demonstrate Leadership on Reducing Greenhouse Gas Emissions 
It is the policy of the Metro Council to implement the regional strategy to meet adopted targets 
for reducing greenhouse gas emissions from light-duty vehicle travel while creating healthy and 
equitable communities and a strong economy.  

Objective 11.1 Land Use and Transportation Integration 
Continue to implement the 2040 Growth Concept to support a compact urban form to reduce 
vehicle miles traveled and increase the use of transit and zero or low carbon emission travel 
options, such as bicycling, walking, and electric vehicles. 

Objective 11.2 Clean Fuels and Clean Vehicles 
Support state efforts to transition Oregon to cleaner, low carbon fuels and increase the use of 
more fuel-efficient vehicles, including electric and alternative fuel vehicles. 

Objective 11.3 Regional and Community Transit Network and Access 
Make transit convenient, frequent, accessible and affordable by investing in new community and 
regional transit connections, expanding and improving existing transit services, improving 
bicycle and pedestrian access to transit, and implementing reduced fare programs for transit-
dependent communities, such as youth, older adults, people with disabilities and people with 
low income. 

Objective 11.4 Active Transportation Network 
Make biking and walking the safest, most convenient and enjoyable transportation choices for 
short trips for all ages and abilities by completing gaps and addressing deficiencies in the 
region’s bicycle and pedestrian networks. 

Objective 11.5 Transportation Systems Management and Operations 
Enhance fuel efficiency and system investments and reduce emissions by using technology to 
actively manage and fully optimize the transportation system. 

Objective 11.6 Transportation Demand Management 
Implement programs, services and other tools that provide commuters and households with 
information and incentives to expand the use of travel options, including carsharing, and reduce 
drive alone trips. 

 

Exhibit B to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 30 of 44



Page 12 METRO’s REGIONAL FRAMEWORK PLAN (RFP) Effective  
 CHAPTER 2  -  TRANSPORTATION 
 Original RFP Adopted pursuant to Ordinance No. 97-715B, 12/11/97 

 RFP Updated 8/15/05, Metro Ord. 05-1086, Metro Ord. 10-1241B 

Objective 11.7 Parking Management 
Implement locally-defined approaches to parking management in Centers, Corridors, Station 
Communities and Main Streets served by frequent transit service and active transportation 
options to make efficient use of vehicle parking and land dedicated to parking. 

Objective 11.8 Streets and Highways Network 
Invest strategically in streets and highways to make them safe, reliable and connected to 
support the movement of people and goods. 

Objective 11. 9 Metro Actions 
Take actions to implement the regional strategy to meet adopted targets for reducing 
greenhouse gas emissions from light-duty vehicle travel, such as: 

i. Maintain and periodically update the Toolbox of Possible Actions and encourage local, 
state and federal governments and special districts to implement the toolbox actions in 
locally tailored ways. 

ii. Work with local, state and federal governments, community and business leaders and 
organizations, and special districts to implement the strategy, including securing 
adequate funding for transportation and other investments needed to implement the 
strategy.  

iii. Provide technical assistance, best practices and grant funding to local governments and 
other business and community partners to encourage and support implementation of the 
strategy. 

iv. Report on the potential light-duty vehicle greenhouse gas emissions impacts of Metro’s 
major land use and RTP policy and investment decisions to determine whether they help 
the region meet adopted targets for reducing greenhouse gas emissions. 

v. Monitor and measure the progress of local and regional efforts to meet adopted targets 
for reducing greenhouse gas emissions from light-duty vehicle travel as described in 
Chapter 7 of the Regional Framework Plan, report the results to the region and state on 
a periodic basis, and guide the consideration of revision or replacement of the policies 
and actions, if performance so indicates, as part of regularly scheduled updates to the 
Regional Transportation Plan. 

Objective 11.10 Partner Actions 
Encourage local, state and federal governments and special districts to consider implementing 
actions in the Toolbox of Possible Actions in locally tailored ways to help the region meet 
adopted targets for reducing greenhouse gas emissions from light-duty vehicle travel. 

Exhibit B to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 31 of 44



	  

Exhibit B to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 32 of 44



METRO’s REGIONAL FRAMEWORK PLAN (RFP)  Updated 01/13/11 
CHAPTER 7  -  MANAGEMENT 
Original RFP Adopted pursuant to Ordinance No. 97-715B, 12/11/97 

C
hapter 7 

M
anagem

ent 

 

 

Recommended changes (December 9, 2014) 
All of Chapter 7 of the Regional Framework Plan is provided for reference. Changes 
shown in double strikethrough and double underscore reflect recommended 
changes to respond to comments received during the comment period and 
subsequent discussions by Metro’s regional advisory committees.  
 

Exhibit B to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 33 of 44



REGIONAL FRAMEWORK PLAN 
CHAPTER 7 MANAGEMENT 

 
TABLE OF CONTENTS 

 

METRO’s REGIONAL FRAMEWORK PLAN (RFP)  Updated 01/13/11 
CHAPTER 7  -  MANAGEMENT  -  TABLE OF CONTENTS 
Original RFP Adopted pursuant to Ordinance No. 97-715B, 12/11/97 

CHAPTER 7 MANAGEMENT .................................................................................. 1 

Introduction ..................................................................................................................... 1 

Policies ............................................................................................................................ 1 

7.1 Citizen Participation ............................................................................................ 1 

7.2 Metro Policy Advisory Committee and Joint Policy Advisory Committee on 

Transportation .................................................................................................... 2 

7.3 Applicability of Regional Framework Plan Policies ............................................. 2 

7.4 Urban Growth Boundary Management Plan ....................................................... 3 

7.5 Functional Plans ................................................................................................. 3 

7.6 Periodic Review of Comprehensive Land Use Plans ......................................... 5 

7.7 Implementation Roles ......................................................................................... 5 

7.8 Performance Measures ...................................................................................... 7 

7.9 Monitoring and Updating .................................................................................... 9 

7.10 Environmental Education .................................................................................... 9 

 
 

Exhibit B to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 34 of 44



 

Page 1 METRO’s REGIONAL FRAMEWORK PLAN (RFP) Updated 01/13/11 
 CHAPTER 7  -  MANAGEMENT 

Original RFP Adopted pursuant to Ordinance No. 97-715B, 12/11/97 

Chapter	  7	   Management	  

Introduction 
Any plan put into effect is only a set of policies or actions based on what is known at the 
time. Actual conditions can and do change. Accordingly, any plan which is intended to 
be useful over a period of time must include ways of addressing new circumstances. To 
this end, this chapter includes policies and processes that will be used to keep the 
Regional Framework Plan (Plan) abreast of current conditions and a forward thinking 
document. 
 
In addition, this Plan includes disparate subjects, ones that, while interconnected, at 
times suggest conflicting policy actions. This chapter describes the ways in which such 
conflicts can be resolved. 
 
The policies included in Chapters 1-6 of this Plan are regional goals and objectives 
consistent with ORS 268.380(1).  Many of these policies were originally adopted and 
acknowledged as the Regional Urban Growth Goals and Objectives and have been 
superseded by the policies of this Plan. The specific policies included in this Plan are 
neither a comprehensive plan under ORS 197.015(5), nor a functional plan under 
ORS 268.390(2). 

Policies 

7.1 Citizen Participation 
It is the policy of the Metro Council to: 

 
7.1.1 Develop and implement an ongoing program for citizen participation in all 

aspects of the regional planning effort.  
 
7.1.2 Coordinate such a program with local programs to support citizen involvement in 

planning processes and avoid duplicating the local programs. 
 
7.1.3  Establish a Metro Committee for Citizen Involvement to assist with the 

development, implementation and evaluation of its citizen involvement program 
and to advise the Metro Council regarding ways to best involve citizens in 
regional planning activities. 

 
7.1.4 Develop programs for public notification, especially for, but not limited to, 

proposed legislative actions that ensure a high level of awareness of potential 
consequences as well as opportunities for involvement on the part of affected 
citizens, both inside and outside of Metro’s boundaries. 

Exhibit B to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 35 of 44



 

Page 2 METRO’s REGIONAL FRAMEWORK PLAN (RFP) Updated 01/13/11 
 CHAPTER 7  -  MANAGEMENT 

Original RFP Adopted pursuant to Ordinance No. 97-715B, 12/11/97 

7.2 Metro Policy Advisory Committee and Joint Policy Advisory Committee on 
Transportation 
It is the policy of the Metro Council to: 

 
7.2.1 Work with the Metro Policy Advisory Committee (MPAC), consistent with the 

Metro Charter. 
 
7.2.2 Choose the composition of MPAC according to the Metro Charter and according 

to any changes approved by majorities of MPAC and the Metro Council. 
 
7.2.3 Ensure that the composition of MPAC reflects the partnership that must exist 

among implementing jurisdictions in order to effectively address areas and 
activities of metropolitan concern and includes elected and appointed officials 
and citizens of Metro, cities, counties, school districts and states consistent with 
Section 27 of the Metro Charter. 

 
7.2.4 Appoint technical advisory committees as the Metro Council or MPAC 

determines a need for such bodies, consistent with MPAC By-laws. 
 
7.2.5  Perform, with the Joint Policy Advisory Committee on Transportation (JPACT), 

the functions of the designated Metropolitan Planning Organization as required 
by federal transportation planning regulations.  

 
7.2.6  Develop a coordinated process for JPACT and MPAC, to assure that regional 

land use and transportation planning remains consistent with these goals and 
objectives and with each other. 

7.3 Applicability of Regional Framework Plan Policies 
It is the policy of the Metro Council to: 

 
7.3.1 Ensure that all functional plans adopted by the Metro Council are consistent with 

the policies of this Plan.  
 
7.3.2 Guide Metro’s management of the UGB through standards and procedures that 

are consistent with policies in Chapters 1-6 of this Plan.  These policies do not 
apply directly to site-specific land use actions, such as amendments of the UGB. 

 
7.3.3 Apply the policies in Chapters 1-6 of this Plan to adopted and acknowledged 

comprehensive land use plans as follows: 
 

a. Components of this Plan that are adopted as functional plans, or other 
functional plans, shall be consistent with these policies. 

 
b. The management and periodic review of Metro’s acknowledged UGB 

Plan, shall be consistent with these policies. 
 
c. Metro may, after consultation with MPAC, identify and propose issues of 

regional concern, related to or derived from these policies, as 
recommendations but not requirements, for consideration by cities and 

Exhibit B to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 36 of 44



 

Page 3 METRO’s REGIONAL FRAMEWORK PLAN (RFP) Updated 01/13/11 
 CHAPTER 7  -  MANAGEMENT 

Original RFP Adopted pursuant to Ordinance No. 97-715B, 12/11/97 

counties at the time of periodic review of their adopted and acknowledged 
comprehensive plans. 

 
7.3.4 Apply the policies of this Plan to Metro land use, transportation and greenspace 

activities as follows: 
 

a. The UGB, other functional plans, and other land use activities shall be 
consistent with these policies.  

 
b. To the extent that a proposed action may be compatible with some 

policies and incompatible with others, consistency with this Plan may 
involve a balancing of applicable goals, sub-goals and objectives by the 
Metro Council that considers the relative impacts of a particular action on 
applicable policies. 

 
7.3.5 Adopt a periodic update process of this Plan’s policies.  
 
7.3.6  Require MPAC to consider the regular updating of these policies and recommend 

based on the adopted periodic update process.  
 
7.3.7 Seek acknowledgement of the Plan, consistent with ORS 197.015(16). 

7.4 Urban Growth Boundary Management Plan 
It is the policy of the Metro Council to: 
 

7.4.1 Manage the UGB consistent with Metro Code 3.01 and the policies of this Plan 
and in compliance with applicable statewide planning goals and laws. 

7.5 Functional Plans 
It is the policy of the Metro Council to: 

 
7.5.1 Develop functional plans that are limited purpose plans, consistent with this Plan, 

which addresses designated areas and activities of metropolitan concern.  
 
7.5.2  Use functional plans as the identified vehicle for requiring changes in city and 

county comprehensive plans in order to achieve consistence and compliance 
with this Plan. 

 
7.5.3  Adopt policies of this Plan as functional plans if the policies contain 

recommendations or requirements for changes in comprehensive plans and to 
submit the functional plans to LCDC for acknowledgment of their compliance with 
the statewide planning goals.  

 
7.5.4 Continue to use existing or new functional plans to recommend or require 

changes in comprehensive plans until these Plan components are adopted. 
 
7.5.5 Continue to develop, amend and implement, with the assistance of cities, 

counties, special districts and the state, state-required functional plans for air, 

Exhibit B to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 37 of 44



 

Page 4 METRO’s REGIONAL FRAMEWORK PLAN (RFP) Updated 01/13/11 
 CHAPTER 7  -  MANAGEMENT 

Original RFP Adopted pursuant to Ordinance No. 97-715B, 12/11/97 

water and transportation, as directed by ORS 268.390(1) and for land use 
planning aspects of solid waste management, as mandated by ORS Ch. 459. 

 
7.5.6 Propose new functional plans from one of two sources: 
 

a. MPAC may recommend that the Metro Council designate an area or 
activity of metropolitan concern for which a functional plan should be 
prepared. 

 
b. The Metro Council may propose the preparation of a functional plan to 

designate an area or activity of metropolitan concern and refer that 
proposal to MPAC. 

 
7.5.7 Use the matters required by the Metro Charter to be addressed in this Plan to 

constitute sufficient factual reasons for the development of a functional plan 
under ORS 268.390 and make the adoption of a functional plan subject to the 
procedures specified above.  

 
7.5.8 Ensure the participation of MPAC in the preparation of the functional plan, 

consistent with the policies of this Plan and the reasons cited by the Metro 
Council.  

 
7.5.9 Require that MPAC review the functional plan and make a recommendation to 

the Metro Council after preparation of the Plan and broad public and local 
government consensus, using existing citizen involvement processes established 
by cities, counties and Metro.  

 
7.5.10 Resolve conflicts or problems impeding the development of a new functional plan 

and complete the functional plan if MPAC is unable to complete its review in a 
timely manner. 

 
7.5.11 Hold a public hearing on the proposed functional plan and afterwards either: 
 

a. Adopt the proposed functional plan. 
 
b. Refer the proposed functional plan to MPAC in order to consider 

amendments to the proposed plan prior to adoption.  
 
c. Amend and adopt the proposed functional plan. 
 
d. Reject the proposed functional plan. 

 
7.5.12  Adopt functional plans by ordinance and include findings of consistency with this 

Plans policies. 
 
7.5.13  Ensure that adopted functional plans are regionally coordinated policies, facilities 

and/or approaches to addressing a designated area or activity of metropolitan 
concern, to be considered by cities and counties for incorporation in their 
comprehensive land use plans.  

 

Exhibit B to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 38 of 44



 

Page 5 METRO’s REGIONAL FRAMEWORK PLAN (RFP) Updated 01/13/11 
 CHAPTER 7  -  MANAGEMENT 

Original RFP Adopted pursuant to Ordinance No. 97-715B, 12/11/97 

7.5.14  Review any apparent inconsistencies if a city or county determines that a 
functional plan requirement should not or cannot be incorporated into its 
comprehensive plan, by the following process: 

 
a. Metro and affected local governments notify each other of apparent or 

potential comprehensive plan inconsistencies. 
 
b. After Metro staff review, MPAC consults the affected jurisdictions and 

attempt to resolve any apparent or potential inconsistencies. 
 
c. MPAC may conduct a public hearing and make a report to the Metro 

Council regarding instances and reasons why a city or county has not 
adopted changes consistent with requirements in a regional functional 
plan.  

 
d. The Metro Council reviews the MPAC report and holds a public hearing 

on any unresolved issues. The Council may decide either to: 
 

i. Amend the adopted regional functional plan. 
 
ii. Initiate proceedings to require a comprehensive plan change. 
 
iii. Find there is no inconsistency between the comprehensive plan(s) 

and the functional plan. 
 
iv. Grant an exception to the functional plan requirement. 

7.6 Periodic Review of Comprehensive Land Use Plans 
It is the policy of the Metro Council to: 

 
7.6.1  Require MPAC, at the time of LCDC-initiated periodic review of comprehensive 

plans of cities and counties in the region, to assist Metro with the identification of 
the Plan elements, functional plan provisions or changes in functional plans 
adopted since the last periodic review as changes in law to be included in 
periodic review notices. 

 
7.6.2 Encourage MPAC, at the time of LCDC-initiated periodic review of 

comprehensive plans in the region, to provide comments during the review on 
issues of regional concern. 

7.7 Implementation Roles 
It is the policy of the Metro Council to: 

 
7.7.1 Recognize the inter-relationships between cities, counties, special districts, 

Metro, regional agencies and the State, and their unique capabilities and roles in 
regional planning and the implementation of this Plan. 

 

Exhibit B to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 39 of 44



 

Page 6 METRO’s REGIONAL FRAMEWORK PLAN (RFP) Updated 01/13/11 
 CHAPTER 7  -  MANAGEMENT 

Original RFP Adopted pursuant to Ordinance No. 97-715B, 12/11/97 

7.7.2 Recognize the role of the cities to: 
 

a. Adopt and amend comprehensive plans to conform to functional plans 
adopted by Metro. 

 
b. Identify potential areas and activities of metropolitan concern through a 

broad-based local discussion. 
 
c. Cooperatively develop strategies for responding to designated areas and 

activities of metropolitan concern. 
 
d. Participate in the review and refinement of these goals and objectives. 

 
7.7.3 Recognize the role of counties to: 
 

a. Adopt and amend comprehensive plans to conform to functional plans 
adopted by Metro. 

 
b. Identify potential areas and activities of metropolitan concern through a 

broad-based local discussion. 
 
c. Cooperatively develop strategies for responding to designated areas and 

activities of metropolitan concern. 
 
d. Participate in the review and refinement of these goals and objectives. 

 
7.7.4 Recognize the role of Special Service Districts to: 
 

a. Assist Metro, through a broad-based local discussion, with the 
identification of areas and activities of metropolitan concern and the 
development of strategies to address them, and participate in the review 
and refinement of these goals and objectives. Special Service Districts 
will conduct their operations in conformance with acknowledged 
comprehensive plans affecting their service territories 

 
7.7.5  Recognize the role of School Districts to: 
 

a. Advise Metro regarding the identification of areas and activities of school 
district concern. 

 
b. Cooperatively develop strategies for responding to designated areas and 

activities of school district concern. 
 

c. Participate in the review and refinement of these goals and objectives. 
 
7.7.6 Recognize the role of the State of Oregon to: 
 

a. Advise Metro regarding the identification of areas and activities of 
metropolitan concern. 

 

Exhibit B to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 40 of 44



 

Page 7 METRO’s REGIONAL FRAMEWORK PLAN (RFP) Updated 01/13/11 
 CHAPTER 7  -  MANAGEMENT 

Original RFP Adopted pursuant to Ordinance No. 97-715B, 12/11/97 

b. Cooperatively develop strategies for responding to designated areas and 
activities of metropolitan concern. 

 
c. Review state plans, regulations, activities and related funding to consider 

changes in order to enhance implementation of the Plan and functional 
plans, and employ state agencies and programs to promote and 
implement these goals and objectives and the Regional Framework Plan. 

 
d. Participate in the review and refinement of these goals and objectives. 

 
7.7.7 Recognize the role of Metro to: 
 

a. Identify and designate areas and activities of metropolitan concern. 
 

b. Provide staff and technical resources to support the activities of MPAC 
within the constraints established by Metro Council. 

 
c. Serve as a technical resource for cities, counties, school districts and 

other jurisdictions and agencies. 
 

d. Facilitate a broad-based regional discussion to identify appropriate 
strategies for responding to those issues of metropolitan concern. 

 
e. Adopt functional plans necessary and appropriate for the implementation 

of the Regional Framework Plan. 
 

f. Coordinate the efforts of cities, counties, special districts and the state to 
implement adopted strategies. 

 
g. Amend the Future Vision for the region, consistent with Objective 9.  (See 

Ordinance No. 95-604A “For the Purpose of Adopting a Future Vision for 
the Region,” adopted June 15, 1995.) 

7.8 Performance Measures 
It is the policy of the Metro Council to: 

 
7.8.1 Develop performance measures designed for considering the policies of this Plan 

in consultation with MPAC and the public.  
 
7.8.2 Use state benchmarks for performance measures to the extent possible or 

develop, in consultation with MPAC and the Metro Committee for Citizen 
Involvement, new performance measures.  

 
7.8.3 Measure performance for Chapters 21-6 of this Plan by using several different 

geographies, including by region, jurisdiction, 2040 design type and market area. 
 

Exhibit B to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 41 of 44



 

Page 8 METRO’s REGIONAL FRAMEWORK PLAN (RFP) Updated 01/13/11 
 CHAPTER 7  -  MANAGEMENT 

Original RFP Adopted pursuant to Ordinance No. 97-715B, 12/11/97 

7.8.4 Include the following performance measures for Chapters 21-6 of this Plan: 
 

a. Vacant land conversion; 
 

b. Housing development, density, rate and price; 
 

c. Job creation; 
 

d. Infill and redevelopment; 
 

e. Environmentally sensitive lands; 
 

f. Price of land; 
 

g. Residential vacancy rates; 
 

h. Access to open spaces; 
 

i. Transportation measures Vehicle miles traveled; 
 

j. Motor vehicle, bicycle and pedestrian fatal and serious injury crashes; 
 

k. Transit revenue hours; 
 

l. Transit affordability; 
 

m. Transit ridership; 
 

n. Access to transit; 
 

o. Travel time and reliability in regional mobility corridors, including incident 
response clearance times; 

 
p. Air quality, including PM 2.5 and ozone precursors. 

 
7.8.5 Direct these measures to be completed reported every two years.  
 
7.8.6 In addition to the measures identified in 7.8.4, monitor the following performance 

measures as part of regularly scheduled updates to the Regional Transportation 
Plan to assess whether key strategies or actions that make up the regional 
strategy for reducing greenhouse gas emissions from light-duty vehicles are 
being implemented: 

 
a. Households living in walkable, mixed-use areas; 
 
b. Light-duty vehicle greenhouse gas emissions; 
 
c. Household transportation and housing cost burden; 
 
d. Registered light-duty vehicles by fuel/energy source; 
 

Exhibit B to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 42 of 44



 

Page 9 METRO’s REGIONAL FRAMEWORK PLAN (RFP) Updated 01/13/11 
 CHAPTER 7  -  MANAGEMENT 

Original RFP Adopted pursuant to Ordinance No. 97-715B, 12/11/97 

e. Workforce participation in employer-based commuter programs; 
 
f. Household participation in individualized marketing programs; 
 
g. Bicycle and pedestrian miles traveled; 
 
h. Bikeways, sidewalks and trails completed; 
 
i. Parking management. 

 
 
7.8.67 Take corrective actions if anticipated progress is found to be lacking or if Metro 

goals or policies need adjustment. 

7.9 Monitoring and Updating 
It is the policy of the Metro Council to: 

 
7.9.1 Review this Plan and all functional plans every seven years, or at other times as 

determined by the Metro Council after consultation with or upon the advice of 
MPAC. 

 
7.9.2 Involve a broad cross-section of citizen and jurisdictional interests, and MPAC 

consistent with Policy 7.1 Citizen Participation, of this Plan in any review and 
amendment process. 

 
7.9.3  Provide for broad public and local government review of proposed amendments 

prior to final Metro Council action. 
 
7.9.4 Determine whether amendments to adopted this Plan, functional plans or the 

acknowledged regional UGB are necessary. If amendments prove to be 
necessary, the Metro Council will: 

 
a. Act on amendments to applicable functional plans.  

 
b. Request recommendations from MPAC before taking action. 

 
c. Include date and method through which proposed amendments will 

become effective if adopted. 
 

d. Consider amendments to the UGB under UGB amendment procedures in 
the Metro Code. 

 
7.9.5 Inform, in writing, any affected cities and counties of any amendment to this Plan 

or a functional plan, including amendments that are advisory in nature, that 
recommend changes in comprehensive land use plans, and that require changes 
in plans, and the effective date of amendments. 

7.10 Environmental Education 
It is the policy of the Metro Council to: 

Exhibit B to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 43 of 44



 

Page 10 METRO’s REGIONAL FRAMEWORK PLAN (RFP) Updated 01/13/11 
 CHAPTER 7  -  MANAGEMENT 

Original RFP Adopted pursuant to Ordinance No. 97-715B, 12/11/97 

 
7.10.1 Provide education to the community on the principles and foundation of this Plan 

in order to maintain it as a living document and to ensure that the citizens of the 
region understand the decision making mechanisms, the principles that guide 
sound planning and the effect of decisions and changes on the livability of the 
community. 

 
7.10.2  Provide an unbiased source of environmental education that does not advocate 

for one viewpoint, that invites and involves diverse viewpoints and that gives 
everyone opportunities to participate in all aspects of the learning process. 

 
7.10.3 Ensure that education for this Plan is enriched by and relevant to all points of 

view. 
 
7.10.4  Develop and implement an ongoing partnership with cultural, environmental and 

educational organizations to keep abreast of current conditions and maintain this 
Plan as a forward-looking document. 

 
7.10.5 Coordinate with local programs for supporting education that involves citizens in 

the analysis of critical environmental issues related to regional growth and 
environmental quality in order to help citizens gain awareness, knowledge and 
skills to make connections between the issues of regional growth and the 
creation of livable communities. 

 
7.10.6 Provide citizens with the information needed and the opportunity to: 
 

a. Analyze critical environmental issues related to regional growth. 
 

b. Understand the effects of their choices on the urban and natural systems 
used to manage growth, natural areas and transportation, process waste 
and provide water and energy. 

 
c. Engage in decisions which affect the livability of their communities. 

 
d. Take actions which reflect the region’s plan. 

 
e. Cooperatively develop strategies with citizens to provide regional 

environmental education. 
 

f. Identify cultural, environmental and educational organizations which 
currently provide education about issues related to livable communities. 

 
g. Identify sites and facilities that currently and potentially provide education 

about issues related to livable communities. 
 
h. Function as a clearinghouse for educational organizations and facilitate 

educational partnerships in the community. 
 
7.10.7  Enable individuals and communities to challenge and discuss the rural and urban 

systems and policies responsible for creating livable communities in order to 
achieve the policies of this Plan. 

Exhibit B to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 44 of 44



	  

	   	   Exhibit	  C	  to	  Ordinance	  No.	  14-‐1346.

December	  9,	  2014	  

Toolbox	  of	  
Possible	  Actions	  
(2015-‐20)	  
Recommended	  Draft	  
This	  document	  reflects	  changes	  recommended	  to	  respond	  to	  
public	  comments	  and	  subsequent	  advisory	  committee	  review	  

	  

Exhibit C to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 1 of 26



	   	   	  

	  

	  
About	  Metro	  
Clean	  air	  and	  clean	  water	  do	  not	  stop	  at	  city	  limits	  or	  county	  lines.	  Neither	  does	  the	  need	  for	  jobs,	  a	  
thriving	  economy,	  and	  sustainable	  transportation	  and	  living	  choices	  for	  people	  and	  businesses	  in	  the	  
region.	  Voters	  have	  asked	  Metro	  to	  help	  with	  the	  challenges	  and	  opportunities	  that	  affect	  the	  25	  cities	  
and	  three	  counties	  in	  the	  Portland	  metropolitan	  area.	  	  
	  	  
A	  regional	  approach	  simply	  makes	  sense	  when	  it	  comes	  to	  providing	  services,	  operating	  venues	  and	  
making	  decisions	  about	  how	  the	  region	  grows.	  Metro	  works	  with	  communities	  to	  support	  a	  resilient	  
economy,	  keep	  nature	  close	  by	  and	  respond	  to	  a	  changing	  climate.	  Together	  we’re	  making	  a	  great	  place,	  
now	  and	  for	  generations	  to	  come.	  
	  	  
Stay	  in	  touch	  with	  news,	  stories	  and	  things	  to	  do.	  	  	  
	  	  
www.oregonmetro.gov/climatescenarios	  
	  

Metro	  Council	  President 

Tom	  Hughes 
Metro	  Councilors 
Shirley	  Craddick,	  District	  1                                                                                                        
Carlotta	  Collette,	  District	  2	  
Craig	  Dirksen,	  District	  3	  
Kathryn	  Harrington,	  District	  4	  
Sam	  Chase,	  District	  5	  
Bob	  Stacey,	  District	  6 
Auditor 
Suzanne	  Flynn 
	  

	  

08	  Fall	  

Exhibit C to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 2 of 26



RECOMMENDED	  TOOLBOX	  OF	  POSSIBLE	  ACTIONS	   	   	   	   	   December	  9,	  2014	  

	   Page	  1	  

	  

TOOLBOX	  OF	  POSSIBLE	  ACTIONS	  	  (2015-‐2020)	  

BACKGROUND	  |	  The	  Climate	  Smart	  Communities	  Scenarios	  Project	  responds	  to	  a	  state	  mandate	  to	  develop	  and	  implement	  a	  strategy	  to	  reduce	  greenhouse	  gas	  emissions	  from	  cars	  and	  small	  trucks	  by	  2035.	  
Working	  together,	  community,	  business	  and	  elected	  leaders	  developed	  a	  Climate	  Smart	  Strategy	  that	  exceeds	  the	  mandate	  and	  will	  contribute	  to	  creating	  healthy	  and	  equitable	  communities	  and	  a	  strong	  economy.	  
The	  strategy	  relies	  on	  implementing	  the	  plans	  and	  visions	  that	  have	  already	  been	  adopted	  by	  communities	  and	  the	  region,	  along	  with	  anticipated	  advancements	  in	  cleaner,	  low	  carbon	  fuels	  and	  more	  fuel-‐efficient	  
vehicles.	  The	  strategy	  does	  more	  than	  just	  meet	  the	  target.	  It	  supports	  many	  other	  local,	  regional	  and	  state	  goals,	  including	  clean	  air	  and	  water,	  more	  transportation	  choices,	  improved	  access	  to	  jobs	  and	  services,	  
reduced	  delay	  on	  the	  transportation	  system,	  and	  reduced	  travel	  and	  healthcare	  costs	  for	  households	  and	  businesses.	  	  

Building	  on	  existing	  local,	  regional	  and	  statewide	  activities	  and	  priorities,	  the	  project	  partners	  have	  developed	  an	  advisory	  toolbox	  of	  actions	  with	  meaningful	  steps	  that	  can	  be	  taken	  to	  implement	  the	  Climate	  Smart	  
Strategy.	  The	  actions	  support	  implementation	  of	  adopted	  local	  and	  regional	  plans	  and,	  if	  taken,	  will	  reduce	  greenhouse	  gas	  emissions	  and	  minimize	  the	  region’s	  contribution	  to	  climate	  change	  in	  ways	  that	  support	  

community	  and	  economic	  development	  goals.	  The	  toolbox	  builds	  on	  the	  research,	  analysis,	  community	  engagement	  and	  discussion	  completed	  during	  the	  past	  four	  years	  and	  was	  developed	  with	  the	  recognition	  that	  some	  tools	  and	  
actions	  may	  work	  in	  some	  locations	  but	  not	  in	  others.	  It	  emphasizes	  the	  need	  for	  many	  diverse	  partners	  to	  work	  together	  to	  begin	  implementation	  of	  the	  Climate	  Smart	  Strategy	  and	  that	  each	  partner	  retains	  flexibility	  and	  discretion	  in	  
pursuing	  the	  strategies	  most	  appropriate	  to	  local	  needs	  and	  conditions.	  Inclusion	  of	  an	  action	  was	  primarily	  driven	  by	  advisory	  committee	  and	  public	  feedback.	  	  

HOW	  TO	  USE	  THE	  TOOLBOX	  |	  The	  toolbox	  is	  focused	  on	  possible	  near-‐term	  (within	  the	  next	  5	  years)	  actions	  that	  the	  Oregon	  Legislature,	  state	  agencies	  and	  commissions,	  Metro,	  cities	  and	  counties	  and	  special	  districts	  are	  encouraged	  to	  
take	  to	  begin	  implementing	  the	  broader	  policies	  and	  strategies	  identified	  in	  the	  Climate	  Smart	  Strategy	  .The	  near-‐term	  actions	  include	  a	  combination	  of	  existing	  actions	  and	  new	  ideas	  and	  approaches	  that	  will	  lay	  the	  foundation	  for	  
longer	  term	  action.	  The	  toolbox	  does	  not	  require	  Metro,	  local	  governments,	  special	  districts,	  or	  state	  agencies	  to	  adopt	  any	  particular	  policy	  or	  action,	  and	  is	  intended	  to	  allow	  for	  flexibility	  so	  any	  action	  can	  be	  tailored	  to	  best	  support	  
local,	  regional	  and	  state	  plans	  and	  visions.	  The	  toolbox	  is	  intended	  to	  be	  a	  living	  document,	  subject	  to	  further	  review	  and	  refinement	  by	  local	  governments,	  ODOT,	  TriMet	  and	  other	  stakeholders	  as	  part	  of	  regularly-‐scheduled	  updates	  to	  
the	  Regional	  Transportation	  Plan	  to	  reflect	  new	  information	  and	  approaches	  to	  reducing	  greenhouse	  gas	  emissions	  from	  land	  use	  and	  transportation.	  	  
	  
Local,	  state	  and	  regional	  partners	  are	  encouraged	  to	  review	  the	  toolbox	  and	  identify	  actions	  they	  have	  already	  taken	  and	  any	  new	  actions	  they	  are	  willing	  to	  consider	  or	  commit	  to	  in	  the	  future.	  Updates	  to	  local	  comprehensive	  plans	  and	  
development	  regulations,	  transit	  agency	  plans,	  port	  district	  plans	  and	  regional	  growth	  management	  and	  transportation	  plans	  present	  ongoing	  opportunities	  to	  consider	  implementing	  the	  actions	  recommended	  in	  locally	  tailored	  ways.	  
Medium	  and	  longer-‐term	  actions	  will	  be	  identified	  during	  the	  next	  update	  to	  the	  Regional	  Transportation	  Plan	  (scheduled	  for	  2016-‐18).	  	  
	  

POLICY	   TOOLBOX	  OF	  POSSIBLE	  ACTIONS	  	  (2015-‐2020)	  
	   WHAT	  CAN	  THE	  STATE	  DO?	   WHAT	  CAN	  METRO	  DO?	   WHAT	  CAN	  CITIES	  AND	  COUNTIES	  DO?	   WHAT	  CAN	  SPECIAL	  DISTRICTS	  DO?	  	  

(e.g.,	  transit	  providers,	  Port	  districts,	  parks	  providers,	  etc.)	  	  
1.	  Implement	  the	  2040	  Growth	  
Concept	  and	  local	  adopted	  land	  
use	  and	  transportation	  plans	  

Immediate	  (2015-‐16)	  
o Reauthorize	  Oregon	  Brownfield	  Redevelopment	  

Fund	  
o Support	  brownfield	  redevelopment-‐related	  

legislative	  proposals	  
o Restore	  local	  control	  of	  housing	  policies	  and	  

programs	  to	  ensure	  communities	  have	  a	  full	  
range	  of	  tools	  available	  to	  meet	  the	  housing	  
needs	  of	  all	  residents	  and	  income	  levels	  and	  
expand	  opportunities	  for	  households	  of	  modest	  
means	  to	  live	  closer	  to	  work,	  services	  and	  transit	  

o Begin	  implementation	  of	  the	  Statewide	  
Transportation	  Strategy	  Vision	  and	  short-‐term	  
implementation	  plan	  to	  support	  regional	  and	  
community	  visions	  

Near-‐term	  (2017-‐20)	  
o Seek	  opportunities	  to	  leverage	  local,	  regional,	  

state	  and	  federal	  funding	  to	  achieve	  local	  visions	  
and	  the	  region's	  desired	  outcomes	  	  

o Provide	  increased	  funding	  and	  incentives	  to	  local	  

Immediate	  (2015-‐16)	  
o Continue	  implementing	  2040	  growth	  Concept	  
o Implement	  policies	  and	  investments	  that	  align	  

with	  regional	  and	  community	  visions	  to	  focus	  
growth	  in	  designated	  centers,	  corridors	  and	  
employment	  areas	  	  

o Support	  restoring	  local	  control	  of	  housing	  
policies	  and	  programs	  to	  ensure	  communities	  
have	  a	  full	  range	  of	  tools	  available	  to	  meet	  the	  
housing	  needs	  of	  all	  residents	  and	  income	  levels	  
and	  expand	  opportunities	  for	  households	  of	  
modest	  means	  to	  live	  closer	  to	  work,	  services	  
and	  transit	  	  

o Support	  reauthorization	  of	  Oregon	  Brownfield	  
Redevelopment	  Fund	  

o Facilitate	  regional	  brownfield	  coalition	  to	  
develop	  legislative	  proposals	  and	  increase	  
resources	  available	  in	  the	  region	  for	  brownfield	  
redevelopment	  

o Maintain	  a	  compact	  urban	  growth	  boundary	  

Immediate	  (2015-‐16)	  
o Continue	  implementing	  adopted	  land	  use	  plans	  
o Implement	  policies	  and	  investments	  that	  align	  

with	  community	  visions,	  focus	  growth	  in	  
designated	  centers,	  corridors	  and	  employment	  
areas	  

o Support	  restoring	  local	  control	  of	  housing	  
policies	  and	  programs	  to	  ensure	  communities	  
have	  a	  full	  range	  of	  tools	  available	  to	  meet	  the	  
housing	  needs	  of	  all	  residents	  and	  income	  levels	  
and	  expand	  opportunities	  for	  households	  of	  
modest	  means	  to	  live	  closer	  to	  work,	  services	  
and	  transit	  	  

o Support	  reauthorization	  of	  Oregon	  Brownfield	  
Redevelopment	  Fund	  

o Participate	  in	  regional	  brownfield	  coalition	  to	  
develop	  legislative	  proposals	  and	  increase	  
resources	  available	  in	  the	  region	  for	  brownfield	  
redevelopment	  

o Develop	  concept	  plans	  for	  new	  urban	  areas	  in	  

Immediate	  (2015-‐16)	  
o Implement	  policies	  and	  investments	  that	  align	  

with	  community	  visions,	  focus	  growth	  in	  
designated	  centers,	  corridors	  and	  employment	  
areas	  

o Support	  restoring	  local	  control	  of	  housing	  policies	  
and	  programs	  to	  ensure	  communities	  have	  a	  full	  
range	  of	  tools	  available	  to	  meet	  the	  housing	  
needs	  of	  all	  residents	  and	  income	  levels	  and	  
expand	  opportunities	  for	  households	  of	  modest	  
means	  to	  live	  closer	  to	  work,	  services	  and	  transit	  

o Support	  reauthorization	  of	  Oregon	  Brownfield	  
Redevelopment	  Fund	  

Near-‐term	  (2017-‐20)	  
o Seek	  opportunities	  to	  leverage	  local,	  regional,	  

state	  and	  federal	  funding	  to	  achieve	  local	  visions	  
and	  the	  region's	  desired	  outcomes	  	  

o Share	  brownfield	  redevelopment	  expertise	  with	  
local	  governments	  and	  expand	  leadership	  role	  in	  
making	  brownfield	  sites	  development	  ready	  

Exhibit C to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 3 of 26



RECOMMENDED	  TOOLBOX	  OF	  POSSIBLE	  ACTIONS	   	   	   	   	   December	  9,	  2014	  

	   Page	  2	  

POLICY	   TOOLBOX	  OF	  POSSIBLE	  ACTIONS	  	  (2015-‐2020)	  
	   WHAT	  CAN	  THE	  STATE	  DO?	   WHAT	  CAN	  METRO	  DO?	   WHAT	  CAN	  CITIES	  AND	  COUNTIES	  DO?	   WHAT	  CAN	  SPECIAL	  DISTRICTS	  DO?	  	  

(e.g.,	  transit	  providers,	  Port	  districts,	  parks	  providers,	  etc.)	  	  
governments,	  developers	  and	  non-‐profits	  to	  
encourage	  brownfield	  redevelopment	  and	  
transit-‐oriented	  development	  to	  help	  keep	  urban	  
areas	  compact	  

o Review	  functional	  plans	  and	  amend	  as	  needed	  to	  
implement	  Climate	  Smart	  Strategy	  

Near-‐term	  (2017-‐20)	  
o Seek	  opportunities	  to	  leverage	  local,	  regional,	  

state	  and	  federal	  funding	  to	  achieve	  local	  visions	  
and	  the	  region's	  desired	  outcomes	  	  

o Expand	  on-‐going	  technical	  assistance	  and	  grant	  
funding	  to	  local	  governments,	  developers	  and	  
others	  to	  advance	  implementation	  of	  local	  land	  
use	  plans	  and	  incorporate	  travel	  information	  and	  
incentives,	  transportation	  system	  management	  
and	  operations	  strategies,	  parking	  management	  
approaches	  and	  transit-‐oriented	  development	  in	  
local	  plans	  and	  projects	  

o Convene	  regional	  brownfield	  coalition	  and	  
strengthen	  regional	  brownfields	  program	  by	  
providing	  increased	  funding	  and	  technical	  
assistance	  to	  local	  governments	  to	  leverage	  the	  
investment	  of	  private	  and	  non-‐profit	  developers	  

o Leverage	  Metro’s	  public	  investments	  to	  maintain	  
and	  create	  affordable	  housing	  options	  in	  areas	  
served	  with	  frequent	  transit	  service	  

o Support	  increased	  funding	  for	  affordable	  
housing,	  particularly	  along	  corridors	  with	  
frequent	  transit	  service	  

ways	  that	  further	  the	  region’s	  efforts	  in	  achieving	  
greenhouse	  gas	  emissions	  reductions,	  such	  as	  
planning	  for	  complete	  communities	  with	  walking,	  
biking	  and	  transit	  to	  reduce	  or	  eliminate	  vehicle	  
trips	  for	  daily	  needs	  

Near-‐term	  (2017-‐20)	  
o Pursue	  opportunities	  to	  locate	  higher-‐density	  

residential	  development	  near	  activity	  centers	  
such	  as	  parks	  and	  recreational	  facilities,	  
commercial	  areas,	  employment	  centers,	  and	  
transit	  

o Locate	  new	  schools,	  services,	  shopping,	  and	  
other	  health	  promoting	  resources	  and	  
community	  destinations	  in	  activity	  centers	  

o Seek	  opportunities	  to	  leverage	  local,	  regional,	  
state	  and	  federal	  funding	  to	  achieve	  local	  visions	  
and	  the	  region's	  desired	  outcomes	  

o Develop	  brownfield	  redevelopment	  plans	  and	  
leverage	  local	  funding	  to	  seek	  state	  and	  federal	  
funding	  and	  create	  partnerships	  that	  leverage	  
the	  investment	  of	  private	  and	  non-‐profit	  
developers	  
	  

	  

2.	  Make	  transit	  convenient,	  
frequent,	  accessible	  and	  
affordable	  

	  

Immediate	  (2015-‐16)	  
o Begin	  update	  to	  Oregon	  Public	  Transportation	  

Plan	  
o Increase	  state	  funding	  for	  transit	  service	  
o Maintain	  existing	  intercity	  passenger	  rail	  service	  

and	  develop	  proposals	  for	  improvement	  of	  
speed,	  frequency	  and	  reliability	  

o Provide	  technical	  assistance	  and	  funding	  to	  help	  
establish	  local	  transit	  service	  

Near-‐term	  (2017-‐20)	  
o Adopt	  Oregon	  Public	  Transportation	  Plan	  with	  

funding	  strategy	  to	  implement	  
o Begin	  implementation	  of	  incremental	  

improvements	  to	  intercity	  passenger	  rail	  service	  
o Make	  funding	  for	  access	  to	  transit	  a	  priority	  

Immediate	  (2015-‐16)	  
o Work	  with	  elected	  officials	  and	  community	  and	  

business	  leaders	  at	  local,	  regional	  and	  state	  
levels	  to:	  	  
o Seek	  and	  advocate	  for	  new,	  dedicated	  

funding	  mechanism(s)	  
o Seek	  transit	  funding	  from	  Oregon	  Legislature	  
o Consider	  local	  funding	  mechanism(s)	  for	  local	  

and	  regional	  transit	  service	  
o Support	  state	  efforts	  to	  consider	  carbon	  

pricing	  
o Fund	  reduced	  fare	  programs	  and	  service	  

improvements	  for	  transit	  dependent	  
communities,	  such	  as	  youth,	  older	  adults,	  
people	  with	  disabilities	  and	  low-‐income	  
families	  

o Research	  and	  develop	  best	  practices	  that	  support	  
equitable	  growth	  and	  development	  near	  transit	  
without	  displacement,	  including	  strategies	  that	  
provide	  for	  the	  retention	  and	  creation	  of	  

Immediate	  (2015-‐16)	  
o Support	  and/or	  participate	  in	  efforts	  to	  build	  

transportation	  funding	  coalition	  
o Participate	  in	  development	  of	  TriMet	  Service	  

Enhancement	  Plans	  (SEPs):	  	  
o Provide	  more	  community	  to	  community	  

transit	  connections	  
o Identify	  community-‐based	  public	  and	  private	  

shuttles	  that	  link	  to	  regional	  transit	  service	  	  
o Link	  service	  enhancements	  to	  areas	  with	  

transit-‐supportive	  development,	  
communities	  of	  concern1,	  and	  other	  locations	  
with	  high	  ridership	  potential	  

o Use	  ridership	  demographics	  in	  service	  
planning	  

o Consider	  local	  funding	  mechanism(s)	  for	  local	  
and	  regional	  transit	  service	  

Near-‐term	  (2017-‐20)	  
o Make	  funding	  for	  access	  to	  transit	  a	  priority	  	  
o Complete	  gaps	  in	  pedestrian	  and	  bicycle	  access	  

Immediate	  (2015-‐16)	  
o Support	  and/or	  participate	  in	  efforts	  to	  build	  

transportation	  funding	  coalition	  
o Expand	  transit	  payment	  options	  (e.g.,	  electronic	  

e-‐fare	  cards)	  to	  increase	  affordability,	  
convenience	  and	  flexibility	  

o Seek	  state	  funding	  sources	  for	  transit	  and	  
alternative	  local	  funding	  mechanisms	  

o Complete	  development	  of	  TriMet	  Service	  
Enhancement	  Plans	  (SEPs):	  
o Provide	  more	  community	  to	  community	  

transit	  connections	  
o Identify	  community-‐based	  public	  and	  private	  

shuttles	  that	  link	  to	  regional	  transit	  service	  	  
o Link	  service	  enhancements	  to	  areas	  with	  

transit-‐supportive	  development,	  
communities	  of	  concern,	  and	  other	  locations	  
with	  potential	  high	  ridership	  potential	  

o Use	  ridership	  demographics	  in	  service	  
planning	  

	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  
1	  The	  2014	  Regional	  Transportation	  Plan	  defines	  communities	  of	  concern	  as	  people	  of	  color,	  people	  with	  limited	  English	  proficiency,	  people	  with	  low-‐income,	  older	  adults,	  and	  young	  people.	  

Exhibit C to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 4 of 26



RECOMMENDED	  TOOLBOX	  OF	  POSSIBLE	  ACTIONS	   	   	   	   	   December	  9,	  2014	  

	   Page	  3	  

POLICY	   TOOLBOX	  OF	  POSSIBLE	  ACTIONS	  	  (2015-‐2020)	  
	   WHAT	  CAN	  THE	  STATE	  DO?	   WHAT	  CAN	  METRO	  DO?	   WHAT	  CAN	  CITIES	  AND	  COUNTIES	  DO?	   WHAT	  CAN	  SPECIAL	  DISTRICTS	  DO?	  	  

(e.g.,	  transit	  providers,	  Port	  districts,	  parks	  providers,	  etc.)	  	  
businesses	  and	  affordable	  housing	  near	  transit	  

o Update	  Regional	  High	  Capacity	  Transit	  System	  
Plan	  

Near-‐term	  (2017-‐20)	  
o Support	  reduced	  fares	  and	  service	  improvements	  

for	  low-‐income	  families	  and	  individuals,	  youth,	  
older	  adults	  and	  people	  with	  disabilities	  through	  
testimony,	  endorsement	  letters	  or	  similar	  means	  

o Make	  funding	  for	  access	  to	  transit	  a	  priority	  

to	  transit	  
o Expand	  partnerships	  with	  transit	  agencies	  to	  

implement	  capital	  improvements	  in	  frequent	  bus	  
corridors	  (including	  dedicated	  bus	  lanes,	  
stop/shelter	  improvements,	  and	  intersection	  
priority	  treatments)	  to	  increase	  service	  
performance	  

o Implement	  plans	  and	  zoning	  that	  focus	  higher	  
density,	  mixed-‐use	  zoning	  and	  development	  near	  
transit	  	  

o Partner	  with	  transit	  providers	  and	  school	  districts	  
to	  seek	  resources	  to	  support	  youth	  pass	  program	  
and	  expand	  reduced	  fare	  program	  to	  low-‐income	  
families	  and	  individuals	  

o Support	  reduced	  fares	  and	  service	  improvements	  
for	  low-‐income	  families	  and	  individuals,	  youth,	  
older	  adults	  and	  people	  with	  disabilities	  through	  
testimony,	  endorsement	  letters	  or	  similar	  means	  

o Convert	  school	  bus	  and	  transit	  fleets	  to	  electric	  
and/or	  natural	  gas	  buses	  

Near-‐term	  (2017-‐20)	  
o Expand	  partnerships	  with	  cities,	  counties	  and	  

ODOT	  to	  implement	  capital	  improvements	  in	  
frequent	  bus	  corridors	  (including	  dedicated	  bus	  
lanes,	  stop/shelter	  improvements,	  and	  
intersection	  priority	  treatments)	  to	  increase	  
service	  performance	  

o Partner	  with	  local	  governments	  and	  school	  
districts	  to	  seek	  resources	  to	  support	  youth	  pass	  
program	  and	  expanding	  reduced	  fare	  program	  to	  
low-‐income	  families	  and	  individuals	  

o Expand	  transit	  service	  to	  serve	  communities	  of	  
concern,	  transit-‐supportive	  development	  and	  
other	  potential	  high	  ridership	  locations,	  etc.	  

o Improve	  and	  increase	  the	  availability	  of	  transit	  
route	  and	  schedule	  information	  

o Convert	  school	  bus	  and	  transit	  fleets	  to	  electric	  
and/or	  natural	  gas	  buses	  

o Expand	  and	  sustain	  youth	  pass	  program,	  
including	  expanding	  routes	  and	  frequency	  along	  
school	  corridors	  

o Support	  transit	  partners	  in	  seeking	  federal	  grants	  
and	  increased	  state	  funding	  for	  electric	  and	  other	  
low-‐carbon	  alternative	  fuel	  buses	  

o Seek	  increased	  funding	  flexibility	  to	  allow	  for	  
greater	  upfront	  capital	  spending	  on	  electric	  and	  
other	  low-‐carbon	  alternative	  fuel	  buses	  if	  those	  
expenses	  are	  offset	  by	  operating	  savings	  

3.	  Make	  biking	  and	  walking	  safe	  
and	  convenient	  

Immediate	  (2015-‐16)	  
o Adopt	  Oregon	  Bicycle	  and	  Pedestrian	  Plan	  with	  

funding	  strategy	  
o Seek	  and	  advocate	  for	  new,	  dedicated	  funding	  

mechanism(s)	  for	  active	  transportation	  projects	  
o Advocate	  for	  use	  of	  Connect	  Oregon	  funding	  for	  

active	  transportation	  projects	  
o Review	  driver’s	  education	  training	  materials	  and	  

certification	  programs	  and	  make	  changes	  to	  
increase	  awareness	  of	  bicycle	  and	  pedestrian	  
safety	  

o Complete	  Region	  1	  Active	  Transportation	  Needs	  
inventory	  

o Maintain	  commitment	  to	  funding	  Safe	  Routes	  to	  
School	  programs	  statewide	  

o Fund	  Safe	  Routes	  to	  Transit	  programs	  
o Adopt	  a	  complete	  streets	  policy	  
o Partner	  with	  local	  governments	  to	  conduct	  site-‐

specific	  evaluations	  from	  priority	  locations	  

Immediate	  (2015-‐16)	  
o Fund	  construction	  of	  active	  transportation	  

projects	  as	  called	  for	  in	  air	  quality	  transportation	  
control	  measures	  

o Advocate	  for	  use	  of	  Connect	  Oregon	  funding	  for	  
active	  transportation	  projects	  

o Build	  a	  diverse	  coalition	  that	  includes	  elected	  
officials	  and	  community	  and	  business	  leaders	  at	  
local,	  regional	  and	  state	  levels	  working	  together	  
to:	  	  
o Build	  local	  and	  state	  commitment	  to	  

implement	  Active	  Transportation	  Plan,	  and	  
Safe	  Routes	  to	  Schools	  and	  Safe	  Routes	  to	  
Transit	  programs	  

o Seek	  and	  advocate	  for	  new,	  dedicated	  
funding	  mechanism(s)	  

o Advocate	  to	  maintain	  eligibility	  in	  federal	  
formula	  programs	  (i.e.,	  NHPP,	  STP,	  CMAQ)	  
and	  discretionary	  programs	  (New	  Starts,	  

Immediate	  (2015-‐16)	  
o Continue	  implementing	  adopted	  transportation	  

system	  plans	  
o Support	  and/or	  participate	  in	  efforts	  to	  build	  

transportation	  funding	  coalition	  
o Advocate	  for	  use	  of	  Connect	  Oregon	  funding	  for	  

active	  transportation	  projects	  
o Leverage	  local	  funding	  with	  development	  for	  

active	  transportation	  projects	  
o Seek	  opportunities	  to	  coordinate	  local	  

investments	  with	  investments	  being	  made	  by	  
special	  districts,	  park	  providers	  and	  other	  
transportation	  providers	  

o Seek	  and	  advocate	  for	  new,	  dedicated	  funding	  
mechanism(s)	  

o Seek	  opportunities	  to	  implement	  Regional	  
Transportation	  Safety	  Plan	  recommendations	  in	  
planning,	  project	  development	  and	  development	  
review	  activities	  

Immediate	  (2015-‐16)	  
o Support	  and/or	  participate	  in	  efforts	  to	  build	  

transportation	  funding	  coalition	  
o Advocate	  for	  use	  of	  Connect	  Oregon	  funding	  for	  

active	  transportation	  projects	  
o Complete	  Port	  of	  Portland	  2014	  Active	  

Transportation	  Plan	  for	  Portland	  International	  
Airport	  

o Prepare	  a	  TriMet	  Bicycle	  Plan	  
Near-‐term	  (2017-‐20)	  
o Invest	  in	  trails	  that	  increase	  equitable	  access	  to	  

transit,	  services	  and	  community	  destinations	  
o Adopt	  a	  Vision	  Zero	  strategy	  for	  eliminating	  

traffic	  fatalities	  

Exhibit C to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 5 of 26



RECOMMENDED	  TOOLBOX	  OF	  POSSIBLE	  ACTIONS	   	   	   	   	   December	  9,	  2014	  

	   Page	  4	  

POLICY	   TOOLBOX	  OF	  POSSIBLE	  ACTIONS	  	  (2015-‐2020)	  
	   WHAT	  CAN	  THE	  STATE	  DO?	   WHAT	  CAN	  METRO	  DO?	   WHAT	  CAN	  CITIES	  AND	  COUNTIES	  DO?	   WHAT	  CAN	  SPECIAL	  DISTRICTS	  DO?	  	  

(e.g.,	  transit	  providers,	  Port	  districts,	  parks	  providers,	  etc.)	  	  
identified	  in	  the	  ODOT	  Pedestrian	  and	  Bicycle	  
Safety	  Implementation	  Plan	  

o Improve	  bicycle	  and	  pedestrian	  crash	  data	  
collection	  

o Support	  local	  and	  regional	  health	  impact	  
assessments	  

Near-‐term	  (2017-‐20)	  
o Adopt	  a	  Vision	  Zero	  strategy	  for	  eliminating	  

traffic	  fatalities	  
o Provide	  technical	  assistance	  and	  expand	  grant	  

funding	  to	  support	  development	  and	  adoption	  of	  
complete	  streets	  policies	  and	  designs	  

o Expand	  existing	  funding	  for	  active	  transportation	  
investments	  

o Simplify	  and	  clarify	  policy	  on	  e-‐bike	  use	  of	  bike	  
lanes	  and	  other	  infrastructure	  

Small	  Starts,	  TIFIA,	  TIGER)	  
o Seek	  opportunities	  to	  implement	  Regional	  

Transportation	  Safety	  Plan	  recommendations	  in	  
planning,	  project	  development	  and	  development	  
review	  activities	  

Near-‐term	  (2017-‐20)	  
o Provide	  technical	  assistance	  and	  planning	  grants	  

to	  support	  development	  and	  adoption	  of	  
complete	  streets	  policies	  and	  designs	  in	  local	  
planning	  and	  project	  development	  activities	  

o Review	  the	  regional	  transportation	  functional	  
plan	  and	  make	  amendments	  needed	  to	  
implement	  the	  Regional	  Active	  Transportation	  
Plan	  

o Update	  and	  fully	  implement	  the	  Regional	  
Transportation	  Safety	  Plan	  	  

o Adopt	  a	  Vision	  Zero	  strategy	  for	  eliminating	  
traffic	  fatalities	  

o Update	  best	  practices	  in	  street	  design	  and	  
complete	  streets,	  including:	  
o develop	  a	  complete	  streets	  checklist	  
o provide	  design	  guidance	  to	  minimize	  air	  

pollution	  exposure	  for	  bicyclists	  and	  
pedestrians	  

o use	  of	  green	  street	  designs	  that	  include	  tree	  
plantings	  to	  support	  carbon	  sequestration	  

o identify	  new	  pavement	  and	  hard	  surface	  
materials	  proven	  to	  help	  reduce	  
infrastructure-‐related	  heat	  gain	  

o Update	  the	  Regional	  Active	  Transportation	  Plan	  
needs	  assessment	  in	  the	  2018	  RTP	  

o Build	  and	  monitor	  local	  and	  state	  commitment	  to	  
implement	  the	  Active	  Transportation	  Plan	  and	  
programs	  for	  safe	  routes	  to	  schools	  and	  transit	  

o Clarify	  that	  e-‐bikes	  are	  part	  of	  the	  region’s	  active	  
transportation	  strategy	  

o Partner	  with	  Portland	  State	  University	  to	  develop	  
a	  pilot	  project	  to	  test	  the	  efficacy	  of	  e-‐bikes	  in	  
attracting	  new	  riders	  

o Review	  community	  inventory	  of	  sidewalk	  and	  
bike	  lane	  gaps	  and	  deficiencies	  to	  help	  prioritize	  
where	  limited	  funding	  could	  best	  be	  directed	  to	  
encourage	  multi-‐modal	  movement	  

Near-‐term	  (2017-‐20)	  
o Develop	  and	  maintain	  a	  city/county-‐wide	  active	  

transportation	  network	  of	  sidewalks,	  on-‐	  and	  off-‐
street	  bikeways,	  and	  trails	  to	  provide	  
connections	  between	  neighborhoods,	  schools,	  
civic	  center/facilities,	  recreational	  facilities,	  
transit	  centers,	  bus	  stops,	  employment	  areas	  and	  
major	  activity	  centers	  

o Build	  infrastructure	  and	  urban	  design	  elements	  
that	  facilitate	  and	  support	  bicycling	  and	  walking	  
(e.g.,	  completing	  gaps,	  crosswalks	  and	  other	  
crossing	  treatments,	  wayfinding	  signs,	  bicycle	  
parking,	  bicycle	  sharing	  programs,	  lighting,	  
separated	  facilities)	  

o Invest	  to	  equitably	  complete	  active	  
transportation	  network	  gaps	  in	  centers	  and	  along	  
streets	  that	  provide	  access	  to	  transit	  stops,	  
schools	  and	  other	  community	  destinations	  

o Link	  active	  transportation	  investments	  to	  
providing	  transit	  and	  travel	  information	  and	  
incentives	  

o Partner	  with	  ODOT	  to	  conduct	  site-‐specific	  
evaluations	  from	  priority	  locations	  identified	  in	  
the	  ODOT	  Pedestrian	  and	  Bicycle	  Safety	  
Implementation	  Plan	  

o Expand	  Safe	  Routes	  to	  Schools	  programs	  to	  
include	  high	  schools	  and	  Safe	  Routes	  to	  Transit	  

o Adopt	  a	  Vision	  Zero	  strategy	  for	  eliminating	  
traffic	  fatalities	  

o Adopt	  “complete	  streets”	  policies	  and	  designs	  to	  
support	  all	  users	  

o Establish	  local	  funding	  pool	  to	  leverage	  state	  and	  
federal	  funds	  

o Conduct	  needs	  assessments	  for	  schools	  and	  
access	  to	  transit	  during	  updates	  to	  TSPs	  and	  
other	  plans	  

Exhibit C to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 6 of 26



RECOMMENDED	  TOOLBOX	  OF	  POSSIBLE	  ACTIONS	   	   	   	   	   December	  9,	  2014	  

	   Page	  5	  

POLICY	   TOOLBOX	  OF	  POSSIBLE	  ACTIONS	  	  (2015-‐2020)	  
	   WHAT	  CAN	  THE	  STATE	  DO?	   WHAT	  CAN	  METRO	  DO?	   WHAT	  CAN	  CITIES	  AND	  COUNTIES	  DO?	   WHAT	  CAN	  SPECIAL	  DISTRICTS	  DO?	  	  

(e.g.,	  transit	  providers,	  Port	  districts,	  parks	  providers,	  etc.)	  	  
4.	  Make	  streets	  and	  highways	  
safe,	  reliable	  and	  connected	  

Immediate	  (2015-‐16)	  
o Maintain	  existing	  highway	  network	  to	  improve	  

traffic	  flow	  
o Increase	  state	  gas	  tax	  (indexed	  to	  inflation	  and	  

fuel	  efficiency)	  
o Update	  the	  Oregon	  Transportation	  Safety	  Action	  

Plan	  
o Review	  driver’s	  education	  training	  materials	  and	  

certification	  programs	  and	  make	  changes	  to	  
increase	  awareness	  of	  safety	  for	  all	  system	  users	  

Near-‐term	  (2017-‐20)	  
o Work	  with	  Metro	  and	  local	  governments	  to	  

consider	  alternative	  performance	  measures	  
o Integrate	  multi-‐modal	  designs	  in	  road	  

improvement	  and	  maintenance	  projects	  to	  
support	  all	  users	  

o Adopt	  a	  Vision	  Zero	  strategy	  for	  eliminating	  
traffic	  fatalities	  

o Pilot	  new	  pavement	  and	  hard	  surface	  materials	  
proven	  to	  help	  reduce	  infrastructure-‐related	  heat	  
gain	  

o Use	  green	  street	  designs	  that	  include	  tree	  
plantings	  to	  support	  carbon	  sequestration	  

o Optimize	  built	  road	  capacity	  through	  improved	  
geometric	  design	  and	  other	  operational	  
improvements	  to	  address	  bottlenecks	  and	  
improve	  traffic	  flow	  on	  existing	  multi-‐modal	  
arterials	  

	  
	  

	  

Immediate	  (2015-‐16)	  
o Build	  a	  diverse	  coalition	  that	  includes	  elected	  

officials	  and	  community	  and	  business	  leaders	  at	  
local,	  regional	  and	  state	  levels	  working	  together	  
to:	  	  
o Support	  state	  and	  federal	  efforts	  to	  increase	  

gas	  tax	  (indexed	  to	  inflation	  and	  fuel	  
efficiency)	  

o Support	  state	  and	  federal	  efforts	  to	  
implement	  mileage-‐based	  road	  usage	  charge	  
program	  

o Seek	  opportunities	  to	  implement	  Regional	  
Transportation	  Safety	  Plan	  recommendations	  in	  
planning,	  project	  development	  and	  development	  
review	  activities	  

Near-‐term	  (2017-‐20)	  
o Work	  with	  ODOT	  and	  local	  governments	  to	  

consider	  alternative	  performance	  measures	  
o Provide	  technical	  assistance	  and	  grant	  funding	  to	  

support	  integrated	  transportation	  system	  
management	  operations	  strategies	  in	  local	  plans,	  
projects	  and	  project	  development	  activities	  

o Update	  and	  fully	  implement	  Regional	  
Transportation	  Safety	  Plan	  

o Adopt	  a	  Vision	  Zero	  strategy	  for	  eliminating	  
traffic	  fatalities	  

o Update	  best	  practices	  in	  street	  design	  and	  
complete	  streets,	  including:	  
o Develop	  a	  complete	  streets	  checklist	  
o Provide	  design	  guidance	  to	  minimize	  air	  

pollution	  exposure	  for	  bicyclists	  and	  
pedestrians	  

o Use	  of	  green	  street	  designs	  that	  include	  tree	  
plantings	  to	  support	  carbon	  sequestration	  

o Identify	  new	  pavement	  and	  hard	  surface	  
materials	  proven	  to	  help	  reduce	  
infrastructure-‐related	  heat	  gain	  

Immediate	  (2015-‐16)	  
o Continue	  implementing	  adopted	  transportation	  

system	  plans	  
o Maintain	  existing	  street	  network	  to	  improve	  

traffic	  flow	  
o Support	  and/or	  participate	  in	  efforts	  to	  build	  

transportation	  funding	  coalition	  
o Seek	  opportunities	  to	  implement	  Regional	  

Transportation	  Safety	  Plan	  recommendations	  in	  
planning,	  project	  development	  and	  development	  
review	  activities	  

Near-‐term	  (2017-‐20)	  
o Work	  with	  ODOT	  and	  Metro	  to	  consider	  

alternative	  performance	  measures	  
o Support	  railroad	  grade	  separation	  projects	  in	  

corridors	  to	  allow	  for	  longer	  trains	  and	  less	  
delay/disruption	  to	  other	  users	  of	  the	  system	  	  

o Invest	  in	  making	  new	  and	  existing	  streets	  
complete	  and	  connected	  to	  support	  all	  users	  

o Integrate	  multi-‐modal	  designs	  in	  road	  
improvement	  and	  maintenance	  projects	  to	  
support	  all	  users	  

o Adopt	  a	  Vision	  Zero	  strategy	  for	  eliminating	  
traffic	  fatalities	  

o Pilot	  new	  pavement	  and	  hard	  surface	  materials	  
proven	  to	  help	  reduce	  infrastructure-‐related	  heat	  
gain	  

o Use	  green	  street	  designs	  that	  include	  tree	  
plantings	  to	  support	  carbon	  sequestration	  

o Optimize	  built	  road	  capacity	  through	  improved	  
geometric	  design	  and	  other	  operational	  
improvements	  to	  address	  bottlenecks	  and	  
improve	  traffic	  flow	  on	  existing	  multi-‐modal	  
arterials	  

Near-‐term	  (2017-‐20)	  
o Support	  and/or	  participate	  in	  efforts	  to	  build	  

transportation	  funding	  coalition	  
o Support	  railroad	  grade	  separation	  projects	  in	  

corridors	  to	  allow	  for	  longer	  trains	  and	  less	  
delay/disruption	  to	  other	  users	  of	  the	  system	  

	  

5.	  Use	  technology	  to	  actively	  
manage	  the	  transportation	  
system	  

Immediate	  (2015-‐16)	  
o Integrate	  transportation	  system	  management	  

and	  operations	  strategies	  into	  project	  
development	  activities	  

o Expand	  deployment	  of	  intelligent	  transportation	  
systems	  (ITS),	  including	  active	  traffic	  
management,	  incident	  management	  and	  traveler	  
information	  programs	  

o Partner	  with	  cities,	  counties	  and	  TriMet	  to	  
expand	  deployment	  of	  transit	  signal	  priority	  

Immediate	  (2015-‐16)	  
o Continue	  implementing	  Regional	  Transportation	  

System	  Management	  and	  Operations	  Action	  Plan	  
o Seek	  Metro	  Council/JPACT	  commitment	  to	  invest	  

more	  in	  transportation	  system	  management	  and	  
operations	  (TSMO)	  projects	  using	  regional	  
flexible	  funds	  

o Advocate	  for	  increased	  state	  commitment	  to	  
invest	  more	  in	  TSMO	  projects	  using	  state	  funds	  

o Pursue	  opportunities	  and	  funding	  for	  pilot	  

Immediate	  (2015-‐16)	  
o Continue	  implementing	  adopted	  transportation	  

system	  plans	  
o Advocate	  for	  increased	  regional	  and	  state	  

commitment	  to	  invest	  more	  in	  TSMO	  projects	  
using	  regional	  and	  state	  funds	  

o Pursue	  opportunities	  and	  funding	  for	  pilot	  
projects	  that	  help	  establish	  the	  region	  as	  a	  living	  
laboratory	  for	  sustainable	  and	  multi-‐modal	  
intelligent	  transportation	  systems	  (ITS)	  

Near-‐term	  (2017-‐20)	  
o Partner	  with	  cities,	  counties	  and	  ODOT	  to	  expand	  

deployment	  of	  transit	  signal	  priority	  along	  
corridors	  with	  15-‐minute	  or	  better	  transit	  service	  

o Pursue	  opportunities	  and	  funding	  for	  pilot	  
projects	  that	  help	  establish	  the	  region	  as	  a	  living	  
laboratory	  for	  sustainable	  and	  multi-‐modal	  
intelligent	  transportation	  systems	  (ITS)	  

Exhibit C to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 7 of 26



RECOMMENDED	  TOOLBOX	  OF	  POSSIBLE	  ACTIONS	   	   	   	   	   December	  9,	  2014	  

	   Page	  6	  

POLICY	   TOOLBOX	  OF	  POSSIBLE	  ACTIONS	  	  (2015-‐2020)	  
	   WHAT	  CAN	  THE	  STATE	  DO?	   WHAT	  CAN	  METRO	  DO?	   WHAT	  CAN	  CITIES	  AND	  COUNTIES	  DO?	   WHAT	  CAN	  SPECIAL	  DISTRICTS	  DO?	  	  

(e.g.,	  transit	  providers,	  Port	  districts,	  parks	  providers,	  etc.)	  	  
along	  corridors	  with	  15-‐minute	  or	  better	  transit	  
service	  

o Pursue	  opportunities	  and	  funding	  for	  pilot	  
projects	  that	  help	  establish	  the	  region	  as	  a	  living	  
laboratory	  for	  sustainable	  and	  multi-‐modal	  
intelligent	  transportation	  systems	  (ITS)	  

	  
	  

projects	  that	  help	  establish	  the	  region	  as	  a	  living	  
laboratory	  for	  sustainable	  and	  multi-‐modal	  
intelligent	  transportation	  systems	  (ITS)	  

Near-‐term	  (2017-‐20)	  
o Build	  capacity	  and	  strengthen	  interagency	  

coordination	  
o Provide	  technical	  assistance	  and	  grant	  funding	  to	  

integrate	  transportation	  system	  management	  
operations	  strategies	  in	  local	  plans,	  project	  
development,	  and	  development	  review	  activities	  

o Update	  Regional	  TSMO	  Strategic	  Plan	  by	  2018	  

Near-‐term	  (2017-‐20)	  
o Expand	  deployment	  of	  intelligent	  transportation	  

systems	  (ITS),	  including	  active	  traffic	  
management,	  incident	  management	  and	  travel	  
information	  programs	  and	  coordinate	  with	  
capital	  projects	  

o Partner	  with	  TriMet	  to	  expand	  deployment	  of	  
transit	  signal	  priority	  along	  corridors	  with	  15-‐
minute	  or	  better	  transit	  service	  

o Complete	  an	  inventory	  of	  the	  installed	  intelligent	  
transportation	  systems	  (ITS)	  along	  arterials	  to	  
help	  prioritize	  areas	  where	  limited	  funding	  could	  
best	  be	  directed	  to	  increase	  roadway	  
performance	  

6.	  Provide	  information	  and	  
incentives	  to	  expand	  the	  use	  of	  
travel	  options	  
	  

Immediate	  (2015-‐16)	  
o Adopt	  Statewide	  Transportation	  Options	  Plan	  

with	  funding	  strategy	  to	  implement	  
o Deploy	  statewide	  eco-‐driving	  educational	  effort,	  

including	  integration	  of	  eco-‐driving	  information	  
in	  driver’s	  education	  training	  courses,	  Oregon	  
Driver’s	  education	  manual	  and	  certification	  
programs	  

o Review	  EcoRule	  to	  identify	  opportunities	  to	  
improve	  effectiveness	  

o Increase	  state	  capacity	  and	  staffing	  to	  support	  
on-‐going	  EcoRule	  implementation	  and	  
monitoring	  

o Deploy	  video	  conferencing,	  virtual	  meeting	  
technologies	  and	  other	  communication	  
technologies	  to	  reduce	  business	  travel	  needs	  

o Partner	  with	  TriMet,	  SMART	  and	  media	  partners	  
to	  link	  the	  Air	  Quality	  Index	  to	  transportation	  
system	  information	  outlets	  

Near-‐term	  (2017-‐20)	  
o Promote	  and	  provide	  information,	  recognition,	  

funding	  and	  incentives	  to	  encourage	  commuter	  
programs	  and	  individualized	  marketing	  to	  
provide	  employers,	  employees	  and	  residents	  
information	  and	  incentives	  to	  use	  travel	  options	  

o Integrate	  transportation	  demand	  management	  
practices	  into	  planning,	  project	  development,	  
and	  development	  review	  activities	  

o Establish	  a	  state	  vanpool	  strategy	  that	  addresses	  
urban	  and	  rural	  transportation	  needs	  

o Integrate	  promotion	  of	  workplace	  charging,	  
carsharing,	  and	  new	  people	  mover	  services	  into	  
employer-‐based	  outreach	  programs	  that	  

Immediate	  (2015-‐16)	  
o Continue	  implementing	  Regional	  Travel	  Options	  

Strategic	  Plan	  
o Seek	  Metro	  Council/JPACT	  commitment	  to	  invest	  

more	  regional	  flexible	  funds	  to	  expand	  direct	  
services	  and	  funding	  provided	  to	  local	  partners	  
(e.g.,	  local	  governments,	  transportation	  
management	  associations,	  and	  other	  non-‐profit	  
and	  community-‐based	  organizations)	  to	  
implement	  expanded	  education,	  recognition	  and	  
outreach	  efforts	  in	  coordination	  with	  other	  
capital	  investments	  

o Provide	  funding	  and	  partner	  with	  community-‐
based	  organizations	  to	  develop	  culturally	  
relevant	  information	  materials	  

o Develop	  best	  practices	  on	  how	  to	  integrate	  
transportation	  demand	  management	  in	  local	  
planning,	  project	  development,	  and	  
development	  review	  activities	  

o Integrate	  transportation	  demand	  management	  
practices	  into	  planning,	  project	  development	  ad	  
development	  review	  activities	  

Near-‐term	  (2017-‐20)	  
o Expand	  on-‐going	  technical	  assistance	  and	  grant	  

funding	  to	  local	  governments,	  transportation	  
management	  associations,	  business	  associations	  
and	  other	  non-‐profit	  organizations	  to	  incorporate	  
travel	  information	  and	  incentives	  in	  local	  
planning	  and	  project	  development	  activities	  and	  
at	  worksites	  

o Establish	  an	  on-‐going	  individualized	  marketing	  
program	  that	  targets	  deployment	  in	  conjunction	  
with	  capital	  investments	  being	  made	  in	  the	  

Immediate	  (2015-‐16)	  
o Continue	  implementing	  adopted	  transportation	  

system	  plans	  
o Advocate	  for	  increased	  state	  and	  regional	  

funding	  to	  expand	  direct	  services	  provided	  to	  
local	  partners	  (e.g.,	  local	  governments,	  
transportation	  management	  associations,	  and	  
other	  non-‐profit	  organizations)	  to	  support	  
expanded	  education,	  recognition	  and	  outreach	  
efforts	  in	  coordination	  with	  other	  capital	  
investments	  

o Host	  citywide	  and	  community	  events	  like	  Bike	  to	  
Work	  Day	  and	  Sunday	  Parkways	  

Near-‐term	  (2017-‐20)	  
o Integrate	  transportation	  demand	  management	  

practices	  into	  planning,	  project	  development,	  
and	  development	  review	  activities	  	  	  

o Provide	  incentives	  for	  new	  development	  over	  a	  
specific	  trip	  generation	  threshold	  to	  provide	  
travel	  information	  and	  incentives	  to	  support	  
achievement	  of	  EcoRule	  and	  mode	  share	  targets	  
adopted	  in	  local	  and	  regional	  plans	  

o Partner	  with	  businesses	  and/or	  business	  
associations	  and	  transportation	  management	  
associations	  to	  implement	  demand	  management	  
programs	  in	  employment	  areas	  and	  centers	  
served	  with	  active	  transportation	  options,	  15-‐
minute	  or	  better	  transit	  service,	  and	  parking	  
management	  

o Expand	  local	  travel	  options	  program	  delivery	  
through	  new	  coordinator	  positions	  and	  
partnerships	  with	  business	  associations,	  
transportation	  management	  associations,	  and	  

Immediate	  (2015-‐16)	  
o Expand	  employer	  program	  capacity	  and	  staffing	  

to	  support	  expanded	  education,	  recognition	  and	  
outreach	  efforts	  

Exhibit C to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 8 of 26



RECOMMENDED	  TOOLBOX	  OF	  POSSIBLE	  ACTIONS	   	   	   	   	   December	  9,	  2014	  

	   Page	  7	  

POLICY	   TOOLBOX	  OF	  POSSIBLE	  ACTIONS	  	  (2015-‐2020)	  
	   WHAT	  CAN	  THE	  STATE	  DO?	   WHAT	  CAN	  METRO	  DO?	   WHAT	  CAN	  CITIES	  AND	  COUNTIES	  DO?	   WHAT	  CAN	  SPECIAL	  DISTRICTS	  DO?	  	  

(e.g.,	  transit	  providers,	  Port	  districts,	  parks	  providers,	  etc.)	  	  
encourage	  transit,	  walking,	  bicycling	  and	  
carpooling	  

o Integrate	  education	  about	  vehicle	  and	  fuel	  
efficiency	  into	  public	  awareness	  strategies	  such	  
as	  eco-‐driving	  promotion	  

o Integrate	  education	  about	  carsharing	  programs	  
into	  public	  awareness	  strategies	  

region	  
o Begin	  update	  to	  Regional	  Travel	  Options	  Strategic	  

Plan	  in	  2018	  
o Clarify	  that	  e-‐bikes	  are	  part	  of	  the	  regional	  toolkit	  

of	  travel	  options	  
o Encourage	  regional	  carsharing	  services	  to	  

increase	  their	  use	  of	  electric	  vehicles	  and	  other	  
clean	  fuel	  alternatives	  

o Integrate	  promotion	  of	  workplace	  charging,	  
carsharing,	  and	  new	  people	  mover	  services	  into	  
employer-‐based	  outreach	  programs	  that	  
encourage	  transit,	  walking,	  bicycling	  and	  
carpooling	  

o Integrate	  education	  about	  vehicle	  and	  fuel	  
efficiency	  into	  public	  awareness	  strategies	  such	  
as	  eco-‐driving	  promotion	  

o Integrate	  education	  about	  carsharing	  programs	  
into	  public	  awareness	  strategies	  

other	  non-‐profit	  and	  community-‐based	  
organizations	  

7.	  Manage	  parking	  to	  make	  
efficient	  use	  of	  vehicle	  parking	  
and	  land	  dedicated	  to	  parking	  
spaces	  
	  

Immediate	  (2015-‐16)	  
o Provide	  technical	  assistance	  and	  grant	  funding	  to	  

support	  development	  of	  parking	  management	  
plans	  at	  the	  local	  and	  regional	  level	  

o Distribute	  “Parking	  Made	  Easy”	  handbook	  and	  
provide	  technical	  assistance,	  planning	  grants,	  
model	  code	  language,	  education	  and	  outreach	  	  

o Increase	  safe,	  secure	  and	  convenient	  bicycle	  
parking	  	  

Near-‐term	  (2017-‐20)	  
o Provide	  preferential	  parking	  for	  electric	  vehicles,	  

vehicles	  using	  alternative	  fuels	  and	  carpools	  
o Prepare	  inventory	  of	  state-‐owned	  public	  parking	  

spaces	  and	  usage	  
o Provide	  monetary	  incentives	  such	  as	  parking	  

cash-‐out	  and	  employer	  buy-‐back	  programs	  
o Develop	  and	  support	  pilot	  projects	  and	  model	  

planning	  approaches	  to	  encourage	  highly	  visible	  
charging	  infrastructure	  on-‐street	  and	  in	  the	  
public	  right-‐of-‐way	  

o Join	  the	  Workplace	  Charging	  Challenge	  as	  a	  
partner	  
	  

Immediate	  (2015-‐16)	  
o Expand	  on-‐going	  technical	  assistance	  to	  local	  

governments,	  developers	  and	  others	  to	  
incorporate	  parking	  management	  approaches	  in	  
local	  plans	  and	  projects	  

Near-‐term	  (2017-‐20)	  
o Pilot	  projects	  to	  develop	  model	  parking	  

management	  plans	  and	  model	  ordinances	  for	  
different	  development	  types	  	  

o Research	  and	  update	  regional	  parking	  policies	  
and	  best	  practices	  to	  more	  comprehensively	  
reflect	  the	  range	  of	  parking	  approaches	  available	  
for	  different	  development	  types	  and	  to	  
incorporate	  goals	  beyond	  customer	  access,	  such	  
as:	  
o linking	  parking	  approaches	  to	  the	  level	  of	  

transit	  service	  and	  active	  transportation	  
options	  provided	  	  

o use	  of	  priced	  parking	  as	  a	  revenue	  source	  to	  
help	  fund	  travel	  information	  and	  incentives	  
programs,	  active	  transportation	  projects	  and	  
transit	  service	  

o linking	  parking	  policies	  in	  mixed-‐use	  transit	  
corridors	  and	  centers	  with	  maintaining	  and	  
providing	  affordable	  housing	  

o Amend	  Title	  6	  of	  Regional	  Transportation	  
Functional	  Plan	  to	  update	  regional	  parking	  map	  
and	  reflect	  updated	  regional	  parking	  policies	  

o Join	  the	  Workplace	  Charging	  Challenge	  as	  a	  

Immediate	  (2015-‐16)	  
o Consider	  charging	  for	  parking	  in	  high	  usage	  areas	  

served	  by	  15-‐minute	  or	  better	  transit	  service	  and	  
active	  transportation	  options	  

Near-‐term	  (2017-‐20)	  
o Prepare	  community	  inventory	  of	  public	  parking	  

spaces	  and	  usage	  
o Adopt	  shared	  and	  unbundled	  parking	  policies	  	  
o Require	  or	  provide	  development	  incentives	  for	  

developers	  to	  separate	  parking	  from	  commercial	  
space	  and	  residential	  units	  in	  lease	  and	  sale	  
agreements	  

o Provide	  preferential	  parking	  for	  electric	  vehicles,	  
vehicles	  using	  alternative	  fuels	  and	  carpools	  

o Require	  or	  provide	  development	  incentives	  for	  
large	  employers	  to	  offer	  employees	  a	  parking	  
cash-‐out	  option	  where	  the	  employee	  can	  choose	  
a	  parking	  benefit,	  a	  transit	  pass	  or	  the	  cash	  
equivalent	  of	  the	  benefit	  

o Increase	  safe,	  secure	  and	  convenient	  bicycle	  
parking	  	  

o Reduce	  requirements	  for	  off-‐street	  parking	  and	  
establish	  off-‐street	  parking	  supply	  maximums,	  as	  
appropriate,	  enacting	  and	  adjusting	  policies	  to	  
minimize	  spillover	  impacts	  in	  adjacent	  areas	  

o Prepare	  parking	  management	  plans	  tailored	  to	  
2040	  centers	  served	  by	  high	  capacity	  transit	  
(existing	  and	  planned)	  

o Join	  the	  Workplace	  Charging	  Challenge	  as	  a	  

Near-‐term	  (2017-‐20)	  
o Provide	  preferential	  parking	  for	  electric	  vehicles,	  

vehicles	  using	  alternative	  fuels	  and	  carpools	  
o Increase	  safe,	  secure	  and	  convenient	  bicycle	  

parking	  
o Join	  the	  Workplace	  Charging	  Challenge	  as	  a	  

partner	  
o Develop	  and	  support	  pilot	  projects	  and	  model	  

planning	  approaches	  to	  encourage	  highly	  visible	  
charging	  infrastructure	  on-‐street	  and	  in	  the	  
public	  right-‐of-‐way	  

	  

Exhibit C to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 9 of 26



RECOMMENDED	  TOOLBOX	  OF	  POSSIBLE	  ACTIONS	   	   	   	   	   December	  9,	  2014	  

	   Page	  8	  

POLICY	   TOOLBOX	  OF	  POSSIBLE	  ACTIONS	  	  (2015-‐2020)	  
	   WHAT	  CAN	  THE	  STATE	  DO?	   WHAT	  CAN	  METRO	  DO?	   WHAT	  CAN	  CITIES	  AND	  COUNTIES	  DO?	   WHAT	  CAN	  SPECIAL	  DISTRICTS	  DO?	  	  

(e.g.,	  transit	  providers,	  Port	  districts,	  parks	  providers,	  etc.)	  	  
partner	  

o Develop	  and	  support	  "charging	  oases"	  with	  
multiple	  chargers,	  modeled	  on	  the	  Electric	  
Avenue	  project	  at	  Portland	  State	  University	  

o Convene	  regional	  transportation	  and	  planning	  
officials	  to	  develop	  strategies	  for	  developing	  
cost-‐effective	  charging	  infrastructure	  that	  also	  
reinforces	  regional	  planning	  goals	  

	  

partner	  
o Develop	  and	  support	  pilot	  projects	  and	  model	  

planning	  approaches	  to	  encourage	  highly	  visible	  
charging	  infrastructure	  on-‐street	  and	  in	  the	  
public	  right-‐of-‐way	  

o Support	  efforts	  in	  new	  development	  (particularly	  
multi-‐family	  housing	  and	  large	  parking	  lots)	  to	  
install	  conduit	  for	  future	  charging	  of	  20%	  or	  more	  
parking	  spaces	  (see	  similar	  standards	  in	  Hawaii	  
and	  California)	  

8.	  Secure	  adequate	  funding	  for	  
transportation	  investments	  
	  

Immediate	  (2015-‐16)	  
o Preserve	  local	  options	  for	  raising	  revenue	  to	  

ensure	  local	  communities	  have	  a	  full	  range	  of	  
financing	  tools	  available	  to	  adequately	  fund	  
current	  and	  future	  transportation	  needs	  

o Seek	  and	  advocate	  for	  new,	  dedicated	  funding	  
mechanism(s)	  for	  active	  transportation	  and	  
transit	  

o Research	  and	  consider	  carbon	  pricing	  models	  to	  
generate	  new	  funding	  for	  clean	  energy,	  transit	  
and	  active	  transportation,	  alleviating	  regressive	  
impacts	  to	  businesses	  and	  communities	  of	  
concern	  

o Increase	  state	  gas	  tax	  (indexed	  to	  inflation	  and	  
fuel	  efficiency)	  

o Implement	  a	  mileage-‐based	  road	  usage	  charge	  
program	  as	  called	  for	  in	  Senate	  Bill	  810	  

Near-‐term	  (2017-‐20)	  
o Expand	  funding	  available	  for	  active	  

transportation	  and	  transit	  investments	  
o Broaden	  implementation	  of	  the	  mileage-‐based	  

road	  usage	  charge	  
	  	  

	  
	  

Immediate	  (2015-‐16)	  
o Update	  research	  on	  regional	  infrastructure	  gaps	  

and	  potential	  funding	  mechanisms	  to	  inform	  
communication	  materials	  that	  support	  
engagement	  activities	  and	  development	  of	  a	  
funding	  strategy	  to	  meet	  current	  and	  future	  
transportation	  needs	  

o Build	  a	  diverse	  coalition	  that	  includes	  elected	  
officials	  and	  community	  and	  business	  leaders	  at	  
local,	  regional	  and	  state	  levels	  working	  together	  
to:	  	  
o Seek	  and	  advocate	  for	  funding	  the	  adopted	  

RTP	  
o Advocate	  for	  local	  revenue	  raising	  options	  
o Seek	  and	  advocate	  for	  new,	  dedicated	  

funding	  mechanism(s)	  for	  transit	  and	  active	  
transportation	  

o Seek	  transit	  and	  active	  transportation	  
funding	  from	  Oregon	  Legislature	  

o Seek	  funding	  for	  road	  
connections/improvements	  that	  will	  support	  
multi-‐modal	  transportation	  

o Consider	  local	  funding	  mechanism(s)	  for	  local	  
and	  regional	  transit	  service	  

o Support	  state	  efforts	  to	  research	  and	  
consider	  carbon	  pricing	  models	  

o Build	  local	  and	  state	  commitment	  to	  
implement	  Active	  Transportation	  Plan,	  and	  
Safe	  Routes	  to	  Schools	  (including	  high	  
schools)	  and	  Safe	  Routes	  to	  Transit	  programs	  

o Support	  state	  and	  federal	  efforts	  to	  increase	  
gas	  tax	  (indexed	  to	  inflation	  and	  fuel	  
efficiency)	  

o Support	  state	  and	  federal	  efforts	  to	  
implement	  road	  usage	  charge	  program	  

	  
	  

Immediate	  (2015-‐16)	  
o Support	  and/or	  participate	  in	  efforts	  to	  build	  

transportation	  funding	  coalition	  
o Advocate	  for	  local	  revenue	  raising	  options	  
o Support	  state	  efforts	  to	  implement	  a	  mileage-‐

based	  road	  usage	  charge	  program	  
o Support	  state	  efforts	  to	  research	  and	  consider	  

carbon	  pricing	  models	  	  
o Consider	  local	  funding	  mechanism(s)	  for	  local	  

and	  regional	  transportation	  needs,	  including	  
transit	  service	  and	  active	  transportation	  

Near-‐term	  (2017-‐20)	  
o Work	  with	  local,	  regional	  and	  state	  partners,	  

including	  elected	  officials	  and	  business	  and	  
community	  leaders,	  to	  develop	  a	  funding	  
strategy	  to	  meet	  current	  and	  future	  
transportation	  needs	  	  
	  

Immediate	  (2015-‐16)	  
o Support	  and/or	  participate	  in	  efforts	  to	  build	  

transportation	  funding	  coalition	  
o Advocate	  for	  local	  revenue	  raising	  options	  
o Seek	  and	  advocate	  for	  new,	  dedicated	  funding	  

mechanism(s)	  for	  active	  transportation	  and	  
transit	  

o Support	  state	  efforts	  to	  research	  and	  consider	  
carbon	  pricing	  models	  

Near-‐term	  (2017-‐20)	  
o Work	  with	  local,	  regional	  and	  state	  partners,	  

including	  elected	  officials	  and	  business	  and	  
community	  leaders,	  to	  develop	  a	  funding	  
strategy	  to	  meet	  current	  and	  future	  
transportation	  needs	  	  

	  
	  

Exhibit C to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 10 of 26



RECOMMENDED	  TOOLBOX	  OF	  POSSIBLE	  ACTIONS	   	   	   	   	   December	  9,	  2014	  

	   Page	  9	  

POLICY	   TOOLBOX	  OF	  POSSIBLE	  ACTIONS	  	  (2015-‐2020)	  
	   WHAT	  CAN	  THE	  STATE	  DO?	   WHAT	  CAN	  METRO	  DO?	   WHAT	  CAN	  CITIES	  AND	  COUNTIES	  DO?	   WHAT	  CAN	  SPECIAL	  DISTRICTS	  DO?	  	  

(e.g.,	  transit	  providers,	  Port	  districts,	  parks	  providers,	  etc.)	  	  
9.	  Support	  Oregon’s	  transition	  
to	  cleaner,	  low	  carbon	  fuels,	  
more	  fuel-‐efficient	  vehicles	  and	  
pay-‐as-‐you-‐drive	  insurance	  
	  

Immediate	  (2015-‐16)	  
o Reauthorize	  Oregon	  Clean	  Fuels	  Program	  
o Implement	  Oregon	  Zero	  Emission	  Vehicle	  

Program	  and	  Multi-‐State	  Zero	  Emission	  Vehicle	  
Action	  Plan	  in	  collaboration	  with	  California	  and	  
other	  states	  

o Lead	  by	  example	  by	  increasing	  the	  public	  
alternative	  fuel	  vehicle	  (AFV)	  fleet	  

o Provide	  funding	  to	  Drive	  Oregon	  to	  advance	  
electric	  mobility,	  and	  to	  other	  endeavors	  that	  
advance	  alternative	  fuels	  

o Work	  with	  insurance	  companies	  to	  offer	  and	  
encourage	  pay-‐as-‐you-‐drive	  insurance	  	  

o Support	  renewal	  of	  Oregon's	  tax	  credits	  for	  
charging	  stations	  and	  other	  alternative	  fueling	  
infrastructure	  

o Support	  legislation	  being	  promoted	  by	  Drive	  
Oregon	  and	  the	  Energize	  Oregon	  Coalition	  to	  
create	  a	  purchase	  rebate	  for	  electric	  vehicles	  

o Join	  Drive	  Oregon	  an	  Energize	  Oregon	  Coalition	  
as	  a	  member	  organization	  and	  participate	  as	  an	  
active	  partner	  in	  promoting	  electric	  vehicle	  
readiness	  and	  deployment	  

o Review	  the	  state	  greenhouse	  gas	  emissions	  
reduction	  targets,	  including	  assumptions	  related	  
to	  fleet	  and	  technology	  advancements	  

Near-‐term	  (2017-‐20)	  
o Provide	  consumer	  and	  business	  incentives	  to	  

purchase	  new	  AFVs	  
o Expand	  communication	  efforts	  about	  the	  cost	  

savings	  of	  driving	  more	  fuel-‐efficient	  vehicles	  
o Promote	  and	  provide	  information,	  funding	  and	  

incentives	  to	  encourage	  the	  provision	  of	  electric	  
vehicle	  charging	  and	  compressed	  natural	  gas	  
(CNG)	  stations	  and	  infrastructure	  in	  residences,	  
work	  places	  and	  public	  places	  	  

o Encourage	  private	  fleets	  to	  purchase,	  lease	  or	  
rent	  AFVs	  

o Develop	  model	  code	  for	  electric	  and	  CNG	  vehicle	  
infrastructure	  and	  partnerships	  with	  businesses	  

o Remove	  barriers	  to	  electric	  and	  CNG	  vehicle	  
charging	  and	  fueling	  station	  installations	  

o Promote	  AFV	  infrastructure	  planning	  and	  
investment	  by	  public	  and	  private	  entities	  

o Provide	  clear	  and	  accurate	  signage	  to	  direct	  AFV	  
users	  to	  charging	  and	  fueling	  stations	  and	  
parking	  

Immediate	  (2015-‐16)	  
o Support	  reauthorization	  of	  the	  Oregon	  Clean	  

Fuels	  Program	  	  
o Support	  the	  Oregon	  Zero	  Emission	  Vehicle	  

Program	  	  
o Support	  renewal	  of	  Oregon's	  tax	  credits	  for	  

charging	  stations	  and	  other	  alternative	  fueling	  
infrastructure	  

o Support	  legislation	  being	  promoted	  by	  Drive	  
Oregon	  and	  the	  Energize	  Oregon	  Coalition	  to	  
create	  a	  purchase	  rebate	  for	  electric	  vehicles	  

o Join	  Drive	  Oregon	  an	  Energize	  Oregon	  Coalition	  
as	  a	  member	  organization	  and	  participate	  as	  an	  
active	  partner	  in	  promoting	  electric	  vehicle	  
readiness	  and	  deployment	  

Near-‐term	  (2017-‐20)	  
o Lead	  by	  example	  by	  increasing	  public	  AFV	  fleet	  
o Support	  state	  efforts	  to	  build	  public	  acceptance	  

of	  pay-‐as-‐you-‐drive	  insurance	  	  
o Expand	  communication	  efforts	  about	  the	  cost	  

savings	  of	  driving	  more	  fuel-‐efficient	  vehicles	  
o Partner	  with	  state	  agencies	  to	  hold	  regional	  

planning	  workshops	  to	  educate	  local	  
governments	  on	  AFV	  opportunities	  

o Develop	  AFV	  readiness	  strategy	  for	  region	  in	  
partnership	  with	  local	  governments,	  state	  
agencies,	  electric	  and	  natural	  gas	  utilities,	  non-‐
profits	  and	  others	  

o Increase	  Metro	  fleet	  use	  of	  electric	  vehicles,	  
including	  non-‐passenger	  cars	  (e-‐bikes	  and	  utility	  
vehicles)	  

o Expand	  availability	  of	  charging	  at	  Metro	  venues	  
(Oregon	  Zoo,	  Expo	  Center,	  Convention	  Center,	  
P5,	  etc.)	  

Immediate	  (2015-‐16)	  
o Support	  reauthorization	  of	  the	  Oregon	  Clean	  

Fuels	  Program	  	  
o Support	  the	  Oregon	  Zero	  Emission	  Vehicle	  

Program	  	  
o Update	  development	  codes	  to	  

streamline/incent/encourage	  the	  installation	  of	  
electric	  vehicles	  charging	  stations,	  alternative	  
fueling	  stations	  and	  infrastructure,	  particularly	  
new	  buildings	  

o Support	  renewal	  of	  Oregon's	  tax	  credits	  for	  
charging	  stations	  and	  other	  alternative	  fueling	  
infrastructure	  

o Support	  legislation	  being	  promoted	  by	  Drive	  
Oregon	  and	  the	  Energize	  Oregon	  Coalition	  to	  
create	  a	  purchase	  rebate	  for	  electric	  vehicles	  

o Join	  Drive	  Oregon	  an	  Energize	  Oregon	  Coalition	  
as	  a	  member	  organization	  and	  participate	  as	  an	  
active	  partner	  in	  promoting	  electric	  vehicle	  
readiness	  and	  deployment	  

Near-‐term	  (2017-‐20)	  
o Lead	  by	  example	  by	  increasing	  public	  AFV	  fleet	  
o Expand	  communication	  efforts	  about	  the	  cost	  

savings	  of	  driving	  more	  fuel-‐efficient	  vehicles	  
o Pursue	  grant	  funding	  and	  partners	  to	  expand	  the	  

growing	  network	  of	  electric	  vehicle	  fast	  charging	  
stations	  and	  publicly	  accessible	  CNG	  stations	  

o Partner	  with	  local	  dealerships,	  Department	  of	  
Energy	  (DOE)	  Clean	  Cities	  programs,	  non-‐profit	  
organizations,	  businesses	  and	  others	  to	  
incorporate	  AFV	  outreach	  and	  education	  events	  
for	  consumers	  in	  conjunction	  with	  such	  events	  as	  
Earth	  Day	  celebrations,	  National	  Plug-‐In	  Day	  and	  
the	  DOE/Drive	  Oregon	  Workplace	  Charging	  
Challenge	  

o Update	  development	  codes	  and	  encourage	  new	  
construction	  to	  include	  necessary	  infrastructure	  
to	  support	  use	  of	  AFVs	  

Immediate	  (2015-‐16)	  
o Support	  reauthorization	  of	  the	  Oregon	  Clean	  

Fuels	  Program	  	  
o Support	  the	  Oregon	  Zero	  Emission	  Vehicle	  

Program	  	  
Near-‐term	  (2017-‐20)	  
o Provide	  electric	  vehicle	  charging	  and	  CNG	  

stations	  in	  public	  places	  (e.g.,	  park-‐and-‐rides,	  
parking	  garages)	  	  

o Provide	  preferential	  parking	  for	  AFVs	  
	  

Exhibit C to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 11 of 26



RECOMMENDED	  TOOLBOX	  OF	  POSSIBLE	  ACTIONS	   	   	   	   	   December	  9,	  2014	  

	   Page	  10	  

POLICY	   TOOLBOX	  OF	  POSSIBLE	  ACTIONS	  	  (2015-‐2020)	  
	   WHAT	  CAN	  THE	  STATE	  DO?	   WHAT	  CAN	  METRO	  DO?	   WHAT	  CAN	  CITIES	  AND	  COUNTIES	  DO?	   WHAT	  CAN	  SPECIAL	  DISTRICTS	  DO?	  	  

(e.g.,	  transit	  providers,	  Port	  districts,	  parks	  providers,	  etc.)	  	  
o Expand	  communication	  efforts	  to	  promote	  AFV	  

tourism	  activities	  
o Continue	  participation	  in	  the	  Pacific	  Coast	  

Collaborative,	  Western	  Climate	  Initiative,	  and	  
West	  Coast	  Green	  Highway	  Initiative	  and	  partner	  
with	  members	  of	  Energize	  Oregon	  coalition	  

o Track	  and	  report	  progress	  toward	  adopted	  state	  
goals	  related	  to	  greenhouse	  gas	  emissions	  
reductions	  and	  AFV	  deployment	  

o Provide	  incentives	  and	  information	  to	  expand	  
use	  of	  pay-‐as-‐you-‐drive	  insurance	  and	  report	  on	  
progress	  

10.	  Demonstrate	  leadership	  on	  
climate	  change	  

Immediate	  (2015-‐16)	  
o Update	  the	  2017-‐20	  Statewide	  Transportation	  

Improvement	  Program	  (STIP)	  allocation	  process	  
to	  address	  the	  Statewide	  Transportation	  Strategy	  
(STS)	  Vision	  and	  STS	  Short-‐Term	  Implementation	  
Plan	  actions	  

o Support	  local	  government	  and	  regional	  planning	  
for	  climate	  change	  mitigation	  

Near-‐term	  (2017-‐20)	  
o Amend	  the	  Oregon	  Transportation	  Plan	  to	  

address	  the	  Statewide	  Transportation	  Strategy	  
Vision	  

o Update	  statewide	  greenhouse	  gas	  emissions	  
inventory	  and	  track	  progress	  toward	  adopted	  
greenhouse	  gas	  emissions	  reduction	  goals	  

o Through	  the	  Oregon	  Modeling	  Steering	  
Committee,	  collaborate	  on	  appropriate	  tools	  to	  
support	  greenhouse	  gas	  reduction	  planning	  

o Report	  on	  the	  potential	  greenhouse	  gas	  
emissions	  impacts	  of	  policy,	  program	  and	  
investment	  decisions	  

Immediate	  (2015-‐16)	  
o Participate	  in	  local,	  regional	  and	  national	  panels	  

and	  presentations	  to	  share	  the	  outcomes	  and	  
recommendations	  of	  the	  Climate	  Smart	  Strategy	  

o Seek	  Metro	  Council/JPACT	  commitment	  to	  
address	  the	  Climate	  Smart	  Strategy	  in	  the	  policy	  
update	  for	  the	  2018-‐21	  Metropolitan	  
Transportation	  Improvement	  Program	  (MTIP)	  
and	  the	  2019-‐21	  Regional	  Flexible	  Fund	  
Allocation	  (RFFA)	  process	  

o Continue	  participating	  In	  the	  Oregon	  Modeling	  
Steering	  Committee	  Health	  and	  Transportation	  
subcommittee	  to	  make	  recommendations	  to	  
ODOT	  on	  tools	  and	  methods	  to	  support	  future	  
health	  assessments	  by	  local,	  regional	  and	  state	  
partners	  

Near-‐term	  (2017-‐20)	  
o Review	  and	  evaluate	  Climate	  Smart	  Strategy	  

investments	  and	  actions	  for	  adoption	  in	  the	  2018	  
RTP	  

o Evaluate	  Metro's	  major	  land	  use	  and	  RTP	  policy	  
and	  investment	  decisions	  to	  determine	  whether	  
they	  help	  the	  region	  meet	  adopted	  targets	  for	  
reducing	  greenhouse	  gas	  emissions	  

o Assess	  potential	  risks	  and	  identify	  strategies	  to	  
address	  potential	  climate	  impacts	  to	  
transportation	  infrastructure	  and	  operations	  as	  
part	  of	  2018	  RTP	  update	  

o Update	  regional	  greenhouse	  gas	  emissions	  
inventory	  and	  track	  progress	  toward	  adopted	  
greenhouse	  gas	  emissions	  reduction	  target	  

o Through	  the	  Oregon	  Modeling	  Steering	  
Committee,	  collaborate	  on	  appropriate	  tools	  and	  
methods	  to	  support	  greenhouse	  gas	  reduction	  
planning	  and	  monitoring	  

Immediate	  (2015-‐16)	  
o Review	  the	  Toolbox	  of	  Possible	  Actions	  to	  

identify	  actions	  that	  are	  already	  being	  
implemented	  and	  new	  actions	  public	  officials	  are	  
willing	  to	  implement	  

	  
Near-‐term	  (2017-‐20)	  
o Sign	  U.S.	  Conference	  of	  Mayors	  Climate	  

Protection	  Agreement	  
o Prepare	  and	  periodically	  update	  community-‐wide	  

greenhouse	  gas	  emissions	  inventory	  
o Report	  on	  the	  potential	  greenhouse	  gas	  

emissions	  impacts	  of	  policy,	  program	  and	  
investment	  decisions	  

o Adopt	  greenhouse	  gas	  emissions	  reduction	  
policies	  and	  performance	  targets	  

o Develop	  and	  implement	  local	  climate	  action	  
plans	  

Near-‐term	  (2017-‐20)	  
o Prepare	  and	  periodically	  update	  greenhouse	  gas	  

emissions	  inventory	  of	  transportation	  operations	  
o Report	  on	  the	  potential	  greenhouse	  gas	  

emissions	  impacts	  of	  policy,	  program	  and	  
investment	  decisions	  

o Adopt	  greenhouse	  gas	  emissions	  reduction	  
policies	  and	  performance	  targets	  
	  

Exhibit C to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 12 of 26



RECOMMENDED	  TOOLBOX	  OF	  POSSIBLE	  ACTIONS	   	   	   	   	   December	  9,	  2014	  

	   Page	  11	  

POLICY	   TOOLBOX	  OF	  POSSIBLE	  ACTIONS	  	  (2015-‐2020)	  
	   WHAT	  CAN	  THE	  STATE	  DO?	   WHAT	  CAN	  METRO	  DO?	   WHAT	  CAN	  CITIES	  AND	  COUNTIES	  DO?	   WHAT	  CAN	  SPECIAL	  DISTRICTS	  DO?	  	  

(e.g.,	  transit	  providers,	  Port	  districts,	  parks	  providers,	  etc.)	  	  
o Report	  on	  the	  potential	  greenhouse	  gas	  

emissions	  impacts	  of	  policy,	  program	  and	  
investment	  decisions	  

o Encourage	  development	  and	  implementation	  of	  
local	  climate	  action	  plans	  

	  
	  

Exhibit C to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 13 of 26



	  

Exhibit C to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 14 of 26



RECOMMENDED	  TOOLBOX	  OF	  POSSIBLE	  ACTIONS	   	   	   	   	   December	  9,	  2014	  

	   Page	  1	  

	  

DRAFT	  TOOLBOX	  OF	  POSSIBLE	  ACTIONS	  	  (2015-‐2020)	  

BACKGROUND	  |	  The	  Climate	  Smart	  Communities	  Scenarios	  Project	  responds	  to	  a	  state	  mandate	  to	  develop	  and	  implement	  a	  strategy	  to	  reduce	  greenhouse	  gas	  emissions	  from	  cars	  and	  small	  trucks	  by	  2035.	  
Working	  together,	  community,	  business	  and	  elected	  leaders	  are	  shapingdeveloped	  a	  Climate	  Smart	  sStrategy	  that	  meets	  exceeds	  the	  goal	  mandate	  and	  will	  contribute	  to	  while	  creating	  healthy	  and	  equitable	  
communities	  and	  a	  strong	  economy.	  After	  considering	  prior	  public	  input	  and	  other	  information,	  on	  May	  30,	  2014,	  the	  Metro	  Policy	  Advisory	  Committee	  (MPAC)	  and	  the	  Joint	  Policy	  Advisory	  Committee	  on	  
Transportation	  (JPACT)	  unanimously	  recommended	  a	  draft	  approach	  for	  testing	  that	  relies	  on	  policies	  and	  investments	  that	  have	  already	  been	  identified	  as	  local	  priorities	  in	  communities	  across	  the	  region.	  The	  
strategy	  relies	  on	  implementing	  Analysis	  shows	  the	  region	  can	  meet	  the	  2035	  target	  if	  we	  make	  the	  investments	  needed	  to	  build	  the	  plans	  and	  visions	  that	  have	  already	  been	  adopted	  by	  communities	  and	  the	  region,	  
along	  with	  anticipated	  advancements	  in	  cleaner,	  low	  carbon	  fuels	  and	  more	  fuel-‐efficient	  vehicles.	  The	  draft	  Climate	  Smart	  Strategy	  strategy	  does	  more	  than	  just	  meet	  the	  target.	  It	  supports	  many	  other	  local,	  
regional	  and	  state	  goals,	  including	  clean	  air	  and	  water,	  more	  transportation	  choices,	  improved	  access	  to	  jobs	  and	  services,	  reduced	  delay	  on	  the	  transportation	  system,	  and	  reduced	  travel	  and	  healthcare	  costs	  for	  

households	  and	  businesseshealthy	  and	  equitable	  communities,	  and	  a	  strong	  regional	  economy.	  	  

Building	  on	  existing	  local,	  regional	  and	  statewide	  activities	  and	  priorities,	  the	  project	  partners	  have	  developed	  an	  advisory	  draft	  toolbox	  of	  actions	  with	  meaningful	  steps	  that	  can	  be	  taken	  in	  the	  next	  five	  years	  to	  implement	  the	  Climate	  
Smart	  Strategy.	  The	  actions	  support	  implementation	  of	  adopted	  local	  and	  regional	  plans	  and,	  if	  taken,	  will	  reduce	  greenhouse	  gas	  emissions	  and	  minimize	  the	  region’s	  contribution	  to	  climate	  change	  in	  ways	  that	  support	  community	  and	  
economic	  development	  goals.	  The	  toolbox	  builds	  on	  the	  research,	  analysis,	  community	  engagement	  and	  discussion	  completed	  during	  the	  past	  four	  years	  and	  was	  developed	  with	  the	  recognition	  that	  some	  tools	  and	  actions	  may	  work	  in	  
some	  locations	  but	  not	  in	  others.	  It	  emphasizes	  the	  need	  for	  many	  diverse	  partners	  to	  work	  together	  to	  begin	  implementation	  of	  the	  Climate	  Smart	  Strategy	  and	  that	  each	  partner	  retains	  flexibility	  and	  discretion	  in	  pursuing	  the	  
strategies	  most	  appropriate	  to	  local	  needs	  and	  conditions.	  Inclusion	  of	  an	  action	  was	  primarily	  driven	  by	  advisory	  committee	  and	  public	  feedback.	  The	  policies	  and	  actions	  are	  the	  result	  of	  a	  four-‐year	  collaborative	  process	  informed	  by	  
research,	  analysis,	  community	  engagement,	  and	  deliberation.	  They	  werewill	  be	  subject	  to	  public	  review	  from	  Sept.	  15	  to	  Oct.	  30,	  2014	  before	  being	  considered	  by	  MPAC,	  JPACT,	  and	  the	  Metro	  Council	  in	  December	  2014.	  	  

HOW	  TO	  USE	  THE	  TOOLBOX	  |	  The	  toolbox	  identifies	  is	  focused	  on	  possible	  near-‐term	  (within	  the	  next	  5	  years)	  actions	  that	  the	  Oregon	  Legislature,	  state	  agencies	  and	  commissions,	  Metro,	  cities	  and	  counties	  and	  special	  districts	  are	  
encouraged	  to	  take	  to	  begin	  implementing	  the	  broader	  policies	  and	  strategies	  identified	  in	  the	  Climate	  Smart	  Strategy	  begin	  implementation	  of	  the	  Climate	  Smart	  Communities	  Strategy.	  The	  near-‐term	  actions	  include	  a	  combination	  of	  
existing	  actions	  and	  new	  ideas	  and	  approaches	  that	  will	  lay	  the	  foundation	  for	  longer	  term	  action.	  The	  toolbox	  provides	  an	  advisory	  menu	  of	  possible	  actions	  and	  does	  not	  require	  Metro,	  local	  governments,	  special	  districts,	  or	  state	  
agencies	  to	  adopt	  any	  particular	  policy	  or	  action,	  and	  is	  intended	  to	  allow	  for	  flexibility	  so	  any	  action	  can	  be	  tailored	  to	  best	  support	  local,	  regional	  and	  state	  plans	  and	  visions.	  The	  toolbox	  includes	  specific	  action	  steps	  that,	  if	  taken,	  will	  
help	  implement	  the	  broader	  policies	  and	  strategies	  identified	  in	  the	  Regional	  Framework	  Plan.	  It	  is	  intended	  to	  be	  a	  living	  document,	  subject	  to	  further	  review	  and	  refinement	  by	  local	  governments,	  ODOT,	  TriMet	  and	  other	  stakeholders	  
as	  part	  of	  federally-‐required	  updates	  to	  the	  Regional	  Transportation	  Plan	  to	  reflect	  new	  information	  and	  approaches	  to	  reducing	  greenhouse	  gas	  emissions	  from	  land	  use	  and	  transportation.	  The	  toolbox	  is	  a	  comprehensive	  menu	  of	  
policy,	  program	  and	  funding	  actions	  that	  are	  intended	  to	  allow	  for	  flexibility	  so	  they	  can	  be	  tailored	  to	  best	  support	  local,	  regional	  and	  state	  plans	  and	  visions.	  	  	  
	  
The	  toolbox	  builds	  on	  the	  research,	  analysis,	  community	  engagement	  and	  discussion	  completed	  during	  the	  past	  four	  years	  and	  was	  developed	  with	  the	  recognition	  that	  some	  tools	  and	  actions	  may	  work	  in	  some	  locations	  but	  not	  in	  
others.	  It	  emphasizes	  the	  need	  for	  many	  diverse	  partners	  to	  work	  together	  to	  begin	  implementation	  of	  the	  Climate	  Smart	  Communities	  Strategy	  and	  that	  each	  partner	  retains	  flexibility	  and	  discretion	  in	  pursuing	  the	  strategies	  most	  
appropriate	  to	  local	  needs	  and	  conditions.	  Local,	  state	  and	  regional	  partners	  are	  encouraged	  to	  review	  the	  toolbox	  and	  identify	  actions	  they	  have	  already	  taken	  and	  any	  new	  actions	  they	  are	  willing	  to	  consider	  or	  commit	  to	  in	  the	  
futureas	  we	  move	  into	  2015.	  Updates	  to	  local	  comprehensive	  plans	  and	  development	  regulations,	  transit	  agency	  plans,	  port	  district	  plans	  and	  regional	  growth	  management	  and	  transportation	  plans	  present	  continuing	  ongoing	  
opportunities	  to	  consider	  implementing	  the	  actions	  recommended	  in	  locally	  tailored	  ways.	  Medium	  and	  longer-‐term	  actions	  will	  be	  identified	  during	  the	  next	  update	  to	  the	  Regional	  Transportation	  Plan	  (scheduled	  for	  2016-‐18).	  The	  
toolbox	  is	  a	  comprehensive	  menu	  of	  more	  than	  200	  specific	  policy,	  program	  and	  funding	  actions	  that	  can	  be	  tailored	  to	  best	  support	  local,	  regional	  and	  state	  plans	  and	  visions	  that,	  if	  implemented,	  will	  reduce	  greenhouse	  gas	  emissions	  
in	  ways	  that	  support	  community	  and	  economic	  development	  goals.	  
	  

POLICY	   TOOLBOX	  OF	  POSSIBLE	  ACTIONS	  	  (2015-‐2020)	  
	   WHAT	  CAN	  THE	  STATE	  DO?	   WHAT	  CAN	  METRO	  DO?	   WHAT	  CAN	  CITIES	  AND	  COUNTIES	  DO?	   WHAT	  CAN	  SPECIAL	  DISTRICTS	  DO?	  	  

(e.g.,	  transit	  providers,	  Port	  districts,	  parks	  providers,	  etc.)	  	  
1.	  Implement	  the	  2040	  Growth	  
Concept	  and	  local	  adopted	  land	  
use	  and	  transportation	  plans	  

Immediate	  (2015-‐16)	  
o Reauthorize	  Oregon	  Brownfield	  Redevelopment	  

Fund	  
o Support	  brownfield	  redevelopment-‐related	  

legislative	  proposals	  
o Restore	  local	  control	  of	  housing	  policies	  and	  

programs	  to	  ensure	  local	  communities	  have	  a	  full	  
range	  of	  tools	  available	  to	  meet	  the	  housing	  
needs	  of	  all	  residents	  and	  income	  levels	  to	  and	  

Immediate	  (2015-‐16)	  
o Continue	  implementing	  2040	  growth	  Concept	  
o Implement	  policies	  and	  investments	  that	  align	  

with	  regional	  and	  community	  visions	  to	  focus	  
growth	  in	  designated	  centers,	  corridors	  and	  
employment	  areas	  	  

o Support	  restoring	  local	  control	  of	  housing	  
policies	  and	  programs	  to	  ensure	  communities	  
have	  a	  full	  range	  of	  tools	  available	  to	  meet	  the	  

Immediate	  (2015-‐16)	  
o Continue	  implementing	  adopted	  land	  use	  plans	  
o Implement	  policies	  and	  investments	  that	  align	  

with	  community	  visions,	  focus	  growth	  in	  
designated	  centers,	  corridors	  and	  employment	  
areas	  

o Support	  restoring	  local	  control	  of	  housing	  
policies	  and	  programs	  to	  ensure	  communities	  
have	  a	  full	  range	  of	  tools	  available	  to	  meet	  the	  

Immediate	  (2015-‐16)	  
o Implement	  policies	  and	  investments	  that	  align	  

with	  community	  visions,	  focus	  growth	  in	  
designated	  centers,	  corridors	  and	  employment	  
areas	  

o Support	  restoring	  local	  control	  of	  housing	  policies	  
and	  programs	  to	  ensure	  communities	  have	  a	  full	  
range	  of	  tools	  available	  to	  meet	  the	  housing	  
needs	  of	  all	  residents	  and	  income	  levels	  and	  

Exhibit C to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 15 of 26



RECOMMENDED	  TOOLBOX	  OF	  POSSIBLE	  ACTIONS	   	   	   	   	   December	  9,	  2014	  

	   Page	  2	  

POLICY	   TOOLBOX	  OF	  POSSIBLE	  ACTIONS	  	  (2015-‐2020)	  
	   WHAT	  CAN	  THE	  STATE	  DO?	   WHAT	  CAN	  METRO	  DO?	   WHAT	  CAN	  CITIES	  AND	  COUNTIES	  DO?	   WHAT	  CAN	  SPECIAL	  DISTRICTS	  DO?	  	  

(e.g.,	  transit	  providers,	  Port	  districts,	  parks	  providers,	  etc.)	  	  
expand	  opportunities	  for	  households	  of	  modest	  
means	  to	  live	  closer	  to	  work,	  services	  and	  transit	  

o Begin	  implementation	  of	  the	  Statewide	  
Transportation	  Strategy	  Vision	  and	  short-‐term	  
implementation	  plan	  to	  support	  regional	  and	  
community	  visions	  

Near-‐term	  (2017-‐20)	  
o Seek	  opportunities	  to	  leverage	  local,	  regional,	  

state	  and	  federal	  funding	  to	  achieve	  local	  visions	  
and	  the	  region's	  desired	  outcomes	  	  

o Provide	  increased	  funding	  and	  incentives	  to	  local	  
governments,	  developers	  and	  non-‐profits	  to	  
encourage	  brownfield	  redevelopment	  and	  
transit-‐oriented	  development	  to	  help	  keep	  urban	  
areas	  compact	  

housing	  needs	  of	  all	  residents	  and	  income	  levels	  
and	  expand	  opportunities	  for	  households	  of	  
modest	  means	  to	  live	  closer	  to	  work,	  services	  
and	  transit	  through	  Legislative	  agenda,	  
testimony,	  endorsement	  letters	  or	  similar	  means	  

o Support	  reauthorization	  of	  Oregon	  Brownfield	  
Redevelopment	  Fund	  through	  Legislative	  agenda,	  
testimony,	  endorsement	  letters	  or	  similar	  means	  

o Facilitate	  regional	  brownfield	  coalition	  to	  
develop	  legislative	  proposals	  and	  increase	  
resources	  available	  in	  the	  region	  for	  brownfield	  
redevelopment	  

o Maintain	  a	  compact	  urban	  growth	  boundary	  
o Review	  functional	  plans	  and	  amend	  as	  needed	  to	  

implement	  Climate	  Smart	  Strategy	  
Near-‐term	  (2017-‐20)	  
o Seek	  opportunities	  to	  leverage	  local,	  regional,	  

state	  and	  federal	  funding	  to	  achieve	  local	  visions	  
and	  the	  region's	  desired	  outcomes	  	  

o Expand	  on-‐going	  technical	  assistance	  and	  grant	  
funding	  to	  local	  governments,	  developers	  and	  
others	  to	  advance	  implementation	  of	  local	  land	  
use	  plans	  and	  incorporate	  travel	  information	  and	  
incentives,	  transportation	  system	  management	  
and	  operations	  strategies,	  parking	  management	  
approaches	  and	  transit-‐oriented	  development	  in	  
local	  plans	  and	  projects	  

o Convene	  regional	  brownfield	  coalition	  and	  
strengthen	  regional	  brownfields	  program	  by	  
providing	  increased	  funding	  and	  technical	  
assistance	  to	  local	  governments	  to	  leverage	  the	  
investment	  of	  private	  and	  non-‐profit	  developers	  

o Leverage	  Metro’s	  public	  investments	  to	  maintain	  
and	  create	  affordable	  housing	  options	  in	  areas	  
served	  with	  frequent	  transit	  service	  

o Support	  increased	  funding	  for	  affordable	  
housing,	  particularly	  along	  corridors	  with	  
frequent	  transit	  service	  

o Implement	  the	  Climate	  Smart	  Communities	  
Strategy	  in	  the	  2018	  RTP	  

housing	  needs	  of	  all	  residents	  and	  income	  levels	  
and	  expand	  opportunities	  for	  households	  of	  
modest	  means	  to	  live	  closer	  to	  work,	  services	  
and	  transit	  through	  Legislative	  agenda,	  
testimony,	  endorsement	  letters	  or	  similar	  means	  

o Support	  reauthorization	  of	  Oregon	  Brownfield	  
Redevelopment	  Fund	  through	  Legislative	  agenda,	  
testimony,	  endorsement	  letters	  or	  similar	  means	  

o Participate	  in	  regional	  brownfield	  coalition	  to	  
develop	  legislative	  proposals	  and	  increase	  
resources	  available	  in	  the	  region	  for	  brownfield	  
redevelopment	  

o Develop	  concept	  plans	  for	  new	  urban	  areas	  in	  
ways	  that	  further	  the	  region’s	  efforts	  in	  achieving	  
greenhouse	  gas	  emissions	  reductions,	  such	  as	  
planning	  for	  complete	  communities	  with	  walking,	  
biking	  and	  transit	  to	  reduce	  or	  eliminate	  vehicle	  
trips	  for	  daily	  needs	  

Near-‐term	  (2017-‐20)	  
o Pursue	  opportunities	  to	  locate	  higher-‐density	  

residential	  development	  near	  activity	  centers	  
such	  as	  parks	  and	  recreational	  facilities,	  
commercial	  areas,	  employment	  centers,	  and	  
transit	  

o Locate	  new	  schools,	  services,	  shopping,	  and	  
other	  health	  promoting	  resources	  and	  
community	  destinations	  in	  activity	  centers	  

o Seek	  opportunities	  to	  leverage	  local,	  regional,	  
state	  and	  federal	  funding	  to	  achieve	  local	  visions	  
and	  the	  region's	  desired	  outcomes	  

o Develop	  brownfield	  redevelopment	  plans	  and	  
leverage	  local	  funding	  to	  seek	  state	  and	  federal	  
funding	  and	  create	  partnerships	  that	  leverage	  
the	  investment	  of	  private	  and	  non-‐profit	  
developers	  
	  

expand	  opportunities	  for	  households	  of	  modest	  
means	  to	  live	  closer	  to	  work,	  services	  and	  transit	  
through	  Legislative	  agenda,	  testimony,	  
endorsement	  letters	  or	  similar	  means	  

o Support	  reauthorization	  of	  Oregon	  Brownfield	  
Redevelopment	  Fund	  through	  Legislative	  agenda,	  
testimony,	  endorsement	  letters	  or	  similar	  means	  

Near-‐term	  (2017-‐20)	  
o Seek	  opportunities	  to	  leverage	  local,	  regional,	  

state	  and	  federal	  funding	  to	  achieve	  local	  visions	  
and	  the	  region's	  desired	  outcomes	  	  

o Share	  brownfield	  redevelopment	  expertise	  with	  
local	  governments	  and	  expand	  leadership	  role	  in	  
making	  brownfield	  sites	  development	  ready	  
	  

2.	  Make	  transit	  more	  
convenient,	  frequent,	  accessible	  
and	  affordable	  

	  

Immediate	  (2015-‐16)	  
o Begin	  update	  to	  Oregon	  Public	  Transportation	  

Plan	  
o Increase	  state	  funding	  for	  transit	  service	  
o Maintain	  existing	  intercity	  passenger	  rail	  service	  

and	  develop	  proposals	  for	  improvement	  of	  
speed,	  frequency	  and	  reliability	  

Immediate	  (2015-‐16)	  
o Build	  a	  diverse	  coalition	  that	  includes	  Work	  with	  

elected	  officials	  and	  community	  and	  business	  
leaders	  at	  local,	  regional	  and	  state	  levels	  working	  
together	  to:	  	  
o Seek	  and	  advocate	  for	  new,	  dedicated	  

funding	  mechanism(s)	  

Immediate	  (2015-‐16)	  
o Support	  and/or	  participate	  in	  efforts	  to	  build	  

transportation	  funding	  coalition	  
o Participate	  in	  development	  of	  TriMet	  Service	  

Enhancement	  Plans	  (SEPs):	  	  
o Provide	  more	  community	  to	  community	  

transit	  connections	  

Immediate	  (2015-‐16)	  
o Support	  and/or	  participate	  in	  efforts	  to	  build	  

transportation	  funding	  coalition	  
o Expand	  transit	  payment	  options	  (e.g.,	  electronic	  

e-‐fare	  cards)	  to	  increase	  affordability,	  
convenience	  and	  flexibility	  

o Seek	  state	  funding	  sources	  for	  transit	  and	  

Exhibit C to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 16 of 26



RECOMMENDED	  TOOLBOX	  OF	  POSSIBLE	  ACTIONS	   	   	   	   	   December	  9,	  2014	  

	   Page	  3	  

POLICY	   TOOLBOX	  OF	  POSSIBLE	  ACTIONS	  	  (2015-‐2020)	  
	   WHAT	  CAN	  THE	  STATE	  DO?	   WHAT	  CAN	  METRO	  DO?	   WHAT	  CAN	  CITIES	  AND	  COUNTIES	  DO?	   WHAT	  CAN	  SPECIAL	  DISTRICTS	  DO?	  	  

(e.g.,	  transit	  providers,	  Port	  districts,	  parks	  providers,	  etc.)	  	  
o Provide	  technical	  assistance	  and	  funding	  to	  help	  

establish	  local	  transit	  service	  
Near-‐term	  (2017-‐20)	  
o Adopt	  Oregon	  Public	  Transportation	  Plan	  with	  

funding	  strategy	  to	  implement	  
o Begin	  implementation	  of	  incremental	  

improvements	  to	  intercity	  passenger	  rail	  service	  
o Make	  funding	  for	  access	  to	  transit	  a	  priority	  

o Seek	  transit	  funding	  from	  Oregon	  Legislature	  
o Consider	  local	  funding	  mechanism(s)	  for	  local	  

and	  regional	  transit	  service	  
o Support	  state	  efforts	  to	  consider	  carbon	  

pricing	  
o Fund	  reduced	  fare	  programs	  and	  service	  

improvements	  for	  transit	  dependent	  
communities,	  such	  as	  youth,	  older	  adults,	  
people	  with	  disabilities	  and	  low-‐income	  
families	  

o Consider	  local	  funding	  mechanism(s)	  for	  local	  
and	  regional	  transit	  service	  

o Research	  and	  develop	  best	  practices	  that	  support	  
equitable	  growth	  and	  development	  near	  transit	  
without	  displacement,	  including	  strategies	  that	  
provide	  for	  the	  retention	  and	  creation	  of	  
businesses	  and	  affordable	  housing	  near	  transit	  

o Update	  Regional	  High	  Capacity	  Transit	  System	  
Plan	  

Near-‐term	  (2017-‐20)	  
o Support	  reduced	  fares	  and	  service	  improvements	  

for	  low-‐income	  families	  and	  individuals,	  youth,	  
older	  adults	  and	  people	  with	  disabilities	  through	  
testimony,	  endorsement	  letters	  or	  similar	  means	  

o Make	  funding	  for	  access	  to	  transit	  a	  priority	  	  
o Research	  and	  develop	  best	  practices	  that	  support	  

equitable	  growth	  and	  development	  near	  transit	  
without	  displacement,	  including	  strategies	  that	  
provide	  for	  the	  retention	  and	  creation	  of	  
businesses	  and	  affordable	  housing	  near	  transit	  

o Implement	  the	  Climate	  Smart	  Communities	  
Strategy	  transit	  investments	  and	  actions,	  
including	  community	  and	  regional	  transit	  service	  
plans	  in	  the	  Update	  2018	  Regional	  
Transportation	  Plan	  by	  2018	  

o Identify	  community-‐based	  public	  and	  private	  
shuttles	  that	  link	  to	  regional	  transit	  service	  	  

o Link	  service	  enhancements	  to	  areas	  with	  
transit-‐supportive	  development,	  
communities	  of	  concern1,	  and	  other	  locations	  
with	  high	  ridership	  potential	  

o Consider	  Use	  ridership	  demographics	  in	  
service	  planning	  

o Consider	  local	  funding	  mechanism(s)	  for	  local	  
and	  regional	  transit	  service	  

Near-‐term	  (2017-‐20)	  
o Make	  funding	  for	  access	  to	  transit	  a	  priority	  	  
o Complete	  gaps	  in	  pedestrian	  and	  bicycle	  access	  

to	  transit	  
o Expand	  partnerships	  with	  transit	  agencies	  to	  

implement	  capital	  improvements	  in	  frequent	  bus	  
corridors	  (including	  dedicated	  bus	  lanes,	  
stop/shelter	  improvements,	  and	  intersection	  
priority	  treatments)	  to	  increase	  service	  
performance	  

o Implement	  plans	  and	  zoning	  that	  focus	  higher	  
density,	  mixed-‐use	  zoning	  and	  development	  near	  
transit	  	  

o Partner	  with	  transit	  providers	  and	  school	  districts	  
to	  seek	  resources	  to	  support	  youth	  pass	  program	  
and	  expand	  reduced	  fare	  program	  to	  low-‐income	  
families	  and	  individuals	  

o Support	  reduced	  fares	  and	  service	  improvements	  
for	  low-‐income	  families	  and	  individuals,	  youth,	  
older	  adults	  and	  people	  with	  disabilities	  through	  
testimony,	  endorsement	  letters	  or	  similar	  means	  

o Convert	  school	  bus	  and	  transit	  fleets	  to	  electric	  
and/or	  natural	  gas	  buses	  

alternative	  local	  funding	  mechanisms	  
o Complete	  development	  of	  TriMet	  Service	  

Enhancement	  Plans	  (SEPs):	  
o Provide	  more	  community	  to	  community	  

transit	  connections	  
o Identify	  community-‐based	  public	  and	  private	  

shuttles	  that	  link	  to	  regional	  transit	  service	  	  
o Link	  service	  enhancements	  to	  areas	  with	  

transit-‐supportive	  development,	  
communities	  of	  concern,	  and	  other	  locations	  
with	  potential	  high	  ridership	  potential	  

o Consider	  Use	  ridership	  demographics	  in	  
service	  planning	  

o Consider	  local	  funding	  mechanism(s)	  for	  local	  
and	  regional	  transit	  service	  

	  
Near-‐term	  (2017-‐20)	  
o Expand	  partnerships	  with	  cities,	  counties	  and	  

ODOT	  to	  implement	  capital	  improvements	  in	  
frequent	  bus	  corridors	  (including	  dedicated	  bus	  
lanes,	  stop/shelter	  improvements,	  and	  
intersection	  priority	  treatments)	  to	  increase	  
service	  performance	  

o Partner	  with	  local	  governments	  and	  school	  
districts	  to	  seek	  resources	  to	  support	  youth	  pass	  
program	  and	  expanding	  reduced	  fare	  program	  to	  
low-‐income	  families	  and	  individuals	  

o Expand	  transit	  service	  to	  serve	  communities	  of	  
concern,	  transit-‐supportive	  development	  and	  
other	  potential	  high	  ridership	  locations,	  etc.	  

o Improve	  and	  increase	  the	  availability	  of	  transit	  
route	  and	  schedule	  information	  

o Convert	  school	  bus	  and	  transit	  fleets	  to	  electric	  
and/or	  natural	  gas	  buses	  

o Expand	  and	  sustain	  youth	  pass	  program,	  
including	  expanding	  routes	  and	  frequency	  along	  
school	  corridors	  

o Support	  transit	  partners	  in	  seeking	  federal	  grants	  
and	  increased	  state	  funding	  for	  electric	  and	  other	  
low-‐carbon	  alternative	  fuel	  buses	  

o Seek	  increased	  funding	  flexibility	  to	  allow	  for	  
greater	  upfront	  capital	  spending	  on	  electric	  and	  
other	  low-‐carbon	  alternative	  fuel	  buses	  if	  those	  
expenses	  are	  offset	  by	  operating	  savings	  

	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  
1	  The	  2014	  Regional	  Transportation	  Plan	  defines	  communities	  of	  concern	  as	  people	  of	  color,	  people	  with	  limited	  English	  proficiency,	  people	  with	  low-‐income,	  older	  adults,	  and	  young	  people.	  

Exhibit C to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 17 of 26



RECOMMENDED	  TOOLBOX	  OF	  POSSIBLE	  ACTIONS	   	   	   	   	   December	  9,	  2014	  

	   Page	  4	  

POLICY	   TOOLBOX	  OF	  POSSIBLE	  ACTIONS	  	  (2015-‐2020)	  
	   WHAT	  CAN	  THE	  STATE	  DO?	   WHAT	  CAN	  METRO	  DO?	   WHAT	  CAN	  CITIES	  AND	  COUNTIES	  DO?	   WHAT	  CAN	  SPECIAL	  DISTRICTS	  DO?	  	  

(e.g.,	  transit	  providers,	  Port	  districts,	  parks	  providers,	  etc.)	  	  
3.	  Make	  biking	  and	  walking	  safe	  
and	  convenient	  

Immediate	  (2015-‐16)	  
o Adopt	  Oregon	  Bicycle	  and	  Pedestrian	  Plan	  with	  

funding	  strategy	  
o Adopt	  a	  Vision	  Zero	  strategy	  for	  eliminating	  

traffic	  fatalities	  
o Seek	  and	  advocate	  for	  new,	  dedicated	  funding	  

mechanism(s)	  for	  active	  transportation	  projects	  
o Advocate	  for	  use	  of	  Connect	  Oregon	  funding	  for	  

active	  transportation	  projects	  
o Review	  driver’s	  education	  training	  materials	  and	  

certification	  programs	  and	  make	  changes	  to	  
increase	  awareness	  of	  bicycle	  and	  pedestrian	  
safety	  

o Complete	  Region	  1	  Active	  Transportation	  Needs	  
inventory	  

o Maintain	  commitment	  to	  funding	  Safe	  Routes	  to	  
School	  programs	  statewide	  

o Fund	  Safe	  Routes	  to	  Transit	  programs	  
o Adopt	  a	  complete	  streets	  policy	  
o Partner	  with	  local	  governments	  to	  conduct	  site-‐

specific	  evaluations	  from	  priority	  locations	  
identified	  in	  the	  ODOT	  Pedestrian	  and	  Bicycle	  
Safety	  Implementation	  Plan	  

o Improve	  bicycle	  and	  pedestrian	  crash	  data	  
collection	  

o Support	  local	  and	  regional	  health	  impact	  
assessments	  

Near-‐term	  (2017-‐20)	  
o Adopt	  a	  Vision	  Zero	  strategy	  for	  eliminating	  

traffic	  fatalities	  
o Provide	  technical	  assistance	  and	  expand	  grant	  

funding	  to	  support	  development	  and	  adoption	  of	  
complete	  streets	  policies	  and	  designs	  

o Expand	  existing	  funding	  for	  active	  transportation	  
investments	  

o Simplify	  and	  clarify	  policy	  on	  e-‐bike	  use	  of	  bike	  
lanes	  and	  other	  infrastructure	  

Immediate	  (2015-‐16)	  
o Adopt	  a	  Vision	  Zero	  strategy	  for	  eliminating	  

traffic	  fatalities	  
o Fund	  construction	  of	  active	  transportation	  

projects	  as	  called	  for	  in	  air	  quality	  transportation	  
control	  measures	  

o Advocate	  for	  use	  of	  Connect	  Oregon	  funding	  for	  
active	  transportation	  projects	  

o Build	  a	  diverse	  coalition	  that	  includes	  elected	  
officials	  and	  community	  and	  business	  leaders	  at	  
local,	  regional	  and	  state	  levels	  working	  together	  
to:	  	  

o Build	  local	  and	  state	  commitment	  to	  
implement	  Active	  Transportation	  Plan,	  
and	  Safe	  Routes	  to	  Schools	  and	  Safe	  
Routes	  to	  Transit	  programs	  

o Seek	  and	  advocate	  for	  new,	  dedicated	  
funding	  mechanism(s)	  

o Advocate	  to	  maintain	  eligibility	  in	  federal	  
formula	  programs	  (i.e.,	  NHPP,	  STP,	  
CMAQ)	  and	  discretionary	  programs	  (New	  
Starts,	  Small	  Starts,	  TIFIA,	  TIGER)	  

o Seek	  opportunities	  to	  implement	  Regional	  
Transportation	  Safety	  Plan	  recommendations	  in	  
planning,	  project	  development	  and	  development	  
review	  activities	  

Near-‐term	  (2017-‐20)	  
o Provide	  technical	  assistance	  and	  planning	  grants	  

to	  support	  development	  and	  adoption	  of	  
complete	  streets	  policies	  	  

o Provide	  technical	  assistance	  and	  funding	  to	  
support	  complete	  street	  and	  designs	  in	  local	  
planning	  and	  project	  development	  activities	  

o Review	  the	  regional	  transportation	  functional	  
plan	  and	  make	  amendments	  needed	  to	  
implement	  the	  Regional	  Active	  Transportation	  
Plan	  

o Update	  and	  fully	  implement	  the	  Regional	  
Transportation	  Safety	  Plan	  	  

o Adopt	  a	  Vision	  Zero	  strategy	  for	  eliminating	  
traffic	  fatalities	  

o Update	  best	  practices	  in	  street	  design	  and	  
complete	  streets,	  including:	  

o develop	  a	  complete	  streets	  checklist	  
o provide	  design	  guidance	  to	  minimize	  air	  

pollution	  exposure	  for	  bicyclists	  and	  
pedestrians	  

Immediate	  (2015-‐16)	  
o Continue	  implementing	  adopted	  transportation	  

system	  plans	  
o Adopt	  a	  Vision	  Zero	  strategy	  for	  eliminating	  

traffic	  fatalities	  
o Support	  and/or	  participate	  in	  efforts	  to	  build	  

transportation	  funding	  coalition	  
o Advocate	  for	  use	  of	  Connect	  Oregon	  funding	  for	  

active	  transportation	  projects	  
o Leverage	  local	  funding	  with	  development	  for	  

active	  transportation	  projects	  
o Seek	  opportunities	  to	  coordinate	  local	  

investments	  with	  investments	  being	  made	  by	  
special	  districts,	  park	  providers	  and	  other	  
transportation	  providers	  

o Seek	  and	  advocate	  for	  new,	  dedicated	  funding	  
mechanism(s)	  

o Seek	  opportunities	  to	  implement	  Regional	  
Transportation	  Safety	  Plan	  recommendations	  in	  
planning,	  project	  development	  and	  development	  
review	  activities	  

o Review	  community	  inventory	  of	  sidewalk	  and	  
bike	  lane	  gaps	  and	  deficiencies	  to	  help	  prioritize	  
where	  limited	  funding	  could	  best	  be	  directed	  to	  
encourage	  multi-‐modal	  movement	  

Near-‐term	  (2017-‐20)	  
o Develop	  and	  maintain	  a	  city/county-‐wide	  active	  

transportation	  network	  of	  sidewalks,	  on-‐	  and	  off-‐
street	  bikeways,	  and	  trails	  to	  provide	  
connections	  between	  neighborhoods,	  schools,	  
civic	  center/facilities,	  recreational	  facilities,	  
transit	  centers,	  bus	  stops,	  employment	  areas	  and	  
major	  activity	  centers	  

o Build	  infrastructure	  and	  urban	  design	  elements	  
that	  facilitate	  and	  support	  bicycling	  and	  walking	  
(e.g.,	  completing	  gaps,	  crosswalks	  and	  other	  
crossing	  treatments,	  wayfinding	  signs,	  bicycle	  
parking,	  bicycle	  sharing	  programs,	  lighting,	  
separated	  facilities)	  

o Invest	  to	  equitably	  complete	  active	  
transportation	  network	  gaps	  in	  centers	  and	  along	  
streets	  that	  provide	  access	  to	  transit	  stops,	  
schools	  and	  other	  community	  destinations	  

o Link	  active	  transportation	  investments	  to	  
providing	  transit	  and	  travel	  information	  and	  
incentives	  

o Partner	  with	  ODOT	  to	  conduct	  site-‐specific	  

Immediate	  (2015-‐16)	  
o Adopt	  a	  Vision	  Zero	  strategy	  for	  eliminating	  

traffic	  fatalities	  
o Support	  and/or	  participate	  in	  efforts	  to	  build	  

transportation	  funding	  coalition	  
o Advocate	  for	  use	  of	  Connect	  Oregon	  funding	  for	  

active	  transportation	  projects	  
o Complete	  Port	  of	  Portland	  2014	  Active	  

Transportation	  Plan	  for	  Portland	  International	  
Airport	  

o Prepare	  a	  TriMet	  Bicycle	  Plan	  
Near-‐term	  (2017-‐20)	  
o Invest	  in	  trails	  that	  increase	  equitable	  access	  to	  

transit,	  services	  and	  community	  destinations	  
o Adopt	  a	  Vision	  Zero	  strategy	  for	  eliminating	  

traffic	  fatalities	  
	  

Exhibit C to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 18 of 26



RECOMMENDED	  TOOLBOX	  OF	  POSSIBLE	  ACTIONS	   	   	   	   	   December	  9,	  2014	  

	   Page	  5	  

POLICY	   TOOLBOX	  OF	  POSSIBLE	  ACTIONS	  	  (2015-‐2020)	  
	   WHAT	  CAN	  THE	  STATE	  DO?	   WHAT	  CAN	  METRO	  DO?	   WHAT	  CAN	  CITIES	  AND	  COUNTIES	  DO?	   WHAT	  CAN	  SPECIAL	  DISTRICTS	  DO?	  	  

(e.g.,	  transit	  providers,	  Port	  districts,	  parks	  providers,	  etc.)	  	  
o use	  of	  green	  street	  designs	  that	  include	  

tree	  plantings	  to	  support	  carbon	  
sequestration	  

o identify	  new	  pavement	  and	  hard	  surface	  
materials	  proven	  to	  help	  reduce	  
infrastructure-‐related	  heat	  gain	  

o Update	  the	  Regional	  Active	  Transportation	  Plan	  
needs	  assessment	  in	  the	  2018	  RTP	  

o Implement	  the	  Climate	  Smart	  Communities	  
Strategy	  active	  transportation	  investments	  and	  
actions	  in	  the	  2018	  RTP	  

o Build	  and	  monitor	  local	  and	  state	  commitment	  to	  
implement	  the	  Active	  Transportation	  Plan	  and	  
programs	  for	  safe	  routes	  to	  schools	  and	  transit	  

o Clarify	  that	  e-‐bikes	  are	  part	  of	  the	  region’s	  active	  
transportation	  strategy	  

o Partner	  with	  Portland	  State	  University	  to	  develop	  
a	  pilot	  project	  to	  test	  the	  efficacy	  of	  e-‐bikes	  in	  
attracting	  new	  riders	  

evaluations	  from	  priority	  locations	  identified	  in	  
the	  ODOT	  Pedestrian	  and	  Bicycle	  Safety	  
Implementation	  Plan	  

o Expand	  Safe	  Routes	  to	  Schools	  programs	  to	  
include	  high	  schools	  and	  Safe	  Routes	  to	  Transit	  

o Adopt	  a	  Vision	  Zero	  strategy	  for	  eliminating	  
traffic	  fatalities	  

o Adopt	  “complete	  streets”	  policies	  and	  designs	  to	  
support	  all	  users	  

o Establish	  local	  funding	  pool	  to	  leverage	  state	  and	  
federal	  funds	  

o Conduct	  needs	  assessments	  for	  schools	  and	  
access	  to	  transit	  during	  updates	  to	  TSPs	  and	  
other	  plans	  

4.	  Make	  streets	  and	  highways	  
safe,	  reliable	  and	  connected	  

Immediate	  (2015-‐16)	  
o Maintain	  existing	  highway	  network	  to	  improve	  

traffic	  flow	  
o Increase	  state	  gas	  tax	  (indexed	  to	  inflation	  and	  

fuel	  efficiency)	  
o Update	  the	  Oregon	  Transportation	  Safety	  Action	  

Plan	  
o Review	  driver’s	  education	  training	  materials	  and	  

certification	  programs	  and	  make	  changes	  to	  
increase	  awareness	  of	  safety	  for	  all	  system	  users	  
o 	  

Near-‐term	  (2017-‐20)	  
o Work	  with	  Metro	  and	  local	  governments	  to	  

consider	  alternative	  performance	  measures	  
o Integrate	  multi-‐modal	  designs	  in	  road	  

improvement	  and	  maintenance	  projects	  to	  
support	  all	  users	  

o Adopt	  a	  Vision	  Zero	  strategy	  for	  eliminating	  
traffic	  fatalities	  

o Pilot	  new	  pavement	  and	  hard	  surface	  materials	  
proven	  to	  help	  reduce	  infrastructure-‐related	  heat	  
gain	  

o Use	  green	  street	  designs	  that	  include	  tree	  
plantings	  to	  support	  carbon	  sequestration	  

o Optimize	  built	  road	  capacity	  through	  improved	  
geometric	  design	  and	  other	  operational	  
improvements	  to	  address	  bottlenecks	  and	  
improve	  traffic	  flow	  on	  existing	  multi-‐modal	  

Immediate	  (2015-‐16)	  
o Build	  a	  diverse	  coalition	  that	  includes	  elected	  

officials	  and	  community	  and	  business	  leaders	  at	  
local,	  regional	  and	  state	  levels	  working	  together	  
to:	  	  
o Ensure	  adequate	  funding	  of	  local	  

maintenance	  and	  support	  city	  and	  county	  
efforts	  to	  fund	  maintenance	  and	  preservation	  
needs	  locally	  

o Support	  state	  and	  federal	  efforts	  to	  increase	  
gas	  tax	  (indexed	  to	  inflation	  and	  fuel	  
efficiency)	  

o Support	  state	  and	  federal	  efforts	  to	  
implement	  mileage-‐based	  road	  usage	  charge	  
program	  

o Seek	  opportunities	  to	  implement	  Regional	  
Transportation	  Safety	  Plan	  recommendations	  in	  
planning,	  project	  development	  and	  development	  
review	  activities	  

Near-‐term	  (2017-‐20)	  
o Implement	  the	  Climate	  Smart	  Communities	  

Strategy	  streets	  and	  highways	  investments	  and	  
actions	  in	  the	  2018	  RTP	  

o Work	  with	  ODOT	  and	  local	  governments	  to	  
consider	  alternative	  performance	  measures	  

o Provide	  technical	  assistance	  and	  grant	  funding	  to	  
support	  integrated	  transportation	  system	  
management	  operations	  strategies	  in	  local	  plans,	  

Immediate	  (2015-‐16)	  
o Continue	  implementing	  adopted	  transportation	  

system	  plans	  
o Maintain	  existing	  street	  network	  to	  improve	  

traffic	  flow	  
o Support	  and/or	  participate	  in	  efforts	  to	  build	  

transportation	  funding	  coalition	  
o Seek	  opportunities	  to	  implement	  Regional	  

Transportation	  Safety	  Plan	  recommendations	  in	  
planning,	  project	  development	  and	  development	  
review	  activities	  

Near-‐term	  (2017-‐20)	  
o Work	  with	  ODOT	  and	  Metro	  to	  consider	  

alternative	  performance	  measures	  
o Support	  railroad	  grade	  separation	  projects	  in	  

corridors	  to	  allow	  for	  longer	  trains	  and	  less	  
delay/disruption	  to	  other	  users	  of	  the	  system	  	  

o Invest	  in	  making	  new	  and	  existing	  streets	  
complete	  and	  connected	  to	  support	  all	  users	  

o Integrate	  multi-‐modal	  designs	  in	  road	  
improvement	  and	  maintenance	  projects	  to	  
support	  all	  users	  

o Adopt	  a	  Vision	  Zero	  strategy	  for	  eliminating	  
traffic	  fatalities	  

o Pilot	  new	  pavement	  and	  hard	  surface	  materials	  
proven	  to	  help	  reduce	  infrastructure-‐related	  heat	  
gain	  

o Use	  green	  street	  designs	  that	  include	  tree	  

Near-‐term	  (2017-‐20)	  
o Support	  and/or	  participate	  in	  efforts	  to	  build	  

transportation	  funding	  coalition	  
o Support	  railroad	  grade	  separation	  projects	  in	  

corridors	  to	  allow	  for	  longer	  trains	  and	  less	  
delay/disruption	  to	  other	  users	  of	  the	  system	  

	  

Exhibit C to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 19 of 26



RECOMMENDED	  TOOLBOX	  OF	  POSSIBLE	  ACTIONS	   	   	   	   	   December	  9,	  2014	  

	   Page	  6	  

POLICY	   TOOLBOX	  OF	  POSSIBLE	  ACTIONS	  	  (2015-‐2020)	  
	   WHAT	  CAN	  THE	  STATE	  DO?	   WHAT	  CAN	  METRO	  DO?	   WHAT	  CAN	  CITIES	  AND	  COUNTIES	  DO?	   WHAT	  CAN	  SPECIAL	  DISTRICTS	  DO?	  	  

(e.g.,	  transit	  providers,	  Port	  districts,	  parks	  providers,	  etc.)	  	  
arterials	  

o 	  
	  

	  

projects	  and	  project	  development	  activities	  
o Update	  and	  fully	  implement	  Regional	  

Transportation	  Safety	  Plan	  
o Adopt	  a	  Vision	  Zero	  strategy	  for	  eliminating	  

traffic	  fatalities	  
o Update	  best	  practices	  in	  street	  design	  and	  

complete	  streets,	  including:	  
o Develop	  a	  complete	  streets	  checklist	  
o Provide	  design	  guidance	  to	  minimize	  air	  

pollution	  exposure	  for	  bicyclists	  and	  
pedestrians	  

o Use	  of	  green	  street	  designs	  that	  include	  
tree	  plantings	  to	  support	  carbon	  
sequestration	  

o Identify	  new	  pavement	  and	  hard	  surface	  
materials	  proven	  to	  help	  reduce	  
infrastructure-‐related	  heat	  gain	  

plantings	  to	  support	  carbon	  sequestration	  
o Optimize	  built	  road	  capacity	  through	  improved	  

geometric	  design	  and	  other	  operational	  
improvements	  to	  address	  bottlenecks	  and	  
improve	  traffic	  flow	  on	  existing	  multi-‐modal	  
arterials	  

o 	  
	  

5.	  Use	  technology	  to	  actively	  
manage	  the	  transportation	  
system	  

Immediate	  (2015-‐16)	  
o Integrate	  transportation	  system	  management	  

and	  operations	  strategies	  into	  project	  
development	  activities	  

o Expand	  deployment	  of	  intelligent	  transportation	  
systems	  (ITS),	  including	  active	  traffic	  
management,	  incident	  management	  and	  traveler	  
information	  programs	  

o Partner	  with	  cities,	  counties	  and	  TriMet	  to	  
expand	  deployment	  of	  transit	  signal	  priority	  
along	  corridors	  with	  15-‐minute	  or	  better	  transit	  
service	  

o Pursue	  opportunities	  and	  funding	  for	  pilot	  
projects	  that	  help	  establish	  the	  region	  as	  a	  living	  
laboratory	  for	  sustainable	  and	  multi-‐modal	  
intelligent	  transportation	  systems	  (ITS)	  

	  
	  

Immediate	  (2015-‐16)	  
o Continue	  implementing	  Regional	  Transportation	  

System	  Management	  and	  Operations	  Action	  Plan	  
o Seek	  Metro	  Council/JPACT	  commitment	  to	  invest	  

more	  in	  transportation	  system	  management	  and	  
operations	  (TSMO)	  projects	  using	  regional	  
flexible	  funds	  

o Advocate	  for	  increased	  state	  commitment	  to	  
invest	  more	  in	  TSMO	  projects	  using	  state	  funds	  

o Pursue	  opportunities	  and	  funding	  for	  pilot	  
projects	  that	  help	  establish	  the	  region	  as	  a	  living	  
laboratory	  for	  sustainable	  and	  multi-‐modal	  
intelligent	  transportation	  systems	  (ITS)	  

Near-‐term	  (2017-‐20)	  
o Build	  capacity	  and	  strengthen	  interagency	  

coordination	  
o Provide	  technical	  assistance	  and	  grant	  funding	  to	  

integrate	  transportation	  system	  management	  
operations	  strategies	  in	  local	  plans,	  project	  
development,	  and	  development	  review	  activities	  

o Update	  Regional	  TSMO	  Strategic	  Plan	  by	  2018	  
o Implement	  the	  Climate	  Smart	  Communities	  

Strategy	  transportation	  system	  management	  
investments	  and	  actions	  in	  the	  2018	  RTP	  

Immediate	  (2015-‐16)	  
o Continue	  implementing	  adopted	  transportation	  

system	  plans	  
o Advocate	  for	  increased	  regional	  and	  state	  

commitment	  to	  invest	  more	  in	  TSMO	  projects	  
using	  regional	  and	  state	  funds	  

o Pursue	  opportunities	  and	  funding	  for	  pilot	  
projects	  that	  help	  establish	  the	  region	  as	  a	  living	  
laboratory	  for	  sustainable	  and	  multi-‐modal	  
intelligent	  transportation	  systems	  (ITS)	  

Near-‐term	  (2017-‐20)	  
o Expand	  deployment	  of	  intelligent	  transportation	  

systems	  (ITS),	  including	  active	  traffic	  
management,	  incident	  management	  and	  travel	  
information	  programs	  and	  coordinate	  with	  
capital	  projects	  

o Partner	  with	  TriMet	  to	  expand	  deployment	  of	  
transit	  signal	  priority	  along	  corridors	  with	  15-‐
minute	  or	  better	  transit	  service	  

o Complete	  an	  inventory	  of	  the	  installed	  intelligent	  
transportation	  systems	  (ITS)	  along	  arterials	  to	  
help	  prioritize	  areas	  where	  limited	  funding	  could	  
best	  be	  directed	  to	  increase	  roadway	  
performance	  

Near-‐term	  (2017-‐20)	  
o Partner	  with	  cities,	  counties	  and	  ODOT	  to	  expand	  

deployment	  of	  transit	  signal	  priority	  along	  
corridors	  with	  15-‐minute	  or	  better	  transit	  service	  

o Pursue	  opportunities	  and	  funding	  for	  pilot	  
projects	  that	  help	  establish	  the	  region	  as	  a	  living	  
laboratory	  for	  sustainable	  and	  multi-‐modal	  
intelligent	  transportation	  systems	  (ITS)	  

Exhibit C to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 20 of 26



RECOMMENDED	  TOOLBOX	  OF	  POSSIBLE	  ACTIONS	   	   	   	   	   December	  9,	  2014	  

	   Page	  7	  

POLICY	   TOOLBOX	  OF	  POSSIBLE	  ACTIONS	  	  (2015-‐2020)	  
	   WHAT	  CAN	  THE	  STATE	  DO?	   WHAT	  CAN	  METRO	  DO?	   WHAT	  CAN	  CITIES	  AND	  COUNTIES	  DO?	   WHAT	  CAN	  SPECIAL	  DISTRICTS	  DO?	  	  

(e.g.,	  transit	  providers,	  Port	  districts,	  parks	  providers,	  etc.)	  	  
6.	  Provide	  information	  and	  
incentives	  to	  expand	  the	  use	  of	  
travel	  options	  
	  

Immediate	  (2015-‐16)	  
o Adopt	  Statewide	  Transportation	  Options	  Plan	  

with	  funding	  strategy	  to	  implement	  
o Deploy	  statewide	  eco-‐driving	  educational	  effort,	  

including	  integration	  of	  eco-‐driving	  information	  
in	  driver’s	  education	  training	  courses,	  Oregon	  
Driver’s	  education	  manual	  and	  certification	  
programs	  

o Review	  EcoRule	  to	  identify	  opportunities	  to	  
improve	  effectiveness	  

o Increase	  state	  capacity	  and	  staffing	  to	  support	  
on-‐going	  EcoRule	  implementation	  and	  
monitoring	  

o Deploy	  video	  conferencing,	  virtual	  meeting	  
technologies	  and	  other	  communication	  
technologies	  to	  reduce	  business	  travel	  needs	  

o Partner	  with	  TriMet,	  SMART	  and	  media	  partners	  
to	  link	  the	  Air	  Quality	  Index	  to	  transportation	  
system	  information	  outlets	  

Near-‐term	  (2017-‐20)	  
o Promote	  and	  provide	  information,	  recognition,	  

funding	  and	  incentives	  to	  encourage	  commuter	  
programs	  and	  individualized	  marketing	  to	  
provide	  employers,	  employees	  and	  residents	  
information	  and	  incentives	  to	  use	  travel	  options	  

o Integrate	  transportation	  demand	  management	  
practices	  into	  planning,	  project	  development,	  
and	  development	  review	  activities	  

o Establish	  a	  state	  vanpool	  strategy	  that	  addresses	  
urban	  and	  rural	  transportation	  needs	  

o Integrate	  promotion	  of	  workplace	  charging,	  
carsharing,	  and	  new	  people	  mover	  services	  into	  
employer-‐based	  outreach	  programs	  that	  
encourage	  transit,	  walking,	  bicycling	  and	  
carpooling	  

o Integrate	  education	  about	  vehicle	  and	  fuel	  
efficiency	  into	  public	  awareness	  strategies	  such	  
as	  eco-‐driving	  promotion	  

o Integrate	  education	  about	  carsharing	  programs	  
into	  public	  awareness	  strategies	  

Immediate	  (2015-‐16)	  
o Continue	  implementing	  Regional	  Travel	  Options	  

Strategic	  Plan	  
o Seek	  Metro	  Council/JPACT	  commitment	  to	  invest	  

more	  regional	  flexible	  funds	  to	  expand	  direct	  
services	  and	  funding	  provided	  to	  local	  partners	  
(e.g.,	  local	  governments,	  transportation	  
management	  associations,	  and	  other	  non-‐profit	  
and	  community-‐based	  organizations)	  to	  
implement	  expanded	  education,	  recognition	  and	  
outreach	  efforts	  in	  coordination	  with	  other	  
capital	  investments	  

o Provide	  funding	  and	  partner	  with	  community-‐
based	  organizations	  to	  develop	  culturally	  
relevant	  information	  materials	  

o Develop	  best	  practices	  on	  how	  to	  integrate	  
transportation	  demand	  management	  in	  local	  
planning,	  project	  development,	  and	  
development	  review	  activities	  

o Integrate	  transportation	  demand	  management	  
practices	  into	  planning,	  project	  development	  ad	  
development	  review	  activities	  

Near-‐term	  (2017-‐20)	  
o Expand	  on-‐going	  technical	  assistance	  and	  grant	  

funding	  to	  local	  governments,	  transportation	  
management	  associations,	  business	  associations	  
and	  other	  non-‐profit	  organizations	  to	  incorporate	  
travel	  information	  and	  incentives	  in	  local	  
planning	  and	  project	  development	  activities	  and	  
at	  worksites	  

o Establish	  an	  on-‐going	  individualized	  marketing	  
program	  that	  targets	  deployment	  in	  conjunction	  
with	  capital	  investments	  being	  made	  in	  the	  
region	  

o Begin	  update	  to	  Regional	  Travel	  Options	  Strategic	  
Plan	  in	  2018	  

o Implement	  the	  Climate	  Smart	  Communities	  
Strategy	  transportation	  demand	  management	  
investments	  and	  actions	  in	  the	  2018	  RTP	  

o Clarify	  that	  e-‐bikes	  are	  part	  of	  the	  regional	  toolkit	  
of	  travel	  options	  

o Encourage	  regional	  carsharing	  services	  to	  
increase	  their	  use	  of	  electric	  vehicles	  and	  other	  
clean	  fuel	  alternatives	  

o Integrate	  promotion	  of	  workplace	  charging,	  
carsharing,	  and	  new	  people	  mover	  services	  into	  
employer-‐based	  outreach	  programs	  that	  

Immediate	  (2015-‐16)	  
o Continue	  implementing	  adopted	  transportation	  

system	  plans	  
o Advocate	  for	  increased	  state	  and	  regional	  

funding	  to	  expand	  direct	  services	  provided	  to	  
local	  partners	  (e.g.,	  local	  governments,	  
transportation	  management	  associations,	  and	  
other	  non-‐profit	  organizations)	  to	  support	  
expanded	  education,	  recognition	  and	  outreach	  
efforts	  in	  coordination	  with	  other	  capital	  
investments	  

o Host	  citywide	  and	  community	  events	  like	  Bike	  to	  
Work	  Day	  and	  Sunday	  Parkways	  

Near-‐term	  (2017-‐20)	  
o Integrate	  transportation	  demand	  management	  

practices	  into	  planning,	  project	  development,	  
and	  development	  review	  activities	  	  	  

o Provide	  incentives	  for	  new	  development	  over	  a	  
specific	  trip	  generation	  threshold	  to	  provide	  
travel	  information	  and	  incentives	  to	  support	  
achievement	  of	  EcoRule	  and	  mode	  share	  targets	  
adopted	  in	  local	  and	  regional	  plans	  

o Partner	  with	  businesses	  and/or	  business	  
associations	  and	  transportation	  management	  
associations	  to	  implement	  demand	  management	  
programs	  in	  employment	  areas	  and	  centers	  
served	  with	  active	  transportation	  options,	  15-‐
minute	  or	  better	  transit	  service,	  and	  parking	  
management	  

o Expand	  local	  travel	  options	  program	  delivery	  
through	  new	  coordinator	  positions	  and	  
partnerships	  with	  business	  associations,	  
transportation	  management	  associations,	  and	  
other	  non-‐profit	  and	  community-‐based	  
organizations	  

Immediate	  (2015-‐16)	  
o Expand	  employer	  program	  capacity	  and	  staffing	  

to	  support	  expanded	  education,	  recognition	  and	  
outreach	  efforts	  

Exhibit C to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 21 of 26



RECOMMENDED	  TOOLBOX	  OF	  POSSIBLE	  ACTIONS	   	   	   	   	   December	  9,	  2014	  

	   Page	  8	  

POLICY	   TOOLBOX	  OF	  POSSIBLE	  ACTIONS	  	  (2015-‐2020)	  
	   WHAT	  CAN	  THE	  STATE	  DO?	   WHAT	  CAN	  METRO	  DO?	   WHAT	  CAN	  CITIES	  AND	  COUNTIES	  DO?	   WHAT	  CAN	  SPECIAL	  DISTRICTS	  DO?	  	  

(e.g.,	  transit	  providers,	  Port	  districts,	  parks	  providers,	  etc.)	  	  
encourage	  transit,	  walking,	  bicycling	  and	  
carpooling	  

o Integrate	  education	  about	  vehicle	  and	  fuel	  
efficiency	  into	  public	  awareness	  strategies	  such	  
as	  eco-‐driving	  promotion	  

o Integrate	  education	  about	  carsharing	  programs	  
into	  public	  awareness	  strategies	  

7.	  Manage	  parking	  to	  make	  
efficient	  use	  of	  vehicle	  parking	  
and	  land	  dedicated	  to	  parking	  
spaces	  
	  

Immediate	  (2015-‐16)	  
o Provide	  technical	  assistance	  and	  grant	  funding	  to	  

support	  development	  of	  parking	  management	  
plans	  at	  the	  local	  and	  regional	  level	  

o Distribute	  “Parking	  Made	  Easy”	  handbook	  and	  
provide	  technical	  assistance,	  planning	  grants,	  
model	  code	  language,	  education	  and	  outreach	  	  

o Increase	  safe,	  secure	  and	  convenient	  bicycle	  
parking	  	  

Near-‐term	  (2017-‐20)	  
o Provide	  preferential	  parking	  for	  electric	  vehicles,	  

vehicles	  using	  alternative	  fuels	  and	  carpools	  
o Prepare	  inventory	  of	  state-‐owned	  public	  parking	  

spaces	  and	  usage	  
o Provide	  monetary	  incentives	  such	  as	  parking	  

cash-‐out	  and	  employer	  buy-‐back	  programs	  
o Develop	  and	  support	  pilot	  projects	  and	  model	  

planning	  approaches	  to	  encourage	  highly	  visible	  
charging	  infrastructure	  on-‐street	  and	  in	  the	  
public	  right-‐of-‐way	  

o Join	  the	  Workplace	  Charging	  Challenge	  as	  a	  
partner	  
	  

Immediate	  (2015-‐16)	  
o Expand	  on-‐going	  technical	  assistance	  to	  local	  

governments,	  developers	  and	  others	  to	  
incorporate	  parking	  management	  approaches	  in	  
local	  plans	  and	  projects	  

o Build	  a	  diverse	  coalition	  that	  includes	  elected	  
officials	  and	  community	  and	  business	  leaders	  at	  
local,	  regional	  and	  state	  levels	  working	  together	  
to:	  	  
o Discuss	  priced	  parking	  as	  a	  revenue	  source	  to	  

help	  fund	  travel	  information	  and	  incentives	  
programs,	  active	  transportation	  projects	  and	  
transit	  service	  

Near-‐term	  (2017-‐20)	  
o Expand	  on-‐going	  technical	  assistance	  to	  local	  

governments,	  developers	  and	  others	  to	  
incorporate	  parking	  management	  approaches	  in	  
local	  plans	  and	  projects	  

o Pilot	  projects	  to	  develop	  model	  parking	  
management	  plans	  and	  model	  ordinances	  for	  
different	  development	  types	  	  

o Research	  and	  update	  regional	  parking	  policies	  
and	  best	  practices	  to	  more	  comprehensively	  
reflect	  the	  range	  of	  parking	  approaches	  available	  
for	  different	  development	  types	  and	  to	  
incorporate	  goals	  beyond	  customer	  access,	  such	  
as:	  	  
o linking	  parking	  approaches	  to	  the	  level	  of	  

transit	  service	  and	  active	  transportation	  
options	  provided	  	  

o use	  of	  priced	  parking	  as	  a	  revenue	  source	  to	  
help	  fund	  travel	  information	  and	  incentives	  
programs,	  active	  transportation	  projects	  and	  
transit	  service	  

oo linking	  parking	  policies	  in	  mixed-‐use	  transit	  
corridors	  and	  centers	  with	  maintaining	  and	  
providing	  affordable	  housing	  

o Amend	  Title	  6	  of	  Regional	  Transportation	  
Functional	  Plan	  to	  update	  regional	  parking	  map	  

Immediate	  (2015-‐16)	  
o Consider	  charging	  for	  parking	  in	  high	  usage	  areas	  

served	  by	  15-‐minute	  or	  better	  transit	  service	  and	  
active	  transportation	  options	  

Near-‐term	  (2017-‐20)	  
o Prepare	  community	  inventory	  of	  public	  parking	  

spaces	  and	  usage	  
o Adopt	  shared	  and	  unbundled	  parking	  policies	  	  
o Require	  or	  provide	  development	  incentives	  for	  

developers	  to	  separate	  parking	  from	  commercial	  
space	  and	  residential	  units	  in	  lease	  and	  sale	  
agreements	  

o Provide	  preferential	  parking	  for	  electric	  vehicles,	  
vehicles	  using	  alternative	  fuels	  and	  carpools	  

o Require	  or	  provide	  development	  incentives	  for	  
large	  employers	  to	  offer	  employees	  a	  parking	  
cash-‐out	  option	  where	  the	  employee	  can	  choose	  
a	  parking	  benefit,	  a	  transit	  pass	  or	  the	  cash	  
equivalent	  of	  the	  benefit	  

o Increase	  safe,	  secure	  and	  convenient	  bicycle	  
parking	  	  

o Reduce	  requirements	  for	  off-‐street	  parking	  and	  
establish	  off-‐street	  parking	  supply	  maximums,	  as	  
appropriate,	  enacting	  and	  adjusting	  policies	  to	  
minimize	  spillover	  impacts	  in	  adjacent	  areas	  

o Prepare	  parking	  management	  plans	  tailored	  to	  
2040	  centers	  served	  by	  high	  capacity	  transit	  
(existing	  and	  planned)	  

o Join	  the	  Workplace	  Charging	  Challenge	  as	  a	  
partner	  

o Develop	  and	  support	  pilot	  projects	  and	  model	  
planning	  approaches	  to	  encourage	  highly	  visible	  
charging	  infrastructure	  on-‐street	  and	  in	  the	  
public	  right-‐of-‐way	  

o Support	  efforts	  in	  new	  development	  (particularly	  
multi-‐family	  housing	  and	  large	  parking	  lots)	  to	  
install	  conduit	  for	  future	  charging	  of	  20%	  or	  more	  
parking	  spaces	  (see	  similar	  standards	  in	  Hawaii	  
and	  California)	  

Near-‐term	  (2017-‐20)	  
o Provide	  preferential	  parking	  for	  electric	  vehicles,	  

vehicles	  using	  alternative	  fuels	  and	  carpools	  
o Increase	  safe,	  secure	  and	  convenient	  bicycle	  

parking	  
o Join	  the	  Workplace	  Charging	  Challenge	  as	  a	  

partner	  
o Develop	  and	  support	  pilot	  projects	  and	  model	  

planning	  approaches	  to	  encourage	  highly	  visible	  
charging	  infrastructure	  on-‐street	  and	  in	  the	  
public	  right-‐of-‐way	  

	  

Exhibit C to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 22 of 26



RECOMMENDED	  TOOLBOX	  OF	  POSSIBLE	  ACTIONS	   	   	   	   	   December	  9,	  2014	  

	   Page	  9	  

POLICY	   TOOLBOX	  OF	  POSSIBLE	  ACTIONS	  	  (2015-‐2020)	  
	   WHAT	  CAN	  THE	  STATE	  DO?	   WHAT	  CAN	  METRO	  DO?	   WHAT	  CAN	  CITIES	  AND	  COUNTIES	  DO?	   WHAT	  CAN	  SPECIAL	  DISTRICTS	  DO?	  	  

(e.g.,	  transit	  providers,	  Port	  districts,	  parks	  providers,	  etc.)	  	  
and	  reflect	  updated	  regional	  parking	  policies	  

o Join	  the	  Workplace	  Charging	  Challenge	  as	  a	  
partner	  

o Develop	  and	  support	  "charging	  oases"	  with	  
multiple	  chargers,	  modeled	  on	  the	  Electric	  
Avenue	  project	  at	  Portland	  State	  University	  

o Convene	  regional	  transportation	  and	  planning	  
officials	  to	  develop	  strategies	  for	  developing	  
cost-‐effective	  charging	  infrastructure	  that	  also	  
reinforces	  regional	  planning	  goals	  

o 	  
8.	  Secure	  adequate	  funding	  for	  
transportation	  investments	  
	  

Immediate	  (2015-‐16)	  
o Preserve	  local	  options	  for	  raising	  revenue	  to	  

ensure	  local	  communities	  have	  a	  full	  range	  of	  
financing	  tools	  available	  to	  adequately	  fund	  
current	  and	  future	  transportation	  needs	  

o Seek	  and	  advocate	  for	  new,	  dedicated	  funding	  
mechanism(s)	  for	  active	  transportation	  and	  
transit	  

o Research	  and	  consider	  carbon	  pricing	  models	  to	  
generate	  new	  funding	  for	  clean	  energy,	  transit	  
and	  active	  transportation,	  alleviating	  regressive	  
impacts	  to	  businesses	  and	  communities	  of	  
concern	  

o Increase	  state	  gas	  tax	  (indexed	  to	  inflation	  and	  
fuel	  efficiency)	  

o Implement	  a	  mileage-‐based	  road	  usage	  charge	  
program	  as	  called	  for	  in	  Senate	  Bill	  810	  

Near-‐term	  (2017-‐20)	  
o Expand	  funding	  available	  for	  active	  

transportation	  and	  transit	  investments	  
o Broaden	  implementation	  of	  the	  mileage-‐based	  

road	  usage	  charge	  
	  	  

	  
	  

Immediate	  (2015-‐16)	  
o Update	  research	  on	  regional	  infrastructure	  gaps	  

and	  potential	  funding	  mechanisms	  to	  inform	  
communication	  materials	  that	  support	  
engagement	  activities	  and	  development	  of	  a	  
funding	  strategy	  to	  meet	  current	  and	  future	  
transportation	  needs	  

o Build	  a	  diverse	  coalition	  that	  includes	  elected	  
officials	  and	  community	  and	  business	  leaders	  at	  
local,	  regional	  and	  state	  levels	  working	  together	  
to:	  	  
o Seek	  and	  advocate	  for	  funding	  the	  adopted	  

RTP	  
o Advocate	  for	  local	  revenue	  raising	  options	  
o Seek	  and	  advocate	  for	  new,	  dedicated	  

funding	  mechanism(s)	  for	  transit	  and	  active	  
transportation	  

o Seek	  transit	  and	  active	  transportation	  
funding	  from	  Oregon	  Legislature	  

o Seek	  funding	  for	  road	  
connections/improvements	  that	  will	  support	  
multi-‐modal	  transportation	  

o Consider	  local	  funding	  mechanism(s)	  for	  local	  
and	  regional	  transit	  service	  

o Support	  state	  efforts	  to	  research	  and	  
consider	  carbon	  pricing	  models	  

o Build	  local	  and	  state	  commitment	  to	  
implement	  Active	  Transportation	  Plan,	  and	  
Safe	  Routes	  to	  Schools	  (including	  high	  
schools)	  and	  Safe	  Routes	  to	  Transit	  programs	  

o Ensure	  adequate	  funding	  of	  local	  
maintenance	  and	  safety	  needs	  and	  support	  
city	  and	  county	  efforts	  to	  fund	  safety,	  
maintenance	  and	  preservation	  needs	  locally	  

o Support	  state	  and	  federal	  efforts	  to	  increase	  
gas	  tax	  (indexed	  to	  inflation	  and	  fuel	  

Immediate	  (2015-‐16)	  
o Support	  and/or	  participate	  in	  efforts	  to	  build	  

transportation	  funding	  coalition	  
o Advocate	  for	  local	  revenue	  raising	  options	  
o Support	  state	  efforts	  to	  implement	  a	  mileage-‐

based	  road	  usage	  charge	  program	  
o Support	  state	  efforts	  to	  research	  and	  consider	  

carbon	  pricing	  models	  	  
o Consider	  local	  funding	  mechanism(s)	  for	  local	  

and	  regional	  transportation	  needs,	  including	  
transit	  service	  and	  active	  transportation	  

Near-‐term	  (2017-‐20)	  
o Work	  with	  local,	  regional	  and	  state	  partners,	  

including	  elected	  officials	  and	  business	  and	  
community	  leaders,	  to	  develop	  a	  funding	  
strategy	  to	  meet	  current	  and	  future	  
transportation	  needs	  	  
	  

Immediate	  (2015-‐16)	  
o Support	  and/or	  participate	  in	  efforts	  to	  build	  

transportation	  funding	  coalition	  
o Advocate	  for	  local	  revenue	  raising	  options	  
o Seek	  and	  advocate	  for	  new,	  dedicated	  funding	  

mechanism(s)	  for	  active	  transportation	  and	  
transit	  

o Support	  state	  efforts	  to	  research	  and	  consider	  
carbon	  pricing	  models	  

Near-‐term	  (2017-‐20)	  
o Work	  with	  local,	  regional	  and	  state	  partners,	  

including	  elected	  officials	  and	  business	  and	  
community	  leaders,	  to	  develop	  a	  funding	  
strategy	  to	  meet	  current	  and	  future	  
transportation	  needs	  	  

	  
	  

Exhibit C to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 23 of 26



RECOMMENDED	  TOOLBOX	  OF	  POSSIBLE	  ACTIONS	   	   	   	   	   December	  9,	  2014	  

	   Page	  10	  

POLICY	   TOOLBOX	  OF	  POSSIBLE	  ACTIONS	  	  (2015-‐2020)	  
	   WHAT	  CAN	  THE	  STATE	  DO?	   WHAT	  CAN	  METRO	  DO?	   WHAT	  CAN	  CITIES	  AND	  COUNTIES	  DO?	   WHAT	  CAN	  SPECIAL	  DISTRICTS	  DO?	  	  

(e.g.,	  transit	  providers,	  Port	  districts,	  parks	  providers,	  etc.)	  	  
efficiency)	  

o Support	  state	  and	  federal	  efforts	  to	  
implement	  road	  usage	  charge	  program	  

o Discuss	  priced	  parking	  as	  a	  revenue	  source	  
for	  travel	  information	  and	  incentives	  
programs,	  active	  transportation	  projects	  and	  
transit	  service	  

	  
	  

9.	  Support	  Oregon’s	  transition	  
to	  cleaner,	  low	  carbon	  fuels,	  
more	  fuel-‐efficient	  vehicles	  and	  
pay-‐as-‐you-‐drive	  insurance	  
	  

Immediate	  (2015-‐16)	  
o Reauthorize	  Oregon	  Clean	  Fuels	  Program	  
o Implement	  Oregon	  Zero	  Emission	  Vehicle	  

Program	  and	  Multi-‐State	  Zero	  Emission	  Vehicle	  
Action	  Plan	  in	  collaboration	  with	  California	  and	  
other	  states	  

o Lead	  by	  example	  by	  increasing	  the	  public	  
alternative	  fuel	  vehicle	  (AFV)	  fleet	  

o Provide	  funding	  to	  Drive	  Oregon	  to	  advance	  
electric	  mobility,	  and	  to	  other	  endeavors	  that	  
advance	  alternative	  fuels	  

o Work	  with	  insurance	  companies	  to	  offer	  and	  
encourage	  pay-‐as-‐you-‐drive	  insurance	  	  

o Support	  renewal	  of	  Oregon's	  tax	  credits	  for	  
charging	  stations	  and	  other	  alternative	  fueling	  
infrastructure	  

o Support	  legislation	  being	  promoted	  by	  Drive	  
Oregon	  and	  the	  Energize	  Oregon	  Coalition	  to	  
create	  a	  purchase	  rebate	  for	  electric	  vehicles	  

o Join	  Drive	  Oregon	  an	  Energize	  Oregon	  Coalition	  
as	  a	  member	  organization	  and	  participate	  as	  an	  
active	  partner	  in	  promoting	  electric	  vehicle	  
readiness	  and	  deployment	  

o Review	  the	  state	  greenhouse	  gas	  emissions	  
reduction	  targets,	  including	  assumptions	  related	  
to	  fleet	  and	  technology	  advancements	  

Near-‐term	  (2017-‐20)	  
o Provide	  consumer	  and	  business	  incentives	  to	  

purchase	  new	  AFVs	  
o Expand	  communication	  efforts	  about	  the	  cost	  

savings	  of	  driving	  more	  fuel-‐efficient	  vehicles	  
o Promote	  and	  provide	  information,	  funding	  and	  

incentives	  to	  encourage	  the	  provision	  of	  electric	  
vehicle	  charging	  and	  compressed	  natural	  gas	  
(CNG)	  stations	  and	  infrastructure	  in	  residences,	  
work	  places	  and	  public	  places	  	  

o Encourage	  private	  fleets	  to	  purchase,	  lease	  or	  
rent	  AFVs	  

Immediate	  (2015-‐16)	  
o Support	  reauthorization	  of	  the	  Oregon	  Clean	  

Fuels	  Program	  through	  Legislative	  agenda,	  
testimony,	  endorsement	  letters	  or	  similar	  means	  	  

o Support	  the	  Oregon	  Zero	  Emission	  Vehicle	  
Program	  through	  Legislative	  agenda,	  testimony,	  
endorsement	  letters	  or	  similar	  means	  	  

o Support	  renewal	  of	  Oregon's	  tax	  credits	  for	  
charging	  stations	  and	  other	  alternative	  fueling	  
infrastructure	  

o Support	  legislation	  being	  promoted	  by	  Drive	  
Oregon	  and	  the	  Energize	  Oregon	  Coalition	  to	  
create	  a	  purchase	  rebate	  for	  electric	  vehicles	  

o Join	  Drive	  Oregon	  an	  Energize	  Oregon	  Coalition	  
as	  a	  member	  organization	  and	  participate	  as	  an	  
active	  partner	  in	  promoting	  electric	  vehicle	  
readiness	  and	  deployment	  

Near-‐term	  (2017-‐20)	  
o Lead	  by	  example	  by	  increasing	  public	  AFV	  fleet	  
o Support	  state	  efforts	  to	  build	  public	  acceptance	  

of	  pay-‐as-‐you-‐drive	  insurance	  	  
o Expand	  communication	  efforts	  about	  the	  cost	  

savings	  of	  driving	  more	  fuel-‐efficient	  vehicles	  
o Partner	  with	  state	  agencies	  to	  hold	  regional	  

planning	  workshops	  to	  educate	  local	  
governments	  on	  AFV	  opportunities	  

o Develop	  AFV	  readiness	  strategy	  for	  region	  in	  
partnership	  with	  local	  governments,	  state	  
agencies,	  electric	  and	  natural	  gas	  utilities,	  non-‐
profits	  and	  others	  

o Increase	  Metro	  fleet	  use	  of	  electric	  vehicles,	  
including	  non-‐passenger	  cars	  (e-‐bikes	  and	  utility	  
vehicles)	  

o Expand	  availability	  of	  charging	  at	  Metro	  venues	  
(Oregon	  Zoo,	  Expo	  Center,	  Convention	  Center,	  
P5,	  etc.)	  

Immediate	  (2015-‐16)	  
o Support	  reauthorization	  of	  the	  Oregon	  Clean	  

Fuels	  Program	  through	  Legislative	  agenda,	  
testimony,	  endorsement	  letters	  or	  similar	  means	  	  

o Support	  the	  Oregon	  Zero	  Emission	  Vehicle	  
Program	  through	  Legislative	  agenda,	  testimony,	  
endorsement	  letters	  or	  similar	  means	  	  

o Update	  development	  codes	  to	  
streamline/incent/encourage	  the	  installation	  of	  
electric	  vehicles	  charging	  stations,	  alternative	  
fueling	  stations	  and	  infrastructure,	  particularly	  
new	  buildings	  

o Support	  renewal	  of	  Oregon's	  tax	  credits	  for	  
charging	  stations	  and	  other	  alternative	  fueling	  
infrastructure	  

o Support	  legislation	  being	  promoted	  by	  Drive	  
Oregon	  and	  the	  Energize	  Oregon	  Coalition	  to	  
create	  a	  purchase	  rebate	  for	  electric	  vehicles	  

o Join	  Drive	  Oregon	  an	  Energize	  Oregon	  Coalition	  
as	  a	  member	  organization	  and	  participate	  as	  an	  
active	  partner	  in	  promoting	  electric	  vehicle	  
readiness	  and	  deployment	  

Near-‐term	  (2017-‐20)	  
o Lead	  by	  example	  by	  increasing	  public	  AFV	  fleet	  
o Expand	  communication	  efforts	  about	  the	  cost	  

savings	  of	  driving	  more	  fuel-‐efficient	  vehicles	  
o Pursue	  grant	  funding	  and	  partners	  to	  expand	  the	  

growing	  network	  of	  electric	  vehicle	  fast	  charging	  
stations	  and	  publicly	  accessible	  CNG	  stations	  

o Partner	  with	  local	  dealerships,	  Department	  of	  
Energy	  (DOE)	  Clean	  Cities	  programs,	  non-‐profit	  
organizations,	  businesses	  and	  others	  to	  
incorporate	  AFV	  outreach	  and	  education	  events	  
for	  consumers	  in	  conjunction	  with	  such	  events	  as	  
Earth	  Day	  celebrations,	  National	  Plug-‐In	  Day	  and	  
the	  DOE/Drive	  Oregon	  Workplace	  Charging	  
Challenge	  

o Adopt	  policies	  and	  update	  development	  codes	  to	  

Immediate	  (2015-‐16)	  
o Support	  reauthorization	  of	  the	  Oregon	  Clean	  

Fuels	  Program	  through	  Legislative	  agenda,	  
testimony,	  endorsement	  letters	  or	  similar	  means	  	  

o Support	  the	  Oregon	  Zero	  Emission	  Vehicle	  
Program	  through	  Legislative	  agenda,	  testimony,	  
endorsement	  letters	  or	  similar	  means	  	  

Near-‐term	  (2017-‐20)	  
o Provide	  electric	  vehicle	  charging	  and	  CNG	  

stations	  in	  public	  places	  (e.g.,	  park-‐and-‐rides,	  
parking	  garages)	  	  

o Provide	  preferential	  parking	  for	  AFVs	  
	  

Exhibit C to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 24 of 26



RECOMMENDED	  TOOLBOX	  OF	  POSSIBLE	  ACTIONS	   	   	   	   	   December	  9,	  2014	  

	   Page	  11	  

POLICY	   TOOLBOX	  OF	  POSSIBLE	  ACTIONS	  	  (2015-‐2020)	  
	   WHAT	  CAN	  THE	  STATE	  DO?	   WHAT	  CAN	  METRO	  DO?	   WHAT	  CAN	  CITIES	  AND	  COUNTIES	  DO?	   WHAT	  CAN	  SPECIAL	  DISTRICTS	  DO?	  	  

(e.g.,	  transit	  providers,	  Port	  districts,	  parks	  providers,	  etc.)	  	  
o Develop	  model	  code	  for	  electric	  and	  CNG	  vehicle	  

infrastructure	  and	  partnerships	  with	  businesses	  
o Remove	  barriers	  to	  electric	  and	  CNG	  vehicle	  

charging	  and	  fueling	  station	  installations	  
o Promote	  AFV	  infrastructure	  planning	  and	  

investment	  by	  public	  and	  private	  entities	  
o Provide	  clear	  and	  accurate	  signage	  to	  direct	  AFV	  

users	  to	  charging	  and	  fueling	  stations	  and	  
parking	  

o Expand	  communication	  efforts	  to	  promote	  AFV	  
tourism	  activities	  

o Continue	  participation	  in	  the	  Pacific	  Coast	  
Collaborative,	  Western	  Climate	  Initiative,	  and	  
West	  Coast	  Green	  Highway	  Initiative	  and	  partner	  
with	  members	  of	  Energize	  Oregon	  coalition	  

o Track	  and	  report	  progress	  toward	  adopted	  state	  
goals	  related	  to	  greenhouse	  gas	  emissions	  
reductions	  and	  AFV	  deployment	  

o Provide	  incentives	  and	  information	  to	  expand	  
use	  of	  pay-‐as-‐you-‐drive	  insurance	  and	  report	  on	  
progress	  

support	  private	  adoption	  of	  AFVs,	  such	  as	  
streamlining	  permitting	  for	  alternative	  fueling	  
stations,	  planning	  for	  access	  to	  charging	  and	  CNG	  
stations,	  allowing	  charging	  and	  CNG	  stations	  in	  
residences,	  work	  places	  and	  public	  places,	  and	  
providing	  preferential	  parking	  for	  AFVs	  

o Update	  development	  codes	  and	  encourage	  new	  
construction	  to	  include	  necessary	  infrastructure	  
to	  support	  use	  of	  AFVs	  

10.	  Demonstrate	  leadership	  on	  
climate	  change	  

Immediate	  (2015-‐16)	  
o Update	  the	  2017-‐20	  Statewide	  Transportation	  

Improvement	  Program	  (STIP)	  allocation	  process	  
to	  address	  the	  Statewide	  Transportation	  Strategy	  
(STS)	  Vision	  and	  STS	  Short-‐Term	  Implementation	  
Plan	  actions	  

o Support	  local	  government	  and	  regional	  planning	  
for	  climate	  change	  mitigation	  

Near-‐term	  (2017-‐20)	  
o Amend	  the	  Oregon	  Transportation	  Plan	  to	  

address	  the	  Statewide	  Transportation	  Strategy	  
Vision	  

o Update	  statewide	  greenhouse	  gas	  emissions	  
inventory	  and	  track	  progress	  toward	  adopted	  
greenhouse	  gas	  emissions	  reduction	  goals	  

o Through	  the	  Oregon	  Modeling	  Steering	  
Committee,	  collaborate	  on	  appropriate	  tools	  to	  
support	  greenhouse	  gas	  reduction	  planning	  

o Report	  on	  the	  potential	  greenhouse	  gas	  
emissions	  impacts	  of	  policy,	  program	  and	  
investment	  decisions	  

Immediate	  (2015-‐16)	  
o Participate	  in	  local,	  regional	  and	  national	  panels	  

and	  presentations	  to	  share	  the	  outcomes	  and	  
recommendations	  of	  the	  Climate	  Smart	  Strategy	  

o Seek	  Metro	  Council/JPACT	  commitment	  to	  
address	  the	  Climate	  Smart	  Strategy	  in	  the	  policy	  
update	  for	  the	  2018-‐21	  Metropolitan	  
Transportation	  Improvement	  Program	  (MTIP)	  
and	  the	  2019-‐21	  Regional	  Flexible	  Fund	  
Allocation	  (RFFA)	  process	  

o Continue	  participating	  In	  the	  Oregon	  Modeling	  
Steering	  Committee	  Health	  and	  Transportation	  
subcommittee	  to	  make	  recommendations	  to	  
ODOT	  on	  tools	  and	  methods	  to	  support	  future	  
health	  assessments	  by	  local,	  regional	  and	  state	  
partners	  

Near-‐term	  (2017-‐20)	  
o Review	  and	  evaluate	  Climate	  Smart	  Strategy	  

investments	  and	  actions	  for	  adoption	  in	  the	  2018	  
RTP	  

o Evaluate	  Metro's	  major	  land	  use	  and	  RTP	  policy	  
and	  investment	  decisions	  to	  determine	  whether	  
they	  help	  the	  region	  meet	  adopted	  targets	  for	  
reducing	  greenhouse	  gas	  emissions	  

o Assess	  potential	  risks	  and	  identify	  strategies	  to	  
address	  potential	  climate	  impacts	  to	  

Immediate	  (2015-‐16)	  
o Review	  the	  Toolbox	  of	  Possible	  Actions	  to	  

identify	  actions	  that	  are	  already	  being	  
implemented	  and	  new	  actions	  public	  officials	  are	  
willing	  to	  implement	  

	  
Near-‐term	  (2017-‐20)	  
o Sign	  U.S.	  Conference	  of	  Mayors	  Climate	  

Protection	  Agreement	  
o Prepare	  and	  periodically	  update	  community-‐wide	  

greenhouse	  gas	  emissions	  inventory	  
o Report	  on	  the	  potential	  greenhouse	  gas	  

emissions	  impacts	  of	  policy,	  program	  and	  
investment	  decisions	  

o Adopt	  greenhouse	  gas	  emissions	  reduction	  
policies	  and	  performance	  targets	  

o Develop	  and	  implement	  local	  climate	  action	  
plans	  

Near-‐term	  (2017-‐20)	  
o Prepare	  and	  periodically	  update	  greenhouse	  gas	  

emissions	  inventory	  of	  transportation	  operations	  
o Report	  on	  the	  potential	  greenhouse	  gas	  

emissions	  impacts	  of	  policy,	  program	  and	  
investment	  decisions	  

o Adopt	  greenhouse	  gas	  emissions	  reduction	  
policies	  and	  performance	  targets	  
	  

Exhibit C to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 25 of 26



RECOMMENDED	  TOOLBOX	  OF	  POSSIBLE	  ACTIONS	   	   	   	   	   December	  9,	  2014	  

	   Page	  12	  

POLICY	   TOOLBOX	  OF	  POSSIBLE	  ACTIONS	  	  (2015-‐2020)	  
	   WHAT	  CAN	  THE	  STATE	  DO?	   WHAT	  CAN	  METRO	  DO?	   WHAT	  CAN	  CITIES	  AND	  COUNTIES	  DO?	   WHAT	  CAN	  SPECIAL	  DISTRICTS	  DO?	  	  

(e.g.,	  transit	  providers,	  Port	  districts,	  parks	  providers,	  etc.)	  	  
transportation	  infrastructure	  and	  operations	  as	  
part	  of	  2018	  RTP	  update	  

o Update	  regional	  greenhouse	  gas	  emissions	  
inventory	  and	  track	  progress	  toward	  adopted	  
greenhouse	  gas	  emissions	  reduction	  target	  

o Through	  the	  Oregon	  Modeling	  Steering	  
Committee,	  collaborate	  on	  appropriate	  tools	  and	  
methods	  to	  support	  greenhouse	  gas	  reduction	  
planning	  and	  monitoring	  

o Report	  on	  the	  potential	  greenhouse	  gas	  
emissions	  impacts	  of	  policy,	  program	  and	  
investment	  decisions	  

o Encourage	  development	  and	  implementation	  of	  
local	  climate	  action	  plans	  

	  
	  

Exhibit C to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 26 of 26



	  

Exhibit	  D	  to	  Ordinance	  No.	  14-‐1346B

December	  9,	  2014	  

Performance	  
Monitoring	  
Approach	  
Recommended	  Draft	  
This	  document	  reflects	  changes	  recommended	  to	  respond	  to	  public	  
comments	  received	  and	  subsequent	  advisory	  committee	  review	  

Exhibit D to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 1 of 14



	   	   	  

	  

	  

About	  Metro	  
Clean	  air	  and	  clean	  water	  do	  not	  stop	  at	  city	  limits	  or	  county	  lines.	  Neither	  does	  the	  need	  for	  jobs,	  a	  
thriving	  economy,	  and	  sustainable	  transportation	  and	  living	  choices	  for	  people	  and	  businesses	  in	  the	  
region.	  Voters	  have	  asked	  Metro	  to	  help	  with	  the	  challenges	  and	  opportunities	  that	  affect	  the	  25	  cities	  
and	  three	  counties	  in	  the	  Portland	  metropolitan	  area.	  	  
	  	  
A	  regional	  approach	  simply	  makes	  sense	  when	  it	  comes	  to	  providing	  services,	  operating	  venues	  and	  
making	  decisions	  about	  how	  the	  region	  grows.	  Metro	  works	  with	  communities	  to	  support	  a	  resilient	  
economy,	  keep	  nature	  close	  by	  and	  respond	  to	  a	  changing	  climate.	  Together	  we’re	  making	  a	  great	  place,	  
now	  and	  for	  generations	  to	  come.	  
	  	  
Stay	  in	  touch	  with	  news,	  stories	  and	  things	  to	  do.	  	  	  
	  	  
www.oregonmetro.gov/climatescenarios	  
	  

Metro	  Council	  President 

Tom	  Hughes 
Metro	  Councilors 
Shirley	  Craddick,	  District	  1                                                                                                        
Carlotta	  Collette,	  District	  2	  
Craig	  Dirksen,	  District	  3	  
Kathryn	  Harrington,	  District	  4	  
Sam	  Chase,	  District	  5	  
Bob	  Stacey,	  District	  6 
Auditor 
Suzanne	  Flynn 
	  

08	  Fall	  

Exhibit D to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 2 of 14



RECOMMENDED	  DRAFT	  
December	  9,	  2014	  

	   Page	  1	  

	  
PERFORMANCE	  MONITORING	  APPROACH	  
OAR	  660-‐044-‐0040(3)(e)	  directs	  Metro	  to	  identify	  performance	  measures	  and	  
targets	  to	  monitor	  and	  guide	  implementation	  of	  the	  Climate	  Smart	  Strategy.	  The	  
purpose	  of	  performance	  measures	  and	  performance	  monitoring	  targets	  is	  to	  
monitor	  and	  assess	  whether	  key	  elements	  or	  actions	  that	  make	  up	  the	  strategy	  
are	  being	  implemented,	  and	  whether	  the	  strategy	  is	  achieving	  the	  expected	  
outcomes.	  	  

ABOUT	  THE	  PERFORMANCE	  MEASURES:	  The	  performance	  measures	  identified	  for	  monitoring	  reflect	  a	  
combination	  of	  existing	  and	  new	  performance	  measures,	  most	  of	  which	  are	  drawn	  from	  the	  Regional	  
Transportation	  Plan	  and	  the	  Urban	  Growth	  Report	  to	  track	  existing	  land	  use	  and	  transportation	  
policies.	  These	  and	  other	  performance	  measures	  are	  reflected	  in	  Chapter	  7	  of	  the	  Regional	  Framework	  
Plan.	  

ABOUT	  THE	  PERFORMANCE	  MONITORING	  TARGETS:	  The	  2035	  performance	  monitoring	  targets	  are	  
not	  policy	  targets,	  but	  rather	  reflect	  a	  combination	  of	  the	  planning	  assumptions	  used	  to	  evaluate	  the	  
Climate	  Smart	  Strategy	  and	  outputs	  from	  the	  evaluation.	  The	  measures	  and	  performance	  monitoring	  
targets	  will	  be	  reviewed	  before	  being	  incorporated	  into	  the	  Regional	  Transportation	  Plan	  as	  part	  of	  the	  
next	  scheduled	  update	  and	  may	  be	  further	  refined	  at	  that	  time	  to	  address	  new	  information,	  such	  as	  
MAP-‐21	  performance-‐based	  planning	  provisions	  and	  recommendations	  from	  Metro’s	  Equity	  Strategy.	  	  

ABOUT	  THE	  PROCESS	  FOR	  PERFORMANCE	  MONITORING:	  To	  monitor	  and	  assess	  implementation	  of	  
the	  strategy,	  Metro	  will	  use	  observed	  data	  sources	  and	  existing	  regional	  performance	  monitoring	  and	  
reporting	  processes	  to	  the	  extent	  possible,	  including	  regularly	  scheduled	  updates	  to	  the	  Regional	  
Transportation	  Plan	  and	  Urban	  Growth	  Report,	  and	  reporting	  in	  response	  to	  Oregon	  Revised	  Statutes	  
ORS	  197.301	  and	  ORS	  197.296.	  When	  observed	  data	  is	  not	  available,	  data	  from	  regional	  models	  may	  
be	  reported.	  If	  the	  assessment	  finds	  the	  region	  is	  deviating	  significantly	  from	  the	  Climate	  Smart	  
Strategy	  performance	  monitoring	  target,	  then	  Metro	  will	  work	  with	  local,	  regional	  and	  state	  partners	  
to	  consider	  the	  revision	  or	  replacement	  of	  policies,	  strategies	  and	  actions	  to	  ensure	  the	  region	  remains	  
on	  track	  with	  meeting	  adopted	  targets	  for	  reducing	  greenhouse	  gas	  emissions.	  

	  
POLICY	  AREA	  

HOW	  WILL	  PROGRESS	  BE	  MONITORED?	  	  
MEASURE	   BASELINE	  

(2010	  unless	  otherwise	  noted)	  
2035	  PERFORMANCE	  
MONITORING	  TARGET	  

1.	  Implement	  the	  
2040	  Growth	  
Concept	  and	  local	  
adopted	  land	  use	  
and	  transportation	  
plans	  

a. Share	  of	  households	  
living	  in	  walkable,	  
mixed-‐use	  areas1	  (new)	  	  	  

b. New	  residential	  units	  
built	  through	  infill	  and	  
redevelopment	  in	  the	  
urban	  growth	  boundary	  
(UGB)2	  	  (existing)	  

c. New	  residential	  units	  
built	  on	  vacant	  land	  in	  
the	  UGB3	  (existing)	  

d. Acres	  of	  urban	  reserves	  

a. 26%	  
	  

	  
	  

b. 58%	  	  
(average	  for	  2007-‐12)	  

	  
	  
c. 	  42%	  	  

(average	  for	  2007-‐12)	  
	  

d. 0	  

a. 37%	  	  
A	  methodology	  for	  tracking	  
progress	  will	  be	  developed	  in	  
2018	  RTP	  update.	  
b. 65%	  
	  
	  
	  
c. 35%	  
	  
	  
d. 12,000	  

Exhibit D to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 3 of 14



RECOMMENDED	  DRAFT	  
December	  9,	  2014	  

	   Page	  2	  

	  
POLICY	  AREA	  

HOW	  WILL	  PROGRESS	  BE	  MONITORED?	  	  
MEASURE	   BASELINE	  

(2010	  unless	  otherwise	  noted)	  
2035	  PERFORMANCE	  
MONITORING	  TARGET	  

added	  to	  the	  UGB4	  
(existing)	  

e. Daily	  vehicle	  miles	  
traveled	  per	  capita5	  
(existing)	  

	  
	  
e. 19	  
	  

	  
	  
e. 17	  	  

2.	  Make	  transit	  
convenient,	  
frequent,	  
accessible	  and	  
affordable	  

a. Daily	  transit	  service	  
revenue	  hours	  (new)	  

b. Share	  of	  households	  
within	  ¼-‐mile	  all	  day	  
frequent	  transit	  (new)	  

c. Share	  of	  low-‐income	  
households	  within	  ¼-‐
mile	  of	  all	  day	  
frequent	  transit	  (new)	  

d. Share	  of	  employment	  
within	  ¼-‐mile	  of	  all	  
day	  frequent	  transit	  
(new)	  

e. Transit	  fares	  (new)	  
	  

a. 4,900	  
	  

b. 30%	  	  
	  
	  
c. 39%	  
	  
	  
	  
d. 41%	  

	  
	  
	  
e. A	  baseline	  for	  tracking	  

transit	  affordability	  
relative	  to	  inflation	  and	  
other	  transportation	  costs	  
will	  be	  developed	  in	  the	  
2018	  RTP	  update.	  

a. 9,400	  
	  

b. 37%	  	  
	  
	  
c. 49%	  	  
	  
	  
	  
d. 52%	  	  
	  
	  
	  
e. A	  methodology	  for	  

tracking	  transit	  
affordability	  relative	  to	  
inflation	  and	  other	  
transportation	  costs	  will	  
be	  developed	  in	  the	  2018	  
RTP	  update.	  	  

3.	  Make	  biking	  and	  
walking	  safe	  and	  
convenient	  

a. Daily	  trips	  made	  by	  
biking	  and	  walking6	  
(existing)	  
	  

b. Per	  capita	  miles	  of	  
bicycle	  and	  
pedestrian	  travel	  per	  
week7	  

	  
c. Bicycle	  and	  

pedestrian	  fatal	  and	  
severe	  injury	  crashes8	  
(existing)	  
	  

	  
d. New	  miles	  of	  

bikeways,	  sidewalks	  
and	  trails	  in	  UGB9	  
(existing)	  

a. 505,000	  walk	  trips	  and	  
179,000	  bike	  trips	  

	  
	  
b. 1.3	  miles	  walked	  

2.1	  miles	  biked	  
	  
	  
	  
c. 63	  fatal	  or	  severe	  injury	  

pedestrian	  crashes	  
	  

35	  fatal	  or	  severe	  injury	  
bicycle	  crashes	  

	  
d. Bikeways	  (on-‐street)	  =	  623	  

miles	  
Trails	  =	  229	  miles	  
Sidewalks	  (on	  at	  least	  one	  
side	  of	  the	  street)	  =	  5,072	  
miles	  

a. 768,000	  walk	  trips	  and	  
280,000	  bike	  trips	  
	  

	  
b. 1.8	  miles	  walked	  

3.4	  miles	  biked	  
	  
	  
	  
c. 32	  fatal	  or	  severe	  injury	  

pedestrian	  crashes	  
	  
17	  fatal	  or	  severe	  injury	  
bicycle	  crashes	  

	  
d. 663	  new	  miles	  	  

Bikeways	  (on-‐street)	  =	  
1,044	  miles	  
Trails	  =	  369	  miles	  
Sidewalks	  (data	  not	  
available	  but	  will	  be	  

Exhibit D to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 4 of 14



RECOMMENDED	  DRAFT	  
December	  9,	  2014	  

	   Page	  3	  

	  
POLICY	  AREA	  

HOW	  WILL	  PROGRESS	  BE	  MONITORED?	  	  
MEASURE	   BASELINE	  

(2010	  unless	  otherwise	  noted)	  
2035	  PERFORMANCE	  
MONITORING	  TARGET	  

	  
	  

developed	  in	  the	  2018	  
RTP	  update.	  

4.	  Make	  streets	  
and	  highways	  safe,	  
reliable	  and	  
connected	  

a. Motor	  vehicle,	  bike	  
and	  pedestrian	  fatal	  
and	  severe	  injury	  
crashes10	  (existing)	  

	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
b. Change	  in	  travel	  time	  

and	  reliability	  in	  
regional	  mobility	  
corridors	  (existing)	  
	  
	  
	  

c. Share	  of	  freeway	  lane	  
blocking	  crashes	  
cleared	  within	  90	  
minutes	  (new)	  

a. 398	  fatal	  or	  severe	  injury	  
motor	  vehicle	  crashes	  

	  
63	  fatal	  or	  severe	  injury	  
pedestrian	  crashes	  

	  
35	  fatal	  or	  severe	  injury	  
bike	  crashes	  
	  

b. A	  baseline	  for	  this	  measure	  
will	  be	  developed	  in	  the	  
2018	  RTP	  update.	  

	  
	  
	  
	  
c. Data	  under	  development	  

with	  ODOT	  staff.	  A	  
baseline	  for	  this	  measure	  
will	  be	  developed	  in	  the	  
2018	  RTP	  update.	  

a. 199	  fatal	  or	  severe	  injury	  
motor	  vehicle	  crashes	  

	  
32	  fatal	  or	  severe	  injury	  
pedestrian	  crashes	  
	  
17	  fatal	  or	  severe	  injury	  
bike	  crashes	  
	  

b. A	  performance	  
monitoring	  target	  and	  
methodology	  for	  tracking	  
progress	  will	  be	  
developed	  in	  the	  2018	  
RTP	  update.	  
	  

c. 100%11	  
	  

5.	  Use	  technology	  
to	  actively	  manage	  
the	  transportation	  
system	  

a. Share	  of	  arterial	  and	  
freeway	  delay	  
reduced	  by	  traffic	  
management	  
strategies	  (new)	  
	  

b. Share	  of	  regional	  
transportation	  system	  
covered	  with	  
transportation	  system	  
management	  and	  
operations	  (TSMO)	  
strategies	  (new)	  

a. 10%	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
b. A	  baseline	  for	  tracking	  

progress	  will	  be	  developed	  
in	  2018	  RTP	  update.	  

	  

a. 35%	  	  
A	  methodology	  for	  
tracking	  progress	  will	  be	  
developed	  in	  2018	  RTP	  
update.	  
	  

b. A	  performance	  monitoring	  
target	  and	  methodology	  
for	  tracking	  progress	  will	  
be	  developed	  in	  2018	  RTP	  
update.	  

	  

6.	  Provide	  
information	  and	  
incentives	  to	  
expand	  the	  use	  of	  
travel	  options	  

a. Share	  of	  households	  
participating	  in	  
individualized	  
marketing	  programs	  
(existing)	  

b. Share	  of	  the	  
workforce	  
participating	  in	  
commuter	  programs	  
(existing)	  

a. 9%	  	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
b. 20%	  	  

a. 45%	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
b. 30%	  	  

Exhibit D to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 5 of 14



RECOMMENDED	  DRAFT	  
December	  9,	  2014	  

	   Page	  4	  

	  
POLICY	  AREA	  

HOW	  WILL	  PROGRESS	  BE	  MONITORED?	  	  
MEASURE	   BASELINE	  

(2010	  unless	  otherwise	  noted)	  
2035	  PERFORMANCE	  
MONITORING	  TARGET	  

7.	  Manage	  parking	  
to	  make	  efficient	  
use	  of	  vehicle	  
parking	  and	  land	  
dedicated	  to	  
parking	  

a. Share	  of	  work	  and	  
non-‐work	  trips	  
occurring	  to	  areas	  
with	  actively	  
managed	  parking12	  
(new)	  

a.	  	  	  13%	  /	  8%	   a.	  	  	  	  30%	  /	  30%	  
	  
A	  methodology	  for	  tracking	  
progress	  will	  be	  developed	  in	  
2018	  RTP	  update.	  

8.	  Support	  
Oregon’s	  
transition	  to	  
cleaner,	  low	  
carbon	  fuels,	  more	  
fuel-‐efficient	  
vehicles	  and	  pay-‐
as-‐you-‐drive	  
private	  vehicle	  
insurance	  
	  

a. Share	  of	  registered	  
light	  duty	  vehicles	  in	  
Oregon	  that	  are	  
electric	  vehicles	  (EV)	  
or	  plug-‐in	  hybrid	  
electric	  vehicles	  
(PHEV)13	  (new)	  	  

b. Share	  of	  households	  
using	  pay-‐as-‐you-‐
drive	  private	  vehicle	  
insurance14	  (new)	  

EV	  or	  PHEV	  
a. 1%	  (auto)	  

1%	  (light	  truck)	  
	  
	  
	  

	  
b. >1%	  	  

EV	  or	  PHEV	  
a. 8%	  (auto)	  

2%	  (light	  truck)	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
b. 40%	  	  

9.	  Secure	  
adequate	  funding	  
for	  transportation	  
investments	  

a. Address	  local,	  
regional	  and	  state	  
transportation	  
funding	  gap	  (new)	  

A	  baseline	  and	  methodology	  for	  tracking	  progress	  will	  be	  
developed	  in	  2018	  RTP	  update.	  

10.	  Demonstrate	  
leadership	  on	  
climate	  change	  

a. Region-‐wide	  per	  
capita	  roadway	  
greenhouse	  gas	  
emissions	  from	  light	  
vehicles	  (new)	  

a. 4.05	  MTCO2e15	  
	  

a. 1.2	  MTCO2e16	  

	  
	   	  

Exhibit D to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 6 of 14



RECOMMENDED	  DRAFT	  
December	  9,	  2014	  

	   Page	  5	  

PERFORMANCE	  MONITORING	  TABLE	  NOTES	  
	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  
1	  Data	  is	  an	  estimate	  from	  the	  metropolitan	  GreenSTEP	  model	  based	  on	  the	  land	  use	  assumptions	  described	  
below.	  	  
2	  Data	  is	  compiled	  and	  reported	  by	  Metro	  every	  two	  years	  in	  response	  to	  Oregon	  Revised	  Statutes	  ORS	  
197.301	  and	  ORS	  197.296.	  The	  Climate	  Smart	  Strategy	  assumed	  the	  regionally-‐coordinated	  2035	  Growth	  
Distribution	  adopted	  by	  the	  Metro	  Council	  on	  Nov.	  29,	  2012	  as	  the	  basis	  for	  the	  population,	  housing,	  and	  
employment	  growth	  assumptions	  used	  in	  the	  analysis.	  The	  adopted	  2035	  growth	  distribution	  was	  
developed	  using	  MetroScope	  and	  reflects	  locally	  adopted	  comprehensive	  plans	  and	  zoning	  as	  of	  2010.	  	  The	  
performance	  monitoring	  target	  reflects	  the	  adopted	  growth	  distribution	  assumption	  that	  65%	  of	  new	  
residential	  units	  would	  be	  built	  through	  infill	  and	  redevelopment	  by	  2035.	  
3	  The	  performance	  monitoring	  target	  reflects	  the	  adopted	  growth	  distribution	  assumption	  that	  35%	  of	  new	  
residential	  units	  would	  be	  built	  on	  vacant	  land	  inside	  the	  urban	  growth	  boundary	  by	  2035.	  
4	  The	  performance	  monitoring	  target	  reflects	  the	  adopted	  growth	  distribution	  assumption	  that	  12,000	  
acres	  of	  urban	  reserves	  would	  be	  added	  to	  the	  urban	  growth	  boundary	  by	  2035.	  
5	  	  Data	  is	  from	  the	  ODOT	  Oregon	  Highway	  Performance	  Monitoring	  System	  (HPMS)	  and	  was	  the	  official	  
state	  submittal	  to	  the	  Federal	  Highway	  Administration	  for	  tracking	  nationally.	  The	  2014	  Regional	  
Transportation	  Plan	  (RTP)	  target	  calls	  for	  reducing	  daily	  vehicle	  miles	  traveled	  per	  person	  by	  10	  percent	  
compared	  to	  2010.	  
6	  Data	  is	  an	  estimate	  from	  the	  regional	  travel	  demand	  model	  and	  does	  not	  include	  walk	  trips	  to	  transit.	  The	  
2014	  Regional	  Transportation	  Plan	  calls	  for	  tripling	  the	  share	  of	  daily	  trips	  made	  by	  biking	  and	  walking	  
compared	  to	  2010.	  
7	  Data	  from	  Oregon	  Health	  Authority	  Climate	  Smart	  Strategy	  Health	  Impact	  Assessment.	  
8	  Data	  is	  for	  the	  period	  2007-‐2011	  and	  comes	  from	  the	  ODOT	  Oregon	  Highway	  Performance	  Monitoring	  
System	  (HPMS).	  The	  data	  was	  reported	  in	  the	  2014	  RTP	  adopted	  by	  the	  Metro	  Council	  on	  July	  17,	  2014.	  The	  
2014	  RTP	  target	  calls	  for	  reducing	  fatal	  and	  severe	  injury	  crashes	  for	  all	  modes	  by	  50	  percent	  compared	  to	  
the	  2007-‐2011	  period.	  
9	  The	  2014	  RTP	  financially	  constrained	  system	  includes	  completing	  663	  miles	  of	  bikeways,	  sidewalks	  and	  
trails;	  progress	  toward	  completion	  of	  the	  system	  of	  investments	  will	  be	  tracked.	  
10	  See	  note	  8.	  
11	  The	  measure	  and	  target	  reflect	  an	  ODOT	  performance	  goal.	  
12	  The	  measure	  and	  performance	  monitoring	  target	  reflect	  a	  planning	  assumption	  from	  in	  2014	  Regional	  
Transportation	  Plan	  that	  was	  used	  in	  the	  Climate	  Smart	  Strategy	  analysis.	  	  	  
13	  The	  Oregon	  Department	  of	  Motor	  Vehicles	  will	  track	  this	  data	  through	  vehicle	  registration	  records.	  
14	  The	  performance	  monitoring	  target	  is	  less	  aggressive	  than	  the	  Statewide	  Transportation	  Strategy,	  which	  
assumed	  nearly	  all	  Oregon	  households	  would	  have	  pay-‐as-‐you-‐drive	  insurance	  by	  2035.	  
	  
15	  Data	  is	  a	  model	  estimate	  for	  the	  year	  2005,	  using	  the	  Metropolitan	  GreenSTEP	  model.	  
16	  The	  performance	  monitoring	  target	  reflects	  the	  state	  mandated	  20	  percent	  reduction	  per	  person	  in	  
roadway	  greenhouse	  gas	  emissions,	  after	  accounting	  for	  state	  assumptions	  for	  advancements	  in	  cleaner,	  
low	  carbon	  fuels	  and	  more	  fuel-‐efficient	  vehicles.	  A	  transition	  to	  the	  Motor	  Vehicle	  Emission	  Simulator	  
(MOVES)	  model	  for	  tracking	  progress	  will	  be	  made	  as	  part	  of	  the	  2018	  Regional	  Transportation	  Plan	  
update.	  The	  MOVES	  model	  is	  the	  federally-‐sanctioned	  model	  for	  demonstrating	  compliance	  with	  federal	  
and	  state	  air	  quality	  requirements.	  

Exhibit D to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 7 of 14



	  

Exhibit D to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 8 of 14



RECOMMENDED	  DRAFT	  
December	  9,	  2014	  

	   Page	  1	  

	  
DRAFT	  CLIMATE	  SMART	  STRATEGY	  
DRAFT	  PERFORMANCE	  MONITORING	  APPROACH	  
BACKGROUND	  |	  The	  2009	  Oregon	  Legislature	  required	  the	  Portland	  
metropolitan	  region	  to	  reduce	  per	  capita	  greenhouse	  gas	  emissions	  from	  cars	  
and	  small	  trucks	  by	  20	  percent	  below	  2005	  levels	  by	  2035.	  The	  region	  has	  
identified	  an	  approach	  that	  meets	  the	  target	  while	  also	  substantially	  
contributing	  to	  many	  other	  state,	  regional	  and	  local	  goals,	  including	  clean	  air	  and	  
water,	  transportation	  choices,	  healthy	  and	  vibrant	  communities	  and	  a	  strong	  
economy.	  	  

OAR	  660-‐044-‐0040(3)(e)	  directs	  Metro	  to	  identify	  performance	  measures	  and	  targets	  to	  monitor	  and	  
guide	  implementation	  of	  the	  preferred	  approachClimate	  Smart	  Strategy	  selected	  adopted	  by	  the	  
Metro	  Council.	  The	  purpose	  of	  performance	  measures	  and	  targets	  is	  to	  enable	  Metro	  and	  local	  
governments	  to	  monitor	  and	  assess	  whether	  key	  elements	  or	  actions	  that	  make	  up	  the	  preferred	  
approachstrategy	  are	  being	  implemented,	  and	  whether	  the	  preferred	  approachstrategy	  is	  achieving	  
the	  expected	  outcomes.	  	  

ABOUT	  THE	  PERFORMANCE	  MEASURES:	  The	  performance	  measures	  identified	  for	  monitoring	  reflect	  a	  
combination	  of	  existing	  and	  new	  performance	  measures,	  most	  of	  which	  are	  drawn	  from	  the	  Regional	  
Transportation	  Plan	  and	  the	  Urban	  Growth	  Report	  to	  track	  existing	  land	  use	  and	  transportation	  
policies.	  These	  and	  other	  performance	  measures	  are	  reflected	  in	  Chapter	  7	  of	  the	  Regional	  Framework	  
Plan.	  These	  and	  other	  performance	  measures	  are	  reflected	  in	  Chapter	  7	  of	  the	  Regional	  Framework	  
Plan.	  

ABOUT	  THE	  PERFORMANCE	  MONITORING	  TARGETS:	  The	  2035	  performance	  monitoring	  targets	  are	  
not	  policy	  targets,	  but	  rather	  reflect	  a	  combination	  of	  the	  planning	  assumptions	  used	  to	  evaluate	  the	  
Climate	  Smart	  Strategy	  and	  outputs	  from	  the	  evaluation.	  The	  measures	  and	  targets	  will	  be	  reviewed	  
before	  being	  incorporated	  into	  the	  Regional	  Transportation	  Plan	  as	  part	  of	  the	  next	  update	  and	  may	  be	  
further	  refined	  to	  address	  new	  information,	  such	  as	  MAP-‐21	  performance-‐based	  planning	  provisions	  
and	  recommendations	  from	  Metro’s	  Equity	  Strategy.	  	  

PERFORMANCE	  MONITORING	  AND	  REPORTING	  APPROACH	  |	  ABOUT	  THE	  PROCESS	  FOR	  
PERFORMANCE	  MONITORING:	  	  To	  monitor	  and	  assess	  implementation	  of	  the	  strategy,	  Metro	  will	  
uUse	  observed	  data	  sources	  and	  rely	  on	  existing	  regional	  performance	  monitoring	  and	  reporting	  
processes	  to	  the	  extent	  possible,	  including	  future	  federally-‐required	  updates	  to	  the	  Regional	  
Transportation	  Plan,	  updates	  to	  the	  updates,	  Urban	  Growth	  Report,	  updates	  and	  reporting	  in	  response	  
to	  Oregon	  State	  Statutes	  ORS	  197.301	  and	  ORS	  197.296.	  When	  observed	  data	  is	  not	  available,	  data	  
from	  regional	  models	  may	  be	  reported.	  If	  the	  assessment	  finds	  the	  region	  is	  deviating	  significantly	  from	  
the	  Climate	  Smart	  Strategy	  performance	  monitoring	  target,	  then	  Metro	  will	  work	  with	  local,	  regional	  
and	  state	  partners	  to	  consider	  the	  revision	  or	  replacement	  of	  policies,	  strategies	  and	  actions	  to	  ensure	  
the	  region	  remains	  on	  track	  with	  meeting	  adopted	  targets	  for	  reducing	  greenhouse	  gas	  emissions.	  

	  

	  

Exhibit D to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 9 of 14



RECOMMENDED	  DRAFT	  
December	  9,	  2014	  

	   Page	  2	  

	  
POLICY	  AREA	  

HOW	  WILL	  PROGRESS	  BE	  MEASURED?	  	  
MEASURE	   2010	  	  BASELINE	  

(2010	  unless	  otherwise	  noted)	  
2035	  PERFORMANCE	  
MONITORING	  TARGET	  	  

(unless	  otherwise	  noted)	  
1.	  Implement	  the	  
2040	  Growth	  
Concept	  and	  local	  
adopted	  land	  use	  
and	  transportation	  
plans	  

a. Share	  of	  households	  
living	  in	  walkable,	  
mixed-‐use	  areas1	  (new)	  	  	  

a.b. New	  residential	  units	  
built	  through	  infill	  and	  
redevelopment	  in	  the	  
urban	  growth	  boundary	  
(UGB)2	  	  (existing)	  

b.c. New	  residential	  units	  
built	  on	  vacant	  land	  in	  
the	  UGB3	  (existing)	  

c.d. Acres	  of	  urban	  reserves	  
added	  to	  the	  UGB4	  
(existing)	  

d.e. Daily	  vehicle	  miles	  
traveled	  per	  capita5	  
(existing)	  

a. 26%	  
 	  

 	  
 	  

b. 58%	  	  
(average	  for	  2007-‐12)	  

	  
	  
c. 	  42%	  	  
a. (average	  for	  2007-‐
12)	  

	  
d. 0	  
 	  
 	  
b.e. 19	  
	  

a. 37%	  	  
A	  methodology	  for	  tracking	  
progress	  will	  be	  developed	  in	  
2018	  RTP	  update.	  
a.b. Track;	  no	  target	  

proposed65%	  
	  
	  
c. Track;	  no	  target	  

proposed35%	  
	  
	  
b.d. Track;	  no	  target	  

proposed12,000	  
	  
c.e. 17	  	  

2.	  Make	  transit	  
convenient,	  
frequent,	  
accessible	  and	  
affordable	  

a. Daily	  transit	  service	  
revenue	  hours	  (new)	  

b. Share	  of	  households	  
within	  ¼-‐mile	  all	  day	  
frequent	  bus	  service	  
and	  ½-‐mile	  of	  high	  
capacity	  transit	  
(existingnew)	  

c. Share	  of	  low-‐income	  
households	  within	  ¼-‐
mile	  of	  all	  day	  
frequent	  transit	  (new)	  

d. Share	  of	  employment	  
within	  ¼-‐mile	  of	  all	  
day	  frequent	  transit	  
(new)	  

e. Transit	  fares	  (new)	  
	  

a. 4,900	  
	  

b. Data	  being	  finalized30%	  	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
c. 39%	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
d. 41%	  

 	  
d. 	  
 	  
e. A	  baseline	  for	  tracking	  

transit	  affordability	  
relative	  to	  inflation	  and	  
other	  transportation	  costs	  
will	  be	  developed	  in	  the	  
2018	  RTP	  update	  

a. 9,400	  
	  

b. Track;	  no	  target	  
proposed37%	  	  

	  
	  
	  
	  
c. 49%	  	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
d. 52%	  	  
 	  
 	  
 	  
d.e. A	  methodology	  for	  

tracking	  transit	  
affordability	  relative	  to	  
inflation	  and	  other	  
transportation	  costs	  will	  
be	  developed	  in	  the	  
2018	  RTP	  update	  .	  

3.	  Make	  biking	  and	  
walking	  safe	  and	  
convenient	  

a. Share	  of	  dDaily	  trips	  
made	  by	  biking	  
bicycling	  and	  walking6	  
(existing)	  

a. Data	  being	  finalized505,000	  
walk	  trips	  and	  179,000	  
bicycle	  trips	  

	  

a. Data	  being	  
finalized768,000	  walk	  
trips	  and	  280,000	  
bicycle	  trips	  

Exhibit D to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 10 of 14



RECOMMENDED	  DRAFT	  
December	  9,	  2014	  

	   Page	  3	  

	  
POLICY	  AREA	  

HOW	  WILL	  PROGRESS	  BE	  MEASURED?	  	  
MEASURE	   2010	  	  BASELINE	  

(2010	  unless	  otherwise	  noted)	  
2035	  PERFORMANCE	  
MONITORING	  TARGET	  	  

(unless	  otherwise	  noted)	  
	  

b. Per	  capita	  Daily	  miles	  
of	  bicycle	  and	  
pedestrian	  travel	  per	  
week7	  

	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
c. Bicyclke	  and	  

pedestrian	  fatal	  and	  
severe	  injury	  crashes8	  
(existing)	  
	  

	  
	  
d. New	  miles	  of	  

bikeways,	  sidewalks	  
and	  trails9	  (existing)	  

	  
b. 1.3	  miles	  walked	  

a. 2.1	  miles	  bicycledA	  
methodology	  for	  
establishing	  a	  baseline	  for	  
this	  measure	  and	  tracking	  
progress	  will	  be	  developed	  
in	  2018	  RTP	  update	  

	  
	  
	  
b.c. 63	  fatal	  or	  severe	  

injury	  pedestrian	  crashes	  
	  

35	  fatal	  or	  severe	  injury	  
bicyclke	  crashes	  

	  
d. Data	  being	  finalizedTrails	  =	  

229	  miles	  
 Bikeways	  (on-‐street)	  =	  
623	  miles	  
c. Sidewalks	  (on	  at	  least	  
one	  side	  of	  the	  street)	  =	  
5,072	  miles	  
	  

	  

	  
	  

	  
b. Track;	  no	  target	  

proposed1.8	  miles	  
walked	  
b. 3.4	  miles	  bicycled	  

	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
c. 32	  fatal	  or	  severe	  injury	  

pedestrian	  crashes	  
	  
17	  fatal	  or	  severe	  injury	  
bicyclke	  crashes	  

	  
d. Track;	  no	  target	  

proposed663	  miles	  
 Trails	  =	  369	  miles	  
 Bikeways	  (on-‐street)	  
=	  1,044	  miles	  
d. Sidewalks	  (data	  not	  
available)	  
	  

4.	  Make	  streets	  
and	  highways	  safe,	  
reliable	  and	  
connected	  

a. Motor	  vehicle,	  bike	  
and	  pedestrian	  fatal	  
and	  severe	  injury	  
crashes10	  (existing)	  

 	  
 	  
 	  
a. 	  
b. Change	  in	  Reliability	  

measuretravel	  time	  
and	  reliability	  in	  
regional	  mobility	  
corridors	  
(existingnew)	  
 	  

b.c. Share	  of	  freeway	  lane	  
blocking	  crashes	  
cleared	  within	  90	  
minutes	  (new)	  

a. 398	  fatal	  or	  severe	  injury	  
motor	  vehicle	  crashes	  

 	  
 63	  fatal	  or	  severe	  
injury	  pedestrian	  crashes	  

	  
35	  fatal	  or	  severe	  injury	  
bicycle	  crashes	  
	  

b. A	  methodology	  for	  
establishing	  a	  baseline	  for	  
this	  measure	  and	  tracking	  
progress	  for	  will	  be	  
developed	  in	  2018	  RTP	  
updateA	  baseline	  for	  this	  
measure	  will	  be	  developed	  
in	  the	  2018	  RTP	  update.	  

 	  
b.c. Data	  under	  development	  

a. 199	  fatal	  or	  severe	  
injury	  motor	  vehicle	  
crashes	  

 	  
 32	  fatal	  or	  severe	  
injury	  pedestrian	  
crashes	  
	  
 17	  fatal	  or	  severe	  
injury	  bicycle	  crashes	  

b. A	  performance	  
monitoring	  target	  and	  
methodology	  for	  
tracking	  progress	  will	  be	  
developed	  in	  the	  2018	  
RTP	  update.	  
 	  

a.c. 100%11	  
	  

Exhibit D to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 11 of 14



RECOMMENDED	  DRAFT	  
December	  9,	  2014	  

	   Page	  4	  

	  
POLICY	  AREA	  

HOW	  WILL	  PROGRESS	  BE	  MEASURED?	  	  
MEASURE	   2010	  	  BASELINE	  

(2010	  unless	  otherwise	  noted)	  
2035	  PERFORMANCE	  
MONITORING	  TARGET	  	  

(unless	  otherwise	  noted)	  
with	  ODOT	  staff.	  A	  
baseline	  for	  this	  measure	  
will	  be	  developed	  in	  the	  
2018	  RTP	  update.	  

	  
	  

5.	  Use	  technology	  
to	  actively	  manage	  
the	  transportation	  
system	  

a. Share	  of	  arterial	  and	  
freeway	  delay	  
reduced	  by	  traffic	  
management	  
strategies	  (new)	  
 	  

a.b. Share	  of	  regional	  
transportation	  system	  
covered	  with	  
transportation	  system	  
management	  and	  
operations	  (TSMO)	  
strategies	  (new)	  

a.	  	  10%	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
b.	  A	  methodology	  for	  
establishing	  a	  baseline	  for	  this	  
measure	  and	  methodology	  for	  
tracking	  progress	  will	  be	  
developed	  in	  2018	  RTP	  update.	  

a.	  	  35%	  
A	  methodology	  for	  tracking	  
progress	  will	  be	  developed	  in	  
2018	  RTP	  update.	  
	  
	  
b.	  A	  performance	  
monitoring	  target	  and	  
methodology	  for	  tracking	  
progress	  will	  be	  developed	  in	  
2018	  RTP	  update.	  

6.	  Provide	  
information	  and	  
incentives	  to	  
expand	  the	  use	  of	  
travel	  options	  

a. Share	  of	  households	  
participating	  in	  
individualized	  
marketing	  programs	  
(existing)	  

b. Share	  of	  the	  
workforce	  
participating	  in	  
commuter	  programs	  
(existing)	  

a. 9%	  	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
b. 20%	  	  

a. 45%	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
b. 30%	  	  

7.	  Manage	  parking	  
to	  make	  efficient	  
use	  of	  vehicle	  
parking	  and	  land	  
and	  dedicated	  to	  
parking	  spaces	  

a. Share	  of	  work	  and	  
non-‐work	  trips	  
occurring	  to	  areas	  
with	  actively	  
managed	  parking	  12	  
(new)Parking	  
measure	  TBD	  in	  2018	  
RTP	  update	  (new)	  

a.	  13%	  /	  8%	  
	  
A	  methodology	  for	  establishing	  
a	  baseline	  for	  this	  measure	  and	  
tracking	  progress	  will	  be	  
developed	  in	  2018	  RTP	  update	  

a.	  	  30%	  /	  30%	  
	  
A	  methodology	  for	  tracking	  
progress	  will	  be	  developed	  in	  
2018	  RTP	  update.	  
	  

8.	  Support	  
Oregon’s	  
transition	  to	  
cleaner,	  low	  
carbon	  fuels,	  more	  
fuel-‐efficient	  
vehicles	  and	  pay-‐
as-‐you-‐drive	  
private	  vehicle	  
insurance	  

a. Share	  of	  registered	  
light	  duty	  vehicles	  in	  
Oregon	  that	  are	  
electric	  vehicles	  (EV)	  
or	  plug-‐in	  hybrid	  
electric	  vehicles	  
(PHEV)13	  (new)	  	  

b. Share	  of	  households	  
using	  pay-‐as-‐you-‐
drive	  private	  vehicle	  

EV	  or	  PHEV	  
a. 1%	  (auto)	  

1%	  (light	  truck)	  
	  
	  
	  
	  

b. >1%	  	  

EV	  or	  PHEV	  
a. 8%	  (auto)	  

2%	  (light	  truck)	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
b. 40%	  	  

Exhibit D to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 12 of 14



RECOMMENDED	  DRAFT	  
December	  9,	  2014	  

	   Page	  5	  

	  
POLICY	  AREA	  

HOW	  WILL	  PROGRESS	  BE	  MEASURED?	  	  
MEASURE	   2010	  	  BASELINE	  

(2010	  unless	  otherwise	  noted)	  
2035	  PERFORMANCE	  
MONITORING	  TARGET	  	  

(unless	  otherwise	  noted)	  
	   insurance14	  (new)	  

9.	  Secure	  
adequate	  funding	  
for	  transportation	  
investments	  
	  

a. Make	  progress	  in	  
Aaddresssing	  local,	  
regional	  and	  state	  
transportation	  
funding	  gap	  (new)	  

A	  methodology	  for	  establishing	  a	  baseline	  for	  this	  measure	  
andand	  methodology	  for	  tracking	  progress	  will	  be	  developed	  
in	  2018	  RTP	  update.	  

10.	  Demonstrate	  
leadership	  on	  
climate	  change	  

a. Region-‐wide	  per	  
capita	  roadway	  
greenhouse	  gas	  
emissions	  from	  light	  
vehicles	  (new)	  

e.a. 4.05	  MTCO2e15	  
	  

a. 1.2	  MTCO2e16	  

	  
	   	  

Exhibit D to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 13 of 14



RECOMMENDED	  DRAFT	  
December	  9,	  2014	  

	   Page	  6	  

PERFORMANCE	  MONITORING	  TABLE	  NOTES	  
	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  
1	  Data	  is	  an	  estimate	  from	  the	  metropolitan	  GreenSTEP	  model	  based	  on	  the	  land	  use	  assumptions	  described	  
below.	  
2	  Data	  is	  compiled	  and	  reported	  by	  Metro	  every	  two	  years	  in	  response	  to	  Oregon	  Revised	  State	  Statutes	  
ORS	  197.301	  and	  ORS	  197.296.	  No	  targets	  have	  been	  adopted	  for	  these	  measures.The	  Climate	  Smart	  
Strategy	  assumed	  the	  regionally-‐coordinated	  2035	  Growth	  Distribution	  adopted	  by	  the	  Metro	  Council	  on	  
Nov.	  29,	  2012	  as	  the	  basis	  for	  the	  population,	  housing,	  and	  employment	  growth	  assumptions	  used	  in	  the	  
analysis.	  The	  adopted	  2035	  growth	  distribution	  was	  developed	  using	  MetroScope	  and	  reflects	  locally	  
adopted	  comprehensive	  plans	  and	  zoning	  as	  of	  2010.	  The	  performance	  monitoring	  target	  reflects	  the	  
adopted	  growth	  distribution	  assumption	  that	  65%	  of	  new	  residential	  units	  would	  be	  built	  through	  infill	  and	  
redevelopment	  by	  2035.	  
3	  Ibid.The	  performance	  monitoring	  target	  reflects	  the	  adopted	  growth	  distribution	  assumption	  that	  35%	  of	  
new	  residential	  units	  would	  be	  built	  on	  vacant	  land	  inside	  the	  urban	  growth	  boundary	  by	  2035	  
4	  Ibid.The	  performance	  monitoring	  target	  reflects	  the	  adopted	  growth	  distribution	  assumption	  that	  12,000	  
acres	  of	  urban	  reserves	  would	  be	  added	  to	  the	  urban	  growth	  boundary	  by	  2035.	  
5	  	  Data	  is	  from	  the	  ODOT	  Oregon	  Highway	  Performance	  Monitoring	  System	  (HPMS)	  and	  was	  the	  official	  
state	  submittal	  to	  the	  Federal	  Highway	  Administration	  for	  tracking	  nationally.	  The	  2014	  Regional	  
Transportation	  Plan	  (RTP)	  target	  calls	  for	  reducing	  daily	  vehicle	  miles	  traveled	  per	  person	  by	  10	  percent	  
compared	  to	  2010.	  
6	  Data	  is	  an	  estimate	  from	  the	  regional	  travel	  demand	  model	  and	  does	  not	  include	  walk	  trips	  to	  transit.	  The	  
2014	  Regional	  Transportation	  Plan	  calls	  for	  tripling	  the	  share	  of	  daily	  trips	  made	  by	  biking	  and	  walking	  
compared	  to	  2010.	  
7	  Data	  from	  Oregon	  Health	  Authority	  Climate	  Smart	  Strategy	  Health	  Impact	  Assessment.	  
8	  Data	  is	  for	  the	  period	  2007-‐2011	  and	  comes	  from	  the	  ODOT	  Oregon	  Highway	  Performance	  Monitoring	  
System	  (HPMS).	  The	  data	  was	  reported	  in	  the	  2014	  RTP	  adopted	  by	  the	  Metro	  Council	  on	  July	  17,	  2014.	  The	  
2014	  RTP	  target	  calls	  for	  reducing	  fatal	  and	  severe	  injury	  crashes	  for	  all	  modes	  by	  50	  percent	  compared	  to	  
the	  2007-‐2011	  period.	  
9	  The	  2014	  RTP	  financially	  constrained	  system	  includes	  completing	  663	  miles	  of	  bikeways,	  sidewalks	  and	  
trails;	  progress	  toward	  completion	  of	  the	  system	  of	  investments	  will	  be	  tracked.	  
10	  See	  note	  68.	  
11	  The	  measure	  and	  performance	  monitoring	  target	  reflect	  an	  ODOT	  performance	  goal.	  
12	  The	  measure	  and	  performance	  monitoring	  target	  reflect	  a	  planning	  assumption	  from	  in	  2014	  Regional	  
Transportation	  Plan	  that	  was	  used	  in	  the	  Climate	  Smart	  Strategy	  analysis.	  	  	  
13	  The	  Oregon	  Department	  of	  Motor	  Vehicles	  will	  track	  this	  data	  through	  vehicle	  registration	  records.	  
14	  The	  performance	  monitoring	  target	  is	  less	  aggressive	  than	  the	  Statewide	  Transportation	  Strategy,	  which	  
assumed	  nearly	  all	  Oregon	  households	  would	  have	  pay-‐as-‐you-‐drive	  insurance	  by	  2035.	  
14	  A	  data	  source	  for	  this	  information	  has	  not	  been	  identified.	  
15	  Data	  is	  a	  model	  estimate	  for	  the	  year	  2005,	  using	  the	  Metropolitan	  GreenSTEP	  model.	  
16	  The	  performance	  monitoring	  target	  reflects	  the	  state	  mandated	  20	  percent	  reduction	  per	  person	  in	  
roadway	  greenhouse	  gas	  emissions,	  after	  accounting	  for	  state	  assumptions	  for	  advancements	  in	  cleaner,	  
low	  carbon	  fuels	  and	  more	  fuel-‐efficient	  vehicles.	  A	  transition	  to	  the	  Motor	  Vehicle	  Emission	  Simulator	  
(MOVES)	  model	  for	  tracking	  progress	  will	  be	  made	  as	  part	  of	  the	  2018	  Regional	  Transportation	  Plan	  
update.	  The	  MOVES	  model	  is	  the	  federally-‐sanctioned	  model	  for	  demonstrating	  compliance	  with	  federal	  
and	  state	  air	  quality	  requirements.	  

Exhibit D to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 14 of 14



	  

Exhibit	  E	  to	  Ordinance	  No.	  14-‐1346B	  
	  
December	  9,	  2014	  
	  
A	  SHORT	  LIST	  OF	  CLIMATE	  SMART	  ACTIONS	  FOR	  2015	  AND	  2016	  

	  
BACKGROUND	  
The	  Climate	  Smart	  Communities	  project	  responds	  to	  a	  2009	  legislative	  mandate	  to	  develop	  and	  implement	  a	  
regional	  strategy	  to	  reduce	  per	  capita	  greenhouse	  gas	  emissions	  from	  cars	  and	  small	  trucks	  by	  2035.	  After	  a	  four-‐
year	  collaborative	  effort,	  community	  leaders	  have	  shaped	  a	  Climate	  Smart	  Strategy	  that	  exceeds	  the	  state	  mandate	  
while	  supporting	  local	  city	  and	  county	  plans	  that	  have	  already	  been	  adopted	  in	  the	  region.	  When	  implemented,	  the	  
strategy	  will	  also	  deliver	  significant	  public	  health,	  environmental	  and	  economic	  benefits	  to	  households	  and	  
businesses	  in	  the	  region.	  	  

WORKING	  TOGETHER	  TO	  DEVELOP	  SOLUTIONS	  FOR	  OUR	  COMMUNITIES	  AND	  THE	  REGION	  
Building	  on	  existing	  activities	  and	  priorities	  in	  our	  region,	  the	  project	  partners	  have	  developed	  a	  Toolbox	  of	  Possible	  
Actions	  that	  recommends	  immediate	  steps	  that	  can	  be	  taken	  individually	  by	  local,	  regional	  and	  state	  governments	  
to	  implement	  the	  Climate	  Smart	  Strategy.	  The	  toolbox	  does	  not	  mandate	  adoption	  of	  any	  particular	  policy	  or	  
action,	  and	  instead	  was	  developed	  with	  the	  recognition	  that	  existing	  city	  and	  county	  plans	  for	  creating	  great	  
communities	  are	  the	  foundation	  for	  reaching	  the	  state	  target	  and	  some	  tools	  and	  actions	  may	  work	  better	  in	  some	  
locations	  than	  others.	  The	  toolbox	  emphasizes	  the	  need	  for	  diverse	  partners	  to	  work	  together	  in	  pursuing	  those	  
strategies	  most	  appropriate	  to	  local	  needs	  and	  conditions.	  	  

The	  toolbox	  includes	  some	  regional	  actions	  that	  produce	  particularly	  high	  returns	  on	  investment,	  and	  require	  local	  
and	  regional	  officials	  to	  work	  together.	  	  Seeing	  the	  opportunity	  to	  act	  quickly,	  the	  Metro	  Policy	  Advisory	  Committee	  
(MPAC)	  and	  the	  Joint	  Policy	  Advisory	  Committee	  on	  Transportation	  (JPACT)	  have	  identified	  three	  toolbox	  actions	  
that	  are	  key	  for	  the	  region	  to	  work	  together	  on	  now:	  

CLIMATE	  SMART	  ACTIONS	  FOR	  2015	  AND	  2016	  	  
Action	  

1	  
Advocate	  for	  increased	  federal,	  state,	  regional	  and	  local	  transportation	  funding	  for	  all	  transportation	  
modes	  as	  part	  of	  a	  diverse	  coalition,	  with	  top	  priorities	  of	  maintaining	  and	  preserving	  existing	  
infrastructure,	  and	  implementing	  transit	  service	  enhancement	  plans	  and	  transit-‐supportive	  
investments.	  This	  action	  will	  advance	  efforts	  to	  implement	  adopted	  local	  city	  and	  county	  plans,	  transit	  
service	  plans,	  and	  the	  2014	  Regional	  Transportation	  Plan.	  

Action	  
2	  

Advocate	  for	  federal	  and	  state	  governments	  to	  advance	  Oregon’s	  transition	  to	  cleaner,	  low	  carbon	  
fuels,	  and	  more	  fuel-‐efficient	  vehicle	  technologies.	  This	  action	  will	  accelerate	  the	  fuel	  and	  vehicle	  
technology	  trends	  assumed	  in	  the	  state	  target.	  	  

Action	  
3	  

Seek	  opportunities	  to	  advance	  local	  and	  regional	  projects	  that	  best	  combine	  the	  most	  effective	  
greenhouse	  gas	  emissions	  reduction	  strategies.	  This	  action	  will	  implement	  adopted	  regional,	  city	  and	  
county	  policies	  or	  plans	  and	  identify	  locally	  tailored	  approaches	  that	  integrate	  transit	  and	  active	  
transportation	  investments	  with	  the	  use	  of	  technology,	  parking	  and	  transportation	  demand	  
management	  strategies	  to	  show	  how	  these	  strategies,	  if	  implemented	  together,	  can	  achieve	  greater	  
cost-‐effectiveness	  and	  greenhouse	  gas	  emissions	  reductions	  than	  if	  implemented	  individually.	  	  
	  
The	  action	  means	  the	  region	  will	  seek	  seed	  money	  for	  demonstration	  projects	  that	  leverage	  (1)	  local,	  
regional,	  state	  and	  federal	  resources	  and	  (2)	  state	  and	  regional	  technical	  assistance	  to	  plan	  for	  and	  
implement	  community	  demonstration	  projects	  that	  combine	  the	  following	  elements:	  

• investments	  in	  transit	  facility	  and/or	  service	  improvements	  identified	  in	  TriMet	  Service	  
Enhancement	  Plans	  or	  the	  South	  Metro	  Area	  Regional	  Transit	  (SMART)	  Master	  Plan,	  including	  
community-‐based	  services	  that	  complement	  regional	  service,	  such	  as	  the	  GroveLink	  service	  in	  
Forest	  Grove	  

• local	  bike	  and	  pedestrian	  safety	  retrofits	  that	  also	  improve	  access	  to	  transit,	  schools	  and	  activity	  



	   	   	   	   	   	  
	  

	  Page	  2	  

centers	  
• investments	  in	  transportation	  system	  management	  technologies,	  such	  as	  traffic	  signal	  timing	  and	  

transit	  signal	  priority	  along	  corridors	  with	  15-‐minute	  or	  better	  service,	  to	  smooth	  traffic	  flow	  and	  
improve	  on-‐time	  performance	  and	  reliability	  

• parking	  management	  approaches,	  such	  as	  bicycle	  parking,	  preferential	  parking	  for	  alternative	  
fuel	  vehicles,	  and	  shared	  and	  unbundled	  parking	  

• transportation	  demand	  management	  incentives	  or	  requirements	  to	  increase	  carpooling,	  biking,	  
walking	  and	  use	  of	  transit.	  

	  
Seed	  funding	  could	  be	  sought	  from	  multiple	  sources,	  such	  as	  the	  Regional	  Flexible	  Funding	  Allocation	  
process,	  Metro’s	  Community	  Planning	  and	  Development	  Grant	  program,	  Oregon’s	  Transportation	  
Growth	  Management	  grant	  program,	  and	  federal	  grant	  programs	  such	  as	  the	  Building	  Blocks	  for	  
Sustainable	  Communities.	  	  

	  

PARTNERSHIPS	  TO	  IMPLEMENT	  EARLY	  ACTIONS	  CAN	  DRIVE	  POSITIVE	  CHANGE	  	  
Adoption	  of	  the	  Climate	  Smart	  Strategy	  presents	  an	  opportunity	  for	  the	  region	  to	  work	  together	  to	  continue	  
demonstrating	  leadership	  on	  climate	  change	  while	  addressing	  the	  need	  to	  step	  up	  funding	  to	  implement	  our	  
adopted	  local	  and	  regional	  plans.	  Working	  together	  on	  these	  early	  actions	  presents	  an	  opportunity	  to	  lay	  a	  
foundation	  for	  addressing	  our	  larger	  shared	  challenges	  through	  a	  collaborative	  approach.	  The	  actions	  
recommended	  are	  achievable,	  but	  require	  political	  will	  and	  collaboration	  among	  regional	  partners	  to	  succeed.	  

This	  collaborative	  effort	  will	  require	  full	  participation	  from	  not	  only	  MPAC,	  JPACT,	  and	  the	  Metro	  Council,	  but	  also	  
the	  region's	  cities	  and	  counties,	  transit	  agencies,	  port	  districts,	  parks	  providers,	  businesses,	  non-‐profits	  as	  well	  as	  
state	  agencies,	  commissions	  and	  the	  Oregon	  Legislature.	  Coordinated	  work	  plans	  for	  addressing	  these	  priority	  
actions	  will	  be	  developed	  by	  MPAC	  and	  JPACT	  and	  the	  Metro	  Council	  in	  2015.	  



1	  
	  

Exhibit F to Ordinance No. 14-1346B 
Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law 

Regarding Compliance with OAR 660-044-0040 
 
Ordinance No. 14-1346B adopts Metro’s Climate Smart Strategy for the purpose of complying 
with goals for reducing greenhouse gas emissions adopted by the Oregon Legislature in 2009 and 
rules adopted by the Land Conservation and Development Commission (LCDC) that apply the 
statutory requirements to the Portland Metropolitan Region. The LCDC rules require Metro to 
develop and adopt a preferred land use and transportation scenario for reducing per capita 
greenhouse gas emissions from cars and small trucks by 20 percent in 2035.  
 
A detailed explanation of the background regarding Metro’s extensive coordination with local 
governments and the process associated with the preparation and selection of the preferred 
scenario for meeting state targets is provided in the staff report to the Metro Council dated 
December 9, 2014 (“Staff Report”), which is hereby adopted and incorporated by reference into 
these findings.  
 
These findings address compliance with relevant provisions of LCDC’s rules and potentially 
applicable statewide planning goals.  
 

 A. OAR 660-044-0040(2) 
 
The requirement for Metro findings is set forth in OAR 660-044-0040(4), which begins with a 
requirement that Metro demonstrate compliance with certain requirements set forth in each 
subsection of OAR 660-044-0040(2). Those subsections are addressed below.  
 

(2)  In preparing and selecting a preferred land use and transportation scenario 
Metro shall: 
 
(a)  Consult with affected local governments, the Port of Portland, TriMet, and 
the Oregon Department of Transportation.  

 
Finding: As described in detail in the Staff Report, Metro has been working together with local 
governments in the region, state agencies, TriMet, the Port of Portland, and business and 
community leaders since the Climate Smart project began in 2011. Metro facilitated the 
consultation and coordination of the project through four advisory committee bodies – the Joint 
Policy Advisory Committee on Transportation (JPACT), the Metro Policy Advisory Committee 
(MPAC), the Transportation Policy Advisory Committee (TPAC) and the Metro Technical 
Advisory Committee (MTAC). The project relied on this existing regional decision-making 
structure for all aspects of the development, review and adoption of the preferred scenario. 
MPAC, JPACT and the Metro Council made recommendations at key decision points based on 
input from TPAC, MTAC and the public participation process. A technical work group of 
members from MTAC and TPAC was formed to assist Metro staff with the development of work 
products, provide technical advice, and assist with engaging local government officials and 
senior staff throughout the four-year process. 
 



2	  
	  

(b)  Consider adopted comprehensive plans and local aspirations for growth in 
developing and selecting a preferred land use and transportation scenario; 

 
Finding:  The evaluation process used for selecting the preferred scenario analyzed three 
scenarios – a reference case scenario reflecting implementation of existing adopted 
comprehensive plans and transportation plans, and two alternative land use and transportation 
scenarios for meeting greenhouse gas reduction targets. The adopted comprehensive plans and 
zoning codes of cities and counties across the region are the foundation for all three scenarios 
that were tested throughout the project. A detailed description of the three scenarios and their 
reliance on adopted plans and codes is provided in the Staff Report.   

(c)  Use assumptions about population, housing and employment growth 
consistent with the coordinated population and employment projections for the 
metropolitan area for the planning period; 

 
Finding:  The scenario evaluation used the regionally coordinated growth forecast as adopted on 
Nov. 29, 2012 in Metro Ordinance No. 12-1292A (For the Purpose of Adopting the Distribution 
of the Population and Employment Growth to Year 2035 to Traffic Analysis Zones in the Region 
Consistent With the Forecast Adopted By Ordinance No. 11-1264B in Fulfillment of Metro's 
Population Coordination Responsibility Under ORS 195.036). 
 

(d)  Use evaluation methods and analysis tools for estimating greenhouse gas 
emissions that are: (A) Consistent with the provisions of this division; (B) Reflect 
best available information and practices; and (C) Coordinated with the Oregon 
Department of Transportation. 
 

Finding:  The GreenSTEP model, developed by the Oregon Department of Transportation 
(ODOT) represented the best available analysis tool for estimating greenhouse gas emissions 
from light vehicles and was used consistent with the provisions of OAR 660-044 with significant 
support from ODOT. ODOT adapted the state-level GreenSTEP model to run a regional level of 
analysis sufficient to satisfy Metro’s specific needs under LCDC’s rules; ODOT also assisted 
with preparing and reviewing inputs and outputs of the evaluation conducted for each phase that 
led to adoption of the preferred scenario.  
 

(e)  Make assumptions about state and federal policies and programs expected to 
be in effect in over the planning period, including the Statewide Transportation 
Strategy, in coordination with the responsible state agencies; 

 
Finding:  Coordination with the responsible agencies regarding applicable state and federal 
policies occurred in several ways. A project management team of Metro, ODOT and DLCD met 
regularly throughout the project to ensure coordination with development of the Statewide 
Transportation Strategy and use of the appropriate assumptions for fuels, fuel efficiency and 
technology assumptions, fleet mix, fleet turnover and pay-as-you-drive insurance participation 
rates. In addition, ODOT and ODEQ staff participated in the development of assumptions about 
state and federal policies and programs through the Climate Smart Communities Technical Work 
Group and the Transportation Policy Alternatives Committee (TPAC). The assumptions about 
state and federal policies and programs related to pay-as-you-drive insurance and advancements 



3	  
	  

in cleaner, low carbon fuels and more fuel-efficient vehicles, fleet mix and fleet turnover are 
documented in Attachment 1 to the Staff Report and in Exhibit A to the ordinance and reflect the 
assumptions used by state agencies when establishing the region’s greenhouse gas emissions 
reduction target. 
 

(f)  Evaluate a reference case scenario that reflects implementation of existing 
adopted comprehensive plans and transportation plans; 

 
Finding:  Implementation of existing adopted comprehensive plans and transportation plans 
using existing resources was evaluated in Scenario A, which shows the results of implementing 
adopted plans to the extent possible with existing revenues (e.g., gas tax, payroll tax and existing 
local sources like urban renewal districts (URD), SDCs, and TIFs that have been used to fund 
transportation investments). Scenario A assumes the region continues to rely on existing 
revenues, which continue to decline in their purchasing power over time due to rising costs, 
inflation and improved fuel economy of vehicles. Scenario A fell short of the state mandated 
target, achieving a 12 percent reduction in per capita greenhouse gas emissions.  More details 
regarding the reference case scenario are provided in Exhibit A to Metro Resolution No. 13-
4438, and in the staff report dated May 17, 2013 in support of that resolution. 
 

(g)  Evaluate at least two alternative land use and transportation scenarios for 
meeting greenhouse gas reduction targets and identify types of amendments to 
comprehensive plans and land use regulations likely to be necessary to implement 
each alternative scenario; 

 
Finding:  As required by this subsection of the rule, Metro and its regional partners evaluated 
two alternative land use and transportation scenarios: Scenario B and Scenario C. Scenario B is 
also based on implementation of existing plans, but shows the results of raising additional 
revenues, as called for in the adopted Regional Transportation Plan (RTP), to allow the region to 
make more progress toward implementing adopted plans. Scenario B represents what the future 
could look like if the region is successful in implementing adopted plans with additional 
revenues assumed in the 2035 RTP. Scenario B assumed the adopted Financially Constrained 
RTP levels of transit, road, operations and bike/pedestrian investment, parking fees in 2040 
centers and station communities served by frequent transit service and active transportation 
options, current adopted local land use plans, and planned funding as adopted in the RTP (e.g., 1 
cent per year gas tax increase, increases to vehicle registration fees, and some increase in the 
payroll tax for transit). Under Scenario B, TriMet would be able to reinvest in and expand 
frequent bus service in priority corridors and to serve the region’s most vulnerable communities. 
Scenario B assumed the 2035 RTP Financially Constrained System of projects and programs 
adopted by JPACT and the Metro Council in June 2010. An implication of this scenario is that 
with significantly more community investment, cities and counties are better able to achieve their 
adopted plans and attract new employers – as reflected in the 2035 growth distribution adopted 
by the Metro Council in November 2012. More details regarding Scenario B are provided in 
Exhibit A to Metro Resolution No. 13-4438, and in the staff report dated May 17, 2013 in 
support of that resolution. 
 



4	  
	  

Scenario C shows results that could be achieved if the region pursues new policies and revenue 
sources to more fully achieve adopted and emerging plans. Scenario C represents what the future 
could look like if the region is able to fully implement adopted plans (including the full RTP) 
and additional transit, bike, pedestrian and road investments needed to support new plans such as 
the Southwest Corridor Plan, East Metro Connections Plan, and the Regional Active 
Transportation Plan. Under Scenario C, TriMet would be able to further expand high capacity 
transit and frequent and local bus service to more parts of the region with supporting land use 
and to better serve the region’s most vulnerable communities. Major transit capital investments 
would include extending high capacity transit to the Southwest Corridor, AmberGlen and 
Oregon City, and bus rapid transit serving the Powell/Division, I-205 and Tualatin-Valley 
Highway corridors as called for in the High Capacity Transit System Plan adopted by the Metro 
Council in June 2010. Under Scenario C, the State of Oregon would implement a comprehensive 
intercity transit system, which includes extending WES commuter rail service from Wilsonville 
to Salem and Cascadia high-speed rail that connects the region to Salem and Eugene as well as 
other major west coast cities, including Seattle and Vancouver, B.C.  More services, shopping 
opportunities and job opportunities would be located near transit and where people live and 
work. Scenario C assumed the 2035 RTP State System of projects and programs and Tier 2 High 
Capacity Transit Plan corridors adopted by JPACT and the Metro Council in June 2010. Under 
this scenario, most major employers and commercial destinations in the region would have 
electric vehicle charging stations available for visitors and employees. Scenario C also tested 
new revenue mechanisms, including expanded parking fees, a mileage-based road use fee and a 
carbon fee to maintain and operate the transportation system and fund needed investments and 
market incentives. This scenario explored using the carbon fee and mileage-based fee to test the 
effect of transitioning from the gas tax, as well as expanding parking fees in new locations 
served by high capacity transit and frequent bus service consistent with the Regional 
Transportation Functional Plan. More details regarding Scenario C are provided in Exhibit A to 
Metro Resolution No. 13-4438, and in the staff report dated May 17, 2013 in support of that 
resolution. 
 
For both alternative scenarios, amendments to comprehensive plans and land use regulations 
were deemed to be unnecessary because both scenarios relied on existing adopted comprehensive 
plans and land use regulations, including existing functional plans, first adopted by Metro in 
1996, and progressively higher levels of investment in multi-modal transportation infrastructure 
and, in the case of Scenario C, state actions related to a carbon tax and a road usage fee. 
 

(h)  Develop and apply evaluation criteria that assess how alternative land use 
and transportation scenarios compare with the reference case in achieving 
important regional goals or outcomes; 

 
Finding:  The phase 2 evaluation criteria were adopted as Exhibit B to Metro Resolution No. 13-
4438. The staff report dated May 17, 2013 describes how the criteria were developed, including 
engagement with business, social equity, public health and environmental leaders and local 
governments, ODOT, TriMet and others through the regional policy and technical advisory 
committees. The results of the evaluation are summarized in the Discussion Guide for Policy 
Makers (April 2014), see Attachment 7 to Metro Resolution No. 14-	  4539. 
 



5	  
	  

 
 

(i)  If the preferred scenario relies on new investments or funding sources to 
achieve the target, evaluate the feasibility of the investments or funding sources 
including: 
 
* * * * * 

(D)  Consider effects of alternative scenarios on development and 
travel patterns in the surrounding area (i.e. whether proposed 
policies will cause change in development or increased light vehicle 
travel between metropolitan area and surrounding communities 
compared to reference case) 

 
Finding:  The preferred scenario does not rely on new investments or funding sources to achieve 
the target. The overall cost identified for the preferred scenario is $24 billion over 25 years, 
which is $5 billion less than the $29 billion in funding identified in the 2014 RTP. The $29 
billion in funding identified in the 2014 RTP includes the same assumptions regarding funding 
sources that were adopted by JPACT and the Metro Council in 2010 for purposes of developing 
funding targets for the 2035 RTP.  Therefore, these are not “new” funding sources within the 
meaning of this rule, but are the same sources adopted by JPACT and the Metro Council in 2010, 
and again in 2014, for purposes of describing full RTP funding. 
 
The RTP contains two levels of investments to the components of the overall transportation 
system that reflect the adopted funding targets: 
 

1. The Federal Priorities set of investments (also known as the “financially constrained” list) 
for which funding over the planning period is “reasonably anticipated to be available.” 
This set of investments serves as the basis for complying with federal law and air quality 
regulations. 

2. The RTP Investment Strategy (also known as the “state” or “full” RTP list) includes the 
Federal Priorities projects plus additional investments that the region is committed to 
funding if new or expanded revenue sources are secured. The region has deemed this list 
of investments as “reasonably likely to be funded” under state law. If these improvements 
are made, the system will support the region’s land use plans and improve system 
performance as much as feasible. This set of investments is the basis for findings of 
consistency with Statewide Planning Goal 12, the Transportation Planning Rule and the 
Oregon Transportation Plan and its components.  

 
The RTP revenue forecast and financial analysis for operations and maintenance costs was based 
on a thorough evaluation of city and county, ODOT, TriMet and South Metro Area Rapid Transit 
(SMART) cost projections. The system was developed based on a forecast of expected revenues 
that was formulated in partnership with the Oregon Department of Transportation, cities and 
counties in the Metro region, TriMet and the SMART district. 
 



6	  
	  

Chapter 5 of the 2035 RTP and Appendix 4.2 to the 2035 RTP summarize the agreed upon 
funding sources and revenues for the financially constrained RTP and the full RTP that were 
carried over to the 2014 RTP: 
 

• The equivalent of a $2 per year increase in the state vehicle registration fee 
through 2035 

• Creation of a local/regional vehicle registration fee equivalent to $1 per year 
through 2035 

• Increasing local system development charges across the region up to the regional 
average 

• The equivalent of a .02 percent increase in TriMet’s payroll tax 
• Local street utility fees to fund operations, maintenance and preservation 

 
 Appendix 7.08 to the 2035 RTP (preliminary financial analysis to support the 2035 RTP) 
includes an analysis of funding sources and options that informed a series of joint MPAC and 
JPACT discussions in 2007 and 2009 on funding choices for the RTP. The discussions led to 
policy direction on the level of investment and funding sources deemed feasible to include in the 
2035 RTP. 
 
Because the preferred scenario does not rely on new investments or funding sources to achieve 
the state target, subsection (C) of this rule does not technically apply. However, in testing the 
alternative scenarios, Metro did consider potential effects of the scenarios on development and 
travel patterns in the surrounding area. The assumptions used to test the reference case (Scenario 
A) and Scenarios B and C are described in the staff report dated May 17, 2013 in support of 
Metro Resolution No. 13-4438.  For purposes of meeting this provision, Metro worked with the 
Technical Work Group to develop alternative growth allocations using MetroScope to support 
consideration of the effect of different levels of investment on growth and travel patterns in the 
metropolitan area and related impacts on greenhouse gas emissions from light-duty vehicles. The 
alternative growth distributions were based on adopted land use plans and zoning and showed 
how the metropolitan area might grow under different levels of investment.  The alternative 
growth distributions were used as the land use assumptions in the GreenSTEP model. The 
GreenSTEP model accounts for all trips on roadways within the metropolitan area (and their 
corresponding vehicle miles traveled and emissions), including trips that travel to, within and 
through the metropolitan area. 
 
The Technical Work Group reviewed the analysis of the MetroScope growth allocations and 
found that there were differences in the household and employment capture rate between growth 
distributions for each scenario tested. The GreenSTEP analysis showed that while all scenarios 
demonstrated a continued decline in per capita vehicle miles traveled and growth in biking, 
walking and of transit, Scenarios B and C reflected the most significant decline in VMT per 
capita and growth in biking, walking and transit as a result of increased investment in 
transportation options. The results of the evaluation are summarized in Attachment 7 to the Staff 
Report to Metro Resolution No. 14-4539 and were considered by Metro’s technical and policy 
advisory committees as part of shaping the Climate Smart Strategy for testing in spring 2014. 
 
 



7	  
	  

B. OAR 660-044-0040(4) 
 
The section of LCDC’s rules requiring Metro to adopt findings is OAR 660-044-0040(4), which 
provides as follows:  
 

(4)  When amending the regional framework plan, Metro shall adopt findings 
demonstrating that implementation of the preferred land use and transportation 
scenario meets the requirements of this division and can reasonably be expected 
to achieve the greenhouse gas emission reductions as set forth in the target in 
OAR 660-044-0020. Metro’s findings shall:  

 
(a)  Demonstrate Metro’s process for cooperative selection of a 
preferred alternative meets the requirements in subsections (2)(a)-(j); 
 
(b)  Explain how the expected pattern of land use development in 
combination with land use and transportation policies, programs, 
actions set forth in the preferred scenario will result in levels of 
greenhouse gas emissions from light vehicle travel that achieve the 
target in OAR 660-044-0020;  
 
(c)  Explain how the framework plan amendments are consistent with 
and adequate to carry out the preferred scenario, and are consistent 
with other provisions of the Regional Framework Plan; and, 
 
(d)  Explain how the preferred scenario is or will be made consistent 
with other applicable statewide planning goals or rules.  

 
Each of these subsections of the rule is addressed below.  
 

(a)  Demonstrate Metro’s process for cooperative selection of a preferred 
alternative meets the requirements in subsections (2)(a)-(j); 

 
Finding:  This subsection of the rule is addressed above in Section A of these findings.  
 

(b)  Explain how the expected pattern of land use development in combination 
with land use and transportation policies, programs, actions set forth in the 
preferred scenario will result in levels of greenhouse gas emissions from light 
vehicle travel that achieve the target in OAR 660-044-0020; 

 
Finding:  The preferred scenario being adopted by Metro envisions a pattern of land use 
development in the region that is based on the development pattern proposed by the Metro 2040 
Growth Concept, the 2014 Regional Transportation Plan, and existing local land use and 
transportation plans.  
 
The Metro 2040 Growth Concept and map of design types, as implemented by existing local land 
use and transportation plans and maps, provide the preferred scenario’s description of the land 



8	  
	  

use and transportation growth concept including land use design types as contemplated by OAR 
660-044-0020(3)(a). Similarly, the planning assumptions upon which the preferred scenario 
relies are provided by the 2040 Growth Concept and map, as implemented by local governments 
in their land use and transportation plans. More specifically, as required by OAR 660-044-
0020(3)(a)(C), the preferred scenario relies upon estimates of expected housing and employment 
growth in the region that are based on the Urban Growth Report 2009-2030 (UGR). In 2012, the 
regional population and employment forecasts in the UGR were assigned to local jurisdictions by 
land use design type via Metro Ordinance No. 12-1292A. These planning assumptions for the 
Metro region form the basis of the preferred land use and transportation scenario being adopted 
as the Climate Smart Strategy. 
 
The analysis undertaken by Metro and its partners during Phase 1 of the Climate Smart project 
evaluated a wide range of options for reducing greenhouse gas emissions by testing 144 different 
combinations of land use and transportation strategies to learn what it would take to meet the 
reduction target by 2035. The strategies were organized into six policy areas: (1) community 
design; (2) pricing; (3) marketing and incentives; (4) roads; (5) fleet; and (6) technology. Each 
policy area included multiple individual strategies for reducing greenhouse gas emissions, and 
the strategies were all tested as part of 144 different scenarios using a regionally tailored version 
of ODOT’s Greenhouse Gas State Transportation Emissions Planning (GreenSTEP) model.  
 
The initial findings for Phase 1 of the analysis are summarized in the report titled Understanding 
Our Land Use and Transportation Choices: Phase 1 Findings (January 2012), which is included 
in the record and hereby adopted and incorporated as part of these findings. As described in that 
report, the analysis revealed that the state targets could be met by implementing existing regional 
and local plans and policies, along with state assumptions relating to advancements in cleaner 
fuels and more efficient vehicle technologies.   
 
Phase 2 of the Climate Smart project involved an analysis of the relative climate benefit that 
would be provided by each of the different policies under consideration, and the application of a 
five-star rating system to quantify the benefits of each approach. As required by LCDC rules, 
Metro and its advisory committees then developed and evaluated three potential scenarios for 
attempting to meet state greenhouse gas reduction targets. Scenario “A” reflected the results that 
would be obtained by simply implementing adopted regional and local land use and 
transportation plans to the extent possible with existing revenue.  Scenario “B” showed the 
results of successfully implementing those adopted plans and assuming some increased revenue 
as contemplated in the financially constrained 2035 RTP.  Scenario “C” reflected results of 
pursuing new policies, more investments and new revenue sources. The analysis concluded that 
implementation of adopted plans and policies in place today under scenario “B” would result in a 
24% per capita reduction in greenhouse gas emissions by 2035, thereby exceeding the state 
target by four percent.  
 
The preferred scenario recommended by JPACT and MPAC in May of 2014, and ultimately 
adopted by the Metro Council by this ordinance, involves a combination of scenarios “B” and 
“C” that implements existing regional and local plans while assuming levels of investment for 
transit service and new transportation system management technologies consistent with funding 
level assumptions included in the “full” RTP. The preferred scenario also includes a slightly 



9	  
	  

higher level of investment than is included in the full RTP for travel information and incentive 
programs to increase carpooling, bicycling, walking and use of transit. Costing only $85 million 
more than the full RTP investment level for travel information and incentive programs, this level 
of investment falls well within the funding assumptions included in the “full” RTP, which 
exceed the overall cost identified for the preferred scenario by $5 billion. 
 
The expected pattern of land use development contemplated as the preferred scenario for the 
Climate Smart Strategy adopted by Metro is based on the following assumptions regarding 
population growth, land development, and transportation policies and investment:   
 

• Growth and Development:  The preferred scenario is based on the 2035 population and 
employment growth distribution adopted by the Metro Council on November 29, 2012 in 
Metro Ordinance No. 12-1292A. The 2035 growth distribution ordinance reflects the 
pattern of land development described in the Metro 2040 Growth Concept and locally 
adopted comprehensive plans and zoning as of 2010; the growth distribution ordinance 
also assumes that 12,000 acres will be added to the Metro UGB by 2035.    

• Transportation:  The preferred scenario is based on local and regional investment 
priorities adopted by Metro in the 2014 RTP to address current and future transportation 
needs in the region, including:  

 
o The financially constrained 2014 RTP level of investment for streets, highways 

and active transportation; 
o The financially constrained 2014 RTP assumptions for parking management, 

which link varying levels of parking management to the availability of high 
capacity transit, frequent bus service and active transportation in 2040 centers; 

o The full 2014 RTP level of investment for transit service and related capital 
improvements needed to support increased service levels to be able to more fully 
implement community and regional transit service identified in transit service 
plans; 

o The full 2014 RTP level of investment for transportation system management and 
operations technologies to actively manage the transportation system and reduce 
delay; 

o A higher level of investment than assumed in the full 2014 RTP for travel 
information and incentive programs to increase carpooling, bicycling, walking 
and use of transit. 

 
The above-stated assumptions form the foundation of the preferred scenario. As described in the 
Climate Smart Strategy, the pattern of land use development provided for in the 2040 Growth 
Concept, existing local plans and codes, the 2035 growth distribution, and the 2014 RTP is a 
pattern that is expected to exceed state targets by 2035. The preferred scenario relies upon 
assumptions included in the UGR adopted by Metro in 2010 and the related population and 
employment growth distributions that were allocated by the Metro Council to local jurisdictions 
in 2012.  Future UGRs will be adopted by the Metro Council every six years beginning in 2014, 
and will provide an important vehicle for evaluating how the region is performing regarding this 
key element of the Climate Smart Strategy – i.e., the implementation of regional and local land 
use and transportation plans.  



10	  
	  

 
As discussed below regarding performance measures and monitoring, the Climate Smart Strategy 
includes performance monitoring targets directed at measuring the region’s success at 
implementing the 2040 Growth Concept and local land use and transportation plans, including 
percentages of households living in walkable mixed use areas, percentages of new residential 
units build through infill and redevelopment, and daily vehicle miles traveled per capita. These 
measures are all included in RFP Section 7.8 regarding performance measures and monitoring; 
therefore, the measures and targets will be monitored through the process described in OAR 660-
044-0060 and reported to DLCD biannually under that rule and ORS 197.301.   
 
Measures and targets related to implementing adopted plans would also be reviewed as part of 
Metro’s recurring growth management decisions. For example, one of the targets assumes that 
12,000 acres of land will be added to the UGB by 2035 based on population and employment 
growth forecasts in the 2010 UGR and Metro’s distribution of that projected growth in 2012. As 
part of any future urban growth management decisions by Metro that involve an expansion of the 
UGB, Metro would assess the impact of that expansion on the 12,000 acre target and any other 
relevant and applicable performance monitoring targets.1 
  
In addition, the Climate Smart Strategy includes new policies, actions, and strategies adopted by 
Metro in amendments to the Regional Framework Plan (RFP) and corresponding amendments to 
the RTP, as well as strategies described in the Toolbox of Possible Actions, which is attached to 
the ordinance as Exhibit C. The toolbox provides a menu of actions that may be taken by state 
agencies, Metro and local governments over the next five years that, if taken, will help 
implement the broader policies and strategies in the Climate Smart Strategy and the RFP, and 
will reduce greenhouse gas emissions in ways that support the goals and objectives of local 
communities. The toolbox provides a set of recommended actions, and does not require Metro, 
state agencies, or local governments to adopt any particular policy or action; rather, it is intended 
to allow for flexibility so that any particular action may be relied upon and tailored to best 
support local, regional or state plans and visions. Metro has begun implementing some of the 
immediate actions in the toolbox recommended for Metro that are identified in the Short List of 
Climate Smart Actions for 2015 and 2016. In particular, Metro is developing a 2015 Legislative 
Agenda for consideration by JPACT and the Metro Council in January 2015 that advocates for 
increased transportation funding for all modes of transportation. In addition, Metro staff added 
implementation of the Climate Smart Strategy to criteria for Metro’s Community Planning and 
Development Grant Program. 
 
Regarding compliance with this subsection of the rule, it is important to emphasize that the 
projected success of the Climate Smart Strategy in meeting greenhouse gas reduction targets is 
based not only on new policies, strategies and actions that are being adopted in the preferred 
scenario; rather, a critical component of the adopted strategy is the implementation of existing 
requirements imposed on local governments by Metro in its two functional plans. Existing Metro 
	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  
1	  The adopted 2035 growth distribution reflects locally adopted comprehensive plans and zoning as of 2010 and assumes an 
estimated 12,000 acres of UGB expansion by 2035 for purposes of allocating growth. The 12,000 acre target referenced in the 
Climate Smart Strategy is based on that assumption, and is not intended to provide legal or policy support for any decision related 
to the UGB. The assumption is included for purposes of helping to analyze the impact of any future Metro UGB expansions on 
state and regional efforts to reduce greenhouse gas emissions. Any decisions considering the need for a UGB expansion will 
occur through the process provided for by ORS 197.295 et seq and OAR Chapter 660, Division 24.	  



11	  
	  

requirements in the Urban Growth Management Functional Plan and the Regional Transportation 
Functional Plan that have been in place for many years have helped the region achieve a more 
compact urban form by guiding development toward centers, corridors, station communities and 
main streets, changing travel behavior by promoting development of transit, bicycle and 
pedestrian systems, and creating a well-connected local street network. Specific components of 
these existing functional plan requirements are addressed in more detail below in relation to the 
findings under OAR 660-044-0040(4)(c) describing the RFP amendments that implement the 
seven key policy areas of the Climate Smart Strategy. Those descriptions are also adopted and 
relied upon here as part of the findings describing compliance with OAR 660-044-0040(4)(b) 
because the success of the preferred scenario in satisfying the state rules relies heavily on these 
existing Metro requirements.     
 

(c)  Explain how the framework plan amendments are consistent with and 
adequate to carry out the preferred scenario, and are consistent with other 
provisions of the Regional Framework Plan; and 

 
Finding:  The preferred land use and transportation scenario package adopted by Metro is 
generally described in the Climate Smart Strategy document (Exhibit A to the ordinance), which 
summarizes the preferred approach for meeting state targets that was unanimously recommended 
for adoption by MPAC and JPACT. The adopted Climate Smart Strategy consists of three 
primary components: (1) amendments to the Regional Framework Plan (RFP) that integrate 
specific policies and strategies to implement the strategy (Exhibit B to the ordinance); (2) a 
toolbox of actions that may be taken by state agencies, Metro, and local governments in order to 
implement the strategy and reduce greenhouse gas emissions (Exhibit C to the ordinance); and 
(3) a performance monitoring approach that identifies measures and targets to monitor and assess 
whether specific policies and actions that make up the strategy are being implemented and 
whether the strategy is achieving the intended outcomes (Exhibit D to the ordinance). 
 
The amendments to the RFP adopted as part of the Climate Smart Strategy are specifically 
designed to carry out the preferred scenario by including new policies, objectives, and strategies 
designed to implement all aspects of the strategy and ensure that state targets for the region can 
be met. The strategy identifies the following seven key policies that, if implemented as proposed, 
will result in emission reductions that meet the required state targets: (1) implement existing 
local and regional land use and transportation plans; (2) make transit convenient, frequent, 
accessible and affordable; (3) make biking and walking safe and convenient; (4) make streets and 
highways safe, reliable and connected; (5) use technology to actively manage the transportation 
system; (6) provide information and incentives to expand the use of travel options; and (7) 
manage parking to make efficient use of vehicle parking and land dedicated to parking spaces. 
Each of these policies is addressed and implemented through the RFP amendments adopted as 
part of the Climate Smart Strategy and described in more detail below. 
 
Most of the additions to the RFP that are being adopted as part of the Climate Smart Strategy are 
included in Chapter 2, which sets forth Metro’s goals and objectives regarding transportation. 
The RFP amendments add language to the introductory section of Chapter 2 stating that the 
policies in Chapter 2 are a “key component of the regional strategy to reduce per capita 



12	  
	  

greenhouse gas emissions,” and identifying each of the policy areas that are identified in the 
Climate Smart Strategy as specific objectives of Chapter 2 of the RFP.  
 
As part of Metro’s specific goals and objectives regarding transportation in Chapter 2 of the 
RFP, the RFP amendments also create a new Goal 11, which is titled “Demonstrate leadership on 
reducing greenhouse gas emissions.” Goal 11 provides that it is the policy of the Metro Council 
to implement a regional strategy to meet adopted targets for reducing greenhouse gas emissions 
from light vehicle travel while creating healthy and equitable communities and a strong 
economy. Goal 11 then includes 10 new objectives designed to implement the specific policies 
and strategies adopted as part of the Climate Smart Strategy. Each of those policies and relevant 
new RFP components are described below. 
 
The seven key policies of the Climate Smart Strategy are implemented not only through the new 
RFP goals and objectives described below, but also through existing Regional Transportation 
Functional Plan (RTFP) and Urban Growth Management Functional Plan (UGMFP) 
requirements that direct local governments. Implementation of the policies through the RTFP 
will meet local, regional and state transportation needs and contribute to changes in travel 
behavior that will help reduce greenhouse gas emissions from light-duty vehicles by promoting 
development of regional transit, bicycle and pedestrian systems, creating a well-connected 
arterial, collector and local street network and optimizing the existing transportation system 
through the use of technology and providing information, incentive programs and other demand 
management strategies. The RTFP requires local TSPs to do their part in meeting local, regional 
and state needs through system design standards in Title 1 and parking management standards in 
Title 4. 
 
(1)  Implement existing plans. The Climate Smart Strategy is built on a foundation of 
implementing existing regional and local land use and transportation plans. Metro’s Climate 
Smart project involved an analysis of three potential scenarios and concluded that 
implementation of adopted plans and policies in place today would result in a 29% per capita 
reduction in greenhouse gas emissions by 2035, thereby exceeding the state target (assuming 
sufficient funding for actions and improvements needed for implementation). Those plans and 
policies include the Metro 2040 Growth Concept, the RFP, the Urban Growth Management 
Functional Plan (UGMFP), the Regional Transportation Functional Plan (RTFP), and the 2014 
Regional Transportation Plan that was adopted in July, which includes a new Active 
Transportation Plan (ATP) designed to increase walking and bicycling throughout the region as 
an alternative to driving. Thus, existing Metro plans and policies, including the RFP, UGMFP 
and RFTP, are already key parts of the strategy to carry out the preferred scenario. The UGMFP 
requires local governments to provide housing capacity consistent with the 2040 Growth 
Concept through Title 1, provide and protect employment lands through Title 4 and implement a 
plan of actions and investments to support growth in 2040 centers, corridors, station 
communities and main streets through Title 6. The RTFP requires local TSPs to do their part in 
meeting local, regional and state transportation needs through system design standards in Title 1 
and parking management standards in Title 4 that will also contribute to changes in travel 
behavior that will help reduce greenhouse gas emissions from light-duty vehicles. The RFP 
amendments adopted as part of the strategy also include new Objective 11.1, which directs Metro 
to “continue to implement the 2040 Growth Concept to support a compact urban form to reduce 



13	  
	  

vehicle miles traveled and increase the use of transit and zero or low carbon emissions travel 
options, such as bicycling, walking and electric vehicles.”  
 
(2)  Make transit convenient, frequent, accessible and affordable. The CSC scenario analysis 
identified expanding public transit options as one of the most effective individual policies for 
reducing greenhouse gas emissions. Metro’s RFP amendments are consistent with and adequate 
to carry out this policy of the preferred scenario. The amendments add new provisions to the 
Land Use chapter of the RFP (Chapter 1) aimed at encouraging development that provides 
walkable access to transit and allowing affordable housing in locations with frequent transit 
service. Amendments to the Transportation chapter of the RFP (Chapter 2) include new 
Objective 11.3, which states the policy of the Metro Council to make transit convenient, 
frequent, accessible and affordable by “investing in new community and regional transit 
connections, expanding and improving existing transit services, improving bicycle and 
pedestrian access to transit, and implementing reduced fare programs for transit-dependent 
communities.” Also, new Objective 11.9 directs Metro to take actions to help meet the state 
reduction targets, including working with federal, state and local governments to secure adequate 
funding for transportation and other investments needed to implement the strategy. The RTFP 
requires local TSPs to do their part in meeting local, regional and state transportation needs 
through system design standards related to Transit System Design in Title 1 Section 3.08.120 and 
parking management standards in Title 4 that will also contribute to changes in travel behavior 
that will help reduce greenhouse gas emissions from light-duty vehicles. 
 
(3)  Make biking and walking safe and convenient. Metro’s RFP amendments are consistent 
with and adequate to carry out this policy of the preferred scenario. The RFP amendments add 
new provisions to Chapter 1 of the RFP regarding urban design that state the policy of the Metro 
Council to make biking and walking “the most convenient, safe and enjoyable transportation 
choice for short trips,” and to promote nodal, mixed-use community designs that “provide 
walkable access to a mix of destinations to support meeting daily needs.” Amendments to 
Chapter 2 of the RFP include new Objective 11.4, which states the policy of the Metro Council 
to “make bicycling and walking the safest, most convenient and enjoyable transportation choices 
for short trips for all ages and abilities by completing gaps and addressing deficiencies in the 
region’s bicycle and pedestrian networks.” Also, new Objective 11.9 directs Metro to take 
actions to help meet the state reduction targets, including working with federal, state and local 
governments to secure adequate funding for transportation and other investments needed to 
implement the strategy. The RTFP requires local TSPs to do their part in meeting local, regional 
and state transportation needs through system design standards related to Pedestrian and Bicycle 
System Design in Title 1 Sections 3.08.130 and 3.08.140 that will also contribute to changes in 
travel behavior that will help reduce greenhouse gas emissions from light-duty vehicles. 
 
(4)  Make streets and highways safe, reliable and connected. Metro’s RFP amendments are 
consistent with and adequate to carry out this policy of the preferred scenario. The RFP 
amendments add new provisions to Chapter 2 of the RFP for the purpose of implementing this 
policy, including new Objective 11.8, which states the policy of the Metro Council to “invest 
strategically in streets and highways to make them safe, reliable and connected to support the 
movement of people and goods.” Also, new Objective 11.9 directs Metro to take actions to help 
meet the state reduction targets, including working with federal, state and local governments to 



14	  
	  

secure adequate funding for transportation and other investments needed to implement the 
strategy. The RTFP requires local TSPs to do their part in meeting local, regional and state 
transportation needs through system design standards related to Street System Design in Title 1 
Section 3.08.110 that will also contribute to changes in travel behavior that will help reduce 
greenhouse gas emissions from light-duty vehicles. 
 
(5)  Use technology to actively manage the transportation system. Metro’s RFP amendments 
are consistent with and adequate to carry out this policy of the preferred scenario. The RFP 
amendments add new provisions to Chapter 2 of the RFP for the purpose of implementing this 
policy, including new Objective 11.5, which states the policy of the Metro Council to “enhance 
fuel efficiency and system investments and reduce emissions by using technology to actively 
manage and fully optimize the transportation system.” Also, new Objective 11.9 directs Metro to 
take actions to help meet the state reduction targets, including working with federal, state and 
local governments to secure adequate funding for transportation and other investments needed to 
implement the strategy. The Regional Transportation System Management and Operations 
(TSMO) Plan adopted in 2010 as a component of the RTP includes an action plan focused on 
region-wide and mobility corridor-focused investments that will further carry out this policy of 
the preferred scenario. A principal objective of the TSMO plan is more efficient use and 
optimization of the region’s transportation system. The RTFP requires local TSPs to do their part 
in meeting local, regional and state transportation needs through system design standards related 
to Transportation System Management and Operations in Title 1 Section 3.08.160 that will also 
contribute to changes in travel behavior that will help reduce greenhouse gas emissions from 
light-duty vehicles. 
 
(6)  Provide information and incentives to expand the use of travel options. Metro’s RFP 
amendments are consistent with and adequate to carry out this policy of the preferred scenario. 
The RFP amendments add new provisions to Chapter 2 of the RFP for the purpose of 
implementing this policy, including new Objective 11.6, which states the policy of the Metro 
Council to “implement programs, services and other tools that provide commuters, households, 
and businesses with information and incentives to expand the use of travel options, including 
carsharing, and reduce drive alone trips.” Also, new Objective 11.9 directs Metro to take actions 
to help meet the state reduction targets, including working with federal, state and local 
governments to secure adequate funding for transportation and other investments needed to 
implement the strategy. The TSMO Plan for 2010-2025 adopted in 2010 as a component of the 
RTP includes an action plan focused on region-wide and mobility corridor-focused investments 
that will further carry out this policy of the preferred scenario. The TSMO plan includes travel 
demand management strategies such as providing information, individualized marketing, 
employer transportation programs and incentives to expand the use of travel options. A principal 
objective of the TSMO plan is more efficient use and optimization of the region’s transportation 
system. The RTFP requires local TSPs to do their part in meeting local, regional and state 
transportation needs through system design standards related to Transportation System 
Management and Operations in Title 1 Section 3.08.160 that will also contribute to changes in 
travel behavior that will help reduce greenhouse gas emissions from light-duty vehicles. The 
Regional Travel Options Strategic Plan for 2012-2017, adopted in 2011, further implements the 
TSMO plan by providing goals and objectives to guide regional investments in travel options 
programs. 



15	  
	  

 
(7)  Manage parking to make efficient use of vehicle parking and land dedicated to parking 
spaces.  Metro’s RFP amendments are consistent with and adequate to carry out this policy of 
the preferred scenario. The RFP amendments add new provisions to Chapter 2 of the RFP for the 
purpose of implementing this policy, including new Objective 11.7, which states the policy of 
the Metro Council to “implement locally defined approaches to management of parking in 
Centers, Corridors, Station Communities and Main Streets served by frequent transit service and 
active transportation options to make efficient use of vehicle parking and land dedicated to 
parking.” The RTFP requires local TSPs to do their part in meeting local, regional and state 
transportation needs through parking management standards in Title 4 that will also contribute to 
changes in travel behavior that will help reduce greenhouse gas emissions from light-duty 
vehicles.  
 
In addition to the RFP amendments, the legislation adopted by Metro includes a “toolbox” of 
recommended actions developed by the project partners that provides Metro and local 
governments a list of specific steps that may be taken in order to implement the strategy and 
achieve the state-mandated targets. The toolbox is focused on possible near-term actions (within 
the next five years) that may be taken in support of the policies and strategies identified in the 
Climate Smart Strategy. The near-term actions include a combination of existing actions and new 
ideas and approaches that will lay the foundation for longer term action. The toolbox does not 
require Metro, local governments, special districts or state agencies to adopt any particular policy 
or action, and is intended to allow for flexibility so any action can be tailored to best support 
local, regional and state plans and visions. 
 
The RFP amendments directly and expressly support the goals and objectives of each chapter of 
the RFP that they are amending, and are consistent with all other relevant provisions of the RFP. 
As discussed above, the vast majority of the amendments are to Chapter 2 if the RFP, which sets 
forth Metro’s goals and objectives regarding transportation. The RFP amendments add language 
to the introductory section of Chapter 2 explaining that all of the transportation policies in 
Chapter 2 are a “key component of the regional strategy to reduce per capita greenhouse gas 
emissions,” and identifying each of the policy areas that are identified in the Climate Smart 
Strategy as specific objectives of Chapter 2 of the RFP. The entire purpose of the RFP 
amendments is to support a preferred land use and transportation scenario that will meet the state 
targets for greenhouse gas emission reductions. The RFP amendments are not merely 
“consistent” with the RFP, they directly and expressly support the policies, goals, and objectives 
set forth in the land use and transportation components of the RFP. 
 

Performance Measures and Monitoring 
 
Under OAR 660-044-0040(3)(e), the preferred scenario adopted by Metro must include 
“performance measures and targets to monitor and guide implementation of the preferred 
scenario.” There are three basic components of the performance monitoring approach being 
adopted by Metro: (1) amendments to section 7.8.4 of the RFP adding new performance 
measures that Metro must monitor and report on every two years to DLCD as part of existing 
state reporting requirements under ORS 197.301; (2) creation of a new section 7.8.6 of the RFP 
establishing new performance measures that Metro must monitor and assess every four years as 



16	  
	  

part of regularly scheduled updates to the RTP; and (3) specific performance monitoring targets 
identified in the Performance Monitoring Approach (Exhibit D to the ordinance), which 
correspond to each of the key policy elements of the Climate Smart Strategy and overlap with the 
measures included in the RFP chapter 7 amendments – these measures and targets will be 
adopted and incorporated into the RTP as part of the next scheduled update. Each of these three 
components of the performance monitoring approach is addressed below. 
 
(1)  Amendments to RFP section 7.8.4.  In addition to the amendments to Chapters 1 and 2 of 
the RFP discussed above, the RFP amendments also add new provisions to Chapter 7 regarding 
performance measures and monitoring to ensure that specific strategies and actions identified in 
the Climate Smart Strategy are being implemented effectively. The purpose of the performance 
measures and targets is to monitor and assess whether key elements or actions that make up the 
Climate Smart Strategy are being implemented, and whether the strategy is achieving the 
expected outcomes. The performance measures identified for monitoring reflect a combination of 
existing and new performance measures, most of which are drawn from the Regional 
Transportation Plan and the Urban Growth Report to track existing land use and transportation 
policies.  
 
First, the amendments to Chapter 7 of the RFP add the following performance measures to 
section 7.8.4 for purposes of implementing the Climate Smart Strategy by measuring 
performance under Chapters 1-6 of the RFP: 
 

• Vehicle miles traveled 
• Motor vehicle, bicycle and pedestrian fatal and serious injury crashes 
• Transit revenue hours 
• Transit affordability 
• Transit ridership 
• Access to transit 
• Travel time and reliability in regional mobility corridors, including incident clearance 
• Air quality, including PM 2.5 and ozone precursors 

 
The above-stated additions to the performance measures in section 7.8.4 of the RFP are all 
identified in the Performance Monitoring Approach included as part of the adopted Climate 
Smart Strategy (Exhibit D to the ordinance). Under RFP section 7.8.5 and ORS 197.301, these 
new measures must be monitored by Metro and reported on to DLCD every two years as part of 
Metro’s compliance reporting obligation under ORS 197.301, which is the existing process for 
monitoring Metro’s growth management work under ORS chapter 197. This is the approach 
specifically identified by LCDC under OAR 660-044-0060 for purposes of monitoring Metro’s 
progress in implementing the preferred scenario. This monitoring and reporting also informs 
Metro’s internal analysis under RFP section 7.9 regarding the effectiveness of the RFP and the 
need for updates to RFP policies. Unlike the new RFP section 7.8.6 performance measures 
discussed below, reporting on the measures under section 7.8.4 is an administrative function of 
the Metro COO that does not require review or adoption of findings by the Metro Council.  
 
(2)  New RFP section 7.8.6.  Next, the RFP amendments also include a new section 7.8.6, which 
creates separate performance monitoring and reporting requirements for key elements of the 



17	  
	  

Climate Smart Strategy as part of each federally required update to the RTP. The new 
performance measures in RFP section 7.8.6 will require the Metro Council to adopt findings 
addressing compliance with these measures every four years as part of the recurring RTP 
amendment process:  
 

“7.8.6   In addition to the measures identified in 7.8.4, monitor the following 
performance measures as part of federally required updates to the Regional 
Transportation Plan to assess whether key strategies or actions that make up the 
regional strategy for reducing greenhouse gas emissions from light-duty vehicles are 
being implemented: 
 

a. Households living in walkable, mixed-use areas; 
b. Light duty vehicle greenhouse gas emissions; 
c. Household transportation and housing cost burden; 
d. Registered light duty vehicles by fuel/energy source; 
e. Workforce participation in employer-based commuter programs; 
f. Household participation in individualized marketing programs; 
g. Bicycle and pedestrian miles traveled; 
h. Bikeways, sidewalks and trails completed; 
i. Parking management.” 

 
As part of each federally required update to the RTP, Metro is required to make an air quality 
conformance determination regarding the region’s compliance with Clean Air Act requirements. 
In addition to monitoring progress on implementing the preferred scenario through findings 
addressing the above-stated measures and associated targets, Metro’s future RTP updates will 
also include an assessment of the region’s progress in meeting state targets for greenhouse gas 
reductions as part of the air quality conformity analysis. If that analysis indicates that the Metro 
region is not meeting state targets, Metro will assess the extent to which the region is not 
performing under specific performance measures and will work with state, regional and local 
partners to consider corrective actions to revise or replace existing policies, strategies, and 
actions to ensure that the region can meet state targets for greenhouse gas reduction.  
 
(3)  Performance Monitoring Targets in Exhibit D.  In addition to the amendments to RFP 
Chapter 7 discussed above, the Climate Smart Strategy includes a Performance Monitoring 
Approach set forth in Exhibit D to Ordinance No. 14-1346B. The Performance Monitoring 
Approach provides specific measures, baselines, and targets for use in determining how progress 
on implementing the key policy areas of the Climate Smart Strategy will be monitored going 
forward. Exhibit D consists of a table that identifies each of the key policy areas that constitute 
the adopted Climate Smart Strategy, with corresponding performance measures and performance 
monitoring targets for each of the individual measures. These performance monitoring measures 
and targets will be incorporated into the RTP as part of the next scheduled RTP update in 2018. 
The measures and targets will be reviewed before being incorporated into the RTP and may be 
refined at that time to address new information, such as federal MAP-21 requirements related to 
performance-based long-range transportation planning and recommendations from Metro’s 
Equity Strategy.   
 



18	  
	  

Performance measures and monitoring targets have been identified for all of the key assumptions 
included in the Climate Smart Strategy. Several of the measures listed in the Performance 
Monitoring Approach that are not related to key assumptions do not have specific performance 
monitoring targets, and instead include a notation that “a methodology for tracking progress will 
be developed in the 2018 update.” As part of developing the 2018 RTP update, Metro will adopt 
a methodology for tracking progress on each of the listed measures and will also apply that 
methodology to evaluate and report on progress regarding those performance measures as part of 
the 2018 RTP update. 
 
The process for monitoring the adopted Climate Smart Strategy is described in OAR 660-044-
0060. As described in that rule, Metro will monitor the region’s progress in meeting the adopted 
measures and targets as part of the DLCD compliance reports that Metro is required to submit 
every two years under ORS 197.301. Metro’s report will assess whether the region is making 
satisfactory progress in implementing the preferred scenario, identify any reasons for lack of 
progress, and identify possible corrective actions to make satisfactory progress. Monitoring 
progress in meeting the adopted Climate Smart Strategy measures and performance monitoring 
targets will also occur on regular four and six year cycles as part of Metro’s regularly scheduled 
updates to the UGR and RTP. If Metro and/or LCDC determine that satisfactory progress is not 
being made in meeting the targets, Metro will work with local, regional and state partners to 
consider the revision or replacement of policies, strategies, and actions to ensure the region 
remains on track with meeting state targets for reducing greenhouse gas emissions.    
 

(d)  Explain how the preferred scenario is or will be made consistent with other 
applicable statewide planning goals or rules. 

 
Finding:  The preferred scenario set forth in the Climate Smart Strategy is consistent with the 
potentially applicable statewide planning goals as described below.   
 
Goal 1 (Citizen Involvement): Metro followed the provisions in its charter for adoption of 
ordinances and has coordinated extensively with all local governments in the Metro region over 
the last four years. Metro staff has reviewed and responded substantively to all public comments 
received regarding the proposed strategy and incorporated many proposed changes into the 
strategy and supporting documents in response to those comments.  The Metro Council 
concludes that adoption of Ordinance No. 14-1346B complies with Goal 1. 
 
Goal 2 (Adequate Factual Base):  The Metro Council concludes that the Staff Report and the 
voluminous amount of information in the record that has been generated over the last four years 
of study is being relied upon to support the Climate Smart Strategy and provides an adequate 
factual base for this decision, as described above in these findings. Metro coordinated 
extensively in the adoption of the strategy with all cities and counties in the region, ODOT, 
TriMet and other stakeholders affected by the decision. The Metro Council concludes that 
adoption of Ordinance No. 14-1346B complies with Goal 2.  
 
Goal 12 (Transportation):  Goal 12 requires local governments to “provide and encourage a 
safe, convenient and economic transportation system.” Goal 12 itself includes few substantive 
requirements, and is implemented by the transportation planning rule (TPR) enacted by LCDC in 



19	  
	  

OAR chapter 660, division 12. The TPR requires ODOT, Metro, cities and counties to adopt 
state, regional, and local transportation system plans. A primary purpose of the rule is to create a 
better connection between land use plans and transportation plans. The rule also addresses the 
need to provide transportation facilities to move people and goods throughout regions of the 
state, and the need to protect those facilities for their intended functions and capacities.  

 
The primary requirements of Goal 12 and the TPR as they apply to Metro are that the Regional 
Transportation Plan (RTP) must provide for a transportation system that is adequate to serve 
planned land uses and that is consistent with adopted state transportation plans. Metro recently 
adopted amendments to the RTP in July 2014 as part of the regular four-year update for purposes 
of demonstrating compliance with the federal Clean Air Act. Those amendments included 
findings demonstrating that the 2014 RTP is consistent with Goal 12 and the TPR.  
 
The amendments being adopted as part of the Climate Smart Strategy to the transportation 
element in Chapter 2 of the RFP also require conforming amendments to the goals and objectives 
listed in Chapter 2 of the RTP, which sets forth the same list of goals and objectives for the 
region. As stated in Ordinance No. 14-1346B, the RFP Chapter 2 amendments “are 
incorporated” into Chapter 2 of the RTP as part of the adoption of the Climate Smart Strategy.   
 
As described above in Section B of these findings, the RFP Chapter 2 amendments create a new 
Goal 11, which is titled “Demonstrate leadership on reducing greenhouse gas emissions.” Goal 
11 provides that it is the policy of the Metro Council to implement a regional strategy to meet 
adopted targets for reducing greenhouse gas emissions from light vehicle travel while creating 
healthy and equitable communities and a strong economy. Goal 11 includes 10 new objectives 
designed to implement the specific policies adopted as part of the Climate Smart Strategy. The 
stated purpose of the new objectives is to continue implementing existing state, regional and 
local plans in ways that will decrease reliance on the automobile, while also continuing to “invest 
strategically in streets and highways to make them safe, reliable and connected to support the 
movement of people and goods.” The Metro Council finds that these policies and objectives are 
necessary to satisfy state law regarding reductions in greenhouse has emissions, and are 
consistent with Goal 12 and the TPR, the purpose of which is to “provide and encourage a safe, 
convenient and economic transportation system.”   

 
Goal 14 (Urbanization):  Goal 14 directs local governments to accommodate urban population 
and employment inside urban growth boundaries, ensure the efficient use of land, and provide 
for livable communities. The Climate Smart Strategy adopted by Ordinance No. 14-1346B 
includes minor amendments to the land use component in Chapter 1 of the RFP that are intended 
to reduce reliance on the automobile by encouraging building patterns that will promote biking, 
walking, and use of transit. These amendments are consistent with the directives of Goal 14 to 
ensure efficient use of land inside the UGB and provide for livable communities.  
 
 



	  
This page left blank for printing purposes.



 

Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 1 
  

STAFF REPORT 
 
 

IN CONSIDERATION OF ORDINANCE NO. 14-1346B, FOR THE PURPOSE OF 
ADOPTING A CLIMATE SMART STRATEGY AND AMENDING THE REGIONAL 
FRAMEWORK PLAN TO COMPLY WITH STATE LAW 

              
 
Date: December 9, 2014  Prepared by: Kim Ellis, Principal Transportation Planner, 

Planning and Development Department, 503-797-1617 
 
BACKGROUND 

The Climate Smart Communities Scenarios Project responds to a 2009 mandate from the Oregon 
Legislature for Metro to develop and implement a strategy to reduce per capita greenhouse gas emissions 
from cars and small trucks by 2035. Metro is the regional government serving a population of 1.5 million 
people in the Portland metropolitan region. In that role, Metro has been working together with regional 
technical and policy advisory committees and community, business and elected leaders across the region 
to shape the Climate Smart Strategy and supporting implementation recommendations in this ordinance. 
Adoption of this ordinance satisfies the 2009 legislative mandate and subsequent requirements adopted by 
the Land Conservation and Development Commission (LCDC) in 2011 and 2012 under Oregon 
Administrative Rule 660-044.  

This ordinance forwards recommendations from the Metro Policy Advisory Committee (MPAC) and the 
Joint Policy Advisory Committee on Transportation (JPACT) to the Metro Council on adopting a 
preferred land use and transportation scenario under OAR 660-044-0040.  The Climate Smart Strategy 
contained in the ordinance achieves a 29 percent reduction in per capita greenhouse gas emissions from 
light duty vehicles and provides significant community, public health, environmental and economic 
benefits to communities and the region. The strategy builds on and supports adopted local and regional 
plans and visions for healthy and equitable communities and a strong economy. It also demonstrates that 
the Portland metropolitan region is already a leader in planning for lower greenhouse gas emissions from 
transportation. 

Metro Council action through Ordinance No. 14-1346B adopts a preferred land use and transportation 
scenario under OAR-044-0040 and directs staff to develop and submit a final report with the decision 
record to LCDC in the manner of periodic review. The ordinance also directs staff to begin scoping the 
work plan for the next update to the Regional Transportation Plan, which will serve as a major vehicle for 
implementing the preferred scenario under OAR 660-044-0040. 

LEGISLATIVE BACKGROUND 

Since 2006, Oregon has initiated a number of actions to respond to mounting scientific evidence that 
shows the earth’s climate is changing, indicating a long-term commitment to significantly reduce GHG 
emissions in Oregon.  

In 2007 the Oregon Legislature established statewide greenhouse gas emissions reduction goals through 
House Bill 3543. The goals apply to all emission sectors − energy production, buildings, solid waste and 
transportation − and direct Oregon to: 

• stop increases in GHG emissions by 2010 

• reduce GHG emissions to 10 percent below 1990 levels by 2020 

• reduce GHG emissions to at least 75 percent below 1990 levels by 2050. 



 

Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 2 
  

In 2009, the Oregon Legislature passed House Bill 2001, the Jobs and Transportation Act (JTA). Section 
37 of the Act requires Metro to develop two or more alternative land use and transportation scenarios 
designed to accommodate population and job growth anticipated by 2035 and reduce GHG emissions 
from light vehicles. Section 37 of the Act requires Metro to adopt a preferred scenario after public review 
and consultation with local governments in the Portland metropolitan region and calls for local 
governments to implement the adopted scenario. 

In addition, the JTA increased vehicle-related fees and the state gas tax, and included $960 million for 14 
projects identified by local governments in eastern Oregon and 37 specific highway projects across 
Oregon, including construction of Phase 1 of the Sunrise Corridor (Units 1-3) in Clackamas County, 
widening US 26 and improvements to US 26 interchanges at Shute and Glencoe roads in Washington 
County, and reconstruction of the OR 43/Sellwood Bridge interchange in Multnomah County, the I-5/I-
205 interchange in Tualatin, the I-205/OR 213 interchange in Oregon City, and the I-84/257th Avenue 
interchange in Troutdale. The JTA also included an additional $100 million for the Connect Oregon III 
program that is building rail, port, transit and aviation projects across the state. 

In 2010, the Metro Council adopted the 2035 Regional Transportation Plan (RTP) and directed staff to 
conduct greenhouse gas scenario planning consistent with the JTA. In the same year, the Council also 
adopted six desired outcomes for the region to reflect a shared vision to develop vibrant, prosperous and 
sustainable communities with safe and reliable transportation choices that minimize greenhouse gas 
emissions and equitably distribute the benefits and costs of development. 

To guide Metro’s scenario planning work, the LCDC adopted the Metropolitan Greenhouse Gas 
Reduction Targets Rule (Oregon Administrative Rule 660-044) in May 2011. As required by section 37 
of the JTA, OAR 660-044-0020 identifies GHG emissions reduction targets for 2035 for each of 
Oregon’s six metropolitan areas. The targets identify the percentage reduction in per capita GHG 
emissions from light vehicle travel that is needed to help Oregon meet its GHG emissions reduction goals 
for 2050.  

The LCDC target-setting process assumed anticipated changes to the vehicle fleet mix, improved fuel 
economy, and the use of improved vehicle technologies and low carbon fuels that would reduce 2005 
emissions levels from 4.05 to 1.5 MT CO2e per capita by 2035. The adopted target for the Portland 
metropolitan region calls for a 20 percent per capita reduction in GHG emissions from light vehicle travel 
by 2035. This target reduction is in addition to the emissions reductions anticipated from changes to the 
fleet and technology sectors as identified in the Agencies’ Technical Report. Therefore, to meet the target, 
per capita roadway GHG emissions must be reduced by an additional 20 percent below the 1.5 MT CO2e 
per capita by 2035 to 1.2 MT CO2e per capita. The adopted target for the region is the equivalent of 1.2 
MT CO2e per capita by 2035.  

In 2012, the LCDC amended OAR 660-044-0040 to further direct Metro to evaluate a reference case that 
reflects implementation of existing adopted comprehensive and transportation plans and at least two 
alternative land use and transportation scenarios that accommodate planned growth while achieving a 
reduction in greenhouse gas emissions from light vehicles. The amendments also directed Metro on the 
evaluation and selection of a preferred land use and transportation scenario by December 31, 2014. 

CLIMATE SMART COMMUNITIES SCENARIOS PROJECT 

Since 1995, Metro and its partners have collaborated to help communities realize their local aspirations 
while moving the region toward its goals for making a great place: vibrant communities, economic 
prosperity, transportation choices, equity, clean air and water, and leadership on climate change. Local 
and regional efforts to implement the 2040 Growth Concept provided a solid foundation for the GHG 
scenario planning work required of the region. 



 

Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 3 
  

The Portland metropolitan region conducted scenario planning in three phases through the Climate Smart 
Communities Scenarios Project (Scenarios Project). The project was designed to implement the 2010 
Council actions, demonstrate leadership on climate change, maximize achievement of all six of the 
region’s desired outcomes, support adopted local and regional plans, and satisfy requirements in Section 
37 of the JTA and OAR 660-044.  

Figure 1 shows the project timeline. 

Figure	  1.	  Climate	  Smart	  Communities	  Project	  Timeline 

2011
Phase 1

2013 – 14
Phase 3

choices
Shaping 
choices

Shaping and
adoption of 
Climate Smart 
Strategy

Jan. 2012
Accept 
findings

 
 

Dec. 2014
Adopt Climate 
Smart Strategy

Climate Smart Communities Scenarios Project timeline

Direction on
Climate Smart 
Strategy

Understanding

June 2013
Direction on
alternative
scenarios 

2012 – 13
Phase 2

June 2014

	  

Working together with city, county, state, business and community leaders, Metro researched how land 
use and transportation policies and investments can be leveraged to create healthy and equitable 
communities and a strong economy and meet state adopted targets for reducing greenhouse gas emissions. 
The adopted land use plans and zoning of cities and counties across the region served as the foundation 
for the scenarios tested throughout the project, with a goal of creating a diverse yet shared vision of how 
to make this region a great place for all communities today and for generations to come – and meet state 
greenhouse gas emissions targets.  

Metro led this process in consultation and coordination with federal, state and local governments, and 
engagement of other stakeholders with an interest in or who are affected by this planning effort. Metro 
facilitated this consultation and coordination through four advisory committee bodies—the Joint Policy 
Advisory Committee on Transportation (JPACT), the Metro Policy Advisory Committee (MPAC), the 
Transportation Policy Alternatives Committee (TPAC) and the Metro Technical Advisory Committee 
(MTAC).  

The project relied on this existing regional decision-making structure for development, review and 
adoption of the plan. MPAC, JPACT and the Metro Council made recommendations at key decision 
points based on input from TPAC, MTAC and the public participation process. A technical work group of 
members from MTAC and TPAC was formed to assist Metro staff with the development of work 
products, provide technical advice and assist with engaging local government officials and senior staff 
throughout the process.  



 

Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 4 
  

PHASE 1: UNDERSTANDING OUR LAND USE AND TRANSPORTATION CHOICES (JAN. 
2011 TO JAN. 2012) 

Phase 1 began in 2011 and concluded in early 2012. This phase 
focused on understanding the region’s choices and produced the 
Strategy Toolbox, a comprehensive review of the latest research on 
greenhouse gas reduction strategies and their potential effectiveness 
and benefits. Staff also engaged public officials, community and 
business leaders, community groups and government staff through 
two regional summits, 31 stakeholder interviews, and public opinion 
research.  

In addition, Metro evaluated a wide range of options for reducing 
greenhouse gas emissions by testing 144 different combinations of 
land use and transportation strategies to learn what it would take to 
meet the region’s reduction target by 2035. Strategies we organized 
into six policy areas:	  

• Community	  design	  

• Pricing	  

• Marketing	  and	  incentives	  

• Roads	  

• Fleet	  

• Technology	  

Each of these policies areas included individual strategies that 
national research has shown to affect greenhouse gas emissions. 
Metro staff used a regionally tailored version of the Oregon 
Department of Transportation (ODOT) Greenhouse Gas State 
Transportation Emissions Planning (GreenSTEP) model to conduct 
the scenario analysis – the same model used by state agencies to set 
the region’s greenhouse gas emissions reduction target and ODOT 
develop the Statewide Transportation Strategy for reducing 
greenhouse gas emissions. GreenSTEP accounts for the synergies 
between the policy areas and other variables, including vehicle miles 
traveled, fuel consumption, fleet mix, vehicle technology, amount of 
transit service and road expansion provided and the location of 
forecasted future growth.  

The initial scenario analysis found more than 90 of the 144 scenarios 
tested met or exceeded the target. The findings are summarized in 
Understanding Our Land Use and Transportation Choices: Phase 1 
Findings (January 2012).	  

The Phase 1 findings indicated that current adopted plans and policies 
– if realized – along with state assumptions related to advancements 
in cleaner, low carbon fuels and more fuel-efficient vehicle 
technologies, including electric and other alternative fuel vehicles, 
provide a strong foundation for meeting the state target. Although 

Understanding	  Our	  Land	  Use	  and	  
Transportation	  Choices	  	  
Phase	  1	  concluded	  adopted	  plans	  
provide	  a	  strong	  foundation	  for	  reducing	  
greenhouse	  gas	  emissions	  and	  that	  a	  
key	  to	  meeting	  state	  target	  would	  be	  
developing	  public	  and	  private	  
partnerships	  to	  invest	  in	  communities	  in	  
ways	  that	  support	  local	  community	  and	  
economic	  development	  goals.	  

Strategy	  Toolbox	  
Staff	  completed	  a	  
comprehensive	  review	  of	  the	  
latest	  research	  on	  greenhouse	  
gas	  reduction	  strategies	  and	  
their	  potential	  effectiveness	  
and	  benefits.	  



 

Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 5 
  

current plans move the region in the right direction, current funding is not sufficient to implement adopted 
local and regional plans. As a result, the region concluded that a key to meeting the target would be the 
various governmental agencies working together to develop public and private partnerships to invest in 
communities in ways that support adopted local and regional plans and reduce greenhouse gas emissions. 

PHASE 2: SHAPING OUR LAND USE AND TRANSPORTATION CHOICES (JAN. 2012 – OCT. 
2013) 

Phase 2 began in January 2012 and concluded in October 2013. This phase focused on shaping and 
evaluating future choices for supporting community visions and meeting the state GHG emissions 
reduction target. Staff conducted a sensitivity analysis of the policy areas tested during Phase 1 to better 
understand the GHG emissions reduction potential of individual strategies within each policy area.1 The 
policies tested included pay-as-you-drive insurance, use of technology to actively manage the 
transportation system, expanded transit service, user-based pricing of transportation, transportation 
demand management programs, increased bicycle travel, carsharing and advancements in clean fuels and 
vehicle technologies.  

Assuming adopted community plans and national fuel economy standards, the most effective individual 
policies for reducing greenhouse gas emissions were found to be: 

• Fleet and technology advancements 

• Transit service expansion 

• User-based pricing of transportation (e.g., fuel price, pay-as-you-drive insurance, parking fees, 
mileage-based road use fee, and carbon fee)  

The information derived from the sensitivity analysis was used to develop a simplified five-star rating 
system for communicating the relative climate benefit of different policies. The potential reductions found 
for each individual policy area, and the star rating assigned, represent the potential effect of individual 
policy areas in isolation and do not capture greenhouse gas emissions reductions that may occur from 
synergies between multiple policies if implemented together.  

It should be noted that the potential reductions achieved from increased walking and biking are likely 
underestimated due to known limitations with GreenSTEP.2 It is also important to note that while some 
strategies did not individually achieve significant greenhouse gas emissions reductions, such as increasing 
biking or walking mode share or participation in marketing and incentives programs, they remain 
important elements to complement more effective strategies such as transit service expansion and 
building walkable downtowns and main streets as called for in adopted community plans and visions.  

Metro also undertook an extensive consultation process by sharing the Phase 1 findings with cities, 
counties, county-level coordinating committees, regional advisory committees and state commissions. 
Staff also regularly convened a local government staff technical working group throughout 2012. The 
work group continued to provide technical advice to Metro staff, and assistance with engaging local 
government officials and senior staff.  

                                                
1 Memo to TPAC and interested parties on Climate Smart Communities: Phase 1 Metropolitan GreenSTEP 
scenarios sensitivity analysis (June 21, 2012). 
2 Metro staff used a regionally tailored version of ODOT’s Greenhouse Gas State Transportation Emissions 
Planning (GreenSTEP) model to conduct the analysis. ODOT is currently working on enhancements to GreenSTEP 
to better account for pedestrian travel and address other limitations identified through the Climate Smart 
Communities Scenarios Project and development of the Statewide Transportation Strategy. 



 

Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 6 
  

In addition, Metro convened workshops with community 
leaders working to advance public health, social equity, 
environmental justice and environmental protection in the 
region. A series of discussion groups were also held in 
partnership with developers and business associations 
across the region. More than 100 community and business 
leaders participated in the workshops and discussion groups 
from summer 2012 to winter 2013.  

Eight case studies were produced to spotlight local 
government success stories related to strategies 
implemented to achieve their local community visions that 
also help to reduce greenhouse gas emissions. A video of 
local elected officials and other community and business 
leaders was produced as another tool for sharing 
information about the project and the range of strategies 
being considered.  

Through these efforts, the Metro Council and regional 
advisory committees concluded that the region’s 2040 
Growth Concept and the locally adopted land use and 
transportation plans that implement the growth concept 
should be the starting point for further scenario development and analysis.  

Figure 2 summarizes the three approaches evaluated in summer 2013. Each scenario was distinguished 
by an assumption of progressively higher levels of investment in adopted local and regional plans. 
	  
Figure	  2.	  Three	  approaches	  that	  were	  evaluated	  in	  2013	  

Scenario))

A)
RECENT TRENDS 
This scenario shows the results of implementing adopted plans 
to the extent possible with existing revenue. 
 

ADOPTED PLANS 
This scenario shows the results of successfully implementing 
adopted land use and transportation plans and achieving the 
current RTP, which relies on increased revenue. 

NEW PLANS & POLICIES 
This scenario shows the results of pursuing new policies, more 
investment and new revenue sources to more fully achieve 
adopted and emerging plans. 

Scenario))

B)
Scenario))

C)
	  

A set of criteria were developed through the Phase 2 engagement process that would be used to evaluate 
and compare the scenarios considering costs and benefits across public health, environmental, economic 
and social equity outcomes. As unanimously recommended by MPAC and JPACT, Council approved a 
resolution on June 6, 2013 directing staff to move forward into the analysis and report back with the 
results in fall 2013.  

More	  than	  100	  community	  and	  business	  
leaders	  participated	  in	  the	  workshops	  and	  
discussion	  groups	  that	  informed	  
development	  of	  three	  scenarios	  to	  test	  and	  
the	  criteria	  that	  would	  be	  used	  to	  evaluate	  
and	  compare	  them.	  



 

Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 7 
  

PHASE 3: DEVELOPMENT AND SELECTION OF THE CLIMATE SMART STRATEGY 
(OCT. 2013 – DEC. 2014) 

Phase 3, the final phase of the process, began in October 2013 with 
release of the Phase 2 analysis results. The results demonstrated that 
the Portland metropolitan region is already a leader in planning for 
lower greenhouse gas emissions from transportation. Implementation of 
the 2040 Growth Concept and locally-adopted zoning, land use and 
transportation plans and policies make the state-mandated greenhouse 
gas emissions reduction target achievable – if the region is able to make 
the investments and take the actions needed to implement those plans. 
Scenario A fell short of the state mandated target, achieving a 12 
percent reduction in per capita greenhouse gas emissions. Scenario B 
achieved a 24 percent reduction and Scenario C achieved a 36 percent 
reduction. 

The analysis also demonstrated there are potentially significant long-
term benefits that can be realized by implementing adopted plans 
(Scenario B) and new policies and plans (Scenario C), including cleaner 
air, improved public health and safety, reduced congestion and delay 
and travel cost savings that come from driving more fuel efficient 
vehicles and traveling shorter distances. Part of the analysis was 
conducted by the Oregon Health Authority through the Community 
Climate Choices Health Impact Assessment (HIA). The HIA built on 
a rapid HIA completed on a representative set of scenarios from Phase 
1 and represents groundbreaking work to provide the region’s 
decision-makers with information about how the three scenarios may 
affect the health of people in the region before a final decision is 
made. The HIA found significant public health benefits from 
investments that increase physical activity, reduce air pollution and improve traffic safety. 3 

The Phase 2 analysis demonstrated that if the region continues investing in transportation at current levels 
(as reflected in Scenario A) the region will fall short of the state greenhouse gas emissions reduction 
target and other outcomes the region is working together to achieve – healthy and equitable communities, 
clean air and water, transportation choices, and a strong economy.  

Release of the Phase 2 findings in October 2013 initiated Phase 3 and a regional discussion aimed at 
identifying which policies, investments and actions should be included in the Climate Smart Strategy.  

SHAPING THE CLIMATE SMART STRATEGY IN 2014 

In February 2014, MPAC and JPACT approved moving forward to shape and recommend a Climate 
Smart Strategy for the Metro Council to adopt by the end of 2014. As recommended by both policy 
committees, development of the key components of the Climate Smart Strategy began with the adopted 
2040 Growth Concept, the 2014 Regional Transportation Plan (RTP) and the adopted plans of the 
region’s cities and counties including local zoning, capital improvement, comprehensive and 
transportation system plans. During this time, the RTP was in the process of being updated to reflect 
changes to local, regional and state investment priorities, which were different from what was studied in 
Scenario B and Scenario C during Phase 2. 

                                                
3 The Community Choices Health Impact Assessment is available to download at www.healthoregon.org/hia. 

Community	  Choices	  Health	  Impact	  
Assessment	  
The	  Community	  Climate	  Choices	  
HIA	  was	  conducted	  to	  provide	  
health	  information	  and	  evidence-‐
based	  recommendations	  to	  inform	  
the	  selection	  of	  a	  final	  scenario.	  	  
	  



 

Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 8 
  

From January to April 2014, Metro facilitated a Community 
Choices discussion to explore policy priorities and possible trade-
offs. The activities built upon earlier public engagement to solicit 
feedback from public officials, business and community leaders, 
interested members of the public and other identified audiences. 
Interviews, discussion groups, and statistically valid public opinion 
research were used to gather input that was presented at a joint 
meeting of MPAC and JPACT on April 11, 2014. In addition, more 
detailed information about the policy areas under consideration was 
provided in a discussion guide, including estimated costs, potential 
benefits and impacts, and a comparison of the relative climate 
benefits and cost of six policy areas.4  

The six policy areas discussed at the joint meeting are: 

• Make transit convenient, frequent, accessible and 
affordable 

• Use technology to actively manage the transportation 
system 

• Provide information and incentives to expand the use of 
travel options 

• Make biking and walking safe and convenient 

• Make streets and highways safe, reliable and connected 

• Manage parking to make efficient use of vehicle parking and land dedicated to parking spaces 

After receiving additional information about the policy options and previous engagement activities, 
MPAC and JPACT discussed the six policy areas contained within the Scenarios A, B and C. The April 
11 meeting concluded with a straw poll conducted of members to identify the desired levels of investment 
to assume in the region’s draft Climate Smart Strategy using a scale of 1 to 7, with 1 representing the 
level of investment in Scenario A and 7 representing the level of investment in Scenario C.  

Figure 3 summarizes the results of the straw poll. 

                                                
4 Shaping the Preferred Approach: A Policymakers Discussion Guide is available to download from the 
project website at www.oregonmetro.gov/climatescenarios 

Discussion	  guide	  for	  policymakers	  	  
The	  guide	  summarized	  the	  results	  
of	  the	  Phase	  2	  analysis	  and	  public	  
input	  received	  through	  the	  
Community	  Choices	  engagement	  
activities.	  
	  



 

Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 9 
  

Figure	  3.	  April	  11	  MPAC/JPACT	  Straw	  Poll	  Results	  

!!"

#"

!"

$"

%"

&"

'"

("

)"

!*"+,-./01" $*"+234.56578" %*"+,-926":.;5" &*"<3=92"+,-./*"
>21?5,@"

'*"A6-..2B"C1*DE?8*"
>21?5,@"

(*"F-.-72"A-,@0.7"

!"#$%&''&()!*+,-)!*&./#01&"2%%&#345%/4&
)#363#37834&62#&.8370#$24&!9&:9&*&&07;&$7<:3/1337&.8370#$24&

*&

:&

!&

<92,-72/"5;"-66",2/G5.B2.1/"HI2-.JK"

4.9 6.0   3.9   4.3  3.9 4.8 

+,-./01" +234.56578" +,-926"
:.;5,I-=5."
A,57,-I/"

A6-..2B"<3=92"
+,-./G5,1-=5."

>21?5,@"

A6-..2B"
C1,221"-.B"
E074?-8"
>21?5,@"

A-,@0.7"
F-.-72I2.1"

	  

Between April 11 and May 30, the Metro Council and staff engaged local governments and other 
stakeholders on the straw poll results, primarily through the county-level coordinating committees and 
regional technical and policy advisory committees. On May 12, a MTAC/TPAC workshop was held to 
begin shaping a recommendation to JPACT and MPAC on a draft Climate Smart Strategy, factoring cost, 
the region’s six desired outcomes, the April 11 straw poll results, and other input received from the public 
and county-level coordinating committees. MTAC and TPAC further refined their recommendation to 
JPACT and MPAC on May 21 and May 23, respectively. The refinements included more directly 
connecting their recommendations on the draft strategy to the 2014 RTP in anticipation of the plan’s 
adoption on July 17, 2014.  

On May 30, a joint meeting of the MPAC and JPACT was held to review additional cost information, 
public input, the April 11 straw poll results and recommendations from MTAC and TPAC on a draft 
approach for testing. After discussion of each recommendation, the committees took a poll to confirm the 
levels of investment to assume in the region’s draft strategy – using a scale of 1 to 7, with 1 representing 
the level of investment in Scenario A and 7 representing the level of investment in Scenario C.  

At the end of the meeting, both policy committees unanimously recommended forwarding the results of 
the May 30 poll to the Metro Council as the draft strategy recommended for staff to study during the 
summer, 2014. The poll results are summarized in Figure 4. 



 

Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 10 
 

Figure	  4.	  May	  30	  MPAC/JPACT	  poll	  results	  on	  levels	  of	  investment	  in	  the	  draft	  strategy	  recommended	  
for	  testing	  

 

On June 19, 2014, the Metro Council directed staff to evaluate the draft strategy as recommended by 
MPAC and JPACT on May 30, 2014. The draft strategy recommended for study includes the following 
assumptions: 

• Growth - Adopted local and regional land use plans, including the 2040 Growth Concept, as 
assumed in the 2035 growth distribution adopted by the Metro Council in 2012 through Metro 
Ordinance No. 12-1292A. 5 

• State and federal actions related to advancements in fuels and vehicle fleet and technologies 
- Assumptions used by the state when adopting the region’s reduction target to account for 
anticipated state and federal actions related to advancements in cleaner, low carbon fuels and 
more fuel-efficient vehicle technologies, including electric and alternative fuel vehicles6 

• Transportation investments - Local and regional investment priorities adopted in the 2014 
Regional Transportation Plan (RTP) on July 17, 2014 to address current and future transportation 
needs in the region, including: 

o the financially constrained 2014 RTP level of investment for streets, highways and active 
transportation 

                                                
5 The adopted 2035 growth distribution reflects locally adopted comprehensive plans and zoning as of 2010 and 
assumes an estimated 12,000 acres of urban growth boundary expansion by 2035. Metro’s assumption about UGB 
expansion is not intended as a land use decision authorizing an amendment through this ordinance.  Instead, the 
assumption about UGB expansion is included for purposes of analysis to assure that UGB expansion – if 
subsequently adopted by Metro and approved by LCDC – would be consistent with regional efforts to reduce 
greenhouse gas emissions. Review of any UGB expansion will occur through the UGB Amendment process 
provided for by ORS 197.626(a) and OAR Chapter 660, Division 24.	  
6 The assumptions were developed based on the best available information and current estimates about 
improvements in vehicle technologies and fuels and will be reviewed by LCDC in 2015. 



 

Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 11 
 

o the financially constrained 2014 RTP assumptions for parking management, which link 
varying levels of parking management to the availability of high capacity transit, frequent 
bus service and active transportation in 2040 centers 

o the full 2014 RTP level of investment for transit service and related capital improvements 
needed to support increased service levels to be able to more fully implement community 
and regional transit service identified in transit service plans 

o the full 2014 RTP level of investment for transportation system management and 
operations technologies to actively manage the transportation system and reduce delay 

o a higher level of investment than assumed in the full 2014 RTP for travel information and 
incentive programs to increase carpooling, bicycling, walking and use of transit. 

Metro staff worked with the project’s technical work group over the summer to develop modeling 
assumptions to reflect the draft strategy. Attachment 1 provides a summary of the key planning 
assumptions studied in the draft strategy. 

Staff completed the evaluation in August, 2014. Analyses show the draft strategy, if implemented, 
achieves a 29 percent per capita reduction in greenhouse gas emissions as shown in Figure 5. But the 
draft approach does more than just meet the target. It will deliver significant environmental and economic 
benefits to communities and the region, including: 

• Less air pollution and run-
off of vehicle fluids 
means fewer 
environmental costs. This 
helps save money that can 
be spent on other 
priorities. 

• Spending less time in 
traffic and reduced delay 
on the system saves 
businesses money, 
supports job creation, and 
promotes the efficient 
movement of goods and a 
strong regional economy. 

• Households save money 
by driving more fuel-
efficient vehicles fewer 
miles and walking, biking 
and using transit more. 

• Reducing the share of 
household expenditures for 
vehicle travel helps 
household budgets and 
allows people to spend 
money on other priorities; 
this is particularly important 
for households of modest means.  

Figure	  5.	  Estimated	  greenhouse	  gas	  emissions	  reduction	  from	  
implementation	  of	  the	  Climate	  Smart	  Strategy	  
	  

R E D U C E D  G R E E N H O U S E  G A S  E M I S S I O N S
P E R C E N T  B E L O W  2 0 0 5  L E V E L S

STATE MANDATED 
TARGET

SCENARIO A
R E C E N T  
T R E N D S

SCENARIO B
A D O P T E D  

P L A N S

SCENARIO C
N E W  P L A N S
&  P O L I C I E S

C L I M A T E  
S M A R T  

S T R A T E G Y

12%

24%

36%

29%The reduction target is 
from 2005 emissions 
levels after reductions 
expected from cleaner 
fuels and more fuel-

20% REDUCTION BY 2035



 

Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 12 
 

In addition, the Oregon Health Authority completed a third health 
impact assessment to evaluate the health impacts of the strategy. 
The assessment found that the investments in land use and 
transportation under consideration in the strategy not only protect 
health by reducing the risks of climate change, they will also 
deliver significant public health benefits to communities and the 
region, including: 

• reduced air pollution and increased physical activity can help 
reduce illness and save lives 

• reducing the number of miles driven results in fewer traffic 
fatalities and severe injuries. 

The HIA also monetized expected public health benefits to help 
demonstrate the economic benefits that can result from improved 
public health outcomes. Analysis found that by 2035 the region 
could save $100 – $125 million per year in healthcare costs related 
to illness from implementing the strategy.  

Staff also prepared cost estimates to implement the strategy. At $24 
billion over 25 years, the overall cost of the strategy is less than the 
full 2014 RTP ($29 billion), but about $5 billion more than the 
financially constrained 2014 RTP ($19 billion). The financially 
constrained 2014 RTP refers to the priority investments that can be 
funded with existing and anticipated revenues identified by federal, 
state and local governments. The full 2014 RTP is the region’s 
regional transportation system plan under the Transportation 
Planning Rule and refers to all of the investments that have been identified to meet current and future 
regional transportation needs in the region to meet statewide planning goals. It assumes additional 
funding beyond existing and anticipated revenues.  

While the recommended level of investment for transit service and related capital, transportation system 
management technologies, and travel information and incentive programs is more than what is adopted in 
the financially constrained 2014 RTP, the estimated costs fall within the full 2014 RTP funding 
assumptions the region has agreed to work toward as part of meeting statewide planning goals. The cost 
to implement the strategy is estimated to be $945 million per year, plus an estimated $480 million per 
year needed to maintain and operate the region’s road system. While this is about $630 million more than 
we currently spend as a region, analysis shows multiple benefits and a significant return on investment. In 
the long run, the strategy can help people live healthier lives and save households and businesses money 
providing a significant return on investment. 

Attachment 2 to the staff report summarizes the results of the analysis. 

CLIMATE SMART STRATEGY 

After a four-year collaborative process informed by research, analysis, community engagement and 
discussion, community, business and elected leaders have shaped a Climate Smart Strategy that exceeds 
the state mandate and supports the plans and visions that have already been adopted by communities and 
the region. 

Climate	  Smart	  Strategy	  	  
Health	  Impact	  Assessment	  
The	  Climate	  Smart	  Strategy	  HIA	  was	  
conducted	  to	  provide	  health	  
information	  and	  evidence-‐based	  
recommendations	  on	  the	  Climate	  
Smart	  Strategy.	  	  
	  



 

Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 13 
 

On September 15, 2014, Metro staff launched an online survey and released the results of the analysis and 
the preferred land use and transportation scenario under OAR 660-044-0040 for review and comment 
through October 30, 2014: 

• Draft Climate Smart Strategy (an overview of the draft strategy as unanimously recommended 
for study by MPAC and JPACT on May 30, 2014) 

• Draft Implementation Recommendations (recommended policy, possible actions and 
monitoring approach organized in three parts) 

1. Draft Regional Framework Plan Amendments identify refinements to existing regional 
policies to integrate the key components of the Climate Smart Strategy, including policies 
and strategies to guide implementation of the strategy and performance measures for tracking 
the region’s progress on implementing the strategy. The Framework Plan guides Metro land 
use and transportation planning and other activities and does not mandate local government 
adoption of any particular policy or action. 

2. Draft Toolbox of Possible Actions (2015-20) identifies possible near-term (within the next 
five years) actions that the Oregon Legislature, state agencies and commissions, Metro, cities 
and counties and special districts can take to begin implementation of the Climate Smart 
Strategy. The toolbox is a comprehensive menu of more than 200 specific policy, program 
and funding actions that can be tailored to best support local, regional and state plans and 
visions that, if implemented, will reduce greenhouse gas emissions in ways that support 
community and economic development goals.  

The toolbox provides an advisory menu of possible actions and does not require local 
governments, special districts, or state agencies to adopt any particular policy or action. The 
toolbox includes specific action steps that, if taken, will help implement the broader policies 
and strategies identified in the Regional Framework Plan. It is intended to be a living 
document, subject to further review and refinement by local governments, ODOT, TriMet 
and other stakeholders as part of scheduled updates to the RTP to reflect new information and 
approaches to reducing greenhouse gas emissions. Toolbox actions are not mandatory but, 
rather, are intended to provide guidance to state, regional and local governments and be 
tailored to meet individual jurisdiction’s needs and conditions. 

It builds on the research, analysis, community engagement and discussion completed during 
the past four years and was developed with the recognition that some tools and actions may 
work in some locations but not in others. It emphasizes the need for many diverse partners to 
work together to begin implementation of the Climate Smart Strategy and that each partner 
retains flexibility and discretion in pursuing the strategies most appropriate to local needs and 
conditions. Updates to local comprehensive plans and development regulations, transit 
agency plans, port district plans and regional growth management and transportation plans 
present continuing opportunities to consider implementing toolbox actions in in locally 
tailored ways. 

3. Draft Performance Monitoring Approach identifies measures and performance monitoring 
targets that reflect what was assumed in the analysis of the strategy. The performance 
measures identified for monitoring reflect a combination of existing and new performance 
measures, most of which are drawn from the Regional Transportation Plan and the Urban 
Growth Report to track existing land use and transportation policies. These and other 
performance measures are reflected in Chapter 7 of the Regional Framework Plan. 
	  



 

Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 14 
 

The 2035 performance monitoring targets are not policy targets, but rather reflect a combination 
of the planning assumptions used to evaluate the Climate Smart Strategy and outputs from the 
evaluation. The measures and performance monitoring targets will be reviewed before being 
incorporated into the Regional Transportation Plan as part of the next scheduled update and 
may be further refined at that time to address new information, such as MAP-21 
performance-based planning provisions and recommendations from Metro’s Equity Strategy 

The measures and performance monitoring targets will be used to evaluate and report on the 
region’s progress toward implementing key components of the Climate Smart Strategy. The 
monitoring approach builds on the existing land use and transportation performance 
monitoring Metro is already responsible for as a result of state and federal requirements. To 
monitor and assess implementation of the strategy, Metro will use observed data sources and 
existing regional performance monitoring and reporting processes to the extent possible, 
including regularly scheduled updates to the Regional Transportation Plan and Urban Growth 
Report, and reporting in response to Oregon Revised Statutes ORS 197.301 and ORS 
197.296. The reporting will occur through scheduled updates to the RTP and Urban Growth 
Report, and through reporting in response to Oregon Revised Statutes ORS 197.301 and ORS 
197.296. When observed data is not available, data from regional models may be reported. If 
the assessment finds the region is deviating significantly from the Climate Smart Strategy 
performance monitoring target, then Metro will work with local, regional and state partners to 
consider the revision or replacement of policies, strategies and actions to ensure the region 
remains on track with meeting adopted targets for reducing greenhouse gas emissions  

Metro sought and received comments on the draft Climate Smart Strategy, draft Regional Framework 
Plan Amendments, draft Toolbox of Possible Actions (2015-2020) and draft Performance Monitoring 
Approach from MPAC, JPACT, MTAC, TPAC, state agencies and commissions, including the Oregon 
Department of Transportation, the Oregon Department of Environmental Quality, the Oregon Department 
of Land Conservation and Development, and the Land Conservation and Development Commission, local 
governments in the region, the Port of Portland; public, private and non-profit organizations; and the 
public.  

For those interested in reviewing the draft documents and providing detailed comments, the public review 
documents were posted on the project web page at www.oregonmetro.gov/draftapproach. In response to 
these documents, Metro received 90 letters and emails from local governments, community based 
organizations and individuals. An online survey attracted nearly 2,400 people, who shared their thoughts 
on each of the core policy areas recommended in the overall strategy, providing a total of over 11,000 
comments.  

The Metro Council held public hearings on October 30 and December 18, 2014. A report documenting 
comments received through October 30, 2014 is provided in Attachment 3.  

Most of the comments received during this period were specific to implementation efforts, and will 
inform existing regional planning and decision-making processes, including Regional Transportation Plan 
updates, Regional Flexible Funds Allocation processes, growth management decisions and corridor 
planning, as well as local and state planning and decision-making processes. Comments proposing 
specific changes to the public review documents were summarized in a log along with staff recommended 
changes for consideration by the Metro Council and regional technical and policy advisory committees in 
November and December. The log is provided in Attachment 4. Recommended changes are reflected in 
the exhibits to this ordinance. 

On November 7, a joint meeting of the MPAC and JPACT was held to review Ordinance No. 14-1346B 
and its components, public input, and staff recommended changes to the adoption package to respond to 
public comment. A facilitated discussion of each component of the adoption package provided an 



 

Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 15 
 

opportunity for both policy committees to provide further direction to staff on remaining issues and 
concerns to be addressed prior to Metro Council final action. At the end of the meeting, both policy 
committees supported Metro staff continuing to work with the technical advisory committees to fine-tune 
the adoption package for their consideration in December. 

The regional policy and technical committees continued to fine-tune their recommendations to the Metro 
Council in November and December. On Nov. 21 and Dec. 3, TPAC and MTAC unanimously 
recommended that MPAC and JPACT recommend Metro Council adoption of this ordinance, 
respectively. 

WORKING TOGETHER TO DEVELOP SOLUTIONS FOR OUR COMMUNITIES AND THE 
REGION 

Adoption of the preferred scenario under OAR 660-044-0040 – the Climate Smart Strategy and 
supporting implementation recommendations – presents an opportunity for MPAC, JPACT and the Metro 
Council and others to work together to continue to demonstrate leadership on climate change and address 
challenges related to transportation funding and implementing adopted local and regional plans, including 
transit service plans.  

The preferred scenario adopted by this ordinance sets the foundation for how the region moves forward to 
integrate reducing greenhouse gas emissions with ongoing local and regional efforts to create healthy, 
equitable communities and a strong economy. The ordinance recommends local regional and state 
implementation actions and allows for local flexibility to support the differences among the region’s cities 
and counties. The ordinance also acknowledges that implementation of adopted local and regional plans, 
including transit service plans, as called for in the Climate Smart Strategy and supporting implementation 
recommendations, will require new resources and active participation from a full range of partners over 
the long-term. MPAC and JPACT have agreed to work together with the Metro Council and other public 
and private partners to begin implementation in 2015 and recommend three priority actions as a starting 
point.  

The Climate Smart Strategy will initially be implemented through amendments to Metro’s Regional 
Framework Plan in December 2014 and the short list of three actions for 2015 and 2016 related to 
transportation funding, fleet and technology advancements and seeking opportunities to combine and 
implement the most effective greenhouse gas emissions reduction strategies in local and regional 
demonstration projects. Implementation through Metro’s Regional Transportation Plan, functional plans, 
local comprehensive plans, land use regulations and transportation system plans will occur through future 
actions as defined by administrative rules adopted by LCDC.7  

ANALYSIS/INFORMATION 
 
1. Known Opposition None known. MPAC and JPACT unanimously recommended the Climate Smart 

Strategy (attached to this ordinance as Exhibit A) for study on May 30, 2014.  
 
2. Legal Antecedents Several state and regional laws and actions relate to this action. 

 
Metro Council actions 
• Resolution No. 08-3931 (For the Purpose of Adopting a Definition of Sustainability to Direct 

Metro's Internal Operations, Planning Efforts, and Role as a Regional Convener), adopted on 
April 3, 2008. 

• Ordinance No. 10-1241B (For the Purpose of Amending the 2004 Regional Transportation Plan 
to Comply with State Law; To Add the Regional Transportation Systems Management and 

                                                
7 OAR 660-044-0040 and OAR 660-044-0045. 



 

Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 16 
 

Operations Action Plan, the Regional Freight Plan and the High Capacity Transit System Plan; 
To Amend the Regional Transportation Functional Plan and Add it to the Metro Code; To Amend 
the Regional Framework Plan; And to Amend the Urban Growth Management Functional Plan), 
adopted on June 10, 2010. 

• Ordinance No. 10-1244B (For the Purpose of Making the Greatest Place and Providing Capacity 
for Housing and Employment to the Year 2030; Amending the Regional Framework Plan and the 
Metro Code; and Declaring an Emergency), adopted on December 16, 2010. 

• Resolution No. 12-4324 (For the Purpose of Accepting the Climate Smart Communities 
Scenarios Project Phase 1 findings and Strategy Toolbox for the Portland Metropolitan Region to 
Acknowledge the Work Completed to Date and Initiate Phase 2 of the Climate Smart 
Communities Scenarios Project), adopted on January 26, 2012. 

• Ordinance No. 12-1292A (For the Purpose of Adopting the Distribution of the Population and 
Employment Growth to Year 2035 to Traffic Analysis Zones in the Region Consistent With the 
Forecast Adopted By Ordinance No. 11-1264B in Fulfillment of Metro's Population Coordination 
Responsibility Under ORS 195.036), adopted on November 29, 2012. 

• Resolution No. 13-4338 (For the Purpose of Directing Staff to Move Forward With the Phase 2 of 
the Climate Smart Communities Scenarios Project Evaluation), adopted on June 6, 2013. 

• Resolution No. 14-4539 (For the Purpose of Directing Staff to Test a Draft Approach and 
Complete Phase 3 of the Climate Smart Communities Scenarios Project), adopted June 19, 2014. 

• Ordinance No. 14-1340 (For the Purpose of Amending the 2035 Regional Transportation Plan to 
Comply With Federal and State Law; and to Amend the Regional Framework Plan), adopted July 
17, 2014. 

 
State of Oregon actions 

• Oregon House Bill 3543, the Climate Change Integration Act, passed by the Oregon Legislature 
in 2007, codifies state greenhouse gas reduction goals and establishes the Oregon Global 
Warming Commission and the Oregon Climate Research Institute in the Oregon University 
System. 

• Oregon House Bill 2001, the Jobs and Transportation Act, passed by the Oregon Legislature in 
2009, directs Metro to conduct greenhouse gas emissions reduction scenario planning and LCDC 
to adopt reduction targets for each of Oregon’s metropolitan planning organizations. 

• Oregon House Bill 2186, passed by the Oregon Legislature in 2009, directs work to be conducted 
by the Metropolitan Planning Organization Greenhouse Gas Emissions Task Force. 

• Oregon Senate Bill 1059, passed by the Oregon Legislature in 2009, directs planning activities to 
reduce greenhouse gas emissions in the transportation sector and identifies ODOT as the lead 
agency for implementing its requirements. This work is being conducted through the Oregon 
Sustainable Transportation Initiative. 

• OAR 660-044, the Metropolitan Greenhouse Gas Reduction Targets Rule, adopted by the Land 
Conservation and Development Commission (LCDC) in May 2011, and amended in November 
2012. 

 
3. Anticipated Effects 

• Staff will transmit a final report and the decision record, including this ordinance, exhibits to the 
ordinance, the staff report to the ordinance and attachments to the staff report, to the Land 
Conservation and Development Commission in the manner of periodic review by January 31, 
2015. 

• The preferred scenario under OAR 660-044-0040, adopted by this ordinance and reflected in the 
Climate Smart Strategy and supporting implementation recommendations, will be further 
implemented through the next scheduled update to the Regional Transportation Plan. Staff will 
begin scoping the work plan for the next update to the Regional Transportation Plan, and identify 



 

Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 17 
 

by September 30, 2015, a schedule and outline of policy decisions and resources needed. 
Opportunity for further review and refinement of the toolbox by local governments, ODOT, 
TriMet and other stakeholders will be provided as part of the RTP update. 

 
4. Budget Impacts This phase of the project is funded in the current budget through Metro and ODOT 

funds. Implementation of the Climate Smart Strategy will be determined through future budget 
actions. 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION 
Staff recommends approval of Ordinance 14-1346B. 



	  
This page left blank for printing purposes.



58 Shaping the preferred approach  |  A discussion guide for policymakers

PHASE 2:
ASSUMPTIONS AT A GLANCE 

100%

Phase 2: 2010 base year and alternative scenario inputs

2010 UGB 28,000 acres 12,000 acres 12,000 acres

Base Year
Reflects existing 

conditions

Scenario A
Recent trends

Scenario B
Adopted plans

Scenario C
New plans and policies

Urban growth boundary 
expansion (acres)

Drive alone trips under 10 miles 
that shift to bike (percent)

Pay-as-you-drive insurance (percent 
of households participating) 0% 20% 40%

$0.18

20352010

$50

Co
m

m
un

it
y 

de
si

gn
Pr

ic
in

g

$0.03

  13% / 8%

Gas tax (cost per gallon 2005$)

Road user fee (cost per mile) 

Carbon emissions fee (cost per ton) 

Work/non-work trips in areas with 
parking management (percent)

9%

4,900

13% / 8%

5,600

10% 15%

6,200
(RTP Financially Constrained)

30% / 30%

20%

11,200
(RTP State + more transit)

50% / 50%

Transit service 
(daily revenue hours)

$0 $0 $0

$0$0

$0.42 $0.48 $0.73

Strategy

Households in mixed use 
areas (percent)

$0

26% 36% 37% 37%

The inputs are for research 
purposes only and do not 
represent current or future 
policy decisions of the Metro 
Council.

March 30, 2014
=	  Phase	  3	  Climate	  Smart	  Strategy	  model	  input	  

17%	  

9,400	  

Note:	  Gas	  tax	  assump.on	  to	  be	  held	  in	  constant	  2005$	  to	  be	  consistent	  with	  Oregon’s	  revenue	  forecast	  scenario	  recommended	  for	  metropolitan	  
transporta.on	  plans	  (Feb.	  2011)	  and	  Statewide	  Transporta.on	  Strategy	  analysis.	  	  

Updated	  12/09/14	  
TPAC/MTAC	  Recommended	  GreenSTEP	  Inputs	  to	  Reflect	  May	  30	  MPAC	  and	  JPACT	  DraJ	  Climate	  Smart	  Strategy	  

Attachment 1 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B

Page 1 of 2



59Shaping the preferred approach |  A discussion guide for policymakers

30%

Households participating in eco-
driving (percent)

Households participating 
in individualized marketing 
programs (percent)

Workers participating in 
employer-based commuter 
programs (percent)

Carsharing in high density areas 
(participation rate)

Freeway and arterial 
expansion (lane miles added) N/A

M
ar

ke
ti

ng
 a

nd
 in

ce
nt

iv
es

Ro
ad

s

Fleet turnover rate 

Plug-in hybrid electric/all electric 
vehicles (percent)

Fl
ee

t
Te

ch
no

lo
gy

auto: 57%
light truck: 43%

auto: 0% / 1%
light truck: 0% / 1%

0%

9 miles 81 miles
(RTP Financially Constrained)

auto: 71%
light truck: 29%

8 years
auto: 68.5 mpg

light truck: 47.7 mpg

Strategy

Base Year
Reflects existing 

conditions

Scenario A
Recent trends

Scenario B
Adopted plans

20352010

Scenario C
New plans and policies

105 miles
(RTP State)

60%

35%

One carshare per
5000 vehicles

20%

9%

Twice the number 
of carshare vehicles 

available

Delay reduced by traffic 
management strategies (percent)

One carshare per
5000 vehicles

20%

10%

Fleet mix (percent)

10 years

Fuel economy (miles per gallon) auto: 29.2 mpg
light truck: 20.9 mpg

Carbon intensity of fuels 90 g CO2e/megajoule

Carsharing in medium density 
areas (participation rate)

auto: 8% / 26%
light truck: 2% / 26%

72 g CO2e/megajoule

0%

Same as today

30%

30%

20%

Same as Scenario A

Twice the number 
of carshare vehicles Same as Scenario B

Four times the 
number of carshare 

vehicles available

40%

60%

20%10%

The inputs are for research 
purposes only and do not 
represent current or future 
policy decisions of the Metro 
Council.

March 30, 2014

45%	  

45%	  

30%	  

52	  /	  386	  

Note:	  [1]	  Freeway	  and	  arterial	  lane	  miles	  added	  and	  share	  of	  plug-‐in	  hybrid	  electric	  and	  all	  electric	  vehicles	  were	  incorrectly	  reported	  and	  have	  been	  updated	  to	  reflect	  
what	  was	  tested	  in	  Phases	  2	  and	  3.	  The	  difference	  between	  the	  2010	  RTP	  FC	  and	  2014	  RTP	  FC	  lane	  miles	  is	  largely	  due	  to	  the	  addi.on	  of	  the	  Sunrise	  Corridor	  Project	  
and	  ODOT	  auxiliary	  lane	  projects.	  The	  fleet	  and	  technology	  assump.ons	  reflect	  assump.ons	  in	  the	  State	  Agencies’	  Technical	  Report	  and	  OAR	  660-‐044-‐0010	  (Table	  1).	  

12/31	   15/336	   46/409	  2014	  RTP	  FC	  

=	  Phase	  3	  Climate	  Smart	  Strategy	  model	  input	  

Attachment 1 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B

Page 2 of 2



WHAT DID WE LEARN?

We can meet the 2035 target if we make 
the investments needed to build the 
plans and visions that have already been 
adopted by communities and the region. 
However, we will fall short if we continue 
investing at current levels.

The region has identified a draft approach 
that does more than just meet the target. 
It supports many other local, regional and 
state goals, including clean air and water, 
transportation choices, healthy and equitable 
communities, and a strong regional economy. 

WHAT KEY POLICIES ARE INCLUDED 
IN THE DRAFT APPROACH? 

■  Implement adopted plans
■  Make transit convenient, frequent, 

accessible and affordable
■  Make biking and walking safe and 

convenient
■  Make streets and highways safe, reliable 

and connected
■  Use technology to actively manage the 

transportation system
■  Provide information and incentives to 

expand the use of travel options
■  Manage parking to make efficient use of 

land and parking spaces

Fall 2014

KEY RESULTS
The Climate Smart Communities Scenarios Project responds to a state mandate to reduce greenhouse 
gas emissions from cars and small trucks by 2035. Working together, community, business and elected 
leaders are shaping a strategy that meets the goal while creating healthy and equitable communities and a 
strong economy. On May 30, 2014, Metro’s policy advisory committees unanimously recommended a draft 
approach for testing that relies on policies and investments that have already been identified as priorities in 
communities across the region. The results are in and the news is good.

STATE MANDATED 
TARGET

SCENARIO A
R E C E N T  
T R E N D S

SCENARIO B
A D O P T E D  

P L A N S

SCENARIO C
N E W  P L A N S
&  P O L I C I E S

D R A F T
A P P R O A C H

12%

24%

36%

29%
20% REDUCTION BY 2035

The reduction target is from 
2005 emissions levels after 
reductions expected from 
cleaner fuels and more 
fuel-efficient vehicles.

Reduced greenhouse gas emissions
P E R C E N T  B E L O W  2 0 0 5  L E V E L S

oregonmetro.gov/climatescenarios

After a four-year collaborative process informed 

by research, analysis, community engagement and 

deliberation, the region has identified a draft approach 

that achieves a 29 percent reduction in per capita 

greenhouse gas emissions and supports the plans and 

visions that have already been adopted by communities 

and the region.

Attachment 2 to Staff Report to Ordinance 14-1346B

Page 1



WHAT ARE THE PUBLIC HEALTH AND 
ECONOMIC BENEFITS? 

By 2035, the draft approach can help 
people live healthier lives and save 
businesses and households money through 
benefits like:

■  Reduced air pollution and increased 
physical activity can help reduce illness 
and save lives.

■  Reducing the number of miles driven results 
in fewer traffic fatalities and severe 
injuries.

■  Less air pollution and run-off of vehicle 
fluids means fewer environmental costs. 
This helps save money that can be spent 
on other priorities.

■  Spending less time in traffic and reduced 
delay on the system saves businesses 
money, supports job creation, and 
promotes the efficient movement of goods 
and a strong regional economy.

■  Households save money by driving more 
fuel-efficient vehicles fewer miles and 
walking, biking and using transit more.

■  Reducing the share of household 
expenditures for vehicle travel helps 
household budgets and allows people 
to spend money on other priorities; this is 
particularly important for households of 
modest means.

In 2010, our region spent $5-6 billion on healthcare costs related 
to illness alone. By 2035, the region can save $100 million per 
year from implementing the draft approach.

By 2035, the region 
can save more than $1 
billion per year from 
the lives saved each 
year by implementing 
the draft approach.

Cumulative savings calculated on an annual basis. The region 
can expect to save $2.5 billion by 2035, compared to A, by 
implementing the draft approach. 

Overall vehicle-related travel costs decrease due to 
lower ownership costs
A V E R A G E  A N N U A L  H O U S E H O L D  V E H I C L E  O W N E R S H I P  &  
O P E R A T I N G  C O S T S  I N  2 0 0 5 $

Vehicle 
operating costs

Vehicle 
ownership costs

SCENARIO A SCENARIO B SCENARIO C DRAFT 
APPROACH

$8,200 $8,100
$7,400

$2,700

$5,500

$3,000

$5,100

$7,700

$2,800

$4,900

$3,200

$4,200

$1.5 B $1.5 B
$1.3 B $1.3 B

Our economy benefits from reduced emissions and delay
A N N U A L  E N V I R O N M E N T A L  A N D  F R E I G H T  T R U C K  T R A V E L  
C O S T S  I N  2 0 3 5  ( M I L L I O N S ,  2 0 0 5 $ )

Freight truck 
travel costs due 
to delay

Environmental 
costs due to 
pollution

SCENARIO A SCENARIO B SCENARIO C DRAFT 
APPROACH

$975 M $970 M

$503 M$567 M

$885 M

$434 M $467 M

$882 M

$

L I V E S  S A V E D  E A C H  Y E A R  B Y  2 0 3 5

More physical activity and less air pollution provide most 
health benefits

PHYSICAL  ACTIV ITY  
61 L IVES SAVEDAIR  POLLUTION 

59 LIVES SAVED

TRAFFIC  SAFETY 
6 LIVES SAVED

Our economy benefits from improved public health
A N N U A L  H E A L T H C A R E  C O S T  S A V I N G S  F R O M  R E D U C E D  
I L L N E S S  ( M I L L I O N S ,  2 0 1 0 $ )

DRAFT 
APPROACH

SCENARIO A SCENARIO B SCENARIO C

$52 MILLION

$89 MILLION

$117 MILLION
$100 MILLION

Attachment 2 to Staff Report to Ordinance 14-1346B

Page 2



WHAT IS THE RETURN ON 
INVESTMENT? 
Local and regional plans and visions are 
supported. The draft approach reflects local 
and regional investment priorities adopted in 
the 2014 Regional Transportation Plan (RTP) 
to address current and future transportation 
needs in the region. At $24 billion over 25 
years, the overall cost of the draft approach 
is less than the full 2014 RTP ($29 billion), 
but about $5 billion more than the financially 
constrained 2014 RTP ($19 billion).* 

More transportation options are available. 
As shown in the chart to the right, investment 
levels assumed in the draft approach are 
similar to those in the adopted financially 
constrained RTP, with the exception of 
increased investment in transit capital and 
operations region-wide. Analysis shows the 
high potential of these investments to reduce 
greenhouse gas emissions while improving 
access to jobs and services and supporting 
other community goals.

Households and businesses experience 
multiple benefits. The cost to implement 
the draft approach is estimated to be $945 
million per year, plus an estimated $480 
million per year needed to maintain and 
operate our road system. While this is about 
$630 million more than we currently spend 
as a region, analysis shows multiple benefits 
and a significant return on investment. In the 
long run, the draft approach can help people 
live healthier lives and save households and 
businesses money.

Investment costs are in 2014$. The total cost does not include road-related 
operations, maintenance and preservation (OMP) costs. Preliminary estimates 
for local and state road-related OMP needs are $12 billion through 2035.

* The financially constrained 2014 RTP refers to the priority investments that 
can be funded with existing and anticipated new revenues identified by federal, 
state and local governments. The full 2014 RTP refers to all of the investments 
that have been identified to meet current and future regional transportation 
needs in the region. It assumes additional funding beyond currently 
anticipated revenues.

How much would we need to invest by 2035?

STREETS AND 
HIGHWAYS CAPITAL
$8.8 BILLION

TRAVEL INFORMATION 
AND INCENTIVES 
$185 MILLION

TECHNOLOGY TO 
MANAGE SYSTEM

$206 MILLION

ACTIVE  
TRANSPORTATION

$2 BILLION

TRANSIT  SERVICE 
OPERATIONS 
$8 BILLION

TRANSIT  CAPITAL
$4.4 BILLION

$

Estimated costs of draft approach and 2014 RTP 
(billions, 2014$)$

Draft Approach

Full RTP*

  Constrained RTP*

$10 B$0 $20 B $30 B 

$29 B

$24 B

$19 B

Annual cost of implementation through 2035 
(millions, 2014$)$

$3 M

$400M

$300M

$200M

$100M

$0
Streets and 
highways 
capital

Transit
capital

Transit 
operations

Active
transportation

Technology 
to manage 
system

Travel 
information 
and incentives

Draft Approach

Constrained RTP 

$352 M

$175 M

$88 M

$320 M

$240 M

$83 M

$8 M$6 M $7 M

Attachment 2 to Staff Report to Ordinance 14-1346B

Page 3



HOW DO WE MOVE FORWARD?

We’re stronger together. Local, regional, 
state and federal partnerships and legislative 
support are needed to secure adequate 
funding for transportation investments and 
address other barriers to implementation.

Building on existing local, regional and 
statewide activities and priorities, the project 
partners have developed a draft toolbox of 
actions with meaningful steps that can be 
taken in the next five years. This is a menu 
of actions that can be locally tailored to best 
support local, regional and state plans and 
visions. Reaching the state target can best 
be achieved by engaging community and 
business leaders as part of ongoing local and 
regional planning and implementation efforts.

WHAT CAN LOCAL, REGIONAL AND 
STATE PARTNERS DO?

Everyone has a role. Local, regional and 
state partners are encouraged to review the 
draft toolbox to identify actions they have 
already taken and prioritize any new actions 
they are willing to consider or commit to as 
we move into 2015. 

Sept. 12, 2014 Printed on recycled-content paper. Job 14069

WHAT’S NEXT?

The Metro Policy Advisory Committee and the Joint Policy 
Advisory Committee on Transportation are working to finalize 
their recommendation to the Metro Council on the draft 
approach and draft implementation recommendations.

September 2014 Staff reports results of the analysis and draft 
implementation recommendations to the Metro Council and 
regional advisory committees

Sept. 15 to Oct. 30 Public comment period on draft approach 
and draft implementation recommendations

Nov. 7 MPAC and JPACT meet to discuss public comments and 
shape recommendation to the Metro Council

December 2014 MPAC and JPACT make recommendation to 
Metro Council

December 2014 Metro Council considers adoption of preferred 
approach

January 2015 Metro submits adopted approach to Land 
Conservation and Development Commission for approval

2015 and beyond Ongoing implementation and monitoring

WHERE CAN I FIND MORE INFORMATION?

The draft toolbox and other publications and reports can be 
found at oregonmetro.gov/climatescenarios.

For email updates, send a message to    
climatescenarios@oregonmetro.gov.

2011
Phase 1

2013 – 14
Phase 3

choices
Shaping 
choices

Shaping and
adoption of 
preferred approach

Jan. 2012
Accept 
findings

 
 

Dec. 2014
Adopt preferred 
approach

Climate Smart Communities Scenarios Project timeline

Direction on
preferred
approach

Understanding

June 2013
Direction on
alternative
scenarios 

2012 – 13
Phase 2

June 2014

Attachment 2 to Staff Report to Ordinance 14-1346B

Page 4



	  

December	  9,	  2014	  

Public	  comment	  report	  

A	  report	  documenting	  the	  Climate	  Smart	  Communities	  
Scenarios	  Project	  public	  comment	  period	  held	  from	  Sept.	  15	  to	  
Oct.	  30,	  2014	  

Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 1 of 246



About	  Metro	  

Clean	  air	  and	  clean	  water	  do	  not	  stop	  at	  city	  limits	  or	  county	  lines.	  Neither	  does	  the	  need	  for	  jobs,	  a	  
thriving	  economy,	  and	  sustainable	  transportation	  and	  living	  choices	  for	  people	  and	  businesses	  in	  the	  
region.	  Voters	  have	  asked	  Metro	  to	  help	  with	  the	  challenges	  and	  opportunities	  that	  affect	  the	  25	  cities	  
and	  three	  counties	  in	  the	  Portland	  metropolitan	  region.	  	  

	  A	  regional	  approach	  simply	  makes	  sense	  when	  it	  comes	  to	  providing	  services,	  operating	  venues	  and	  
making	  decisions	  about	  how	  the	  region	  grows.	  Metro	  works	  with	  communities	  to	  support	  a	  resilient	  
economy,	  keep	  nature	  close	  by	  and	  respond	  to	  a	  changing	  climate.	  Together	  we’re	  making	  a	  great	  place,	  
now	  and	  for	  generations	  to	  come.	  

	  www.oregonmetro.gov	  

Metro	  Council	  President	  
Tom	  Hughes	  

Metro	  Councilors	  
Shirley	  Craddick,	  District	  1	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  
Carlotta	  Collette,	  District	  2	  
Craig	  Dirksen,	  District	  3	  
Kathryn	  Harrington,	  District	  4	  
Sam	  Chase,	  District	  5	  
Bob	  Stacey,	  District	  6	  

Auditor	  
Suzanne	  Flynn	  
	  

	  
Metro	  respects	  civil	  rights	  
Metro	  fully	  complies	  with	  Title	  VI	  of	  the	  Civil	  Rights	  Act	  of	  1964	  and	  related	  statutes	  that	  ban	  
discrimination.	  If	  any	  person	  believes	  they	  have	  been	  discriminated	  against	  regarding	  the	  receipt	  of	  
benefits	  or	  services	  because	  of	  race,	  color,	  national	  origin,	  sex,	  age	  or	  disability,	  they	  have	  the	  right	  to	  
file	  a	  complaint	  with	  Metro.	  For	  information	  on	  Metro’s	  civil	  rights	  program,	  or	  to	  obtain	  a	  
discrimination	  complaint	  form,	  visit	  www.oregonmetro.gov/civilrights	  or	  call	  503-‐797-‐1536.	  	  

Metro	  provides	  services	  or	  accommodations	  upon	  request	  to	  persons	  with	  disabilities	  and	  people	  who	  
need	  an	  interpreter	  at	  public	  meetings.	  If	  you	  need	  a	  sign	  language	  interpreter,	  communication	  aid	  or	  
language	  assistance,	  call	  503-‐797-‐1700	  or	  TDD/TTY	  503-‐797-‐1804	  (8	  a.m.	  to	  5	  p.m.	  weekdays)	  5	  business	  
days	  before	  the	  meeting.	  All	  Metro	  meetings	  are	  wheelchair	  accessible.	  For	  up-‐to-‐date	  public	  
transportation	  information,	  visit	  TriMet’s	  website	  at	  www.trimet.org.	  	  

08	  Fall	  

Visit	  the	  project	  website	  for	  more	  information	  about	  the	  Climate	  Smart	  Communities	  Scenarios	  
Project	  at	  www.oregonmetro.gov/climatescenarios.	  
	  
The	  preparation	  of	  this	  report	  was	  partially	  financed	  by	  the	  Oregon	  Department	  of	  Transportation	  
and	  U.S.	  Department	  of	  Transportation.	  The	  contents	  of	  this	  report	  do	  not	  necessarily	  reflect	  the	  
views	  or	  policies	  of	  the	  State	  of	  Oregon	  or	  U.S.	  Department	  of	  Transportation.	  

Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 2 of 246



Table	  of	  contents	  
Executive	  summary	  ......................................................................................................................................	  1	  

Public	  comment	  period	  ...........................................................................................................................	  1	  

Direct	  responses	  to	  the	  draft	  strategy	  .................................................................................................	  1	  

Responses	  to	  the	  online	  survey	  ...........................................................................................................	  1	  

Community	  leaders	  meeting	  ...............................................................................................................	  2	  

Public	  testimony	  ..................................................................................................................................	  3	  

Staff	  recommendations	  .......................................................................................................................	  3	  

Project	  background	  ......................................................................................................................................	  4	  

Phase	  1:	  Understanding	  our	  land	  use	  and	  transportation	  choices	  ......................................................	  4	  

Phase	  2:	  Shaping	  our	  land	  use	  and	  transportation	  choices	  .................................................................	  4	  

Phase	  3:	  Development	  and	  selection	  of	  a	  preferred	  land	  use	  and	  transportation	  scenario	  ...............	  5	  

Summary	  of	  engagement	  ............................................................................................................................	  7	  

Promotion.................................................................................................................................................7	  

Outreach	  elements	  ..................................................................................................................................	  7	  

Opportunity	  to	  offer	  detailed	  comments	  on	  the	  draft	  strategy	  ..........................................................	  7	  

Online	  survey	  .......................................................................................................................................	  8	  

Community	  leaders	  meeting	  ...............................................................................................................	  8	  

Public	  testimony	  ..................................................................................................................................	  9	  

Summary	  of	  comments	  .............................................................................................................................	  10	  

Direct	  responses	  to	  the	  draft	  strategy	  ...................................................................................................	  10	  

Community	  leaders	  meeting	  .................................................................................................................	  10	  

Public	  testimony	  ....................................................................................................................................	  11	  

Online	  survey	  .........................................................................................................................................	  12	  

Who	  participated?	  .............................................................................................................................	  12	  

Travel	  options	  ....................................................................................................................................	  14	  

Optimization	  of	  systems	  and	  programs	  .............................................................................................	  19	  

Transportation	  investment	  overall	  ....................................................................................................	  23	  

Message	  to	  policymakers	  ......................................................................................................................	  26	  

Further	  informing	  implementation	  ...........................................................................................................	  27	  

	  

Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 3 of 246



	  

Appendices	  of	  supporting	  materials	  
Appendix	  A.	  Public	  comment	  period	  notices,	  promotions	  and	  media	  coverage	  

Appendix	  B.	  Community	  leaders	  meeting	  summary	  

Appendix	  C.	  Public	  comment	  letters	  received	  (Sept.	  15	  to	  Oct.	  30)	  

Appendix	  D.	  Public	  comment	  emails	  received	  (Sept.	  15	  to	  Oct.	  30)	  

Appendix	  E.	  Public	  comment	  period	  snapshot	  (Nov.	  2014)	  

Appendix	  F.	  Summary	  of	  recommended	  changes	  to	  respond	  to	  comments	  received	  (Dec.	  3,	  2014)	  

Appendix	  G.	  Verbatim	  comments	  from	  online	  survey	  questions	  1-‐7	  

Appendix	  H.	  Verbatim	  comments	  from	  online	  survey	  question	  8	  

	  

Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 4 of 246



	  

Climate	  Smart	  Communities	  Scenarios	  Project	  	  
Public	  Comment	  Report	  |	  December	  9,	  2014	   1	  

Executive	  summary	  
Overview	  of	  Climate	  Smart	  Communities	  
Scenarios	  Project	  

In	  2009,	  the	  Oregon	  Legislature	  required	  
Metro	  to	  develop	  and	  implement	  a	  strategy	  to	  
reduce	  the	  region's	  per	  capita	  greenhouse	  gas	  
emissions	  from	  cars	  and	  light	  trucks	  by	  2035.	  

Over	  the	  last	  four	  years,	  the	  Climate	  Smart	  
Communities	  Scenarios	  Project	  has	  engaged	  
community,	  business,	  public	  health	  and	  
elected	  leaders	  to	  shape	  a	  draft	  Climate	  Smart	  
Strategy	  that	  supports	  local	  plans	  for	  
downtowns,	  main	  streets	  and	  employment	  
areas;	  protects	  farms,	  forestland,	  and	  natural	  
areas;	  creates	  healthy	  and	  equitable	  
communities;	  increases	  travel	  options;	  and	  
grows	  the	  economy	  while	  reducing	  
greenhouse	  gas	  emissions.	  

The	  project	  launched	  its	  final	  public	  
engagement	  activity	  in	  the	  fall	  of	  2014	  to	  
collect	  input	  and	  comments	  from	  
stakeholders	  and	  the	  interested	  public	  to	  be	  
shared	  with	  policymakers	  as	  they	  develop	  
their	  final	  recommendation	  to	  the	  Metro	  
Council	  on	  the	  draft	  strategy.	  The	  results	  of	  
that	  input	  are	  summarized	  in	  this	  report.	  	  

Public	  comment	  period	  

The	  Climate	  Smart	  Communities	  Scenarios	  
Project	  held	  a	  public	  comment	  period	  on	  the	  
draft	  Climate	  Smart	  Strategy	  from	  Sept.	  15	  to	  
Oct.	  30,	  2014.	  There	  were	  several	  options	  
provided	  for	  the	  public	  and	  stakeholders	  to	  
weigh	  in:	  by	  sending	  an	  email	  message	  or	  
formal	  letter,	  taking	  an	  online	  survey,	  
attending	  a	  community	  leaders	  meeting,	  and	  
providing	  public	  testimony.	  Over	  the	  45-‐day	  
period	  in	  September	  and	  October,	  thousands	  
of	  the	  region's	  residents	  shared	  their	  
thoughts	  on	  the	  draft	  Climate	  Smart	  Strategy.	  

	  
	  

Direct	  responses	  to	  the	  draft	  strategy	  

For	  those	  interested	  in	  reviewing	  and	  
providing	  detailed	  feedback	  on	  the	  specific	  
components	  of	  the	  draft	  Climate	  Smart	  
Strategy,	  the	  following	  public	  review	  
documents	  were	  posted	  to	  the	  project	  
website	  at	  oregonmetro.gov/draftapproach:	  

• overview	  of	  the	  draft	  strategy	  
• key	  results	  from	  the	  draft	  strategy	  
• draft	  Regional	  Framework	  Plan	  

amendments	  
• draft	  toolbox	  of	  possible	  actions	  	  
• draft	  performance	  monitoring	  approach.	  

Metro	  received	  90	  letters	  and	  emails	  from	  
local	  governments,	  community-‐based	  
organizations	  and	  individuals.	  	  

Responses	  to	  the	  online	  survey	  

To	  reach	  a	  wider	  audience	  across	  the	  region,	  
Metro	  commissioned	  Pivot	  Group,	  LLC,	  to	  
create	  an	  online	  survey	  to	  gather	  feedback	  on	  
seven	  of	  10	  Climate	  Smart	  policy	  areas.	  The	  
survey	  was	  hosted	  at	  makeagreatplace.org.	  
Metro	  received	  2,347	  survey	  responses.	  	  

For	  each	  policy	  area,	  respondents	  were	  asked	  
if	  they	  support	  more	  investment	  in	  area	  and	  
what	  should	  be	  considered	  as	  communities	  
and	  the	  region	  implement	  each	  of	  the	  policies.	  
Of	  respondents	  to	  these	  questions:	  	  

1. 83	  percent	  supported	  more	  investment	  in	  
making	  transit	  convenient,	  frequent,	  
accessible	  and	  affordable.	  Top	  requests	  
for	  things	  to	  consider	  included:	  

o provide	  more	  frequent,	  reliable	  
transit	  service	  to	  reduce	  travel	  times	  

o expand	  the	  transit	  network	  to	  provide	  
greater	  access	  to	  transit	  stops	  

Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 5 of 246



	  

2	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	   	  	  	  	  	  Climate	  Smart	  Communities	  Scenarios	  Project	  	  
	   Public	  Comment	  Report	  |	  December	  9,	  2014	  

o improve	  safety	  and	  access	  at	  station	  
locations.	  	  

2. 83	  percent	  supported	  more	  investment	  in	  
making	  biking	  and	  walking	  safe	  and	  
convenient.	  Top	  requests	  for	  things	  to	  
consider	  included:	  

o invest	  in	  a	  comprehensive	  system	  of	  
sidewalks	  and	  bike	  lanes	  

o separate	  modes	  for	  safety	  
o focus	  on	  safety	  for	  walkers	  and	  bikers	  

–	  and	  drivers	  too.	  	  

3. 76	  percent	  supported	  more	  investment	  in	  
making	  streets	  and	  highways	  safe,	  
reliable	  and	  connected.	  Top	  requests	  for	  
things	  to	  consider	  included:	  

o prioritize	  investing	  in	  safety	  for	  all	  
modes	  

o focus	  on	  maintaining	  and	  repairing	  
existing	  roads,	  highways	  and	  bridges	  

o prioritize	  improvements	  to	  vehicular	  
travel	  over	  other	  modes	  to	  help	  
reduce	  congestion.	  	  

4. 85	  percent	  supported	  more	  investment	  in	  
technology	  to	  actively	  manage	  the	  
transportation	  system.	  Top	  requests	  for	  
things	  to	  consider	  included:	  
o prioritize	  investments	  that	  improve	  

traffic	  flow	  
o make	  sure	  it	  is	  cost	  effective	  
o don't	  prioritize	  technology.	  

5. 68	  percent	  supported	  more	  investment	  in	  
providing	  information	  and	  incentives	  to	  
expand	  the	  use	  of	  travel	  options.	  Top	  
considerations	  recommended	  included:	  

o there	  is	  already	  enough	  information	  
available	  about	  travel	  options	  

o it	  is	  more	  important	  to	  fund	  system	  
improvements	  than	  to	  spend	  money	  
on	  education	  and	  marketing	  

o invest	  in	  educating	  travelers	  about	  
non-‐single	  occupancy	  vehicle	  options.	  

6. 72	  percent	  supported	  implementation	  of	  
policies	  to	  manage	  parking	  to	  make	  
efficient	  use	  of	  land	  and	  parking	  spaces.	  
Top	  requests	  for	  things	  to	  consider	  
included:	  

o provide	  more	  parking,	  free	  parking	  
and	  fewer	  parking	  meters	  

o increase	  cost	  of	  parking	  and	  remove	  
on-‐street	  parking	  

o provide	  more	  park	  and	  ride	  lots	  and	  
parking	  management	  tools	  that	  
support	  non-‐single	  occupancy	  vehicle	  
modes.	  

7. 	  83	  percent	  supported	  more	  investment	  
in	  the	  maintenance	  of	  existing	  
transportation	  infrastructure	  and	  new	  
improvements	  to	  accommodate	  a	  growing	  
region.	  Top	  requests	  for	  things	  to	  
consider	  included:	  

o use	  funding	  efficiently	  and	  ensure	  
that	  users	  pay	  for	  the	  transportation	  
they	  use	  in	  a	  fair	  way	  

o prioritize	  maintenance	  and	  widening	  
of	  roads	  to	  make	  auto	  travel	  efficient	  

o prioritize	  investment	  in	  transit.	  	  

Verbatim	  responses	  to	  the	  survey	  are	  
available	  in	  Appendix	  H	  and	  Appendix	  G	  to	  
this	  report.	  

Community	  leaders	  meeting	  

Metro	  brought	  together	  community	  leaders	  
working	  on	  issues	  related	  to	  equity,	  
environment,	  public	  health,	  housing,	  and	  
transportation	  to	  discuss	  the	  draft	  Climate	  
Smart	  Strategy	  and	  implementation	  
recommendations.	  The	  meeting	  called	  on	  
community	  leaders	  that	  had	  been	  involved	  
over	  the	  last	  three	  years	  in	  other	  Climate	  

Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 6 of 246



	  

Climate	  Smart	  Communities	  Scenarios	  Project	  	  
Public	  Comment	  Report	  |	  December	  9,	  2014	   3	  

Smart	  engagement	  activities.	  The	  meeting	  
provided	  opportunities	  for	  community	  
leaders	  to:	  

• learn	  about	  the	  key	  elements	  
recommended	  in	  the	  draft	  Climate	  Smart	  
Strategy	  and	  the	  benefits	  and	  costs	  that	  
are	  expected	  with	  implementation	  by	  
2035	  

• discuss,	  ask	  questions	  and	  provide	  
feedback	  on	  the	  draft	  strategy	  and	  
implementation	  recommendations	  	  

• understand	  opportunities	  to	  provide	  
additional	  feedback	  as	  part	  of	  the	  public	  
comment	  period	  and	  how	  input	  will	  be	  
used	  to	  inform	  the	  Climate	  Smart	  Strategy	  
and	  implementation	  recommendations	  
considered	  by	  the	  Metro	  Council	  in	  
December.	  

A	  more	  detailed	  summary	  of	  the	  meeting	  is	  
available	  in	  Appendix	  B	  to	  this	  report.	  

Public	  testimony,	  comment	  letters	  and	  
emails	  

Metro	  received	  90	  letters	  and	  emails	  during	  
the	  comment	  period.	  An	  opportunity	  to	  give	  
public	  testimony	  was	  provided	  at	  a	  public	  
hearing	  held	  Thursday,	  Oct.	  30,	  2014,	  at	  the	  
Metro	  Regional	  Center.	  Seven	  individuals	  
representing	  community	  organizations	  and	  a	  
local	  jurisdiction	  provided	  testimony	  that	  
supported	  the	  formal	  position	  letters	  they	  
submitted	  during	  the	  public	  comment	  period.	  
The	  letters	  and	  emails	  submitted	  during	  the	  
comment	  period	  are	  available	  in	  Appendix	  C	  
and	  Appendix	  D	  to	  this	  report.	  	  

Staff	  recommendations	  	  

Comments	  specific	  to	  the	  posted	  public	  
review	  documents	  are	  included	  in	  the	  
Summary	  of	  Recommended	  Changes	  table	  
available	  in	  Appendix	  F	  to	  this	  report.	  The	  
summary	  provides	  the	  comments,	  staff	  

responses	  and	  recommendations	  for	  changes	  
to	  the	  draft	  strategy,	  Regional	  Framework	  
Plan	  amendments,	  toolbox	  of	  possible	  actions,	  
and	  performance	  monitoring	  approach.	  These	  
recommendations	  will	  be	  deliberated	  by	  
Metro	  advisory	  committees	  and	  the	  Metro	  
Council	  for	  action	  before	  the	  end	  of	  the	  year.	  	  

Comments	  received	  during	  this	  period	  
specific	  to	  implementation	  efforts	  will	  inform	  
existing	  regional	  planning	  and	  decision-‐
making	  processes,	  including	  Regional	  
Transportation	  Plan	  updates,	  Regional	  
Flexible	  Funds	  allocation	  processes,	  growth	  
management	  decisions	  and	  corridor	  planning,	  
as	  well	  as	  local	  and	  state	  planning	  and	  
decision-‐making	  processes.	  	  

Project	  staff	  expects	  to	  provide	  more	  detailed	  
information	  gathered	  during	  this	  comment	  
period	  in	  spring	  2015	  to	  other	  Metro	  staff	  as	  
well	  as	  city,	  county	  and	  regional	  agency	  staff	  
and	  policymakers	  to	  further	  inform	  these	  
implementation	  efforts.	  	  

Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 7 of 246



	  

4	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	   	  	  	  	  	  Climate	  Smart	  Communities	  Scenarios	  Project	  	  
	   Public	  Comment	  Report	  |	  December	  9,	  2014	  

Project	  background	  
The	  Climate	  Smart	  Communities	  Scenarios	  
Project	  responds	  to	  a	  2009	  mandate	  from	  the	  
Oregon	  Legislature	  for	  Metro	  to	  develop	  and	  
implement	  a	  strategy	  to	  reduce	  per	  capita	  
greenhouse	  gas	  emissions	  from	  cars	  and	  
small	  trucks	  by	  20	  percent	  below	  2005	  levels	  
by	  2035.	  The	  project	  has	  engaged	  community,	  
business,	  public	  health	  and	  elected	  leaders	  in	  
a	  discussion	  to	  shape	  the	  Climate	  Smart	  
Strategy	  that	  accommodates	  expected	  
growth,	  exceeds	  the	  state	  mandate,	  and	  
supports	  local	  and	  regional	  plans	  for	  
downtowns,	  main	  streets	  and	  employment	  
areas.	  	  

Working	  together	  over	  the	  last	  four	  years,	  
community,	  business	  and	  elected	  leaders	  
have	  been	  shaping	  a	  strategy	  to	  meet	  the	  
state	  goal	  while	  creating	  healthy	  and	  
equitable	  communities	  and	  a	  strong	  economy.	  	  

Phase	  1:	  Understanding	  our	  land	  use	  and	  
transportation	  choices	  (January	  2011	  to	  
January	  2012)	  

Phase	  1	  consisted	  of	  testing	  strategies	  on	  a	  
regional	  level	  to	  understand	  which	  strategies	  
can	  most	  effectively	  help	  the	  region	  meet	  the	  
state	  greenhouse	  gas	  emissions	  reduction	  
mandate.	  A	  strategy	  toolbox	  was	  developed	  to	  
provide	  a	  comprehensive	  review	  of	  the	  latest	  
research	  on	  greenhouse	  gas	  reduction	  
strategies	  and	  their	  potential	  effectiveness	  
and	  benefits.	  Staff	  also	  engaged	  public	  
officials,	  community	  and	  business	  leaders,	  
community	  groups	  and	  government	  staff	  
through	  two	  regional	  summits,	  31	  
stakeholder	  interviews	  and	  public	  opinion	  
research.	  	  
	  
The	  Phase	  1	  findings	  indicated	  that	  current	  
adopted	  plans	  and	  policies	  –	  if	  realized	  –	  

along	  with	  state	  assumptions	  related	  to	  
advancements	  in	  cleaner,	  low	  carbon	  fuels	  
and	  more	  fuel-‐efficient	  vehicle	  technologies,	  
including	  electric	  and	  other	  alternative	  fuel	  
vehicles,	  provide	  a	  strong	  foundation	  for	  
meeting	  the	  state	  target.	  	  

Although	  current	  plans	  move	  the	  region	  in	  
the	  right	  direction,	  current	  funding	  is	  not	  
sufficient	  to	  implement	  adopted	  local	  and	  
regional	  plans.	  As	  a	  result,	  the	  region	  
concluded	  that	  a	  key	  to	  meeting	  the	  target	  
would	  be	  a	  collaborative	  effort	  of	  city,	  county,	  
state	  and	  regional	  governmental	  agencies	  to	  
develop	  public	  and	  private	  partnerships	  to	  
invest	  in	  communities	  in	  ways	  that	  support	  
adopted	  local	  and	  regional	  plans	  and	  reduce	  
greenhouse	  gas	  emissions.	  

Phase	  2:	  Shaping	  our	  land	  use	  and	  
transportation	  choices	  (January	  2012	  to	  
October	  2013)	  

Phase	  2	  focused	  on	  shaping	  and	  evaluating	  
future	  choices	  for	  supporting	  community	  
visions	  and	  meeting	  the	  state	  greenhouse	  gas	  
emissions	  reduction	  target.	  Metro	  conducted	  
a	  sensitivity	  analysis	  of	  the	  policy	  areas	  
tested	  during	  Phase	  1	  to	  better	  understand	  
the	  greenhouse	  gas	  emissions	  reduction	  
potential	  of	  individual	  strategies	  within	  each	  
policy	  area.	  	  

Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 8 of 246



	  

Climate	  Smart	  Communities	  Scenarios	  Project	  	  
Public	  Comment	  Report	  |	  December	  9,	  2014	   5	  

Metro	  undertook	  an	  extensive	  consultation	  
process	  by	  sharing	  the	  Phase	  1	  findings	  with	  
cities,	  counties,	  county-‐level	  coordinating	  
committees,	  regional	  advisory	  committees	  
and	  state	  commissions.	  As	  a	  part	  of	  this	  
process,	  Metro	  regularly	  convened	  a	  local	  
government	  staff	  technical	  work	  group	  
throughout	  2012	  and	  2013.	  The	  work	  group	  
provided	  technical	  advice	  to	  Metro	  staff,	  and	  
assistance	  with	  engaging	  local	  government	  
officials	  and	  senior	  staff.	  	  

In	  addition,	  Metro	  convened	  workshops	  with	  
community	  leaders	  working	  to	  advance	  
public	  health,	  social	  equity,	  environmental	  
justice	  and	  environmental	  protection	  in	  the	  
region.	  A	  series	  of	  discussion	  groups	  were	  
held	  in	  partnership	  with	  developers	  and	  
business	  associations	  across	  the	  region.	  More	  
than	  100	  community	  and	  business	  leaders	  
participated	  in	  the	  workshops	  and	  discussion	  
groups	  from	  summer	  2012	  to	  winter	  2013.	  	  

A	  set	  of	  criteria	  were	  developed	  through	  the	  
Phase	  2	  engagement	  process	  that	  would	  be	  
used	  to	  evaluate	  and	  compare	  three	  scenarios	  
considering	  costs	  and	  benefits	  across	  public	  
health,	  environmental,	  economic	  and	  social	  
equity	  outcomes.	  	  

Phase	  3:	  Development	  and	  selection	  of	  a	  
preferred	  land	  use	  and	  transportation	  
scenario	  (October	  2013	  to	  December	  2014)	  

Phase	  3,	  the	  final	  phase	  of	  the	  process	  began	  
in	  October	  2013	  with	  release	  of	  the	  Phase	  2	  
analysis	  results.	  The	  results	  demonstrated	  
that	  implementation	  of	  the	  2040	  Growth	  
Concept	  and	  locally-‐adopted	  zoning,	  land	  use	  
and	  transportation	  plans	  and	  policies	  would	  
make	  the	  state-‐mandated	  greenhouse	  gas	  
emissions	  reduction	  target	  achievable	  –	  if	  the	  
region	  is	  able	  to	  make	  the	  investments	  and	  

take	  the	  actions	  needed	  to	  implement	  those	  
plans.	  	  

In	  February	  2014,	  the	  Metropolitan	  Policy	  
Advisory	  Committee	  (MPAC)	  and	  the	  Joint	  
Policy	  Advisory	  Committee	  on	  Transportation	  
(JPACT)	  approved	  moving	  forward	  to	  shape	  
and	  recommend	  a	  Climate	  Smart	  Strategy	  for	  
the	  Metro	  Council	  to	  adopt	  by	  the	  end	  of	  
2014.	  As	  recommended	  by	  both	  policy	  
committees,	  development	  of	  the	  key	  
components	  of	  the	  Climate	  Smart	  Strategy	  
began	  with	  the	  adopted	  2040	  Growth	  
Concept,	  the	  2014	  Regional	  Transportation	  
Plan	  (RTP)	  and	  the	  adopted	  plans	  of	  the	  
region’s	  cities	  and	  counties	  including	  local	  
zoning,	  capital	  improvement,	  comprehensive	  
and	  transportation	  system	  plans.	  During	  this	  
time,	  the	  RTP	  was	  in	  the	  process	  of	  being	  
updated	  to	  reflect	  changes	  to	  local,	  regional	  
and	  state	  investment	  priorities,	  which	  
differed	  from	  what	  was	  studied	  in	  during	  
Phase	  2.	  

From	  January	  to	  April	  2014,	  Metro	  facilitated	  
a	  Community	  Choices	  discussion	  to	  explore	  
policy	  priorities	  and	  possible	  trade	  offs.	  The	  
activities	  built	  upon	  earlier	  public	  
engagement	  to	  solicit	  feedback	  from	  public	  
officials,	  business	  and	  community	  leaders,	  
interested	  members	  of	  the	  public	  and	  other	  
identified	  audiences.	  Interviews,	  discussion	  
groups	  and	  statistically	  valid	  public	  opinion	  
research	  were	  used	  to	  gather	  input	  that	  was	  
presented	  at	  a	  joint	  meeting	  of	  MPAC	  and	  
JPACT	  on	  April	  11,	  2014.	  In	  addition,	  more	  
detailed	  information	  about	  the	  policy	  areas	  
under	  consideration	  was	  provided	  in	  a	  
discussion	  guide,	  including	  estimated	  costs,	  
potential	  benefits	  and	  impacts,	  and	  a	  
comparison	  of	  the	  relative	  climate	  benefits	  
and	  cost	  of	  six	  policy	  areas:	  

• make	  transit	  convenient,	  frequent,	  
accessible	  and	  affordable	  

Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 9 of 246



	  

6	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	   	  	  	  	  	  Climate	  Smart	  Communities	  Scenarios	  Project	  	  
	   Public	  Comment	  Report	  |	  December	  9,	  2014	  

• use	  technology	  to	  actively	  manage	  the	  
transportation	  system	  

• provide	  information	  and	  incentives	  to	  
expand	  the	  use	  of	  travel	  options	  

• make	  biking	  and	  walking	  safe	  and	  
convenient	  

• make	  streets	  and	  highways	  safe,	  reliable	  
and	  connected	  

• manage	  parking	  to	  make	  efficient	  use	  of	  
land	  and	  parking	  spaces.	  

Between	  April	  11	  and	  May	  30,	  the	  Metro	  
Council	  and	  staff	  engaged	  local	  governments	  
and	  other	  stakeholders	  on	  the	  results	  of	  the	  
joint	  MPAC	  and	  JPACT	  meeting,	  primarily	  
through	  the	  county-‐level	  coordinating	  
committees	  and	  regional	  technical	  and	  policy	  
advisory	  committees.	  On	  May	  30,	  another	  
joint	  meeting	  of	  the	  MPAC	  and	  JPACT	  was	  
held	  to	  review	  additional	  cost	  information,	  
public	  input	  and	  recommendations	  from	  
technical	  advisory	  committees	  on	  a	  draft	  
strategy	  for	  testing.	  

Metro	  staff	  worked	  with	  the	  project’s	  
technical	  work	  group	  over	  the	  summer	  to	  
develop	  modeling	  assumptions	  to	  reflect	  the	  
draft	  strategy.	  Metro	  completed	  the	  
evaluation	  in	  August,	  2014.	  Analysis	  showed	  
the	  draft	  strategy,	  if	  implemented,	  achieves	  a	  
29	  percent	  per	  capita	  reduction	  in	  
greenhouse	  gas	  emissions	  and	  delivers	  
significant	  environmental	  and	  economic	  
benefits	  to	  communities	  and	  the	  region,	  
including:	  

• less	  air	  pollution	  and	  run-‐off	  of	  vehicle	  
fluids,	  reducing	  environmental	  costs	  and	  
helping	  save	  money	  that	  can	  be	  spent	  on	  
other	  priorities	  

• less	  time	  spent	  in	  traffic	  and	  reduced	  
delay	  on	  the	  system,	  saving	  businesses	  
money,	  supporting	  job	  creation,	  and	  
promoting	  the	  efficient	  movement	  of	  
goods	  and	  a	  strong	  regional	  economy	  

• household	  savings	  by	  driving	  more	  fuel-‐
efficient	  vehicles	  fewer	  miles	  and	  walking,	  
biking	  and	  using	  transit	  more	  

• household	  savings	  for	  vehicle	  travel,	  
helping	  household	  budgets	  and	  allowing	  
people	  to	  spend	  money	  on	  other	  
priorities;	  this	  is	  particularly	  important	  
for	  households	  of	  modest	  means.	  

After	  a	  four-‐year	  collaborative	  process	  
informed	  by	  research,	  analysis,	  community	  
engagement	  and	  discussion,	  community,	  
business	  and	  elected	  leaders	  shaped	  a	  draft	  
Climate	  Smart	  Strategy	  that	  exceeds	  the	  state	  
mandate	  and	  supports	  the	  plans	  and	  visions	  
that	  have	  already	  been	  adopted	  by	  
communities	  and	  the	  region	  

On	  Sept.15,	  2014,	  Metro	  staff	  launched	  an	  
online	  survey	  and	  released	  the	  results	  of	  the	  
analysis	  and	  the	  draft	  strategy	  and	  
implementation	  recommendation	  for	  review	  
and	  comment	  through	  Oct.	  30,	  2014.	  

Discussion	  guide	  for	  policymakers	  	  
The	  guide	  summarized	  the	  results	  of	  the	  Phase	  2	  
analysis	  and	  public	  input	  received	  through	  the	  
Community	  Choices	  engagement	  activities.	  
	  

Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 10 of 246



	  

Climate	  Smart	  Communities	  Scenarios	  Project	  	  
Public	  Comment	  Report	  |	  December	  9,	  2014	   7	  

Summary	  of	  engagement	  
Promotiony	  
The	  fall	  public	  comment	  period	  for	  the	  
Climate	  Smart	  Communities	  Scenarios	  Project	  
was	  promoted	  through	  postings	  on	  the	  Metro	  
newsfeed	  and	  project	  website	  and	  email	  
notification	  to	  the	  Opt	  In	  panel	  (an	  online	  
opinion	  panel),	  Climate	  Smart	  Communities	  
Scenarios	  Project	  interested	  persons	  list	  
(700+	  subscribers),	  and	  the	  Metro	  planning	  
department’s	  ePlanning	  news	  list	  (3,000+	  
subscribers).	  Notices	  were	  also	  disseminated	  
through	  the	  Office	  of	  Neighborhood	  
involvement	  (2,000	  subscribers),	  Washington	  
County	  community	  planning	  organizations	  
system	  (17,000+	  subscribers),	  Clackamas	  
County	  citizen	  participation	  organizations	  
system	  (200+	  subscribers),	  Multnomah	  
County	  Office	  of	  Citizen	  Involvement,	  and	  
Metro's	  Public	  Engagement	  Network.	  Ads	  
were	  placed	  in	  the	  Beaverton	  Valley	  Times,	  
Gresham	  Outlook	  and	  Portland	  Observer.	  
Personalized	  email	  notices	  were	  sent	  to	  
planning	  staff	  at	  all	  city	  and	  county	  
jurisdictions	  as	  well	  as	  TriMet,	  Oregon	  
Department	  of	  Transportation,	  the	  Port	  of	  
Portland	  and	  The	  South	  Metro	  Area	  Regional	  
Transit	  (SMART).	  

Copies	  of	  the	  public	  comment	  period	  notices,	  
ads,	  emails	  and	  promotions	  by	  other	  
organizations	  are	  available	  in	  Appendix	  A	  to	  
this	  report.	  

Participants	  in	  the	  community	  leaders	  
meeting,	  addressed	  below,	  were	  asked	  to	  
communicate	  knowledge	  of	  draft	  strategy	  to	  
their	  networks	  to	  encourage	  participation	  in	  
public	  comment	  period.	  This	  was	  especially	  
important	  to	  project	  staff	  to	  encourage	  
participation	  by	  historically	  under-‐	  
represented	  populations.	  	  

Outreach	  elements	  

During	  the	  Sept.	  15	  through	  Oct.	  30	  comment	  
period,	  Metro	  received	  comments	  by	  email	  
message,	  formal	  letter,	  an	  online	  survey,	  a	  
community	  leaders	  meeting,	  and	  through	  
public	  testimony.	  	  

Opportunity	  to	  offer	  detailed	  comments	  
on	  the	  draft	  strategy	  

For	  those	  to	  review	  and	  provide	  detailed	  
feedback	  on	  the	  components	  of	  the	  draft	  
Climate	  Smart	  Strategy,	  the	  following	  public	  
review	  documents	  were	  posted	  to	  the	  project	  
website	  at	  oregonmetro.gov/draftapproach:	  

• overview	  of	  the	  draft	  strategy	  
• key	  results	  from	  the	  draft	  strategy	  
• draft	  Regional	  Framework	  Plan	  

amendments	  
• draft	  toolbox	  of	  possible	  actions	  	  
• draft	  performance	  monitoring	  approach.	  

Metro	  received	  90	  letters	  and	  emails	  in	  
response	  to	  these	  documents,	  including	  
comments	  from:	  

• 1000	  Friends	  of	  Oregon	  
• Bicycle	  Transportation	  Alliance	  
• Citizens'	  Climate	  Lobby	  
• City	  of	  Happy	  Valley	  	  
• City	  of	  Hillsboro	  
• City	  of	  Wilsonville	  
• Clackamas	  County	  Board	  of	  

Commissioners	  
• Coalition	  for	  a	  Livable	  Future	  
• Drive	  Oregon	  
• Oregon	  Health	  Authority	  
• Oregon	  Environmental	  Council	  
• Safe	  Routes	  to	  School	  National	  

Partnership	  
• Transportation	  Justice	  Alliance	  
• Urban	  Greenspaces	  Institute	  
	  

Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 11 of 246



	  

8	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	   	  	  	  	  	  Climate	  Smart	  Communities	  Scenarios	  Project	  	  
	   Public	  Comment	  Report	  |	  December	  9,	  2014	  

The	  letters	  and	  emails	  are	  available	  in	  
Appendix	  C	  and	  Appendix	  D	  to	  this	  report.	  

Online	  survey	  

To	  hear	  from	  a	  wider	  audience,	  Metro	  
commissioned	  Pivot	  Group,	  LLC	  to	  create	  an	  
online	  survey	  to	  gather	  feedback	  on	  seven	  of	  
the	  10	  Climate	  Smart	  policy	  areas.	  Since	  prior	  
work	  with	  stakeholders	  through	  public	  
engagement	  in	  the	  spring	  of	  2014	  prioritized	  
the	  policy	  areas	  to	  be	  addressed	  in	  the	  
strategy,	  the	  goal	  of	  the	  fall	  survey	  was	  
twofold:	  to	  assess	  the	  sentiment	  of	  the	  region	  
on	  investment	  levels	  for	  each	  policy	  area	  by	  
asking,	  “Should	  your	  community	  and	  our	  
region	  invest	  more	  in…”	  and	  to	  inform	  the	  
work	  ahead	  by	  asking,	  “What	  should	  be	  
considered	  when	  implementing	  this	  policy	  
area?”	  	  

The	  results	  on	  levels	  of	  investments	  confirm	  
the	  prioritization	  that	  emerged	  in	  the	  spring	  
and	  provide	  a	  rich	  body	  of	  suggestions	  as	  
regional,	  county	  and	  city	  staff	  and	  policy-‐
makers	  look	  toward	  implementation	  in	  2015	  
and	  beyond.	  

To	  encourage	  participation	  and	  provide	  
policymakers	  valuable	  feedback,	  the	  survey	  
was	  designed	  to:	  

• allow	  people	  to	  respond	  from	  their	  
experiential	  knowledge	  instead	  of	  
needing	  to	  review	  paragraphs	  of	  
explanation	  about	  the	  plan	  and	  process	  
before	  answering	  questions	  	  

• be	  short	  enough	  for	  folks	  to	  want	  to	  
complete	  the	  survey	  

• ask	  questions	  where	  the	  input	  received	  
can	  be	  used	  to	  inform	  decisions	  on	  the	  
table.	  

Metro	  received	  2,347	  responses	  to	  the	  
survey.	  In	  comparison,	  similar	  outreach	  in	  
spring	  2014	  garnered	  1,225	  responses	  to	  its	  

online	  survey.	  	  Verbatim	  responses	  to	  the	  
online	  survey	  are	  available	  in	  Appendix	  H	  and	  
Appendix	  G	  to	  this	  report.	  

Community	  leaders	  meeting	  

As	  part	  of	  the	  public	  comment	  period	  and	  
ongoing	  efforts	  to	  ensure	  community	  
members	  have	  meaningful	  opportunities	  to	  
inform	  the	  regional	  decision-‐making	  process,	  
Metro	  convened	  community	  leaders	  working	  
on	  issues	  related	  to	  equity,	  environment,	  
public	  health,	  housing	  and	  transportation	  to	  
discuss	  the	  draft	  Climate	  Smart	  Strategy	  and	  
implementation	  recommendations	  for	  
reducing	  greenhouse	  gas	  emissions	  and	  
creating	  great	  communities.	  

The	  Oct.	  1	  meeting	  brought	  together	  
community	  leaders	  who	  have	  been	  involved	  
in	  past	  Climate	  Smart	  Communities	  Scenarios	  
Project	  engagement	  activities,	  and	  provided	  
an	  opportunity	  for	  participants	  to	  ask	  
questions	  and	  provide	  direct	  input	  on	  the	  
draft	  strategy	  and	  implementation	  
recommendations.	  The	  meeting	  also	  served	  
to	  activate	  the	  community	  leaders	  to	  share	  
knowledge	  of	  draft	  strategy	  to	  their	  networks	  
to	  encourage	  participation	  in	  public	  comment	  
period.	  

Meeting	  participants:	  	  

• Samuel	  Diaz,	  1000	  Friends	  of	  Oregon	  
• Chris	  Hagerbaumer,	  Oregon	  

Environmental	  Council	  
• Andrea	  Hamburg,	  Oregon	  Health	  

Authority	  
• Duncan	  Hwang,	  Asian	  Pacific	  American	  

Network	  of	  Oregon	  
• Nicole	  Iroz-‐Elardo,	  Oregon	  Health	  

Authority	  
• Lisa	  Frank,	  Bicycle	  Transportation	  

Alliance	  

Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 12 of 246



	  

Climate	  Smart	  Communities	  Scenarios	  Project	  	  
Public	  Comment	  Report	  |	  December	  9,	  2014	   9	  

• Jared	  Franz,	  OPAL	  Environmental	  Justice	  
Oregon	  

• Mary	  Kyle	  McCurdy,	  1000	  Friends	  of	  
Oregon	  

• Pam	  Phan,	  1000	  Friends	  of	  Oregon	  
• Cora	  Potter,	  Ride	  Connection	  
• Kari	  Schlosshauer,	  Safe	  Routes	  to	  School	  
• Chris	  Smith,	  Portland	  Transport	  
• Steve	  White,	  Oregon	  Public	  Health	  

Institute	  
• Elizabeth	  Williams,	  Coalition	  for	  a	  Livable	  

Future	  

Public	  testimony	  

An	  opportunity	  to	  give	  public	  testimony	  was	  
provided	  at	  a	  public	  hearing	  held	  Thursday,	  
Oct.	  30,	  2014,	  at	  the	  Metro	  Regional	  Center.	  
Seven	  individuals	  representing	  community	  
organizations	  and	  a	  local	  jurisdiction	  
provided	  testimony	  that	  supported	  the	  formal	  
position	  letters	  they	  submitted	  during	  the	  
public	  comment	  period.	  The	  letters	  are	  
available	  in	  Appendix	  C	  to	  this	  report.	  	  

Individuals	  testifying	  included:	  

o Mike	  Houck,	  Urban	  Greenspaces	  Institute	  
o Lauren	  Patton,	  Oregon	  American	  Planning	  

Association	  
o Mara	  Gross,	  Coalition	  for	  a	  Livable	  Future	  
o Jeannine	  Rustad,	  City	  of	  Hillsboro	  
o Heidi	  Guenin,	  Transportation	  Justice	  

Alliance	  
o Sam	  Diaz,	  1000	  Friends	  of	  Oregon	  
o Kari	  Schlosshauer,	  Safe	  Routes	  to	  School	  

	  

	  

	  

	  

	  

	  

	  

	  

	  

	  

	  

	  

	  

	  

	  

	  

	  

	  

	  

	  

	  

	  

	  

	  

	  

	  

	  

	  

	  

	  

	  

Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 13 of 246



	  

10	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	   	  	  	  	  	  Climate	  Smart	  Communities	  Scenarios	  Project	  	  
	   Public	  Comment	  Report	  |	  December	  9,	  2014	  

Summary	  of	  comments	  

Direct	  responses	  to	  the	  draft	  
strategy	  	  
Metro	  received	  90	  letters	  and	  emails	  in	  
response	  to	  the	  draft	  strategy,	  Regional	  
Framework	  plan	  amendments,	  toolbox	  of	  
possible	  actions	  and	  performance	  monitoring	  
approach.	  	  

Comments	  expressed	  opinions	  both	  
supportive	  and	  critical	  of	  the	  general	  
approach	  and	  specific	  components	  of	  the	  
draft	  Climate	  Smart	  Strategy.	  The	  letters	  and	  
emails	  are	  available	  in	  Appendix	  C	  and	  
Appendix	  D	  to	  this	  report.	  A	  summary	  of	  
recommended	  changes	  in	  response	  to	  
comments	  received	  is	  available	  in	  Appendix	  F	  
to	  this	  report.	  The	  summary	  provides	  the	  
comments,	  staff	  responses	  and	  
recommendations	  for	  changes	  for	  the	  draft	  
strategy,	  Regional	  Framework	  Plan	  
amendments,	  toolbox	  of	  possible	  actions,	  and	  
performance	  monitoring	  and	  reporting	  
approach	  to	  be	  deliberated	  by	  Metro	  advisory	  
committees	  and	  the	  Metro	  Council	  for	  action	  
in	  December	  2014.	  

Community	  leaders	  meeting	  

The	  discussion	  at	  the	  community	  leaders	  
meeting	  addressed	  topics	  from	  how	  public	  
input	  is	  used,	  to	  the	  importance	  of	  addressing	  
climate	  change,	  to	  the	  role	  of	  Metro	  in	  leading	  
or	  enforcing	  policies	  that	  address	  issues	  of	  
land	  use	  and	  transportation	  planning.	  
Regarding	  the	  policy	  areas	  of	  the	  draft	  
strategy,	  comments	  included:	  

• We	  are	  really	  good	  at	  implementing	  some	  
parts	  of	  adopted	  plans	  and	  not	  
completing	  other	  parts,	  such	  as	  the	  
Regional	  Active	  Transportation	  Plan.	  

• Space	  and	  compact	  growth	  need	  to	  be	  
addressed.	  Parking	  is	  an	  inefficient	  use	  of	  
our	  land.	  Changing	  policies	  on	  parking	  is	  
the	  new	  frontier	  in	  land	  use	  and	  
transportation	  planning	  and	  can	  leverage	  
behavior	  change.	  

• We	  need	  to	  demonstrate	  that	  this	  is	  
possible	  so	  others	  will	  join	  us	  –	  our	  
region's	  actions	  alone	  won't	  make	  a	  
difference.	  

• We	  should	  build	  out	  the	  full	  Regional	  
Active	  Transportation	  Plan	  to	  realize	  
benefits,	  and	  then	  focus	  on	  transit.	  

• Parking	  brings	  up	  a	  couple	  of	  things,	  
including	  a	  need	  for	  the	  dense,	  efficient	  
use	  of	  urban	  space	  and	  a	  conversation	  on	  
how	  we	  develop	  buildings.	  

• Vulnerable	  communities	  cannot	  adapt	  as	  
transportation	  costs	  continue	  to	  climb.	  

• Leadership	  on	  climate	  change	  policy	  area	  
needs	  more	  teeth;	  it	  needs	  to	  include	  
specific	  actions	  of	  what	  Metro	  is	  doing	  or	  
will	  do	  to	  lead	  on	  addressing	  climate	  
change.	  

Comments	  regarding	  the	  draft	  performance	  
monitoring	  approach	  included:	  

• The	  number	  of	  miles	  one	  travels	  actively	  
is	  as	  important	  as	  vehicle	  miles	  traveled	  
from	  a	  health	  perspective.	  Daily	  vehicle	  
and	  pedestrian	  miles	  are	  important	  to	  
track.	  

• Household	  cost	  burden	  needs	  to	  be	  added	  
to	  housing	  and	  transportation.	  

• Household	  utility	  expenses	  should	  also	  be	  
tracked.	  

• Measurement	  of	  fatalities	  should	  be	  called	  
out	  in	  the	  walk/bike	  section.	  

• Affordability	  is	  part	  of	  the	  transit	  policy	  
but	  there	  is	  no	  measurement	  for	  it.	  

• Residential	  units	  and	  jobs	  in	  the	  urban	  
growth	  boundary	  should	  be	  broken	  down	  
into	  sub-‐targets.	  

Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 14 of 246



	  

Climate	  Smart	  Communities	  Scenarios	  Project	  	  
Public	  Comment	  Report	  |	  December	  9,	  2014	   11	  

• "Make	  progress"	  and	  "Secure	  funding"	  are	  
not	  measurable	  goals.	  

A	  complete	  summary	  of	  the	  meeting	  is	  
available	  in	  Appendix	  B	  to	  this	  report.	  
Recommended	  changes	  in	  response	  to	  
comments	  received	  during	  the	  meeting	  are	  
also	  included	  in	  Appendix	  F	  to	  this	  report.	  
	  
Public	  testimony	  

Seven	  individuals	  representing	  community	  
organizations	  and	  a	  local	  jurisdiction	  
provided	  testimony	  that	  supported	  formal	  
position	  letters	  submitted	  during	  the	  public	  
comment	  period	  and	  available	  at	  the	  end	  of	  
this	  report.	  	  

The	  letters	  are	  available	  in	  Appendix	  C	  to	  this	  
report.	  Recommended	  changes	  in	  response	  to	  
comments	  received	  during	  the	  meeting	  are	  
also	  included	  in	  Appendix	  F	  to	  this	  report.	  
	  

	  
	  
	  
	  
	  

	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  
	  

Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 15 of 246



	  

12	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	   	  	  	  	  	  Climate	  Smart	  Communities	  Scenarios	  Project	  	  
	   Public	  Comment	  Report	  |	  December	  9,	  2014	  

Online	  survey	  

Who	  participated?	  

A	  total	  of	  2,184	  surveys	  were	  collected	  from	  residents	  of	  the	  Portland	  metropolitan	  region.	  An	  
additional	  163	  responses	  were	  received	  from	  participants	  who	  live	  outside	  the	  region,	  which	  were	  
not	  included	  as	  part	  of	  the	  summary	  information	  compiled	  and	  reported	  by	  Pivot	  Group.	  

	   Count	   Percent	   Regional	  
population	  

County	   	   	   	  
Multnomah	   1359	   62%	   49%	  
Washington	   480	   22%	   34%	  
Clackamas	   345	   16%	   17%	  
Out	  of	  region	   163	   	  –	  	   –	  

Education	   	   	   	  
High	  school	  degree	  or	  less	   26	   1%	   n/a	  
Some	  college/technical/community	  college/2	  year	  degree	   282	   13%	   n/a	  
College	  degree/4	  year	  degree	   774	   36%	   n/a	  
Post	  graduate	   1072	   50%	   n/a	  

Length	  of	  time	  in	  the	  community	   	   	   	  
Fewer	  than	  6	  years	   300	   14%	   n/a	  
6	  to	  10	  years	   367	   17%	   n/a	  
11	  to	  20	  years	   496	   23%	   n/a	  
More	  than	  20	  years	   994	   46%	   n/a	  

Age	   	   	   	  
20	  years	  or	  younger	   2	   <1%	   (18-‐20)	  6%	  
21	  to	  35	  years	   302	   14%	   26%	  
36	  to	  50	  years	   649	   30%	   28%	  
51	  to	  65	  years	   765	   36%	   25%	  
66	  years	  or	  older	   432	   20%	   14%	  

Ethnicity	   	   	   	  
African	   1	   <1%	   n/a	  
African	  American/Black	   19	   <1%	   4%	  
American	  Indian/Native	  American	  or	  Alaskan	  Native	   44	   2%	   2%	  
Asian	  or	  Pacific	  Islander	   44	   2%	   8%	  
Hispanic/Latino	   47	   2%	   12%	  
Slavic	   17	   <1%	   n/a	  
White/Caucasian	   1749	   82%	   83%	  
Middle	  Eastern	   15	   <1%	   n/a	  
No	  Response	   299	   14%	   –	  
Other	   	   	   6%	  
Ethnicity	  numbers	  reflect	  the	  option	  of	  selecting	  more	  than	  one	  race/ethnicity.	  	  

Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 16 of 246



	   Cl
im

at
e	  
Sm

ar
t	  C

om
m
un

iti
es
	  S
ce
na

rio
s	  P

ro
je
ct
	  	  

Pu
bl
ic
	  C
om

m
en

t	  R
ep

or
t	  |

	  D
ec
em

be
r	  9

,	  2
01

4	  
13

	  

	  At
ta

ch
m

en
t 3

 to
 S

ta
ff 

Re
po

rt
 to

 O
rd

in
an

ce
 N

o.
 1

4-
13

46
B

Pa
ge

 1
7 

of
 2

46

3 2 

Eve.g ..... n 

2 

Camas 
Washougal 

3 

Sandy 

Number of responses 
by zip code 

0 1- 11 

I.llilil 12 - 25 

• 26 - 41 
/ / I Au~ I \ 3 ......-- ') 2 • 42 - 76 

/ 1/ 2 r ' 
77 - 153 



	  

14	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	   	  	  	  	  	  Climate	  Smart	  Communities	  Scenarios	  Project	  	  
	   Public	  Comment	  Report	  |	  December	  9,	  2014	  

Travel	  options	  

Policies	  one	  through	  three	  delve	  into	  various	  travel	  options	  available	  in	  the	  region.	  Respondents	  
selected	  yes/no	  answers	  to	  the	  question	  of	  their	  willingness	  to	  support	  additional	  investment	  in	  the	  
areas	  of	  regional	  transit,	  biking	  and	  walking,	  and	  road	  systems	  to	  better	  meet	  the	  public’s	  
transportation	  needs.	  

Policy	  1.	  Invest	  more	  in	  making	  transit	  convenient,	  frequent,	  accessible	  and	  affordable?	  

	  

Eighty-‐three	  percent	  of	  respondents	  supported	  additional	  investment	  into	  the	  
region’s	  transit	  system.	  Seventeen	  percent	  of	  respondents	  were	  opposed	  to	  more	  
investment.	  	  

• At	  90	  percent,	  respondents	  who	  live	  in	  Multnomah	  County	  were	  significantly	  
more	  likely	  to	  support	  additional	  investment,	  followed	  by	  Washington	  County	  
at	  75	  percent.	  Clackamas	  County	  residents	  expressed	  the	  least	  amount	  of	  interest	  in	  additional	  
investment	  at	  69	  percent.	  	  

• Ninety-‐two	  percent	  of	  younger	  respondents	  (respondents	  under	  36)	  supported	  additional	  
investment	  in	  the	  region’s	  transit	  system.	  Comparatively,	  82	  percent	  of	  respondents	  age	  36	  to	  
50	  supported	  more	  investment.	  	  

Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 18 of 246



	  

Climate	  Smart	  Communities	  Scenarios	  Project	  	  
Public	  Comment	  Report	  |	  December	  9,	  2014	   15	  

	  

Respondents	  were	  asked	  what	  should	  be	  considered	  when	  deciding	  how	  to	  implement	  this	  policy.	  
The	  following	  themes	  were	  identified	  and	  listed	  in	  order	  of	  frequency	  mentioned.	  Note	  that	  a	  single	  
response	  could	  include	  more	  than	  one	  theme	  and	  minor	  themes	  are	  not	  reflected.	  

	  

While	  some	  respondents	  expressed	  a	  need	  for	  free	  –	  or	  nearly	  free	  –	  transit,	  virtually	  all	  agreed	  on	  
the	  need	  for	  an	  affordable	  and	  accessible	  transit	  system.	  People	  noted	  the	  importance	  of	  value	  
when	  traveling	  and	  reported	  selecting	  travel	  options	  accordingly.	  In	  addition,	  respondents	  
recommended	  pricing	  be	  appropriately	  reduced	  for	  users	  with	  low	  incomes	  that	  cannot	  afford	  
transit.	  	  

There	  were	  many	  suggestions	  for	  improving	  transit.	  Most	  respondents	  determined	  the	  speed	  of	  
transit	  trips	  and	  frequency	  need	  to	  be	  addressed.	  They	  expressed	  the	  need	  for	  competitive	  travel	  
times	  compared	  to	  vehicle	  travel	  and	  greater	  frequency,	  during	  off	  hours	  and	  weekends	  in	  
particular.	  In	  addition,	  respondents	  suggested	  the	  transfer	  times	  for	  transit	  need	  to	  be	  more	  
realistic	  to	  make	  the	  service	  more	  practical	  for	  users.	  	  

Many	  people	  recommended	  improvements	  to	  biking	  and	  walking	  paths	  to	  stations	  to	  increase	  
safety.	  Safe	  and	  easy	  access	  to	  stations	  was	  noted	  as	  a	  concern	  along	  with	  the	  need	  to	  feel	  at	  ease	  
when	  using	  transit	  at	  all	  hours	  or	  with	  family.	  Encouraging	  non-‐auto	  transportation	  was	  supported	  
by	  respondents,	  but	  no	  clear	  directive	  provided.	  Here,	  people	  were	  more	  focused	  on	  messaging	  
than	  action.	  Single	  occupancy	  vehicle	  users,	  people	  felt,	  should	  be	  informed	  of	  the	  impacts	  of	  
transportation,	  especially	  concerning	  environmental	  issues.	  It	  was	  noted	  in	  responses	  that	  many	  

Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 19 of 246



	  

16	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	   	  	  	  	  	  Climate	  Smart	  Communities	  Scenarios	  Project	  	  
	   Public	  Comment	  Report	  |	  December	  9,	  2014	  

places	  do	  not	  currently	  have	  access	  to	  light	  rail	  and/or	  limited	  bus	  access,	  including	  smaller	  cities	  
and	  rural	  areas	  in	  the	  region.	  	  

Some	  expressed	  a	  need	  to	  not	  only	  provide	  service	  in	  underserved	  areas,	  but	  to	  provide	  robust	  
transit	  options	  to	  those	  with	  limited	  income	  and	  resources.	  Improving	  or	  expanding	  service	  to	  
communities	  of	  residents	  with	  low	  income	  emerged	  as	  a	  common	  priority.	  Individuals	  with	  low	  
income	  need	  transit	  options	  and	  respondents	  expressed	  the	  need	  for	  a	  better	  balance	  of	  service	  to	  
communities	  in	  order	  to	  assist	  this	  issue.	  	  

The	  importance	  of	  value	  emerged	  in	  the	  comments	  when	  considering	  investment	  on	  transit,	  
particularly	  as	  it	  relates	  to	  cost	  effectiveness.	  Some	  suggested	  shifting	  emphasis	  to	  the	  bus	  transit	  
system	  and	  reducing	  investment	  in	  light	  rail.	  They	  are	  aware	  of	  the	  cost	  difference	  between	  bus	  and	  
light	  rail,	  and	  saw	  the	  value	  in	  improving	  the	  bus	  system.	  

Policy	  2.	  Invest	  more	  in	  making	  biking	  and	  walking	  safe	  and	  convenient?	  

	  

Eighty-‐three	  percent	  of	  respondents	  supported	  additional	  investment	  in	  making	  
biking	  and	  walking	  safe	  and	  convenient.	  Seventeen	  percent	  of	  respondents	  were	  
opposed	  to	  more	  investment.	  

• At	  89	  percent,	  respondents	  who	  live	  in	  Multnomah	  County	  were	  significantly	  
more	  likely	  to	  support	  additional	  investment,	  followed	  by	  Washington	  County	  
at	  78	  percent.	  Clackamas	  county	  residents	  expressed	  the	  least	  amount	  of	  
interest	  in	  additional	  investment	  at	  70	  percent.	  

• Younger	  respondents	  (respondents	  under	  36)	  were	  more	  likely	  to	  support	  additional	  
investment	  into	  biking	  and	  walking	  safety,	  with	  93	  percent	  supporting	  investment	  compared	  to	  
82	  percent	  of	  respondents	  age	  36	  to	  50.	  

Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 20 of 246



	  

Climate	  Smart	  Communities	  Scenarios	  Project	  	  
Public	  Comment	  Report	  |	  December	  9,	  2014	   17	  

Respondents	  were	  asked	  what	  should	  be	  considered	  when	  deciding	  how	  to	  implement	  this	  policy.	  
The	  following	  themes	  were	  identified	  and	  listed	  in	  order	  of	  frequency	  mentioned.	  Note	  that	  a	  single	  
response	  could	  include	  more	  than	  one	  theme	  and	  minor	  themes	  are	  not	  reflected.	  

A	  common	  sentiment	  emerged	  in	  the	  responses	  that	  sharing	  the	  road	  with	  users	  of	  other	  modes	  of	  
travel	  can	  be	  dangerous.	  There	  was	  a	  demand	  for	  improvements	  to	  make	  the	  roads	  safer	  for	  
everyone.	  Some	  felt	  that	  there	  should	  be	  different	  roads	  for	  the	  different	  transportation	  users,	  
while	  others	  felt	  that	  facilities	  especially	  designed	  for	  walkers	  and	  bicyclists	  would	  not	  be	  used	  
unless	  they	  provided	  a	  direct	  route	  to	  where	  the	  person	  was	  traveling.	  Sharing	  the	  road	  was	  
thought	  to	  be	  the	  most	  cost	  effective	  solution,	  but	  would	  require	  both	  motorists	  and	  bicyclists	  to	  
abide	  by	  the	  rules	  of	  the	  road.	  Bike	  users,	  it	  was	  felt,	  needed	  to	  learn	  basic	  safety	  techniques	  so	  they	  
are	  more	  visible	  and	  careful	  when	  sharing	  the	  road,	  and	  motorists	  need	  to	  be	  regularly	  reminded	  if	  
they	  are	  traveling	  on	  a	  major	  bike	  thoroughfare.	  	  

Most	  people	  believe	  there	  is	  a	  balance	  between	  the	  space	  used	  for	  driving	  and	  that	  used	  for	  biking	  
or	  walking.	  While	  respondents	  felt	  that	  roads	  should	  not	  lose	  much	  space	  for	  bike	  lanes,	  they	  still	  
support	  biking	  and	  walking	  space	  in	  moderation.	  There	  are	  location	  specific	  needs	  for	  biking	  lanes,	  
and	  respondents	  said	  they	  wanted	  to	  see	  that	  lanes	  are	  only	  implemented	  when	  needed.	  	  

Some	  people	  suggested	  bike	  lanes	  be	  separated	  from	  heavy	  traffic	  as	  much	  as	  possible.	  Current	  
lanes,	  it	  was	  noted,	  are	  not	  safe	  enough	  to	  encourage	  use	  from	  the	  general	  public.	  This	  position	  
advocated	  for	  safer	  intersections	  and	  routes	  to	  provide	  better	  overall	  conditions	  for	  users.	  There	  is	  
a	  need	  to	  not	  only	  improve	  existing	  walkways	  respondents	  said,	  but	  to	  expand	  the	  infrastructure	  
for	  easy	  accessibility.	  Bike	  lanes	  were	  called	  out	  as	  a	  priority;	  however,	  there	  was	  less	  emphasis	  on	  
lanes	  being	  fully	  separated	  from	  traffic	  and	  greater	  focus	  on	  the	  extension	  of	  the	  network.	  	  

Respondents	  considered	  pedestrians	  underserved	  in	  general.	  They	  believed	  bike	  usage	  has	  enough	  
support	  and	  would	  like	  to	  see	  greater	  intersection	  safety	  for	  walking.	  Focusing	  on	  walkway	  

Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 21 of 246



	  

18	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	   	  	  	  	  	  Climate	  Smart	  Communities	  Scenarios	  Project	  	  
	   Public	  Comment	  Report	  |	  December	  9,	  2014	  

investment,	  they	  suggested,	  would	  allow	  safer	  travel	  for	  pedestrians,	  encouraging	  people	  to	  feel	  
more	  confident	  in	  their	  safety	  when	  walking.	  

Policy	  3.	  Invest	  more	  in	  making	  streets	  and	  highways	  safe,	  reliable	  and	  connected?	  

	  

At	  76	  percent,	  additional	  investment	  in	  streets	  and	  highways	  was	  less	  popular	  
overall	  compared	  to	  other	  policy	  areas.	  

• Respondents	  in	  both	  Washington	  and	  Clackamas	  counties	  were	  more	  in	  favor	  
of	  additional	  investment	  in	  this	  area,	  at	  84	  percent	  and	  82	  percent	  
respectively,	  compared	  to	  71	  percent	  of	  Multnomah	  County	  respondents.	  

• No	  significant	  difference	  was	  detected	  between	  ethnicities	  or	  education	  levels.	  

Respondents	  were	  asked	  what	  should	  be	  considered	  when	  deciding	  how	  to	  implement	  this	  policy.	  
The	  following	  themes	  were	  identified	  and	  are	  listed	  in	  order	  of	  frequency	  mentioned.	  Note	  that	  a	  
single	  response	  could	  include	  more	  than	  one	  theme	  and	  minor	  themes	  are	  not	  reflected.	  	  

	  

There	  was	  support	  for	  additional	  investment	  toward	  the	  roads	  and	  highways	  of	  the	  region.	  Many	  of	  
the	  respondents	  who	  supported	  additional	  investment	  in	  this	  policy	  area	  said	  they	  would	  like	  the	  
focus	  to	  be	  on	  repairing	  and	  maintaining	  current	  thoroughfares,	  while	  some	  residents	  are	  

Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 22 of 246



	  

Climate	  Smart	  Communities	  Scenarios	  Project	  	  
Public	  Comment	  Report	  |	  December	  9,	  2014	   19	  

interested	  in	  adding	  new,	  connected	  roadways	  and	  highways	  to	  create	  alternate	  travel	  routes.	  
Respondents	  believed	  these	  options	  would	  contribute	  to	  a	  safer	  environment	  for	  travelers.	  

“Maintain	  what	  we	  have”	  was	  emphasized	  by	  many	  people.	  They	  considered	  current	  infrastructure	  
to	  be	  sufficient	  and	  wanted	  focus	  to	  be	  shifted	  toward	  maintenance	  of	  roads.	  Widening	  of	  roads	  was	  
a	  primary	  concern	  from	  many	  people;	  they	  did	  not	  want	  to	  see	  investment	  spent	  here.	  Simple	  
maintenance,	  such	  as	  repairing	  potholes,	  was	  called	  out	  as	  a	  necessity.	  

Many	  respondents	  were	  nervous	  about	  the	  potential	  tax	  increase	  that	  would	  result	  from	  
investment	  in	  this	  area.	  They	  want	  to	  be	  confident	  that	  their	  money	  is	  being	  spent	  on	  long	  term	  
solutions,	  and	  not	  short	  term	  “patch”	  work.	  They	  recommended	  that	  various	  developers	  be	  
considered	  before	  simply	  choosing	  the	  lowest	  priced	  bid.	  Many	  proposed	  a	  higher	  fuel	  tax	  or	  
taxation	  of	  private	  vehicles	  to	  assist	  with	  the	  expenses.	  	  

Improving	  traffic	  flow	  was	  listed	  as	  a	  primary	  concern.	  Respondents	  understand	  that	  car	  travel	  is	  
the	  primary	  means	  of	  transportation	  and	  that	  investment	  here	  aides	  a	  utilitarian	  approach.	  
Expansion	  of	  freeway	  lanes	  was	  called	  out	  as	  a	  way	  to	  reduce	  congestion	  the	  most,	  although	  there	  
was	  also	  a	  voice	  for	  improving	  traffic	  signal	  timing	  to	  contribute	  to	  better	  traffic	  flow.	  

Many	  respondents	  were	  satisfied	  with	  current	  investment	  or	  considered	  the	  present	  system	  
adequate.	  They	  believe	  further	  investment	  will	  increase	  issues	  and	  support	  investment	  in	  this	  area	  
only	  when	  necessary.	  

Optimization	  of	  systems	  and	  programs	  	  

Policies	  four,	  five	  and	  six	  explore	  improving	  efficiency	  of	  the	  travel	  system	  through	  technology,	  
public	  information	  and	  parking	  management.	  	  

Policy	  4.	  Invest	  more	  in	  technology	  to	  actively	  manage	  the	  transportation	  system?	  

	  

Eighty-‐five	  percent	  of	  respondents	  supported	  the	  use	  of	  technology	  to	  wisely	  
manage	  the	  transportation	  system.	  This	  was	  the	  highest	  rated	  policy	  area.	  

• Support	  was	  high	  for	  respondents	  located	  in	  all	  counties,	  with	  the	  highest	  in	  
Multnomah	  at	  87	  percent,	  followed	  by	  Washington	  and	  Clackamas	  counties,	  
each	  at	  82	  percent.	  

• No	  significant	  difference	  was	  detected	  between	  age	  groups,	  ethnicities	  or	  education	  levels.	  

Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 23 of 246



	  

20	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	   	  	  	  	  	  Climate	  Smart	  Communities	  Scenarios	  Project	  	  
	   Public	  Comment	  Report	  |	  December	  9,	  2014	  

Respondents	  were	  asked	  what	  should	  be	  considered	  when	  deciding	  how	  to	  implement	  this	  policy.	  
The	  following	  themes	  were	  identified	  and	  listed	  in	  order	  of	  frequency	  mentioned.	  Note	  that	  a	  single	  
response	  could	  include	  more	  than	  one	  theme	  and	  minor	  themes	  are	  not	  reflected.	  

	  

Signs	  and	  reader	  boards	  on	  freeways	  were	  seen	  to	  be	  expensive	  and	  useless	  by	  many	  respondents.	  
Without	  having	  information	  provided	  on	  alternate	  routes	  respondents	  said,	  the	  signs	  provide	  no	  
assistance	  to	  travelers.	  Many	  expressed	  an	  opinion	  that	  technology	  as	  a	  resource	  lacks	  value	  and	  
the	  ability	  to	  significantly	  improve	  the	  system.	  

Others	  believed	  that	  technology	  that	  improves	  traffic	  flow	  is	  an	  asset	  and	  warrants	  investment.	  
They	  supported	  the	  use	  of	  Smartphone	  applications	  to	  alert	  travelers	  regarding	  traffic.	  This	  option	  
was	  seen	  as	  cost	  effective	  and	  scalable	  to	  a	  large	  audience.	  Improved	  timing	  of	  traffic	  signals	  was	  a	  
recurring	  theme.	  Some	  people	  added	  that	  pedestrian	  signals	  should	  make	  drivers	  of	  road	  vehicles	  
more	  aware	  of	  when	  crosswalks	  are	  in	  use.	  

People	  supported	  technology	  investment	  in	  this	  theme,	  but	  want	  decision-‐making	  to	  focus	  on	  value.	  
They	  were	  skeptical	  that	  all	  investments	  are	  necessary	  or	  a	  realistic	  expense.	  Most	  people	  preferred	  
investment	  be	  spent	  on	  specific	  areas	  of	  need,	  while	  restricting	  investment	  on	  overdeveloped	  areas.	  
They	  called	  for	  existing,	  established	  technology	  be	  used,	  rather	  than	  investing	  in	  new,	  unproven	  
technology.	  

There	  was	  a	  call	  for	  using	  technology	  tools	  to	  improve	  transit.	  These	  respondents	  believe	  
investment	  belongs	  with	  transit,	  not	  traffic	  flow.	  Traffic	  congestion	  was	  seen	  as	  a	  motivation	  to	  
switch	  to	  mass	  transit	  and	  other	  strategies,	  such	  as	  timing	  traffic	  signals,	  were	  not	  viewed	  as	  useful	  
expenditures.	  

Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 24 of 246



	  

Climate	  Smart	  Communities	  Scenarios	  Project	  	  
Public	  Comment	  Report	  |	  December	  9,	  2014	   21	  

Policy	  5.	  Invest	  more	  in	  providing	  information	  and	  incentives	  to	  expand	  the	  use	  of	  travel	  options?	  

	  

Overall,	  at	  68	  percent,	  respondents	  were	  supportive	  of	  additional	  investment	  in	  
providing	  information	  and	  incentives	  to	  promote	  alternative	  travel	  options,	  but	  
less	  supportive	  of	  this	  than	  other	  policy	  areas	  	  

• Multnomah	  County	  residents	  were	  far	  more	  likely	  to	  offer	  additional	  support	  
to	  this	  area,	  with	  74	  percent	  giving	  a	  positive	  response	  compared	  to	  56	  
percent	  in	  Washington	  County	  and	  58	  percent	  in	  Clackamas	  County.	  	  

• Other	  groups	  that	  expressed	  higher	  support	  of	  this	  policy	  included	  those	  under	  36	  years	  of	  age	  
(76	  percent	  compared	  to	  66	  percent	  for	  those	  36	  and	  older)	  and	  those	  who	  only	  have	  a	  high	  
school	  diploma	  compared	  to	  respondents	  with	  some	  post-‐secondary	  education	  (81	  percent	  
compared	  to	  68	  percent).	  	  

Respondents	  were	  asked	  what	  should	  be	  considered	  when	  deciding	  how	  to	  implement	  this	  policy.	  
The	  following	  themes	  were	  identified	  and	  listed	  in	  order	  of	  frequency	  mentioned.	  Note	  that	  a	  single	  
response	  could	  include	  more	  than	  one	  theme	  and	  minor	  themes	  are	  not	  reflected.	  

Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 25 of 246



	  

22	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	   	  	  	  	  	  Climate	  Smart	  Communities	  Scenarios	  Project	  	  
	   Public	  Comment	  Report	  |	  December	  9,	  2014	  

	  

Policy	  6.	  Implement	  policies	  to	  manage	  parking	  to	  make	  efficient	  use	  of	  land	  and	  parking	  spaces?	  

	  

Seventy-‐two	  percent	  of	  respondents	  supported	  the	  implementation	  of	  parking	  
policies.	  	  

• Multnomah	  County	  residents	  were	  more	  likely	  to	  support	  parking	  policies,	  
with	  75	  percent	  providing	  a	  positive	  response	  compared	  to	  68	  percent	  and	  67	  
percent	  of	  Washington	  and	  Clackamas	  residents,	  respectively.	  	  

• No	  significant	  differences	  were	  detected	  between	  various	  age	  groups,	  ethnicities	  or	  education	  
levels.	  	  

Respondents	  were	  asked	  what	  should	  be	  considered	  when	  deciding	  how	  to	  implement	  this	  policy	  
area.	  The	  following	  themes	  were	  identified	  and	  listed	  in	  order	  of	  frequency	  mentioned.	  Note	  that	  a	  
single	  response	  could	  include	  more	  than	  one	  theme	  and	  minor	  themes	  are	  not	  reflected.	  

	  

Most	  people	  desired	  greater	  efficiency	  from	  current	  parking	  options.	  These	  considerations	  ranged	  
from	  smaller	  parking	  spaces,	  less/better	  regulated	  handicap	  spaces	  and	  extended	  free	  parking	  
spaces.	  Efficiency	  of	  parking	  structures	  in	  particular	  was	  requested.	  Many	  want	  to	  focus	  on	  building	  
taller	  parking	  structures	  or	  underground	  structures	  to	  increase	  capacity.	  Many	  commented	  that	  the	  
lack	  of	  parking	  hurt	  businesses	  in	  the	  area.	  Several	  people	  mentioned	  that	  they	  explicitly	  avoid	  
Portland	  due	  to	  parking	  issues.	  

Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 26 of 246



	  

Climate	  Smart	  Communities	  Scenarios	  Project	  	  
Public	  Comment	  Report	  |	  December	  9,	  2014	   23	  

Educating	  the	  public	  that	  parking	  isn’t	  “free”	  was	  a	  recurring	  comment.	  Respondents	  expressed	  the	  
need	  for	  the	  price	  of	  parking	  to	  be	  increased	  and	  the	  removal	  on-‐street	  parking.	  They	  want	  heavy	  
users	  of	  parking	  to	  bear	  the	  cost	  of	  parking	  and	  not	  have	  it	  subsidized.	  Having	  less	  parking	  and	  
higher	  rates,	  they	  commented,	  would	  discourage	  vehicle	  traffic,	  which	  they	  felt	  would	  help	  alleviate	  
congestion	  in	  dense	  areas.	  

Respondents	  saw	  privatization	  as	  a	  more	  efficient	  means	  to	  provide	  for	  the	  region’s	  varied	  parking	  
demands.	  In	  general,	  having	  government	  manage	  this	  resource	  was	  not	  desired.	  Respondents	  
observed	  that	  businesses	  in	  dense	  areas	  were	  expected	  to	  provide	  parking	  for	  their	  customers	  or	  
suffer	  a	  decrease	  in	  customer	  traffic.	  It	  was	  also	  generally	  seen	  as	  the	  business	  community’s	  
responsibility	  to	  share	  their	  parking	  spaces	  when	  not	  in	  use	  to	  help	  increase	  utility.	  

There	  was	  wide	  support	  for	  investment	  in	  park-‐and-‐ride	  lots.	  Many	  commented	  that	  the	  current	  
lots	  are	  over	  utilized	  and	  in	  need	  of	  expansion,	  in	  particular,	  the	  Sunset	  Transit	  Center.	  The	  
opinions	  were	  balanced	  between	  building	  more	  parking	  structures	  and	  adding	  locations.	  In	  
addition,	  some	  people	  expressed	  concern	  about	  safety	  issues	  and	  saw	  the	  implementation	  of	  
security	  guards	  as	  a	  necessity.	  

Density	  related	  issues	  and	  the	  impact	  on	  parking	  was	  a	  primary	  concern	  of	  survey	  takers.	  
Respondents	  requested	  that	  developers	  be	  required	  to	  provide	  parking	  for	  apartment	  complexes.	  
The	  consensus	  was	  that	  the	  lack	  of	  parking	  at	  these	  structures	  only	  adds	  to	  on-‐street	  parking	  
congestion	  and	  people	  were	  adamant	  that	  the	  issues	  be	  addressed	  when	  planning	  of	  future	  
apartments.	  Many	  referred	  to	  Northwest	  Portland	  as	  the	  hub	  of	  future	  density	  issues.	  

Transportation	  investment	  overall	  

Policy	  7.	  Invest	  more	  in	  the	  maintenance	  of	  existing	  transportation	  infrastructure	  and	  new	  
improvements	  to	  accommodate	  a	  growing	  region?	  

	  

Eighty-‐three	  percent	  of	  respondents	  supported	  investment	  in	  the	  maintenance	  
of	  current	  infrastructure	  and	  planning	  for	  growth.	  More	  Multnomah	  County	  
residents	  were	  supportive	  of	  funding	  for	  this	  policy	  area	  than	  other	  
respondents	  (85	  percent	  compared	  to	  79	  percent	  for	  Washington	  and	  
Clackamas	  counties,	  respectively).	  

Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 27 of 246



	  

24	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	   	  	  	  	  	  Climate	  Smart	  Communities	  Scenarios	  Project	  	  
	   Public	  Comment	  Report	  |	  December	  9,	  2014	  

Respondents	  were	  asked	  what	  should	  be	  considered	  when	  deciding	  how	  to	  implement	  this	  policy.	  
The	  following	  themes	  were	  identified	  and	  listed	  in	  order	  of	  frequency	  mentioned.	  Note	  that	  a	  single	  
response	  could	  include	  more	  than	  one	  theme	  and	  minor	  themes	  are	  not	  reflected.	  

	  

The	  primary	  issue	  identified	  when	  considering	  investing	  in	  this	  area	  was	  how	  funds	  would	  be	  used	  
and	  distributed	  among	  the	  various	  travel	  options.	  There	  was	  a	  shared	  opinion	  that	  depending	  on	  
where	  certain	  funds	  are	  collected,	  those	  funds	  should	  be	  earmarked	  for	  specific	  uses.	  A	  common	  
example	  given	  was	  using	  gas	  tax	  monies	  for	  non-‐road	  improvements.	  While	  some	  did	  not	  agree	  
with	  how	  the	  funds	  were	  being	  allocated	  to	  different	  programs	  and	  projects,	  others	  felt	  that	  funds	  
were	  not	  being	  used	  wisely	  and	  questioned	  the	  management	  of	  expensive	  transportation	  projects.	  

Maintenance	  of	  current	  roadways	  was	  identified	  as	  a	  top	  priority.	  Respondents,	  with	  various	  
perspectives,	  generally	  felt	  that	  road	  maintenance	  should	  be	  mandatory.	  Opinions	  began	  to	  branch,	  
however,	  when	  discussing	  the	  need	  to	  widen	  or	  expand	  roadways.	  Many	  felt	  that	  investing	  in	  the	  
transit	  system	  would	  serve	  more	  of	  the	  population	  as	  public	  transit	  is	  adopted	  by	  more	  residents,	  
while	  others	  felt	  that	  additional	  investment	  should	  go	  to	  expanding	  roadways	  since	  at	  this	  time	  
more	  people	  drive	  than	  ride	  transit	  vehicles.	  

When	  it	  came	  to	  funding	  transportation	  projects,	  a	  wide	  variety	  of	  opinions	  were	  expressed.	  Some	  
felt	  it	  was	  only	  fair	  that	  users	  pay	  for	  the	  maintenance	  and	  expansion	  of	  each	  transportation	  mode.	  
This	  was	  true	  not	  only	  for	  those	  who	  thought	  that	  drivers	  should	  pay	  to	  maintain	  the	  road	  system	  
but	  also	  for	  those	  who	  want	  the	  transit	  system	  to	  be	  more	  self-‐sustaining.	  Some	  suggested	  that	  
bicycle	  licenses	  be	  required.	  Concern	  was	  also	  expressed	  about	  the	  ineffectiveness	  of	  the	  gas	  tax	  as	  
more	  and	  more	  fuel	  efficient	  vehicles	  are	  on	  the	  road.	  

Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 28 of 246



	  

Climate	  Smart	  Communities	  Scenarios	  Project	  	  
Public	  Comment	  Report	  |	  December	  9,	  2014	   25	  

While	  some	  respondents	  did	  not	  necessarily	  want	  to	  encourage	  growth	  in	  the	  region	  by	  making	  
forward-‐thinking	  improvements,	  many	  respondents	  felt	  improvement	  was	  necessary	  to	  maintain	  a	  
workable	  transportation	  system.	  	  

A	  complete	  list	  of	  all	  verbatim	  comments	  by	  policy	  area	  and	  organized	  by	  zip	  code	  are	  available	  in	  
Appendix	  F	  at	  the	  end	  of	  this	  report.	  

Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 29 of 246



	  

26	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	   	  	  	  	  	  Climate	  Smart	  Communities	  Scenarios	  Project	  	  
	   Public	  Comment	  Report	  |	  December	  9,	  2014	  

Message	  to	  policymakers	  

A	  final	  question	  on	  the	  survey	  gave	  
participants	  the	  opportunity	  to	  provide	  one	  
message	  regarding	  the	  Climate	  Smart	  
Strategy	  to	  policymakers.	  The	  question	  read:	  

Based	  on	  the	  draft	  Climate	  Smart	  Strategy	  as	  
you	  understand	  it,	  what	  message	  would	  you	  
like	  most	  to	  share	  with	  policymakers	  as	  they	  
consider	  the	  draft	  strategy	  for	  creating	  
healthy,	  equitable	  communities	  and	  a	  strong	  
economy	  while	  reducing	  greenhouse	  gas	  
emissions?	  

Approximately	  1,800	  comments	  were	  
submitted	  through	  the	  online	  survey.	  The	  top	  
three	  themes	  that	  emerged	  in	  the	  messages	  to	  
policymakers	  were:	  

• Invest	  more	  in	  transit,	  walking	  and	  biking	  
• Have	  a	  bold	  vision	  for	  the	  future	  
• Spend	  tax	  dollars	  wisely	  

These	  themes	  were	  communicated	  to	  the	  
advisory	  committees	  and	  Metro	  Council	  
during	  their	  deliberation	  process.	  A	  complete	  
list	  of	  themes	  in	  descending	  order	  of	  
frequency,	  along	  with	  the	  most	  common	  
responses	  to	  this	  question	  follows.	  

1. Invest	  more	  in	  alternative	  transportation	  	  
The	  most	  common	  message	  people	  wanted	  to	  
send	  to	  policymakers	  is	  one	  of	  support	  for	  
increased	  funding	  to	  alternative	  
transportation.	  They	  particularly	  wanted	  
investment	  in	  transit,	  but	  also	  in	  making	  
walking	  and	  biking	  easier.	  Their	  sentiment	  
was	  that	  investments	  should	  not	  be	  made	  to	  
make	  driving	  easier;	  rather,	  investments	  
should	  support	  active	  transportation	  and	  a	  
new	  kind	  of	  sustainable	  transportation	  
system	  for	  the	  region.	  

	  

	  

2. Have	  a	  bold	  vision	  for	  a	  sustainable	  future	  	  
People	  urged	  policymakers	  to	  have	  a	  bold	  
vision	  for	  the	  future,	  and	  to	  take	  the	  steps	  
needed	  to	  make	  that	  vision	  a	  reality.	  They	  
asked	  policymakers	  to	  do	  what	  is	  good	  for	  the	  
region,	  regardless	  of	  politics.	  It	  was	  important	  
to	  those	  who	  responded	  for	  policymakers	  to	  
have	  a	  strong	  vision	  for	  reducing	  greenhouse	  
gas	  emissions	  in	  the	  face	  of	  climate	  change,	  
and	  creating	  a	  sustainable	  transportation	  
system.	  	  

3. Concern	  about	  the	  impact	  on	  taxpayers	  	  
Both	  supporters	  and	  non-‐supporters	  of	  the	  
Climate	  Smart	  project	  expressed	  concern	  
about	  the	  cost	  of	  investments.	  They	  urged	  
policymakers	  to	  make	  cost-‐effective	  
decisions,	  and	  to	  limit	  raising	  taxes	  and	  fees	  
when	  possible,	  or	  to	  create	  an	  equitable	  tax	  
structure	  that	  does	  not	  unduly	  burden	  one	  
segment	  of	  society.	  Some	  opposed	  certain	  
funding	  mechanisms	  proposed	  by	  the	  project,	  
particularly	  the	  VMT	  fee	  (although	  it	  should	  
be	  noted	  that	  an	  equal	  number	  expressed	  
support	  for	  the	  VMT	  fee).	  

4. Support	  for	  a	  proposed	  funding	  
mechanism	  	  

Some	  people	  expressed	  support	  for	  a	  specific	  
funding	  mechanism	  for	  investments.	  Most	  
commonly,	  they	  supported	  a	  carbon	  tax,	  and	  
others	  supported	  raising	  the	  gas	  tax,	  
instituting	  the	  VMT	  fee,	  or	  some	  other	  
funding	  mechanism.	  The	  sentiment	  behind	  
much	  of	  this	  support	  was	  that	  such	  fees	  
should	  be	  used	  to	  help	  fund	  alternative	  
transportation	  or	  to	  help	  curb	  the	  effects	  of	  
climate	  change.	  

5. Support	  for	  using	  clean	  fuels,	  alternative	  
energy	  and	  electric/hybrid	  vehicles	  	  

Some	  people	  wanted	  more	  investment	  in	  
clean	  fuels,	  as	  well	  as	  making	  electric	  and	  
hybrid	  vehicles	  more	  widely	  available	  and	  
more	  affordable.	  Some	  also	  suggested	  greater	  

Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 30 of 246



	  

Climate	  Smart	  Communities	  Scenarios	  Project	  	  
Public	  Comment	  Report	  |	  December	  9,	  2014	   27	  

investment	  in	  electric	  or	  clean-‐fuel	  transit	  
buses.	  

6. Let	  the	  market	  decide,	  and	  reduce	  
government	  regulation	  

Some	  people	  expressed	  concern	  that	  there	  is	  
too	  much	  government	  control	  implicated	  in	  
this	  project.	  They	  would	  rather	  see	  more	  
market-‐driven	  practices,	  or	  more	  control	  at	  
the	  local	  level.	  Some	  also	  expressed	  distrust	  
of	  government	  agencies.	  

A	  complete	  list	  of	  verbatim	  comments	  
organized	  by	  zip	  code	  is	  available	  in	  Appendix	  
B	  at	  the	  end	  of	  this	  report.	  

Further	  informing	  
implementation	  
The	  Climate	  Smart	  Strategy	  will	  be	  
implemented	  through	  existing	  regional	  
planning	  and	  decision-‐making	  processes,	  
including	  Regional	  Transportation	  Plan	  
updates,	  Regional	  Flexible	  Funds	  allocation	  
processes,	  growth	  management	  decisions	  and	  
corridor	  planning,	  as	  well	  as	  through	  local	  
and	  state	  planning	  and	  decision-‐making	  
processes,	  rather	  than	  a	  specific	  Climate	  
Smart	  implementation	  program.	  	  

Comments	  received	  during	  this	  period	  will	  
inform	  these	  implementation	  efforts.	  Project	  
staff	  expect	  to	  provide	  more	  detailed	  
information	  gathered	  during	  this	  comment	  
period	  in	  spring	  2015	  to	  other	  Metro	  staff	  as	  
well	  as	  city,	  county	  and	  regional	  agency	  staff	  
and	  policymakers	  for	  additional	  
consideration.	  Through	  its	  planning	  
processes,	  in	  coordination	  with	  its	  Equity	  
Strategy	  (currently	  under	  development),	  
Metro	  is	  committed	  to	  continue	  to	  improve	  its	  
engagement	  practices	  to	  ensure	  more	  diverse	  
perspectives	  –	  especially	  those	  of	  historically	  
underrepresented	  communities	  –	  are	  
meaningfully	  engaged	  in	  regional	  planning,	  

decision-‐making,	  and	  on-‐going	  
implementation	  activities.	  Future	  public	  
engagement	  processes	  will	  be	  developed	  in	  
coordination	  with	  Metro’s	  diversity,	  equity	  
and	  inclusion	  program	  and	  Metro's	  existing	  
advisory	  committees,	  and	  follow	  the	  best	  
practices	  and	  processes	  set	  out	  in	  Metro’s	  
Public	  Engagement	  Guide.	  	  

As	  a	  large	  portion	  of	  Metro's	  implementation	  
responsibilities	  will	  be	  carried	  out	  through	  
the	  next	  Regional	  Transportation	  Plan,	  staff	  
will	  begin	  scoping	  the	  work	  plan	  and	  
engagement	  for	  the	  next	  scheduled	  update	  to	  
the	  RTP	  in	  2015.	  The	  scoping	  effort	  will	  
engage	  local	  governments,	  community	  and	  
business	  leaders	  and	  the	  networks	  they	  
represent.	  The	  update	  is	  expected	  to	  occur	  
over	  multiple	  years	  in	  order	  to	  address	  
federal	  and	  state	  planning	  requirements	  and	  
policy	  considerations	  and	  engagement	  
recommendations	  identified	  through	  the	  
Climate	  Smart	  Communities	  Scenarios	  Project	  
and	  the	  2014	  RTP	  update.	  

Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 31 of 246



	  

Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 32 of 246



	  

	  

Appendix	  A.	  

	  

	  

Public	  comment	  period	  
notices,	  promotions	  
and	  media	  coverage	  

This	  section	  is	  a	  compilation	  of	  notices	  posted	  and	  distributed	  by	  Metro	  announcing	  the	  public	  
comment	  period,	  promotions	  of	  the	  comment	  period	  by	  other	  organizations,	  overview	  of	  how	  
social	  media	  was	  used	  to	  promote	  the	  comment	  period,	  and	  media	  coverage	  received	  during	  
the	  public	  comment	  period.	  

	  

	   	  

Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 33 of 246



	  

Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 34 of 246



Climate Smart Communities Scenarios Project 45-day comment period
Your input today will determine the future of the region for generations to come.

The Oregon Legislature has required the Portland metropolitan region to reduce per capita 
greenhouse gas emissions from cars and small trucks by 2035. Weigh in on a draft approach 
and proposed actions for reducing greenhouse gas emissions and building great communities. 
Your input today will help inform the Metro Council’s decision in December.
Learn about and respond to how future transportation and land use policies and actions 
can shape our communities.

Visit www.makeagreatplace.org  
Monday, Sept. 15 to Thursday, Oct. 30, 2014.

The Metro Council is scheduled to hold a public hearing on the Climate Smart Communities Scenarios 
Project draft approach at 2 p.m. Thursday, Oct. 30, 2014, and scheduled to hold a public hearing and 
take legislative action on the draft approach at 2 p.m. Thursday, Dec. 18, 2014, at the Metro Regional 
Center, 600 NE Grand Ave., Portland.
Submit comments online at www.makeagreatplace.org, by mail to Metro Planning, 600 NE Grand Ave., 
Portland, OR 97232, by email to climatescenarios@oregonmetro.gov, or by phone at 503-797-1750 or TDD 
503-797-1804, from Sept. 15 through Oct. 30.

Esta es una notificación de su oportunidad para comentar sobre las prioridades de transporte en la 
región. Para recibir una traducción de la notificación pública completa en español, llame al 503-797-1700 
(de 8 a.m. a 5 p.m. los días de semana).

Đây là thông báo về cơ hội của quý vị được trình bày ý kiến đối với các ưu tiên về chuyên chở trong 
vùng. Muốn nhận được bản dịch đầy đủ của thông báo bằng Tiếng Việt, xin gọi số 503-797-1700 (từ 8 
giờ sáng đến 5 giờ chiều vào những ngày thường).
本公告旨在通知您利用這個機會評議在您所在社區經營危險廢棄物設施的申請。 要獲取完整的繁
體中文翻譯版公告，請撥打503-797-1700（工作日上午8點至下午5點）。
Настоящим уведомляем, что у вас есть возможность оставить свой отзыв относительно 
приоритетов транспортного развития в вашем регионе. Русскую версию настоящего 
оповещения можно запросить по номеру 503-797-1700 в рабочие дни с 8:00 до 17:00.
본 통지서는 지역 내 교통 관련 우선 사항에 대해 귀하의 의견을 제시할 수 있는 기회를 알려 드
리기 위한 것입니다. 한국어로 번역된 통지서 전문을 받아보시려면, 503-797-1700로 문의하십시
오(주중 오전 8시 ~ 오후 5시).

Climate Smart Communities Scenarios Project 45-day comment period
Your input today will determine the future of the region for generations to come.

The Oregon Legislature has required the Portland metropolitan region to reduce per capita 
greenhouse gas emissions from cars and small trucks by 2035. Weigh in on a draft approach 
and proposed actions for reducing greenhouse gas emissions and building great communities. 
Your input today will help inform the Metro Council’s decision in December.
Learn about and respond to how future transportation and land use policies and actions 
can shape our communities.

Visit www.makeagreatplace.org  
Monday, Sept. 15 to Thursday, Oct. 30, 2014.

The Metro Council is scheduled to hold a public hearing on the Climate Smart Communities 
Scenarios Project draft approach at 2 p.m. Thursday, Oct. 30, 2014, and scheduled to hold a 
public hearing and take legislative action on the draft approach at 2 p.m. Thursday, Dec. 18, 
2014, at the Metro Regional Center, 600 NE Grand Ave., Portland.

Submit comments online at www.makeagreatplace.org, by mail to Metro Planning, 600 NE Grand Ave., 
Portland, OR 97232, by email to climatescenarios@oregonmetro.gov, or by phone at 503-797-1750 or 
TDD 503-797-1804, from Sept. 15 through Oct. 30.

Esta es una notificación de su oportunidad para comentar sobre las prioridades de 
transporte en la región. Para recibir una traducción de la notificación pública completa 
en español, llame al 503-797-1700 (de 8 a.m. a 5 p.m. los días de semana).

Đây là thông báo về cơ hội của quý vị được trình bày ý kiến đối với các ưu tiên 
về chuyên chở trong vùng. Muốn nhận được bản dịch đầy đủ của thông báo bằng 
Tiếng Việt, xin gọi số 503-797-1700 (từ 8 giờ sáng đến 5 giờ chiều vào những 
ngày thường).

本公告旨在通知您利用這個機會評議在您所在社區經營危險廢棄物設施的申
請。 要獲取完整的繁體中文翻譯版公告，請撥打503-797-1700（工作日上午8
點至下午5點）。

Настоящим уведомляем, что у вас есть возможность оставить свой отзыв 
относительно приоритетов транспортного развития в вашем регионе. 
Русскую версию настоящего оповещения можно запросить по номеру 503-
797-1700 в рабочие дни с 8:00 до 17:00.

본 통지서는 지역 내 교통 관련 우선 사항에 대해 귀하의 의견을 제시할 수 있
는 기회를 알려 드리기 위한 것입니다. 한국어로 번역된 통지서 전문을 받아보
시려면, 503-797-1700로 문의하십시오(주중 오전 8시 ~ 오후 5시).

Ad: Beaverton Valley Times (published Aug. 28, 2014) 
and Gresham Outlook (published Aug. 26, 2014)

Ad: Portland Observer (published Aug. 27, 2014) 

Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 35 of 246



Key	  public	  agencies,	  Citizen	  participation	  organizations	  and	  citizen	  community	  involvement	  contacts	  and	  
public	  agency	  planning	  staff	  that	  received	  notices	  of	  the	  public	  comment	  period	  	  

1	  
	  

Key	  public	  agencies	  
• Oregon	  Department	  of	  Transportation	  (ODOT)	  
• Oregon	  Department	  of	  Environmental	  Quality	  (DEQ)	  
• Oregon	  Department	  of	  Land	  Conservation	  and	  Development	  (DLCD)	  
• 25	  cities	  and	  3	  counties	  in	  the	  Portland	  metropolitan	  region	  
• TriMet	  
• Port	  of	  Portland	  
• South	  Metro	  Area	  Regional	  Transit	  (SMART)	  
	  
Citizen	  participation	  organizations	  and	  citizen	  community	  involvement	  contacts	  
Jonah	  Willbach	  	  
Information	  &	  Referral	  Specialist	  	  
Office	  of	  Neighborhood	  Involvement	  	  
503-‐865-‐2628	  	  
Jonah.Willbach@portlandoregon.gov	  	  
Notification	  distribution:	  oninotification@portlandoregon.gov	  
https://www.portlandoregon.gov/oni/28385	  
	  
Barbara	  Smolak,	  Clackamas	  County	  Public	  and	  Government	  Affairs	  
2051	  Kaen	  Road	  	  
Oregon	  City,	  OR	  97045	  
503-‐655-‐8552	  
barbarasmo@co.clackamas.or.us	  
http://www.clackamas.us/citizenin/cpo.html	  
	  
Dan	  Schauer	  	  
Citizen	  Participation	  Organization	  Program	  Coordinator	  	  
Oregon	  State	  University	  Extension	  Service-‐Washington	  County	  	  
155	  N	  First	  Avenue,	  Ste.	  200	  
Hillsboro,	  OR	  97124	  
503-‐821-‐1123	  
dan.schauer@oregonstate.edu	  	  
http://extension.oregonstate.edu/washington/cpo	  	  
	  
Multnomah	  County	  Office	  of	  Citizen	  Involvement	  	  
Robb	  Wolfson,	  Citizen	  Involvement	  Coordinator	  
501	  SE	  Hawthorne	  Avenue,	  Rm.192	  
Portland,	  OR	  97214	  
(503)	  988-‐3450	  
citizen.involvement@multco.us	  
https://multco.us/oci	  (Citizen	  Involvement	  Committee	  for	  the	  county)	  
https://multco.us/oci/neighborhood-‐recognition	  (six	  associations	  in	  unincorporated	  areas)	  
	  
Aaron	  Abrams,	  Gresham	  Citizen	  Involvement	  Committee	  
aaron.abrams@greshamoregon.gov	  
https://greshamoregon.gov/city/city-‐departments/neighborhoods-‐and-‐community-‐
engagement/neighborhood-‐associations/	  

Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 36 of 246



Key	  public	  agencies,	  Citizen	  participation	  organizations	  and	  citizen	  community	  involvement	  contacts	  and	  
public	  agency	  planning	  staff	  that	  received	  notices	  of	  the	  public	  comment	  period	  	  

2	  
	  

	   	  
Public	  agency	  planning	  staff	  
karenb@co.clackamas.or.us;	  
jmorgan@damascusoregon.gov;	  
boyce@ci.gladstone.or.us;	  
michaelw@happeyvalleyor.gov;	  
kelverb@milwaukieoregon.gov;	  
butlers@milwaukieoregon.gov;	  
aowings@ci.owsego.or.us;	  
jmlewis@ci.oregon-‐city.or.us;	  
zpelz@westlinnoregon.gov;	  
kraushaar@ci.wilsonville.or.us;	  
joanna.valencia@co.multnomah.or.us;	  
berrya@fairview.ci.or.us;	  
katherine.kelly@greshamoregon.gov	  ;	  
steve.gaschler@troutdaleoregon.gov;	  
markg@ci.wood-‐village.or.us;	  
christina_deffebach@co.washington.or.us;	  
tjuhasz@beavertonoregon.gov;	  
rreynolds@ci.cornelius.or.us;	  
jholan@forestgrove-‐or.us;	  
don.odermott@hillsboro-‐oregon.gov;	  
brad.choi@hillsboro-‐oregon.gov;	  
hajdukj@sherwoodoregon.gov;	  
judith@tigard-‐or.gov;	  
bbryant@ci.tualatin-‐or.us;	  
Lidwien.rahman@odot.state.or.us;	  
Rian.m.windsheimer@odot.state.or.us;	  
Kirsten.pennington@odot.state.or.us;	  
hessee@trimet.org;	  
lehto@trimet.org;	  
Courtney.duke@portlandoregon.gov;	  
Peter.t.hurley@portlandoregon.gov;	  
Philip.healy@portofportland.com;	  
Susie.lahsene@portofportland.com;	  
Kathryn.williams@portofportland.com;	  
jerri.l.bohard@odot.state.or.us	  
amanda.pietz@odot.state.or.us	  	  
	  

	  

Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 37 of 246



Ads used to publicize public comment period to local Community Planning and Citizen Involvement 
organizations. 

 

SHORT VERSION (138 words) 

Climate Smart Communities Scenarios Project 45-day comment period, Sept. 15 – Oct. 30, 2014 

In 2009, the Oregon Legislature required the Portland metropolitan region to reduce per capita 
greenhouse gas emissions from cars and small trucks by 2035. After four years of collaboration and 
engagement with regional partners and the public, a draft Climate Smart Strategy is ready for review.  

From Sept. 15 through Oct. 30, 2014, comments may be submitted online at 
www.makeagreatplace.org.  Comments can also be sent by mail to Metro Planning, 600 NE Grand Ave., 
Portland, OR, 97232, by email to climatescenarios@oregonmetro.gov, or by phone at 503-797-1750 or 
TDD 503-797-1804. 

Public hearings on the draft strategy: 2 p.m. Oct. 30 and Dec. 18, 2014, at Metro Regional Center, 600 
NE Grand Ave., Portland. 

For more information on the Climate Smart Communities Scenarios Project, visit 
oregonmetro.gov/climate scenarios. 

 

LONG VERSION (182 words) 

Climate Smart Communities Scenarios Project 45-day comment period, Sept. 15 – Oct. 30, 2014 

In 2009, the Oregon Legislature required the Portland metropolitan region to reduce per capita 
greenhouse gas emissions from cars and small trucks by 2035. After four years of collaboration and 
engagement with regional partners and the public, a draft Climate Smart Strategy is ready for review.  

From Sept. 15 through Oct. 30, 2014, comments may be submitted online at 
www.makeagreatplace.org.  Comments can also be sent by mail to Metro Planning, 600 NE Grand Ave., 
Portland, OR, 97232, by email to climatescenarios@oregonmetro.gov, or by phone at 503-797-1750 or 
TDD 503-797-1804. 

To provide more in depth feedback, visit oregonmetro.gov/draftapproach beginning Sept. 15 to 
download and review: 

 draft toolbox of possible early actions that can be taken in the next five years  

 draft performance monitoring and reporting approach for how we will measure progress 

Public hearings on the draft strategy: 2 p.m. Oct. 30 and Dec. 18, 2014, at Metro Regional Center, 600 
NE Grand Ave., Portland. 

For more information on the Climate Smart Communities Scenarios Project, visit 
oregonmetro.gov/climate scenarios. 

 

Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 38 of 246

http://www.makeagreatplace.org/
mailto:climatescenarios@oregonmetro.gov
https://owa.oregonmetro.gov/owa/redir.aspx?C=Mnh70LXX8ESR86Rrg4rF1WVGbS-nntFI2tymPtiFJGVD2kTNa-_EtfLzTbUc5scLR1-9tgoGnLQ.&URL=http%3a%2f%2fwww.makeagreatplace.org
https://owa.oregonmetro.gov/owa/redir.aspx?C=Mnh70LXX8ESR86Rrg4rF1WVGbS-nntFI2tymPtiFJGVD2kTNa-_EtfLzTbUc5scLR1-9tgoGnLQ.&URL=mailto%3aclimatescenarios%40oregonmetro.gov
http://oregonmetro.gov/draftapproach


Example of email notification. Sent with comment period flyer. 
 
 

The Climate Smart Communities Scenarios Project draft Climate Smart Strategy is available 
for public review and comment from Sept. 15 to Oct. 30, 2014.  

In 2009, the Oregon Legislature required the Portland metropolitan region to reduce per capita 
greenhouse gas emissions from cars and small trucks by 2035. After four years of collaboration 
and engagement with regional partners and the public, a draft Climate Smart Strategy is ready 
for review.  

Your voice is important  

You are invited to provide feedback during the public comment period from Sept. 15 through 
Oct. 30, 2014.  

• Take a short survey online at makeagreatplace.org on transportation and land use 
policies and actions that can shape our communities.  

To provide more in depth feedback, visit oregonmetro.gov/draftapproach to download and 
review the draft approach and implementation recommendations (Regional Framework Plan 
amendments, toolbox of possible actions and performance monitoring approach) and provide 
comments in one of the following ways:  

• Mail comments to Metro Planning, 600 NE Grand Ave., Portland, OR 97232  
• Email comments to climatescenarios@oregonmetro.gov  
• Phone in comments to 503-797-1750 or TDD 503-797-1804  
• Testify at a Metro Council hearing on Oct. 30, 2014, at 600 NE Grand Ave., Portland, OR 

97232 in the Council chamber  
 
To learn more about the Climate Smart Communities Scenarios Project, visit 
oregonmetro.gov/climatescenarios.  
 
You have received this message as a member of Metro's Planning enews interested persons list. 
To be removed from this list, notify trans@oregonmetro.gov. 
 

Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 39 of 246

mailto:climatescenarios@oregonmetro.gov
mailto:trans@oregonmetro.gov


   Fall 2014 
 

             www.oregonmetro.gov 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Whether you moved to 
Oregon last week or trace 
your roots generations deep, 
you have your own reason for 
loving this place – and Metro 
wants to keep it that way. 
Help shape the future of the 
greater Portland region and 
discover tools, services and 
places that make life better 
today. 

 
Stay in touch with news, 
stories and things to do. 

www.oregonmetro.gov/ 
connect 

 

 
Metro Council President 

 
Tom Hughes 

 
Metro Councilors 

 
Shirley Craddick, District 1 
Carlotta Collette, District 2 
Craig Dirksen, District 3 
Kathryn Harrington, District 4 
Sam Chase, District 5 
Bob Stacey, District 6 

 
Auditor 
Suzanne Flynn 

Public comment period 
Monday, Sept. 15 to Thursday, Oct. 30, 2014 
 

Your input today on the Climate Smart Communities Scenarios 
Project will determine the future of the region for 
generations to come. 
The Oregon Legislature has required the Portland metropolitan region to reduce per  
capita greenhouse gas emissions from cars and small trucks by 2035. Weigh in on a draft 
approach and proposed actions for reducing greenhouse gas emissions and building great 
communities. Your input today will help inform the Metro Council’s decision in 
December. 

Your voice is important 
You are invited to provide feedback during the public comment period from Sept. 15 
through Oct. 30, 2014. 

• Take a short survey online at makeagreatplace.org on transportation and land use 
policies and actions that can shape our communities. 

To provide more in depth feedback, visit oregonmetro.gov/draftapproach to download and 
review the draft approach and implementation recommendations (Regional Framework 
Plan amendments, toolbox of possible actions and performance monitoring approach) and 
provide comments in one of the following ways: 

• Mail comments to Metro Planning, 600 NE Grand Ave., Portland, OR 97232 
• Email comments to climatescenarios@oregonmetro.gov 
• Phone in comments to 503-797-1750 or TDD 503-797-1804  
• Testify at a Metro Council hearing on Oct. 30, 2014, at 600 NE Grand Ave., Portland, OR 

97232 in the Council chamber 
 
To learn more about the Climate Smart Communities Scenarios Project, visit 
oregonmetro.gov/climatescenarios 

Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 40 of 246

http://www.oregonmetro.gov/
http://www.oregonmetro.gov/
http://www.makeagreatplace.org/
http://oregonmetro.gov/draftapproach
mailto:climatescenarios@oregonmetro.gov


Sent to Opt In online opinion panel of 20,000+ encouraging participation in online survey | Oct. 16, 2014 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Climate Smart Communities Scenarios Project 

Public comment period Sept. 15 to Oct. 30, 2014  

 

The Climate Smart Communities Scenarios Project responds to a state mandate to reduce 

greenhouse gas emissions from cars and small trucks by 2035. After a four-year 

collaborative process, a draft Climate Smart Strategy is now available for your review and 

comments.  

 

Your voice is important 

You are invited to provide feedback during the public comment period from Sept. 15 

through Oct. 30, 2014.  

 

Here are two ways you can participate:  

1. Take a short (8-10 minute) survey at makeagreatplace.org on transportation and 

land use policies and actions that can shape our communities. 

2. Provide more in-depth feedback by visiting oregonmetro.gov/draftapproach to review 
and provide comments on the draft approach and implementation recommendations. 

To learn more about the Climate Smart Communities Scenarios Project, visit 

oregonmetro.gov/climatescenarios  

 

 
 

Metro respects civil rights 

Metro fully complies with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 and related statutes that 

ban discrimination. If any person believes they have been discriminated against regarding 

the receipt of benefits or services because of race, color, national origin, sex, age or 

disability, they have the right to file a complaint with Metro. For information on Metro’s civil 

rights program, or to obtain a discrimination complaint form, visit 

www.oregonmetro.gov/civilrights or call 503-797-1536. 

 
We respect the personal nature of e-mail communication. If you do not wish to receive e-

mail from us in the future, please click here.  

 

This e-mail was sent to the following address: chelsea@askpivot.com  

 

Pivot Group, LLC 

7145 SW Varns St., Suite 101 

Portland, OR 97223 

Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 41 of 246

http://makeagreatplace.org/
http://oregonmetro.gov/draftapproach
http://oregonmetro.gov/climatescenarios
http://www.oregonmetro.gov/civilrights
http://survey.optinpanel.org/survey/pm/opt/remove?ex=chelsea@askpivot.com
mailto:chelsea@askpivot.com


Reminder sent to Opt In online opinion panel of 20,000+ encouraging participation in online survey | Oct. 16, 2014 

 

 

 

 

Take a short survey and join 1,200 friends and neighbors who have already shared their 

priorities for the future of the Portland metropolitan region.  

 

Climate Smart Communities Scenarios Project 

Public comment period Sept. 15 to Oct. 30, 2014  

 

The Climate Smart Communities Scenarios Project responds to a state mandate to reduce 

greenhouse gas emissions from cars and small trucks by 2035. After a four-year 

collaborative process a draft Climate Smart Strategy is now available for your review and 

comments.  

 

Your voice is important 

Take a short (8-10 minute) survey at makeagreatplace.org on transportation and land use 

policies and actions that can shape our communities.  

 

To learn more about the Climate Smart Communities Scenarios Project, visit 

oregonmetro.gov/climatescenarios.  

 

 
 

Metro respects civil rights 

Metro fully complies with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 and related statutes that 

ban discrimination. If any person believes they have been discriminated against regarding 

the receipt of benefits or services because of race, color, national origin, sex, age or 

disability, they have the right to file a complaint with Metro. For information on Metro’s civil 

rights program, or to obtain a discrimination complaint form, visit 

www.oregonmetro.gov/civilrights or call 503-797-1536. 

 
 

 

We respect the personal nature of e-mail communication. If you do not wish to receive e-

mail from us in the future, please click here.  

 

This e-mail was sent to the following address: chelsea@askpivot.com  

 

Pivot Group, LLC 

7145 SW Varns St., Suite 101 

Portland, OR 97223  

Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 42 of 246

http://makeagreatplace.org/
http://oregonmetro.gov/climatescenarios
http://www.oregonmetro.gov/civilrights
http://survey.optinpanel.org/survey/pm/opt/remove?ex=chelsea@askpivot.com
mailto:chelsea@askpivot.com


Promotion of public comment period featured in eNewsletter of 1000 Friends of Oregon | Oct. 27, 2014 

 

 
 

 

Dear Kim, 
 
This October we hosted a conference for the Growth Management Leadership Alliance. 
Smart growth and farmland protection advocates from around the country gathered in 
Oregon to share cutting edge work, bright ideas, and inspire our community of 
collaborators. You were part of that conversation: You make our work here in Oregon 
possible. Thank you.  
 
Below you'll find a preview of the Rogue Valley Food System Network's launch next 
month, a request to Metro-area residents to weigh in on Climate Smart Communities 
planning, highlights from the Healthy Community Speaker Series, an offer for a free 
home energy assessment (which earns $100 for our strategic planning!), and 
opportunites to connect with land use.  
 
All our best, 
The team at 1000 Friends of Oregon 

The Future of Food and Farming in 
the Rogue Valley: a discussion with 
the Rogue Valley Food System 
Network 

A collaborative community of regional 
leaders has formed to develop and 
advocate for a healthy, sustainable food 
system in Jackson and Josephine 
Counties. The Rogue Valley Food System 
Network includes partners from many 
sectors, including our Southern Oregon 
Advocate, Greg Holmes. Greg works to For more information, visit 

Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 43 of 246



Promotion of public comment period featured in eNewsletter of 1000 Friends of Oregon | Oct. 27, 2014 

 

ensure a reliable supply of the right kind 
of farmland across the region. We’re 
investing in the Rogue Valley Food 
System Network because farmland is a 
necessary but not sufficient condition for 
a sustainable, equitable, and 
economically robust food system in the 
Rogue Valley.  
   

November 19 from 7:00-8:30pm at the 
Medford Public Library (205 S. Center, 
Medford, OR).  
 
The event is free and open to the public. 
Please do RSVP here.  
  

friends.org/RogueFoodFuture. 

Let Metro Know you Want Healthy, 
Livable Neighborhoods 

The Metro regional government is on the 
verge of adopting an exciting strategy to 
bring walkable neighborhoods, better 
transit service, celaner air, and housing 
choice to our communities (which will 
also reduce pollution from cars and 
trucks!).  
 
For this to be successful Metro and the 
region must invest in more affordable 
housing, sidewalks, bikeways, and 
transit. Read more about our input to 
Metro here.  
 
Share your priorities here before Oct. 30: 
visit makeagreatplace.org to weigh in.  
 

Remember Citizen Participation is Goal 1 
of Oregon’s land use planning program -- 
make your voice heard!  

http://makeagreatplace.org/ 
 

friends.org/latest/let-metro-know-you-
want-healthy-livable-neighborhoods 

Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 44 of 246

http://cts.vresp.com/c/?1000FriendsofOregon/5f577c5de9/c960bf881f/989bda7a92/utm_content=kim.ellis%40oregonmetro.gov&utm_source=VerticalResponse&utm_medium=Email&utm_term=RSVP%20here&utm_campaign=Oregon%20Stories%3A%20Rogue%20Valley%2C%20Health%2C%20and%20More
http://cts.vresp.com/c/?1000FriendsofOregon/5f577c5de9/c960bf881f/1367917289/utm_content=kim.ellis%40oregonmetro.gov&utm_source=VerticalResponse&utm_medium=Email&utm_term=friends%2Eorg%2FRogueFoodFuture&utm_campaign=Oregon%20Stories%3A%20Rogue%20Valley%2C%20Health%2C%20and%20More
http://cts.vresp.com/c/?1000FriendsofOregon/5f577c5de9/c960bf881f/3849f3062e/utm_content=kim.ellis%40oregonmetro.gov&utm_source=VerticalResponse&utm_medium=Email&utm_term=our%20input%20to%20Metro%20here&utm_campaign=Oregon%20Stories%3A%20Rogue%20Valley%2C%20Health%2C%20and%20More
http://cts.vresp.com/c/?1000FriendsofOregon/5f577c5de9/c960bf881f/3849f3062e/utm_content=kim.ellis%40oregonmetro.gov&utm_source=VerticalResponse&utm_medium=Email&utm_term=our%20input%20to%20Metro%20here&utm_campaign=Oregon%20Stories%3A%20Rogue%20Valley%2C%20Health%2C%20and%20More
http://cts.vresp.com/c/?1000FriendsofOregon/5f577c5de9/c960bf881f/70557dc2eb
http://cts.vresp.com/c/?1000FriendsofOregon/5f577c5de9/c960bf881f/c6d6266669
http://cts.vresp.com/c/?1000FriendsofOregon/5f577c5de9/c960bf881f/0aa845b8df/utm_content=kim.ellis%40oregonmetro.gov&utm_source=VerticalResponse&utm_medium=Email&utm_term=friends%2Eorg%2Flatest%2Flet-metro-know-you-want-healthy-livable-neighborhoods&utm_campaign=Oregon%20Stories%3A%20Rogue%20Valley%2C%20Health%2C%20and%20More
http://cts.vresp.com/c/?1000FriendsofOregon/5f577c5de9/c960bf881f/0aa845b8df/utm_content=kim.ellis%40oregonmetro.gov&utm_source=VerticalResponse&utm_medium=Email&utm_term=friends%2Eorg%2Flatest%2Flet-metro-know-you-want-healthy-livable-neighborhoods&utm_campaign=Oregon%20Stories%3A%20Rogue%20Valley%2C%20Health%2C%20and%20More


Promotion of public comment period featured in eNewsletter of 1000 Friends of Oregon | Oct. 27, 2014 

 

Cooperating Attorney Program 
Works on Goal 1 (Citizen 
Participation) in Hood River 

1000 Friends considers public 
participation in local land use decisions 
paramount. The ability to participate 
locally helps ensure local governments 
are responsive. Most land use decisions 
require a hearing with the opportunity to 
testify, but when neither policy nor legal 
judgment is necessary for a 
decision local governments can 
ministerially approve applications without 
consulting the public. Recently, Hood 
River County approved a large event 
venue under the ministerial exception, 
but this venue will have significant 
impact on the surrounding community. 
We are mobilizing our pro bono 
Cooperating Attorney Program to 
advocate for the public to have an 
adequate opportunity to participate in 
this important land use decision. Learn 
more from our affiliate, the Hood River 
Valley Residents Committee. 

For more information on our pro bono 
program, visit friends.org/resources/CAP. 

 

Healthy Communities are Active 
Communities 

National healthy communities expert Jim 
Sallis, PhD visited Oregon this October. 
Sallis directs the Active Living Research 
Center at the University of California-San 
Diego. His remarks in Beaverton, Bend, 
Eugene, and Portland highlighted 
opportunities to rebuild physical activity 
into our daily lives in the built 
environment. Collaboration, Sallis noted, 
is key.  
 
You can watch his public and 
professional presentations by clicking 
here. Metro Regional Government offers 

 

Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 45 of 246

http://cts.vresp.com/c/?1000FriendsofOregon/5f577c5de9/c960bf881f/f436222e8d/utm_content=kim.ellis%40oregonmetro.gov&utm_source=VerticalResponse&utm_medium=Email&utm_term=Cooperating%20Attorney%20Program&utm_campaign=Oregon%20Stories%3A%20Rogue%20Valley%2C%20Health%2C%20and%20More
http://cts.vresp.com/c/?1000FriendsofOregon/5f577c5de9/c960bf881f/d5356a9d63
http://cts.vresp.com/c/?1000FriendsofOregon/5f577c5de9/c960bf881f/d5356a9d63
http://cts.vresp.com/c/?1000FriendsofOregon/5f577c5de9/c960bf881f/3edb9f2dfd/utm_content=kim.ellis%40oregonmetro.gov&utm_source=VerticalResponse&utm_medium=Email&utm_term=friends%2Eorg%2Fresources%2FCAP&utm_campaign=Oregon%20Stories%3A%20Rogue%20Valley%2C%20Health%2C%20and%20More
http://cts.vresp.com/c/?1000FriendsofOregon/5f577c5de9/c960bf881f/868e281658/id=80446
http://cts.vresp.com/c/?1000FriendsofOregon/5f577c5de9/c960bf881f/868e281658/id=80446


Promotion of public comment period featured in eNewsletter of 1000 Friends of Oregon | Oct. 27, 2014 

 

a recap of the event here.  

Friends Holiday Happy Hour 

Celebrate the season by spending an 
evening with 1000 Friends. Join us to 
see friends, hear a brief update about 
2014’s land use landmarks, and get a 
preview of our plan for 2015 -- our 40th 
year.  
 
Can you join us between 5-7:30pm on 
Thursday, Dec. 11 at our Portland office? 
RSVP here. We’ll have refreshments and 
Oregon wine. 
  

 
bit.ly/holidayhappyhour2014 

Your Home and Goal 13 

Through October you can learn how to 
make your home more comfortable, earn 
support for 1000 Friends, and help 
realize Goal 13 of Oregon’s land use 
planning program -- Energy 
Conservation. Thanks to a collaboration 
with Neil Kelly, a family business that’s 
been weatherizing homes in Oregon 
since 1947, and Clean Energy Works, 
you can have a free home energy 
assessment! Every supporter who signs 
up earns 1000 Friends $100 toward 
strategic planning. Just click here to 
learn more and sign up. 

       Sign up! neilkelly.com/1000friends       
                                      

Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 46 of 246

http://cts.vresp.com/c/?1000FriendsofOregon/5f577c5de9/c960bf881f/71c5da0f99
http://cts.vresp.com/c/?1000FriendsofOregon/5f577c5de9/c960bf881f/012fb821e7/utm_content=kim.ellis%40oregonmetro.gov&utm_source=VerticalResponse&utm_medium=Email&utm_term=RSVP%20here&utm_campaign=Oregon%20Stories%3A%20Rogue%20Valley%2C%20Health%2C%20and%20More
http://cts.vresp.com/c/?1000FriendsofOregon/5f577c5de9/c960bf881f/6286124a33/usp=send_form&utm_content=kim.ellis%40oregonmetro.gov&utm_source=VerticalResponse&utm_medium=Email&utm_term=bit%2Ely%2Fholidayhappyhour2014&utm_campaign=Oregon%20Stories%3A%20Rogue%20Valley%2C%20Health%2C%20and%20More
http://cts.vresp.com/c/?1000FriendsofOregon/5f577c5de9/c960bf881f/016f05be5d/utm_content=kim.ellis%40oregonmetro.gov&utm_source=VerticalResponse&utm_medium=Email&utm_term=Just%20click%20here&utm_campaign=Oregon%20Stories%3A%20Rogue%20Valley%2C%20Health%2C%20and%20More
http://cts.vresp.com/c/?1000FriendsofOregon/5f577c5de9/c960bf881f/ace7e0a27d


Promotion of public comment period featured in eNewsletter of 1000 Friends of Oregon | Oct. 27, 2014 

 

Share your Oregon Love  

1000 Friends wants to see what you love 
about Oregon. What places, views, 
foods, or communities do you love 
capturing in photos? Send images to 
share@friends.org with your name, 
where the photo was taken, and when. 
Watch our newsletter and @1000Oregon 
on Instagram for shares of your Oregon 
love. 

 
 

 

 
 

Be inspired about Oregon and the benefits of land use at friends.org/trail.  
Visit the Land Use Trail. 

You make our work possible.  

 

 

  

1000 Friends of Oregon | 133 SW 2nd Ave., Suite 201, Portland, OR 
97204 

Regional Offices: Eugene, Grants Pass 
503-497-1000 | info@friends.org 

Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 47 of 246

mailto:share@friends.org
http://cts.vresp.com/c/?1000FriendsofOregon/5f577c5de9/c960bf881f/f83fce60bc/utm_content=kim.ellis%40oregonmetro.gov&utm_source=VerticalResponse&utm_medium=Email&utm_term=friends%2Eorg%2Ftrail&utm_campaign=Oregon%20Stories%3A%20Rogue%20Valley%2C%20Health%2C%20and%20More
mailto:info@friends.org
http://cts.vresp.com/c/?1000FriendsofOregon/5f577c5de9/c960bf881f/5a033c5c95/utm_source=OregonStories&utm_medium=Email&utm_campaign=OregonStories&utm_content=kim.ellis%40oregonmetro.gov&utm_source=VerticalResponse&utm_medium=Email&utm_term=&utm_campaign=Oregon%20Stories%3A%20Rogue%20Valley%2C%20Health%2C%20and%20More
http://cts.vresp.com/c/?1000FriendsofOregon/5f577c5de9/c960bf881f/236b23b3bc
http://cts.vresp.com/c/?1000FriendsofOregon/5f577c5de9/c960bf881f/eb8f1a8b3d/utm_source=OregonStories&utm_medium=Email&utm_campaign=OregonStories&utm_content=kim.ellis%40oregonmetro.gov&utm_source=VerticalResponse&utm_medium=Email&utm_term=&utm_campaign=Oregon%20Stories%3A%20Rogue%20Valley%2C%20Health%2C%20and%20More


Published 10/21/14 at https://btaoregon.org/2014/10/tell-metro-our-climate-needs-active-
transportation/ 

Tell Metro: Our Climate Needs Active Transportation 

October 21, 2014 | by Lisa Frank | Posted in Action, Advocacy  

Unless we prioritize active transportation, Metro’s climate plan will fall short of our state-
mandated goals. 

You can help fight climate change while bringing the region better bicycling. 

Metro Regional Government recently calculated that our region needs to spend far more on 
active transportation in order to achieve our greenhouse gas emission reduction goals. In order 
to reduce emissions by 20% by 2035, they recommend we spend at least $14.4 billion building 
better transit and 663 miles of new trails, sidewalks, and bikeways. 

This isn’t surprising. We know that active transportation reduces emissions while bringing us 
cleaner water, healthier streets, and a more livable region for us all. The biggest challenge we 
face is that our region currently lacks the funding required to invest in these priority 
improvements, like completing the Westside Trail or building neighborhood greenways in East 
Portland. The Bicycle Transportation Alliance is focused on dedicating all eligible funding to 
active transportation projects and finding new dedicated funding mechanisms to help our 
communities rise to the challenge. 

Now is the time to tell regional leaders that to meet our climate goals, we need to: 

- prioritize active transportation projects 

- help raise new revenue for active transportation 

- deprioritize road widening and freeway construction 

There are two ways to make your voice heard: 

1. Take the short survey at http://makeagreatplace.org/ and say yes to more investment in 
biking, walking, and transit. 

2. Email climatescenarios@oregonmetro.gov and tell them that active transportation projects 
must be the region’s first priority. Here is a sample email you could send: 

I would like to provide feedback on the Climate Smart Communities Draft Approach. 

Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 48 of 246

https://btaoregon.org/category/action/
https://btaoregon.org/category/advocacy/
http://makeagreatplace.org/
mailto:climatescenarios@oregonmetro.gov


I support the recommended investments to make transit more frequent, reliable, accessible, and 
affordable. 

I want the region to invest more in making biking and walking safe and convenient. Biking and 
walking projects are inexpensive, create jobs, reduce greenhouse gas emissions, and provide 
many other benefits to our health, neighborhood safety, livability, and economy. 

I also support new dedicated funding for active transportation. Metro should lead by example 
by dedicating all eligible flexible federal funding to active transportation projects and using 
estimated climate benefits to determine which projects are prioritized. 

The Climate Smart Communities Preferred Approach should also deprioritize road widening and 
highway projects, as the climate benefit analysis found that these expenditures would result in a 
less than one percent reduction in emissions. Recommending $20.8 billion of spending on road 
projects likely overstates the region’s real road funding priority, which is fixing and maintaining 
our existing roads, not building new or expanded roads and highways.  

Thank you for taking action to make our climate, and our bikeways, better. 

 

 

Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 49 of 246



Promotion of public comment period featured in eNewsletter of Oregon Environmental Council | Oct. 22, 2014 

 

We support the right to know: Yes 
on 92 

Ballot Measure 92 is a 

proposal to label the foods 

in our grocery stores that 

are produced with 

genetically modified 

organisms (GMOs). 

Oregon Environmental 

Council supports this 

measure because we 

believe Oregonians have 

valid concerns about GMOs 

and their impact on our environment, including 

increased use of toxic herbicides and increased 

pesticide resistance. We all have a right to know 

which foods and products contain GMOs so that we 

have an opportunity to make an informed choice.   

Oregon Environmental Council encourages our 

members and supporters to vote “Yes” on Measure 

92. 

OEC’s endowment: invested for 
impact 

For over 45 years, Oregon 

Environmental Council has 

been leading the charge 

for impactful, lasting 

solutions to Oregon’s 

environmental challenges. 

Now OEC’s endowment 

investment portfolio reflects this commitment to 

innovative and enduring environmental solutions. We 

put together a custom-built investment portfolio that 

not only divests from polluting sectors and 

companies, such as fossil fuels and Monsanto, but 

also prioritizes investments in companies that are 

environmentally and socially responsible. Investing in 

socially responsible companies with a solid financial 

performance will allow us to serve Oregonians for 

  

In this issue 

 We support the 

right to know: Yes 

on 92 

 OEC’s endowment: 

invested for impact 

 Weigh in today on 

Metro's new 

Climate Smart 

Communities 

strategy 

 Tackling pesticides, 

one year later 

 Green Living: 

Breast Cancer 

Awareness Month 

 
Upcoming events 

Catalyzing Change: 

Northwest Green 

Chemistry 

Roundtable 2014  

Oct 28, Tacoma, WA 

Leading voices in green 
chemistry, toxicology, 

sustainability and 
commercialization will 
share their experiences at 
the Northwest Green 
Chemistry roundtable. 
More info 

Vote! Turn in your 

ballots by November 

4  

Everywhere 

More info 

Toxics in Consumer 

Products 

November 6, Pendleton 

OEC's Jen Coleman 
speaks with the Pendleton 

Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 50 of 246

http://oregonenvironmentalcouncil.cmail1.com/t/r-l-cbkllt-yukuyukytj-k/
http://oregonenvironmentalcouncil.cmail1.com/t/r-l-cbkllt-yukuyukytj-k/
http://oregonenvironmentalcouncil.cmail1.com/t/r-l-cbkllt-yukuyukytj-k/
http://oregonenvironmentalcouncil.cmail1.com/t/r-l-cbkllt-yukuyukytj-p/
http://oregonenvironmentalcouncil.cmail1.com/t/r-l-cbkllt-yukuyukytj-v/


Promotion of public comment period featured in eNewsletter of Oregon Environmental Council | Oct. 22, 2014 

generations to come. 

Learn more about our new, mission-driven 

investment strategy.  

Weigh in today on Metro's new 
Climate Smart Communities 
strategy 

In just five minutes you 

can help shape the 

Portland metropolitan 

area’s future. What 

strategies would you 

prioritize for reducing 

greenhouse gas emissions, 

improving public health and safety, lowering 

transportation costs, and boosting the region’s 

economy? Before October 30, we encourage Portland 

area residents to weigh in on Metro’s draft Climate 

Smart Communities strategy via a short online 

survey. Metro’s strategy to reduce transportation-

related GHG emissions by nearly 30% by 2035 was 

spurred by legislation championed by OEC and 1000 

Friends of Oregon in 2009. Our goal: as Oregon’s 

metropolitan areas grow, people move efficiently 

with lower energy costs and smart infrastructure. We 

hope you weigh in. 

Tell Metro what you think here. 

Tackling pesticides, one year later 

Just over a year ago, Oregon established a statewide 

program to improve water quality by monitoring 

pesticides, providing training and tools for farmers to 

reduce pesticide run off into our streams and rivers, 

and coordinating community collection events for 

safe disposal of pesticides. This Pesticide 

Stewardship Partnership Program is a uniquely 

collaborative, Oregon solution to reduce unsafe levels 

of pesticides in our rivers, lakes and streams while 

helping farmers maintain their thriving operations. 

Pilot projects in Hood River and Walla Walla reduced 

pesticide runoff by over 90 percent and now Oregon 

is expanding this program to four new areas of the 

state: the Umpqua Basin, the Rogue Basin, Middle 

Deschutes, and the South Coast. 

Learn more about this successful investment in 

Oregon’s farmers and water.  

branch of the AAUW 

about toxics in everyday 

consumer products and 
how to avoid them. 
More info. 

Get Dirty for Clean 

Air ‘Friendraiser’ 

Nov 15, Portland 

Presented by the OEC's 
Emerging Leaders Board. 
More info 

Climate Risk: What it 

means for Oregon's 

private and public 

health care sectors 

Nov 21, Portland 

This forum for 
professionals in all 
reaches of health care will 
cover a question essential 
to the future of the 
industry. More info 

Fix-It Fair! 

Nov 22, Portland 

These are free events 

designed to save you 
money and connect you 
to resources. Join your 

neighbors and talk to the 
experts about how to 
spend less. More info 

 
Stay current 

 

 

 
Forward 

Know someone who 

might be interested in 
this email? Forward it. 

 
Subscribe 

Subscribe to receive 

eOne* in your inbox 
monthly. 

 
Manage 

preferences 

Unsubscribe.  

Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 51 of 246

http://oregonenvironmentalcouncil.cmail1.com/t/r-l-cbkllt-yukuyukytj-u/
http://oregonenvironmentalcouncil.cmail1.com/t/r-l-cbkllt-yukuyukytj-u/
http://oregonenvironmentalcouncil.cmail1.com/t/r-l-cbkllt-yukuyukytj-o/
http://oregonenvironmentalcouncil.cmail1.com/t/r-l-cbkllt-yukuyukytj-b/
http://oregonenvironmentalcouncil.cmail1.com/t/r-l-cbkllt-yukuyukytj-b/
http://oregonenvironmentalcouncil.cmail1.com/t/r-l-cbkllt-yukuyukytj-e/
http://oregonenvironmentalcouncil.cmail1.com/t/r-l-cbkllt-yukuyukytj-s/
http://oregonenvironmentalcouncil.cmail1.com/t/r-l-cbkllt-yukuyukytj-g/
http://oregonenvironmentalcouncil.cmail1.com/t/r-l-cbkllt-yukuyukytj-w/
http://oregonenvironmentalcouncil.forwardtomyfriend.com/r-yukuyukytj-43D2E43B-cbkllt-l-j
http://oregonenvironmentalcouncil.forwardtomyfriend.com/r-yukuyukytj-43D2E43B-cbkllt-l-t
http://oregonenvironmentalcouncil.cmail1.com/t/r-l-cbkllt-yukuyukytj-yh/
http://oregonenvironmentalcouncil.cmail1.com/t/r-l-cbkllt-yukuyukytj-yk/
http://oregonenvironmentalcouncil.cmail1.com/t/r-u-cbkllt-yukuyukytj-i/
http://oregonenvironmentalcouncil.cmail1.com/t/r-fb-cbkllt-yukuyukytj-y/
http://oregonenvironmentalcouncil.cmail1.com/t/r-l-cbkllt-yukuyukytj-yd/


Promotion of public comment period featured in eNewsletter of Oregon Environmental Council | Oct. 22, 2014 

Green Living: Breast Cancer 
Awareness Month 

October is Breast Cancer 

Awareness Month, and 

while many of us know too 

well the effects of this 

disease in our lives, we 

don’t have the tools to 

reduce our risk. What if we 

could change that? There’s 

hope. Only a small 

percentage of breast 

cancers are due to high-risk inherited genes.  

Find out ways to reduce your risk in our breast 

cancer infographic. 

 

Update email.  

 
Corporate 

sponsors 

OEC thanks these 

sponsors for their 
support: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

Oregon Environmental Council 

222 NW Davis St. Ste 309,  

Portland, OR 97209 

503.222.1963 – www.oeconline.org 

Unsubscribe 

Join OEC by becoming a member 

with a tax-deductible gift. 

 

 

Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 52 of 246

http://oregonenvironmentalcouncil.cmail1.com/t/r-l-cbkllt-yukuyukytj-n/
http://oregonenvironmentalcouncil.cmail1.com/t/r-l-cbkllt-yukuyukytj-n/
http://oregonenvironmentalcouncil.updatemyprofile.com/r-cbkllt-43D2E43B-yukuyukytj-d
tel:503-222-1963
http://oregonenvironmentalcouncil.cmail1.com/t/r-l-cbkllt-yukuyukytj-yu/
http://oregonenvironmentalcouncil.cmail1.com/t/r-u-cbkllt-yukuyukytj-h/
http://oregonenvironmentalcouncil.cmail1.com/t/r-l-cbkllt-yukuyukytj-jl/
http://oregonenvironmentalcouncil.cmail1.com/t/r-l-cbkllt-yukuyukytj-jl/
http://oregonenvironmentalcouncil.cmail1.com/t/r-l-cbkllt-yukuyukytj-jr/


1	  
	  

Traditional	  and	  Online	  Media	  Outreach:	  Climate	  Smart	  Communities	  Scenarios	  
Project	  Public	  Comment	  Period	  

We	  sought	  to	  engage	  a	  number	  of	  traditional	  and	  online	  media	  sources	  in	  the	  public	  comment	  
period,	  including	  newspapers,	  radio,	  newsletters	  and	  specialized	  blogs.	  	  

Recognizing	  that	  many	  people	  receive	  news	  from	  sources	  like	  neighborhood	  association	  or	  
nonprofit	  blogs	  and	  e-‐newsletters,	  we	  also	  reached	  out	  to	  community	  organizations	  with	  
sample	  content	  they	  could	  share	  in	  these	  formats.	  We	  prepared	  a	  media	  resource	  guide	  to	  
distribute	  this	  sample	  content.	  

We	  reached	  out	  three	  times	  to	  most	  of	  these	  sources:	  before	  the	  comment	  period,	  just	  after	  it	  
began,	  and	  again	  partway	  through	  with	  video	  links.	  

Altogether	  this	  strategy	  resulted	  in	  approximately	  16	  news	  articles	  or	  blog	  posts	  during	  the	  
comment	  period.	  They	  are	  listed	  below.	  	  

Portland	  Tribune,	  Sept.	  15:	  "Tell	  Metro	  your	  ideas	  to	  cut	  greenhouse	  gases"	  
http://pamplinmedia.com/pt/9-‐news/232903-‐96766-‐tell-‐metro-‐your-‐ideas-‐to-‐cut-‐greenhouse-‐gases	  	  

City	  of	  Portland	  Office	  of	  Neighborhood	  Involvement,	  Sept.	  15:	  "CSC	  Comment	  period	  open"	  
http://www.portlandoregon.gov/oni/article/503145	  	  

Washington	  Co.	  CPO	  10	  "Hot	  Topics"	  page,	  Sept.	  15:	  
http://extension.oregonstate.edu/washington/book/export/html/140	  	  

Oregon	  Public	  Health	  Institute,	  Sept.	  22:	  "Your	  voice	  is	  important:	  Climate	  Smart	  Strategy	  open	  for	  
review"	  http://ophi.org/your-‐voice-‐is-‐important-‐climate-‐smart-‐strategy-‐open-‐for-‐review/	  

Wilsonville	  Chamber	  of	  Commerce	  blog,	  Sept.	  30:	  "Metro	  seeks	  public	  input	  on	  draft	  Climate	  Smart	  
Strategy"	  (reprint	  of	  Metro	  News	  story):	  http://business.wilsonvillechamber.com/news/details/metro-‐
seeks-‐public-‐input-‐on-‐draft-‐climate-‐smart-‐strategy	  	  

Intertwine	  Alliance.	  Mention	  in	  October	  e-‐newsletter.	  "Share	  your	  Climate	  Smarts"	  
http://theintertwine.org/sites/theintertwine.org/files/october_2014_newsletter.html	  	  

Bike	  Portland,	  Oct.	  3:	  "Five	  smart	  things	  our	  regional	  planning	  agency	  is	  doing	  to	  fight	  global	  warming"	  
http://bikeportland.org/2014/10/03/five-‐smart-‐things-‐regional-‐planning-‐agency-‐fight-‐global-‐warming-‐
111784	  

Portland	  Transport,	  Oct.	  6:	  "Does	  Metro's	  Climate	  Smart	  Communities	  Plan	  Do	  Enough	  for	  Active	  
Transportation?"	  http://portlandtransport.com/archives/2014/10/metros-‐climate-‐smart-‐communities-‐
plan-‐enough-‐active-‐transportation.html	  	  

Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 53 of 246



2	  
	  

Washington	  County	  Dept.	  of	  Land	  Use	  and	  Transportation,	  Oct.	  8:	  Mention	  in	  weekly	  e-‐newsletter.	  
http://myemail.constantcontact.com/LUT-‐Weekly-‐
Update.html?soid=1113224726165&aid=_DgLnHznoas	  	  

Safe	  Routes	  to	  School	  Pacific	  Northwest	  blog,	  Oct.	  10:	  "Metro	  seeks	  input	  on	  Climate	  Smart	  Strategy"	  
http://saferoutespacificnorthwest.org/2014/10/10/metro-‐seeks-‐input-‐on-‐climate-‐smart-‐strategy/	  	  

Bicycle	  Transportation	  Alliance	  blog,	  Oct.	  21:	  "Tell	  Metro:	  Our	  Climate	  Needs	  Active	  Transportation"	  
https://btaoregon.org/2014/10/tell-‐metro-‐our-‐climate-‐needs-‐active-‐transportation/	  

1000	  Friends	  of	  Oregon	  blog,	  Oct.	  27:	  "Tell	  Metro	  You	  Want	  Healthy,	  Livable	  Neighborhoods!"	  
http://www.friends.org/latest/let-‐metro-‐know-‐you-‐want-‐healthy-‐livable-‐neighborhoods	  

Clackamas	  County	  wants	  Metro	  to	  fight	  climate	  change	  by	  widening	  roads,	  Oct.	  30	  
http://bikeportland.org/2014/10/30/clackamas-‐county-‐wants-‐metro-‐build-‐wider-‐roads-‐fight-‐climate-‐
change-‐112900	  

Clackamas	  County:	  Build	  more	  roads,	  Nov.	  11	  
http://portlandtribune.com/pt/9-‐news/240139-‐104190-‐clackamas-‐county-‐build-‐more-‐roads	  

Trying	  to	  reduce	  CO2	  waste	  of	  money,	  Turlay	  says	  (again),	  Nov.	  7	  
http://blogs.columbian.com/all-‐politics-‐is-‐local/trying-‐reduce-‐co2-‐waste-‐money-‐turlay-‐says/	  
	  
Metro-‐area	  leaders:	  prioritize	  active	  transportation	  &	  transit	  —	  for	  our	  children,	  our	  health,	  our	  climate,	  
Nov.	  10	  
http://saferoutespacificnorthwest.org/2014/11/10/metro-‐area-‐leaders-‐prioritize-‐active-‐transportation-‐
transit-‐for-‐our-‐children-‐our-‐health-‐our-‐climate/	  

	  

Social	  Media	  Outreach	  

We	  used	  a	  multifaceted	  social	  media	  strategy	  during	  the	  public	  comment	  period.	  We	  hoped	  to	  
reach	  traditionally	  engaged	  members	  of	  the	  public	  and	  typically	  underrepresented	  populations.	  
Generally,	  our	  goal	  for	  social	  media	  was	  to	  increase	  the	  number	  of	  participants	  in	  the	  online	  
survey	  at	  www.makeagreatplace.org.	  	  

The	  components	  of	  our	  social	  media	  strategy	  were:	  

TWITTER	  

We	  actively	  shared	  information	  about	  the	  draft	  strategy	  and	  encouragement	  to	  take	  the	  survey.	  
Some	  of	  our	  tweets	  included	  videos	  or	  photos.	  Most	  used	  the	  hashtag	  #ClimateSmart	  in	  order	  

Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 54 of 246



3	  
	  

to	  help	  build	  interest.	  We	  sought	  to	  use	  plain	  language	  to	  express	  the	  significance	  of	  the	  plan	  
and	  the	  importance	  of	  public	  input.	  	  

Key	  stats:	  

• 16	  tweets	  during	  comment	  period	  related	  to	  draft	  strategy	  
• 16,329	  total	  impressions	  
• 72	  website	  clicks	  
• 155	  total	  retweets,	  shares,	  clicks	  or	  other	  engagement	  

Additionally,	  we	  encouraged	  local	  governments,	  neighborhood	  associations,	  and	  interested	  
community-‐based	  organizations	  to	  share	  links	  to	  the	  survey	  on	  their	  Twitter	  feeds.	  We	  wrote	  
sample	  tweets	  and	  distributed	  them	  along	  with	  the	  Climate	  Smart	  videos	  via	  email.	  	  

Altogether	  we	  received	  at	  least	  20	  mentions	  of	  the	  comment	  period	  on	  others'	  Twitter	  
accounts,	  though	  we	  cannot	  directly	  track	  the	  actions	  that	  resulted	  or	  the	  total	  number	  of	  
impressions	  these	  mentions	  had.	  

FACEBOOK	  

We	  employed	  a	  two-‐part	  Facebook	  strategy	  during	  the	  comment	  period:	  video	  posts	  and	  ads.	  	  

Video	  posts	  

Once	  a	  week,	  we	  posted	  short	  videos	  from	  the	  series	  created	  by	  JLA.	  Each	  expressly	  directed	  
viewers	  to	  visit	  makeagreatplace.org	  during	  the	  comment	  period	  and	  provide	  comments.	  
Recognizing	  that	  Facebook's	  algorithm	  artificially	  constrains	  reach,	  we	  also	  chose	  to	  "boost"	  
one	  post,	  spending	  $50	  to	  promote	  it	  for	  one	  week.	  

Key	  stats:	  

• 5	  posts	  	  
• 10,815	  total	  impressions	  (2,250	  organic,	  the	  rest	  paid)	  
• 1,216	  video	  views	  (228	  watched	  at	  least	  30	  seconds)	  
• 21	  link	  clicks	  
• 64	  total	  likes,	  comments,	  shares	  

Facebook	  Ads	  

In	  addition	  to	  standard	  posts,	  we	  piloted	  Facebook	  ads	  during	  the	  comment	  period.	  This	  is	  a	  
new	  approach	  for	  Metro	  and	  for	  government	  generally,	  but	  we	  found	  that	  for	  a	  relatively	  minor	  
expenditure	  we	  were	  able	  to	  reach	  many	  people.	  Facebook	  ads	  also	  allow	  a	  highly	  targeted	  

Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 55 of 246



4	  
	  

approach,	  allowing	  us	  to	  use	  them	  to	  try	  to	  attract	  specific	  populations	  to	  the	  survey,	  based	  on	  
their	  demographic	  data	  and	  the	  kinds	  of	  pages	  they	  "like"	  on	  the	  site.	  

We	  ran	  Facebook	  ads	  in	  two	  campaigns	  to	  four	  different	  sets	  of	  populations.	  Each	  campaign	  
used	  multiple	  combinations	  of	  pictures	  and	  short	  text;	  Facebook	  automatically	  determines	  
which	  are	  receiving	  the	  most	  engagement	  and	  configures	  the	  campaigns	  to	  push	  these	  further.	  

Our	  ad	  sets	  for	  the	  campaigns	  were	  all	  directed	  at	  people	  within	  a	  25-‐mile	  radius	  of	  Portland.	  

Campaign	  1:	  10/8-‐10/15	  

Interests	   Cost	   Reach	   Website	  
clicks	  

Cost	  per	  click	   Total	  actions	  
(like,	  share,	  
etc.)	  	  

Environment	  
&	  Zoo	  

$25	   3,045	   22	   $1.14	   45	  
	  

Land	  use	  &	  
Transportation	  

$25	   2,740	   40	   $0.63	   93	  

	  

Campaign	  2:	  10/21-‐10/30	  

Toward	  the	  end	  of	  the	  comment	  period,	  we	  noticed	  that	  the	  respondent	  population	  was	  
overwhelmingly	  white	  and	  older	  than	  45.	  Recognizing	  this,	  we	  decided	  to	  run	  a	  second	  
campaign	  that	  specifically	  sought	  younger	  people.	  Two	  ad	  sets	  were	  used:	  one	  targeted	  
Millennials	  with	  a	  general	  interest	  in	  transportation;	  the	  other	  targeted	  Millennials	  with	  an	  
interest	  in	  diversity.	  

Interests	   Cost	   Reach	   Website	  
clicks	  

Cost	  per	  click	   Total	  actions	  	  
(Like,	  share,	  
etc.)	  

Diverse/	  
Millennial	  

$50	   5,059	   43	   $1.16	   62	  
	  

Transportation/	  
Millennial	  

$50	   5,323	   26	   $1.92	   32	  

	  

Overall	  results	  

We	  were	  pleased	  by	  the	  overall	  results	  of	  our	  Facebook	  ad	  campaign	  pilot.	  Altogether	  our	  ads	  
reached	  16,167	  people,	  including	  many	  who	  might	  not	  otherwise	  have	  heard	  about	  Climate	  
Smart	  Communities	  (or	  Metro,	  for	  that	  matter).	  This	  led	  to	  a	  total	  of	  131	  clicks	  to	  the	  

Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 56 of 246



5	  
	  

makeagreatplace.org	  survey,	  at	  a	  cost	  of	  roughly	  $1.21	  per	  click	  –	  less	  expensive	  than	  
traditional	  means	  of	  outreach,	  and	  far	  cheaper	  and	  more	  effective	  than	  print	  advertising.	  	  

While	  Facebook	  advertising	  is	  certainly	  no	  replacement	  for	  traditional	  outreach/promotion,	  it	  
makes	  a	  worthy	  supplement	  to	  these	  activities	  for	  future	  public	  comment	  periods.	  

Other	  Facebook	  Pages	  

Again,	  we	  urged	  others,	  including	  Metro	  councilors,	  partner	  governments	  and	  community-‐
based	  organizations	  to	  share	  links	  and	  videos	  on	  their	  own	  Facebook	  pages.	  We	  wrote	  sample	  
Facebook	  posts	  and	  distributed	  them	  to	  partners	  via	  email	  along	  with	  a	  list	  of	  links	  to	  our	  
videos.	  It	  is	  not	  as	  easy	  to	  track	  the	  impact	  of	  such	  efforts	  on	  Facebook,	  but	  we	  directly	  
observed	  at	  least	  10	  instances	  of	  other	  organizations	  sharing	  our	  comment	  period	  on	  their	  own	  
Facebook	  pages.	  

TOTAL	  SOCIAL	  MEDIA	  IMPACT	  

Combined,	  our	  social	  media	  efforts	  resulted	  in	  at	  least	  43,311	  total	  impressions	  (note:	  not	  
unique	  impressions)	  and	  224	  direct	  clicks	  to	  makeagreatplace.org,	  roughly	  10	  percent	  of	  the	  
total	  respondents	  for	  the	  survey.	  

	  

Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 57 of 246



Climate Smart Communities Public Comment Period 

September 15-October 30, 2014 

Media & Web Hits 

Portland Tribune, Sept. 15: "Tell Metro your ideas to cut greenhouse gases" http://pamplinmedia.com/pt/9-

news/232903-96766-tell-metro-your-ideas-to-cut-greenhouse-gases  

City of Portland Office of Neighborhood Involvement, Sept. 15(?): "CSC Comment period open" 

http://www.portlandoregon.gov/oni/article/503145  

Washington Co. CPO 10 "Hot Topics" page, Sept. 15(?): 

http://extension.oregonstate.edu/washington/book/export/html/140  

Oregon Public Health Institute, Sept. 22: "Your voice is important: Climate Smart Strategy open for review" 

http://ophi.org/your-voice-is-important-climate-smart-strategy-open-for-review/ 

Wilsonville Chamber of Commerce blog, Sept. 30: "Metro seeks public input on draft Climate Smart Strategy" 

(reprint of Metro News story): http://business.wilsonvillechamber.com/news/details/metro-seeks-public-

input-on-draft-climate-smart-strategy  

Intertwine Alliance. Mention in October e-newsletter. "Share your Climate Smarts" 

http://theintertwine.org/sites/theintertwine.org/files/october_2014_newsletter.html  

Bike Portland, Oct. 3: "Five smart things our regional planning agency is doing to fight global warming" 

http://bikeportland.org/2014/10/03/five-smart-things-regional-planning-agency-fight-global-warming-111784 

Portland Transport, Oct. 6: "Does Metro's Climate Smart Communities Plan Do Enough for Active 

Transportation?" http://portlandtransport.com/archives/2014/10/metros-climate-smart-communities-plan-

enough-active-transportation.html  

Washington County Dept. of Land Use and Transportation, Oct. 8: Mention in weekly e-newsletter. 

http://myemail.constantcontact.com/LUT-Weekly-Update.html?soid=1113224726165&aid=_DgLnHznoas  

Safe Routes to School Pacific Northwest blog, Oct. 10: "Metro seeks input on Climate Smart Strategy" 

http://saferoutespacificnorthwest.org/2014/10/10/metro-seeks-input-on-climate-smart-strategy/  

Bicycle Transportation Alliance blog, Oct. 21: "Tell Metro: Our Climate Needs Active Transportation" 

https://btaoregon.org/2014/10/tell-metro-our-climate-needs-active-transportation/ 

1000 Friends of Oregon blog, Oct. 27: "Tell Metro You Want Healthy, Livable Neighborhoods!" 

http://www.friends.org/latest/let-metro-know-you-want-healthy-livable-neighborhoods 

Clackamas County wants Metro to fight climate change by widening roads 

http://bikeportland.org/2014/10/30/clackamas-county-wants-metro-build-wider-roads-fight-climate-change-

112900 

Clackamas County: Build more roads 

http://portlandtribune.com/pt/9-news/240139-104190-clackamas-county-build-more-roads 

Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 58 of 246

http://pamplinmedia.com/pt/9-news/232903-96766-tell-metro-your-ideas-to-cut-greenhouse-gases
http://pamplinmedia.com/pt/9-news/232903-96766-tell-metro-your-ideas-to-cut-greenhouse-gases
http://www.portlandoregon.gov/oni/article/503145
http://extension.oregonstate.edu/washington/book/export/html/140
http://ophi.org/your-voice-is-important-climate-smart-strategy-open-for-review/
http://business.wilsonvillechamber.com/news/details/metro-seeks-public-input-on-draft-climate-smart-strategy
http://business.wilsonvillechamber.com/news/details/metro-seeks-public-input-on-draft-climate-smart-strategy
http://theintertwine.org/sites/theintertwine.org/files/october_2014_newsletter.html
http://bikeportland.org/2014/10/03/five-smart-things-regional-planning-agency-fight-global-warming-111784
http://portlandtransport.com/archives/2014/10/metros-climate-smart-communities-plan-enough-active-transportation.html
http://portlandtransport.com/archives/2014/10/metros-climate-smart-communities-plan-enough-active-transportation.html
http://myemail.constantcontact.com/LUT-Weekly-Update.html?soid=1113224726165&aid=_DgLnHznoas
http://saferoutespacificnorthwest.org/2014/10/10/metro-seeks-input-on-climate-smart-strategy/
https://btaoregon.org/2014/10/tell-metro-our-climate-needs-active-transportation/
http://www.friends.org/latest/let-metro-know-you-want-healthy-livable-neighborhoods
http://bikeportland.org/2014/10/30/clackamas-county-wants-metro-build-wider-roads-fight-climate-change-112900
http://bikeportland.org/2014/10/30/clackamas-county-wants-metro-build-wider-roads-fight-climate-change-112900
http://portlandtribune.com/pt/9-news/240139-104190-clackamas-county-build-more-roads


Trying to reduce CO2 waste of money, Turlay says (again) 

http://blogs.columbian.com/all-politics-is-local/trying-reduce-co2-waste-money-turlay-

says/#.VF1CnB1L4jc.twitter 

 

Metro-area leaders: prioritize active transportation & transit — for our children, our health, our climate 

http://saferoutespacificnorthwest.org/2014/11/10/metro-area-leaders-prioritize-active-transportation-transit-

for-our-children-our-health-our-climate/ 

 

 

Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 59 of 246

http://blogs.columbian.com/all-politics-is-local/trying-reduce-co2-waste-money-turlay-says/#.VF1CnB1L4jc.twitter
http://blogs.columbian.com/all-politics-is-local/trying-reduce-co2-waste-money-turlay-says/#.VF1CnB1L4jc.twitter
http://saferoutespacificnorthwest.org/2014/11/10/metro-area-leaders-prioritize-active-transportation-transit-for-our-children-our-health-our-climate/
http://saferoutespacificnorthwest.org/2014/11/10/metro-area-leaders-prioritize-active-transportation-transit-for-our-children-our-health-our-climate/


	  

Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 60 of 246



	  

	  

Appendix	  B.	  

	  

	  

Community	  leaders	  
meeting	  summary	  

Oct.	  1,	  2014	  

	  

	  

	  

Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 61 of 246



	  

Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 62 of 246



  
 

COMMUNITY LEADERS MEETING SUMMARY 
October 1, 2014 | 1 to 3 p.m. | Metro Council Chamber | 600 NE Grand Avenue, Portland OR 

 
 
BACKGROUND AND PURPOSE 
The Climate Smart Communities Scenarios Project responds to a mandate from the 2009 
Oregon Legislature to reduce per capita greenhouse gas emissions from cars and small trucks 
by 20 percent below 2005 levels by 2035.  
 
Working together through a four-year collaborative process, community, business and elected 
leaders have shaped a draft approach that meets the state mandate while creating healthy and 
equitable communities and a strong economy. The draft Climate Smart Strategy and 
implementation recommendations were released for public review from Sept. 15 to Oct. 30, 
2014 at oregonmetro.gov/draftapproach.  
 
As part of the public comment period and ongoing efforts to ensure community members have 
meaningful opportunities to inform the regional decision-making process, Metro convened 
community leaders working on issues related to equity, environment, public health, housing, 
and transportation to discuss the draft Climate Smart Strategy and implementation 
recommendations for reducing greenhouse gas emissions and creating great communities. 
 
The Oct. 1 meeting brought together community leaders who have been involved in past 
Climate Smart Communities engagement activities, and provided an opportunity for 
participants to ask questions and provide direct input on the draft strategy and implementation 
recommendations.  The meeting also served to activate the community leaders to 
communicate knowledge of draft approach to their networks to encourage participation in 
public comment period. 
 
A summary of the input provided at the meeting follows. 

Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 63 of 246



Meeting participants: 
Samuel Diaz, 1000 Friends of Oregon 
Chris Hagerbaumer, Oregon Environmental Council 
Andrea Hamburg, Oregon Health Authority 
Duncan Hwang, Asian Pacific American Network of Oregon 
Nicole Iroz-Elardo, Oregon Health Authority 
Lisa Frank, Bicycle Transportation Alliance 
Jared Franz, OPAL Environmental Justice Oregon 
Mary Kyle McCurdy, 1000 Friends of Oregon 
Pam Pham, 1000 Friends of Oregon 
Cora Potter, Ride Connection 
Kari Scholosshauer, Safe Routes to School 
Chris Smith, Portland Transport 
Steve White, Oregon Public Health Institute 
Elizabeth Williams, Coalition for a Livable Future 
 
Metro Council: 
Councilor Carlotta Collette 
 
Facilitator: 
Noelle Dobson, Metro Planning and Development Department 
 
Metro Staff: 
Kim Ellis, Planning and Development Department 
Peggy Morell, Communications 
Lake Strongheart McTighe, Planning and Development Department 
Craig Beebe, Communications 
Laura Dawson Bodner, Planning and Development Department 
 

Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 64 of 246



 

WELCOME 
Metro Councilor Carlotta Collette thanked participants for their investment of time over the 
last two years of the project, and acknowledged the value of their feedback and outreach 
they've done with their networks about the project. She said the Climate Smart Communities 
(CSC) team produced a draft Climate Smart Strategy that is currently under public review, and is 
seeking additional feedback from communities. She reported the online survey received over 
1,000 responses in the first two weeks of the public comment period and called on the leaders 
to activate their organization's networks to participate and weigh in. 
 
ICEBREAKER AND INTRODUCTIONS 
Noelle Dobson introduced herself and started the meeting with an icebreaker and 
introductions. She acknowledged the many different Metro engagement activities that that 
most people in the group had already participated in, including the Regional Transportation 
Plan, Regional Active Transportation Plan, Southwest Corridor Plan, Powell-Division Transit 
Project, Equity Strategy and Climate Smart Communities. She identified this group as primarily 
community leaders who were familiar with the Climate Smart project, and explained the 
purpose of the icebreaker was to highlight connections between Climate Smart and other 
Metro projects and programs and to acknowledge them for their ongoing participation and 
input on Metro’s activities.  
 
Noelle then asked participants to introduce themselves and explain why the Climate Smart 
work is important to them or their organizations. Comments included: 

• Public health 
• Work across sectors 
• Multiple benefits 
• Alignment with my organization’s goals 
• Make funding happen 
• Improves how we live, work and play 
• Maintain livable communities 
• Accessible to all incomes and abilities 
• Engage the broader community 
• Create model for other regions in Oregon 
• Culturally relevant outcomes 
• Voice for impacted communities 
• System-wide impact 
• Ensure policy turns into action 
• Moral imperative to address climate change 
• Hear our voices 
• Model of state, regional and local partnerships 
• Use low-tech tools 
• Align regional and local models and planning 

Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 65 of 246



 
SETTING THE CONTEXT FOR THE MEETING 
Noelle stated that the objective for this meeting was to make it easier for participants to 
provide comments during the public comment period, and ensure they have the information 
needed to do so. She asked that participants listen to each other, become familiar with the 
public review documents, activate their networks to weigh in, use their connections to 
policymakers, and strategize ways to ensure that policymakers receive community input. 
 
Noelle reviewed the agenda and explained that the focus of this meeting would be on three 
components of the draft strategy:  the draft toolbox of actions, the proposed monitoring 
approach and funding. She announced that the timeline to completion, decision-making 
process and next steps would be provided by Kim Ellis, the project manager. She asked that 
people share information with other community leaders who were not able to attend today’s 
meeting. 
 
Question: Could staff provide information about the survey? This organization sent out the link 
to the survey. Feedback themes included: 

• What are the goals of the survey? 
• How will the information be used? 
• Will information be carried over into the implementation phase? 
• How will the survey impact the approach chosen? 

 
Noelle said the team would respond to questions about the survey later in the meeting. 
 
Noelle explained that input from past discussion groups with community and business leaders 
has been documented in summary reports and provided to Metro’s policy advisory committees 
and the Metro Council. The 2012 scorecard on equity, environment and public health 
workshops helped shape the evaluation criteria that were used in 2012-13 to assess scenarios 
tested to date and inform the health impact assessment completed by the Oregon Health 
Authority. Nicole explained the past discussions about implementation led to a reframing of the 
policy areas that are reflected in the draft Climate Smart Strategy under public review today. 
Noelle described additional public involvement opportunities the project provided in 2014 that 
helped to further shape the draft strategy, including an online survey, stakeholder interviews, 
discussion groups, public opinion research and a panel presentation at the April 11 joint 
meeting of the Metro Policy Advisory Committee (MPAC) and the Joint Policy Advisory 
Committee on Transportation (JPACT). This input helped inform what MPAC and JPACT 
recommended be included in the draft approach on May 30 and the draft toolbox of actions 
staff had since developed to guide implementation. Noelle also explained that in August, an 
early draft toolbox of actions and the draft monitoring approach were shared with 
Transportation Justice Alliance and their input was reflected in the public review drafts. 
 
Noelle said that a summary of this meeting will go into the public comment record and a copy 
will be sent to meeting participants. She asked that organizations submit formal public 

Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 66 of 246



comments. All comments will be summarized into a public comment report that will be 
provided to Metro’s policy advisory committees and the Metro Council in November.  
 
OVERVIEW OF TIMELINE, DRAFT CLIMATE SMART STRATEGY AND DECISION-
MAKING PROCESS 

Kim Ellis thanked everyone for their comments and involvement to date. She reviewed the 
project timeline and upcoming decision milestones. Kim explained that Metro is required by the 
Department of Land Conservation and Development (DLCD) to complete this work by the end 
of the year. On December 18, the Metro Council will consider recommendations on the draft 
approach by MPAC and JPACT. She said the Climate Smart Communities team has been working 
with the committees throughout this process and the last of three joint MPAC/JPACT meetings 
will be held in November to consider refinements based on technical committee feedback, this 
group’s feedback and other public comments.  
 
She described the four documents that are currently subject to public review: 

1. The Draft Climate Smart Strategy provides an overview of the 10 policy areas. Examples 
include information and incentives to use travel options, expanding transit service, 
completing more of the active transportation network, and using technology for traffic 
signal timing, etc. The strategy assumes certain levels of investment from the 2014 
Regional Transportation Plan (RTP), and identifies the need to secure additional funding 
to support implementation. 

2. The Draft Regional Framework Plan Amendments identify refinements to existing 
regional policies that guide how Metro conducts land use and transportation planning 
and other activities.  The amendments focus on integrating the key elements of the 
strategy and including greenhouse gas reduction as a consideration in future planning 
and decision-making. 

3. The Draft Toolbox of Possible Actions identifies possible near-term actions (within the 
next 5 years) that the region, agencies, special districts, local governments and the state 
can take to begin implementation. She explained some actions are already underway, 
but there are also new actions partners are encouraged to consider. Kim explained the 
actions are intended to be a menu of options that allows local flexibility in how and 
when they are implemented.  Actions range from advocating on legislative proposals 
and seeking new funding to updating parking policies and making investments to 
complete the active transportation network. The next Regional Transportation Plan 
update will build on these actions to identify medium- and long-term actions. 

4. The Draft Performance and Monitoring Approach proposes an approach for tracking the 
region’s progress on implementing the key elements of the strategy adopted by the 
Metro Council. Kim explained the intent is to build on the existing land use and 
transportation performance monitoring Metro is already responsible for as a result of 
state and federal requirements. 

Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 67 of 246



Kim said the process remains on track to be completed by the end of the year with a final 
Metro Council action scheduled for Dec. 18. She reiterated that MPAC and JPACT will be asked 
to make their recommendations to the Metro Council in December. The Metro Council will hold 
public hearings on October 30 and on December 18. 
 
Question: Are the comments received to date positive or negative? 
Kim responded that there is general support for the ten policy areas and for the recommended 
levels of investment but concern remains about funding. At the beginning of the process, there 
was fear around potential new regulations that might be needed to meet the target, but the 
analysis found the region can meet the target if we are able to fully implement adopted local 
and regional plans. She explained some people do not believe in climate change and others 
don't consider this work a priority. Kim said it has been a priority for policymakers to shape a 
draft approach that meets the target and provides actions that can be tailored and are flexible 
to support community plans and visions.  
 
Kim noted that there is no pushback on investing in the different areas; there is a recognition 
the region needs to be investing more in transportation infrastructure across all policy areas. 
She explained that MPAC and JPACT have asked staff to identify 3-5 priority actions that Metro, 
local governments, special districts and the state can work on together to begin 
implementation in 2015 and 2016. She described the criteria identified by Metro’s technical 
advisory committees – the Transportation Policy Alternatives Committee (TPAC) and the Metro 
Technical Advisory Committee (MTAC). She also explained that given the voluntary nature of 
the toolbox of actions, questions remain on how the region can demonstrate their commitment 
to each other to take action as well as demonstrate to the state that we are following through 
with implementation. 
 
Kim explained that the online survey from last spring indicated that support exists for the level 
of investment recommended by MPAC and JPACT. Early results from the fall online survey that 
is part of the public comment period seem to validate this support. One of the largest concerns 
is policy area number 8 (securing adequate funding). 
 
Question: What are the demographics of survey respondents? 
Peggy Morell responded that the summary report on the public comment period will include 
demographic information. The survey captures age, zip code, race and gender. Questions are 
framed in a way that any person could answer them based on their experience living and 
traveling in the region, without specific knowledge of the previous project work completed to 
date. Peggy explained the survey addresses seven of the ten policy areas – focusing on the 
investment areas. 
 
Noelle added that the team can continue to learn from community leaders about best practices 
for future survey development and encouraged participants to share any feedback they have on 
the survey design. 
 

Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 68 of 246



Group questions and discussion – Noelle 
Noelle introduced the discussion by asking the group to prioritize the policy areas in order to 
identify which ones the group will discuss in more detail in the next agenda item. She asked 
each person to indicate their top two choices, which she noted on the flipchart using dots. 
Results: 

• Policy 3: Make biking and walking (and walking to transit) safe and convenient – 6 dots 
• Policy 2: Make transit frequent, accessible and affordable – 5 dots 
• Policy 2 and 3: People who voted ‘on the line’ between these two policies – 4 dots 
• Policy 7: Manage parking and efficient use of space – 4 dots 
• Policy 10: Demonstrate leadership on climate change – 3 dots 
• Policy 9: Support Oregon’s transition to low carbon fuels, fuel efficient vehicles – 1 dot 
• Policy 6: Information and incentives to expand travel options – 1 dot 
• Policy 1: Implement 2040 Growth Concept and Plans – 1 dot 
• Policy 8: Secure adequate funding – 1 dot 
• Policies 4 (Make streets and highways safe, reliable and connected) and 5 (use 

technology to actively manage the transportation system) received no votes 
 
Comments: 

• We are really good at implementing some parts of adopted plans, and not completing 
other parts such as the active transportation plan. 

• Technology will happen anyway, so we should focus our discussion on the other policy 
areas. 

• The leadership in climate change policy: there is the question of who makes the decision 
on who gets the benefits. How can we bring more voices to the table? 

• Space and compact growth need to be addressed. Parking is an inefficient use of our 
land. Changing policies on parking is the new frontier in land use and transportation and 
can leverage behavior change. 

• We need to demonstrate that this is possible so others will join us – our region’s actions 
alone won’t make a difference. 

• We should build out the full active transportation plan to realize benefits, and then 
focus on transit. 

• Parking brings up a couple of things, including a need for the dense efficient use of 
urban space and a conversation on how we develop buildings.  

• Vulnerable communities cannot adapt as costs continue to climb. 
• Leadership on climate change policy area needs more teeth; it needs to include specific 

actions of what Metro is doing or will do to lead on addressing climate change. 
 
OVERVIEW OF DRAFT TOOLBOX OF ACTIONS 
Kim provided an overview of the draft toolbox of actions. She explained the document contains 
a menu of immediate actions for the next 5 years (near term 2017-2020). She noted we are 
seeking actions that will advance implementation by addressing barriers. She added many are 
actions that local government partners and others are already taking. There are more than 200 
actions listed. Feedback to date includes determining actions that will give us quick immediate 

Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 69 of 246



results in order to show progress, as there is a desire to go beyond what is happening already. 
She asked the group to identify actions that are missing and which actions are most important 
to their organizations and networks. 
 
Kim asked the group to think about potential criteria for identifying priority actions. She 
provided these examples: (actions should) produce high return on investment (significant 
greenhouse gas emission reduction), provide multiple community benefits beyond greenhouse 
gas (GHG) reduction, be achievable although may require a political lift, and require 
collaboration among multiple partners. She said we need early wins as a region to move more 
actions forward. We need to reflect a whole range of interests while achieving climate targets. 
 
Group questions and discussion 
Noelle asked the group: Which policy actions need to be elevated to the short list? 
 
Comments: 

• It is not true that these have to be entirely voluntary. Metro should use as a filter its 
own expenditures and whether or not they achieve Climate Smart Communities goals 
and reduce greenhouse gases. This idea can fall under leadership in climate change and 
also under funding for transportation. I would like Metro to take this on as its own 
guiding principle. 

•  "Lead by example" is something that Metro could do to elevate policy actions. 
• Create impact by using existing small pots of money to help achieve goals. 
• Lack of brownfields development holds communities back. Brownfields are 

underutilized and also have equity implications. Tie underutilized parking management 
into brownfields redevelopment actions. 

• What are near-term projections, for example, for building projects? We need to know 
what is available and upcoming. 

• Brownfields is a priority for the City of Portland. The City is being challenged to meet 
industrial land supply.  

• Support and restore local control of policies and programs through legislative actions. 
Get rid of inclusionary zoning ban, think about housing investments that will serve the 
people who live there, make sure there is an equitable impact. 

• Equity and health benefits came up frequently, but if we cannot guarantee affordable 
housing it is all for not. 

• This is about implementing 2040. The analysis recommends keeping the urban growth 
boundary (UGB) tight and building inside the boundary. This is critical to achieve this 
goal. When you expand the UGB, emissions increase as people drive longer distance. 
Help people understand the connection, that how far they drive influences climate 
change. 

• We have to serve those who are transit-dependent. Move some of the actions from 
shorter term to immediate. 

• Research best practices now. Do that ahead of the investments. 
• Change verb from consider ridership demographics to use ridership demographics. 

Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 70 of 246



• Link where people are living with accessible, frequent transit. 
• Under 2040, don’t use the verb support; it is not strong enough. Language is squishy. 
• Metro needs to research organizations or regions who "do it right."  

 
Question: how will suggestions regarding language amendments be used? 
 Kim explained the public comment process, including the use of a comment log. She said that 
staff will make a recommendation on what to do with suggested changes. Staff 
recommendations are then forwarded to the technical committees for approval/ 
recommendation to the policy committees.  
 
Comments: 

• We need to support local decisions while holding them to a certain standard, including 
housing/jobs balance and equitable development.  

• Define Metro’s role and include language on "Metro’s job is to direct and guide."  
• The goal should be to have affordable housing everywhere; the current language is 

unclear. 
• It is a challenge getting care workers to Lake Oswego. We have an opportunity to move 

beyond transit shuttles. The travel burden is put on people who live far from their work. 
Workers need to spend less time traveling and have access to good school districts. 

• Housing and transportation are symbiotic. We have to talk about both to make good 
decisions. 

• The language we choose matters. This document looks a whole lot like NEPA. It needs to 
be more prescriptive. Use stronger language than consider. 

• Increasing transit mode share is a good idea, but it will not necessarily show increased 
ridership. We have to make transit cost-competitive for choice riders and ridership will 
tell us how well the region is accomplishing that objective.  

• We have a lower transit mode share now than at the beginning of the century. I would 
like a bigger conversation of what transit spending choices are made.  

 

Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 71 of 246



OVERVIEW OF DRAFT PERFORMANCE MONITORING APPROACH 
Noelle asked the group to offer suggestions on the monitoring document.  
 
Comments: 

• We often speak of mode split, but the number of miles one travels actively is as 
important as vehicle miles traveled from a health perspective. Daily vehicle and 
pedestrian miles are important to track. 

• Are there data points that came out of the HIAs (health impact assessments) that should 
be tracked? Information used was based on the travel demand model – advise Metro to 
track that and meet what the draft model states. 

• Add household cost burden to housing and transportation.  
• Household utility expenses should also be tracked. 
• Measurement of fatalities should be called out in the walk/bike section. 
• Specific measures should be tracked. Daily miles matter in biking and walking. There 

should be a target and a measurement of when all bike lanes and sidewalks are 
completed. 

• Affordability is part of the transit policy but there is no measurement for it. 
• Daily transit service revenue hours: ensure that they are not weighted by capacity. 
• The walking/biking annual fatality target is noted as 32 and should be changed to zero. 
• Kim explained the target reflects the adopted 2014 RTP target for a 50% reduction in 

fatalities and serious injury crashes. 
• Residential units and jobs in the UGB should be broken down into sub-targets. The City 

of Portland talks about developing Lents or Gateway, but can use corridors to keep 
expanding the central city out rather than working on existing neighborhoods. 

• Work went into state performance measures developed for Mosaic.  Those measures 
could be a source for monitoring. 

• “Make progress” and “Secure funding” are not measurable goals. 
• The measures identified for leadership in climate change do not measure leadership; 

there are about process. Leadership is identifying ways to get the word out to other 
communities and the nation about this type of work.  

 
FUNDING THE CLIMATE SMART STRATEGY 
Kim said the overview brochure shows a breakdown of investment levels by policy area. The 
recommended level of investment reflects the Constrained Regional Transportation Plan for all 
policy areas except for transit service, using technology and providing travel information. The 
recommended transit service investment level reflects what is proposed in the full 2014 RTP.  
 
Group questions and discussion 
Peggy gave information about the online survey, saying that it addresses seven of the ten policy 
areas (policies two through eight).  The purpose of the survey is to inform policymakers of what 
we have been hearing and provide an indication of what should be considered for 

Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 72 of 246



implementation. As of last week, there were over 1,000 responses. Peggy gave a quick overview 
of responses on where respondents supported more investment by policy area. 
 
Comments: 

• Seeking and advocating for new, dedicated funding for active transportation is a top 
priority. 

• Develop a carbon pricing  
• Things like $20 billion for streets and highways should be taken out. Leaders want it for 

other reasons, but it is not a recommendation for achieving a climate smart community. 
Kim responded that this project acknowledges the need to make investment in all of 
these areas, and policy makers are not backing away from strategically investing in 
streets and highways. She explained this is an opportunity to work together find 
revenue to advance completion of the active transportation network and expanding 
transit service.  

• Observation on the Oregon Transportation Forum: there are no new ideas, no easy 
solutions. 

• There is pessimism regarding funding; there is money to shore up some things without 
providing any new funding. 

• So many funding options are constrained by constitutional amendment. Gas and vehicle 
taxes are for highway use and not allowed for active transportation.  

• We need funding for transit operations, not for capital projects. It is much easier to get 
funding for capital projects than to fund what we already have. 

 
Other possibilities for involvement 
Noelle reiterated that there are several ways that people and organizations can provide 
comments. 

Craig Beebe asked that people tap their networks, reach out to members, followers, friends and 
request that they comment. Craig offered a media resource kit that includes links, contact info, 
dates, sample tweets, and other things. He requested that they contact him directly if they 
needed anything else. 

CLOSING COMMENTS 
Councilor Collette thanked the group again for participating in and broadening the focus of this 
process.  

Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 73 of 246



	  

Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 74 of 246



	  

	  

Appendix	  C.	  

	  

	  

Public	  comment	  letters	  
received	  

Sept.	  15	  to	  Oct.	  30,	  2014	  

	   	  

Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 75 of 246



	  

Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 76 of 246



OREGON PUBLIC HEALTH DIVISION 

John A. Kitzhaber, MD, Governor 

October 7, 2014 
Attn: Kim Ellis, Principal Transportation Planner at Metro 

e~Ith 
-----Authority 

800 NE Oregon Street 
Portland, OR 97232-2162 

VOICE: 971 
FAX: 971 

TIY-Nonvoice: 971 -673-0372 

The Oregon Health Authority Public Health Division (OHA-PHD) Environmental Public Health section works 
to identify, assess and report on threats to human health from exposure to environmental and occupational 
hazards, and advise the people and communities of Oregon to best understand potential risks where they live, 
work and play in order to remain healthy and safe. OHA-PHD recognizes climate change is happening in 
Oregon, putting our health and safety at risk. Some communities will be affected more than others; climate 
change will likely amplify existing health threats, particularly for the elderly, the sick, the poor, and some 
communities of color. OHA-PHD'sClimate and Health Program recently completed a Climate and Health 
Profile Report for the state documenting the pathways by which climate change could impact health in Oregon: 
heat-related illness, allergens, harmful algal blooms, vector-borne diseases, respiratory illness from 
deteriorating air quality, and potential increases in injuries and deaths from extreme weather events, landslides, 
and wildfires. Actions by other sectors can help protect people from some of the impacts of climate change. 
OHA-PHD is in support of efforts statewide to identify solutions to curb greenhouse gas emissions. 

Strategies and investments intended to reduce greenhouse gas emissions may also impact health in other ways. 
OHA-PHD's Health Impact Assessment Program completed a series of health impact assessments (HIA) to 
understand how land use and transportation strategies and investments influence community health. The most 
recent, the Climate Smart Strategy HIA, found that the Draft Approach as currently envisioned will reduce 
chronic disease and prevent premature deaths. These benefits are likely to occur through increased physical 
activity through active transportation modes, decreased exposure to air pollution through cleaner fuels and 
reduced per capita vehicle miles traveled (VMT), and increased traffic safety through reduced per capita 
VMT. The HIA contains specific recommendations to maximize health, and OHA-PHD's Environmental 
Public Health Section urges Metro to consider these recommendations in the finalization of the Preferred 
Scenario, implementation throughout the region, and monitoring of key measures in coming years. 

The full report, including evidence and recommendations, is available at www.healthoregon.org/hia. 

Thank you for your consideration, 

Curtis Cude 
Interim Section Manager 
Environmental Public Health 
Center for Health Protection 
Oregon Health Authority Public Health Division 

Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 77 of 246
OREGON PUBLIC HEALTH DIVISION Hegalth 
J-Oh-n-.-.'-H-'h-' oo-'-,M-O-,-Oo-'-"-no-'--------------------- Authority 

October 7, 2014 
Attn: Kim Ellis, Principal Transportation Planner at Metro 

800 NE Oregon Street 
Portland, OR 97232-2t 62 

VOICE: 97t 
FAX: 971 

m-Nonvoice: 971 -673-0372 

The Oregon Health Authority Public Health Division (OHA-PHD) Environmental Public Health section works 
to identify, assess and report on threats to human health from exposure to environmental and occupational 
hazards, and advise the people and communities of Oregon to best understand potential risks where they live, 
work and play in order to remain healthy and safe. OHA-PHD recognizes climate change is happening in 
Oregon, putting our health and safety at risk. Some communities will be affected more than others; climate 
change wi ll likely amplify existing health threats, particularl y for the elderl y, the sick, the poor, and some 
communities of color. OHA-PHD'sClimate and Health Program recently completed a Climate and Health 
Profile Report for the state documenting the pathways by which climate change could impact health in Oregon: 
heat-related illness, allergens, harmful algal blooms, vector-borne diseases, respiratory iUness from 
deteriorating air quality, and potential increases in inj uries and deaths from extreme weather events, landslides, 
and wildfires. Actions by other sectors can help protect people from some of the impacts of climate change. 
OHA-PHD is in support of efforts statewide to identify solutions to curb greenhouse gas emissions. 

Strategies and investments intended to reduce greenhouse gas emissions may also impact health in other ways. 
OHA-PHD's Health Impact Assessment Program completed a series of health impact assessments (HIA) to 
understand how land use and transportation strategies and investments influence community health. The mosl 
recent, the Climate Smart Strategy J-IlA, found that the Draft Approach as currently envisioned wi ll reduce 
chronic disease and prevent premature deaths. These benefits are like ly to occur through increased physical 
activity through active transportation modes, decreased exposure to air po llution through cleaner fuels and 
reduced per capita vehicle miles traveled (VMT), and increased traffic safety through reduced per capita 
VMT. The HIA contains specific recommendations to maximize health, and OHA-PHD's Environmental 
Public Health Section urges Metro to consider these recommendations in the fina li zation of the Preferred 
Scenario, implementation throughout the region, and monitoring of key measures in coming years. 

The fu ll report, including ev idence and recommendations, is avai lable at www.healthoregon.org/hia. 

Thank you for your consideration, 

Curtis Cude 
Interi m Section Manager 
Environmental Public Health 
Center for Health Protection 
Oregon Health Authority Public Health Division 



Climate Smart Strategy 
Health Impact Assessment (HIA) 

Climate change threatens human health and well-being in 
many ways, including from increased extreme weather, 
wildfire, decreased air quality, threats to mental health, and 
illnesses from food, water, and disease-carriers such as 
mosquitos and ticks. Climate change will, absent other 
changes, worsen existing health threats. Vulnerable 
communities, particularly children, older adults, poor, and 
some communities of color are particularly at risk The 
changing climate has the potential to significantly impact 
health in the region. www.healthoregon.org/climatechange 

Metro's Climate Smart Communities Scenarios 

The Oregon Legislature has directed the Portland 
metropolitan region to reduce per capita greenhouse gas 
emissions from cars and small trucks by 2035. Metro, the 
Portland metropolitan regional government, is leading in the 
Climate Smart Communities Scenarios Project - a community 
process to plan to meet this requirement. 

The Climate Smart Strategy HIA found that strategies and 
investiments considered in Metro's planning reduce the 
risks of climate change, increase physical activity, 
improve air quality, and reduce traffic injuries and 
fatalities . 

./ Demonstrate regional leadership and mitigate climate 
change by adopting and implementing a Scenario that 
meets or exceeds the GHG targets set for the Portland 
metropolitan area. 

The Draft Approach is expected to result in annual health 
benefits of 126 avoided premature deaths, a 1.6% 
reduction in diseases studied, and annual savings of 
$100-125 million (2010$) in direct and indirect costs. 

Flexible, reliable transportation systems 

PROVIDE HEAL THY CHOICES. 

Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 78 of 246

Climate Smart Strategy 
Health Impact Assessment (HIA) 

Climate change threatens human health and well-being in 
many ways, including from increased extreme weather, 
wildfire, decreased air quali ty, threats to mental health, and 
illnesses from foo d, water, and disease-carriers such as 
mosquitos and t icks. Climate change will, absent other 
changes, worsen existing health threats. Vulnerable 
communities, particularly children, older adults, poor, and 
some communities of color are particularly at risk. The 
changing climate has the potential to significantly impact 
health in the region. www.healthoregon.org/climatechange 

Metro's Climate Smart Communities Scenarios 

The Oregon Legislature has directed the Portland 
metropolitan region to reduce per capita greenhouse gas 
emissions from cars and small trucks by 2035. Metro, the 
Portland metropolitan regional government, is leading in the 
Climate Smart Communities Scenarios Project - a community 
process to plan to meet th is requirement. 

The Climate Smart Strategy HIA found that stra tegies and 
investiments considered in Metro's planning reduce the 
risks of climate change, increase physical activity, 
improve air quality, and reduce traffic injuries and 
fatalities . 

./' Demonstrate regional leadership and mitigate climate 
change by adopting and implementing a Scenario that 
meets or exceeds the GHG targets set for the Portland 
metropolitan area. 

The Draft Approach is expected to result in annual health 
benefits of 126 avoided premature deaths, a 1 .6% 
reduction in diseases studied, and annual savings of 
$100·125 mi.llion (2010$) in direct and indirect costs. 

Flexible, reliable transportation systems 

PROVIDE HEALTHY CHOICES. 



Annual Health Benefits by 2035 

• Physical Activity • Air Quality • Traffic Safety 

-173 
-72 

.~ 
-4 -12 -6 

ii -1 
t: 
0 
:E 
'O 
QI 

"O ·s 
~ 

Scenario A Scenarios ScenarioC Draft Approach 

The Oregon Health Authority HIA Program used the Integrated Transport and Health Impact Model (ITHIM) 
to assess how increases in miles traveled by walking and biking combined with a decrease in per capita 
vehicle miles traveled would impact health. ITHIM estimates avoided deaths and avoided illness as 
measured by disability adjusted life years (DALYs) for 12 diseases over three domains: physical activity, air 
quality, and traffic safety. ITHIM estimates that by 2035, the Draft Approach will prevent 126 
premature deaths and reduce illness by 1.6% annually. The vast majority of the health benefits from the 
draft approach are attributable to increased physical activity and improved air quality. (See above where 
attribution to pathways is represented as the size of the slice of the pie.) 

PHYSICAL ACTIVITY 

Transportation and land use strategies in the Draft 
Approach are expected to result in modest increases of 
active transportation. This translates into impressive health 
gains across the region. 

Increasing the average distance walked from 1.3 to 1.8 miles 
per week will result in 48 avoided premature deaths. An 
additional 13 premature deaths will be avoided if miles 
traveled per person per week by bicycle increase from 2.1 
to 3.6. Illnesses studies will decrease by 1.~%. 

./ Integrate multi-modal design in road improvement and 
maintenance to support all users. 

./ Implement Complete Streets strategies 

./ Complete the active transportation network. 

./ Meet or exceed 1.8 miles walked and 3.4 miles cycled 
per person per week by 2035 as projected in the Draft 
Approach. 

1.3 

ti ii ii 
iiiitii 
ii ii iii 
ii it iii 
ii ii iii 
ii ii iii 
ii ii iii 

2.1 

61 Avoided 

Annual Deaths 

it ii ii 
iiiiiii 

~ 
Miles Traveled per Person per Week 

Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 79 of 246

Annual Health Benefits by 2035 
_ Physical Activity _ Ai r Quality _ Traffic Safety 

. ~ -. 
~ 

-1 
-6 

~ 
'll 

" a 
> .. 

Scenario A Scenario B DraftApproath 

The Oregon Health Authority HIA Program used the In tegrated Transpo rt and Health Impact Model (ITHIM) 
to assess how increases in miles traveled by walki ng and hiking combined with a decrease in per capita 
vehicle miles traveled would impact health. ITHIM estimates avoided deaths and avoided illness as 
measured by disability adjusted life years (DALYs) for 12 diseases over three domains: physical activity, air 
quality, and t raffi c safety. ITHIM estimates that by 2035, the Draft Approach will prevent 126 
premature deaths and reduce illness by 1.6% annually. The vast majority of the health benefits from the 
draft approach are attributab le to increased phys ical activity and improved air quality. (See above where 
attribu tion to pathways is rep resented as the size of the slice of the pie.) 

PHYSICAL ACTIVITY 

Transportation and land use strategies in the Draft 
Approach are expected to result in modest increases of 
active transportation. This translates into impressive health 
gains across the region. 

Increasing the average distance walked from 1.3 to 1.8 miles 
per week will result in 48 avoided premature deaths. An 
additional 13 premature deaths will be avoided if miles 
traveled per person per week by bicycle increase from 2.1 
to 3.6. Illnesses studies will decrease by 1.~%. 

./ Integrate multi-modal design in road improvement and 
maintenance to support all users. 

./' Implement Complete Streets strategies 

./ Complete the active transportation network. 

./' Meet or exceed 1.8 miles walked and 3.4 miles cycled 
per person per week by 2035 as projected in the Draft 
Approach. 

1.3 

111111 61 Avoided 
Annual Deaths 

111111 

2.1 ~ 
Miles Traveled per Person per Week 



TRAFFIC SAFETY 

Reducing greenhouse gas emissions depends on 
expanded use of walking, biking, and transit. 
Reductions in per capita vehicle miles traveled 
(VMT) improve traffic safety for all users. 

The Draft Approach would result in 5.9 avoided 
fatalities annually and decrease disabilities from 
severe injuries by 6.7%. However, the number of 
pedestrian and bicycle fatalities and severe injuries 
will increase even as overall injury and fatality 
rates fall for all modes. This absolute increase in 
bicycle and pedestrian fatalities and injuries can be 
avoided by designing for safety for non-motoriied 
users. 

./ Adopt and implement investments and 
strategies that reduce per capital VMT from 130 
to less than 107 miles per week 

./ Prioritize expanding transit and providing 
travel information and incentives to reduce 
VMT and encourage active modes. 

Freeways · 500 meters 

COST SAVINGS 

Using a cost-of-illness approach, the HIA program 
estimates that the region currently spends between 
$4.8 and $5.8 billion (in 2010$) each year on 
diseases modeled in !THIM. The Draft Approach is 
expected to reduce illness and save the region 
$100-$125 million annually (in 2010$) . This 
includes annual savings of nearly $64 million in 
expenditures and lost productivity related to 
cardiovascular disease, $35 million associated with 
traffic injuries, and $26 million related to diabetes 
treatment. 

Saved Lives 

~· 
Sum of Avolde~ Fatalities - Scenario A 1.4 - Scenario B 4.0 

• - ScenarloC 12.1 

" - Draft Approach 5.9 
I 

-s 0 10 

AIR QUALITY 

Improving overall air quality is an important 
health benefit of greenhouse gas emissions 
reduction. The combined effect of reduced per 
capita vehicle miles traveled and clean fuel 
technologies is expected to improve air quality. 

15 

Air pollution can be highly localized with high 
concentrations near transportation corridors 
such as freeways and major roads. In 2010, 
12.6% of the population - including many 
vulnerable communities - lived within 500 
meters of the freeways highlighted at the left. 
Care should be taken in siting facilities that serve 
vulnerable populations in these areas . 

./ Reduce regional ambient concentrations of 
PM2.5 to 6.41 ug/m3 or below as projected in 
the Draft Approach 

./ Support state efforts to transition to cleaner 
low carbon fuels, more fuel-efficent vehicles, 
and transit fleet upgrades. 

Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 80 of 246

TRAFFIC SAFETY 

Reducing greenhouse gas emissions depends on 
expanded use of walking, biking, and transit. 
Reductions in per capita vehicle miles traveled 
(VMT) improve traffic safety for all users. 

The Draft Approach would resu lt in 5.9 avoided 
fatalities annually and decrease disabilities from 
severe injuries by 6.7%. However, the number of 
pedestrian and bicycle fatalities and severe injuries 
will increase even as overall injury and fatality 
rates fall for all modes. This absolute increase in 
bicycle and pedestrian fatalities and injuries can be 
avoided by designing for safety for non-motorized 
users. 

'" Adopt and implement investments and 
strategies that reduce per capital VMT from 130 
to less than 107 miles per week. 

./ Prioritize expanding transit and providing 
travel information and incentives to reduce 
VMT and encourage active modes. 

--=-

COST SAVINGS 

I 

Using a cost-of-illness approach, the HIA program 
estimates that the region currently spends between 
$4.8 and $5.8 billion (in 2010$) each year on 
diseases modeled in ITHIM. The Draft Approach is 
expected to reduce illness and save the region 
$100-$125 million annua lly (in 2010$). This 
includes annual savings of nearly $64 million in 
expenditures and lost productivity related to 
cardiovascular disease, $35 million associated with 
traffic injuries, and $26 million related to diabetes 
treatment. 

Saved Lives 

~. 
Sumof Avoided Fatalities - ScenarloA 1.4 - Scenario B 4.0 

*~ - ScenarloC 12.1 - Draft Approach 5.9 

-, 0 , 10 

AIR QUALITY 

Improving overall air quality is an important 
health benefit of greenhouse gas emissions 
reduction. The combined effect of reduced per 
capita vehicle miles traveled and clean fuel 
technologies is expected to improve air quality. 

IS 

Air pollution can be highly localized with high 
concentrations near transportation corridors 
such as freeways and major roads. In 2010, 
12.6% of the population - including many 
vulnerable communities - lived within 500 
meters of the freeways highlighted at the left. 
Care should be taken in siting facilities that serve 
vulnerable populations in these areas . 

./' Reduce regional ambient concentrations of 
PM2.5 to 6.41 ugjm3 or below as projected in 
the Draft Approach 

./' Support state efforts to transition to cleaner 
low carbon fuels, more fue l-efficent vehicles, 
and transit fleet upgrades. 



Target investments to improve health for all populations 

Not all residents of the Portland metropolitan region have equal access to healthy transportation options or 
health-promoting community resources . 

./ Ensure social and health goals are considered when prioritizing investments by explicitly and 
transparently addressing how investments link low-income and other vulnerable households to health
promoting resources . 

./ Protect populations - including the elderly, children, and low-income individuals - who live, work, and 
attend school near highways and major roads through siting, design, and/or mechanical systems that 
reduce indoor air pollution. 
Maximize health benefits by monitoring key health indicators, expanding partnerships that promote 
health, and developing tools to support the consideration of health impacts in future land use and 
transportation decisions throughout the region. 

Health Impact Assessment 

Health Impact Assessment (HIA) is a way to consider how a policy or plan affects community health before the 
final decision is made. By providing objective, evidence-based information, HIA can increase positive health 
effects and mitigate unintended health impacts. OHA conducted this assessment at Metro's request, with funds 
provided by the Health Impact Project, a collaboration of the Robert Wood Johnson Foundation and The Pew 
Charitable Trust. 

An advisory group of more than 30 people representing local governments, state and regional agencies and 
public health nonprofits provided guidance and data for a series of three HIAs supporting Metro's Climate Smart 
Communities Project. Six members of the advisory committee provided a full technical review of the report. 

Climate Smart Scenarios Health Impact Assessment Scope 
Geography: Portland, Oregon metropolitan region as defined by the Urban Growth Boundary 

Timeline: 2010 (base year) to 2035 (horizon year) 

Scenarios: 
A: adopted plans with existing revenues 

B: adopted plans with expanded revenues for priority investments 

C: adopted plans plus additional policy and infrastructure development (requires additional 
revenue/funding sources) 

Draft Approach: full implementation of adopted 2014 Regional Transportation Plan with additional 
investment in transit; lower-cost transportation system management and operations; and lower-cost 
information and incentive strategies. 

Exposure pathways: physical activity, traffic safety, air quality 

Quantitative tool: Integrated Transportation Health Impact Model (!THIM) 

Other considerations: health costs associated with health pathways; vulnerable populations 

The full report is availble at www.healthoregon.org/hia. 

lroz-Elardo N, Hamberg A, Main E, Haggerty B, Early-Alberts J, Cude C. Climate Smart Strategy 
Health Impact Assessment. Oregon Helath Authority. September 2014: Portland, Oregon 

ealth 
~--- \11ili1>1il\ 

Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 81 of 246

Target investments to improve health for all populations 

Not all residents of the Portland metropolitan region have equal access to healthy transportation options or 
health-promoting community resources . 

./ Ensure social and health goals are considered when prioritizing investments by explicitly and 
transparently addressing how investments link low-income and other vulnerable households to health
promoting resources . 

./' Protect populations - including the elderly, children, and low-income individuals - who live, work, and 
attend school near highways and major roads through siting, design, and/or mechanical systems that 
reduce indoor air pollution . 

./' Maximize health benefits by monitoril).g key health indicators, expanding partnerships that promote 
health, and developing tools to support the consideration of health impacts in future land use and 
transportation decisions throughout the region. 

Health Impact Assessment 

Health Impact Assessment (HIA) is a way to cons ider how a policy or plan affects community health before the 
final decisio n is made. By provid ing objective, evidence-based in formation, HIA can increase positive health 
effects and mitigate unintended health impacts. OHA conducted this assessment at Metro's request, with funds 
provided by the Health Impact Project, a collaboration of the Robert Wood Johnson Foundation and The Pew 
Charitable Trust. 

An advisory group of more than 30 people representing local governments, state and regional age ncies and 
public health nonprofi ts provided guidance and data for a series of three HIAs supporting Metro's Climate Smart 
Communities Project. Six members of the advisory committee p rovided a full technical review of the repo rt. 

Climate Smart Scenarios Health Impact Assessment Scope 

Geography: Portland, Oregon metropolitan region as de fined by the Urban Growth Boundary 

Timeline: 201 0 (base year) to 2035 (horizon yea r) 

Scena rios: 
A: adopted plans with existing revenues 

B: adopted plans with expanded revenues for priority investments 

c: adopted plans plus addi tional policy and infrastructure development (requires additional 
revenue/funding sources) 

Draft Approach: fu ll implementation of adopted 2014 Regional Transportati on Plan with addi tional 
investmen t in transit; lower-cost transportation system management and operations; and lower-cost 
information and incentive strategies. 

Exposure pathways: phys ical activity, traffi c safety, air quality 

Quantitative tool: Integrated Transportation Health Impact Model (ITHIM) 

Other considerations: health costs associated with heal th pathways; vulne rable populations 

The full report is availble at www,bealtboregon.ore/hja. 

lroz-Elardo N, Hamberg A, Main E, Haggerty B, Early-Alberts J, Cude C. Climate Smart Strategy 
Health Impact Assessment. Oregon Helath Authority. September 2014: Portland, Oregon 

ealth 
L-'''-'==\" I " 



From: Chris Hagerbaumer

To: Metro Climate Scenarios

Cc: Kim Ellis

Subject: OEC comments on draft Climate Smart Strategy

Date: Wednesday, October 15, 2014 3:27:58 PM

To: Metro Planning

From: Chris Hagerbaumer, Oregon Environmental Council

RE: Draft Climate Smart Strategy

Date: October 15, 2014

Oregon Environmental Council (OEC) thanks Metro for doing a terrific job developing a robust plan to
 reduce greenhouse gas emissions from cars and trucks. Yes, it was mandated, but you took the task to
 heart and did the due diligence with regard to research, analysis and community engagement. It’s
 exciting and affirming that the approach relies on policies and investments you had already identified as
 important for the region’s future. Of course, the hardest part is yet to come—securing the funds to make
 the needed investments and bringing all parts of the region along, but the co-benefits are so huge and
 the costs of inaction so great, that it’s a true imperative.

OEC had the opportunity to participate in the October 1 Climate Smart Communities community leaders
 meeting. We second the many recommendations made there, and stress a few below:

 

OEC supports the Toolbox of Possible Actions in its entirety. Provision of
 transportation options (transit, pedestrian and bicycling facilities) is particularly
 important to us. We would also emphasize a few specific actions:

 

1. Restore local control of housing policies and programs. Too many lower-income
 residents have been pushed out of the region’s core due to the fact that affordable
 housing policies and investments have not been implemented along with all of the
 strategies that have made the core more desirable (and expensive). We suggest
 rephrasing this action to ensure that it’s about achieving housing affordability, not
 just restoring local control (local control works only if local decision-makers actually
 care about affordable housing). This needs to be a real regional conversation with real
 solutions that ensure housing affordability no matter where one lives in the region.

 

2. Use green street design, not only planting trees to support carbon sequestration
 and using materials that reduce infrastructure-related heat gain, but capturing,

Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 82 of 246

mailto:chrish@oeconline.org
mailto:Metro.ClimateScenarios@oregonmetro.gov
mailto:Kim.Ellis@oregonmetro.gov


 absorbing and cleaning stormwater and making more use of pervious, rather than
 impervious, surface materials. These strategies will help the region save money and
 adapt to the unwelcome effects of climate change.

 

3. Fully utilize parking pricing strategies. Yes, this is a tough sell, but it’s one of the
 most effective ways to manage demand. Parking spaces are not truly “free,” and too
 much free parking merely subsidizes cars and car trips. In most urban areas, there’s
 more space for cars (roads, parking lots and driveways) than humans (buildings and
 sidewalks), which is kind of insane. Cities should charge the fair market price for on-
street parking, using the revenues to finance added public services in the metered
 neighborhoods. Likewise, parking minimums hurt housing affordability (as
 mentioned above, housing affordability is one of the most important issues to grapple
 with).

4. Expand the list of actions under “Demonstrate leadership on climate change.” The actions listed are
 primarily focused on inventories, reports and plans. Yes, you will demonstrate true leadership by
 implementing the plan, but we suggest “evangelizing” in appropriate venues. Share your story with other
 metropolitan areas across the country. Be loud and proud about tackling the most pressing issue of our
 time. On a related note, some of the resistance to some of the tools (e.g., the current backlash against
 mixed-use development in downtown Lake Oswego) has to do with a lack of understanding of how these
 tools work, how they help the community broadly, and how everyone needs to be part of the solution.
 There continues to be a communication challenge about the necessity of compact urban development,
 not to mention climate change, which needs to be overcome. Not everyone will get on board, but more
 will as the merits are proved and the story is told.

With regard to the Draft Performance Monitoring Approach:

You may have already done so, but we suggest reviewing the indicators developed for Mosaic, the
 value and cost informed transportation planning tool recently developed by ODOT. There may be
 some quantitative and qualitative indicators that would make sense to use in this process.
Because of the importance of housing affordability, please develop an indicator
 related to housing affordability for the policy “Implement the 2040 Growth
 Concept and local adopted land use and transportation plans.”
Perhaps adopt a measurement for 20-minute neighborhoods.
Public EV charging stations could be a measure for the policy related to fuels
 and vehicles.
The measure “secure adequate funding for transportation investments” could be
 quite specific, e.g., 60% of transit needs met by 20XX, 75% of sidewalk
 infrastructure complete by 20XX, etc.

Again, thank you for your great work. OEC will be with you all the way.

Chris Hagerbaumer | Deputy Director
Oregon Environmental Council
222 NW Davis Street, Suite 309
Portland, OR 97209-3900
503.222.1963 x102

Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 83 of 246



133 SW Second Ave., Suite 201 • Portland, OR 97204 • (503) 497-1000 • fax (503) 223-0073 • www.friends.org  

Southern Oregon Office • PO Box 2442 • Grants Pass, OR 97528 • (541) 474-1155 • fax (541) 474-9389 

Willamette Valley Office • PO Box 51252 • Eugene, OR 97405 • (541) 520-3763 • fax (503) 575-2416 

 

1 

 

 

 

October 22, 2014 

 

Metro President Tom Hughes 

Metro Council 

600 NE Grand Avenue 

Portland, OR  97232 

 

Re:  Climate Smart Communities Strategy 

 

Dear President Hughes and Council Members: 

 

1000 Friends of Oregon is pleased to be before you, several years after the passage of HB 2001 

(in 2009) and SB 1059 (in 2010), enthusiastically supporting the work and outcome of the 

ground-breaking and critical Climate Smart Communities project.   The Metro Council and your 

staff not only embraced a state mandate, but used it to tie together the many related, but not 

always integrated, strands of land use and transportation work going on in the region to create a 

framework for the region’s future that goes beyond simply reducing greenhouse gas (GHG) 

emissions from light vehicles.   

 

The Metro Council set the stage by requiring the Climate Smart Communities project to be 

measured against Metro’s “six desired outcomes.”
1
  The Metro staff worked incredibly long 

hours to ensure the project was guided by thorough, professional technical research and analysis, 

not just in GHG emissions but also in the relationship of various options to health, personal and 

public finances, and the environment. Integrating the Oregon Health Authority’s Health Impact 

Analysis (HIA) illustrated clearly that the choices the region makes to address greenhouse gas 

reduction can have profound – and if we do it right, beneficial - impacts on the everyday lives of 

residents and businesses, today and in the future.   

 

Metro tried new methods of engaging a greater number and more diverse populations of local 

residents.  The staff diligently obtained feedback at every stage during this 4-year long project 

from the myriad of advisory committees, planning staffs, and elected officials throughout the 

region. 

 

It is critical to understand that the resulting proposed preferred strategy does not merely conclude 

that if the region implements its existing land use and transportation plans, it can achieve its 

GHG emission reduction target.  That would result in missing significant opportunities to 

achieve more than one regional objective through a synergistic implementation approach, and the 

region would probably also miss the ultimate target of contributing meaningfully to reducing the 

impact of greenhouse gas emissions on climate.
2
   

                                                 
1
 Metro’s Six Desired Outcomes are:  Equity, Vibrant Communities, Regional Climate Change Leadership, 

Transportation Choices, Economic Prosperity, Clean Air & Water. 
2
 Just in the 4 years this project has been underway, the Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change has concluded 

that warming of the earth’s atmosphere is occurring faster than previously thought. 

http://www.ipcc.ch/report/ar5/wg1/ 

Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 84 of 246



 

2 

 

Most importantly, it would hide the critical take-away from Climate Smart Communities:  the 

region – cities, counties, transit agencies, and Metro - are not implementing their adopted plans 

now.  Therefore, the region will not meet its GHG emission reduction target if we simply conduct 

business as usual.  To meet the GHG target and achieve the many other benefits of creating 

walkable, mixed use communities requires greatly increased investment in transit, pedestrian 

infrastructure, bike facilities, and affordable housing.  It also requires policy changes that 

integrate transportation investments, affordable housing, parking reduction strategies, and mixed-

use development investments. 

 

An ever-increasing number of studies demonstrates that collaboratively implementing particular 

actions can have beneficial impacts on several of the region’s desired outcomes at the same time.  

For example, the Oregon Health Authority’s HIA on Metro’s Climate Smart Strategy concluded 

that investing in safe and accessible walking, bicycling, and transit options that take residents 

from where they live to where they need to go not only reduces the amount of miles we all drive, 

but results in significant health benefits and health savings – savings both to the individual and to 

taxpayers – due to increased physical activity and decreased air pollution.
3
   

 

We also know that transit will not be effective in reducing greenhouse gas emissions from light 

vehicles unless local governments ensure through planning and zoning that densities and housing 

options along bus and light rail lines are sufficient to generate ridership warranting frequent 

service.  The highest levels of transit ridership are from those populations – mostly lower income 

and elderly – that are transit dependent.  Recent extensive studies from California, which is 

implementing a similar GHG reduction program, have found: 

 

 “[W]ell-designed program[s] to put more affordable homes near transit would not just 

 meet the requirements set by the California Air Resources Board (ARB), but would be a 

 powerful and durable GHG reduction strategy – directly reducing driving while creating a 

 host of economic and social benefits.”
4
 

 

The integration of affordable housing into transit-oriented development is critical: 

   

 “Preserving and building affordable homes near 

 transit will allow California to achieve the maximum VMT and GHG reduction benefits 

 of investment in transit infrastructure and transit-oriented development. Actions must 

 be taken to ensure that people with low incomes, who are most likely to use transit and 

 to benefit from its presence, are able to live nearby.”
5
 

 

                                                 
3
 Oregon Health Authority, www.healthoregon.org/hia 

4
   Why Creating and Preserving Affordable Homes Near Transit is a Highly Effective Climate Protection Strategy 

TransForm, California Housing Partnership Corporation, 2014.  http://www.transformca.org/transform-report/why-

creating-and-preserving-affordable-homes-near-transit-highly-effective-climate 
5
 Building  and  Preserving  Affordable  Homes  Near  Transit: Affordable  TOD  as  a Greenhouse  Gas Reduction 

and  Equity Strategy, California Housing Partnership Corporation, January 2013. 

http://www.chpc.net/dnld/FullReport_CHPCAffordableTOD013113.pdf 

Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 85 of 246

http://www.transformca.org/transform-report/why-creating-and-preserving-affordable-homes-near-transit-highly-effective-climate
http://www.transformca.org/transform-report/why-creating-and-preserving-affordable-homes-near-transit-highly-effective-climate
http://www.chpc.net/dnld/FullReport_CHPCAffordableTOD013113.pdf


 

3 

Therefore, Metro, cities, and counties must adopt policies and invest in affordable housing and 

senior housing in transit-oriented developments.  Furthermore, well-located bus service not only 

makes employment opportunities available to all workers, but also benefits the local economy by 

making sufficient workers available to all employers. 

 

Finally, surface parking lots, other impervious surfaces devoted to parking, and brownfields not 

only create deserts of lost economic opportunity in neighborhoods, but they lower densities 

making transit less effective.  Policies to manage parking and investments to revitalize 

brownfields into uses that contribute to livability have multiple community benefits in addition 

to helping reduce the need to drive. 

 

Achieving multiple benefits  requires coordinating and prioritizing investments by Metro, cities, 

counties, and TriMet in safe and accessible sidewalks, bikeways, bus shelters, lighting, and 

frequent and integrated transit service along key corridors linking where people live with 

employment, shopping, schools, and other needs.  It requires adoption of policies supporting 

affordable housing, managing parking, and re-using brownfields. 

 

Therefore, adopting the Toolbox of Possible Actions and Performance Monitoring Approach, 

along with the Climate Smart Strategy, is essential for the region’s success.  We emphasize 

below the specific tools and monitoring approaches we particularly support, and recommend 

some stronger actions we ask Metro to take. 

 

Toolbox 

 

Demonstrate Leadership 

 

 To truly “demonstrate leadership on climate change,” Metro must commit to lead by 

example by using the Climate Smart Strategy as a filter for Metro’s land use and 

transportation policy and investment decisions.  Each of those decisions must be 

measured against whether it helps or hinders achievement of the GHG reduction target. 

 

Implement the 2040 Growth Concept 

 

 We support Metro’s commitment to restoring all affordable housing tools to local 

governments. Providing local governments the full array of tools to provide for 

affordable housing is critical to a successful transit system, to the ability of the region’s 

residents to meet their daily needs, and the region’s employers to have a sufficient work 

force.   

 

 Metro should specifically call out here its commitment to use the 2018 RTP revision as a 

tool to implement the 2040 Growth Concept’s Climate Smart Strategies.  For example, 

through the 2018 RTP, Metro should prioritize active transportation projects and 

investments, especially in designated centers and corridors and transit-dependent 

communities.    

Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 86 of 246



 

4 

 Among other actions in the Toolbox, Metro should commit to leveraging Metro’s and the 

region’s public investments to maintain and create affordable housing in transit-served 

areas. 

 

 Major investments in transit and other community development projects should be 

accompanied with policies that protect against economic displacement of 

lower‐income residents. 

 

Make transit more convenient, frequent, accessible, and affordable 

 

 Under Metro’s actions, move from “Near-term” to “Immediate” the action to “Research 

and develop best practices that support equitable growth and development near transit 

without displacement….”  This research and implementation must start in the immediate 

time fame, so region and neighborhoods can get ahead of potentially displacing 

investments. 

 

 Commit regional flexible transportation funds to active transportation. 

 

 Specifically call out the 2018 RTP revision as a tool to implement the transit actions in 

the Climate Smart Strategy. 

 

 We strongly support Metro’s commitment to seek new sources for transit funding and to 

obtain reduced fare programs for youth, seniors, people with disabilities, and low-income 

residents.  

 

 Under the Immediate actions for local governments, the action to “Consider ridership 

demographics in [transit] service planning” is too weak.  Ridership demographics should 

actually be used in service planning, to ensure that the communities of concern are 
prioritized in providing accessible and affordable transit.  This same issue re-occurs 

under the list of special district action items. 

 

Make biking and walking safe and convenient 

 

  Specifically call out 2018 RTP revision as a tool to implement the bicycle and pedestrian 

actions in the Climate Smart Strategy. 

 

 Commit regional flexible transportation funds to active transportation. 

 

 Use the Climate Smart Strategy as a filter for evaluating individual transportation projects 

to construct or widen major roads and arterials.  

 

 

 

 

 

Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 87 of 246



 

5 

Manage parking to make efficient use of parking spaces 

 

 Under Metro’s actions, move the item about researching and updating regional parking 

policies from the “Near-term” category to “Immediate.”  It will take time to complete the 

research and conduct the pilot and demonstration projects that are likely to be needed.   

 

 Link providing different parking policies in mixed use transit corridors and centers with 

maintaining/providing affordable housing (e.g., recoup some of the private savings from 

providing fewer parking places in a development in a frequent transit district, and use it 

to provide for or preserve affordable housing in the corridor). 

 

Performance Monitoring 

 

The following should be added to Performance Monitoring Approach: 

 

 Metro should continue and expand the efforts it started during the development of the 

Climate Smart  Strategy of engaging more and more diverse communities in the region as 

it implements the CSC strategy, decides which "Tools" to use, and monitors the 

performance. Therefore, we ask Metro to establish a public engagement process that is 

diverse and inclusive, which will oversee implementation of the Climate Smart Strategy. 

 

 Specific actions that Metro will take to incentivize, reward, and penalize success and 

failure in achieving progress towards meeting the adopted Climate Smart Strategy. 

 

 Specific benchmark dates for evaluating progress on the immediate and near term actions 

and a commitment to take appropriate steps, if necessary, to maintain progress towards 

the target GHG reduction. 

 

 Add as a measure to be monitored the percentage of households whose combined housing 

and transportation costs make them “cost burdened,” by location.  This is already 

measured by Metro.  This should be linked to a goal should be to reduce the percentage 

of cost-burdened households, by increasing affordable housing, in transit centers and 

corridors. 

 

 Incorporate as measures appropriate health categories from the HIA and rapid HIA 

completed by the Oregon Health Authority. 

 

Thank you for consideration of our comments. 

 

Sincerely, 

 

 
Mary Kyle McCurdy 

Policy Director and Staff Attorney 

Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 88 of 246



CLACKAMAS 
COUNTY 

October 22, 2014 

Council President Hughes and Metro Councilors 
Metro Regional Center 
600 NE Grand Ave 
Portland, Oregon 97232 

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

PUBLIC SERVICES BUILDING 

2051 l<AE N ROAD I OREGON CITY, OR 97045 

Re: Climate Smart Communities Preferred Alternative 

Dear President Hughes and Metro Councilors: 

Thank you for the opportunity to provide these comments on Metro's Climate Smart 
Strategy. We are appreciative of the incredible amount of work that went in to the 
process over the past several years, and of the difficult task your staff have undertaken 
Clackamas County has several concerns with the strategy, and hope that they can be 
addressed in the final version . 

Maintain Local Flexibility. 

On numerous occasions we have heard that the preferred approach will consist of a 
"toolbox" of actions from which local governments may choose. It is essential that we 
maintain this flexible approach. Every jurisdiction is unique, and what works in one 
place might not work in another. Parking management is a key example of a local 
issue: Portland's needs and context are very different from those in Oregon City or the 
Clackamas Regional Center. In every area, public and business input will be key to 
workable solutions. A top-down, one size fits all approach will not work. Nor will a bias 
toward spending regional funds in a manner that is not equitable between jurisdictions. 
The strategy must contain a clear and unequivocal commitment to maintaining local 
control and flexibility in both the adopting ordinance, and in the framework plan 
language itself. 

Maintain an emphasis on increased highway capacity as a method of reducing 
greenhouse gas emissions. 

Congestion is a key contributor to greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions. Of all of the 
proposed strategies, congestion-based GHG emissions are the most easily reduced, 
and the GHG reduction is the most direct. It is critical that the language in the 

P . 503.655.8581 I F. 503. 742.5919 I WWW .CLACKAMAS.US 

Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 89 of 246

CLACKAMAS 
COUNTY 

October 22, 2014 

Council President Hughes and Metro Councilors 
Metro Regional Center 
600 NE Grand Ave 
Portland, Oregon 97232 

BOARD Of COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

PUBLIC SERVICES BUILDING 

2051 KAEN ROAD I OREGON CITY . OR 9 7045 

Re: Cl imate Smart Communities Preferred Alternative 

Dear President Hughes and Metro Councilors: 

Thank you for the opportunity to provide these comments on Metro's Climate Smart 
Strategy. We are appreciative of the incredible amount of work that went in to the 
process over the past several years , and of the difficult task your staff have undertaken 
Clackamas County has several concerns with the strategy, and hope that they can be 
addressed in the final version . 

Maintain Local Flexibility. 

On numerous occasions we have heard that the preferred approach will consist of a 
"toolbox" of actions from which local governments may choose. It is essential that we 
maintain this flexible approach. Every jurisdiction is unique, and what works in one 
place might not work in another. Parking management is a key example of a local 
issue: Portland's needs and context are very different from those in Oregon City or the 
Clackamas Regional Center. In every area, public and business input will be key to 
workable solutions. A top-down, one size fits all approach will not work. Nor will a bias 
toward spending regional funds in a manner that is not equitable between jurisdictions. 
The strategy must contain a clear and unequivocal commitment to maintaining local 
control and flexibility in both the adopting ordinance, and in the framework plan 
language itself. 

Maintain an emphasis on increased highway capacity as a method of reducing 
greenhouse gas emissions. 

Congestion is a key contributor to greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions. Of all of the 
proposed strategies, congestion-based GHG emissions are the most easily reduced , 
and the GHG reduction is the most direct. It is critical that the language in the 

P. 503.655.8581 If. 503.742.5919 I WWW.CLACI{AMAS . US 



Preferred Strategy reflect a continued commitment to increasing highway capacity, 
particularly in those areas of critical congestion like the 1-205 South Corridor and the 
Rose Quarter. 

In addition , increased highway and road capacity has the most obvious co-benefits in 
terms of increased economic activity and freight mobility. It also relies on less behavior 
modification and social engineering than other elements of the strategy. Through 
appropriate strategies like High Occupancy Transit, High Occupancy Vehicle and 
dedicated freight lanes, it is possible to increase capacity while maintaining control of 
congestion. 

We are concerned that the preferred strategy will become a "filter" through which more 
Regional Flex Funds and MTIP money is allocated to non-road projects, or to support 
projects in particular areas .. We want to be sure that that is not the case, and that the 
region retains its ability to.invest in highway capacity. Moreover, since the preferred 
strategy and the RTP itself were based on local Transportation Systems Plans, it is 
important that the region remain committed to the implementation of local plans. 

Assure that enhanced transit leaves ample opportunities to innovate with local or 
supplemental service. 

Clackamas County and several of our cities are interested in evaluating the potential to 
provide a supplemental transit service along the lines of Grove Link, Forest Grove's 
local service. We want to be sure that the preferred strategy expressly include the 
opportunity for this kind of innovation and experimentation. 

Clackamas County appreciates the opportunity to provide these comments. 

Sincerely: 

Paul Savas 
Commissioner 

COMMISSIONERS 

Martha Schrader 
Commissioner 

im Bernard 
Commissioner 

Tootie Smith 
Commissioner 

Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 90 of 246

Preferred Strategy reflect a continued commitment to increasing highway capacity, 
particularly in those areas of critical congestion like the 1-205 South Corridor and the 
Rose Quarter. 

In addition , increased highway and road capacity has the most obvious co-benefits in 
terms of increased economic activity and freight mobility. It also relies on less behavior 
modification and social engineering than other elements of the strategy. Through 
appropriate strategies like High Occupancy Transit, High Occupancy Vehicle and 
dedicated freight lanes, it is possible to increase capacity while maintaining control of 
congestion. 

We are concerned that the preferred strategy will become a "filter" through which more 
Regional Flex Funds and MTIP money is allocated to non-road projects, or to support 
projects in particular areas .. We want to be sure that that is not the case, and that the 
region retains its ability to invest in highway capacity. Moreover, since the preferred 
strategy and the RTP itself were based on local Transportation Systems Plans, it is 
important that the region remain committed to the implementation of local plans. 

Assure that enhanced transit leaves ample opportunities to innovate with local or 
supplemental service. 

Clackamas County and several of our cities are interested in evaluating the potential to 
provide a supplemental transit service along the lines of Grove Link, Forest Grove's 
local service. We want to be sure that the preferred strategy expressly include the 
opportunity for this kind of innovation and experimentation. 

Clackamas County appreciates the opportunity to provide these comments. 

Sincerely: 

Paul Savas 
Commissioner 

COMMISSIONERS 

Martha Schrader 
Commissioner 

im Bernard 
Commissioner 

Tootie Smith 
Commissioner 



October 24, 2014 

Hon. Tom Hughes, President, 
And Metro Councilors 

600 NE Grand Avenue 
Portland, OR 97232 

Re: Climate Smart Scenarios - Preferred Approach 

Dear President Hughes and Metro Councilors: 

With the passage of House Bill 2001 in 2009, the Region was faced with the daunting task of reaching an 
agreement on how to meet the state targets for reduction in greenhouse gas emissions from light-duty 
vehicles. Through Metro's leadership and guidance and the hard work and commitment of regional 
leaders and their staff, this spring, we did come to consensus on the concepts for the Climate Smart 
Strategy. We applaud Metro and the local government efforts on reaching this historic milestone. We 
hope that the region will stay engaged as we move forward with reporting back to the State Legislature 
and implementation. 

In order to accurately reflect the regional consensus and local priorities, as well as protect current and 
future generations from undue financial burdens or unrealistic expectations, a few changes and 
clarifications to the implementing documents are necessary before the region moves forward. These 
changes and clarifications, as outlined below, are necessary before we can support the package at the 
November 7, 2014 joint JPACT/MPAC meeting: 

Commitment to adopted plans. Our first commitment needs to be to adopted plans, as 
implementation of these plans gets us to the state greenhouse gas reduction target. Additionally, 
these plans reflect our local priorities and the desires of our citizens. We should celebrate the fact 
that our adopted plans will further the regional and statewide goals regarding reduction of 
greenhouse gas emissions from light-duty vehicles. 

Local Choice in the Regional Context. Metro has stated throughout this process that the solution 
will not be one-size-fits all, and that local jurisdictions will be able to chose implementation 
measures that suit their community needs. This has been a crucial factor in obtaining regional buy
in to the preferred strategy. While draft Ordinance 14-1346 clearly articulates the ability to "locally 
tailor'' implementation tools, the amendments to the Framework Plan and the tool kit need to 
contain identical language. Furthermore, the Performance Monitoring measures need to account 
for this local autonomy. 

Mail 150 E Main Street, Hillsboro, Oregon 97123-4028 Phone 503.681.6100 Fax 503.681.6232 Web www.hillsboro-oregon.gov 

Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 91 of 246

October 24, 2014 

Hon. Tom Hughes, President, 
And Metro Councilors 

600 NE Grand Avenue 
Portland, OR 97232 

Re: Climate Smart Scenarios - Preferred Approach 

Dear President Hughes and Metro Councilors: 

With the passage of House Bill 2001 in 2009, the Region was faced with the daunting task of reaching an 
agreement on how to meet the state targets for reduction in greenhouse gas emissions from light-duty 
vehicles. Through Metro's leadership and guidance and the hard work and commitment of regional 
leaders and their staff, this spring, we did come to consensus on the concepts for the Climate Smart 
Strategy. We applaud Metro and the local government efforts on reaching this historic milestone. We 
hope that the region will stay engaged as we move forward with reporting back to the State legislature 
and implementation. 

In order to accurately reflect the regional consensus and local priorities, as well as protect current and 
future generations from undue financial burdens or unrealistic expectations, a few changes and 
clarifications to the implementing documents are necessary before the region moves forward . These 
changes and clarifications, as outlined below, are necessary before we can support the package at the 
November 7, 2014 joint JPACTjMPAC meeting: 

Commitment to adopted plans. Our first commitment needs to be to adopted plans, as 
implementation of these plans gets us to the state greenhouse gas reduction target. Additionally, 
these plans reflect our local priorities and the desires of our citizens. We should celebrate the fact 
that our adopted plans will further the regional and statewide goals regarding reduction of 
greenhouse gas emissions from light-duty vehicles. 

local Choice in the Regional Context . Metro has stated throughout this process that the solution 
will not be one-size-fits all, and that local jurisdictions will be able to chose implementation 
measures that suit their community needs. This has been a crucial factor in obtaining regional buy
in to the preferred strategy. While draft Ordinance 14-1346 clearly articulates the ability to " locally 
tailor" implementation tools, the amendments to the Framework Plan and the tool kit need to 
contain identical language. Furthermore, the Performance Monitoring measures need to account 
for this local autonomy. 

Moil 150 E Main Streel, Hihboro, Oregon 971 23-4028 Phon" 503.681.6100 f <v< 503.68 1.6232 web www.hillsboro-oregon.gov 



Hon. Tom Hughes, President, 
and Metro Councilors 
October 24, 2014 

Page2 of 3 

Funding. We agree that we need to be aspirational when planning for climate change, as we're not 
only planning for today, but future generations. However, we do need to balance these aspirations 
with realism, and not over commit funding we do not have. To this end, we recommend the 
following: 

• Given that existing, adopted plans get us to the state targets and the uncertainty of future 

funding and technological advances, we recommend that the regional approach be to first 

set forth the few implementation actions for the next few years that have firm commitment, 

followed by an "aspirational" list of items to pursue dependent on available funding. This 

tiered approach will also allow further refinement of and collaboration on the longer term 

implementation actions. 

• Focus efforts on any "funding coalition" on federal and state funds. Funding strategies 

should not include a new regional tax or jeopardize existing local funding sources. 

Washington County and its cities have long been progressive with providing funding for 

transportation improvements and maintenance through sources such as the County Major 

Streets Transportation Improvement Program and Transportation Development Tax and 

local funding sources such Transportation Utility Fees and adopted and anticipated 

supplemental transportation fees for new growth areas. We encourage Metro to work with 

neighboring jurisdictions to come up with similar measures; however, given commitments of 

these funding sources, dilution of these funds would jeopardize years of local planning that 

has been acknowledged to be in compliance with the Metro 2040 Plan. 

• Rather than a blanket statement of prioritizing transit, we need local governments within 

transportation corridors to prioritize improvements. While transit may be a priority where 

there is a complete road network, in other locations, completing road connections may be a 

prerequisite to transit. Simply stating that transit is a funding priority is too simplistic given 

the diversity and complexity of the region. 

The Future of Technology. In addition to tempering the cost of the additional efforts above-and
beyond adopted plans with reality of funding, we need to keep our options open to new 
technological advances. It is foreseeable that such advances will move us forward towards reducing 
greenhouse gas emissions in ways the proposed strategy does not take into account. We need to 
build in periodic review to be able to adjust and respond to such advances, as they may relieve some 
of the financial burdens that remain unsolved in the proposed strategy. 

Legislative Priorities. Before the region can start setting priorities for the 2015 Legislative Session, 
we need the clarity outlined above. Furthermore, there needs to be clarity regarding the 
expectations from local governments - is Metro looking for local jurisdictions to sign onto a regional 
legislative agenda? This may be problematic, as individual jurisdictions are working with their 
Councils to formulate legislative agendas and regional and local priorities may not align. 

Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 92 of 246Hon. Tom Hughes, President, 
and Metro Councilors 
October 24, 2014 
Page2of3 

Funding. We agree that we need to be aspirational when planning for climate change, as we're not 
only planning for today, but future generations. However, we do need to balance these aspirations 
with realism, and not over commit funding we do not have. To this end, we recommend the 
following: 

• Given that existing, adopted plans get us to the state targets and the uncertainty of future 

funding and technological advances, we recommend that the regional approach be to first 

set forth the few implementation actions for the next few years that have firm commitment, 

followed by an "aspirational" list of items to pursue dependent on available funding. This 

tiered approach will also allow further refinement of and collaboration on the longer term 

implementation actions. 

• Focus efforts on any "funding coalition" on federal and state funds. Funding strategies 

should not include a new regional tax or jeopardize existing local funding sources. 

Washington County and its cities have long been progressive with providing funding for 

transportation improvements and maintenance through sources such as the County Major 

Streets Transportation Improvement Program and Transportation Development Tax and 

local funding sources such Transportation Utility Fees and adopted and anticipated 

supplemental transportation fees for new growth areas. We encourage Metro to work with 

neighboring jurisdictions to come up with similar measures; however, given commitments of 

these funding sources, dilution of these funds would jeopardize years of local planning that 

has been acknowledged to be in compliance with the Metro 2040 Plan. 

• Rather than a blanket statement of prioritizing transit, we need local governments within 

transportation corridors to prioritize improvements. While transit may be a priority where 

there is a complete road network, in other locations, completing road connections may be a 

prerequisite to transit. Simply stating that transit is a funding priority is too simplistic given 

the diversity and complexity of the region. 

The Future of Technology. In addition to tempering the cost of the additional efforts above-and
beyond adopted plans with reality of funding, we need to keep our options open to new 
technological advances. It is foreseeable that such advances will move us forward towards reducing 
greenhouse gas emissions in ways the proposed strategy does not take into account. We need to 
build in periodic review to be able to adjust and respond to such advances, as they may relieve some 
of the financial burdens that remain unsolved in the proposed strategy. 

legislative Priorities. Before the region can start setting priorities for the 2015 legislative Session, 
we need the clarity outlined above. Furthermore, there needs to be clarity regarding the 
expectations from local governments - is Metro looking for local jurisdictions to sign onto a regional 
legislative agenda? This may be problematic, as individual jurisdictions are working with their 
Councils to formulate legislative agendas and regional and local priorities may not align. 



Hon. Tom Hughes, President, 
and Metro Councilors 
October 24, 2014 

Page3 of 3 

Regional Framework Plan. The proposed amendments to the new Goal 11 of the Regional 
Framework Plan need to be edited to be consistent with previous sections of the Framework Plan. 
To this end, this section should be limited to the goals and objectives, with the individual action 
items left to the toolbox and Climate Smart Strategy report. 

Further Refinement of the Toolbox and appropriate form of adoption. With regard to the Toolbox 
of Possible Actions, we support the development of a short list of priority actions. However, the 
Toolbox itself needs refinement, which we would like to see accomplished through a series of 
workgroup meetings (similar to what Metro did with the Active Transportation Plan) over the next 
3-6 months. To accomplish such a task, the 8th and 9th clauses on page 3 of the Resolution need to 
be modified to reflect such an effort. Additionally, #4 (page 5) should be reworded as follows: 

Metro Council directs staff to provide opportunities for further review and refinement of 
the Toolbox of Possible Actions by local governments, ODOT, TriMet and other 
stakeholders. 

We think this extra work will go far in avoiding misunderstanding and help build consensus around 
possible actions to be taken to implement the Climate Smart Strategy. Furthermore, given the four 
years that went into analyzing and discussing the preferred approach, it is appropriate to be more 
thoughtful and considerate in devising the toolbox, which will guide implementation of the 
preferred Strategy over the next 20 years. 

If the Toolbox is to be "adopted," it should be done so through Resolution (similar to the Active 
Transportation Plan), not ordinance. 

Again, the region has much to be proud of with the work accomplished to date on the Climate Smart 
Strategy. With continued effort to reflect the comments above, we will be ready to move into the 
implementation phase and refinement of our longer-term actions. 

Thank you for your consideration. 

Sincerely, 

CITY OF HILLSBORO 

Mayor 

Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 93 of 246Hon. Tom Hughes, President, 
and Metro Councilors 
October 24, 2014 
Page 3 of 3 

Regional Framework Plan. The proposed amendments to the new Goal 11 of the Regional 
Framework Plan need to be edited to be consistent with previous sections of the Framework Plan. 
To this end, this section should be limited to the goals and objectives, with the individual action 
items left to the toolbox and Climate Smart Strategy report. 

Further Refinement of the Too lbox and appropriate form of adoption. With regard to the Toolbox 
of Possible Actions, we support the development of a short list of priority actions. However, the 
Toolbox itself needs refinement, which we would like to see accomplished through a series of 
workgroup meetings (similar to what Metro did with the Active Transportation Plan) over the next 
3-6 months. To accomplish such a task, the 8th and 9th clauses on page 3 of the Resolution need to 
be modified to reflect such an effort. Additionally, #4 (page 5) should be reworded as follows: 

Metro Council directs staff to provide opportunities for further review and refinement of 
the Toofbox of Possibfe Actions by focal governments, ODOT, TriMet and other 
stakeholders. 

We think this extra work will go far in avoiding misunderstanding and help build consensus around 
possible actions to be taken to implement the Climate Smart Strategy. Furthermore, given the four 
years that went into analyzing and discussing the preferred approach, it is appropriate to be more 
thoughtful and considerate in devising the toolbox, which will guide implementation of the 
preferred Strategy over the next 20 years. 

If the Toolbox is to be "adopted," it should be done so through Resolution (similar to the Active 
Transportation Plan). not ordinance. 

Again, the region has much to be proud of with the work accomplished to date on the Climate Smart 
Strategy. With continued effort to reflect the comments above, we will be ready to move into the 
implementation phase and refinement of our longer-term actions. 

Thank you for your consideration. 

Sincerely, 

CITY OF HILLSBORO 

rry W Willey 
Mayor 



October 30, 2014 

Hon. Tom Hughes, President 
And Metro Councilors 
600 NE Grand Avenue 
Portland, OR 97232 

Re: Climate Smart Scenarios - Preferred Approach 

Dear President Hughes and Metro Councilors: 

As noted by Mayor Jerry Willey in his October 24, 2014 letter, the region has achieved a monumental 
milestone in reaching consensus on a preferred approach to meet the state goals for reduction 
greenhouse gas emissions from light-duty vehicles. The agreement on the approach is testament to the 
region's commitment towards improving the quality of the environment for generations to come. While 
we may take a moment to celebrate this accomplishment, the larger tasks are still ahead of us: gaining 
understanding and agreement of how we will go about implementing the preferred approach and the 
actual tasks of implementation. In order to get to implementation, we need to be as thoughtful in 
developing the implementation tools and documentation as we were in analyzing and selecting a 
preferred approach. 

With the consideration of implementation in mind, we offer t he following suggestions, in addition to 
Mayor Willey's testimony, which is attached: 

Goals, Targets and Timing. 

It is important to keep in mind some key statutory/rule goals, targets and their timing: 

1. "By 2050, achieve greenhouse gas levels that are at least 75 percent below 1990 levels." ORS 
468A.205(1)(c) 

2. By 2035, reduce greenhouse gas emissions from light vehicle travel by 52 percent by 2035 (OAR 
660-044-0010( 2) (a)). 

3. February 1, 2014 - the Land Conservation and Development Commission and Department of 
Transportation report to the House and Senate interim committees re lated to transportation on 
progress toward implementing the land use and transportation scenarios required under House 
Bill 4078 (2009). (Oregon Laws 2009, chapter 865, section 38(3)). 

4. December 31, 2014 - Metro to " .. . amend the regional framework plan and the regional 
growth concept to select and incorporate a preferred land use and transportation scenario that 
meets [the 2035} targets . . . " (OAR 660-044-0040(1).1 

Commitment to Adopted Plans. 

The importance of our commitment to our adopted plans must be paramount to our implementation 
efforts under the Climate Smart Scenarios project. The implementing rules for t he Climate Smart 
Scenarios project provide that t he purpose of scenario planning is intended: 

.. . to be a means for local governments in metropolitan areas to explore ways that 
urban development patterns and transportation systems would need to be changed to 

1 The requirements for the preferred land use and transportation scenario are set forth in OAR 660-0040(3), which 

is attached to this letter. 

Mail 150 E Main Street, Hillsboro, Oregon 97123-4028 Phnne 503 .681.6100 Fa. 503.681 .6232 Web www.hillsboro-oregon.gov 

Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 94 of 246

October 30, 2014 

Hon. Tom Hughes, President 
And Metro Councilors 
600 NE Grand Avenue 
Portland, OR 97232 

Re: Climate Smart Scenarios - Preferred Approach 

Dear President Hughes and Metro Councilors: 

As noted by Mayor Jerry Willey in his October 24, 2014 letter, the region has achieved a monumental 
milestone in reaching consensus on a preferred approach to meet the state goals for reduction 
greenhouse gas emissions from light-duty vehicles. The agreement on the approach is testament to the 
region's commitment towards improving the quality of the environment for generations to come. While 
we may take a moment to celebrate th is accomplishment, the larger tasks are still ahead of us: gaining 
understanding and agreement of how we will go about implementing the preferred approach and the 
actual tasks of implementation. In order to get to implementation, we need to be as thoughtful in 
developing the implementation tools and documentation as we were in analyzing and selecting a 
preferred approach. 

With the consideration of implementation in mind, we offer the following suggestions, in addition to 
Mayor Willey's testimony, which is attached: 

Goals, Targets and Timing. 

It is important to keep in mind some key statutory/rule goals, targets and their timing: 

1. "By 2050, achieve greenhouse gas levels that are at least 75 percent below 1990 levels." DRS 
468A.205(1)(c) 

2. By 2035, reduce greenhouse gas emissions from light vehicle travel by 52 percent by 2035 (OAR 
660-044-0010(2)( a)). 

3. February 1, 2014 - the Land Conservation and Development Commission and Department of 
Transportation report to the House and Senate interim committees related to transportation on 
progress toward implementing the land use and transportation scenarios required under House 
Bill 4078 (2009). (Oregon Laws 2009, chapter 865, section 38(3)). 

4. December 31, 2014 - Metro to " .. . amend the regional framework plan and the regional 
growth concept to select and incorporate a preferred land use and transportation scenario that 
meets [the 2035j targets . .. " (OAR 660-044-0040(1).' 

Commitment to Adopted Plans. 

The importance of our commitment to our adopted plans must be paramount to our implementation 
efforts under the Climate Smart Scenarios project. The implementing rules for the Climate Smart 
Scenarios project provide that the purpose of scenario planning is intended: 

. . . to be a means for local governments in metropolitan areas to explore ways that 
urban development patterns and transportation systems would need ta be changed ta 

1 The requirements for the preferred land use and transportation scenario are set forth in OAR 660-0040(3)' which 
is attached to this letter. 

Moil 150 E Main Street, Hillsboro, Oregon 97123-4028 phone 503 .681.6100 Fox 503.681.6232 Web www.hillsboro-oregon .gov 



achieve significant reductions in greenhouse gas emissions from light vehicle travel. OAR 
660-004-0000( 4). 

The result of the scenario planning is to provide: 

.. . information on the extent of changes to land use patterns and transportation systems 
in metropolitan areas needed to significantly reduce greenhouse gas emissions from 
light vehicle travel in metropolitan areas, including information about the benefits and 
costs of achieving those reductions. (OAR 660-044-0000(5)). 

2 

This information is then to be used to "inform local governments as they update their comprehensive 
plans, and to inform the legislature, state agencies and the public as the state develops and implements 
an overall strategy to meet state goals to reduce greenhouse gas emissions." (Id.) 

As the scenario testing has shown, implementation of our adopted plans not only achieves the state 
greenhouse gas reduction goals for the region, they exceed the target reductions, reflecting the 
commitment of all the Metro jurisdictions to solving this issue. Thus, while we do need to be 
aspirational in our planning, we must heed the remainder of the above OAR: 

Scenario planning is a means to address benefits and costs of different actions to 
accomplish reductions in ways that allow communities to as how to meet other 
important needs, including accommodating economic development and housing needs, 
expanding transportation options and reducing transportation costs. (Id.) 

Technology. 

Throughout the process, Hillsboro has consistently advised that we need to remain open to how 
technological advances may further efforts in meeting the state goals in ways we cannot foresee. This 
sentiment is echoed in the implementing statewide rules: 

Pursuant to OAR 660-044-0035, 2 the commission shall review the targets by June 1, 
2015, based on the results of scenario planning, and updated information about 
expected changes in vehicle technologies and fuels, state policies and other factors. 
(OAR 660-044-0000(6)). 

Clearly, it is contemplated that we will revisit our progress and need not come up with all answers 
today. This is an important fact to keep in mind in the following discussion regarding the proposed 
implementation Toolbox. 

Our adopted plans reflect the balance of needs of the individual jurisdictions. As these plans have been 
subject to extensive public outreach, they must be honored. 

The Toolbox. 

Local autonomy in choosing implementation methods. OAR 660-044 states in several places that the 
preferred strategy should allow implementation in a manner that "maximizes attainment of other 
community goals and benefits." (OAR 660-044-0040(S)(b); see also 660-044-0000(4), "scenario planning 
is a means to address benefits and costs of different actions to accomplish reductions in ways that allow 
communities to assess how to meet other important needs." Emphasis added.) 

While draft Ordinance No. 14-1346 clearly articulates the ability to "locally tailor" implementation tools, 
the amendments to the Framework Plan and the Toolbox need to contain identical language. 

More time and collaboration needed in refining the Toolbox. The draft Toolbox is a starting point for 
providing more detail on the required "policies and strategies intended to achieve the target reductions 
in greenhouse gas emissions" (OAR 660-044-0040(3)(c)), which are outline in both the proposed 

2 
OAR 660-044-0035(1) requires a review of the greenhouse gas emissions reduction targets every four (4) years 

starting June 1, 2015. 

Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 95 of 246

achieve significant reductions in greenhouse gas emissions from light vehicle travel. OAR 
660-004-0000(4) . 

The result of the scenario planning is to provide: 

. . . information on the extent of changes to land use patterns and transportation systems 
in metropolitan areas needed to significantly reduce greenhouse gas emissions from 
light vehicle travel in metrapolitan areas, including information about the benefits and 
costs of achieving those reductions. (OAR 660-044-0000(5)) . 

2 

This information is then to be used to "inform local governments as they update their comprehensive 
plans, and to inform the legislature, state agencies and the public as the state develops and implements 
an overall strategy to meet state goals to reduce greenhouse gas emissions." (ld.) 

As the scenario testing has shown, implementation of our adopted plans not only achieves the state 
greenhouse gas reduction goals for the region, they exceed the target reductions, reflecting the 
commitment of all the Metro jurisdictions to solving this issue. Thus, while we do need to be 
aspirational in our planning, we must heed the remainder of the above OAR: 

Scenario planning is a means to address benefits ond costs of different actions to 
accomplish reductions in woys that allow communities to as how to meet other 
importont needs, including accommodating economic development and housing needs, 
expanding transportation options and reducing transportation costs. (ld.) 

Technology. 

Throughout the process, Hillsboro has consistently advised that we need to remain open to how 
technological advances may further efforts in meeting the state goals in ways we cannot foresee. This 
sentiment is echoed in the implementing statewide rules: 

Pursuant to OAR 660-044-0035/ the commission shall review the targets by June 1, 
2015, based on the results of scenario planning, and updoted information about 
expected changes in vehicle technologies and fuels, state policies and other factors. 
(OAR 660-044-0000(6)). 

Clearly, it is contemplated that we will revisit our progress and need not come up with all answers 
today. This is an important fact to keep in mind in the following discussion regarding the proposed 
implementation Toolbox. 

Our adopted plans reflect the balance of needs of the individual jurisdictions. As these plans have been 
subject to extensive public outreach, they must be honored. 

The Toolbox. 

Local autonomy in choosing implementation methods. OAR 660-044 states in several places that the 
preferred strategy should allow implementation in a manner that "maximizes attainment of other 
community goals and benefits." (OAR 660-044-0040(5)(b); see also 660-044-0000(4), "scenario planning 
is a means to address benefits and costs of different actions to accomplish reductions in ways that allow 
communities to assess how to meet other important needs." Emphasis added.) 

While draft Ordinance No. 14-1346 clearly articulates the ability to "locally tailor" implementation tools, 
the amendments to the Framework Plan and the Toolbox need to contain identical language. 

More time and collaboration needed in refining the Toolbox. The draft Toolbox is a starting point for 
providing more detail on the required "policies and strategies intended to achieve the target reductions 
in greenhouse gas emissions" (OAR 660-044-0040(3)(c)), which are outline in both the proposed 

2 OAR 660-044-0035(1) requires a review of the greenhouse gas emissions reduction targets every four (4) years 
starting June 1, 2015. 



3 

Framework Plan amendments and the Draft Climate Smart Strategy. As the Toolbox is not one of the 
required components necessary for adoption of the preferred strategy, we recommend that Metro 
convene a working group to refine the Toolbox over the next few months. 

Our general concerns with the Toolbox are: 

• Undefined terms throughout, such as "Vision Zero strategy" (in the Making biking and walking 
safe and convenient strategy) and "EcoRule" (in the policy regarding the provision of 
information and incentives to expand the use of travel options). Without definition or 
additional context, it is impossible to evaluate the monetary implications of such strategies. 
Moreover, such tools are likely to be underutilized if there is no understanding on what they 
are, potentially creating a lost opportunity for t he region. 

• Too broad a spectrum of policies. Climate smart cannot be the cure-all for any perceived 
shortcomings in our land use regulatory system. For example, we were surprised to see 
removing the ban on inclusionary zoning as a strategy.3 Similarly, there needs to be more of a 
connection of Brownfield redevelopment with achieving the greenhouse gas reduction target. 

• Need for additional emphasis on development patterns in new urban growth areas. While there 
should be emphasis on development in existing centers and corridors, new expansion areas, 
such as South Hillsboro, South Cooper Mountain and River Terrace, offer opportunities to 
further the region's efforts towards achieving the greenhouse gas targets. These new areas can 
be developed to accommodate alternative modes of transportation, such as walking, biking and 
transit, from the outset, versus expensive retrofitting. As these expansion areas are being 
planned as complete communities, they will offer the opportunity for new residents to reduce 
or eliminate vehicular trips for every day needs such as shopping, dining, education and 
recreation. Another area that will bring benefit to the region is the ability to place more 
emphasis on using best practices to reduce greenhouse gas emissions from the built 
environment (i.e., green building practices).4 

• Overbroad statements on local funding for transit and road maintenance. In severa l locations, 
Metro is tasked with considering local funding. More description is needed on how Metro will 
be involved in local funding - Will Metro be assisting local jurisdictions in securing funding? 
What is the source of such funding? What impact will there be to existing funding mechanisms? 
We would also like to see further discussion about the role and function of the proposed 
funding coalition. 

• Managed Parking. There needs to be consistency that managed parking is an option only in 
areas served by frequent transit and active transportation connections. 

• Analysis and discussion is necessary on how the Metro draft Toolbox compares to the state 
toolbox (www.oregon.gov/ODOT/TD/TP/Pages/ghgtoolkit categories.aspx#cat2)? 

Given that the Toolbox will guide implementation over the next 20 years, we should take great care in 
getting this right and getting a better regional understanding of the tools and their implications. 

More information needed to determine compliance with OAR 660-044-0040. 

More information and analysis is necessary to determine compliance with the following to provisions of 
OAR 660-044-0040: 

• Funding. OAR 660-044-0040(2)(i) requires that "If the preferred scenario relies on new 
investments or funding sources to achieve the target [Metro shall} evaluate the feasibility of the 

3 Under the policy for implementing the 2040 Growth Concept and local adopted land use and transportation 
plans, the strategy for supporting the restoration of "local control of housing policies and programs .. . " 
4 While buildings and the built environment are not part of the Climate Smart Strategies, greenfield development 
provides an opportunity to help reduce greenhouse gas emissions. Such efforts are consistent with the State Ten
Year Energy Action Plan, Goal 1 (Maximize energy efficiency and conservation to meet 100 percent of new electric 
load Growth). 

Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 96 of 246
3 

Framework Plan amendments and the Draft Climate Smart Strategy. As the Toolbox is not one of the 
required components necessary for adoption of the preferred strategy, we recommend that Metro 
convene a working group to refine the Toolbox over the next few months. 

Our general concerns with the Toolbox are: 

• Undefined terms throughout, such as "Vision Zero strategy" (in the Making biking and walking 
safe and convenient strategy) and "EcoRule" (in the policy regarding the provision of 
information and incentives to expand the use of travel options). Without definition or 
additional context, it is impossible to evaluate the monetary implications of such strategies. 
Moreover, such tools are likely to be underutilized if there is no understanding on what they 
are, potentially creating a lost opportunity for the region. 

• Too broad a spectrum of policies. Climate smart cannot be the cure-all for any perceived 
shortcomings in our land use regulatory system. For example, we were surprised to see 
removing the ban on inclusionary zoning as a strategy3 Similarly, there needs to be more of a 
connection of Brownfield redevelopment with achieving the greenhouse gas reduction target. 

• Need for additional emphasis on development patterns in new urban growth areas. While there 
should be emphasis on development in existing centers and corridors, new expansion areas, 
such as South Hillsboro, South Cooper Mountain and River Terrace, offer opportunities to 
further the region's efforts towards achieving the greenhouse gas targets. These new areas can 
be developed to accommodate alternative modes of transportation, such as walking, biking and 
transit, from the outset, versus expensive retrofitting. As these expansion areas are being 
planned as complete communities, they will offer the opportunity for new residents to reduce 
or eliminate veh icular trips for every day needs such as shopping, dining, education and 
recreation. Another area that will bring benefit to the region is the ability to place more 
emphasis on using best practices to reduce greenhouse gas emissions from the built 
environment (i.e., green building practices)' 

• Overbroad statements on local funding for transit and road maintenance. In several locations, 
Metro is tasked with considering local funding. More description is needed on how Metro will 
be involved in local funding - Will Metro be assisting local jurisdictions in securing funding? 
What is the source of such funding? What impact will there be to existing funding mechanisms? 
We would also like to see further discussion about the role and function of t he proposed 
funding coalition. 

• Managed Parking. There needs to be consistency that 'managed parking is an option only in 
areas served by frequent transit and active transportation connections. 

• Analysis and discussion is necessary on how the Metro draft Toolbox compares to the state 
toolbox (www.oregon .gov/OOOT/TD/TP /Pages/ghgtoolkit categories .aspx#cat2 )? 

Given that the Toolbox will guide implementation over the next 20 years, we should take great care in 
getting this right and getting a better regional understanding of the tools and their implications. 

More information needed to determine compliance with OAR 660-044-0040. 

More information and analysis is necessary to determine compliance with the following to provisions of 
OAR 660-044-0040: 

• Funding. OAR 660-044-0040(2)(i) requires that "If the preferred scenario relies on new 
investments or funding sources to achieve the target [Metra shall] evaluate the feaSibility of the 

3 Under the policy for implementing the 2040 Growth Concept and local adopted land use and transportation 
plans, the strategy for supporting the restoration of "Iocol control of housing policies and programs . . ," 
4 While buildings and the built environment are not part of the Climate Smart Strategies, greenfield development 
provides an opportunity to help reduce greenhouse gas emissions. Such efforts are consistent with the State Ten
Year Energy Action Plan, Goal 1 (Maximize energy efficiency and conservation to meet 100 percent of new electric 
load Growth). 



4 

investments or funding sources." With a total price tag of $24 billion and an annual cost of 
$1.425 billion ($945 million plus $480 million to maintain and operate our road system), more 
detail is needed to satisfy the requirements of the OAR.5 

• Effects of alternative scenarios on development and travel patterns in the surrounding area. 
Metro is required to evaluate "whether proposed policies will cause change in development or 
increased light vehicle travel between metropolitan area and surrounding communities 
compared to reference case." (OAR 660-044-0040(2)(i)(D)). 

If these items are to be addressed in the findings, we ask that the findings be made available for 
discussion by the Metro Technica l Advisory Committee in early November. 

Ordinance 

We have raised several concerns with the draft ordinance with Metro staff and look forward to working 
with staff and the Metro Technical Advisory Committee prior to the December hearing. 

In summary, we recommend that Metro, prior to adopting the preferred scenario, direct staff to take 
the following actions: 

• Work through the various committees to refine the short list of actions to be undertaken in the 

next year (Mayor Willey's letter dated October 24, 2014). 

• Work with the various committees to refine the Toolbox, which would be adopted by resolution 

in 2015 (Mayor Willey's and this letter). 

• Include language in the Framework Plan amendments and the Toolbox identical to the draft 

Ordinance and consistent with OAR 660-044 that local jurisdictions have the ability to " locally 

t ailor" implementation tools. 

• Provide information on OAR 660-044-0040(2)(i) in timely manner so that jurisdictional partners 

can review and comment. 

Thank you for your consideration. 

Colin Cooper, AICP 
Planning Director 

5 At the October 22, 2014 Metro Policy Advisory Committee meeting, it was indicated that identifying other 
funding would be difficult over the next two months. How ever, per the OAR, funding sources need to be identified 
and evaluated for feasibility. 

Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 97 of 246
4 

investments or funding sources." With a total price tag of $24 billion and an annual cost of 
$1.425 billion ($945 million plus $480 million to maintain and operate our road system), more 
detail is needed to satisfy the requirements of the OARs 

• Effects of alternative scenarios on development and travel patterns in the surrounding area. 
Metro is required to evaluate "whether proposed policies will couse change in development or 
increased light vehicfe trovel between metropolitan areo and surrounding communities 
compared to reference cose." (OAR 660-044-0040(2)(i)(D)). 

If these items are to be addressed in the findings, we ask that the findings be made available for 
discussion by the Metro Technical Advisory Committee in early November. 

Ordinance 

We have raised several concerns with the draft ordinance with Metro staff and look forward to working 
with staff and the Metro Technical Advisory Committee prior to the December hearing. 

In summary, we recommend that Metro, prior to adopting the preferred scenario, direct staff to take 
the following actions: 

• Work through the various committees to refine the short list of actions to be undertaken in the 

next year (Mayor Willey's letter dated October 24, 2014). 

• Work with the various committees to refine the Toolbox, which would be adopted by resolution 

in 2015 (Mayor Willey's and this letter). 

• Include language in the Framework Plan amendments and the Toolbox identical to the draft 

Ordinance and consistent with OAR 660-044 that local jurisdictions have the ability to "locally 

tailor" implementation tools. 

• Provide information on OAR 660-044-0040(2)(i) in timely manner so that jurisdictional partners 

can review and comment. 

Thank you for your consideration. 

Colin Cooper, AICP 
Planning Director 

5 At the October 22, 2014 Metro Policy Advisory Committee meeting, it was indicated that identifying other 
funding would be difficult over the next two months. However, per the OAR, funding sources need to be identified 
and evaluated for feasibility. 



5 

OAR 660-044-0040 

Cooperative Selection of a Preferred Scenario; Initial Adoption 

(1) Metro shall by December 31, 2014, amend the regiona l framework plan and the regional growth 
concept to select and incorporate a preferred land use and transportation scenario that meets targets in 
OAR 660-044-0020 consistent with the requirements of this division. 

* * * 

(3) The preferred land use and transportation scenario shall include: 

(a) A description of the land use and transportation growth concept providing for land use design types; 

(b) A concept map showing the land use design types; 

(c) Policies and strategies intended to achieve the target reductions in greenhouse gas emissions in OAR 
660-044-0020; 

(d) Planning assumptions upon which the preferred scenario rel ies including: 

(A) Assumptions about state and federal policies and programs; 

(B) Assumptions about vehicle technology, fleet or fuels, if those are different than those provided in 
OAR 660-044-0010; 

(C) Assumptions or estimates of expected housing and employment growth by jurisdiction and land use 
design type; and 

(D) Assumptions about proposed regional programs or actions other than those that set requirements 
for city and county comprehensive plans and land use regulations, such as investments and incentives; 

(e) Performance measures and targets to monitor and guide implementation of the preferred scenario. 
Performance measures and targets shall be related to key elements, actions and expected outcomes 
from the preferred scenario. The performance measures shall include performance measures adopted 
to meet requirements of OAR 660-012-0035(5); and 

(f) Recommendations for state or federal policies or actions to support the preferred scenario . 

(4) When amending the regional framework plan, Metro shall adopt findings demonstrating that 
implementation of the preferred land use and transportation scenario meets the requirements of this 
division and can reasonably be expected to achieve the greenhouse gas emission reductions as set forth 
in the target in OAR 660-044-0020. Metro's findings shall: 

(a) Demonstrate Metro's process for cooperative selection of a preferred alternative meets the 
requirements in subsections (2)(a)-(j); 

(b) Explain how the expected pattern of land use development in combination with land use and 
transportation policies, programs, actions set forth in the preferred scenario will result in levels of 
greenhouse gas emissions from light vehicle travel that achieve the target in OAR 660-044-0020; 

Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 98 of 246
5 

OAR 660-044-0040 

Cooperative Selection of a Preferred Scenario; Initial Adoption 

(1) Metro shall by December 31, 2014, amend the regional framework plan and the regional growth 
concept to select and incorporate a preferred land use and transportation scenario that meets targets in 
OAR 660-044-0020 consistent with the requirements of this division. 

* * * 

(3) The preferred land use and transportation scenario shall include: 

(a) A description of the land use and transportat ion growth concept providing for land use design types; 

(b) A concept map showing the la nd use design types; 

(c) Policies and strategies intended to achieve the target reductions in greenhouse gas emissions in OAR 
660-044-0020; 

(d) Planning assumptions upon which the preferred scenario relies including: 

(A) Assumptions about state and federal policies and programs; 

(B) Assumptions about vehicle technology, fleet or fuels, if those are different than those provided in 
OAR 660-044-0010; 

(e) Assumptions or estimates of expected housing and employment growth by jurisdiction and land use 
design type; and 

(D) Assumptions about proposed regional programs or actions other than t hose that set requirements 
for city and county comprehensive plans and land use regu lations, such as investments and incentives; 

(e) Performance measures and targets to monitor and guide implementation of the preferred scenario. 
Performance measures and targets shall be re lated to key elements, actions and expected outcomes 
from the preferred scenario. The performance measures shall include performance measures adopted 
to meet requirements of OAR 660-012-0035(5); and 

(f) Recommendations for state or federal policies or actions to support the preferred scenario. 

(4) When amending the regiona l framework plan, Metro shall adopt findings demonstrating that 
implementation of the preferred land use and transportation scenario meets the requirements of this 
division and can reasonably be expected to achieve the greenhouse gas emission reductions as set forth 
in the target in OAR 660-044-0020. Metro's findings shall: 

(a) Demonstrate Metro's process for cooperative selection of a preferred alternative meets the 
requirements in subsections (2)(a)-(j); 

(b) Explain how the expected pattern of land use development in combination with land use and 
transportation policies, programs, actions set forth in the preferred scenario will result in levels of 
greenhouse gas emissions from light vehicle travel that achieve the target in OAR 660-044-0020; 



6 

(c) Explain how the framework plan amendments are consistent with and adequate to carry out the 
preferred scenario, and are consistent with other provisions of the Regiona l Framework Plan; and, 

(d) Explain how the preferred scenario is or will be made consistent with other applicable statewide 
planning goals or rules. 

(5) Guidance on evaluation criteria and performance measures. 

(a) The purpose of eva luation criteria referred to in subsection (2)(h) is to encourage Met ro to select a 
preferred scenario t hat achieves greenhouse gas emissions reductions in a way that maximizes 
attainment of other community goals and benefits. This rule does not require the use of specific 
evaluation criteria . The following are examples of categories of evaluation criteria that Metro might use: 

(A) Public health; 

(B) Air quality; 

(C) Household spending on energy or transportation; 

(D) Implementation costs; 

(E) Economic development; 

(F) Access to parks and open space; and, 

(G) Equity 

(b) The purpose of performance measures and targets referred to in subsection (3)(e) is to enable Metro 
and area local governments to monitor and assess whether key elements or actions that make up the 
preferred scenario are being implemented, and whether the preferred scenario is achieving the 
expected outcomes. This rule does not establish or require use of particular performance measures or 
targets. The following are examples of types of performance measures that Metro might establish: 

(A) Transit service revenue hours; 

(B) Mode share; 

(C) People per acre by 2040 Growth Concept design type; 

(D) Percent of workforce participating in employee commute options programs; and 

(E) Percent of households and jobs within one-quarter mile of transit. 

Stat. Auth.: ORS 197.040 & 2009 
Stats. Implemented: 2009 OL 
Hist.: LCDD 10-2012, f . 12-4-12, cert . ef. 1-1-13 

OL 
Ch. 

Ch. 
865 

865 §37(8) 
§37(8) 

(HB 
(HB 

2001) 
2001) 

Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 99 of 246
6 

(c) Explain how the framework plan amendments are consistent with and adequate to carry out the 
preferred scenario, and are consistent with other provisions of the Regional Framework Plan; and, 

(d) Explain how the preferred scenario is or will be made consistent with other applicable statewide 
planning goals or rules. 

(5) Guidance on evaluation criteria and performance measures. 

(a) The purpose of evaluation criteria referred to in subsection (2)(h) is to encourage Metro to select a 
preferred scenario that achieves greenhouse gas emissions reductions in a way that maximizes 
attainment of other community goals and benefits. This rule does not require the use of specific 
evaluation criteria. The following are examples of categories of evaluation criteria that Metro might use: 

(A) Public health; 

(B) Air quality; 

(C) Household spending on energy or transportation; 

(0) Implementation costs; 

(E) Economic development; 

(F) Access to parks and open space; and, 

(G) Equity 

(b) The purpose of performance measures and targets referred to in subsection (3)(e) is to enable Metro 
and area local governments to monitor and assess whether key elements or actions that make up the 
preferred scenario are being implemented, and whether the preferred scenario is achieving the 
expected outcomes. This rule does not establish or require use of particular performance measures or 
targets. The following are examples of types of performance measures that Metro might establish: 

(A) Transit service revenue hours; 

(B) Mode share; 

(C) People per acre by 2040 Growth Concept design type; 

(0) Percent of workforce participating in employee commute options programs; and 

(E) Percent of households and jobs within one-quarter mile of transit. 

Stat. Auth .: DRS 197.040 & 2009 
Stats. Implemented: 2009 DL 
Hist.: LCOO 10-2012, f. 12-4-12, cert. ef. 1-1-13 

DL 
Ch. 

Ch. 
865 

865 §37(8) 
§37(8) 

(HB 
(HB 

2001) 
2001) 



October 27, 2014 
 
Tom Hughes, President 
Metro Council 
600 NE Grand 
Portland, OR 97232 
 
Dear President Hughes and Councilors, 
 
I am writing on behalf of the Urban Greenspaces Institute to comment on 
Metro’s Climate Smart Communities project.  I’ve read the documents 
and, while I we are pleased with actions intended to reduce greenhouse 
emissions from vehicles, as mandated by the state, we are disappointed 
at the project’s narrow focus.  There is nothing in the documents 
regarding carbon sequestration nor is there even a reference Climate 
Adaptation.  With regard the latter, serious negative human health and 
ecological impacts due to Climate Change.   
 
The City of Portland and Multnomah County have recently adopted a 
Climate Preparation Strategy and will adopt an updated Climate Action 
Plan this winter that will incorporate the Preparation (Adaptation) 
strategies as well.  I am writing to urge you to expand your Climate 
Change agenda to incorporate both the updated Climate Action Plan 
and Climate Preparation Strategy.   
 
Portland City Council recently accepted the Climate Preparation 
Strategy two weeks ago, including the city’s Planning and Sustainability 
Commission’s recommendation that the city work with Metro to ensure 
that the Climate Preparation Strategy and updated Climate Action Plan 
are implemented regionally.  I have attached a copy of the conveyance 
letter from the Planning and Sustainability Commission.  Climate 
Change is an issue of regional significance.  The city and county working 
alone will not be sufficient to respond to this regionally important issue. 
 
Metro is, of course, already doing much to address Climate Change, 
through the Climate Smart Communities effort and other programs in its 
portfolio.  However, there is an urgent need to evaluate both Climate 
Smart Communities and other programs to identify gaps, particularly 
with regard to Climate Adaptation or Preparation, that need to be 
addressed at the regional scale.   
 
Respectfully, 
 

 
 
Mike Houck, Director 

Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 100 of 246



From: Mike Houck

To: Metro Climate Scenarios

Cc: Tom.huges@oregonmetro.gov; Kathryn Harrington; Shirley Craddick; Sheena.VanLeuven@oregonmetro.gov;
 Carlotta Collette; Bob Stacey; Craig Dirksen

Subject: Portland Planning and Sustainability Commission letters to City Council re Climate Smart Communities and
 Climate Preparation Strategy

Date: Monday, October 27, 2014 2:36:57 PM

Attachments: PSC Letter to City Council re Metro Climate Smart program.pdf
PSC transmittal letter to City Council re Climate Prep.pdf

As a follow up to UGI comments on Climate Smart Communities I am attaching two letters
 from the City of Portland Planning and Sustainability Commission letters to Portland City
 Council.  The first is a  June 6, 2014 letter regarding the PSC's response to Climate Smart
 Communities.  The second is a September 9th, 2014 letter of conveyance of the City/County
 Climate Preparation Strategy which was accepted by City Council on October 8th.

Mike Houck
-- 

Mike Houck, Director
Urban Greenspaces Institute
PO Box 6903
Portland, OR 97228-6903
503.319.7155
mikehouck@urbangreenspaces.org
www.urbangreenspaces.org 

Endless Pressure, Endlessly Applied 

In Livable Cities is Preservation of the Wild

Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 101 of 246

mailto:mikehouck@urbangreenspaces.org
mailto:Metro.ClimateScenarios@oregonmetro.gov
mailto:Tom.huges@oregonmetro.gov
mailto:Kathryn.Harrington@oregonmetro.gov
mailto:Shirley.Craddick@oregonmetro.gov
mailto:Sheena.VanLeuven@oregonmetro.gov
mailto:Carlotta.Collette@oregonmetro.gov
mailto:Bob.Stacey@oregonmetro.gov
mailto:Craig.Dirksen@oregonmetro.gov
mailto:mikehouck@urbangreenspaces.org
http://www.urbangreenspaces.org/



 
 


 


May 27, 2014 
 
Mayor Charlie Hales 
Commissioner Steve Novick 
 
Dear Mayor and Commissioner, 
 
At our May 13, 2014 meeting, Metro Councilor Bob Stacey provided a briefing to the Planning and 
Sustainability Commission (PSC) about Metro’s Climate Smart Communities Scenarios Project (CSC). We 
understand the CSC goals are to reduce greenhouse gas emissions from cars and light trucks to less than 
half of the levels of 2005. There are expectations for Metro and other regions from the State to allow 
people to make shorter driving trips and more active transportation via changes in community design.  
 
In preparation for the May 30 joint MPAC/JPACT meeting, the PSC offers our support for options that 
would prioritize fully building out the region's active transportation infrastructure. While transit 
investments are critical, active transportation investments are likely to provide greater rates of return 
in mobility for the relatively modest funds invested and will also generate significant health co-
benefits. 
 
The Commission also believes CSC would be greatly strengthened by incorporating a direct nexus with 
climate adaptation strategies to complement greenhouse gas reduction strategies.  Regardless of our 
success in reducing greenhouse gases in our region, significant negative human health and ecological 
impacts are likely to occur in our region due to climate change.  
 
Using green infrastructure to address climate change, such as planting trees and interconnected 
bioswales along transportation corridors, would simultaneously promote active transportation, provide 
much needed bike and pedestrian safety, sequester carbon dioxide, reduce urban heat island effects, 
and improve air quality. These co-benefits are not considered in Metro's scenarios because CSC focuses 
exclusively on CO2 reduction. Including climate adaptation expands the range of transportation 
alternatives and designs that can and should be considered. Regional policies must, in our opinion, 
consider these multiple benefits in any climate related program. 
 
Thank you for representing the best interests of our entire community in shaping the preferred 
approach for Climate Smart Communities. 
 
Sincerely, 


 
Andre’ Baugh 
Chair 
 
 
Cc: Metro Councilor Bob Stacey 








 
 


 


September 19, 2014 
 
Portland City Council  
Portland City Hall 
1211 SW 4th Avenue  
Portland, OR 97204 
 
Dear Mayor Hales and City Council Members: 
 
On August 26, 2014, the Planning and Sustainability Commission (PSC) voted unanimously to 
recommend City Council’s adoption of the joint City & Multnomah County Climate Change Preparation 
Strategy, and the associated Climate Change Preparation Risk and Vulnerabilities Assessment.  
 
Staff has briefed and updated the PSC throughout the development process. Staff has shared content 
updates, an overview of public comments received on the draft and how that feedback was 
incorporated into the final documents. 
 
PSC members commend staff for creating a well-researched and strategic Climate Change Preparation 
Strategy. PSC members specifically appreciate the Climate Change Preparation Strategy’s alignment 
with the Portland Plan framework for equity. The preparation strategy considers the impacts and 
unintended consequences that under-served and under-represented Portlanders may experience as a 
result of climate change. The Climate Change Preparation Strategy also prioritizes preparation actions 
in communities most likely to be vulnerable to climate change impacts such as the urban heat island 
effect.  
 
Although it is important to adequately prepare for the impacts of climate change, continuing to reduce 
carbon emissions is also a key direction. As such, the City’s existing Climate Action Plan and this new 
Climate Change Preparation Strategy are fundamentally linked. The PSC is pleased to see that key 
findings and actions from the Climate Change Preparation Strategy will be integrated into the City and 
County’s updated Climate Action Plan that is expected later this winter. 
 
The PSC applauds the City and County’s work to conduct risk and vulnerability assessments for key 
sectors, including infrastructure and the built environment, natural systems, and health and human 
services. This plan is an excellent example of cross-bureau and cross-jurisdiction collaboration, and we 
ask that the City work with surrounding jurisdictions, particularly with Metro, as responding to climate 
change is clearly an issue of regional import.  
 
Thank you for the opportunity to participate in the review of this strategy. 
 
Sincerely, 


 
Andre Baugh 
Chair, Portland Planning and Sustainability Commission 







 
 

 

May 27, 2014 
 
Mayor Charlie Hales 
Commissioner Steve Novick 
 
Dear Mayor and Commissioner, 
 
At our May 13, 2014 meeting, Metro Councilor Bob Stacey provided a briefing to the Planning and 
Sustainability Commission (PSC) about Metro’s Climate Smart Communities Scenarios Project (CSC). We 
understand the CSC goals are to reduce greenhouse gas emissions from cars and light trucks to less than 
half of the levels of 2005. There are expectations for Metro and other regions from the State to allow 
people to make shorter driving trips and more active transportation via changes in community design.  
 
In preparation for the May 30 joint MPAC/JPACT meeting, the PSC offers our support for options that 
would prioritize fully building out the region's active transportation infrastructure. While transit 
investments are critical, active transportation investments are likely to provide greater rates of return 
in mobility for the relatively modest funds invested and will also generate significant health co-
benefits. 
 
The Commission also believes CSC would be greatly strengthened by incorporating a direct nexus with 
climate adaptation strategies to complement greenhouse gas reduction strategies.  Regardless of our 
success in reducing greenhouse gases in our region, significant negative human health and ecological 
impacts are likely to occur in our region due to climate change.  
 
Using green infrastructure to address climate change, such as planting trees and interconnected 
bioswales along transportation corridors, would simultaneously promote active transportation, provide 
much needed bike and pedestrian safety, sequester carbon dioxide, reduce urban heat island effects, 
and improve air quality. These co-benefits are not considered in Metro's scenarios because CSC focuses 
exclusively on CO2 reduction. Including climate adaptation expands the range of transportation 
alternatives and designs that can and should be considered. Regional policies must, in our opinion, 
consider these multiple benefits in any climate related program. 
 
Thank you for representing the best interests of our entire community in shaping the preferred 
approach for Climate Smart Communities. 
 
Sincerely, 

 
Andre’ Baugh 
Chair 
 
 
Cc: Metro Councilor Bob Stacey 

Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 102 of 246



 
 

 

September 19, 2014 
 
Portland City Council  
Portland City Hall 
1211 SW 4th Avenue  
Portland, OR 97204 
 
Dear Mayor Hales and City Council Members: 
 
On August 26, 2014, the Planning and Sustainability Commission (PSC) voted unanimously to 
recommend City Council’s adoption of the joint City & Multnomah County Climate Change Preparation 
Strategy, and the associated Climate Change Preparation Risk and Vulnerabilities Assessment.  
 
Staff has briefed and updated the PSC throughout the development process. Staff has shared content 
updates, an overview of public comments received on the draft and how that feedback was 
incorporated into the final documents. 
 
PSC members commend staff for creating a well-researched and strategic Climate Change Preparation 
Strategy. PSC members specifically appreciate the Climate Change Preparation Strategy’s alignment 
with the Portland Plan framework for equity. The preparation strategy considers the impacts and 
unintended consequences that under-served and under-represented Portlanders may experience as a 
result of climate change. The Climate Change Preparation Strategy also prioritizes preparation actions 
in communities most likely to be vulnerable to climate change impacts such as the urban heat island 
effect.  
 
Although it is important to adequately prepare for the impacts of climate change, continuing to reduce 
carbon emissions is also a key direction. As such, the City’s existing Climate Action Plan and this new 
Climate Change Preparation Strategy are fundamentally linked. The PSC is pleased to see that key 
findings and actions from the Climate Change Preparation Strategy will be integrated into the City and 
County’s updated Climate Action Plan that is expected later this winter. 
 
The PSC applauds the City and County’s work to conduct risk and vulnerability assessments for key 
sectors, including infrastructure and the built environment, natural systems, and health and human 
services. This plan is an excellent example of cross-bureau and cross-jurisdiction collaboration, and we 
ask that the City work with surrounding jurisdictions, particularly with Metro, as responding to climate 
change is clearly an issue of regional import.  
 
Thank you for the opportunity to participate in the review of this strategy. 
 
Sincerely, 

 
Andre Baugh 
Chair, Portland Planning and Sustainability Commission 

Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 103 of 246



• r1 
Oreg October 28, 2014 

Sent via email to climatescenario~QE~ggnmetro.gov 

Metro Planning 
600 NE Grand Ave. 
Portland, OR 97232 

Attention: Climate Smart Strategy 

I am pleased to submit these remarks on the Draft Climate Smart Strategy on behalf of Drive 
Oregon, a nonprofit organization working to accelerate the growth of Oregon's electric vehicle 
industry and promote the electrification of our transportation system. 

General Comments 

We applaud Metro for its excellent work to reduce the greenhouse gas emissions of our regional 
transportation system. The Draft Climate Smart Strategy rightly recognizes that this will require a 
comprehensive approach that includes promoting walking, bicycling, transit, and other options, as 
well as complete and well-planned communities that reduce the need for travel altogether. 

However, we believe the strategy does not adequately recognize the important role that cleaner, 
more efficient fuels and vehicles must also play in this strategy. In fact, the Oregon Global 
Warming Commission Roadmap to 2020 report projects that the state will need 90% of all vehicle 
miles travelled to be electric by 2050 and 10% of the fleet to be electric by 2020. (See 
http://w\vw.keeporegoncool.org) 

We understand that the strategy includes a number of assumptions about the expansion of cleaner 
fuels and more fuel-efficient vehicles. However, those developments are far from certain, and Metro 
and its partners have important roles to play in achieving these targets. 

While the draft Toolbox of Possible Actions contains some good ideas, we believe these can be 
strengthened. We also believe that the Climate Smart Strategy itself should address the role of 
vehicle and fuel technology more directly. This could be done in a new stand-alone section, but the 
strategy could also address vehicle and fuel issues within each section as outlined below. A number 
of suggestions for the Toolbox are also included below, and could be adapted to fit the roles of 
state, Metro, city/county, and special district stakeholders. 

Make transit convenient, freque.tJ,t, accessible, and affordable 

It is worth noting that electric buses and transit vehicles are increasingly available and affordable. In 
addition to lowering greenhouse gas emission, electrified transit produces no unhealthy smog
generating pollution. While they typically nave higher up-front costs, they yield substantial savings 
in fuel, operating, and maintenance costs. 

Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 104 of 246

ill 

rl e 
Oreg October 28,2014 

Sent via email to climatescenario~QE~g9nmetro.gov 

Metro Planning 
600 NE Grand Ave. 
Portland, OR 97232 

Attention: Climate Smart Strategy 

I am pleased to submit these remarks on the Draft Climate Smart Strategy on behalf of Drive 
Oregon, a nonprofit organization working to accelerate the growth of Oregon's electric vehicle 
industry and promote the electrification of our transportation system. 

General Comments 

We applaud Metro for its excellent work to reduce the greenhouse gas emissions of our regional 
transportation system. The Draft Climate Smart Strategy rightly recognizes that this will require a 
comprehensive approach that includes promoting walking, bicycling, transit, and other options, as 
well as complete and well-planned communities that reduce the need for travel altogether. 

However, we believe the strategy does not adequately recognize the important role that cleaner, 
more efficient fuels and vehicles must also play in this strategy. In fact, the Oregon Global 
Warming Commission Roadmap to 2020 report projects that the state will need 90% of all vehicle 
miles travelled to be electric by 2050 and 10% of the fleet to be electric by 2020. (See 
http://WV/'W.keeporegoncool.org) 

We understand that the strategy includes a number of assumptions about the expansion of cleaner 
fuels and more fuel-efficient vehicles. However, those developments are far from certain, and Metro 
and its partners have important roles to play in achieving these targets. 

While the draft Toolbox of Possible Actions contains some good ideas, we believe these can be 
strengthened. We also believe that the Climate Smart Strategy itself should address the role of 
vehicle and fuel technology more directly. This could be done in a new stand-alone section, but the 
strategy could also address vehicle and fuel issues within each section as outlined below. A number 
of suggestions for the Toolbox are also included below, and could be adapted to fit the roles of 
state, Metro, city/county, and special district stakeholders. 

Make transit convenient, freque,t)j, accessible, and affordable 

It is worth noting that electric buses and transit vehicles are increasingly available and affordable. In 
addition to lowering greenhouse gas emission, electrified transit produces no unhealthy smog
generating pollution. While they typically nave higher up-front costs, they yield substantial savings 
in fuel, operating, and maintenance costs. 



Suggestions for the Toolbox relevant to this section include: 

" Support transit partners in seeking federal grant funds for electric buses 
" Seek increased state funding for electric buses 
" Increase funding flexibility to allow for greater upfront capital spending on electric 

buses if those expenses are offset by operating savings 

Make biking and walking safe and convenient 

Electric-assist bicycles ( e-bikes) have gained wide popularity in Asia, and are increasing popular in 
Europe as well. In fact, in some European countries e-bikes now account for 40% of new bicycle 
sales. These bikes may be an important tool for encouraging greater bicycling, and several pilot 
projects are underway to better understand and promote their use. This section of the strategy 
should explicitly include and encourage the use of e-bikes as part of a broader overall bicycle 
promotion strategy. 

Suggestions for the Toolbox relevant to this section include: 

• Simplify and clarify policy one-bike use of bike lanes and other infrastructure 
" Clarify that e-bikes are part of the region's active transportation strategy 
" Fund pilot project to test the efficacy of e-bikes in attracting new riders 

Use technology to actively manage the transportation system 

ITS has the potential to dramatically improve transportation system efficiency and reduce 
greenhouse gas emissions, and we strongly support its inclusion as a key element in the draft 
strategy. It is worth noting that electric vehicles - which tend to have built-in telematics and more 
advanced computer software - make ideal "test beds" for this technology. While many early ITS 
projects have focused on using technology to increase road capacity, we believe the Portland 
metropolitan area is well positioned to test applications of ITS and connected vehicle technology 
that make the region smarter, safer, and more sustainable. 

Suggestions for the Toolbox relevant to this section include: 

• Pursue opportunities and funding for pilot projects that help establish the Metro 
region as a living laboratory for sustainable and multi-modal ITS 

" Seek opportunities to leverage Oregon's road user fee pilot project to provide 
additional services to participating drivers 

" Develop a pilot project to test wireless charging of electric vehicles, ideally 
encompassing both transit vehicles and passenger cars 

Provide information and incentives to expand the use of travel options 

Unless Metro chooses to add a high level strategy focused on vehicle and fuel efficiency, this would 
be the most logical section in which to incorporate a number of recommendations in this area. 
Overall, we would suggest that Metro integrate the promotion of efficient vehicles and fuel choices 

Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 105 of 246

Suggestions for the Toolbox relevant to this section include: 

.. Support transit partners in seeking federal grant funds for electric buses 

.. Seek increased state funding for electric buses 

.. Increase funding flexibility to allow for greater upfront capital spending on electric 
buses if those expenses are offset by operating savings 

Make biking and walking safe and convenient 

Electric-assist bicycles (e-bikes) have gained wide popularity in Asia, and are increasing popular in 
Europe as well. In fact, in some European countries e-bikes now account for 40% of new bicycle 
sales. These bikes may be an important tool for encouraging greater bicycling, and several pilot 
projects are underway to better understand and promote their use. This section of the strategy 
should explicitly include and encourage the use of e-bikes as part of a broader overall bicycle 
promotion strategy. 

Suggestions for the Toolbox relevant to this section include: 

.. Simplify and clarify policy on e-bike use of bike lanes and other infrastructure 

.. Clarify that e-bikes are part of the region's active transportation strategy 

.. Fund pilot project to test the efficacy of e-bikes in attracting new riders 

Use technology to actively manage the transportation system 

ITS has the potential to dramatically improve transportation system efficiency and reduce 
greenhouse gas emissions, and we strongly support its inclusion as a key element in the draft 
strategy. It is worth noting that electric vehicles - which tend to have built-in telematics and more 
advanced computer software - make ideal "test beds" for this technology. While many early ITS 
projects have focused on using technology to increase road capacity, we believe the Portland 
metropolitan area is well positioned to test applications of ITS and connected vehicle technology 
that make the region smarter, safer, and more sustainable. 

Suggestions for the Toolbox relevant to this section include: 

.. Pursue opportunities and funding for pilot projects that help establish the Metro 
region as a living laboratory for sustainable and multi-modal ITS 

.. Seek opportunities to leverage Oregon's road user fee pilot project to provide 
additional services to participating drivers 

.. Develop a pilot project to test wireless charging of electric vehicles, ideally 
encompassing both transit vehicles and passenger cars 

Provide information and incentives to expand the use of travel options 

Unless Metro chooses to add a high level strategy focused on vehicle and fuel efficiency, this would 
be the most logical section in which to incorporate a number of recommendations in this area. 
Overall, we would suggest that Metro integrate the promotion of efficient vehicles and fuel choices 



into the promotion of other travel options. Just as the 'reduce-reuse-recycle' hierarchy has become 
well understood in solid waste, the transportation message of 'if you must drive, please drive 
electric' can help complement discussions of walking, biking, transit, and carpooling. 

Suggestions for the Toolbox relevant to this section include: 

., Clarify that e-bikes are part of the regional toolkit of travel options 
" Encourage regional car sharing services to increase their use of electric vehicles and 

other clean alternatives 
" Integrate promotion of workplace charging into employer-based outreach programs 

that encourage use of other alternatives such as transit, cycling, and carpooling. 
" Integrate education about vehicle and fuel efficiency into public awareness strategies 

such as eco-driving promotion 

Manage parking to make efficient use of land and parking spaces 

One of the key roles for Metro and local governments in the region is to ensure that electric vehicles 
- like pedestrians and bicycles - have adequate infrastructure. In the case of electric vehicles, this 
means that charging facilities should be widely available and highly visible to potential electric 
vehicle buyers. While most charging occurs at home, it is also important to have easily accessible 
"fast chargers" (also called DCFC or level 3 chargers) available for longer trips. Highly visible 
charging in public areas can also make potential EV buyers more confident in their purchase, just as 
highly visible bike racks on the street encourage more cycling. 

Workplace charging is also very important, as it supports those with longer commutes and drivers 
who do not have private garages. Furthermore, just as people who see colleagues biking to work or 
participating in the "bike commute challenge" feel more confident trying it themselves, workplace 
charging also promotes more purchase and use of electric vehicles. For these reasons, the US 
Department of Energy has launched a Workplace Charging Challenge, and Drive Oregon is an 
Ambassador promoting this program. Many major employers in Oregon have already joined, from 
Intel and Mentor Graphics to the State of Oregon and the cities of Hillsboro and Beaverton. 

Suggestions for the Toolbox relevant to this section include: 

• Metro should join the Workplace Charging Challenge as a Partner 
• Metro should encourage other local governments in the region to join the Workplace 

Charging Challenge 
• Develop and support pilot projects and model planning approaches to encourage 

highly visible charging infrastructure in the public right of way and on the street 
• Develop and support "charging oases" with multiple chargers, modeled on the Electric 

Avenue project at Portland State University 
• Support efforts to future-proof new development projects, particularly multifamily 

housing and large parking lots, by installing conduit for future charging of at least 20% 
of parking spaces, similar to standards in Hawaii, California, and elsewhere 

• Convene regional transportation and planning officials to develop strategies for 
developing cost-effective charging infrastructure that also reinforces regional planning 
goals 

Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 106 of 246

into the promotion of other travel options. Just as the 'reduce-reuse-recycle' hierarchy has become 
well understood in solid waste, the transportation message of 'if you must drive, please drive 
electric' can help complement discussions of walking, biking, transit, and carpooling. 

Suggestions for the Toolbox relevant to this section include: 

'" Clarify that e-bikes are part of the regional toolkit of travel options 
.. Encourage regional car sharing services to increase their use of electric vehicles and 

other clean alternatives 
" Integrate promotion of workplace charging into employer-based outreach programs 

that encourage use of other alternatives such as transit, cycling, and carpooling. 
" Integrate education about vehicle and fuel efficiency into public awareness strategies 

such as eco-driving promotion 

Manage parking to make efficient use of land and parking spaces 

One of the key roles for Metro and local governments in the region is to ensure that electric vehicles 
- like pedestrians and bicycles - have adequate infrastructure. In the case of electric vehicles, this 
means that charging facilities should be widely available and highly visible to potential electric 
vehicle buyers. While most charging occurs at home, it is also important to have easily accessible 
"fast chargers" (also called DCFC or level 3 chargers) available for longer trips. Highly visible 
charging in public areas can also make potential EV buyers more confident in their purchase, just as 
highly visible bike racks on the street encourage more cycling. 

Workplace charging is also very important, as it supports those with longer commutes and drivers 
who do not have private garages. Furthermore, just as people who see colleagues biking to work or 
participating in the "bike commute challenge" feel more confident trying it themselves, workplace 
charging also promotes more purchase and use of electric vehicles. For these reasons, the US 
Department of Energy has launched a Workplace Charging Challenge, and Drive Oregon is an 
Ambassador promoting this program. Many major employers in Oregon have already joined, from 
Intel and Mentor Graphics to the State of Oregon and the cities of Hillsboro and Beaverton. 

Suggestions for the Toolbox relevant to this section include: 

• Metro should join the Workplace Charging Challenge as a Partner 
.. Metro should encourage other local governments in the region to join the Workplace 

Charging Challenge 
• Develop and support pilot projects and model planning approaches to encourage 

highly visible charging infrastructure in the public right of way and on the street 
• Develop and support "charging oases" with multiple chargers, modeled on the Electric 

Avenue project at Portland State University 
• Support efforts to future-prooL new development projects, particularly multifamily 

housing and large parking lots, by installing conduit for future charging of at least 20% 
of parking spaces, similar to standards in Hawaii, California, and elsewhere 

e Convene regional transportation and planning officials to develop strategies for 
developing cost-effective charging infrastructure that also reinforces regional planning 
goals 



Specific Comments on the Electric Vehicle Toolbox 

While the draft strategy does not have a section dedicated to fuel and vehicle efficiency, we are 
pleased to see that the Toolbox does have such a section. We particularly appreciate this section's 
recognition and support of Oregon's Zero Emission Vehicle Program. Some of the suggestions we 
have provided elsewhere could be incorporated into this section of the toolbox, and we have some 
additional specific suggestions: 

" Increase Metro fleet use of electric vehicles, including non-passenger cars ( e-bikes, 
utility vehicles, etc.) 

" Expand availability of charging at Metro venues (Zoo, Expo Center, Convention Center, 
Portland'S, etc.) 

• Support renewal of Oregon's tax credits for charging stations and other alternative 
fueling infrastructure 

" Support legislation being promoted by Drive Oregon and the Energize Oregon coalition 
to create a purchase rebate for electric vehicles 

.. Join Drive Oregon and the Energize Oregon Coalition as a member organization and 
participate as an active partner in promoting electric vehicle readiness and 
deployment 

Thank you again for the opportunity to submit these comments. Please let me know if we can 
provide any additional information. 

Best regards, 

$.....________ __ 
4-e'ff Allen 
Executive Director 
Drive Oregon 
1600 SW 4th A venue, Suite 620 
Portland, OR 97201 
www.driveoregon.org 

Mobile (503) 724-8670 

Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 107 of 246

Specific Comments on the Electric Vehicle Toolbox 

While the draft strategy does not have a section dedicated to fuel and vehicle efficiency, we are 
pleased to see that the Toolbox does have such a section. We particularly appreciate this section's 
recognition and support of Oregon's Zero Emission Vehicle Program. Some ofthe suggestions we 
have provided elsewhere could be incorporated into this section of the toolbox, and we have some 
additional specific suggestions: 

.. Increase Metro fleet use of electric vehicles, including non-passenger cars (e-bikes, 
utility vehicles, etc.) 

" Expand availability of charging at Metro venues (Zoo, Expo Center, Convention Center, 
Portland'S, etc.) 

• Support renewal of Oregon's tax credits for charging stations and other alternative 
fueling infrastructure 

.. Support legislation being promoted by Drive Oregon and the Energize Oregon coalition 
to create a purchase rebate for electric vehicles 

.. Join Drive Oregon and the Energize Oregon Coalition as a member organization and 
participate as an active partner in promoting electric vehicle readiness and 
deployment 

Thank you again for the opportunity to submit these comments. Please let me know if we can 
provide any additional information. 

Best regards, 

$----------
4-e'ff Allen 
Executive Director 
Drive Oregon 
1600 SW 4th Avenue, Suite 620 
Portland, OR 97201 
www.driveoregon.org 

Mobile (503) 724-8670 



Kari Schlosshauer | Pacific Northwest Regional Policy Manager | Safe Routes to School National Partnership 

503-734-0813 | kari@saferoutespartnership.org | www.saferoutespacificnorthwest.org 

October 28, 2014 
 
Metro President Tom Hughes 
Metro Council 
600 NE Grand Avenue 
Portland, OR  97232 
 
Re:  Draft Climate Smart Strategy 
 
Dear President Hughes and Council Members: 
 
Thank you for the opportunity to comment on the Draft Climate Smart Strategy. I am the Pacific Northwest 
Regional Policy Manager for the Safe Routes to School National Partnership (National Partnership), and I applaud 
and support the work and outcome of the Climate Smart Communities project to date. The importance of Climate 
Smart planning crosses over from greenhouse gas (GHG) reductions to include positive impacts on transportation, 
land use, equity, health, economy, and the environment. How the Metro region chooses to plan for and implement 
strategies addressing GHG reduction will profoundly shape our region for decades, truly for centuries — and if we 
do it right, will have immense positive beneficial impacts on the everyday lives of children, residents, and 
businesses.  
 
The National Partnership is pleased to see that Metro’s approach relies on and affirms policies and investments 
already identified as important for the region’s future; however, it is essential to understand that simply by 
implementing existing plans, we will not achieve our GHG emission reduction targets. What will be required is for 
Metro to demonstrate strong leadership on this issue, that will allow and support the region to achieve multiple 
regional goals through a cooperative, collaborative approach to our region’s future.  
 
The GHG target will achieve many other regional benefits by creating walkable, bikeable, mixed use communities 
that serve people of all ages and abilities. This will require greatly increased investment in transit, pedestrian 
infrastructure, and bike facilities. Achieving the multiple benefits possible through GHG reduction requires 
leadership, coordination, and prioritization of investments by Metro, TriMet, and every jurisdiction in the region, as 
well as adoption of policies beyond transportation that will support equity, health, affordable housing, access to 
schools and transit, and ensure our economy is strong — well beyond the next funding cycle. It will require 
leadership on policy changes that integrate all modal transportation investments, housing and land-use 
developments, parking strategies, and a focus on serving destinations through a well-supported mix of 
transportation options. In short, it will require jurisdictions across the region to look hard and seriously about how 
we must plan our transportation system to be Climate Smart, and it will require coordination and cooperation in 
order to fund and build it accordingly, starting now.  
 
The National Partnership supports the Toolbox of Actions in its entirety, and recommend its adoption together with 
the Climate Smart Strategy. These are essential steps for the region’s success. In particular, we support and 
recommend some stronger actions on the following specific tools. Furthermore, we recommend Metro brings 
forward and stands behind 5-10 actions that local, regional and state partners sign on to in the first year for 
achievable, early wins.  

Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 108 of 246



www.saferoutespacificnorthwest.org 

Safe Routes to School National Partnership  |  Comments on Draft Climate Smart Strategy 2 

 
Implement the 2040 Growth Concept 
 
 Metro should specifically call out here its commitment to use the 2018 RTP revision as a tool to implement the 

2040 Growth Concept’s Climate Smart Strategies.  For example, through the 2018 RTP, Metro should 
prioritize active transportation projects and investments, especially in designated centers and corridors and 
transit-dependent communities.    

 Too often, transportation decisions are made without taking into account land-use, and, especially in the case 
of school siting, transportation impacts and costs are frequently not considered in the process. Metro should 
offer clear guidance to cities and counties on location of new schools, services, shopping, and other health-
promoting resources and community destinations close to neighborhoods.  

 
Make transit more convenient, frequent, accessible, and affordable 
 
 Commit regional flexible transportation funds for access to transit.  
 Fund reduced fare programs and service improvements for transit-dependent communities such as youth, older 

adults, people with disabilities, and low-income families.  
 Expand and sustain the Youth Pass program, including expanding routes and frequency along school corridors.  
 
Provide information and incentives to expand the use of travel options 
 
 Commit a larger portion of funds to expand travel options that will include grade-school populations and school 

staff through education and encouragement programs such as Safe Routes to School.  
 Link completion of transportation- and parking-demand management initiatives to scoring criteria for 

infrastructure funding opportunities such as regional flexible funds, ConnectOregon, and Oregon Statewide 
Transportation Improvement Program. 

 
Make biking and walking safe and convenient 
 
 Complete a region-wide active transportation needs assessment, including needs around schools and access to 

transit.  
 Commit a larger portion of regional flexible funds to active transportation, and expand funding available for 

active transportation and transit investments.  
 Adopt a Vision Zero strategy — and ensure targets contained within the Performance Monitoring Approach 

match this strategy. 
 Build a diverse coalition working together to build and monitor local and state commitment to implement and 

fund the Regional Active Transportation Plan, including Safe Routes to Schools and Safe Routes to Transit.  
 
Funding 
 
 Metro should specifically call out the 2018 RTP revision as a tool to implement the transit and active 

transportation actions in the Climate Smart Strategy.  
 Metro should use the Climate Smart Strategy as a filter for evaluating individual transportation projects and 

GHG reduction benefit when providing funding for projects within the region; Metro should advocate that other 
partners, such as the Oregon DOT or TriMet, have similarly stringent requirements for GHG reductions for 
projects funded within the Metro region. 

 At all levels, Metro should utilize its leadership and role as the region’s Metropolitan Planning Organization to 
support and seek opportunities to advocate for new, dedicated funding mechanisms for active transportation 
and transit, and leverage local, regional, state and federal funding to achieve local visions that align with the 
region’s desired outcomes.  

Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 109 of 246



www.saferoutespacificnorthwest.org 

Safe Routes to School National Partnership  |  Comments on Draft Climate Smart Strategy 3 

 
Performance Monitoring Approach  
The performance monitoring approach is in need of completion, with many metrics not yet finalized. The National 
Partnership recommends the following as this approach is completed:  
 
 Metro must ensure targets contained within the Performance Monitoring Approach match the toolbox’s strategy 

and are well coordinated. For example, adopting a Vision Zero strategy should have a related 2035 target of 
zero fatalities; measurement of pedestrian and bicycle injuries and fatalities should be linked with motor 
vehicle injuries and fatalities; etc. 

 Measurement of transportation investments should include specific near-term and longer-term targets, and in 
some cases, measure both system completeness and number of miles. Examples could include: 75% of 
regional pedestrian network complete by 2020; 80% of schools region-wide participate in Safe Routes to 
School programs and have safe walking and bicycling infrastructure within a mile around schools by 2025; 
100% of base year (2010) transit stops are fully accessible by 2035; etc.  

 Coordination of immediate and near-term actions from the toolbox should include specific benchmark dates for 
evaluating progress.  

 Metro leadership should make a commitment to take appropriate steps to incentivize, reward, or penalize 
success and failure of local, regional, and state partners in achieving the adopted Climate Smart Communities 
Strategy and target GHG reductions.  

 While many of the performance measures will ensure positive equity outcomes for the region, the performance 
monitoring should explicitly include measurement of data that benefits equity outcomes. For example, share of 
low-income households within 1/4-mile frequent bus service and 1/2-mile of high capacity transit. 

 
Thank you for recognizing the elemental role of investment in safe walking, bicycling, and transit to creating a 
region that will be Climate Smart, healthy, livable, and economically and environmentally sound. Your leadership 
on Climate Smart Communities will ensure a coordinated and cooperative outcome with the regional partners who 
will be needed to help to prioritize and fund the recommended approach. This, in turn, will allow each jurisdiction 
to implement existing plans and provide clear guidance for near-term and future policies, plans, and investments 
that will provide multiple benefits for this region and the many lifetimes ahead.  
 
We strongly support the vision and outcomes of the Climate Smart Communities Scenarios project and will be 
strong proponents to help propel its implementation. We welcome the adoption of these strategies and 
complementary Toolbox of Actions, and we look forward to working with Metro and regional partners to ensure 
these strategies are supported to be quickly funded and implemented so that everyone in our region can be 
guaranteed a Climate Smart future that reaches GHG reduction targets while creating a region that is healthy, 
equitable, active, well-connected, and economically and environmentally secure.  
 
The National Partnership urges you to recognize the importance, inherent in this Climate Smart work, of supporting 
our region’s children — who will be the ones who benefit, or suffer, from the decisions you make today. We thank 
you for your forward-thinking analysis and recommendations, and for the opportunity to comment on this important 
work for our region.  
 
Yours sincerely,  
 
 
Kari Schlosshauer  
Pacific Northwest Regional Policy Manager 
Safe Routes to School National Partnership  
Portland, Oregon 

Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 110 of 246



 

 
 
 
October 29, 2014 
 
Dear President Hughes and Members of the Metro Council, MPAC, and JPACT: 
 
The Oregon Chapter of the American Planning Association represents more than 800 professional and citizen 
planners in the state of Oregon.  
 
We commend the attention you are giving the Climate Smart Scenarios initiative. Through listening, leadership, 
innovation, and investment, we know that we can make a difference on greenhouse gas reductions from the land 
use and transportation sectors in Oregon. We acknowledge that progress on the proposed climate smart 
strategies can also contribute to other goals shared by Metro and the state including environmental protection, 
community resilience to natural hazards, social equity, and economic development. We applaud your efforts to 
identify Climate Smart implementation measures that achieve multiple community objectives. It is possible to 
affirm that our communities, ecosystems and future generations are worth the considerations and necessary 
investments you are weighing. Course correction is both possible and responsible.  
 
The changes you are considering to the Regional Framework Plan are commendable. OAPA agrees that for this 
effort to yield desired results, we must: 
 

- Provide resources to track, respond and invest accordingly in strategies to implement the preferred 
scenario. 

- Support implementation of locally adopted plans aimed at reducing greenhouse gas emissions.  
- Increase support for transit and associated transit oriented developments.  
- Invest in transition to cleaner fuels.  
- Implement a price on carbon pollution to fuel a cleaner Oregon economy. 
- Commit that we can grow cleaner and better.  
- Require, rather than encourage, climate responsive actions in Policy 11.3 of the draft Regional 

Framework Plan amendments. 

OAPA members stand ready to help implement the Climate Smart Communities Scenario. We urge you to adopt 
the Scenario and allow our communities to advance to the work of implementing strategies to reach our desired 
future conditions.  
 
Please contact us about taking our next steps, together. 
 
Sincerely, 

 
Jason Franklin, AICP, President 
American Planning Association, Oregon Chapter 
 

Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 111 of 246

mailto:oapa@oregonapa.org
http://www.oregonapa.org/


 

 

October 30, 2014 
 
Tom Hughes, President 
Metro Council 
600 NE Grand 
Portland, OR 97232 
 
Dear President Hughes and Councilors, 
 
I am writing on behalf of myself and my two young children to comment on Metro’s 
Climate Smart Communities project.  I’ve read the documents and, while I applaud 
Metro's efforts to identify and fund actions intended to reduce greenhouse emissions 
from vehicles, as mandated by the state, I am disappointed at the project’s narrow 
focus.  There is nothing in the documents regarding Climate Adaptation.  Humanity 
must quickly act on climate mitigation, but I believe that Metro has a bigger, more 
relevant, role to play as a facilitator of climate adaptation.  
 
Over the years, Metro has always done a good job at addressing issues of livability at 
and within the urban-rural interface, recognizing its role as a regional player in between 
the national and local scale.  However, this time I couldn't find a reference to Metro's 
role in the greenhouse gas emissions problem relative to state and national emissions 
targets.  Without this context, the reader doesn’t see the 'big picture' of our emissions 
problem, and that Oregon and Metro hold sway over a relatively small piece of the 
puzzle.  Without this contextual information, Metro risks losing the support of its 
electorate who may not see the response as commensurate with Metro's level of impact 
on the problem.  There are reasons for Metro to do what it can to reduce vehicle 
emissions.  Demonstration of what can be done here is essential to sparking the 
imagination, courage, and can-do attitude of planners worldwide.  However, the truth is 
that leaders of the world's largest countries and other people involved with the decision 
making leading up to the United Nations December 2015 Meeting in Paris are the 
people who will make the meaningful decisions about what our automobile and energy 
use emissions will be.  As a taxpayer in the metropolitan area with serious concern 
about my childrens' future vis-a-vis climate change impacts, I can not support a Climate 
Smart Communities effort that addresses only the mitigation piece.  It appears naive of 
the global context of the problem and ignores the arena where Metro has the biggest 
responsibility and opportunity to make a difference for future generations who will be 
living here - by working on adaptation to climate change.    
 
Because I am concerned about my childrens’ ability to manage their household, live and 
work in a metro area experiencing additional stresses related to certain climate change 
impacts, I was at the hearing with my four-year old daughter two weeks ago where 
Portland City Council recently accepted the Climate Preparation Strategy, along with an 
updated Climate Action Plan.    Today I could not attend your hearing so I am writing to 
urge you to do three important things: 
 

Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 112 of 246



 

 

● Realize we are facing a huge and multi-decade lag effect that we have to deal 
with in regards to climate change and the best place to do this preparation and 
adaptation work is at the local level.  

● Acknowledge that Metro, as regional coordinator for natural resources and land 
use policies, is positioned better than any other local agency to take the lead and 
become a player preparing our communities for climate change.  

● Specifically, expand your climate change agenda to find the time and resources 
to identify and implement preparation actions.  The Preparation Strategy 
approaches detailed in Portland’s document are a good place to start.  It will not 
necessarily require additional program or resources. It will, however, take 
prioritization and moving certain projects and programs up in the schedule.  I 
request that you identify actions and then set up systems to prioritize these 
actions for funding. 

 
 
Thank you for the opportunity to comment.  
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Daniela Brod 
Volunteer with Citizens’ Climate Lobby and SW Portland Mom 
 

Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 113 of 246



 

 

 
 
 
 

October 30, 2014 

 

Metro Council 

600 NE Grand Avenue 

Portland, OR  97232 

 

Re:  Comments on Climate Smart Communities Scenarios Project 

 

Dear President Hughes and Metro Council Members: 

 

The Coalition for a Livable Future is pleased to support the Climate Smart Communities project.  

Climate change is one of the defining issues of our time, and our response to it will affect both 

local communities and the planet far into the future.   We look forward to working with Metro to 

implement climate strategies that also support equitable development, public health, and widely 

shared economic prosperity.   

 

Several years in the making, the Climate Smart Communities plan not only integrates land use 

and transportation to meet greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions from light vehicles, but focuses on 

strategies that meet the aspirations of cities and counties around the region and all of Metro’s six 

desired outcomes.   We served on the Technical Work Group, and found the analysis to be 

detailed and incredibly well-thought out.   

 

We appreciate that staff consistently included elements beyond the important work of addressing 

climate change to also create vibrant communities, improve health, address equity, improve the 

environment, and support the local economy.  Oregon Health Authority’s Health Impact 

Analysis demonstrated the opportunity for the Climate Smart Communities plan to increase 

physical activity, reduce air pollution, reduce crashes, and save lives and health care costs.  

 

The addition of The Toolbox of Possible Actions is essential, as the next steps will include the 

difficult task of coordinating action and finding the resources to implement the plan.  The 
Performance Monitoring is also very important, as it allows the region to evaluate its level of success 

and consider strategies and priorities in light of what we learn.  

 

Below are several elements we want to highlight, some with recommendations for changes: 

 

Increased Transit:  We strongly support the plan’s call for significant increases in transit 

service as well as reduced fares for populations in need.  More transit creates climate 

improvements as well as better job access, cleaner air, and many other health and safety benefits.   

A major commitment by Metro and local governments to increase transit revenue will be 

necessary to achieve this goal.   

 

Increased Walking and Biking:  We strongly support increasing funding for walking and 

biking, as called for in the Climate Smart Communities plan and the region’s recently adopted 

Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 114 of 246



 

Active Transportation Plan.  These investments are key to addressing climate change, as well as 

creating safe, healthy, vibrant communities. 

 

Recommended edit:  The Draft Toolbox of Possible Actions currently calls for 

advocating for increased funding for all transportation modes, prioritizing maintaining 

and preserving existing infrastructure.  However, to reach our climate goals, we need to 

do more on active transportation than merely maintain current infrastructure.  As a result, 

we recommend that the plan prioritize funding for new transit, walking, and biking 

infrastructure, and for transit service.  

 

Recommended edit:  Add Regional Flexible Funds to the Draft Toolbox of Possible 

Actions as an opportunity to increase funding for active transportation.    

 

Implementation through the Regional Transportation Plan:  The next Regional 

Transportation Plan (RTP) is an important vehicle for implementing the Climate Smart 

Communities plan, and we appreciate that the ordinance reflects this opportunity.  The RTP 

update should include a financially constrained project list that meets the GHG target called for 

in the Climate Smart Communities plan, and also provides the opportunity to update 

performance measures, policies, and the Regional Transportation Functional Plan.   

 

Recommended edit:  Add the upcoming RTP Update to the Draft Toolbox of Possible 

Actions as an opportunity to implement the Climate Smart Communities plan.  

 

Affordable Housing:  Creating affordable housing options near frequent transit lines is a 

significant factor in reducing GHG emissions.  It is also an important equity strategy, supporting 

low income communities’ ability to affordably access housing, transportation, jobs, and other 

key destinations.  This strategy also has additional co-benefits, including reducing auto reliance, 

improving health, and helping seniors to continue living independently.  Metro’s new effort to 

advance housing choice could be a valuable part of implementing the Climate Smart 

Communities plan.  

 

Recommended edit:  In the Toolbox of Possible Actions, include supporting increased 

funding for affordable housing, particularly along frequent transit lines.  

 

Recommended edit:  In the Toolbox of Possible Actions, rather than simply 

recommending the restoration of local control, be explicit in supporting local tools for 

affordable housing, including the removal of the statewide ban on inclusionary zoning.   

 

Recommended edit:  In the Draft Performance Monitoring Approach, include an indicator 

related to housing affordability such as housing cost burden, which incorporates both 

housing and transportation.    

 

Implementation of Local Plans:  The Climate Smart Communities plan is significantly 

dependent on the implementation of adopted plans. However, many local jurisdictions are 

currently unable to successfully carry out their adopted plans. To do so will require local policy 

changes to support affordable housing, parking, and mixed-use development, and increased 

Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 115 of 246



 

funding for active transportation as discussed above.  Metro will have a role in supporting many 

of these changes.  

 

Recommended edit:  Add language indicating that Metro’s transportation and land use 

policy and investment decisions will be evaluated based on whether they help the region 

achieve the GHG target.  

 

 

Under-Utilized Land: Surface parking lots and brownfields are inefficient uses of land that 

make it more difficult to create healthy, vibrant communities where people don’t need to drive to 

meet daily needs. Changing policies to manage parking, and increasing funding to revitalize 

brownfields, are important elements of the Climate Smart Communities plan and will support a 

host of other benefits.  

 

Climate Adaptation:  By design, the Climate Smart Communities plan did not focus on 

adaptation to the changing climate and instead focused on mitigation of GHG emissions.  As 

discussed in the comments by Urban Greenspaces Institute, our region’s changing climate will 

increasingly cause significant health and ecological consequences, and it is important to address 

climate adaptation at every level of government.  We appreciate that the Toolbox of Possible 

Actions includes green street designs that include tree plantings to sequester carbon emissions, 

and hope to see an increased focus on adaption in future regional and local efforts.   

 

Recommended edit:  Find opportunities within the Climate Smart Communities plan to 

add references on the need to adapt to the changing climate.   

 

Recommended edit:  Consider additional green streets strategies to include in the 

Toolbox of Possible Actions.  

 

Thank you for considering these comments, and for thoughtfully developing this important plan. 

 

Sincerely, 

 

 
Mara Gross 

Executive Director 

Coalition for a Livable Future 
 

Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 116 of 246



Mayor 
Honorable Lori DeRemer 

October 30, 2014 

Councilor Donna Jordan 
Member of JP ACT 
600 NE Grand A venue 
Portland, OR 97232-2736 

Dear Councilor Jordan, 

HAPPY VALLEY, OR 
- EST.1965 . 

City Manager 
Jason Tuck 

The City of Happy Valley has been one of the fastest emerging cities in Oregon for well 
over a decade. As a growing municipality, the City acknowledges the need to participate in 
environmental stewardship through climate reduction policy development. In consideration of 
this responsibility, it is imperative that the Climate Smart strategy be inclusive of two elements 
in order to effectively engage local jurisdictions: local flexibility and a commitment to increasing 
highway capacity. 

It is paramount that local jurisdictions retain absolute flexibility in implementing climate 
reduction strategies. A streamlined policy for emission reduction will not be effective 
environmentally, economically or otherwise in municipalities that are less dense or not easily 
serviced by certain modal transportation options. Local flexibility provides jurisdictions with 
fluidity to invest in innovative solutions, harnessing resources unique to the communities they 
represent. This fluidity of choice will maximize both economic and environmental efficiency. 

Anticipating transportation system changes induced by the Climate Smart project, the 
City strongly encourages the expansion of motor vehicular capacity on existing freeways and 
highways. Expanding capacity for long term population growth will ease congestion, thereby 
mitigating emissions attributable to idling vehicles. Reduced congestion will also decrease 
motorist fatality, and increase regional economic prosperity as households expend a lesser 
portion of time and income on travel expenses. 

In summary, with respect to the innovative local climate reduction solutions already 
being implemented, and acknowledging the regional significance of the Climate Smart project, 
the City strongly encourages Metro to affirm and promote policies that uphold local flexibility 
and increases in long term highway capacity. 

16000 SE Misty Drive, Happy Valley, Oregon 97086 
Telephone: 503-783-3800 Fax: 503-658-5174 

happyvalleyor.gov 

Preserving and enhancing the safety, livability and character of our community 

Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 117 of 246

Mayor 
Honorable Lori DeRemer 

October 30, 2014 

Councilor Donna Jordan 
Member of JPACT 
600 NE Grand A venue 
Portland, OR 97232-2736 

Dear Counci lor Jordan, 

HAPPY VALLEY,OR -== EST .1965 -

City Manager 
Jason Tuck 

The City of Happy Valley has been one of the fastest emerging cities in Oregon for well 
over a decade. As a growing municipality, the C ity acknowledges the need to participate in 
environmental stewardship through climate reduction policy development. In consideration of 
thi s responsibility, it is imperative that the Climate Smart strategy be inclus ive of two elements 
in order to effectively engage local jurisdictions: local flexibility and a commitment to increasing 
highway capacity. 

It is paramount that local jurisdictions retain absolute flexibility in implementing climate 
reduction strategies. A streamlined policy for emission reduction will not be effective 
environmentally, econom ically or otherwise in municipalities that are less dense or not easily 
serviced by certain modal transportation options. Local flexibi lity provides jurisdictions with 
fluidity to invest in innovative solutions, harnessing resources unique to the communities they 
represent. This fluidity of choice wi ll maximize both economic and environmental efficiency. 

Anticipating transportation system changes induced by the Climate Smart project, the 
City strongly encourages the expansion of motor vehicular capacity on existing freeways and 
highways. Expanding capacity for long tenn population growth will ease congestion, thereby 
mitigating emissions attributable to idling vehicles. Reduced congestion will also decrease 
motorist fata lity, and increase regional economic prosperity as households expend a lesser 
portion of time and income on travel expenses. 

In summary, with respect to the innovative local climate reduction solutions already 
being implemented, and acknowledging the regional significance of the Climate Smart project, 
the City strongly encourages Metro to affmn and promote policies that uphold local fl ex ibility 
and increases in long term highway capacity. 

~A'~~U~~~
Lori DeRemer, M yor 
City of Happy Valley 

16000 SE Misty Drive, Happy Valley, Oregon 97086 
Telephone: 503-783-3800 Fax: 503-658-5174 

happyval leyor.gov 

Preserving and enhancing the safety, livability and character of our community 



Mayor 
Honorable Lori DeRemer 

October 30, 2014 

Chair Jody Carson 
Member ofMPAC 
600 NE Grand A venue 
Portland, OR 97232-2736 

Dear Chair Carson, 

HAPPY VALLEY, OR 
-=EST.1965 -

City Manager 
Jason Tuck 

The City of Happy Valley has been one of the fastest emerging cities in Oregon for well 
over a decade. As a growing municipality, the City acknowledges the need to participate in 
environmental stewardship through climate reduction policy development. In consideration of 
this responsibility, it is imperative that the Climate Smart strategy be inclusive of two elements 
in order to effectively engage local jurisdictions: local flexibility and a commitment to increasing 
highway capacity. 

It is paramount that local jurisdictions retain absolute flexibility in implementing climate 
reduction strategies. A streamlined policy for emission reduction will not be effective 
environmentally, economically or otherwise in municipalities that are less dense or not easily 
serviced by certain modal transportation options. Local flexibility provides jurisdictions with 
fluidity to invest in innovative solutions, harnessing resources unique to the communities they 
represent. This fluidity of choice will maximize both economic and environmental efficiency. 

Anticipating transportation system changes induced by the Climate Smart project, the 
City strongly encourages the expansion of motor vehicular capacity on existing freeways and 
highways. Expanding capacity for long term population growth will ease congestion, thereby 
mitigating emissions attributable to idling vehicles. Reduced congestion will also decrease 
motorist fatality, and increase regional economic prosperity as households expend a lesser 
portion of time and income on travel expenses. 

In summary, with respect to the innovative local climate reduction solutions already 
being implemented, and acknowledging the regional significance of the Climate Smart project, 
the City strongly encourages Metro to affirm and promote policies that uphold local flexibility 
and increases in long term highway capacity. 

Lori DeRemer, ayor 
City of Happy Valley 

16000 SE Misty Drive, Happy Valley, Oregon 97086 
Telephone: 503-783-3800 Fax: 503-658-5174 

happyvalleyor.gov 

Preserving and enhancing the safety, livability and character of our community 

Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 118 of 246

Mayor 
Honorable Lori DeRemer 

October 30, 20 14 

Chair l ody Carson 
Member of MPAC 
600 NE Grand A venue 
Portland, OR 97232-2736 

Dear Chair Carson, 

HAPPY VALLEY,OR 
- EST.l96S ==---

City Manager 
Jason Tuck 

The City of Happy Valley has been one of the fastest emerging cities in Oregon for well 
over a decade. As a growi ng munic ipality, the City acknowledges the need to participate in 
environmental stewardship through climate reduction policy development. In consideration of 
this responsibil ity, it is imperative that the Climate Smart strategy be inclusive of two elements 
in order to effectively engage local jurisdictions: local flexibi lity and a commitment to increasing 
highway capacity. 

It is paramount that local jurisdictions retain absolute flexibi lity in implementing climate 
reduction strategies. A streamlined policy for emission reduction will not be effective 
environmentally, economically or otherwise in municipalities that are less dense or not easily 
serviced by certain modal transportation options. Local flexibility provides jurisdictions with 
fl uidity to invest in irulOvative solutions, harnessing resources unique to the communities they 
represent. This fluidity of choice will maximize both economic and environmental effic iency. 

Anticipating transportation system changes induced by the Climate Smart project, the 
City strongly encourages the expansion of motor vehicular capacity on existing freeways and 
highways. Expanding capacity for long tenn population growth will ease congestion, thereby 
mitigating emissions attributable to idling vehicles. Reduced congestion will also decrease 
motorist fatality, and increase regional economic prosperity as households expend a lesser 
portion of time and income on trave l expenses. 

In summary, with respect to the innovative local cl imate reduction solutions already 
being implemented. and acknowledging the regional significance of the Climate Smart project, 
the City strongly encourages Metro to affirm and promote polic ies that uphold local flexibility 
and increases in long term highway capac ity. 

Lori DeRemer, ayor 
City of Happy Valley 

16000 SE Misty Drive, Happy Valley, Oregon 97086 
Telephone: 503-783-3800 Fax: 503-658-5174 

happyval leyor.gov 

Preserving and enhancing the safety, livability and character of our community 



	  
	  

	  
10/30/2014	  

Metro	  Council	  
600	  NE	  Grand	  Avenue	  
Portland,	  OR	  97232	  
	  
Re:	  Climate	  Smart	  Communities	  draft	  approach	  
	  
Dear	  President	  Hughes	  and	  Metro	  Councilors,	  
	  
We	  are	  excited	  today	  to	  share	  our	  thoughts	  with	  you	  on	  the	  draft	  approach	  for	  Climate	  
Smart	  Communities.	  As	  member	  organizations	  of	  the	  Transportation	  Justice	  Alliance	  have	  
been	  engaged	  in	  this	  process,	  we	  have	  worked	  with	  staff	  to	  provide	  feedback	  and	  have	  
been	  happy	  to	  see	  the	  many	  ways	  that	  community	  expertise	  has	  influenced	  the	  strategies	  
and	  the	  monitoring	  approach.	  	  	  
	  
We	  very	  much	  appreciate	  that	  Metro	  went	  above	  and	  beyond	  its	  mandated	  task	  throughout	  
the	  process,	  working	  with	  community	  based	  organizations,	  the	  Oregon	  Health	  Authority,	  
and	  others	  to	  understand	  the	  impact	  of	  the	  scenarios	  on	  community	  health	  and	  well-‐being.	  	  	  
	  
The	  Transportation	  Justice	  Alliance	  is	  keenly	  aware	  of	  how	  critical	  it	  is	  to	  integrate	  
transportation	  and	  housing	  policies,	  and	  we	  support	  Metro’s	  efforts	  to	  include	  housing	  
supports	  in	  the	  Toolbox.	  There	  is	  a	  range	  of	  tools	  that	  we	  would	  like	  to	  see	  available	  across	  
the	  region,	  and	  we	  were	  very	  supportive	  of	  the	  earlier	  Toolbox	  language	  that	  explicitly	  
emphasized	  inclusionary	  zoning	  as	  one	  of	  these	  tools.	  Because	  affordable	  housing	  is	  a	  
regional	  issue,	  while	  we	  support	  increasing	  the	  tools	  available	  to	  local	  jurisdictions,	  we	  are	  
concerned	  that	  “restore	  local	  control”	  can	  be	  read	  in	  such	  a	  way	  as	  to	  undermine	  the	  role	  
that	  Metro	  should	  play	  in	  this	  issue.	  	  There	  is	  also	  an	  opportunity	  in	  the	  Toolbox	  to	  commit	  
agency	  partners	  across	  the	  region	  to	  seeking	  funding	  for	  affordable	  and	  accessible	  housing.	  
	  
The	  Transportation	  Justice	  Alliance,	  is	  excited	  to	  support	  several	  of	  the	  existing	  policies	  in	  
the	  draft	  approach,	  including	  making	  transit	  more	  convenient,	  frequent,	  accessible,	  and	  
affordable	  and	  making	  biking	  and	  walking	  more	  safe	  and	  convenient.	  These	  two	  policy	  
areas	  have	  the	  highest	  relative	  climate	  benefits	  according	  to	  Metro’s	  analysis	  and	  were	  
strongly	  supported	  in	  each	  meeting	  and	  workshop	  we	  attended.	  	  However,	  when	  the	  

Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 119 of 246



Approach,	  the	  Toolbox,	  the	  Performance	  Monitoring,	  and	  the	  Early	  Actions	  are	  examined	  
together,	  it	  becomes	  clear	  that	  these	  two	  policies	  are	  not	  fully	  supported	  and	  are	  often	  
undermined	  by	  other	  policies.	  
	  
For	  example,	  one	  of	  the	  three	  Early	  Actions	  TPAC	  will	  be	  discussing	  is	  to	  advocate	  for	  
increased	  funding	  for	  all	  transportation	  modes	  and	  well	  over	  half	  of	  the	  recommended	  
investments	  in	  the	  draft	  approach	  are	  road	  projects	  that	  will	  not	  help	  the	  region	  reduce	  
greenhouse	  gas	  emissions.	  Given	  the	  technical	  analysis	  that	  shows	  that	  investments	  in	  
transit	  and	  active	  transportation	  have	  the	  greatest	  climate	  benefit,	  the	  recognized	  multiple	  
social,	  environmental,	  and	  economic	  benefits	  of	  improving	  our	  transit	  and	  active	  
transportation	  systems,	  and	  the	  strong	  support	  that	  the	  public	  has	  shown	  in	  elevating	  
transit	  and	  active	  transportation	  above	  the	  other	  strategies	  –	  the	  Approach,	  Toolbox,	  
Performance	  Monitoring,	  and	  Early	  Actions	  should	  all	  be	  aligned	  to	  prioritize	  investments	  
in	  transit	  and	  active	  transportation.	  	  We	  support	  the	  language	  of	  Early	  Action	  #3.	  We	  would	  
like	  to	  see	  similar	  language	  that	  makes	  clear	  the	  necessity	  to	  prioritize	  greenhouse	  gas	  
emissions-‐reducing	  projects,	  and	  we	  recommend	  that	  Metro	  convene	  an	  oversight	  
committee	  made	  up	  of	  transportation,	  land	  use,	  public	  health,	  environmental,	  and	  social	  
justice	  advocates	  and	  professionals.	  
	  
Because	  our	  region’s	  most	  vulnerable	  community	  members	  will	  disproportionately	  bear	  
the	  burdens	  of	  climate	  change,	  we	  look	  forward	  to	  working	  with	  Metro	  and	  other	  partners	  
to	  implement	  a	  robust	  climate	  mitigation	  plan.	  	  It’s	  also	  important	  to	  recognize,	  however,	  
that	  adaptation	  supports	  will	  also	  be	  critically	  important	  for	  the	  members	  of	  our	  
community	  who	  have	  the	  fewest	  resources.	  	  Investments	  in	  transit	  and	  in	  active	  
transportation	  bolster	  both	  climate	  mitigation	  and	  climate	  adaptation.	  	  To	  make	  the	  most	  
of	  these	  benefits,	  though,	  transportation	  options	  must	  be	  affordable.	  	  	  The	  draft	  approach	  
recognizes	  this	  in	  policy	  language,	  but	  there	  are	  no	  performance	  measures	  addressing	  the	  
affordability.	  	  We	  would	  like	  to	  see	  Climate	  Smart	  Communities	  monitoring	  include	  
tracking	  transit	  costs	  over	  time	  compared	  to	  inflation	  and	  include	  a	  measure	  of	  household	  
housing	  +	  transportation	  cost	  burden.	  
	  
The	  Transportation	  Justice	  Alliance	  looks	  forward	  to	  continuing	  to	  work	  with	  Metro	  and	  
other	  regional	  partners	  to	  achieve	  the	  Climate	  Smart	  Communities	  goal	  of	  demonstrating	  
leadership	  on	  climate	  change.	  
	  
Thank	  you	  for	  your	  time.	  
	  
Asian	  Pacific	  American	  Network	  of	  Oregon	  
	  
Coalition	  for	  a	  Livable	  Future	  
	  
Community	  Cycling	  Center	  
	  
OPAL	  Environmental	  Oregon	  
	  
Upstream	  Public	  Health	  
	  
1000	  Friends	  of	  Oregon	  

Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 120 of 246



 

   “Serving the community with pride” 

City of
WILSONVILLE 

OREGON

29799 SW Town Center Loop East
Wilsonville, OR  97070 
Phone 503-682-0411 
Fax 503-682-1015 
TDD 503-682-0843 
Web www.ci.wilsonville.or.usOctober 30, 2014 

 
 

Testimony of Wilsonville Mayor Tim Knapp Before the Metro Council in  
Support of Ordinance No. 14-1346, “For the Purpose of Adopting a  
Preferred Climate Smart Communities Strategy and Amending the  

Regional Framework Plan to Comply with State Law” 

 
Good day Council President Hughes and Members of the Metro Council: 

I am Tim Knapp, and I serve as Mayor for the City of Wilsonville. I am here today to express my 
support for Ordinance No. 14-1346 that adopts a preferred Climate Smart Communities Strategy 
and amends the Regional Framework Plan to comply with state law. I want to commend all those 
whose efforts went into developing the region’s draft preferred approach and this strategy in 
response to the mandate of the 2009 Oregon legislature. 

In this testimony, I call out several salient issues that I believe are necessary in order for the 
Strategy to succeed. 

First, I strongly support having the “toolbox of actions” in hand for cities to use to help the 
region achieve greenhouse gas-reduction goals. Being able to customize a community’s response 
to the issue of climate change is important for gaining public acceptance and matching local 
aspirations and resources to the task at hand. Elected officials from across the region made it 
clear that a one-size fits all approach is not practical for our communities, and we appreciate the 
flexible approach of the draft Strategy to accommodate local situations. I believe that many 
components of the toolbox are applicable and useful for Wilsonville. 

I support the Strategy’s recommendation to advocate for state legislative initiatives related to the 
Oregon Clean Fuels program, brownfield redevelopment, local housing policies and programs, 
and transportation funding. In order to achieve the greenhouse gas-reduction targets mandated by 
the state legislature, it is appropriate to request greater assistance from the state in helping local 
jurisdictions meet these regional goals, which have obvious state-wide significance.  

I want to call out the recommendation for expanding funding for low-carbon travel options and 
programs, including transit, intelligent transportation systems (ITS), travel information and 
incentives, Safe Routes to Schools and especially Safe Routes to Transit programs. The City has 
had good success to date with our “SMART Options” transit-ridership outreach program with 
our larger industrial employers.  

Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 121 of 246



Testimony of Wilsonville Mayor Tim Knapp Before the Page 2 
Metro Council in Support of Ordinance No. 14-1346 10/30/2014 

In particular, commuting workers and major employers like Xerox, Mentor Graphics and 
Rockwell Collins have embraced our “last-mile” connection from the SMART Transit Center / 
WES Commuter Rail Station that meets every arriving WES train and delivers employees to 
their Wilsonville worksites within 10 minutes of arrival. The state could be of great assistance 
working with TriMet and local jurisdictions on improving those “last-mile” connections from the 
home or workplace to public transit services. 

In calling for a dramatic expansion in the levels of transit service with a $4 billion increase in 
public transit funding, new, diverse, sustainable funding sources need to be developed. Over 
reliance primarily on employer-paid payroll taxes places an unfair burden on the region’s private 
employers to pay for enhanced transit service. Until we as a region and state can develop wider 
sources of support for an increase in public transit services, I do not understand how we can 
achieve the goals of the Strategy.  

I will note that the draft plan calls for $100 million in operational investments in SMART, but I 
am not clear that we have a plan for how we will generate funds of that magnitude. Even more 
puzzling is how Tri-Met is expected to come up with $3.9 billion in increased transit operating 
funding. To achieve an increase in transit operating funds of this scale requires major political 
lifting by state and regional leaders. 

And while the legislature’s mandate focused on light trucks and vehicles, I believe that the 
region could make major headway on greenhouse gas-reduction by changing over the transit 
fleets from high-carbon diesel fuel to low-carbon alternative fuels, including CNG and battery-
electric power. Transitioning the public transit fleet to alternative fuels could be a potential effort 
shared with private-sector utility, shipping and distribution firms for financing and implementing 
the needed fueling infrastructure. 

One item that the City is especially concerned about that is not addressed by the proposed 
recommendations in the Climate Smart Communities Strategy pertains to the larger issues of 
community design in the Regional Framework Plan. That is, I do not understand how we can 
achieve the targeted greenhouse gas-reductions if we continue to site a majority of employment 
opportunities on one side of the region while planning for a majority of new housing on the other 
side of the region.  

While it is true that workers may not necessarily prefer to live close to where they work, limiting 
possibilities for those that seek a shorter commute inhibits the region’s ability to achieve 
reductions in vehicle miles traveled targeted in the Regional Transportation Plan and greenhouse 
gas-reduction goals of the Climate Smart Communities Strategy.  

Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 122 of 246



Testimony of Wilsonville Mayor Tim Knapp Before the Page 3 
Metro Council in Support of Ordinance No. 14-1346 10/30/2014 

Rather than force workers to commute, our city, for example, seeks the ability to offer local 
housing opportunities to accommodate future development of the approximately 1,050 acres of 
regionally significant industrial and employment lands at Coffee Creek and Basalt Creek that 
have already been brought into the UGB adjacent to Wilsonville, Tualatin and Sherwood. This 
kind of thoughtful land-use planning contributes to livable communities, reduces the demand on 
regional roadways, and improves access to travel choices such as transit (SMART in 
Wilsonville) and active transportation options.  

All in all, I believe that the seven policies/categories that form the basis for the preferred 
approach of the Strategy (Adopted Plans; Transit, Biking and Walking; Streets and Highways; 
Technology; Travel Information/Travel Options; and Parking Management) provide an easy-to-
understand framework for our future actions. In addition, long-term success of the proposed 
Climate Smart Communities Strategy relies on policies that support greater fuel efficiency, 
cleaner fuels and securing adequate funding for our transportation investments. 

I thank you for your time today and welcome any questions that you may have. 

Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 123 of 246



	  

Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 124 of 246



	  

	  

Appendix	  D.	  

	  

	  

Public	  comment	  emails	  
received	  

Sept.	  15	  to	  Oct.	  30,	  2014	  

	   	  

Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 125 of 246



	  

Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 126 of 246



Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 127 of 246

From: 
To: 
Subject: 
Date: 

craig stephens 

Metro Climate Scenarios 

Suggestion 

Thursday, September 18, 2014 1:39:36 PM 

I would like to make a suggestion relative making Oregon and the Metro area in particular better aligned 
to reduce carbon dioxide emissions. I come at this from an educational and career background (I am 
now retired) in physics, risk management and a nearly life-long observational standpoint that oil based 
energy needs to be replaced with solar energy. When I was young this was considered ridiculous 
because the energy cost of making silicon was a lot higher than pumping West Texas crude and refining 
it in Pasadena Texas. Unfortunately even though the economics have given way to the reality of the cost 
of a drilling platform going from $10,000 (Wyoming in 1960) to $20,000,000,000 (deep water off Brazil in 
2010) and silicon costs going from a few bucks per 2 inch diameter slice (1960) to $500 for a 12 inch 
diameter slice with 48 times more area (2010), powerful entrenched (economically and mentally, 
although in Oregon we are only consumers in denial) have convinced us to avoid legislation such as a 
carbon tax, an eminently reasonable thing to do but politically suicide. 

My suggestion is pretty simple and is based on thinking about what the most important thing is. And that 
thing is to allow our children to be educated and at the same time reduce greenhouse emissions and 
carcinogenic emissions from school buses. As you probably know the Oregon Legislature passed 
legislation that school buses, which I am told are manditory and are 70% funded out of Salem for public 
schools, shall not be required to meet the 2007 Clean Air Standards until 2017 and no incremental 
progress is required. There is another proviso that this will only be required if it can be shown that school 
kids get cancer from the bus fumes at a rate of more than one in a million. (This is not a big deal 
because the initia! EPA findings, rejected by Congress and sent back, were that one in 2000 school kids 
that are exposed daily to the carcinogenic fumes of a non-filtered diesel school bus will get cancer on 
average. Even allowing for massive error in that number, which is not, unfortunately necessarily the 
case, the cancer rate for exposure inside the bus is much higher than one in a million.) 

So the biggest and most successful and effective way to reduce carbon emission, reduce childhood 
poisoning for kids going to school and utilize the resources of Oregon to set the pace is to convert the 
school bus fleet to electric. * These vehicles are available from a couple of suppliers and the cost is over 
$150,000. But think of the long term benefit. Not only are these buses cheaper in the long run, they 
improve the quality of life (air quality) for the communities they are i (here in LO the fleet of school buses 
queue up in a residential neighborhood every day and a friend who lived there and mentioned how he 
was limited in traveling because of this in front of his house has now died of lung cancer. You will 
probably suspect smoking or Radon. Neither of these were existent. 

Of course you could go part way and consider natural gas school buses. And you could go further and 
consider natural gas Trimet buses (following LA's example) or electric Trimet buses or safe bike paths 
through cities like Lake Oswego. 

So that s my big suggestion. Like my childhood idea of making solar panels to replace burning oil for 
energy, it is not going to happen in my lifetime. But you might consider it for when we flat run out of stuff 
that comes out of the ground, especially since Oregon has no energy source that comes out of the 
ground but uses a lot and has some of the worst quality air at schools in the US according to the EPA. 

Thanks for considering! 

*Good use of the "Kicker" rather than returning to taxpayers! 100% for clean school buses across the 
state. Maybe require a company to build them here as part of the bidding process? Both the Marathon 
facility (owned by a bus manufacturer) and Freightliner facility are adequte for such manufacture. 

Craig Stephens 
330 Durham St. (near the diesel Trimet bus line) 
Lake Oswego OR 97034 



Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 128 of 246

From: 

To: 
Subject: 
Date: 

John Smith 

Metro Climate Scenarios 

climate stupid scenarios .... and loot raiL .. 

Friday, September 19, 2014 7:47:28 PM 

Adding High Capacity Transit (HCT) in Tigard will NOT significantly reduce congestion now 
or in the future just look to Portland and the past for proof. 

HCT is either Light Rail Transit (LRT) or Bus Rapid Transit (BRT). BRT means larger buses 
that make fewer stops in at least 50% dedicated road lanes and traffic signal priority over car 
lanes. Yes, that means the buses use road lanes that our cars CANNOT use. 

FIRST, a 2012 Metro survey confilmed PEOPLE CHOOSE TO DRIVE 84% OF THE TIME 
in the Portland Metro area. That's down just 3.6% since 1994 despite $4B invested in HCT 
including opening the Westside MAX, Interstate Ave. MAX, Airport MAX, Interstate 205 
MAX and WES Commuter Train. 

Even in Portland where light rail and buses have blanketed the area only 12.1 % commute by 
public transit. And that number is significantly inflated because 45% who commute 
downtown do so by public transit, but in the suburbs only 4.2% commute by public transit. 
According to the 2013 Tigard Survey only 15% (5.8% margin of error) of Tigard residents are 
elnployed in Downtown Portland, but buses already go to downtown frequently and along 
most of the proposed HCT routes. The proposed new HCT doesn't go even remotely near the 
largest employers in Oregon and Washington County like Intel, Nike, Tektronix, Genentech, 
Solarworld, St. Vincent Hospital, etc. Is anyone really going to ride HCT downtown to catch 
the light rail out to Hillsboro? I seriously doubt it, so most who will ride the proposed HCT 
already ride buses. Therefore, even THE BEST POSSIBLE OUTCOME FROM ADDING 
HCT WOULD BE LESS THAN A 5% INCREASE IN COMMUTING BY PUBLIC 
TRANSIT. 

DOES THE OFTEN NEARLY EMPTY $161M WES COMMUTER TRAIN REALLY 
REDUCE CONGESTION? AFTER 5 YEARS OF OPERATION? At 940 riders each day, 
WES STILL ONLY CARRlES 78% OF THE COMMUTERS THAT TRI-MET 
PROJECTED ON DAY 1. Highway 99W calTies over 50,000 cars a day. 

SECOND, commuting only accounts for about 25% of all travel in the region, but the new 
HCT is not planned to go down Highway 99W, Tigard's main business corridor. According 
to the 2009 City of Tigard survey 2 out of 3 Tigard residents prefer increased road capacity or 
roadway developments/improvelnents over light rail in order to address traffic congestion on 
99W. 

THIRD, TRI-MET HAS CUT SERVICE 4 TIMES IN 5 YEARS, including what The 
Oregonian called one of the most sweeping series of service cuts in its history in 2012. 
TRI-MET EXPECTS MORE CUTS IN 2017 AND BEYOND due to their $1.126B of 
UNFUNDED PENSION AND HEALTH BENEFITS. In order to maximize MAX ridership 
and elilninate duplicate services caused by the $1.49B Milwaukie Light Rail, TRI-MET IS 
ALREADY DISCUSSING ELIMINATING OR REDUCING BUS SERVICE ON 18 OF 79 
LINES IN THE PORTLAND METRO AREA. The proposed $1.68B SW Corridor Plan's 
HCT will also reduce Tigard bus service and move people from buses to trains forcing people 
to drive to catch the HCT or not even ride public transit. 

FOURTH, PUBLIC TRANSIT IS SLOW AND ISN'T CLOSE TO OUR HOMES OR 
DESTINATIONS. HCT WILL ONLY EXACERBA TE THAT DUE TO THE FORCED 



Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 129 of 246

REDUCTIONS IN BUS SERVICE AND ADDED HCT TRANSFERS. 

Tri-Met asserts "that lnost people are willing to walk up to a quarter-mile to a bus stop and a 
half-nlile to a light rail stop. Many walk much further. Most people walk or bike to transit. 
Less than 5% of current Tri-Met riders access the system from Park & Ride lots". How close 
do you live and work to the proposed HCT and far are you willing to walk in the rain to ride 
HCT? 

To go frOln Tigard to Hillsboro, Tri-Met takes 89 lninutes including 9 lninutes of walking and 
21 minutes of waiting, and that doesn't include the walk to your employer or the drive to and 
wait at the park and ride. So it takes nearly 4 hours roundtrip and you will be exhausted and 
soaking wet, but you can drive door to door in 45 minutes on the worst days. How many 
extra hours per day are you willing to lose to ride Tri-Met? 

FIFTH, WE WILL LOSE ROAD CAPACITY TO ADD HCT. Interstate Avenue used to be a 
fast moving 4 lane major road used by many. Now Interstate is a useless congested slow 
nl0ving 2 lane road with light rail going down it. The current Plan for HCT has major 
stretches of Barbur being reduced to 2 traffic lanes, and THE RESULTING TRAFFIC JAM 
ON BARBUR WILL BACKUP INTO TIGARD. We could also lose road capacity on 
HalllDurham172ndlUpper Boones Feny, etc. 

FINALL Y, due to limited funding resources the addition of HCT will almost certainly stop the 
widening of Highway 217, Hall Blvd and Durham Road, and finally kill forever the Westside 
Bypass and I5-99W connector projects. But, anyone of these road projects would probably 
do more to reduce congestion than adding HCT. After all Tigard's population has tripled in 
the last 30 years, so shouldn't road capacity go up accordingly? 

Bringing HCT to Tigard will NOT significantly increase public transit ridership because 
transit is slow and inconvenient, and the bus service reductions that coincide with adding 
HCT will force people to drive to the HCT. Road capacity and road construction funds will 
be taken away by HCT delaying or canceling much needed road improvements and 
expansions. Adding HCT to Tigard won't significantly reduced congestion for the 840/0 who 
drive, but HCT just nlight increase congestion. 



Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 130 of 246

From: 
To: 
Subject: 
Date: 

Dear Mctro-

Fran Mason 

Metro Climate Scenarios 

Small-motor pollution 

Saturday, September 20, 2014 8:31:30 PM 

Small-motor engines also contributc to pollution. The use of gas-powered lawnmowers and leaf-blowers needs to be 
addrcssed, as every little bit helps. 

Many are looking for ways they can contribute on an individual level. The obvious is drive Jess and weatherize, but 
an educational campaign to educate regarding individual actions would be smart. Use a push mower, a rake, electric 
leaf-blower, unplug appliances when not in use, etc. Have a public survey on these actions! 

F Mason 



Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 131 of 246

From: 
To: 
SUbject: 
Date: 

Clifford Higains 

Peggy Morell; Laura Dawson-Bodner 

FW: NOTICE: Climate Smart Communities public comment period 9/15-10/30 

Tuesday, September 23, 2014 12:53:00 PM 

Comment on Climate Smart. 

From: zephyr moore [mailto:salmoneedshade@gmail.com] 
Sent: Monday, September 22, 2014 10:53 PM 
To: Clifford Higgins 
Subject: Re: NOTICE: Climate Smart Communities public comment period 9/15-10/30 

Dear Clifford, 

All tires sold as new all are unfinished with rubber hairs and walls (together called hairs later 
in letter) on each tread lug and across the sidewalls. A tire on a wheel bears the weight of 
vehicle that erodes the pavenlent. The rubber hairs, of no help to traction, are the same 
weight as rubber tire. The weight of hairs erodes pavement. 

Each tread of a tire had a hair and wall. These ripped fi'om tire as the car travelled the first 
lnile. So the tread you see is smooth. The petroleum based rubber hairs imnlediately go to 
storm drain, river then local ocean. 

The hairs also have surface area. Every tire revolution the hairs disturb the air. Oxygen-fuel 
is consUlned to overCOlne the turbulence as hair's surface area flutters each tire revolution. 

The hairs have mass (Physics) so force is used to change their inertia. Because hairs are away 
from axle, each tire revolution the hairs nlove the circUlnference plus the cycloid. So hairs 
travel faster than car speed. 

Rubber hairs' weight, surface area and mass (Physics) oppose all motion for the life of a tire. 

To eliminate this perpetual cost of transportation, require that all tires be finished at 
manufacturer. 

Salmon silently sip dinosaur soup because drivers use unfinished tires. W.W.S.D.? 

We're all in this alone, together, 

Zephyr Thoreau Moore 

On Mon, Sep 15,2014 at 5:23 PM, Clifford Higgins <Clifford.Higgins@oregonmetro.gov> 
wrote: 

The Climate Smart Communities Scenarios Project draft Climate Sn1Urt Strategy is 
availablefor public review and conlnlentfrom Sept. 15 to Oct. 30,2014. 

In 2009, the Oregon Legislature required the Portland metropolitan region to reduce per capita 
greenhouse gas emissions from cars and small trucks by 2035. After four years of 
collaboration and engagement with regional partners and the public, a draft Climate Smart 
Strategy is ready for review. 

Your voice is important 



Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 132 of 246

You are invited to provide feedback during the public comment period from Sept. 15 through 

Oct. 30, 2014. 

• Take a short survey online at makeagreatplace.org on transportation and land use 

policies and actions that can shape our communities. 

To provide more in depth feedback, visit oregonmetro.gov/draftapproach to download and 

review the draft approach and implementation recommendations (Regional Framework Plan 

amendments, toolbox of possible actions and performance monitoring approach) and provide 

comments in one of the following ways: 

• Mail comments to Metro Planning, 600 NE Grand Ave., Portland, OR 97232 

• Email comments to climatescenarios@oregonmetro.gov 

• Phone in comments to 503-797-1750 or TDD 503-797-1804 

• Testify at a Metro Council hearing on Oct. 30, 2014, at 600 NE Grand Ave., 

Portland, OR 97232 in the Council chamber 

To learn more about the Climate Smart Communities Scenarios Project, visit 

oregonmetro.gov/climatescenarios. 

You have received this message as a member of Metro IS Planning enews interested persons 

list. To be removed from this list notify trans@oregoometro gov. 



Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 133 of 246

From: 
To: 
Subject: 
Date: 

Kim Ellis 

Peggy Morell; Laura Dawson-Bodner 

Comment on Climate Smart Strategy 

Friday, September 26, 2014 4:54:30 PM 

From: <Siegel>, Scot <ssiegel@ci.oswego.or.us> 

Date: Thursday, September 25, 20144:44 PM 

To: Kim Ellis <kim.ellis@oregonmetro.gov> 

Cc: "Andreades, Debra" <dandreades@cLoswego.or.us>, "Lazenby, Scott" 

<slazenby@cLoswego.or.us>, "Siegel, Scot" <ssiegel@cLoswego.or.us> 

Subject: Comment on Climate Smart Strategy 

Dear Kim, 

The City has reviewed the Climate Smart Communities strategy document that will be discussed at the 

upcoming MTAC meeting. Our reading ofthe document leads us to understand that it is aspirational and 

that the proposed policies and amendments to the Regional Framework Plan would not require local 

jurisdictions to amend their Comprehensive Plans, TSPs or land use regulations. 

As you are aware, Lake Oswego has just completed an extensive process to update its Comprehensive Plan 

and TSP and is not anxious to initiate another process at this time. It is also the City's belief that the 

proposed amendments to the Regional Framework Plan guide Metro in its decision making but do not apply 

to cities as they amend their plans or codes; nor do they mandate funding for specific projects. 

I would welcome a brief conversation with you if our understanding ofthe strategy is incorrect. Thank you 

for the opportunity to comment. 

Scot Siegel 

Planning & Building Services Director 

City of La ke Oswego 

PO Box 369 

Lake Oswego OR 97034 

tel: 503.699.7474 

PUBLIC RECORDS LAW DISCLOSURE This e-mail is a public record ofthe City of Lake Oswego and is subject 

to public disclosure unless exempt from disclosure under Oregon Public Records Law. This email is subject 

to the State Retention Schedule. 



Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 134 of 246

From: 
To: 
Cc: 

Subject: 
Date: 

Hi Mark-

Kim Ellis 

Ottenad Mark; Metro Climate Scenarios 

Kraushaar Nancy; Neamtzu Chris; Peggy Morell 
Re: Climate Smart and public input 

Wednesday, October 01,201411:33:39 AM 

Thanks for your email. I spoke with Chris this morning before MTAC, but also wanted to follow-up directly 

with you. 

The public input component ofthe CSC strategy has been significant throughout the project and has been 

structured to inform both MPAC and JPACT as well the Metro Council. Ultimately, it's the policy 

committees who make the recommendation to the Metro Council. That is their role, and it is their 

responsibility to consider public input. We have been proactively shaping the draft approach since January 

of this year. The documents posted for public review reflect public input from January through May (as well 

as previous project phases), the recommendation of MPAC and JPACT from May 30, and an analysis of that 

recommendation for their ability to meet the target. At this point in the process -- there are not a lot of 

surprises in what the draft approach represents compared to what MPAC and JPACT recommended on May 

30 for testing and what the public supports (per early results from our online survey about the draft 

strategy). 

The Oct. 30 hearing is the first evidentiary reading of the CSC ordinance the Council will consider for 

adoption on Dec. 18. It also coincides with the close of our formal 45-day comment period. The comments 

received through Oct. 30 will be provided to M PAC and JPACT for their consideration on Nov. 7 along with 

TPAC and MTAC's straw proposals on the short list of priority toolbox actions and options for demonstrating 

the region's commitment to implementation given the voluntary nature of the toolbox. The Nov. 7 

meeting will not result in a final recommendation, but a preliminary recommendation on the overall 

components of the Climate Smart Strategy, the short list of toolbox actions and how to demonstrate the 

region's commitment to implementation. MPAC and JPACT will be asked to make their final 

recommendations to the Council on Dec. 10 and 11, respectively and those will be forward to the Council 

for consideration on Dec. 18. 

A second Metro Council hearing will be held on Dec. 18 prior to their final action -legally, comments can be 

submitted into the record at any time, including between Oct. 30 and Dec. 18. Any comments we receive 

after Oct. 30 will be added to the record and provided to the policy committees and Metro Council. 

Hope this helps. Let me know if you have further questions. 

Best, 

Kim 

Kim Ellis, AICP, principal transportation planner 

Metro - Planning and Development Department 

600 NE Grand Ave. 



Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 135 of 246

Portland OR 97232 

503-797-1617 

kim.ellis@oregonmetro.goy 

www.oregonmetro.gov 

Metro I Making A Great Place 

From: <Ottenad>, Mark <ottenad@ci.wilsonville.or.us> 

Date: Monday, September 29, 20144:08 PM 

To: Kim Ellis <kim.ellis@oregonmetro.gov>, Metro Climate Scenarios 

<Metro.ClimateScenarios@oregonmetro.gov> 

Cc: Nancy Kraushaar <kraushaar@ci wilsonville.or us>, Chris Neamtzu 

<neamtzlJ@ci wilsonville or l1S> 

Subject: Climate Smart and public input 

Hi Kim, 

I am wondering if you can help me understand the public input component of the CSC strategy. 

That is, I understand that an Oct 30 public hearing is scheduled before Metro Council on CSC and 

proposed Regional Framework Plan. 

Then, on Nov 7 a special Joint JPACT and MPAC meeting is scheduled to "discuss public comments, 

potential refinements and recommended actions to the draft Climate Smart Strategy./I I presume 

that Metro seeks a recommendation from JPACT and MPAC for the Metro Council. 

Can you help me understand the sequence of these events? That is, on the surface, it would appear 

that the jOint meeting should occur first with a recommendation that is then all rolled into public 

comment for a public hearing. I am concerned that critics may indicate that the Nov 7 

recommendation, if any, is ineffective since the official public hearing will have already been held. 

Any info that you can help me with is appreciated so that I can answer the questions I believe will 

come from local government officials. 

Thank you. 

- Mark 

Mark C. Ottenad 

Public/Government Affairs Director 

City of Wilsonville 

29799 SW Town Center Loop East 

Wilsonville, OR 97070 

General: 503-682-1011 

Direct: 503-570-1505 

Fax: 503-682-1015 



Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 136 of 246

Monday, October 27,20149:58:57 AM Pacific Daylight Time 

Subject: Re: Climate Smart Communities -- Scenarios 

Date: Thursday, October 2, 20142:08:40 PM Pacific Daylight Time 

From: Angus Duncan 

To: Kim Ellis 

cc: Bob Cortright, Tom Kloster, Peggy Morell, McFarlane, Neil, Eric Hesse 

Kim, 

Thank you for your customary responsiveness. I found your explanations very helpful. 

It was in fact the Draft Climate Smart Strategy document I was reviewing. I still can't find the GreenSTEP 
reference on page 4 (or elsewhere), but am satisfied with the understanding that Metro used GreenSTEP and its 
light vehicle fleet turnover assumptions. I also understand that Metro is appropriately focused on tasks that fall 
directly within its planning and performance responsibilities. Vehicles and fuels are a little outside of those 
venues. However, a citizen reading this without the STS context I bring might not understand how important to 
success are his vehicle and fuel choices, since this factor neither shows up as a "policy area" nor as a prior 
condition to the region achieving its carbon goals. I offer this not as a criticism of Metro's planning work but as a 
suggestion for possibly better communicating the nature of the larger task. 

I also appreciate that the document uses a "Benefits/Challenges" box for each policy area. Very helpful. 

I'll look forward to TriMet's SEP work, which I hope will examine not just service levels but the nexus of transit 
service economics and an evolving urban design that enables service levels to both strengthen and extend further 
into medium density neighborhoods and neighborhoods dominated by low-income households. 

More creative use by TriMet and transportation planners of the kinds of modeling tools that characterize some of 
the new people-mover services (Lyft; Uber; Car2Go) would be welcome also, as would more creative thinking by 
all of us about how these kinds of services can be integrated into urban transportation strategies to collective 
advantage. 

Thanks again for your response, and for the commitment and good work you and your Metro colleagues bring 
every day to your important tasks. 

Regards, 

Angus 

Angus Duncan 
President, BonnevJ1/e Environmental Foundation 
Chair, Oregon Global Warming Commission 
240 SW First A venue 
Portland, OR 97204 

Phone 503.248.1905 
Cell 503.248.7695 
aduncan@b-e-f.ora 

Page 10f4 



Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 137 of 246

On Oct 2,2014, at 11:31 AM, Kim Ellis <Kim.Ellis@oregonmetro.gov> wrote: 

Hi Angus-

As always, thanks for your email and comments. I'm not certain which report you reviewed - we 
released 4 documents for review at: oregonmetro.gov/draftapproach 

• Key results (9/12/14) 
• Draft Climate Smart Strategy (9/15/14) 
• Draft Regional Framework Plan amendments (9/15/14) 
• Draft Toolbox of Possible Actions (9/15/14) 
• Draft Performance Monitoring Approach (9/15/14) 

I'm assuming you reviewed the Draft Climate Smart Strategy. Page 4 of the report calls out that the 
draft approach assumes the fleet and technology assumptions the state used when setting our 20% 
reduction target. The GreenSTEP model was used to calculate the emissions reductions and other 
results we are reporting. We are in the process of documenting the technical details and do not 
have a final technical report available at this time. In the mean-time, attached is a PDF summarizing 
Key results of the analysis (including costs) and a PDF of the key GreenSTEP model inputs that 
reflect the draft approach recommended by our policy committees for testing. Page 2 of the 
GreenSTEP input summary shows the more detailed fleet and tech assumptions. My understanding 
is the electric grid transition is part of the background assumptions within GreenSTEP and as a result 
we used what the ODOT assumed in their STS work. Is there anything more you need on how the 
emissions are calculated? 

As you noted, the draft approach includes significant increases in transit service as called for in our 
2014 Regional Transportation Plan. This level of service also reflects what is likely needed to 
implement a significant portion of the Service Enhancement Plans TriMet has been developing in 
partnership with local governments, com munity organizations and businesses across the region. The 
SEP work is expected to be completed in the next year. 

In terms of the barriers to implementation - we reference the funding barrier in many of the 
documents we've prepared, and view funding as the single largest barrier to achieving our adopted 
plans and, as a result, the GHG target. The toolbox identifies short term actions that the state, 
Metro, local governments and special districts can take to begin to address some of the barriers that 
have been identified to date, including funding. The Oregon Transportation Forum work is one state 
related pathway you are involved in that can help support our efforts to adequately fund 
transportation in our region (and state). There are also local and regional funding discussions 
underway that will also continue into 2015 and beyond, particularly as we move toward the next 
Regional Transportation Plan update. 

The Metro Council and other policymakers have expressed the desire for the preferred strategy to 
be doable and reflect local priorities and visions for the future. I believe we have a draft approach 
that is a sound starting point for the region. There is a clear recognition we still have a lot to do to 
make those plans a reality - funding being a key piece of that. There is also a recognition that it isn't 
simply redividing the existing pot of funding for a number of reasons - new funding is also needed, 
particularly for transit and active transportation. We will need help from many diverse interests to 
address this long-standing issue and hopefully make progress beginning with the 2015 Legislature. 

Thanks for looking at our work and draft recommendations. Let me know if you have further 
questions or want to discuss further. Your insight and perspective is always welcome. 

Best, 
Kim 

Page 2of4 



Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 138 of 246

Kim Ellis, AICP, principal transportation planner 

Metro - Planning and Development Department 

600 NE Grand Ave. 

Portland OR 97232 
503-797-1617 
kim.ellis@oregonmetro.gov 

www.oregonmetro.gov 

Metro I Making A Great Place 

From: Angus Duncan <aduncan@b-e-f.org> 

Date: Wednesday, October I, 2014 11:10 AM 

To: Kim Ellis <kim.ellis@oregonmetro.gov> 

Cc: CORTRIGHT Bob <Bob.Cortright@state.or.us> 

Subject: Climate Smart Communities -- Scenarios 

Kim, 

I did a quick read-through the Climate Smart Communities Scenarios report (09-15-14L and while I 
find much to agree with and applaud in its proposed (and in many cases, underway) measuresl a 
couple of first-order questions did occur. 

First l the STS analysis aiming at state T&LU targets relied heavily on vehicle fleet turnover to 
low emissions vehicles (and complementary turnover of power plant fleet supplying EV's to 
low emissions also). Maybe I missed that chapter, or perhaps there1s a fleet turnover factor 
that's assumed? Can you clarify? 

There1s not a lot of discussion of barriers to realizing these outcomes. Again perhaps thafs 
not the purpose of this document. But is it plausible, or even an above-board assertion l to 
cite an achievable per cent reduction without singling out a few of the hills that will need to 
be climbed (e.g' l funding availability and accessibility for non-roadway work; resistance to 
transit in outlying areas of WA and Clackamas counties)? 

Is there l somewhere, the documentation of how GHG savings were calculated and attributed 
to measures (or packages of measures)? Again, it1s hard to evaluate the plausibility of 
making the goal if one can't see and weigh a reliance, say, on a very large bump in transit 
service, especially in medium-density areas where transit economics are most challenging. 

Of course there1s no outcome I would be happier with than a 29% reduction in Metro area T&LU 
GHG emissions through 2035. The strategies need to add up the carbon savings, and they need to 
be doable. Or we need to figure out how to influence the politics so they are doable. 

Regards, 

Angus 

Angus Duncan 
President, Bonneville Environmental Foundation 
Chair, Oregon Global Warming Commission 
240 SW First Avenue 

Page 3 of4 



Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 139 of 246

From: 
To: 
Subject: 
Date: 

bill Badrick 

Metro Climate Scenarios 

survey 

Monday, October 06,2014 12:06:23 PM 

We are in a Climate Melt-Down. California as my as a bone, and those 
folks will start moving north en-mass. We need to tum our single
family housing stock into walkable dense multi-family settlement 
-patterns now. We need Active Transportation Policy and Funding to 
support this inevitable future. We need streetcars on evelY avenue, 
just like Portland once had. No more polluting single-passenger cars 
should be allowed. We should not spend one more Transportation Dollar 
supporting these destructive out-of-date vehicles. 
Bill Bam'ick 



Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 140 of 246

From: 
To: 
Cc: 
Subject: 
Date: 

Chris Hagerbaumer 

Metro Climate Scenarios 

Kim Ellis 

OEC comments on draft Climate Smart Strategy 

Wednesday, October 15,2014 3:27:58 PM 

To: Metro Planning 

From: Chris Hagerbaumer, Oregon Environmental Council 

RE: Draft Climate Smart Strategy 

Date: October 15, 2014 

Oregon Environmental Council (OEC) thanks Metro for doing a terrific job developing a robust plan to 
reduce greenhouse gas emissions from cars and trucks. Yes, it was mandated, but you took the task to 
heart and did the due diligence with regard to research, analysis and community engagement. It's 
exciting and affirming that the approach relies on policies and investments you had already identified as 
important for the region's future. Of course, the hardest part is yet to come-securing the funds to make 
the needed investments and bringing all parts of the region along, but the co-benefits are so huge and 
the costs of inaction so great, that it's a true imperative. 

OEC had the opportunity to participate in the October 1 Climate Smart Communities community leaders 
meeting. We second the many recommendations made there, and stress a few below: 

OEC supports the Toolbox of Possible Actions in its entirety. Provision of 
transportation options (transit, pedestrian and bicycling facilities) is particularly 
important to us. We would also emphasize a few specific actions: 

1. Restore local control of housing policies and programs. Too many lower-income 
residents have been pushed out of the region's core due to the fact that affordable 
housing policies and investments have not been implemented along with all of the 
strategies that have made the core more desirable (and expensive). We suggest 
rephrasing this action to ensure that it's about achieving housing affordability, not 
just restoring local control (local control works only if local decision-makers actually 
care about affordable housing). This needs to be a real regional conversation with real 
solutions that ensure housing affordability no matter where one lives in the region. 

2. Use green street design, not only planting trees to support carbon sequestration 
and using Inaterials that reduce infrastructure-related heat gain, but capturing, 



Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 141 of 246

absorbing and cleaning stormwater and nlaking more use of pervious, rather than 
impervious, surface nlaterials. These strategies will help the region save money and 
adapt to the unwelcome effects of climate change. 

3. Fully utilize parking pricing strategies. Yes, this is a tough sell, but it's one of the 
most effective ways to manage demand. Parking spaces are not truly "free," and too 
much free parking merely subsidizes cars and car trips. In most urban areas, there's 
nlore space for cars (roads, parking lots and driveways) than humans (buildings and 
sidewalks), which is kind of insane. Cities should charge the fair market price for on-
street parking, using the revenues to finance added public services in the metered 
neighborhoods. Likewise, parking minimums hurt housing affordability (as 
mentioned above, housing affordability is one of the most important issues to grapple 
with). 

4. Expand the list of actions under "Demonstrate leadership on climate change." The actions listed are 
primarily focused on inventories, reports and plans. Yes, you will demonstrate true leadership by 
implementing the plan, but we suggest "evangelizing" in appropriate venues. Share your story with other 
metropolitan areas across the country. Be loud and proud about tackling the most pressing issue of our 
time. On a related note, some of the resistance to some of the tools (e.g., the current backlash against 
mixed-use development in downtown Lake Oswego) has to do with a lack of understanding of how these 
tools work, how they help the community broadly, and how everyone needs to be part of the solution. 
There continues to be a communication challenge about the necessity of compact urban development, 
not to mention climate change, which needs to be overcome. Not everyone will get on board, but more 
will as the merits are proved and the story is told. 

With regard to the Draft Performance Monitoring Approach: 

• You may have already done so, but we suggest reviewing the indicators developed for Mosaic, the 
value and cost informed transportation planning tool recently developed by ODOT. There may be 
some quantitative and qualitative indicators that would make sense to use in this process. 

• Because of the importance of housing affordability, please develop an indicator 
related to housing affordability for the policy "Implement the 2040 Growth 
Concept and local adopted land use and transportation plans." 

• Perhaps adopt a measurement for 20-minute neighborhoods. 
• Public EV charging stations could be a measure for the policy related to fuels 

and vehicles. 
• The measure "secure adequate funding for transportation investments" could be 

quite specific, e.g., 60% of transit needs met by 20XX, 75% of sidewalk 
infrastructure complete by 20XX, etc. 

Again, thank you for your great work. OEC will be with you all the way. 

Chris Hagerbaumer I Deputy Director 
Oregon Environmental Council 
222 NW Davis Street, Suite 309 
Portland, OR 97209-3900 
503.222.1963 x102 



Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 142 of 246

From: 
To: 
SUbject: 
Date: 

Mike DeBlasi 

Metro Climate Scenarios 

Climate scenario 

Thursday, October 16, 2014 4:18:57 PM 

If then Metro areas really wants to control greenhouse gases from cars then there should be a major push for 
commuter rail between Salem and Portland. Enough people commute betvveen these two cities (in single passenger 
vehicles) to support commuter transit. The vallpools and Express bus to Wilsonville do not count. They're not 
available to everyone, not frequent enough and get stuck in traffic. 

I know ODOT is working to build a higher speed system from Eugene to POliland as part of interstate rail. But a 
dedicated commuter system needs to be built that has good frequency in both directions. Even in the near term 
converting one 1-5 lane to a carpool (3+) lane with Bus Rapid Transit would help. 

Otherwise, you'll never get control of the pollution. 



Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 143 of 246

From: 

To: 
Subject: 
Date: 

Gary & Ruth Warren 

Metro Climate Scenarios 

Greenhouse gas emissions 

Friday, October 17, 2014 12:42:21 PM 

I live in Hillsboro, Oregon and am very concell1ed about the air quality in our City. The fall 
season starts the burning of wood fireplaces and in our neighborhood a neighbor who burns 
"junk wood" in an unapproved burner in his man cave/uninsulated shed. Him along with a 
neighbor who burns wood that he stores outdoors create quite the air pollution which is 
visible to the naked eye. I am allergic to wood smoke as I am sure others are and it bothers 
Ine a lot even though my home has 2x6 construction and double pane windows. The smoke 
still manages to enter my hOlne and I notice there is a "black" covering on things in and out of 
my home. Neither person "needs" to burn wood as they can well afford to use gas or 
electricity to heat their structures. I believe wood burning, except in rare instances, needs to 
be banned in this area. Our hOlnes are equipped with proper heating devices that burn gas or 
run on electricity which are cleaner fuels. I have read that sitting next to a wood stove with 
your baby is like blowing cigarette smoke in the baby's face - just as toxic. 

I also am near the Hillsboro Airport who encourages flight training and touch and go 
operations which entail circling my densely populated residential neighborhood almost all 
afternoon and into the evening. I know people who live under the flight path who experience 
air traffic night and day. The fixed wing training flights burn leaded fuel which is a known 
problem, especially to young children. 

Global warming is a crisis and we are adding to the problem with burning wood. Let's be the 
"progressive" Oregon and ban the burning of wood and requiring flight training not be done 
over residential areas and stop encouraging foreign flight students to train in the US and 
pollute our air; China's is unsafe for humans so let's not follow in their footsteps. 

If you have the power to change things, please step up and do it. It is for our health and the 
health of future generations. 

Ruth Warren 
5093 NE Stable Court 
Hillsboro, Oregon 97124 



Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 144 of 246

From: 
To: 
Subject: 
Date: 

Blaine Ackley 

Metro Climate Scenarios 

Prioritize active transportation in Metro"s climate plan 

Tuesday, October 21, 2014 5:46:07 PM 

I would like to provide feedback on the Climate Smart Communities Draft Approach. 

I support the recommended investments to make transit more frequent, reliable, accessible, and affordable. 

I want the region to invest more in making biking and walking safe and convenient. Biking and walking projects are 
inexpensive, create jobs, reduce greenhouse gas emissions, and provide many other benefits to our health, 
neighborhood safety, livability, and economy. Bikers save the roads for essential services and those who cannot 
ride their bicycles. 

I also support new dedicated funding for active transportation. Metro should lead by example by dedicating all 
eligible flexible federal funding to active transportation projects and using estimated climate benefits to determine 
which projects are prioritized. 

The Climate Smart Communities Preferred Approach should also deprioritize road widening and highway projects, 
as the climate benefit analysis found that these expenditures would result in a less than one percent reduction in 
emissions. Recommending $20.8 billion of spending on road projects likely overstates the region's real road 
funding priority, which is fixing and maintaining our existing roads, not building new or expanded roads and 
highways. 



Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 145 of 246

From: 
To: 
Subject: 
Date: 

Naveed Bandukwala 

Metro Climate Scenarios 

Feedback on Climate Smart Communities 

Tuesday, October 21, 2014 10:05:56 PM 

TO WHOM IT MAY CONCERN 

I would like to provide feedback on the Climate Smart Communities Draft Approach. 

I support the recommended investments to make transit more frequent, reliable, accessible, and affordable. 

I want the region to invest more in making biking and walking safe and convenient. Biking and walking projects are 

inexpensive, create jobs, reduce greenhouse gas emissions, and provide many other benefits to our health, 

neighborhood safety, livability, and economy. 

I also support new dedicated funding for active transportation. Metro should lead by example by dedicating all 

e!igible flexible federa! funding to active transportation projects and using estimated climate benefits to determine 

which projects are prioritized. 

The Climate Smart Communities Preferred Approach should also deprioritize road widening and highway projects, 

as the climate benefit analysis found that these expenditures would result in a less than one percent reduction in 

emissions. Recommending $20.8 billion of spending on road projects likely overstates the region's real road 

funding priority, which is fixing and maintaining our existing roads, not building new or expanded roads and 

highways. 

Thanks 

Naveed 



Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 146 of 246

From: 
To: 
SUbject: 
Date: 

stephen couche 

Metro Climate Scenarios 

Prioritize active transportation in Metro"s climate plan 

Tuesday, October 21, 20142:46:06 PM 

I would like to provide feedback on the Climate Smart Communities Draft Approach. 

I support the recommended investments to make transit more frequent, reliable, accessible, and affordable. 

I want the region to invest more in making biking and walking safe and convenient. Biking and walking projects are 
inexpensive, create jobs, reduce greenhouse gas emissions, and provide many other benefits to our health, 
neighborhood safety, livability, and economy. 

I also support new dedicated funding for active transportation. Metro should lead by example by dedicating all 
eligible flexible federal funding to active transportation projects and using estimated climate benefits to determine 
which projects are prioritized. 

The Climate Smart Communities Prefened Approach should also deprioritize road widening and highway projects, 
as the climate benefit analysis found that these expenditures would result in a less than one percent reduction in 
emissions. Recommending $20.8 billion of spending on road projects likely overstates the region's real road 
funding priority, which is fixing and maintaining our existing roads, not building new or expanded roads and 
highways. 

Sincerely, 
Steve Couche 
Reed Neighborhood 
SE Portland 



Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 147 of 246

From: 
To: 
Subject: 
Date: 

Dean Davidson 

Metro Climate Scenarios 

Climate Smart Communities Draft Approach 

Tuesday, October 21, 2014 2:43:57 PM 

I would like to provide feedback on the Climate Smart Communities Draft Approach. 

I support the recommended investments to make transit more frequent, reliable, accessible, and affordable. 

I Wailt the region to invest more in making biking and walking safe and convenient. Biking and walking projects are 
inexpensive, create jobs, reduce greenhouse gas emissions, and provide many other benefits to our health, neighborhood 
safety, livability, and economy. 

I also support new dedicated funding for active transportation. Metro should lead by example by dedicating all eligible 
flexible federal funding to active transpOliation projects and using estimated climate benefits to detennine which projects are 

prioritized. 

The Climate Smart Communities Preferred Approach should also deprioritize road widening and highway projects, as the 
climate benefit analysis found that these expenditures would result in a less than one percent reduction in emissions. 
Recommending $20.8 billion of spending on road projects likely overstates the region'S real road funding priority, which is 
fixing and maintaining our existing roads, not building new or expanded roads and highways. 

Thanks, 

-Dean 



Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 148 of 246

From: 

To: 
Subject: 
Date: 

Joseph Eisenberg 

Metro Climate Scenarios 

Prioritize active transportation in Metro"s climate plan 

Tuesday, October 21, 2014 10:48:07 PM 

I would like to provide feedback on the Climate Smart Cominunities Draft Approach. 

I support the recominended investments to make transit more frequent, reliable, accessible, 
and affordab Ie. 

I want the region to invest In ore in making biking and walking safe and convenient. Biking 
and walking projects are inexpensive, create jobs, reduce greenhouse gas einissions, and 
provide many other benefits to our health, neighborhood safety, livability, and econOlny. 

I also support new dedicated funding for active transportation. Metro should lead by example 
by dedicating all eligible flexible federal funding to active transportation projects and using 
estimated cliinate benefits to determine which projects are prioritized. 

The Climate Smart Communities Preferred Approach should also stop road widening and 
highway projects, as the climate benefit analysis found that these expenditures would result in 
a less than one percent reduction in einissions. Recominending $20.8 billion of spending on 
road projects likely overstates the region's real road funding priority, which is fixing and 
maintaining our existing roads, not building new or expanded roads and highways. 

Sincerely, 
Joseph Eisenberg 
17114 NE 45th Ave 
Portland OR 97213 



Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 149 of 246

From: 
To: 
Subject: 
Date: 

leeanne feraason@gmail com 

Metro Climate Scenarios 

Prioritize active transportation in Metro"s climate plan 

Tuesday, October 21,20149:47:19 PM 

I would like to provide feedback on the Climate Smart Communities Draft Approach. 

I suppOli the recommended investments to make transit more frequent, reliable, accessible, and affordable. 

I want the region to invest more in making biking and walking safe and convenient. Biking and walking projects are 
inexpensive, create jobs, reduce greenhouse gas emissions, and provide many other benefits to our health, 
neighborhood safety, livability, and economy. 

I also support new dedicated funding for active transpOliation. Metro should lead by example by dedicating all 
eligible flexible federal funding to active transportation projects and using estimated climate benefits to determine 
which projects are prioritized. 

The Climate Smati Communities Prefened Approach should also deprioritize road widening and highway projects, 
as the climate benefit analysis found that these expenditures would result in a less than one percent reduction in 
emissions. Recommending $20.8 billion of spending on road projects likely overstates the region's real road 
funding priority, which is fixing and maintaining our existing roads, not building new or expatlded roads and 
highways. 

Sincerely, 
LeeAnne Fergason 
7411 SE Knight St 
Portland OR 97206 



Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 150 of 246

From: 
To: 
Subject: 
Date: 

Eric Geisler 

Metro Climate Scenarios 

Prioritize active transportation in Metro"s climate plan 

Tuesday, October 21,20148:58:05 PM 

I would like to provide feedback on the Climate Smart Communities Draft Approach. I support the 
recommended investments to make transit more frequent, reliable, accessible, and affordable. I want the 
region to invest more in making biking and walking safe and convenient. Biking and walking projects are 
inexpensive, create jobs, reduce greenhouse gas ernissions,and provide many other benefits to our 
health, neighborhood safety, livability, and economy. I also support new dedicated funding for active 
transportation. Metro should lead by example by dedicating all eligible flexible federal funding to active 
transportation projects and using estimated climate benefits to determine which projects are prioritized. 
The Climate Smart Communities Preferred Approach should also de prioritize road widening and highway 
projects, as the climate benefit analysis found that these expenditures would result in a less than one 
percent reduction in emissions. Recommending $20.8billion of spending on road projects likely 
overstates the region's real road funding priority, which is fixing and maintaining our existing roads, not 
building new or expanded roads and highways. 

Eric Geisler 



Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 151 of 246

From: Jason Gillies 

To: Metro Climate Scenarios 
Subject: Active Transportation 

Date: Tuesday, October 21,20143:27:52 PM 

I would like to provide feedback on the Climate Smart Communities Draft Approach. 

I want to see more walkable communities and safe cycling routes. Walking safely to the 
grocery store, local restaurant or shopping is not accessible from thousands of communities. 
This type of active transportation reduces vehicular use, encourages environmental 
stewardship and awareness, and connects people socially. 

I also support new dedicated funding for active transportation. Metro should lead by example 
by dedicating all eligible flexible federal funding to active transportation projects and using 
estimated cliInate benefits to determine which projects are prioritized. 

The Climate Smart Communities Preferred Approach should also deprioritize road widening 
and highway projects, as the climate benefit analysis found that these expenditures would 
result in a less than one percent reduction in emissions. Recommending $20.8 billion of 
spending on road projects likely overstates the region's real road funding priority, which is 
fixing and maintaining our existing roads, not building new or expanded roads and highways. 

Jason Gillies 
9707 SW 90th Ave. 
Portland, OR 97223 



Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 152 of 246

From: 
To: 
Subject: 
Date: 

Greenebaum Barbara 

Metro Climate Scenarios 

Feedback 

Tuesday, October 21,20143:14:52 PM 

I would like to provide feedback on the Climate Smart Communities Draft Approach. 

I support the recommended investments to make transit more frequent, reliable, accessible, and 
affordable. 

I want the region to invest more in making biking and walking safe and convenient. Biking and walking 
projects are inexpensive, create jobs, reduce greenhouse gas emissions, and provide many other 
benefits to our health, neighborhood safety, livability, and economy. We really need safe routes to ride 
where there is a shoulder or bike lane on the road. I ride the safest roads I can find but in WA Co, there 
are just not enough routes that are safe. I'm tired of wondering when someone talking on their cell phone 
and driving 20mph over the speed limit is going to run over the top of me and my bike. Before new 
projects are started, we need to make sure the existing ones make sense and are providing a safe place 
for those who want to walk, run, and bike. 

The Climate Smart Communities Preferred Approach should also deprioritize road widening and highway 
projects, as the climate benefit analysis found that these expenditures would result in a less than one 
percent reduction in emissions. Recommending $20.8 billion of spending on road projects likely 
overstates the region's real road funding priority, which is fixing and maintaining our existing roads, not 
building new or expanded roads and highways. Instead, give us more accessible and safe places to ride, 
run, and walk. 

Thanks---

Barb Greenebaum 



Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 153 of 246

From: 
To: 
Subject: 
Date: 

Nathan Grey 

Metro Climate Scenarios 

Prioritize active transportation in Metro"s climate plan 

Tuesday, October 21,20146:40:20 PM 

Dear policy-makers, 

I have recently moved to Portland because of its many benefits and progressive policies. I ani 
delighted to provide input to the Climate Smart Communities Draft Approach. 

I support the recommended investments to make transit more frequent, reliable, accessible, 
and affordable with an emphasis on transit options that reduce or liInit greenhouse gasses. 

As a daily biker and a public health practitioner, I want the region to invest more in making 
biking and walking safe and convenient. Biking and walking projects are inexpensive, create 
jobs, reduce greenhouse gas emissions, and provide many other benefits to our health, 
neighborhood safety, livability, and economy. 

I also support new dedicated funding for active transportation. Metro should lead by example 
by dedicating all eligible flexible federal funding to active transportation projects and using 
estilnated clitnate benefits to determine which projects are prioritized. 

The Climate Smart Communities Preferred Approach should also deprioritize road widening 
and highway projects, as the climate benefit analysis found that these expenditures would 
result in a less than one percent reduction in emissions. Recommending $20.8 billion of 
spending on road projects likely overstates the region'S real road funding priority, which is 
fixing and maintaining our existing roads, not building new or expanded roads and highways. 

Portland is recognized throughout the world for its efforts to reduce global wanning and its 
progressive transportation policies. Our reputation far outweighs our size. I urge you to take 
steps that will continue to set the bar high for our community, our nation and the world. The 
stakes are high. Now is not the time to take half-steps. 

SIncerely, 

Nathan Grey 



Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 154 of 246

From: 
To: 
Subject: 
Date: 

Rachel Hammer 

Metro Climate Scenarios 

Stand up for Oregonl/s Climate 

Tuesday, October 21,2014 5:13:40 PM 

I would like to provide feedback on the Climate Smart Communities Draft Approach. 

I support the recommended investments to make transit more frequent, reliable, accessible, 
and affordable. 

I want the region to invest more in making biking and walking safe and convenient. Biking and 
walking projects are inexpensive, create jobs, reduce greenhouse gas emissions, and provide 
many other benefits to our health, neighborhood safety, livability, and economy. 

I also support new dedicated funding for active transportation. Metro should lead by example 
by dedicating all eligible flexible federal funding to active transportation projects and using 
estimated climate benefits to determine which projects are prioritized 

The Climate Smart Communities Preferred Approach should also deprioritize road widening 
and highway projects, as the climate benefit analysis found that these expenditures would 
result in a less than one percent reduction in emissions. Recommending $20.8 billion of 
spending on road projects likely overstates the region IS real road funding priority, which is 
fixing and maintaining our existing roads, not building new or expanded roads and 
highways. 

Sincerely, 
Rachel Hammer 
Portland, OR 



Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 155 of 246

From: 
To: 
Subject: 
Date: 

Google Scott 

Metro Climate Scenarios 

Prioritize active transportation in Metro"s climate plan 

Tuesday, October 21, 2014 2:49:23 PM 

I would like to provide feedback on the Climate Smart Communities Draft Approach. 

I support the recommended investments to make transit more frequent, reliable, accessible, and affordable. 

I also want the region to invest far more in making biking and walking safe and convenient. Biking and walking 
projects are inexpensive, create jobs, reduce greenhouse gas emissions, and provide many other benefits to our 
health, neighborhood safety, livability, and economy. 

I also support new dedicated funding for active transportation. Metro should lead by example by dedicating all 
eligible flexible federal funding to active transportation projects and using estimated climate benefits to determine 
which projects are prioritized. 

The Climate Smart Communities Prefened Approach should also make road widening and highway projects an 
extremely low priority. Recommending $20.8 billion of spending on road projects likely overstates the region's real 
road funding priority, which is fixing and maintaining our existing roads, not building new or expanded roads and 
highways. 

Thank you, 
Scott Hillson 
scott.hillson@gmail.com 



Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 156 of 246

From: 
To: 
Subject: 
Date: 

Kanna Hudson 

Metro Climate Scenarios 

Please make bikes a priority 

Tuesday, October 21,2014 3:15:27 PM 

I would like to provide feedback on the Climate Smart Communities Draft Approach. 

I support the recommended investments to make transit more frequent, reliable, accessible, and affordable. 

I want the region to invest lhore in making biking and walking safe and convenient. Biking and walking projects are 
inexpensive, create jobs, reduce greenhouse gas emissions, and provide many other benefits to our health, neighborhood 
safety, livability, and economy. 

I.also support new dedicated. funding for active transportation. Metro should lead by example by dedicating all eligible 
flexible federal funding to active transportation projects and using estimated climate benefits to detenlline which projects are 
plioritized. 

The Climate Smart Conmlllnities Preferred Approach should.also deprioritize road widening and highway projects, as the 
clinlate benefit analysis found that these expenditures would result in a less than one percent reduction in emissions. 
Recommending $20.8 billion of spending on road projects likely overstates the region's real road funding priOlity, which is 
fixing and maintaining our existing roads, not building new or expanded roads and highways. 

Thank you! 

Sincerely, 

Kanna Hudson 



Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 157 of 246

From: 
To: 
Subject: 
Date: 

Thomas Huminski 

Metro Climate Scenarios 

Climate Smart Communities Draft Scenarios 

Tuesday, October 21,20147:52:30 PM 

Dear Decision Maker, 

Regarding the Climate Smart Communities Scenarios, please prioritize bicycling and walking as transportation 
modes. Transit is important, but active transportation is what our region needs to encourage. 

I support *new, dedicated funding* for active transportation. Metro should lead by example by dedicating all 
eligible flexible federal funding to active transportation projects and using estimated climate benefits to determine 
which projects are prioritized. 

The Climate Smart Communities PrefelTed Approach should also deprioritize road widening and highway projects, 
as the climate benefit analysis found that these expenditures would result in a less than one percent reduction in 
emissions. Recommending $20.8 billion of spending on road projects likely overstates the region's real road 
funding priority, which is fixing and maintaining our existing roads, not building new or expanded roads and 
highways. 

Sincerely, 
Thomas Huminski 
Northeast Portland 



Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 158 of 246

From: 
To: 
Subject: 
Date: 

Sara Jay Jensen 

Metro Climate Scenarios 

Climate Smart Communities Draft Approach 

Tuesday, October 21,20142:32:26 PM 

I would like to provide feedback on the Climate Smart Communities Draft Approach. 

I support the recommended investments to make transit more frequent, reliable, accessible, and affordable. 

I want the region to invest more in making biking and walking safe and convenient. Biking and walking projects are 

inexpensive, create jobs, reduce greenhouse gas emissions, and provide many other benefits to our health, 

neighborhood safety, livability, and economy. 

I also support new dedicated funding for active transportation. Metro should lead by example by dedicating all 

eligible flexible federal funding to active transpottation projects and using estimated climate benefits to determine 

which projects are prioritized. 

The Climate Smart Communities Preferred Approach should also deprioritize road widening and highway projects, 

as the climate benefit analysis found that these expenditures would result in a less than one percent reduction in 

emissions. Recommending $20.8 billion of spending on road projects likely overstates the region's real road 

funding priority, which is fixing and maintaining our existing roads, not building new or expanded roads and 

highways. 

Thanks! 
Sara J. 

Sara Jensen 
Technical Support 
Idealist.org F AQ 
646.786.6886 

Want to change the world? There's a degree for that at the Idealist Grad Fairs this fall: 
https:!Iwww.youtube.com!watch?v=nodoiyyW4GI&feature=youtu.be 

How's our support? Fill out our super-short Satisfaction Survey! 



Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 159 of 246

From: 
To: 
Subject: 
Date: 

Sandy Joos 

Metro Climate Scenarios 

Climate Smart Communities 

Tuesday, October 21,20145:55:44 PM 

I would like to provide feedback on the Climate Smart Communities Draft Approach and let 

you know that I support the recommended investments to make transit more frequent, 

reliable, accessible, and affordable. First, I want the region to invest more in making biking 

and walking safe and convenient. Biking and walking projects are inexpensive, create jobs, 

reduce greenhouse gas emissions, and provide many other benefits to our health, 

neighborhood safety, livability, and economy. Second, I also support new dedicated 

funding for active transportation. Metro should lead by example by dedicating all eligible 

flexible federal funding to active transportation projects and using estimated climate 

benefits to determine which projects are prioritized. Third, the Climate Smart Communities 

Preferred Approach should de-prioritize road widening and highway projects, as the 

climate benefit analysis found that these expenditures would result in a less than one 

percent reduction in emissions. Recommending $20.8 billion of spending on road projects 

likely overstates the region's real road funding priority, which is fixing and maintaining our 

existing roads, not building new or expanded roads and highways. 

Thank you for your attention, 

Sandra Joos! 4259 SW Patrick PI, Pdx, 97239 



Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 160 of 246

From: 
To: 
Subject: 
Date: 

Adrienne Leverette 
Metro Climate Scenarios 

Prioritize active transportation in Metro"s climate plan 

Tuesday, October 21,20142:22:49 PM 

I would like to provide feedback on the Climate Smart Communities Draft Approach. 

I support the recomlnended investments to make transit more frequent, reliable, accessible, 
and affordable. 

I want the region to invest more in making biking and walking safe and convenient. Biking 
and walking projects are inexpensive, create jobs, reduce greenhouse gas elnissions, and 
provide many other benefits to our health, neighborhood safety, livability, and economy. 

I also support new dedicated funding for active transportation. Metro should lead by example 
by dedicating all eligible flexible federal funding to active transportation projects and using 
estitnated climate benefits to determine which projects are prioritized. 

The Climate Smart Communities Preferred Approach should also deprioritize road widening 
and highway projects, as the climate benefit analysis found that these expenditures would 
result in a less than one percent reduction in elnissions. RecOlnlnending $20.8 billion of 
spending on road projects likely overstates the region's real road funding priority, which is 
fixing and maintaining our existing roads, not building new or expanded roads and highways. 

Sincerely, 
Adrienne Leverette 



Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 161 of 246

From: 
To: 
Subject: 
Date: 

Mauria McClay 

Metro Climate Scenarios 

Prioritize active transportation in Metro"s climate plan 

Tuesday, October 21, 2014 7:00:19 PM 

I would like to provide feedback on the Climate Smart Communities Draft Approach. I 
support the recommended investments to make transit more frequent, reliable, 
accessible, and affordable. I want the region to invest more in making biking and 
walking safe and convenient. Biking and walking projects are inexpensive, create 
jobs, reduce greenhouse gas emissions, and provide many other benefits to our 
health, neighborhood safety, livability, and economy. I also support new dedicated 
funding for active transportation. Metro should lead by example by dedicating all 
eligible flexible federal funding to active transportation projects and using estimated 
climate benefits to determine which projects are prioritized. The Climate Smart 
Communities Preferred Approach should also deprioritize road widening and 
highway projects, as the climate benefit analysis found that these expenditures would 
result in a less than one percent reduction in emissions. Recommending $20.8 billion 
of spending on road projects likely overstates the region's real road funding priority, 
which is fixing and maintaining our existing roads, not building new or expanded 
roads and highways. 



Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 162 of 246

From: 
To: 
Subject: 
Date: 

Nathan McNeil 

Metro Climate Scenarios 

Prioritize active transportation in Metro"s climate plan 

Tuesday, October 21, 2014 2:24:49 PM 

I would like to provide feedback on the Climate Smart Communities Draft Approach. 

I support the reconllnended investments to make transit more frequent, reliable, accessible, 
and affordable. 

I want the region to invest more in making biking and walking safe and convenient. Biking 
and walking projects are inexpensive, create jobs, reduce greenhouse gas emissions, and 
provide many other benefits to our health, neighborhood safety, livability, and economy. 

I also support new dedicated funding for active transportation. Metro should lead by example 
by dedicating all eligible flexible federal funding to active transportation projects and using 
estimated climate benefits to determine which projects are prioritized. 

The Climate Slnart Communities Preferred Approach should also deprioritize road widening 
and highway projects, as the climate benefit analysis found that these expenditures would 
result in a less than one percent reduction in elnissions. RecOlnmending $20.8 billion of 
spending on road projects likely overstates the region's real road funding priority, which is 
fixing and maintaining our existing roads, not building new or expanded roads and highways. 



Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 163 of 246

From: 
To: 
Subject:· 

Date: 

Tom McTighe 

Metro Climate Scenarios 

Prioritize active transportation in Metro"s climate plan 

Tuesday, October 21, 2014 3:33:53 PM 

I would like to provide feedback on the Climate Smart Communities Draft Approach. 

I support the recomlnended investments to make transit more fioequent, reliable, accessible, 
and affordable. 

I want the region to invest more in making biking and walking safe and convenient. Biking 
and walking projects are inexpensive, create jobs, reduce greenhouse gas emissions, and 
provide many other benefits to our health, neighborhood safety, livability, and econOlny. 

I also support new dedicated funding for active transportation. Metro should lead by example 
by dedicating all eligible flexible federal funding to active transportation projects and using 
estimated climate benefits to determine which projects are prioritized. 

The Climate Smart Communities Preferred Approach should also deprioritize road widening 
and highway projects, as the climate benefit analysis found that these expenditures would 
result in a less than one percent reduction in emissions. RecOlnlnending $20.8 billion of 
spending on road projects likely overstates the region's real road funding priority, which is 
fixing and maintaining our existing roads, not building new or expanded roads and highways. 

Thank you! 
Tom 



Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 164 of 246

From: 
To: 
SUbject: 
Date: 

Cooper Morrow 

Metro Climate Scenarios 

Prioritize active transportation in Metro"s climate plan 

Tuesday, October 21, 2014 3:42:58 PM 

I would like to provide feedback on the Climate Smart Communities Draft Approach. 

I suppOli the recommended investments to make transit more fJ:equent, reliable, accessible, and affordable. 

I want the region to invest more in making biking and walkingsafe and convenient. Biking and walking projects are 
inexpensive, create jobs, reduce greenhouse gas emissions, and provide many other benefits to our health, 
neighborhood safety, livability, and economy. 

I also support new dedicated funding for active transpOliation. Metro should lead by example by dedicating all 
eligible flexible federal funding to active transportation projects and using estimated climate benefits to determine 
which projects are prioritized. 

The Climate Smart Communities Prefen'ed Approach should also deprioritize road widening and highway projects, 
as the climate benefit analysis found that these expenditures would result in a less than one percent reduction in 
emissions. Recommending $20.8 billion of spending on road projects likely overstates the region's real road 
funding priority, which is fixing and maintaining our existing roads, not building new or expanded roads and 
highways. 



Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 165 of 246

From: 
To: 
Subject:" 
Date: 

marcmoscato@qmail.com on behalf of Marc Moscato 

Metro Climate Scenarios 

taking action on climate change 

Tuesday, October 21, 2014 5:26:20 PM 

I would like to provide feedback on the Climate Smari Communities Draft Approach. 

I support the recommended investrnents to make transit more frequent, reliable, accessible, and affordable. 

I want the region to invest more in making biking and walking safe and convenient. Biking and walking projects are 

inexpensive, create jobs, reduce greenhouse gas emissions, and provide many other benefits to our health, 

neighborhood safety, livability, and economy. 

I also suppori new dedicated funding for active transporiation. Metro should lead by example by dedicating all 

eligible flexible federal funding to active transpoftation projects and using estimated climate benefits to determine 

which projects are prioritized. 

The Climate Smart Communities Preferred Approach should also deprioritize road widening and highway projects, 

as the climate benefit analysis found that these expenditures would result in a less than one percent reduction in 

emissions. Recommending $20.8 billion of spending on road projects likely overstates the region's real road 

funding priority, which is fixing and maintaining our existing roads, not building new or expanded roads and 

highways. 

Marc Moscato 1 Executive Director 
Know Your City 1800 NW 6th Ave #3311 Portland, OR 97209 
p: 97] .717.7307 

Know Your City engages the public in art and social justice through creative placemaking projects. Our 
programs and publications aim to educate people to better know their communities, and to empower 
them to take action. 

http://knowyourcity.org 
https' Uwww facebook.com/kycpdx 
https://twitter.com/kycpdx 
http://instagraITI.com/kycpdx 



Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 166 of 246

From: 
To: 
Subject: 
Date: 

Tanja Olson 

Metro Climate Scenarios 

Prioritize active transportation in Metro"s climate plan 

Tuesday, October 21,20143:25:47 PM 

I would like to provide feedback on the Climate Smart Comlnunities Draft Approach. 

I support the recomlnended investments to make transit more frequent, reliable, accessible, 
and affordable. 

I want the region to invest more in making biking and walking safe and convenient. Biking 
and walking projects are inexpensive, create jobs, reduce greenhouse gas elnissions, and 
provide many other benefits to our health, neighborhood safety, livability, and econOlny. 

I also support new dedicated funding for active transportation. Metro should lead by example 
by dedicating all eligible flexible federal funding to active transportation projects and using 
estimated climate benefits to determine which projects are prioritized. 

The Climate Smart Communities Preferred Approach should also deprioritize road widening 
and highway projects, as the climate benefit analysis found that these expenditures would 
result in a less than one percent reduction in elnissions. RecOlnmending $20.8 billion of 
spending on road projects likely overstates the region's real road funding priority, which is 
fixing and maintaining our existing roads, not building new or expanded roads and highways. 

Tanja Olson 



Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 167 of 246

From: 
To: 
Subject: 
Date: 

Paul Pederson 

Metro Climate Scenarios 

One Citizen"s Support of Active Transportation 

Tuesday, October 21,2014 2:50:41 PM 

As an avid bike commuter and occasional public transit rider, I have some feedback 

on the Climate Smart Communities Draft Approach: 

Simply put, we need dedicated funding for active transportation. It is imperative that 

Metro set aside the money to make things like biking, walking, and transit a priority. 

We need to dedicate flexible federal funding to active transportation projects. 

Focusing spending on active transportation has numerous benefits: healthier 

populace, cleaner environment, and more bang for our buck in terms of public 

spending. 

The Climate Smart Communities Preferred Approach should also remove focus from 

road widening and highway projects. Dedicating $20.8 billion of spending on road 

projects is short-sighted. We need to focus on maintaining our existing roads, not 

building or expanding them. 

Metro needs to look to the future, not live in the past when it comes to fund allocation. 

Put your money where your mouth is and build infrastructure for active 

transportation. 

Paul C Pederson 

paul.c.pederson@gmail.com 



Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 168 of 246

From: 
To: 
SUbject: 
Date: 

Greg Petras 

Metro Climate Scenarios 

Smart Communites Draft Feedback 
Tuesday, October 21,20142:54:21 PM 

I would like to provide feedback on the Climate Smart Communities Draft Approach. 

I support the recommended investments to make transit more frequent, reliable, accessible, and affordable. 

I want the region to invest more in making biking and walking safe and convenient. Biking and walking projects are 

inexpensive, create jobs, reduce greenhouse gas emissions, and provide many other benefits to our health, 

neighborhood safety, livability, and economy. 

I also support new dedicated funding for active transportation. Metro should lead by example by dedicating all 

eligible flexible federal funding to active transpoftation projects and using estimated climate benefits to determine 

which projects are prioritized. 

The Climate Smari Communities Preferred Approach should also deprioritize road widening and highway projects, 

as the climate benefit analysis found that these expenditures would result in a less than one percent reduction in 

emissions. Recommending $20.8 billion of spending on road projects likely overstates the region's real road 

funding priority, which is fixing and maintaining our existing roads, not building new or expanded roads and 

highways. 



Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 169 of 246

From: 
To: 
Subject: 
Date: 

Allison Plass 

Metro Climate Scenarios 

Climate Smart Communities Draft Approach 

Tuesday, October 21, 2014 2:25:13 PM 

I would like to provide feedback on the Climate Smart Communities Draft Approach. 

I support the recommended investments to make transit more frequent, reliable, accessible, and 

affordable. 

I want the region to invest more in making biking and walking safe and convenient. Biking and 

walking projects are inexpensive, create jobs, reduce greenhouse gas emissions, and provide many 

other benefits to our health, neighborhood safety, livability, and economy. 

I also support new dedicated funding for active transportation. Metro should lead by example by 

dedicating all eligible flexible federal funding to active transportation projects and using estimated 

climate benefits to determine which projects are prioritized. 

The Climate Smart Communities Preferred Approach should also deprioritize road widening and 

highway projects, as the climate benefit analysis found that these expenditures would result in a 

less than one percent reduction in emissions. Recommending $20.8 billion of spending on road 

projects likely overstates the region's real road funding priority, which is fixing and maintaining our 

existing roads, not building new or expanded roads and highways. 

Allison Plass - Graphic Design & Marketing Coordinator 

S/:,,\I FRf.\NCISCC 01\1<1 ("ND PCRTLf\NiJ 

djrect 503 416 j oJfice 503 973 515.1. I entol! 2p!~~ss(Q;rn\v;;:-:3tchltr:ct:;,c()rn 



Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 170 of 246

From: 
To: 
Subject: 
Date: 

Allan Rudwick 

Metro Climate Scenarios 

I would like to provide feedback on the Climate Smart Communities Draft Approach. 

Tuesday, October 21, 2014 12:44:39 PM 

To Whom it may concern: 

I support the recommended investments to make transit more frequent, reliable, accessible, and 

affordable. 

I want the region to invest more in making biking and walking safe and convenient. Biking and 

walking projects are inexpensive, create jobs, reduce greenhouse gas emissions, and provide 

many other benefits to our health, neighborhood safety, livability, and economy. 

I also support new dedicated funding foractive transportation. Metro should lead by example by 

dedicating all eligible flexible federal funding to active transportation projects and using estimated 

climate benefits to determine which projects are prioritized. 

The Climate Smart Communities Preferred Approach should also deprioritize road widening and 

highway projects, as the climate benefit analysis found that these expenditures would result in a 

less than one percent reduction in emissions. Recommending $20.8 billion of spending on road 

projects likely overstates the region's real road funding priority, which is fixing and maintaining 

our existing roads, not building new or expanded roads and highways. 

We're close to an ideal prioritization. A few changes will make it better 
Thank you 
Allan Rudwick 
228 NE Morris St, Portland OR 97212 

Allan Rudwick 
(503) 703-3910 



Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 171 of 246

From: 
To: 
Subject: 
Date: 

Adam Scherba 

Metro Climate Scenarios 

Climate smart communities and active transportation 

Tuesday, October 21, 20145:06:28 PM 

I would like to provide feedback on the Climate Smart Communities Draft Approach. 

I support the recomlnended investments to make transit more frequent, reliable, accessible, 
and affordable. 

I want the region to invest more in making biking and walking safe and convenient. Biking 
and walking projects are inexpensive, create jobs, reduce greenhouse gas emissions, and 
provide many other benefits to our health, neighborhood safety, livability, and econOlny. 

I also support new dedicated funding for active transportation. Metro should lead by example 
by dedicating all eligible flexible federal funding to active transportation projects and using 
estimated climate benefits to determine which projects are prioritized. 

The Climate Smart Communities Preferred Approach should also deprioritize road widening 
and highway projects, as the climate benefit analysis found that these expenditures would 
result in a less than one percent reduction in emissions. Recommending $20.8 billion of 
spending on road projects likely overstates the region's real road funding priority, which is 
fixing and maintaining our existing roads, not building new or expanded roads and highways. 

Thank you for considering this issue. 
-Adam Scherba, Portland, OR 



Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 172 of 246

From: 
To: 
Subject: 
Date: 

Chris Shaffer 

Metro Climate Scenarios 

Prioritize active transportation in Metro"s climate plan 

Tuesday, October 21, 20144:49:32 PM 

I would like to provide feedback on the Clilnate Smart Comlnunities Draft Approach. 

I support the recomlnended investments to Inake transit more frequent, reliable, accessible, 
and affordable. 

I want the region to invest more in making biking and walking safe and convenient. Biking 
and walking projects are inexpensive, create jobs, reduce greenhouse gas elnissions, and 
provide Inany other benefits to our health, neighborhood safety, livability, and econOlny. 

I also support new dedicated funding for active transportation. Metro should lead by example 
by dedicating all eligible flexible federal funding to active transportation projects and using 
estimated climate benefits to determine which projects are prioritized. 

The Climate Smart Communities Preferred Approach should also deprioritize road widening 
and highway projects, as the climate benefit analysis found that these expenditures would 
result in a less than one percent reduction in elnissions. RecOlnlnending $20.8 billion of 
spending on road projects likely overstates the region'S real road funding priority, which is 
fixing and maintaining our existing roads, not building new or expanded roads and highways. 



Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 173 of 246

From: 
To: 
Subject: 
Date: 

Metro Climate Scenarios 
Active Transportation should be priority to meet climate goals 

Tuesday, October 21,20147:59:24 PM 

1 would like to provide feedback on the Climate Smart Communities Draft Approach. 

I support the recommended investments to make transit more frequent, reliable, accessible. and affordable. 

I could continue with the cut/paste but I'm sure you're going to get a lot of 
that. 

Basically: Down with roads, fossil fuel dependency, and business as usual. 

Make changes now if you want to provide any kind of livable future for the 
next generation. . 

Sincerely, 
Katy Wolf 



Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 174 of 246

From: 
To: 
Subject: 
Date: 

Jeff Barna 

Metro Climate Scenarios 

Climate Smart.Com.munities Draft Approach 

Wednesday, October 22,20149:19:34 AM 

I would like to provide feedback on the Climate Smart Communities Draft Approach. 

I support the recommended investments to make transit more frequent, reliable, 

accessible, and affordable. 

I want the region to invest more in making biking and walking safe and convenient. 

Biking and walking projects are inexpensive, create jobs, reduce greenhouse gas 

emissions, and provide many other benefits to our health, neighborhood safety, 

livability, and economy. 

I also support new dedicated funding for active transportation. Metro should lead by 

example by dedicating all ,eligible flexible federal funding to active transportation 

projects and using estimated climate benefits to determine which projects are 

prioritized. 

The Climate Smart Communities Preferred Approach should also deprioritize road 

widening and highway projects, as the climate benefit analysis found that these 

expenditures would result in a less than one percent reduction in emissions. 

Recommending $20.8 billion of spending on road projects likely overstates the 

region's real road funding priority, which is fixing and maintaining our existing roads, 

not building new or expanded roads and highways. 

Regards; 
Jeff Barna 



Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 175 of 246

From: 
To: 
Subject: 
Date: 

Laura Belson 

Metro Climate Scenarios 

Climate Smart Communities Feedback 

Wednesday, October 22,2014 12:32:06 PM 

I would like to provide feedback on the Climate Smart Communities Draft 
. Approach. 

I support the recommended investments to make transit more frequent, 
reliable, accessible, and affordable. 

I want the region to invest more in making biking and walking safe and 
convenient. Biking and walking projects are inexpensive, create jobs, 
reduce greenhouse gas emissions, and provide many other benefits to om 
health, neighborhood safety, livability, and economy. 

I also support new dedicated funding for active transportation. Metro 
should lead by example by dedicating all eligible flexible federal 
funding to active transportation projects and using estimated climate 
benefits to detennine which projects are prioritized. 

The Climate Smart Communities Prefened Approach should also 
deprioritize road widening and highway projects, as the climate benefit 
analysis found that these expenditmes would result in a less than one 
percent reduction in emissions. Recommending $20.8 billion of spending 
on road projects likely overstates the region'S real road funding 
priority, which is fixing and maintaining om existing roads, not 
building new or expanded roads and highways. 



Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 176 of 246

From: 
To: 
Subject: 
Date: 

Stephen Bernal 

Metro Climate Scenarios 

Prioritize active transportation in Metro"s climate plan 

Wednesday, October 22,2014 4:28:39 AM 

I would like to provide feedback on the Climate Smart Communities Draft Approach. 

I support the recommended investments to make transit more frequent, reliable, accessible, and affordable. 

I want the region to invest more in making biking and walking safe and convenient. Biking and walking projects are 
inexpensive, create jobs, reduce greenhouse gas emissions, and provide many other benefits to om health, 
neighborhood safety, livability, and economy. 

I also support new dedicated funding for active transportation. Metro should lead by example by dedicating all 
eligible flexible federal funding to active transportation projects and using estimated climate benefits to determine 
which projects are prioritized. 

The Climate Smart Communities Prefened Approach should also deprioritize road widening and highway projects, 
as the climate benefit analysis found that these expenditures would result in a less than one percent reduction in 
emissions. Recommending $20.8 billion of spending on road projects likely overstates the region's real road 
funding priority, which is fixing and maintaining om existing roads, not building new or expanded roads and 
highways. 

Stephen Bernal 
NE Portland 



Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 177 of 246

From: 
To: 
Subject: 
Date: 

Christine Bierman 

Metro Climate Scenarios 

Prioritize active transportation in Metro"s climate plan . 

Wednesday, October 22,20146:21:21 AM 

I ,vould like to provide feedback on the Climate Smart Communities Draft Approach. 

I support the recomlTIended investments to make transit more frequent, reliable, accessible, 
and affordable. 

I want the region to invest more in making biking and walking safe and convenient. Biking 
and walking projects are inexpensive, create jobs, reduce greenhouse gas emissions, and 
provide many other benefits to our health, neighborhood safety, livability, andeCOnOlTIY. 

I also support new dedicated funding for active transportation. Metro should lead by example 
by dedicating all eligible flexible federal funding to active transportation projects and using 
estimated climate benefits to determine which projects are prioritized. 

The Climate Smart Communities Preferred Approach should also deprioritize road widening 
and highway projects, as the climate benefit analysis found that these expenditures would 
result in a less than one percent reduction in emissions. ReCOlTIlTIending$20.8 billion of 
spending on road projects likely overstates the region's real road funding priority, which is 
fixing and maintaining our existing roads, not building new or expanded roads and highways. 

Sent from my Verizon TYireless 4G LTE DROID 



Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 178 of 246

From: 
To: 
SUbject: 
Date: 

Dianne Ensign 

Metro Climate Scenarios 

Prioritize active transportation in Metro"s climate plan 

Wednesday, October 22, 2014 11:41:00 AM 

I would like to provide feedback on the Climate Smart Communities Draft 
Approach. 

I support the recommended investments to make transit more frequent, 
reliable, accessible, and affordable. 

I want the region to invest more in making biking and walking safe and 
convenient. Biking and walking projects are inexpensive, create jobs, 
reduce greenhouse gas emissions, and provide many other benetits to our 
health, neighborhood safety, livability, and economy. 

I also support new dedicated funding for active transportation. Metro 
should lead by example by dedicating all eligible flexible federal 
funding to active transportation projects and using estimated climate 
benefits to detennine which projects are prioritized. 

The Climate Smart Communities Prefen·ed Approach should also 
deprioritize road widening and highway projects, as the climate benefit 
analysis found that these expenditures would result in a less than one 
percent reduction in emissions. Recommending $20.8 billion of spending 
on road projects likely overstates the region's real road funding 
priority, which is fixing and maintaining our existing roads, not 
building new or expanded roads and highways. 

Thank you for considering my comments. 

Sincerely, 

Dianne Ensign 
Portland, OR 97219 



Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 179 of 246

From: 
To: 
Subject: 
Date: 

Tom Jeanne 

Metro Climate Scenarios 

Active transportation projects must be the region's first priority 

Wednesday, October 22, 2014 12:25:44 PM 

I would like to provide feedback on the Climate Smart Communities Draft Approach. 

I support the recommended investments to make transit more frequent, reliable, accessible, and 

affordable. 

I want the region to invest more in making biking and walking safe and convenient. Biking and 

walking projects are inexpensive, create jobs, reduce greenhouse gas emissions, and provide many 

other benefits to our health, neighborhood safety, livability, and economy. 

I also support new dedicated funding for active transportation. Metro should lead by example by 

dedicating all eligible flexible federal funding to active transportation projects and using estimated 

climate benefits to determine which projects are prioritized. 

The Climate Smart Communities Preferred Approach should also deprioritize road widening and 

highway projects, as the climate benefit analysis found that these expenditures would result in a 

less than one percent reduction in emissions. Recommending $20.8 billion of spending on road 

projects likely overstates the region's real road funding priority, which is fixing and maintaining our 

existing roads, not building new or expanded roads and highways. 

Tom 

Thomas L. Jeanne, MD 

PGY-3 Chief Resident, Preventive Medicine 

MPH Student, Epidemiology & Biostatistics 

Oregon Health & Science University 

Portland Veterans Affairs Medical Center 

608.628.6310 



Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 180 of 246

From: 
To: 
Subject: 
Date: 

Lundenbera Jay 

Metro Climate Scenarios 

Prioritize active transportation in Metro"s climate plan 

Wednesday, October 22, 2014 4:52:34 AM 

I would like to provide feedback on the Climate Smart Communities Draft Approach. 

I s~ppqrt the recommended investm·ents to make transit more frequent, reliable, accessible, 

and affordable. 

I want the region to invest more in making biking and walking safe and convenient. Biking and 

walking projects are inexpensive, create jobs, reduce greenhouse gas emissions, and provide 

many other benefits to our health, neighborhood safety, livability, and economy. 

I also support new dedicated funding for active transportation. Metro should lead by example 

by ,dedicating all eligible flexible federal funding to active transportation projects and using 

estimated climate benefits to determine which projects are prioritized. 

The Climate Smart Communities Preferred Approach should also deprioritize road widening 

and highway projects, as the climate benefit analysis found that these expenditures would 

result in a less than one percent reduction in emissions. Recommending $20.8 billion of 

spending on road projects likely overstates the region's real road funding priority, which is 

fixing and maintaining our existing roads, not building new or expanded roads and highways. 



Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 181 of 246

From: 
To: 
SUbject: 
Date: 

Matt Morrissey 

Metro Climate Scenarios 

Climate Smart Communities Draft 

Wednesday, October 22,20149:53:23 AM 

I would like to provide feedback on the Climate Smart Communities Draft Approach. 

I support the recommended investments to make transit more frequent, reliable, accessible, and affordable. 

I want the region to invest more in making biking and walking safe and convenient. Biking and walking projects are 
inexpensive, create jobs, reduce greenhouse gas emissions, and provide many other benefits to our health, 
neighborhood safety, livability, and economy. 

I also support new dedicated funding for active transportation. Metro should lead by example by dedicating all 
eligible flexible federal funding to active transportation projects and using estimated climate benefits to determine 
which projects are prioritized. 

The Climate Smart Communities Preferred Approach should also deprioritize road widening and highway projects, 
as the climate benefit analysis found that these expenditures would result in a less than one percent reduction in 
emissions. Recommending $20.8 billion of spending on road projects likely overstates the region's real road 
funding priority, which is fixing and maintaining our existing roads, not building new or expanded roads and 
highways. 

It's time to reverse the historic prioritization given to car users. 

Thanks for your consideration of this note. 
Dr Matthew C Morrissey 



Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 182 of 246

From: 
To: 
Subject: 
Date: 

Jennifer Noll 

Metro Climate Scenarios 

climate smart communities 

Wednesday, October 22, 2014 5:28:31 AM 

I would like to provide feedback on the Climate Smart Comll1unities Draft Approach. 

I support the recommended investments to make transit more frequent, reliable, accessible, and affordable. 

I want the region to invest more in making biking and walking safe and convenient. Biking and walking projects are 
inexpensive, create jobs, reduce greenhouse gas emissions, and provide many other benefits to our health, neighborhood 
safety, livability, and economy. 

I also support new dedicatedfundingfor active transportation. }.,fetro should lead by example by dedicating all eligible 
flexible federal funding to active transportation projects and using estimated climate benefits to de term ine which projects are 
prioritized. 

TIle Climate Smart Communities Preferred Approach should also de prioritize road widening and highway projects, as the 
climate benefit analysis found that these expenditures would result in a less than one percent reduction in emissions. 
Recommending $20.8 billion of spending on road projects likely overstates the region IS real road funding priority, which is 
fuing and mainta'ining our existing roads, not building new or expanded roads and highways. 

Jennifer Noll 
Assistant Professor 
Fariborz Maseeh Department of Mathematics and Statistics 
Portland State University 
503-725-3643 
noll@pdx.edu 



Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 183 of 246

From: 
To: 
Subject: 
Date: 

Drew Stevens 

Metro Climate Scenarios 

Climate Smart Communities Draft Approach 

Wednesday, October 22,201410:36:27 AM 

Dear Oregon Metro, 

I want to express my view that expanding mass transit and active transit options while 

simultaneously instituting disincentives for personal vehicle commuting is the best way Oregon 

Metro can positively impact our community's transit carbon footprint and reduce our contribution 

to global climate change. 

Following is a letter drafted by the BTA, which I fully support. 

I would like to provide feedback on the Climate Smart Communities Draft Approach. 

I support the recommended investments to make transit more frequent, reliable, accessible, and 

affordable. 

I want the region to invest more in making biking and walking safe and convenient. Biking and 

walking projects are inexpensive, create jobs, reduce greenhouse gas emissions, and provide many 

other benefits to our health, neighborhood safety, livability, and economy. 

I also support new dedicated funding for active transportation. Metro should lead by example by 

dedicating all eligible flexible federal funding to active transportation projects and using estimated 

climate benefits to determine which projects are prioritized. 

The Climate Smart Communities Preferred Approach should also deprioritize road widening and 

highway projects, as the climate benefit analysis found that these expenditures would result in a 

less than one percent reduction in emissions. Recommending $20.8 billion of spending on road 

projects likely overstates the region's real road funding priority, which is fixing and maintaining our 

existing roads, not building new or expanded roads and highways. 

Best Regards, 

Drew Stevens 

R&D Engineer 

Lensbaby LLC. 

Lensbaby.com 

p 503.278.3292 



Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 184 of 246

From: 
To: 
Subject: 
Date: 

Heidi Welte 

Metro Climate Scenarios 

Prioritize active transportation in Metro"s climate plan 

Wednesday, October 22,20146:00:19 PM 

I would like to provide feedback on the Climate Smart Communities Draft Approach. I support the 
recommended investments to make transit more frequent, reliable, accessible, and affordable. I want the 
region to invest more in making biking ~d walking safe and convenient. Biking and walking projects are 
inexpensive, create jobs, reduce greenhouse gas emissions, and provide many other benefits to our health, 
neighborhood safety, livability, and economy. I also support new dedicated funding for active 

. transportation. Metro should lead by example by dedicating all eligible flexible federal funding to active 
transportation projects and using estimated climate benefits to determine which projects are prioritized. The 
Climate Smart Communities Preferred Approach should also deprioritize road widening and highway 
projects, as the climate benefit analysis found that these expenditures would result in a less than one 
percent' reduction in emissions. Recommending $10.8 billion of spending on road projects likely overstates 
the region's real road funding priority, which is fixing and maintaining our existing roads, not building new 
or expanded roads and highways. 



Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 185 of 246

From: 
To: 
Subject: 
Date: 

Mac Martine 

Metro Climate Scenarios 

Climate Smart Communities 

Thursday, October 23,20147:36:51 AM 

I support the recommended investments to make transit more frequent, reliable, accessible, 
and affordable. 

I want the region to invest more in making biking and walking safe and convenient. Biking and 
walking projects are inexpensive, create jobs, reduce greenhouse gas emissions, and provide 
many other benefits to our health, neighborhood safety, livability, and economy. 

I also support new dedicated funding for active transportation. Metro should lead by example 
by dedicating all eligible flexible federal funding to active transportation projects and using 
estimated climate ben.efits to determine which projects are prioritized 

The Climate Smart Communities Preferred Approach should also deprioritize road widening 
and highway projects, as the climate benefit analysis found that these expenditures would 
result in a less than one percent reduction in emissions. Recommending $20.8 billion of 
spending on road projects likely overstates the region's real roadfunding priority, which is 
fixing and maintaining our existing roads, not building new or expanded roads and 
highways. 

-Mac Martine 
503.929.0757 



Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 186 of 246

From: 
To: 
Subject: 
Date: 

Brian Lockhart 

Metro Climate Scenarios 

Prioritize active transportation in Metro"s climate plan 

Friday, October 24, 2014 4:45:21 PM 

I would like to provide feedback on the Climate Smart Cor:nmunities Draft Approach. 

I support the recommended investments to make transit more frequent, reliable, accessible, 

and affordable. 

I want the region to invest more in making biking and walking safe and convenient. Biking and 

walking projects are inexpensive, create jobs, reduce greenhouse gas emissions, and provide 

many other benefits to our health, neighborhood safety, livability, and economy. 

I also support new dedicated funding for active transportation. Metro should lead by example 

by dedicating all eligible flexible federal funding to active transportation projects and using 

estimated climate benefits to determine which projects are prioritized. 

The Climate Smart Communities Preferred Approach should also deprioritize road widening 

and highway projects, as the climate benefit analysis found that these expenditures would 

result in a less than one percent reduction in emissions. Recommending $20.8 billion of 

spending on road projects likely overstates the region's real road funding priority, which is 

fixing and maintaining our existing roads, not building new or expanded roads and highways. 

Brian Lockhart 

2416 N E 43rd Avenue 

Portland, OR 97213 



Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 187 of 246

From: 
To: 
SUbject: 
Date: 

Maren Souders 

Metro Climate Scenarios 

Prioritize active transportation in Metro"s climate plan 

Friday, October 24,201412:05:07 AM 

I would like to provide feedback on the Climate Smart Communities Draft Approach. 

I supp011 the recommended investments to make transit more frequent, reliable, accessible, and affordable. 

I want the region to invest more in making biking and walking safe and convenient. Biking and walking projects are 
inexpensive, create jobs, reduce greenhouse gas emissions, and provide many other benefits to our health, 
neighborhood safety, livability, and economy. 

I also support new dedicated funding for active transportation. Metro should lead by example by dedicating all 
eligible flexible federal funding to active transportation projects and using estimated climate benefits to determine 
which projects are prioritized. 

The Climate SmaI1 Communities Prefened Approach should also deprioritize road widening aIId highway projects, 
as the climate benefit analysis found that these expenditures would result in a less than one percent reduction in 
emissions. Recommending $20.8 billion of spending on road projects likely overstates the region's real road 
funding priority, which is fixing and maintaining our existing roads, not building new or expaIIded roads and 
highways. 

"Everything you want is just outside your comfort zone." 
R. Allen 



Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 188 of 246

From: 
To: 
Subject: 
Date: 

Bill Vollmer 

Metro Climate Scenarios 

feedback on climate smart communities draft document 

Friday, October 24,20149:21:27 PM 

I support the region investing more in making biking and walking safe and convenient. Biking and walking projects are 
inexpensive, create jobs, reduce greenhouse gas emissions, and provide many other benefits to our health, neighborhood 
safety, livability, and economy. 

I also SUppOlt new dedicated umding for active transpOltation. Metro should lead by example by dedicating all eligible 
flexible federal fimding to active transpOltation projects and using estimated climate benefits to detennine which projects are 
prioritized. 

The Climate Smart Connnunities Preferred Approach should also deprioritize road widening and highway projects, as the 
climate benefit analysis found that these expenditures would result in a less than one percent reduction in emissions. 
Recommending $20.8 billion of spending on road projects likely overstates the region's real road umding priority, which is 
fixing and maintaining our existing roads, not building new or expanded roads and highways. 

Bill Vollmer 
cyclinguybill@glnail.com 



Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 189 of 246

From: 
To: 
Subject: 
Date: 

Stephanie Byrd 

Metro Climate Scenarios 

Climate Smart Communities Draft Approach 

Monday, October 27,20148:17:27 PM 

I would like to provide feedback on the Climate Smart Communities Draft Approach. 

I suppOIi the recommended investments to make transit more frequent, reliable, accessible, and affordable. 

I want the region to invest more in making biking and walking safe and convenient. Biking and walking projects are 
inexpensive, create jobs, reduce greenhouse gas emissions, and provide many other benefits to our health, 
neighborhood safety, livability, and economy. 

I also support new dedicated funding for active transpOIiation. Metro should lead by example by dedicating all 
eligible flexible federal funding to active transportation projects and using estimated climate benefits to determine 
which projects are prioritized. 

The Climate Smart Communities Preferred Approach should also deprioritize road widening and highway projects, 
as the climate benefit analysis found that these expenditures would result in a less than one percent reduction in 
emissions. Recommending $20.8 billion of spending on road projects likely overstates the region's real road 
funding priority, which is fixing and maintaining our existing roads, not building new or expanded roads and 
highways. 

Thank you, 

Stephanie Byrd 
SW Portland resident 



Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 190 of 246

From: 
To: 
Subject: 
Date: 

Dear Metro: 

John Carr 

Metro Climate Scenarios 

Feedback on the Climate Smart Communities Draft Approach 

Monday, October 27, 2014 10:13:39 AM 

Biking and walking go hand in hand with improved public transit. So while I want the 
Portland region to invest more in safe biking and walking options, this has to be paired with 
more accessible public transit. TriMet should be fareless to all users on all (or most) 
routes. Pay for it with increased taxes or by dedicating federal funding to the project. 

Short of pulling people into active transportation by opening up public transit, I would support 
new dedicated funding for active transportation. Metro should dedicate all eligible flexible 
federal funding to active transportation projects and use estilnated climate benefits to 

determine which projects are prioritized. 

I also strongly believe that The Climate Smart Communities Prefened Approach should not 
prioritize road widening and highway projects, as these aren't worth it from a climate 
perspective. If anything, they would spur the wrong kinds of growth for our region. Instead, 
we should lnaintain our cunent roads, use them more intelligently, and dedicate funds towards 
creating a more flexible, equitable transportation system. 

Sincerely, 
John Can 

2918 SE 67th Ave. 
Portland 97206 



Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 191 of 246

From: 
To: 
Cc: 

Peggy Morell 

Laura Dawson-Bodner 

Kim Ellis 

Subject: FW: Clackamas County Commission *seriously* wants to widen highways to "reduce" GHG emissions?!? 

Thursday, October 30,20141:41:02 PM Date: 

From: Carlotta Collette 
Sent: Thursday, October 30, 2014 12:41 PM 
To: Craig Dirksen; Kim Ellis; Peggy Morell 
Subject: Fwd: Clackamas County Commission *seriously* wants to widen highways to "reduce" GHG 
emissions?!? 

Comment on Climate Smart. 

Carlotta 

Begin forwarded message: 

From: Tim Davis <pdxfan@gmail com> 
Date: October 30, 2014 at 9:40:07 AM PDT 
To: Carlotta Collette <Carlotta.Collette@,oregomnetro.gov> 
Subject: Clackamas County Commission *seriously* wants to widen 
highways to "reduce" GHG emissions?!? 

Dear Carlotta Collette, 

This is Tim Davis, and I am appalled once again by the totally backward thinking 
coming out of Clackamas County. Building wider roads only creates MORE 
congestion and exacerbates climate change!! 

Please, *please* don't take their ridiculous request seriously. This report is all you 
need to very clearly refute their insane claim with actual science: 

http://v..'Ww.sightline.org/wp-content/uploads/downloads/2012/02/analysis-ghg
roads.pdf 

Ijust cannot believe that our region continues to embrace 1950s thinking that's 
been proven not just incorrect but incredibly hannful both to the planet and 
everyone living on it. Our UGB is also obscenely large, by the way; there is 
absolutely no way that most of the land area added to the UGB in the last round 
should have been included. 

We need to create a PEOPLE-friendly Inetro area--not one that's a slave to cars 
and parking. Ifwe do so, we will actually benefit ALL people, including those 
who get from A to B solely by driving! 

Thank you so much for your consideration, 
Tilll 



Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 192 of 246

From: 
To: 
Subject: 
Date: 

Timothy Holdaway 

Metro Climate Scenarios 

Prioritize active transportation 

Thursday, October 30,20141:05:40 PM 

I would like to provide feedback on the Climate Smart Communities Draft Approach. 

I support the recommended investments to make transit more frequent, reliable, accessible, and 
affordable. 

I want the region to invest more in making biking and walking safe and convenient. Biking and 
walking projects are inexpensive, create jobs, reduce greenhouse gas emissions, and provide 
many other benefits to our health, neighborhood safety, livability, and economy. 

I also support new dedicated funding for active transportation. Metro should lead by example by 
dedicating all eligible flexible federal funding to active transportation projects and using estimated 
climate benefits to determine which projects are prioritized. 

The Climate Smart Communities Preferred Approach should also deprioritize road widening and 
highway projects, as the climate benefit analysis found that these expenditures would result in a 
less than one percent reduction in emissions. Recommending $20.8 billion of spending on road 
projects likely overstates the region's real road funding priority, which is fixing and maintaining 
our existing roads, not building new or expanded roads and highways. 

Sincerely, 

Timothy Holdaway 

Portland, 97206 



Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 193 of 246

From: 
To: 
Subject: 
Date: 

Elijah Patton 

Metro Climate Scenarios 

Regional planning 

Thursday, October 30,2014 8:56:12 AM 

Dear Commissioners and Planners, 

Please stop making the car the king. I know most people rely on a car every day. But not 
nearlyall of those people have to use a car, they choose to do so. Ifwe invest more in walking 
biking and transit, then they will be easier choices to make. If we make mega highways that 
lnake it convenient for driving then people won't have incentiye to take the slow underfunded 
bus. Please make the right decision. 

Everyday I ride the bus home. It is full with 50 people. But we get stuck in traffic. Why? 
Personal vehicles with 1 person in them zooming off the freeway and past us into a traffic 
jam. Think about how much carbon we can offset if those people had other options than a 
new lane on freeway. We could instead build more rapid bus and separated safe bike lanes. 

I urge you to do the right thing. We the people are watching. We the people do vote. We the 
people will remelnber. We want cliInate justice. We want freedom from the car is king world. 
As a disabled veteran from the current fiasco I can tell you it isn't WOlih our blood. Let's get 
healthy and moving the old fashioned way. Let's take a walk and think about what is right for 
everybody. 

Thanks, 

Eli Patton 



Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 194 of 246

From: 
To: 
Subject: 
Date: 

Joe Vasicek 

Metro Climate Scenarios 

Feedback on Climate Smart Communities Draft Approach 

Thursday, October 30, 2014 10:08:27 AM 

I would like to provide feedback on the Climate Smart Communities Draft Approach. 

I support the recommended investments to make transit more frequent, reliable, accessible, 
and affordable. 

I want the region to invest more in making biking and walking safe and convenient. Biking and 
walking projects are inexpensive, create jobs, reduce greenhouse gas emissions, and provide 
many other benefits to our health, neighborhood safety, livability, and economy. 

I also support new dedicated funding for active transportation. Metro should lead by example 
by dedicating all eligible flexible federal funding to active transportation projects and using 
estimated climate benefits to determine which projects are prioritized 

The Climate Smart Communities Preferred Approach should also deprioritize road widening 
and highway projects, as the climate benefit analysis found that these expenditures would 
result in a Jess than one percent reduction in emissions. Recommending $20.8 billion of 
spending on road projects likely overstates the region's real roadfunding priority, which is 
fixing and maintaining our existing roads, not building new or expanded roads and highways. 



	  

	  

Appendix	  E.	  

	  

	  

Public	  comment	  period	  
snapshot	  

November	  2014	  

	   	  

Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 195 of 246



	  

Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 196 of 246



November 2014 

Draft Climate Smart Strategy 
Public comment period snapshot

What should leaders know?

Invest more in transit, 
walking & biking. Have a bold vision 

for the future.

2,350
SURVEY 
COMPLETIONS

11,581
ONLINE 
COMMENTS

90
LETTERS 
& EMAILS

43,311
SOCIAL MEDIA  

VIEWS

Over a 45-day period from Sept. 15 to Oct. 30, 2014, Metro asked residents of the 
Portland metropolitan region to look to the future. As the Climate Smart Communities 
Scenarios Project nears its December finish line for drafting an approach to reducing 
greenhouse gas emissions by the 2035 target set by the Oregon Legislature, it reached 
out to local stakeholders and the public once again as part of an ongoing three-year 
engagement effort.

To reach new audiences, Facebook advertising and a series of video clips promoting the 
public comment period were integrated with traditional methods of newspaper ads and 
email alerts. As a result, 2,350 people took the online survey, generating almost 12,000 
comments. Social media views topped 43,000, and 90 people took the time to review 
drafts of the proposed strategy and offer their line-edits and recommendations for 
implementation.

A summary of what was heard follows highlighting key themes that emerged from 
responses to the questions: Would you support more investment in our transportation 
system? What should be considered when deciding how to implement strategies to 
reduce greenhouse gas emissions? What message would you most like to convey to 
policymakers as they finalize their recommendation on a draft Climate Smart Strategy? 
A full report on the results of the public comment period will be available after Nov. 12, 
2014, at oregonmetro.gov/draftapproach.

The top three themes of the 1,800 messages survey respondents sent to policymakers are:

Spend tax dollars wisely.

Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 197 of 246



Should your community and our region 
invest more?

ETHNICITY

AGE

When asked, “Should your community and our region invest more in seven strategies 
that reduce greenhouse gas emissions and build healthy, equitable communities,” 
survey respondents voiced broad support for more investment in the region’s 
transportation system. The key themes that emerged from their almost 12,000 
comments were consistent with results of past stakeholder engagement efforts.

To learn more about the 
Climate Smart Scenarios 
project, visit  
oregonmetro.gov/
climatescenarios

Who we 
heard from

No answer
People of color

White

0 100 200 300 400 500 600 700 800

35 or 
younger

36 to 50

51 to 65
66 or 
older

TECHNOLOGY STREETS & 
HIGHWAYS

TRANSIT PARKING 
POLICIES

MAINTENANCE 
& NEW 
IMPROVEMENTS INFO & 

INCENTIVES

BIKING & 
WALKING

• Improve traffic flow with cost-
effective tools such as traffic 
signal timing, yellow turn 
arrows, etc.

• Use technology to support 
biking, walking, carpooling 
and transit

• Provide frequent, reliable 
service to reduce travel times

• Expand network for greater 
access, especially in smaller 
communities

• Improve safety and access to 
transit

• Build a complete active 
transportation network of 
sidewalks and bike lanes 
connected to transit

• Improve safety for all modes 
of travel

• Make the most of available 
funding and ensure users pay 
their fair share

• Maintain and widen roads to 
improve traffic flow

• Invest more in bike paths, 
sidewalks and transit

• Make safety a priority

• Adequately maintain & 
repair existing roads

• Reduce congestion 

Divergent opinions on parking:

• Provide more free parking

• Make it more expensive to 
park

But shared concern about:

• Spill-over parking from new 
development

• Invest more to inform travelers 
about travel options for getting 
around

• Fund system improvements 
over spending on education 
and marketing 

• Offer incentives for using 
travel options through reward 
programs

Printed on recycled-content paper.  
Nov. 6, 2014. Job 15246.

Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 198 of 246



	  

Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 199 of 246



	  

	  

Appendix	  F.	  

	  

	  

Summary	  of	  
recommended	  changes	  

as	  of	  Dec.	  3,	  2014	  
This	  log	  reflects	  staff	  recommendations	  that	  are	  subject	  to	  review	  and	  refinement	  
by	  Metro's	  technical	  and	  policy	  advisory	  committees.	  Recommendations	  may	  be	  
change	  or	  refined	  through	  the	  advisory	  committee	  and	  adoption	  process.	  

	   	  

Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 200 of 246



	  

Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 201 of 246



Updated 12/09/14
MTAC and TPAC Recommendation on Comments Received

1 of 43

# Exhibit Comment Source(s) Date Recommendation
1 Climate Smart 

Strategy (Exhibit 
A)

Add a description of the Statewide 
Transportation Strategy and state fleet 
and technology assumptions included in 
the Climate Smart Strategy in the 
document to provide broader context of 
the relationship of the Climate Smart 
Strategy to state actions.

Angus Duncan, 
Drive Oregon

10/2/14, 
10/28/14

2 Climate Smart 
Strategy (Exhibit 
A)

Support state efforts to transition to 
cleaner, low carbon fuels, more fuel-
effiicient vehicles and transit fleet 
upgrades.

Oregon Health 
Authority

10/7/14

3 Climate Smart 
Strategy (Exhibit 
A)

Support active transportation and transit 
levels of investment, but deprioritize 
road widening and highways projects 
given the relative low greenhouse gas 
emissions reduction. Recommending 
$20.8 billion of spending on road 
projects likely overstates the regions real 
road funding priority, which is fixing and 
maintaining existing roads, not building 
new or expanded roads and highways.

BTA and 45 
community 
members

10/21-
10/30/14

4 Climate Smart 
Strategy (Exhibit 
A)

Prioritize expanding transit and providing 
travel information and incentives to 
reduce VMT and encourage active 
modes.

Oregon Health 
Authority

10/7/14

5 Climate Smart 
Strategy (Exhibit 
A)

Rather than a blanket statement of 
prioritizing transit, local governments 
within transportation corridors needs to 
prioritize improvements. While transit 
may be a priority where there is a 
complete road network, in other 
locations completing road connections 
may be a prerequisite to transit. Simply 
stating that transit is a funding priority is 
too simplistic given the diversity and 
complexity of the region.

City of Hillsboro 10/30/14

Comments On the Climate Smart Strategy (Exhibit A)

The public review drafts of the Climate Smart Strategy (Exhibit A), Regional Framework Plan Amendments (Exhibit B), Toolbox of Possible 
Actions (2015-20) (Exhibit C) and Performance Monitoring Approach (Exhibit D) were released for final public review from Sept. 15 to Oct. 
30, 2014. The Short List of Actions for 2015 and 2016 (Exhibit E) was developed from Exhibit C by TPAC and MTAC for consideration by 
MPAC, JPACT and the Metro Council.

Metro's technical and policy advisory committees discussed and identified potential refinements to the public review materials at their 
October and November meetings. Public agencies, advocacy groups and members of the public submitted comments in writing, through 
Metro's website and in testimony provided at a public hearing held by the Metro Council on Oct. 30, 2014. 

This document summarizes recommended changes to respond to all substantive comments received during the comment period and 
subsequent advisory committee discussions. New wording is shown in bold underline; deleted words are bold crossed out. Wording in 
unbolded underline text was included in the public review drafts of each exhibit. Amendments identified below are reflected in Exhibits A-E to 
Ordinance No. 14-1346A.

Climate Smart Communities Scenarios Project
Summary of Recommended Changes
(comments received Sept. 15 through Oct. 30, 2014 and subsequent advisory committee discussions)

Amend Exhibit A as requested to add a 
description of the Statewide 
Transportation Strategy and state fleet 
and technology assumptions included in 
the Climate Smart Strategy.

In addition, the Toolbox of Possible 
Actions identifies specific actions that the 
state, Metro, local government and 
special districts are encouraged to take to 
support Oregon's transition to cleaner, 
low carbon fuels, more fuel-effiicient 
vehicles and transit fleet upgrades.

No change recommended to Exhibit A. 
See also recommendation for Comment 
#15 in Exhibit B comments section.

Comments 3 and 4 have been forward to 
the Regional Transportation Plan (RTP) 
project team. The next scheduled update 
to the RTP will provide the forum for 
reviewing the plan's investment priorities 
within the context of updated financial 
assumptions, a new growth forecast, 
updated ODOT, TriMet and local TSP 
priorities, new policy guidance from the 
state or federal level, and the more 
comprehensive set of outcomes the RTP 
is working to achieve. 

Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 202 of 246



Updated 12/09/14
MTAC and TPAC Recommendation on Comments Received

2 of 43

# Exhibit Comment Source(s) Date Recommendation
6 Climate Smart 

Strategy (Exhibit 
A)

Adding High Capacity Transit (HCT) in 
Tigard will NOT significantly reduce 
congestion now or in the future.

John Smith 9/19/14 No change recommended to Exhibit A . 

This comment has been forwarded to the 
Southwest Corridor project team for 
consideration in the planning process 
currently underway. SW Corridor Study 
recommendations will be incorporated in 
the Regional Transportation Plan.

7 Climate Smart 
Strategy (Exhibit 
A)

20% by 2035 is ridiculous too slow. We 
should be doing 20% by 2015. The 
Germans have reduced their emissions 
by 25%. The planet is cooking. By 2035, 
will we even be here? How can we 
speed this up? Set higher reductions.

Karen Davis 9/19/14 No change recommended to Exhibit A.  

The Climate Smart Strategy, when 
implemented, will result in a 29% 
reduction by 2035.  

8 Climate Smart 
Strategy (Exhibit 
A)

Adopt and implement investments and 
strategies that reduce per capita VMT 
from 130 to less than 107 miles per 
week.

Oregon Health 
Authority

10/7/14 No change needed to Exhibit A. 

The Climate Smart Strategy as proposed 
is expected to achieve these VMT per 
capita reductions when implemented.

9 Climate Smart 
Strategy (Exhibit 
A)

Protect communities who live, work and 
attend school near highways and major 
roads through siting, design and/or 
mechanical systems that reduce indoor 
pollution.

Oregon Health 
Authority

10/7/14 No change recommended to Exhibit A. 
This comment has been forwarded to 
RTP project staff for consideration in the 
next scheduled plan update. 

While this is an important issue that 
needs to be addressed, policies and best 
practices should be developed through 
other efforts such as the Regional 
Transportation Plan. Noise pollution is 
another related issue.

10 Climate Smart 
Strategy (Exhibit 
A)

Commuter rail between Salem and 
Portland is needed; existing vanpools 
are not frequent enough and get stuck in 
traffic.

Mike DeBlasi 10/16/14 No change recommended to Exhibit A.   

This strategy is idientified in the Toolbox 
of Possible Actions (Exhibit B). The 2014 
RTP and Oregon Statewide 
Transportation Strategy (STS) includes a 
policy to support expanded commuter rail 
and intercity transit service to neighboring 
communities. Analysis completed in 2010 
as part of the High Capacity Transit 
(HCT) plan showed the Portland to 
Salem/Keizer area as the most promising 
of the commuter rail corridors evaluated. 
Responding to House Bill 2408, ODOT 
and other partners are currently 
developing proposals to improve the 
speed, frequncy and reliability of 
passenger rail service in this corridor and 
beyond. Improvements are anticipated in 
the 2017-2020 time period. More 
information can be found at 
http://www.oregonpassengerrail.org

Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 203 of 246



Updated 12/09/14
MTAC and TPAC Recommendation on Comments Received

3 of 43

# Exhibit Comment Source(s) Date Recommendation
11 Climate Smart 

Strategy (Exhibit 
A)

Find opportunities to add references on 
the need to prepare for and adapt to the 
changing climate and begin work to 
address climate preparation at a 
regional level building on the Climate 
Smart Communities work and other work 
completed by the City of Portland and 
Multnomah County, which can be found 
at: www.portlandoregon.gov/bps/64079

Urban 
Greenspaces 

Institute, 
Coalition for A 
Livable Future, 

Citizen's 
Climate Lobby

10/27/14, 
10/30/14, 
10/30/14

Amend Exhibit A as follows: 

Include references on the expected 
climate impacts in Oregon and the need 
for both mitigation and adaption 
strategies. In addition, updates to Metro's 
Best Practices in Street Design 
handbooks in 2015 and the next RTP 
update present opportunities to further 
address climate preparation as it relates 
to transportation infrastructure. Staff will 
begin scoping the work plan for the next 
scheduled update to the RTP in 2015. 
The update is expected to occur over 
multiple years in order to address federal 
and state planning requirements and 
policy considerations and engagement 
recommendations identified through the 
Climate Smart Communities effort and 
the 2014 RTP update. 

Amend Exhibit A as follows:  

Clarify the transit element allows for local 
or supplemental service such as the 
South Metro Area Regional Transit 
(SMART) district and the GroveLink 
service in Forest Grove to complement 
regional transit service. 

In this example, Ride Connection 
partnered with TriMet and the city of 
Forest Grove to operate this 
supplemental local service. The service 
need was identified through TriMet's 
Westside Service Enhancement Plan 
effort and past planning by the City of 
Forest Grove. TriMet will continue 
working with local governments, 
businesses and other partners to develop 
a SEP for other parts of the regionthat 
identify and prioritize opportunities to 
improve bus service as well as pedestrian 
and bike access to transit. SEP 
recommendations will be addressed as 
part of the next update to the RTP.  

More information about the SEPs can be 
found at future.trimet.org

10/22/1412 Clackmas 
County Board of 
Commissioners

Assure the Climate Smart Communities 
Strategy provides opportunity to 
experiment and innovate with local or 
supplemental transit service, such as the 
GroveLink service in Forest Grove.

Climate Smart 
Strategy (Exhibit 
A)

Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 204 of 246



Updated 12/09/14
MTAC and TPAC Recommendation on Comments Received

4 of 43

# Exhibit Comment Source(s) Date Recommendation
13 Climate Smart 

Strategy (Exhibit 
A)

The Climate Smart Strategy, Toolbox, 
Performance Monitoring and Early 
actions should all be aligned to prioritize 
investments in transit and active 
transportation. These investments will 
have the greatest greenhouse gas 
emissions reductions, provide multiple 
social, environmental and economic 
benefits and have strong public support.

Transportation 
Justice Alliance

10/30/14 No change recommended to Exhibits A, 
B, C and D. 

While the analysis and other national 
research show these investments do 
have the greatest greenhouse gas 
emissions reduction potential, provide 
multiple benefits and have strong public 
support, addressing climate change is 
one of six desired outcomes the region is 
working to achieve. The six desired 
outcomes are: economic prosperity, 
vibrant communities, safe and reliable 
transportation, equity, clean air and water 
and leadership on climate change. 
Therefore, the strategy, toolbox, 
performance monitoring and early actions 
include a balanced approach that 
implements adopted local and regional 
plans, and provides for locally-tailored 
implementation approaches.

14 Maintain an emphasis on increased 
highway capacity as a method of 
reducing greenhouse gas emissions and 
ensure the region has the ability to 
continue investing in highway capacity

Climate Smart 
Strategy (Exhibit 
A)

No change recommended to Exhibit A. 
See also recommendation on Comment 
#19.

The Climate Smart Strategy includes 
priority street and highway investments 
adopted in local plans and the Financially 
Constrained 2014 Regional 
Transportation Plan (RTP) as part of a  
balanced approach to support vibrant 
communities and economic prosperity 
and planned development in the region's 
centers, corridors and employment areas.

Increasing highway capacity to reduce 
congestion (and related greenhouse gas 
emissions) does not have a lasting 
impact on reducing greenhouse gas 
emissions due to advancements in fleet 
and technology (e.g., low carbon fuels, 
electric and plug-inhybrid electric 
vehicles) and the unintended effect of 
inducing additional vehicle miles traveled 
(called latent demand). This effect was 
shown in the CSC results and has been  
through national research. More 
information can be found at 
http://www.sightline.org/wp-
content/uploads/downloads/2012/02/anal
ysis-ghg-roads.pdf and 
www.arb.ca.gov/cc/sb375/policies/hwyca
pacity/highway_capacity_brief.pdf.

10/22/14, 
10/30/14

Clackamas 
County Board of 
Commissioners, 
City of Happy 
Valley

Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 205 of 246



Updated 12/09/14
MTAC and TPAC Recommendation on Comments Received

5 of 43

# Exhibit Comment Source(s) Date Recommendation

16 Climate Smart 
Strategy (Exhibit 
A)

Concern that future funding will be 
directed by what supports Metro goals, 
not local goals 

Need a better roadmap of future funding 
discussions and who/how priorities will 
be determined if region is not able to 
secure funding needed to implement 
strategy

Should not pursue new projects; focus 
on funding existing priorities 

Mayor Tim 
Knapp, Cities of 
Clackamas 
County 
Dick Jones, 
Clackamas 
County Special 
Districts
Jim Bernards, 
Clackamas 
County 
Commissioner

11/7/14 This comment was addressed in part in 
the staff recommendation on Comments 
# 3-5 in this section.

Based on the November 7 discussion, 
staff recommends amending Exhibit A to 
include a discussion on funding-related 
implementation 

Climate Smart 
Strategy (Exhibit 
A)

15 Funding of the strategy needs more 
explanation to ensure the project meets 
OAR 660-044-0040(2)(i) given that the 
strategy relies on new investments and 
funding sources to meet the target. It is 
important for the region to not over 
commit funding we do not have.

No change recommended to Exhibit A.

OAR 660-044-0040(2)(i) provides that “if 
the preferred scenario relies on new 
investments or funding sources to 
achieve the target,” then Metro shall 
“evaluate the feasibility of the new 
investments or funding sources.”  

The overall cost identified for the 
preferred scenario is $24 billion over 25 
years, which is $5 billion less than the 
$29 billion in funding identified in the 
2014 RTP.  The $29 billion in funding 
identified in the 2014 RTP includes the 
same assumptions regarding funding 
sources that were adopted by JPACT and 
the Metro Council in 2010 for purposes of 
developing a funding target for the 2035 
RTP.  Therefore, these are not “new” 
funding sources, but are the same 
sources adopted by JPACT and the 
Metro Council in 2010, and again in 2014, 
for purposes of describing full RTP 
funding.

10/30/14City of Hillsboro

Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 206 of 246



Updated 12/09/14
MTAC and TPAC Recommendation on Comments Received

6 of 43

# Exhibit Comment Source(s) Date Recommendation
Amend page 12 of Exhibit A to broad 
explanation of how climate benefit 
ratings, in combination with fiscal, 
economic, equity, public health, 
transportation and environmental criteria 
and public input, informed development 
of the Climate Smart Strategy and will 
continue to inform future implementation 
and investment decisions.

The generalized climate benefit ratings 
were developed to provide qualitative 
information for policymakers to consider 
when comparing the different strategies 
and investments under discussion. 
The ODOT model used for the Climate 
Smart Communities analysis (and that 
ODOT used for their Statewide 
Transportation Strategy) accounts for the 
synergies between the policy areas and 
other variables, including vehicle miles 
traveled (VMT), fuel consumption, fleet 
mix, vehicle technology as well as the 
location of future growth.

It is important to note that the ratings are 
consistent with national and academic 
research that has been completed by 
others, including the University of 
California. The UC research, in particular, 
was developed in partnership with the 
California Air Resources Board to inform 
similar GHG planning work being 
conducted by each of California's MPOs 
and reflects the most current research on 
this particular topic. Policy briefs are also 
available at: 
http://arb.ca.gov/cc/sb375/policies/policie
s.htm

11/7/14Jim Bernards, 
Clackamas 
County 
Commissioner

Remove greenhouse gas emissions 
reduction star ratings from document

Climate Smart 
Strategy (Exhibit 
A)

17

Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 207 of 246



Updated 12/09/14
MTAC and TPAC Recommendation on Comments Received

7 of 43

# Exhibit Comment Source(s) Date Recommendation
18

This is addressed in part in the staff 
recommendation on Comment #14 of this 
section.  Additional context  on the 
region's approach to managing 
congestion is provided below in response 
to November 7 discussion.

The region's congestion management 
approach was developed in 2000, as part 
of the Regional Transportation Plan 
update, and includes all of the policies, 
investments and strategies 
recommended in the Climate Smart 
Strategy, including strategically adding 
capacity to the region’s arterial streets 
and highways. 

The Climate Smart Strategy, including 
nearly $21 billion to maintain and expand 
the existing arterial street and highway 
network, $12.4 billion for transit capital 
and service enhancements, $2 billion for 
active transportation and $400 million for 
system and demand management 
programs and investments to make the 
most of the existing transportation 
system.

There continues to be strong support for 
the mobility policy adopted at that time 
and it has since been adopted in state 
plans and policies. The region continues 
to focus on using ITS and other 
technologies to better manage roads for 
reliability, better street connectivity, 
building freeway overcrossings to 
improve community circulation, 
strategically addressing bottlenecks and 
expanding capacity to streets and 
highways, expanding transit, improving 
multi-modal safety and completing the 
region’s bicycle and pedestrian networks. 

11/7/14Paul Savas, 
Clackamas 
County 
Commissioner

Strategy lacks commitment to 
addressing congestion and funding road 
projects as part of the region’s 
greenhouse gas emissions reduction 
strategy

19 Climate Smart 
Strategy (Exhibit 
A)

No change to Exhibit A recommended. 

This assumption was included in the 
2035 growth distribution adopted by the 
Metro Council in 2012 by Ordinance No. 
12-1292A and was used for purposes of 
analysis to serve as the land use 
assumptions to reflect “adopted local and 
regional land use plans.” 

A footnote at the bottom of Page 10 of the 
staff report states “The adopted 2035 
growth distribution reflects locally 
adopted comprehensive plans and zoning 
as of 2010 and assumes an estimated 
12,000 acres of urban growth boundary 
expansion by 2035. Metro’s assumption 
about UGB expansion is not intended as 
a land use decision authorizing an 
amendment through this ordinance.  
Instead, the assumption about UGB 
expansion is included for purposes of 
analysis to assure that UGB expansion – 
if subsequently adopted by Metro and 
approved by LCDC – would be consistent 
with regional efforts to reduce 
greenhouse gas emissions. Review of 
any UGB expansion will occur through 
the UGB Amendment process provided 
for by ORS 197.626(a) and OAR Chapter 
660, Division 24.

11/7/14Jeff Gudman, 
City of Lake 
Oswego

Urban growth boundary assumptions 
(12,000 acres) included in the draft 
strategy seems overly large given the 
amount of time it has taken to make past 
expansions development-ready

Climate Smart 
Strategy (Exhibit 
A)

Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 208 of 246



Updated 12/09/14
MTAC and TPAC Recommendation on Comments Received

8 of 43

# Exhibit Comment Source(s) Date Recommendation

20 Climate Smart 
Strategy (Exhibit 
A)

Add implementing local transportation 
system plans to toolbox and strategy

Paul Savas, 
Clackamas 
County 
Commissioner

11/7/14 Amend toolbox (Exhibit C)  as requested 
and amend Exhibit A to more clearly 
describe that local transportation system 
plans (and local land use plans) are 
components of the Climate Smart 
Strategy.

See also recommendation on Comment 
#63 in the Exhibit C section.

End of comments and recommended changes to Exhibit A

This is addressed in part in the staff 
recommendation on Comment #14 of this 
section.  Additional context  on the 
region's approach to managing 
congestion is provided below in response 
to November 7 discussion.

The region's congestion management 
approach was developed in 2000, as part 
of the Regional Transportation Plan 
update, and includes all of the policies, 
investments and strategies 
recommended in the Climate Smart 
Strategy, including strategically adding 
capacity to the region’s arterial streets 
and highways. 

The Climate Smart Strategy, including 
nearly $21 billion to maintain and expand 
the existing arterial street and highway 
network, $12.4 billion for transit capital 
and service enhancements, $2 billion for 
active transportation and $400 million for 
system and demand management 
programs and investments to make the 
most of the existing transportation 
system.

There continues to be strong support for 
the mobility policy adopted at that time 
and it has since been adopted in state 
plans and policies. The region continues 
to focus on using ITS and other 
technologies to better manage roads for 
reliability, better street connectivity, 
building freeway overcrossings to 
improve community circulation, 
strategically addressing bottlenecks and 
expanding capacity to streets and 
highways, expanding transit, improving 
multi-modal safety and completing the 
region’s bicycle and pedestrian networks. 

11/7/14Paul Savas, 
Clackamas 
County 
Commissioner

Strategy lacks commitment to 
addressing congestion and funding road 
projects as part of the region’s 
greenhouse gas emissions reduction 
strategy

19 Climate Smart 
Strategy (Exhibit 
A)

Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 209 of 246



Updated 12/09/14
MTAC and TPAC Recommendation on Comments Received

9 of 43

# Exhibit Comment Source(s) Date Recommendation

1 Regional 
Framework Plan 
Amendments 
(Exhibit B)

Chapter 1, page 2, Objective 1.1.4 - 
revise to read "Incent and encourage 
elimination of unnecessary barriers to 
compact, mixed-use, pedestrian-friendly 
and transit-supportive development 
within Centers, Corridors, Station 
Communities and Main Streets."

Mayor Neeley, 
MPAC member

10/22/14 Amend as requested.

2 Regional 
Framework Plan 
Amendments 
(Exhibit B)

Chapter 1, page 2, Objective 1.1.4 - 
revise to read "Encourage elimination of 
unnecessary barriers to compact, mixed-
use, pedestrian- and bicycle-friendly 
and transit-supportive development 
within Centers, Corridors, Station 
Communities and Main Streets."  for 
consistency with 2014 RTP policy 
language.

Metro staff 10/22/14 Amend as requested.

3 Regional 
Framework Plan 
Amendments 
(Exhibit B)

Chapter 1, page 3, Objective 1.10.(c)(ii) - 
revise to read "Makes biking and walking 
the most convenient and  safe and 
enjoyable transportation choices for 
short trips, encourages transit use and 
reduces auto dependence and related 
greenhouse gas emissions" for 
consistency with 2014 RTP policy 
language.

Metro staff 10/22/14 Amend as requested.

4 Regional 
Framework Plan 
Amendments 
(Exhibit B)

Chapter 1, page 3, Objective 1.10.(c)(iii) - 
revise to read "Provides access to 
neighborhood and community parks, 
trails, and walkways, bikeways and 
other recreation and cultural areas and 
public facilities"  for consistency with 
2014 RTP policy language.

Metro staff 10/22/14 Amend as requested.

5 Regional 
Framework Plan 
Amendments 
(Exhibit B)

Chapter 1, page 3, Objective 1.10.(c)(iii) - 
revise to read "Provides access to 
neighborhood and community parks, 
trails, schools, and walkways, and other 
recreation and cultural areas and public 
facilities" to acknowledge the importance 
of providing access to schools.

Ruth Adkins, 
MPAC member

10/22/14 Amend as requested.

6 Regional 
Framework Plan 
Amendments 
(Exhibit B)

Chapter 2, page 3, revise 6th bullet to 
read, "Provide access to more and 
better choices for travel in this region 
and serve special access needs for all 
people, including youth, elderly, 
seniors and disabled people with 
disabilities and low incomes." for 
consistency with 2014 RTP policy 
language.

Metro staff 10/22/14 Amend as requested.

7 Regional 
Framework Plan 
Amendments 
(Exhibit B)

Chapter 2, page 3, revise 10th bullet to 
read, "Make walking and bicycling the 
most safe and convenient, safe and 
enjoyable transportation choices for 
short trips." for consistency with 2014 
RTP policy language.

Metro staff 10/22/14 Amend as requested.

Comments on Regional Framework Plan Amendments (Exhibit B)

Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 210 of 246



Updated 12/09/14
MTAC and TPAC Recommendation on Comments Received

10 of 43

# Exhibit Comment Source(s) Date Recommendation
8 Regional 

Framework Plan 
Amendments 
(Exhibit B)

Chapter 2, page 3, revise 11th bullet to 
read, "Limit dependence on any single 
mode of driving alone travel and 
increase biking, walking, carpooling and 
vanpooling and use of transit." to provide 
more clarity.

Metro staff 10/22/14 Amend as requested.

9 Regional 
Framework Plan 
Amendments 
(Exhibit B)

Chapter 2, page 4, revise objective 2.1 
to read, "Provide for reliable and efficient 
multi-modal local, regional, interstate 
and intrastate travel and market area 
access through a seamless and well-
connected system of throughways, 
arterial streets, freight services, transit 
services and bicycle and pedestrian 
facilities." to recognize importance of 
local travel and accessiblity.

Metro staff 10/22/14 Amend as requested.

10 Regional 
Framework Plan 
Amendments 
(Exhibit B)

Chapter 2, page 5, revise objective 3.3 
to read, "Provide affordable and 
equitable access to travel choices and 
serve the needs of all people and 
businesses, including people with low 
incomes, childrenyouth, elders older 
adults and people with disabilities, to 
connect with jobs, education, services, 
recreation, social and cultural activities." 
for consistency with 2014 RTP policy 
language.

Metro staff 10/22/14 Amend as requested.

11 Regional 
Framework Plan 
Amendments 
(Exhibit B)

Chapter 2, Page 8, Objective 11.1 - 
Delete last bullet on demonstrating 
leadership on climate change given it is 
repetitive with the goal statement.

MTAC 10/15/14 Amend as requested.

12 Regional 
Framework Plan 
Amendments 
(Exhibit B)

Chapter 2, Page 8, Objective 11.1 - 
Delete reference to “regional plans and 
functional plans adopted by the Metro 
Council for local governments” because 
this is already defined in Chapter 8 
(Implementation) of the RFP.

MTAC 10/15/14 Amend as requested.

13 Regional 
Framework Plan 
Amendments 
(Exhibit B)

Chapter 2, • Page 8, Objective 11.1 - 
Add reference to alternative fuel vehicles 
and fueling stations as part of supporting 
Oregon’s transition to cleaner, low 
carbon fuels and more fuel efficient 
vehicle technologies.

MTAC 10/15/14 Amend as requested.

14 Regional 
Framework Plan 
Amendments 
(Exhibit B)

Chapter 2, Page 8, Objective 11.1 - 
Revise sub-bullet listed under 3rd bullet 
to read "Making bikingbiking and 
walking the safemost and convenient, 
safe and enjoyable transportation 
choices for short trips and for all ages 
and abilities by completing gaps and 
addressing deficiencies in the region’s 
pedestrian and bicycle networks of 
sidewalks and bike paths that 
connect people to their jobs, schools 
and other destinations;" for 
consistency with 2014 RTP policy 
language.

Metro staff 10/22/14 Amend as requested.

Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 211 of 246



Updated 12/09/14
MTAC and TPAC Recommendation on Comments Received

11 of 43

# Exhibit Comment Source(s) Date Recommendation

16 Regional 
Framework Plan 
Amendments 
(Exhibit B)

Chapter 2, Page 9, Objective 11.2 – 
delete bullet with reference to the 
Oregon Modeling Steering Committee 
because this seems to be unnecessary 
detail for a policy document.

MTAC 10/15/14 Amend as requested.

No change to Exhibit B recommended. 
This comment has been forwarded to the 
Metro staff responsible for the 
Community Development Grant Program 
(CDPG) and Regional Flexible Fund 
Allocation (RFFA) processes. 

Chapter 8 of the Framework Plan 
provides language linking policies and 
funding. Specifically Section 8.2.1 states 
that “In formulating the Regional Funding 
and Fiscal Policies, the following should 
be considered: (a) General regional 
funding and fiscal policies which support 
implementation of this Plan and related 
functional plans including but not limited 
to a policy requiring Metro, in approving 
or commenting on the expenditure of 
regional, state, and federal monies in the 
metropolitan area, to give priority to 
programs, projects and expenditures that 
support implementation if this Plan and 
related functional plans unless there are 
compelling reasons to do otherwise.”  

Additionally, the Metropolitan 
Transportation Improvement Program 
2015-18 Report states “Efforts currently 
being undertaken at the federal level and 
in the... region will become policy 
frameworks to provide direction for future 
cycles of the MTIP.” Climate Smart 
Communities is identified as one of the 
policy frameworks and “The development 
of the next MTIP cycle will incorporate 
recommended strategies from the 
Climate Smart Communities project.” 

JPACT and the Metro Council provide 
policy direction for prioritizing allocation of 
the federal flexible funds at the beginning 
of each RFFA cycle. The next CBDG 
cycle and RFFA cycle (and policy update) 
will begin in 2015. 

15 Regional 
Framework Plan 
Amendments 
(Exhibit B)

Chapter 2, Page 8, Objective 11.2 - 
Policy language should be more direct 
and aspirational about linkages between 
the policies that reduce greenhouse gas 
emissions and Metro funding, such as 
the Community Development Grant 
Program and Regional Flexible Fund 
Allocation (RFFA) process. Use GHG 
emissions reduction as a filter for 
awarding funding to demonstrate 
leadership on climate change.

Community 
leaders 
meeting, MTAC, 
1000 Friends of 
Oregon

10/1/14, 
10/15/14, 
10/22/14

Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 212 of 246



Updated 12/09/14
MTAC and TPAC Recommendation on Comments Received

12 of 43

# Exhibit Comment Source(s) Date Recommendation
17 Regional 

Framework Plan 
Amendments 
(Exhibit B)

Chapter 2, Page 9, Objective 11.3 – add 
reference to Toolbox of Possible Actions 
in policy statement and delete sub-
bullets listing examples of possible 
actions because the actions are 
voluntary and could appear to be 
defacto priorities or criteria for funding 
eligibility. In addition, the level of policy 
detail for Goal 11 is much greater than 
other Chapter 2 goals and objectives. 

Add language to the Regional 
Framework Plan amendments to more 
clearly articulate the ability to "locally 
tailor" implementation tools identified in 
the Toolbox of Possible Actions.

MTAC 
members, 
Clackamas 

County Board of 
Commissioners, 
City of Hillsboro, 

City of Happy 
Valley, TPAC, 

MTAC

10/15/14, 
10/22/14, 
10/30/14, 
10/30/14, 
11/19/14, 
11/21/14

18 Regional 
Framework Plan 
Amendments 
(Exhibit B)

Chapter 2, Page 9, Objective 11.3 – add 
reference to safe routes to school 
programs to list of possible actions.

Ruth Adkins, 
MPAC member

10/22/14

Amend Exhibit B, Objective 11.2 and 11.3 
as follows:

Objective 11. 9 Metro Actions
Take actions to implement the regional 
strategy to meet adopted targets for 
reducing greenhouse gas emissions from 
light-duty vehicle travel, such as:
i. Maintain and periodically update a 
toolbox of possible actions and 
encourage local, state and federal 
governments and special districts to 
implement the toolbox actions in locally 
tailored ways.

ii. Work with local, state and federal 
governments, community and business 
leaders and organizations, and special 
districts to implement the strategy, 
including securing adequate funding for 
transportation and other investments 
needed to implement the strategy. 

iii. Provide technical assistance, best 
practices and grant funding to local 
governments and other business and 
community partners to encourage and 
support implementation of the strategy.

iv. Report on the potential light-duty 
vehicle greenhouse gas emissions 
impacts of Metro’s major land use and 
RTP policy and investment decisions to 
determine whether they help the region 
meet adopted targets for reducing 
greenhouse gas emissions.

v. Monitor and measure the progress of 
local and regional efforts to meet adopted 
targets for reducing greenhouse gas 
emissions from light-duty vehicle travel as 
described in Chapter 7 of the Regional 
Framework Plan, report the results to the 
region and state on a periodic basis, and 
guide the consideration of revision or 
replacement of the policies and actions, if 
performance so indicates, as part of 
scheduled updates to the Regional 
Transportation Plan.

Objective 11.10 Partner Actions
Encourage local, state and federal 
governments and special districts to 
consider implementing actions in the 
toolbox in locally tailored ways to help the 
region meet adopted targets for reducing 
greenhouse gas emissions from light-duty 
vehicle travel.

For context, Chapter 2 of the Framework 
Plan reflects the goals and objectives 
included in Chapter 2 of the Regional 
Transportation Plan exactly, which 
provides less policy detail than other 
Framework Plan chapters. The 2018 RTP 
update presents an opportunity to update 
Chapter 2 of the Framework Plan to 
better match the level of policy detail 
contained in the other Framework Plan 
chapters. In addition, unless the Regional 
Framework Plan specifies that Metro 
require local governments to take a 
particular action, the RFP only directs 
Metro actions.

10/22/14MPAC membersChapter 2, Page 9, Objective 11.3 – 
retain but shorten the list of example 
actions and revise the language to read, 
”Encourage local, state and federal 
governments and special districts to take 
actions recommended in the Toolbox of 
Possible Actionsregional climate 
strategy to help meet adopted targets for 
reducing greenhouse gas emissions 
from light vehicle travel, including such 
as…”

Regional 
Framework Plan 
Amendments 
(Exhibit B)

19

Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 213 of 246



Updated 12/09/14
MTAC and TPAC Recommendation on Comments Received

13 of 43

# Exhibit Comment Source(s) Date Recommendation

20 Regional 
Framework Plan 
Amendments 
(Exhibit B)

 Chapter 7 (Management), page 8, to 
incorporate  performance measures 
recommended to be tracked every two 
years as part of required reporting that 
responds to ORS 197.301. OAR 660-
044-0040 requires that the preferred 
scenario include performance measures. 
The preferred scenario is to be adopted 
as part of the Regional Framework Plan, 
and, as a result, performance measures 
also need to be “adopted” as part of the 
Regional Framework Plan.

Metro staff in 
consultation 

with DLCD staff

10/23/14 Amend as requested. See 
recommendation on comment #21 on 
Exhibit B in this section.

Performance measures recommended to 
be added to Section 7.8.4 are: vehicle 
miles traveled; motor vehicles, pedestrian 
and bicycle fatalities and serious injury 
crashes; transit revenue hours; transit 
ridership; access to transit; travel time 
and reliability; and air quality. Other 
performance measures, including 
greenhouse gas emissions, are 
recommended to be reported as part of 
scheduled updates to the Regional 
Transportation Plan.

Amend as requested. In addition amend 
policy 7.8.6 to read as follows:

7.8.6 Take corrective actions if 
anticipated progress is found to be 
lacking or if Metro goal and policies need 
adjustment. in order to allow adjustments 
soon after any problem arices and so that 
relatively stable conditions can be 
maintained."

Measures not currently monitored as part 
of federally-required RTP updates will be 
incorporated into the plan as part of the 
next scheduled update (due in 2018) in 
coordination with other performance 
measure updates needed to address 
federal MAP-21 requirements related to 
performance-based long-range 
transportation planning. In addition, this is 
a more appropriate location to direct 
monitoring and reporting on the progress 
of local and regional efforts to meet 
adopted targets for reducing greenhouse 
gas emissions.

Amend Exhibit B, Objective 11.2 and 11.3 
as follows:

Objective 11. 9 Metro Actions
Take actions to implement the regional 
strategy to meet adopted targets for 
reducing greenhouse gas emissions from 
light-duty vehicle travel, such as:
i. Maintain and periodically update a 
toolbox of possible actions and 
encourage local, state and federal 
governments and special districts to 
implement the toolbox actions in locally 

tailored ways.

ii. Work with local, state and federal 
governments, community and business 
leaders and organizations, and special 
districts to implement the strategy, 
including securing adequate funding for 
transportation and other investments 
needed to implement the strategy. 

iii. Provide technical assistance, best 
practices and grant funding to local 
governments and other business and 
community partners to encourage and 
support implementation of the strategy.

iv. Report on the potential light-duty 
vehicle greenhouse gas emissions 
impacts of Metro’s major land use and 
RTP policy and investment decisions to 
determine whether they help the region 
meet adopted targets for reducing 
greenhouse gas emissions.

v. Monitor and measure the progress of 
local and regional efforts to meet adopted 
targets for reducing greenhouse gas 
emissions from light-duty vehicle travel as 
described in Chapter 7 of the Regional 
Framework Plan, report the results to the 
region and state on a periodic basis, and 
guide the consideration of revision or 
replacement of the policies and actions, if 
performance so indicates, as part of 
scheduled updates to the Regional 
Transportation Plan.

Objective 11.10 Partner Actions
Encourage local, state and federal 
governments and special districts to 
consider implementing actions in the 
toolbox in locally tailored ways to help the 
region meet adopted targets for reducing 
greenhouse gas emissions from light-duty 
vehicle travel.

For context, Chapter 2 of the Framework 
Plan reflects the goals and objectives 
included in Chapter 2 of the Regional 
Transportation Plan exactly, which 
provides less policy detail than other 
Framework Plan chapters. The 2018 RTP 
update presents an opportunity to update 
Chapter 2 of the Framework Plan to 
better match the level of policy detail 
contained in the other Framework Plan 
chapters. In addition, unless the Regional 
Framework Plan specifies that Metro 
require local governments to take a 
particular action, the RFP only directs 
Metro actions.

10/23/14Metro staff in 
consultation 
with DLCD staff

Delete Objective 11.4 in Exhibit  B and 
add to Chapter 7 (Management), Page 
8, to add new objective that reads 
"Monitor the following performance 
measures for Chapter 1 and 2 of this 
Plan as part  of scheduled updates to 
the Regional Transportation Plan: (a) 
light duty vehicle greenhouse gas 
emissions; (b) household 
transportation/housing cost burden; 
(c) registered light duty vehicles by 
fuel/energy source; (d) workforce 
participation in commuter programs; 
(e) household participation in 
individualized marketing programs; 
(f) bike and pedestrian travel; (g) 
bikeways, sidewalks and trails 
completed.

Regional 
Framework Plan 
Amendments 
(Exhibit B)

21

10/22/14MPAC membersChapter 2, Page 9, Objective 11.3 – 
retain but shorten the list of example 
actions and revise the language to read, 
”Encourage local, state and federal 
governments and special districts to take 
actions recommended in the Toolbox of 
Possible Actionsregional climate 
strategy to help meet adopted targets for 
reducing greenhouse gas emissions 
from light vehicle travel, including such 
as…”

Regional 
Framework Plan 
Amendments 
(Exhibit B)

19

Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 214 of 246



Updated 12/09/14
MTAC and TPAC Recommendation on Comments Received

14 of 43

# Exhibit Comment Source(s) Date Recommendation
22 Regional 

Framework Plan 
Amendments 
(Exhibit B)

Chapter 2, Page 9, Objective 11.3 - 
require, rather than encourage, climate 
responsive actions listed.

Oregon 
American 
Planning 

Association

10/29/14 No change recommended to Exhibit B. 

Existing Metro functional plans, first 
adopted in 1996, already identify land use 
and transportation actions that local 
governments must implement that will 
help implement the Climate Smart 
Strategy. As noted, implementation of the 
Toolbox of Possible Actions does not 
mandate adoption of any particular policy 
or action and instead was developed with 
the recognition that existing city and 
county plans for creating great 
communities are the foundation for 
reaching the state target. Implementation 
actions in the toolbox are encouraged 
and allow local flexibility in how, when 
and where different actions may be 
applied, recognizing that some tools and 
actions may work better in some 
locations than others. 

23 Regional 
Framework Plan 
Amendments 
(Exhibit B)

Chapter 1, larger issues of community 
design and jobs/housing balance appear 
unaddressed in the Regional Framework 
Plan. Opportunities for housing near job 
rich locations is important to reduce 
commute distances and demand on the 
region's roadways.

City of 
Wilsonville

10/30/14 Amend Exhibit B, Chapter 1, page 10, 
Policy 1.10.1, as follows:

"iv) Reinforces nodal, mixed-use, 
neighborhood-oriented community 
designs to provide walkable access to 
a mix of destinations to support 
meeting daily needs, such as jobs, 
education, shopping, services, transit 
and recreation, social and cultural 
activities."

24 Regional 
Framework Plan 
Amendments 
(Exhibit B)

Amend Framework Plan, Chapter 1, 
page 4, Policy 1.3.2(c) as follows:

Allow affordable housing, particularly in 
Centers and Corridors and other areas 
well-served with public services and 
frequent transit service."

Staff 
recommendatio
n on Comment 
#4 in Exhibit C 

section 

10/30/14 Amend as recommended.

25 Regional 
Framework Plan 
Amendments 
(Exhibit B)

Too much detail included in the Chapter 
2 Regional Framework Plan 
amendments, compared to existing 
goals and objectives

Remove the toolbox sub-bullets listed in 
Chapter 2, Policy 11.3

Susie Lahsene, 
Port of Portland

Paul Savas, 
Clackamas 

County 
Commissioner

11/7/14 Amend as requested by re-drafting Goal 
11 to better fit with structure of existing 
goals and objectives, remove the toolbox 
sub-bullets and further amend Objective 
11.10 Partner Actions to include language  
to reflect the living document 
expectations for the “Toolbox of Possible 
Actions" and expectations it will be 
updated to reflect new information and 
approaches. See also recommendations 
on Comments #17-19 in this section.

Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 215 of 246



Updated 12/09/14
MTAC and TPAC Recommendation on Comments Received

15 of 43

# Exhibit Comment Source(s) Date Recommendation

27 Regional 
Framework Plan 
Amendments 
(Exhibit B)

Language needs to call out incentivizing 
the kind of development needed to 
support implementation

Mayor Doug 
Neeley, City of 
Oregon City

11/7/14 This is addressed in the recommendation 
on Comment #1 on in this section.

28 Regional 
Framework Plan 
Amendments 
(Exhibit B)

Amend Policy 1.7.5(a) and (d) of 
Chapter 1 of the Regional Framework 
Plan to reflect that planning for new 
urban areas can also help further the 
region's efforts in reducing greenhouse 
gas emissions:

"a. Help achieve livable communities 
and reduce greenhouse gas 
emissions." 

"d. Determine the general urban land 
uses, key local and regional multi-
modal transportation facilities and 
prospective components of the regional 
system of parks, natural areas..."

Metro staff 11/14/14 Amend as requested. See 
recommendation on Comment #58 in the 
Exhibit C section of this document.

Mayor Tim 
Knapp, Cities of 
Clackamas 
County
Mayor Doug 
Neeley, City of 
Oregon City

Policy language not strong enough on 
influence of land use on transportation 
and importance of jobs/housing balance 
as a greenhouse gas emissions 
reduction strategy

Regional 
Framework Plan 
Amendments 
(Exhibit B)

11/7/1426 This is addressed in part in the staff 
recommendation on Comment #23 in this 
section as follows:

Amend Exhibit B, Chapter 1, page 10, 
Policy 1.10.1, as follows:

"iv) Reinforces nodal, mixed-use, 
neighborhood-oriented community 
designs to provide walkable access to 
a mix of destinations to support 
meeting daily needs, such as jobs, 
education, shopping, services, transit 
and recreation, social and cultural 
activities."

In addition, other Framework Plan 
policies currently address jobs/housing 
balance, including Chapter 1, Policy 
1.4.2, that were not included in the public 
review document:

“Balance the number and wage level of 
jobs within each subregion with housing 
cost and availability within that subregion. 
Strategies are to be coordinated with the 
planning and implementation activities of 
this element with Policy 1.3, Housing 
Choices and Opportunities and Policy 
1.8, Developed Urban Land."

Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 216 of 246



Updated 12/09/14
MTAC and TPAC Recommendation on Comments Received

16 of 43

# Exhibit Comment Source(s) Date Recommendation
29 Regional 

Framework Plan 
Amendments 
(Exhibit B)

Metro staff 11/14/14 Amend page 1 of Chapter 1 and Chapter 
2 of the Regional Framework Plan to add 
the following sentence:

"The policies in this chapter are also a 
key component of the regional 
strategy to reduce per capita 
greenhouse gas emissions from light- 
duty vehicles."

This change further clarifies that the 
existing (and amended) policies in this 
Plan are a key part of the region's 
strategy for meeting OAR 660-044.

30 Regional 
Framework Plan 
Amendments 
(Exhibit B)

 Objective 1.10.1(c ), Chapter 2, page 3 
(10th bullet) and Objective 11.4 – 
change making biking and walking the 
“most convenient . . .” (which is a bit of a 
stretch), to “more convenient. . .”  (same 
where it says “safest,” change to 
“safer”).

City of Hillsboro, 
City of 
Beaverton

11/24/14, 
11/24/14

No further changes recommended as this 
language reflects policy language 
adopted in the 2014 RTP. See also staff 
recommendation on Comments #3, #7 
and #14.

31 Regional 
Framework Plan 
Amendments 
(Exhibit B)

Page 6, Chapter 1, Policy 1.4.2 
This policy appears to be a bit of an 
overreach. What mechanism is at the 
region’s disposal to directly “balance the 
number and wage level of jobs within 
each sub-region”
Consider adding: “Promote policies that 
seek to” balance the number..

City of 
Beaverton

11/24/14 No change recommended. This is 
existing policy language and the 
proposed change goes beyond the scope 
of the Climate Smart Strategy 
implementation. This comment has been 
forwarded to long-range land use 
planning staff for consideration as part of 
future updates to the Regional 
Framework Plan.

End of comments and recommended changes to Exhibit B

Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 217 of 246



Updated 12/09/14
MTAC and TPAC Recommendation on Comments Received

17 of 43

# Exhibit Comment Source(s) Date Recommendation

1 Toolbox of 
Possible Actions 
(2015-20) (Exhibit 
C)

Page 1,  implement 2040 Growth 
Concept and local adopted plans, under 
Metro actions, add an action that calls 
out that 2018 RTP update will be a tool 
to implement the Climate Smart 
Strategy.

1000 Friends of 
Oregon

10/22/14 Amend as requested. 

This is also called out in the legislation 
adopting the Climate Smart Strategy.

2 Toolbox of 
Possible Actions 
(2015-20) (Exhibit 
C)

Page 1, implement 2040 Growth 
Concept and local adopted plans policy, 
revise language "Restore local control of 
housing policies and programs" to 
ensure that it’s about achieving housing 
affordability, not just restoring local 
control. Be explicit about need for 
removal of statewide ban on inclusionary 
zoning.

Community 
leaders 

meeting, 
Oregon 

Environmental 
Council, 1000 

Friends of 
Oregon, 

Coalition for a 
Livable Future, 
Transportation 
Justice Alliance

10/1/14, 
10/15/14, 
10/22/14, 
10/30/14, 
10/30/14

Amend  toolbox actions as follows: 

"Restore local control of housing policies 
and programs to ensure local 
communities have a full range of tools 
available to meet the housing needs of all 
residents and income levels and expand 
opportunities for households of modest 
means to live closer to work, services and 
transit."

This change will be reflected in Metro, 
local government and special district 
actions.

In addition, Policy 1.3.5 in Chapter 1 of 
the Regional Framework Plan 
encourages local governments to 
consider a range of tools and strategies 
to achieve affordable housing goals, 
including a voluntary inclusionary zoning 
policy.

3 Toolbox of 
Possible Actions 
(2015-20) (Exhibit 
C)

Page 1, implement 2040 Growth 
Concept and local adopted plans policy, 
too broad of a spectrum of policies have 
been identified in some toolbox actions. 
The Climate Smart Strategy should not 
be used as a cure all for any perceived 
shortcomings in the land use regulatory 
system - for example connection to 
brownfield redevelopment and removal 
of statewide ban on inclusionary zoning.

City of Hillsboro 10/30/14 No change to Exhibit C recommended.  

Chapter 1 of Regional Framework Plan 
(Policy 1.3) includes these types of 
policies as ways to support implementing 
the 2040 Growth Concept - a key 
component of the Climate Smart 
Strategy. The toolbox actions identified 
are intended to support these existing 
policies and addresses implementation 
issues that have been consistently raised 
by community stakeholders throughout 
the Climate Smart Communities effort. 

Comments on Toolbox of Possible Actions (Exhibit C)

Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 218 of 246



Updated 12/09/14
MTAC and TPAC Recommendation on Comments Received

18 of 43

# Exhibit Comment Source(s) Date Recommendation

5 Toolbox of 
Possible Actions 
(2015-20) (Exhibit 
C)

Page 1, implement 2040 Growth 
Concept and local adopted plans policy, 
under Metro actions, add new action to 
support increased funding for affordable 
housing, particularly along frequent 
transit lines.

Coalition for a 
Livable Future, 
Transportation 
Justice Alliance

10/30/14, 
10/30/14

Amend as follows:

"Support increased funding for 
affordable housing, particularly along 
corridors with frequent transit 
service."

6 Toolbox of 
Possible Actions 
(2015-20) (Exhibit 
C)

Page 1, implement 2040 Growth 
Concept and local adopted plans policy, 
under Metro actions, add new action  
"Ensure major investments in transit 
and other community development 
projects are accompanied with 
policies that protect against 
economic displacement of lower-
income residents."

1000 Friends of 
Oregon

10/22/14 No change to Exhibit C recommended. 
See also recommendation on Comment 
#11 in this section. 

While this would address a significant 
implementation issue raised during the 
Climate Smart Communities effort, this 
comment has been forwarded to staff 
working on Powell-Division Transit Study 
and Metro's Equity Strategy and 
Equitable Development work programs to 
address. Recommendations from these 
efforts may lead to Regional Framework 
Plan amendments and will be further 
addressed in the next federally-required 
RTP update.

10/22/141000 Friends of 
Oregon

Page 1, implement 2040 Growth 
Concept and local adopted plans policy, 
under Metro actions, add new action to 
leverage Metro and the region's public 
investments to maintain and create 
affordable housing in transit-served 
areas.

Toolbox of 
Possible Actions 
(2015-20) (Exhibit 
C)

4 Amend toolbox as follows: 

"Leverage Metro's public investments 
to maintain and create affordable 
housing options in areas served with 
frequent transit service." 

Amend Framework Plan, Chapter 1, page 
4, Policy 1.3.2(c) as follows:

Allow affordable housing, particularly in 
Centers and Corridors and other areas 
well-served with public services and 
frequent transit service."

In addition, this comment has been 
forwarded to staff working on Powell-
Division Transit Study and Metro's Equity 
Strategy and Equitable Development 
work programs to further address through 
that work. Recommendations from these 
efforts may lead to Regional Framework 
Plan additional amendments and will be 
addressed in the next federally-required 
RTP update.

Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 219 of 246



Updated 12/09/14
MTAC and TPAC Recommendation on Comments Received

19 of 43

# Exhibit Comment Source(s) Date Recommendation
7 Toolbox of 

Possible Actions 
(2015-20) (Exhibit 
C)

Page 2,  implement 2040 Growth 
Concept and local adopted plans policy, 
under Metro actions, add an action to 
implement the 2040 Growth Concept's 
Climate Smart Strategies in the 2018 
RTP.

Safe Routes to 
School National 

Partnership
TPAC, MTAC

10/28/14
11/19/14, 
11/21/14

Amend as requested as follows: 

Add a new action under demonstrate 
Climate leadership that reads "Review 
and evaluate Climate Smart Strategy 
investments and actions for adoption 
in the 2018 RTP."

This amendments reflects the overall 
strategy will be further implemented 
through the 2018 RTP update as part of 
the process and in coordination with other 
policy considerations to be addressed as 
part of the update. 

8 Toolbox of 
Possible Actions 
(2015-20) (Exhibit 
C)

Page 2,  implement 2040 Growth 
Concept and local adopted plans policy, 
under Metro actions, add an action to 
provide guidance to cities and counties 
on location of new schools, services, 
shopping and other health promoting 
resources and community destinations 
close to neighborhoods.

Safe Routes to 
School National 

Partnership

10/28/14 No change recommended  to Exhibit C. 

A significant amount of best practices and 
other guidance is available related to the 
location of new schools, services, 
shopping and other health promoting 
resources and community destinations 
close to neighborhoods, such as Metro's 
Community Investment Toolkit series, 
publications prepared by Oregon's 
Transportation Growth Management 
program and federal agencies.  See: 
www.oregon.gov/LCD/TGM/Pages/public
ations.aspx and 
www.epa.gov/smartgrowth/pdf/brochure_
0906.pdf for more information.

9 Toolbox of 
Possible Actions 
(2015-20) (Exhibit 
C)

Page 1, implement 2040 Growth 
Concept and local adopted plans policy, 
under Metro actions, revise 2nd near-
term bullet to read "Expand on-going 
technical assistance and grant funding 
to local governments, developers and 
others to advance implementation of 
local land use plans, and 
incorporate…"

Metro staff 10/24/14 Amend as requested.

10 Toolbox of 
Possible Actions 
(2015-20) (Exhibit 
C)

Page 2, transit policy,  revise last sub-
bullet under development of TriMet 
SEPs to read, "Consider Use ridership 
demographics in service planning." This 
revision should be reflected in bullet 
under local government and special 
district actions.

Community 
leaders meeting 

and 1000 
Friends of 

Oregon

10/1/14, 
10/22/14

Amend as requested.

11 Toolbox of 
Possible Actions 
(2015-20) (Exhibit 
C)

Page 2, transit policy, under Metro 
actions, move "Research and develop 
best practices to support equitable 
growth and development…" to 
immediate time period.

Community 
leaders 

meeting, 1000 
Friends of 
Oregon

10/1/14, 
10/22/14

Amend as requested. 

Work is underway as part of the Powell-
Division Transit Study and Metro's Equity 
Strategy and Equitable Development 
work programs. Recommendations from 
these efforts may lead to Regional 
Framework Plan amendments and will be 
addressed in the next federally-required 
RTP update.

Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 220 of 246



Updated 12/09/14
MTAC and TPAC Recommendation on Comments Received

20 of 43

# Exhibit Comment Source(s) Date Recommendation
12 Toolbox of 

Possible Actions 
(2015-20) (Exhibit 
C)

Page 2, transit policy, under Metro 
actions, immediate term, delete 2nd 
bullet "Consider local funding 
mechanism(s) for local and regional 
transit service." This is already listed 
under the first action.

City of Hillsboro 10/30/14 Amend as requested.

13 Toolbox of 
Possible Actions 
(2015-20) (Exhibit 
C)

Page 2, transit policy, under Metro 
actions, add an action to implement the 
transit actions in the Climate Smart 
Strategy in the 2018 RTP.

1000 Friends of 
Oregon, Safe 

Routes to 
School National 

Partnership

10/22/14, 
10/28/14

"Amend as requested as follows: 

Add a new action under demonstrate 
Climate leadership that reads ""Review 
and evaluate Climate Smart Strategy 
investments and actions for adoption 
in the 2018 RTP.""

This amendments reflects the overall 
strategy will be further implemented 
through the 2018 RTP update as part of 
the process and in coordination with other 
policy considerations to be addressed as 
part of the update.

14 Toolbox of 
Possible Actions 
(2015-20) (Exhibit 
C)

Convert school bus and transit fleets to 
electric and/or natural gas buses to 
reduce greenhouse gas emissions and 
youth exposure to diesel and other 
emissions from existing fleets.

Craig Stephens, 
City of 

Wilsonville

9/18/14, 
10/30/14

Amend page 2 of the toolbox of actions to 
list these as possible actions in the near-
term. 

The state mandated greenhouse gas 
emissions reduction target applies to 
vehicle weighing 10,000 pounds or less, 
which includes Type A-1 buses. While 
most SMART and TriMet buses weigh 
more than 10,000 pounds, the agencies 
are exploring and testing alternative fuel 
buses to assess fueling infrastructure 
needs and vehicle performance, 
maintenance and cost-effectiveness 
compared to the diesel buses it currently 
uses.

15 Toolbox of 
Possible Actions 
(2015-20) (Exhibit 
C)

Page 2, transit policy, add new actions: 
"Fund reduced fare programs and 
service improvements for transit 
dependent communities such as 
youth, older adults, people with 
disabilities and low-income families, 
Expand and sustain Youth Pass 
program, including expanding routes 
and frequency along school 
corridors."

Safe Routes to 
School National 

Partnership

10/28/14 Amend existing toolbox language as 
follows: 

"Fund reduced fare programs and service 
improvements for transit dependent 
communities such as youth, older 
adults, people with disabilities and low-
income families." 

Add new special district action that reads, 
"Expand and sustain Youth Pass 
program, including expanding routes 
and frequency along school 
corridors."

Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 221 of 246



Updated 12/09/14
MTAC and TPAC Recommendation on Comments Received

21 of 43

# Exhibit Comment Source(s) Date Recommendation
16 Toolbox of 

Possible Actions 
(2015-20) (Exhibit 
C)

Page 2, transit policy, add the following 
new actions to recognize the emissions 
reductions can come from electric transit 
vehicles or other low carbon alternative 
fules: "Support transit partners in 
seeking federal grant funds for 
electric buses;" "Seek increased state 
funding for electric buses;" and 
"Increased funding flexbility to allow 
for greater upfront capital spending 
on electric buses if those expenses 
are offset by operating savings."

Drive Oregon, 
City of 

Wilsonville

10/28/14, 
10/30/14

Amend to add the following new actions 
given that some transit vehicles do weigh 
less than 10,000 pounds:

 "Support transit partners in seeking 
federal grant funds for electric  and 
other low-carbon alternative fuel 
buses;" 

"Seek increased state funding for 
electric and other low-carbon 
alternative fuel buses;" and 

"Seek increased funding flexbility to 
allow for greater upfront capital 
spending on electric and other low-
carbon alternative fuel buses if those 
expenses are offset by operating 
savings."

17 Toolbox of 
Possible Actions 
(2015-20) (Exhibit 
C)

Pages 3 and 4, expand bullets on using 
green street design to not only call out 
planting trees to support carbon 
sequestration and using materials that 
reduce infrastructure-related heat gain. 
Add reference to green street designs 
for capturing, absorbing and cleaning 
stormwater and making more use of 
pervious, rather than impervious, 
surface materials. These strategies will 
help the region save money and adapt 
to the unwelcome effects of climate 
change.

Oregon 
Environmental 
Council, Urban 
Greenspaces 

Instititute, 
Coalition for a 
Livable Future

10/15/14, 
10/27/14, 
10/30/14

No change to Exhibit C recommended. 

These benefits are important for the 
reasons stated. This comment has been 
forwarded to the Metro staff responsible 
for updating the region's best practices 
handbooks for street design with a 
recommendation to link the broader 
stormwater benefits of green street 
designs to climate adaptation strategies 
that will complement the greenhouse gas 
emissions reduction strategies identified 
through this project. The handbooks are 
scheduled to be updated in the 2015-16 
time period. The update is listed as an 
immediate action in Exhibit C.

18 Toolbox of 
Possible Actions 
(2015-20) (Exhibit 
C)

Page 3, biking and walking policy, add 
new immediate action for local 
governments - "Complete an inventory 
of sidewalk/bike lane gaps to help 
prioritize where limited funding could 
best be directed to encourage multi-
modal movement."

City of Hillsboro 9/24/14 Amend as follows: 

"Review community inventory of 
sidewalk and bike lane gaps and 
definiciencies to help prioritize where 
limited funding could best be directed 
to encourage multi-modal movement. " 

The Transportation Planning Rule and 
and Regional Transportation Functional 
Plan already require local governments to 
complete an inventory of bicycle and 
pedestrian facilities as part of their 
adopted local transportation system plan.  

Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 222 of 246



Updated 12/09/14
MTAC and TPAC Recommendation on Comments Received

22 of 43

# Exhibit Comment Source(s) Date Recommendation
19 Toolbox of 

Possible Actions 
(2015-20) (Exhibit 
C)

Page 3, biking and walking policy, under 
Metro actions, add an action to 
implement the bicycle and pedestrian 
actions in the Climate Smart Strategy in 
the 2018 RTP.

1000 Friends of 
Oregon

10/22/14 "Amend as requested as follows: 

Add a new action under demonstrate 
Climate leadership that reads ""Review 
and evaluate Climate Smart Strategy 
investments and actions for adoption 
in the 2018 RTP.""

This amendments reflects the overall 
strategy will be further implemented 
through the 2018 RTP update as part of 
the process and in coordination with other 
policy considerations to be addressed as 
part of the update.

20 Toolbox of 
Possible Actions 
(2015-20) (Exhibit 
C)

Page 3, biking and walking policy, add 
new Metro action: "Complete a region-
wide active transportation needs 
assessment, including needs around 
schools and access to transit."

National Safe 
Routes to 

School 
Partnership

10/28/14 Amend as follows: 

add Metro action (near term) that reads, 
“Update the Regional Active 
Transportation Plan needs 
assessment in the 2018 RTP.” 

add cities and counties action (near term) 
“Conduct needs assessments for 
schools and access to transit during 
updates to TSPs and other plans.”

21 Toolbox of 
Possible Actions 
(2015-20) (Exhibit 
C)

Page 3, biking and walking policy, add 
new Metro action: “Build a diverse 
coalition working together to build 
and monitor local and state 
commitment to implement and fund 
the Regional Active Transportation 
Plan, including Safe Routes to 
Schools and Safe Routes to Transit”

National Safe 
Routes to 

School 
Partnership

10/28/14 Amend as follows, under Metro actions: 

"Build and monitor local and state 
commitment to implement the Active 
Transportation Plan, and Safe Routes 
to Schools and Safe Routes to 
Transit." 

Monitoring would occur through periodic 
updates to the Regional Transportation 
Plan. Funding active transportation is 
addressed in a separate action in the 
funding portion of the toolbox.

22 Toolbox of 
Possible Actions 
(2015-20) (Exhibit 
C)

Page 3, biking and walking policy, add 
new actions to recognize potential role 
of electric bikes in the future: "Simplify 
and clarify policy on e-bike use of 
bike lanes and other 
infrastructure;"Clarify that e-bikes are 
part of the region's active 
transportation strategy;" and "Fund 
pilot project to test the efficacy of e-
bikes in attracting new riders."

Drive Oregon 10/28/14 Amend as follows:  

"Simplify and clarify policy on e-bike 
use of bike lanes and other 
infrastructure;"Clarify that e-bikes are 
part of the region's active 
transportation strategy;" and "Partner 
with Portland State University to 
develop a pilot project to test the 
efficacy of e-bikes in attracting new 
riders."

Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 223 of 246



Updated 12/09/14
MTAC and TPAC Recommendation on Comments Received

23 of 43

# Exhibit Comment Source(s) Date Recommendation
23 Toolbox of 

Possible Actions 
(2015-20) (Exhibit 
C)

Page 3, biking and walking policy, under 
Metro actions, add an action to prioritize 
or commit regional flexible funds to 
active transportation.

1000 Friends of 
Oregon, John 
Carr, National 
Safe Routes to 

School 
Partnership, 

Coalition for a 
Livable Future

10/22/14, 
10/27/14, 
10/28/14, 
10/30/14

No change recommended to Exibit C. 
See also recommendation on Comment 
#15 in the Exhibit B section.

This comment has been forwarded to the 
Metro staff responsible for the Regional 
Flexible Fund Allocation (RFFA) process. 
JPACT and the Metro Council provide 
policy direction for prioritizing allocation of 
the federal flexible funds at the beginning 
of each RFFA cycle. The next RFFA cycle 
(and policy update) will begin in 2015.  

24 Toolbox of 
Possible Actions 
(2015-20) (Exhibit 
C)

Page 3, biking and walking policy, under 
Metro actions, add an action to use the 
Climate Smart Strategy as a filter for 
evaluating individual transportation 
projects to construct or widen major 
roads and arterials.

1000 Friends of 
Oregon, 

National Safe 
Routes to 

School 
Partnership

10/22/14, 
10/28/14

No change recommended to Exhibit C. 
See also recommendation on Comment 
#15 in the Exhibit B section.

Metro does not apply a single filter to 
individual projects included in the 
Regional Transportation Plan, and most 
RTP projects are locally-funded and 
reflect locally adopted investment 
priorities. Adoption of the Climate Smart 
Strategy will incorporate reducing 
greenhouse gas emissions from light duty 
vehicles in system-level regional 
transportation planning and investment 
decisions. 

25 Toolbox of 
Possible Actions 
(2015-20) (Exhibit 
C)

Page 3, biking and walking policy, 
include the following actions to support 
increased physical activity: integrate 
multi-modal designs in road 
improvement and maintenance to 
support all users, implement complete 
streets strategies and complete the 
active transportation network.

Oregon Health 
Authority

10/7/14 No change recommended to Exhibit C. 

The draft toolbox currently identifies 
these actions.

26 Toolbox of 
Possible Actions 
(2015-20) (Exhibit 
C)

Page 4, streets and highways policy, 
under Metro actions, delete first bullet 
under "Build a diverse coalition" as 
ensuring adequate funding for local 
maintenance is a local responsibility, not 
a Metro responsibility. 

City of Hillsboro 10/30/14 Amend as requested. See also 
recommendation on Comment #12 in this 
section.

This amendment also applies to other 
references of local funding under Metro 
actions on Page 2, transit. 

27 Toolbox of 
Possible Actions 
(2015-20) (Exhibit 
C)

Page 4, streets and highways policy, 
add "Adopt a vision zero strategy to 
eliminate all traffic fatalitlies" for each 
partner (e.g., state, Metro, local 
governments and special districts) to be 
consistent with reference in bike and 
pedestrian policy actions on page 3.

Community 
leaders 

meeting, Safe 
Routes to 

School 
Partnership

10/1/14, 
10/28/14

Amend as requested under the near-term 
actions (2017-2020), recognizing time will 
be needed to understand policy and fiscal 
implications of this type of strategy.

Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 224 of 246



Updated 12/09/14
MTAC and TPAC Recommendation on Comments Received

24 of 43

# Exhibit Comment Source(s) Date Recommendation
28 Toolbox of 

Possible Actions 
(2015-20) (Exhibit 
C)

Page 4, streets and highways policy, 
page 5, use technology policy and 
provide travel information and incentives 
policy, and page 6 parking policy, under 
Metro actions, add an action to 
implement the actions and investments 
identified for these policy areas in the 
Climate Smart Strategy in the 2018 
RTP:  "Implement the Climate Smart 
Communities Strategy streets and 
highways investments and actions in 
the 2018 RTP";  "Implement the 
Climate Smart Communities Strategy 
transportations system management 
investments and actions in the 2018 
RTP"; and  "Implement the Climate 
Smart Communities Strategy 
transportation demand management 
investments and actions in the 2018 
RTP"

Metro staff 10/24/14 Amend as requested as follows: 

Add a new action under demonstrate 
Climate leadership that reads "Review 
and evaluate Climate Smart Strategy 
investments and actions for adoption in 
the 2018 RTP."

This amendment reflects the overall 
strategy will be further implemented 
through the 2018 RTP update as part of 
the process and in coordination with other 
policy considerations to be addressed as 
part of the update.                                                                               

29 Toolbox of 
Possible Actions 
(2015-20) (Exhibit 
C)

Page 5, using technology policy, add a 
new immediate term local government 
action to help implement the draft 
approach: "Complete an inventory of 
the installed intelligent transportation 
systems (ITS) along arterials to help 
prioritize areas where limited funding 
could best be directed to increase 
roadway performance."

City of Hillsboro 9/24/14 Amend as requested. 

30 Toolbox of 
Possible Actions 
(2015-20) (Exhibit 
C)

Page 5, using technology policy, add 
new actions for all partners to recognize 
expanding role of ITS in the future: 
"Pursue opportunities and funding for 
pilot projects that help establish the 
region as a living laboratory for 
sustainable and multi-modal 
ITS;"Seek opportunities to leverage 
Oregon's road user fee pilot project 
to provide additional services to 
participating drivers;" and "Develop a 
pilot project to test wireless charging 
of electric vehicles, ideally 
encompassing both transit vehicles 
and passenger cars."

Drive Oregon 10/28/14 Amend as requested. 

Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 225 of 246



Updated 12/09/14
MTAC and TPAC Recommendation on Comments Received

25 of 43

# Exhibit Comment Source(s) Date Recommendation
31 Toolbox of 

Possible Actions 
(2015-20) (Exhibit 
C)

Page 5, providing information and 
incentives policy, add new actions to 
integrate promotion of efficient vehicles 
and fuel choices in the promotion of 
other travel options:

Drive Oregon 10/28/14 Amend as requested as follows:

 "Clarify that e-bikes are part of the 
regional toolkit of travel options;" 
Encourage regional carsharing 
services to increase their use of 
electric vehicles and other clean fuel 
alteratives; 

"Integrate promotion of workplace 
charging into employer-based 
outreach programs that encourage 
transit, walking, bicycling and 
carpooling;" and 

"Integrate education about vehicle and 
fuel efficiency into public awareness 
strategions such as eco-driving 
promotion."

32 Toolbox of 
Possible Actions 
(2015-20) (Exhibit 
C)

Page 5, provide information and 
incentives, add new action to commit a 
larger portion of funds to expand travel 
options that will include grade-school 
populations and school staff through 
education and encouragement programs 
such as Safe Routes to School.

Safe Routes to 
School National 

Partnership

10/28/14 No change recommended to Exhibit C. 
See also recommendation on Comment 
#15 in the Exhibit B section.

This comment has been forwarded to the 
Metro staff responsible for the Regional 
Flexible Fund Allocation (RFFA) process 
and ODOT staff responsible for Connect 
Oregon and the STIP process. JPACT 
and the Metro Council provide policy 
direction for prioritizing allocation of the 
federal flexible funds at the beginning of 
each RFFA cycle. The next RFFA cycle 
(and policy update) will begin in 2015.  

33 Toolbox of 
Possible Actions 
(2015-20) (Exhibit 
C)

Page 5, provide information and 
incentives, add new action to link 
completion of transportation and parking 
demand management initiatives to 
scoring criteria for infrastructure funding 
opportunities, e.g., regional flexible 
funds, ConnectOregon, and the Oregon 
Statewide Transportation Improvement 
Program.

Safe Routes to 
School National 

Partnership

10/28/14 No change recommended to Exhibit C. 
See also recommendation on Comment 
#15 in the Exhibit B section.

The toolbox already includes separate 
actions to link system and transportation 
demand management to capital 
investments. In addition, this comment 
has been forwarded to the Metro staff 
responsible for the Regional Flexible 
Fund Allocation (RFFA) process and 
ODOT staff responsible for Connect 
Oregon and the STIP process. JPACT 
and the Metro Council provide policy 
direction for prioritizing allocation of the 
federal flexible funds at the beginning of 
each RFFA cycle. The next RFFA cycle 
(and policy update) will begin in 2015.  

Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 226 of 246



Updated 12/09/14
MTAC and TPAC Recommendation on Comments Received

26 of 43

# Exhibit Comment Source(s) Date Recommendation
34 Toolbox of 

Possible Actions 
(2015-20) (Exhibit 
C)

Page 5, provide information and 
incentives, add new action on integrating 
use of new people mover services (Lyft, 
Uber, Car2Go)  into urban transportation 
strategies.

Angus Duncan 10/2/14 Amend as follows: 

add new action "Integrate promotion of 
carsharing and new people mover 
services into employer-based 
outreach programs that encourage 
transit, walking, bicycling and 
carpooling;" 

add new action "Integrate education 
about carsharing programs into public 
awareness strategies."

35 Toolbox of 
Possible Actions 
(2015-20) (Exhibit 
C)

Page 6, parking policy, fully utilize 
parking pricing strategies. Parking 
spaces are not truly “free, and pricing is 
one of the most effective ways to 
manage demand. Cities should charge 
the fair market price for on-street 
parking, using the revenues to finance 
added public services in the metered 
neighborhoods. Likewise, parking 
minimums hurt housing affordability.

Oregon 
Environmental 

Council

10/15/14 No change recommended to Exhibit C. 
See alo recommendations on Comments 
#36 and #37 in this section. 

The draft toolbox currently identifies an 
action to research and update regional 
parking policies to reflect the range of 
parking approaches available for different 
types of development. The existing action 
is recommended to moved to the 2015-16 
time period to inform the 2018 RTP 
update. 

36 Toolbox of 
Possible Actions 
(2015-20) (Exhibit 
C)

Page 6, parking policy, under Metro 
actions, move the "near-term" action to 
research and update regional parking 
policies to "Immediate" time period. It 
will take time to complete the research 
and conduct pilot projects to inform the 
2018 RTP update.

1000 Friends of 
Oregon

10/22/14 Amend as requested with the following 
change: 

move immediate action to "discuss priced 
parking as a revenue source" to list of 
near-term actions as this should be 
informed by the parking research 
conducted in the "Immediate" time period.

See also recommendations on 
Comments #35 and #37 in this section. 

37 Toolbox of 
Possible Actions 
(2015-20) (Exhibit 
C)

Page 6, parking policy, under Metro 
actions, add a new action to link 
providing different parking policies in 
mixed-use transit corridors and centers 
with maintaining and providing 
affordable housing (e.g., recoup some of 
the private savings from providing fewer 
parking spaces in a development served 
by frequent transit service and use the 
savings to provide for or preserve 
affordable housing in the corridor)."

1000 Friends of 
Oregon

10/22/14 Amend as follows:

add "and linking parking policies in 
mixed-use transit corridors and 
centers with maintaining and 
providing affordable housing."

See also recommendations on 
Comments #35 and #36 in this section. 

38 Toolbox of 
Possible Actions 
(2015-20) (Exhibit 
C)

Page 6, parking policy, under Metro 
actions, move near-term action to 
"expand on-going technical assistance 
to local governments and others…" to 
immediate term.

Metro staff 10/24/14 Amend as requested.

Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 227 of 246



Updated 12/09/14
MTAC and TPAC Recommendation on Comments Received

27 of 43

# Exhibit Comment Source(s) Date Recommendation
39 Toolbox of 

Possible Actions 
(2015-20) (Exhibit 
C)

Page 7, support Oregon's transition to 
cleaner, low carbon fuels and more fuel 
efficient vehicles, move near-term action 
on updating development codes to 
encourage the installation of electric 
vehicle charging stations to immediate 
time period and revise as follows, 
"Update development codes to 
streamline/incentivize/encourage the 
installation of electric vehicle 
charging stations and infrastructure, 
particularly in new buildings."

Technical work 
group member

10/9/14 Amend as requested. 

40 Toolbox of 
Possible Actions 
(2015-20) (Exhibit 
C)

Page 5, parking policy, add new actions 
to integrate electric vehicles in parking 
plans and policies: "Join the Workplace 
Charging Challenge as a partner;" 
"Develop and support pilot projects 
and model planning approaches to 
encourage highly visible charging 
infrastructure on-street and in the 
public right-of-way;" "Develop and 
support "charging oases" with 
multiple chargers, modeled on the 
Electric Avenue project at Portland 
State University;" "Support efforts to 
future proof new developments, 
particularly multi-family housing and 
large parking lots, by installing 
conduit for future charging of at least 
20% of parking spaces, similar to 
standards in Hawaii, California and 
elsewhere."

Drive Oregon 10/28/14 Amend as requested, with the last action 
to read as follows:

"Support efforts in new developments 
(particularly multi-family housing and 
large parking lots) by installing 
conduit for future charging of 20% or 
more  parking spaces (see similar 
standards in Hawaii and California)."

41 Toolbox of 
Possible Actions 
(2015-20) (Exhibit 
C)

Page 5, parking policy, add a new Metro 
action: "Convene regional 
transportation and planning officials 
to develop strategies for developing 
cost-effective charging infrastructure 
that also reinforces regional planning 
goals."                                                                  

Drive Oregon 10/28/14 Amend as requested. 

42 Toolbox of 
Possible Actions 
(2015-20) (Exhibit 
C)

Page 5, Support Oregon's transition to 
cleaner fuels and more fuel efficient 
vehicles policy, add new Metro actions: 
"Increase Metro fleet use of electric 
vehicles, including non-passenger 
cars (e-bikes and utility vehicles);" 
"Expand availability of charging at 
Metro venues (Oregon Zoo, Expo 
Center, Convention Center, P5, etc.)."                                                                  

Drive Oregon 10/28/14 Amend as requested. 

Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 228 of 246



Updated 12/09/14
MTAC and TPAC Recommendation on Comments Received

28 of 43

# Exhibit Comment Source(s) Date Recommendation
43 Toolbox of 

Possible Actions 
(2015-20) (Exhibit 
C)

Page 5, Support Oregon's transition to 
cleaner fuels and more fuel efficient 
vehicles policy, add new actions for all 
partners: "Support renewal of 
Oregon's tax credits for charing 
stations and other alternative fueling 
infrastructure;" "Support legislation 
being promoted by Drive Oregon and 
the Energize Oregon Coalition to 
create a purchase rebate for electric 
vehicles;" and "Join Drive Oregon an 
Energize Oregon Coalition as a 
member organization and participate 
as an active partner in promoting 
electric vehicle readiness and 
deployment."                                                                  

Drive Oregon 10/28/14 Amend as requested. 

44 Toolbox of 
Possible Actions 
(2015-20) (Exhibit 
C)

Page 5, Support Oregon's transition to 
cleaner fuels and more fuel efficient 
vehicles policy, it is important to keep the 
region's options open to new 
technological advancements beyond 
what the state assumed in the setting 
the region's target. Periodic review is 
needed.

City of Hillsboro 10/30/14 Amend to include a new state action as 
follows: 

"Review the state greenhouse gas 
emission reduction targets, including 
assumptions related to fleet and 
technology advancements." 

This reflects OAR 660-044-0035, which  
directs LCDC and state agencies (e.g., 
DEQ, ODOT, DOE and DLCD) to 
periodically review the targets. The first 
review is due by June 1, 2015. 

Updated fleet and technology information 
will be accounted for in future analysis to 
determine whether the region is on track 
with meeting state targets for greenhouse 
gas emissions reduction. The next update 
to the RTP (due in 2018) will reflect the 
updated information.  

Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 229 of 246



Updated 12/09/14
MTAC and TPAC Recommendation on Comments Received

29 of 43

# Exhibit Comment Source(s) Date Recommendation
45 Toolbox of 

Possible Actions 
(2015-20) (Exhibit 
C)

Page 6, funding policy, Metro should use 
its leadership and role as the region's 
MPO to support and seek opportunities 
to advocate for new, dedicated funding 
mechanisms for active transportation 
and transit and leverage local, regional, 
state and federal funding to achieve 
local visions that align with region's 
desired outcomes.                                                                 

Safe Routes to 
School National 

Partnership

10/28/14 No change recommended to Exhibit C. 

These actions are already identified on 
page 6 of the toolbox.

46 Toolbox of 
Possible Actions 
(2015-20) (Exhibit 
C)

Page 6, funding policy, under Metro 
actions, to include an action to prioritize 
active transportation and transit for 
funding.

Coalition for a 
Livable Future

10/30/14

47 Toolbox of 
Possible Actions 
(2015-20) (Exhibit 
C)

Page 6, funding policy, under Metro 
actions, to include an action to increase 
funding for active transportation through 
the Regional Flexible Fund Allocation 
process.

Coalition for a 
Livable Future

10/30/14

See recommendation on comment #26 in 
this section for recomended change.

The intent of the actions in this section is 
for Metro and others to work together to 
secure adequate funding to implement 
adopted plans, recognizing it will take a 
combination of local, regional, state and 
federal funding sources. Metro has and 
continues to support maintaining local 
options for funding; as documented in 
past state and federal legislative agendas 
adopted by the Metro Council and 
JPACT. Funding efforts undertaken by 
Washington County and its cities are a 
model for other communitiesn, and also 
present an opportunity for the region to 
show federal and state partners the 
efforts to fund transportation needs 
locally. 

The next RTP update will include 
updating the region's funding strategy, 
considering any new actions taken at the 
local, state and federal levels. 

10/30/14City of HillsboroPage 6, funding policy, under Metro 
actions, focus efforts on any funding 
coalition on federal and state funds. 
Funding strategies should not include a 
regional tax or jeopardize local funding 
sources, such as the sources 
Washington County and its cities have 
developed to serve existing communities 
and new growth areas.

Toolbox of 
Possible Actions 
(2015-20) (Exhibit 
C)

48

No change recommended to Exhibit C. 
See alsorecommendation on Comment 
#15 in the Exhibit B section. 

This comment has been forwarded to the 
Metro staff responsible for the Regional 
Flexible Fund Allocation (RFFA) process 
and ODOT staff responsible for Connect 
Oregon and the STIP process. JPACT 
and the Metro Council provide policy 
direction for prioritizing allocation of the 
federal flexible funds at the beginning of 
each RFFA cycle. The next RFFA cycle 
(and policy update) will begin in 2015.  

Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 230 of 246



Updated 12/09/14
MTAC and TPAC Recommendation on Comments Received

30 of 43

# Exhibit Comment Source(s) Date Recommendation
49 Toolbox of 

Possible Actions 
(2015-20) (Exhibit 
C)

Page 8, expand the list of Metro actions 
under "Demonstrate leadership on 
climate change" to include more specific 
actions like sharing development of the 
Climate Smart Strategy with other 
metropolitan areas and helping build 
understanding of how different tools and 
actions work, how they can help a 
community achieve its vision, and how 
everyone needs to be part of the 
solution. The actions listed are primarily 
focused on inventories, reports and 
plans. 

Community 
leaders meeting 

and Oregon 
Environmental 

Council

10/1/14, 
10/15/14

Amend as requested.

50 Toolbox of 
Possible Actions 
(2015-20) (Exhibit 
C)

Page 8, expand the list of Metro actions 
under "Demonstrate leadership on 
climate change" to include using Climate 
Smart Strategy as a filter for Metro's 
land use and transportation policy and 
investment decisions.  Add language 
indicating these policy and investment 
decisions help the region achieve the 
target.

1000 Friends of 
Oregon, 

National Safe 
Routes to 

School 
Partnership, 

Coalition for a 
Livable Future

10/22/14, 
10/28/14, 
10/30/14

Amend as follows: 

"Evaluate Metro's major land use and 
RTP policy and investment decisions 
to determine whether they help the 
region meet adopted targets for 
reducing greenhouse gas emissions." 

See also recommendation on comments 
#20 and #21 in Exhibit B section.

51 Toolbox of 
Possible Actions 
(2015-20) (Exhibit 
C)

Page 8, expand the list of Metro actions 
under "Demonstrate leadership on 
climate change" to include an action that 
states "Update the Regional 
Transportation Plan to implement the 
Climate Smart Communities 
Strategy." The update represents an 
opportunity to update performance 
measures, policies and the Regional 
Transportation Functional Plan.

Coalition for a 
Livable Future

10/30/14 Amend as follows:

Add a new action under demonstrate 
Climate leadership that reads ""Review 
and evaluate Climate Smart Strategy 
investments and actions for adoption in 
the 2018 RTP.""

This amendment reflects the overall 
strategy will be further implemented 
through the 2018 RTP update as part of 
the process and in coordination with other 
policy considerations to be addressed as 
part of the update.

52 Toolbox of 
Possible Actions 
(2015-20) (Exhibit 
C)

Reduce emissions by addresing the use 
of gas-powered lawn mowers and leaf-
blowers.

Fran Mason 9/20/14 No change recommended to Exhibit C. 

These sources of emissions are outside 
of the scope of the Climate Smart 
Strategy. 

53 Toolbox of 
Possible Actions 
(2015-20) (Exhibit 
C)

Require all tires be finished at the 
manufacturer to reduce friction.

Zephyr Moore 9/22/14 No change recommended to Exhibit C. 

This is beyond the scope of the project.

54 Toolbox of 
Possible Actions 
(2015-20) (Exhibit 
C)

Page 8, demonstrate leadership on 
climate change policy, add a new 
immediate term action for each partner: 
"Review the Toolbox of Possible 
Actions to identify actions that are 
already being implemented and new 
actions public officials are willing to 
commit to."

City of Hillsboro 9/24/14 Amend as requested. 

Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 231 of 246



Updated 12/09/14
MTAC and TPAC Recommendation on Comments Received

31 of 43

# Exhibit Comment Source(s) Date Recommendation
55 Toolbox of 

Possible Actions 
(2015-20) (Exhibit 
C)

Ban wood burning and touch-and-go 
flight training at the Hillsboro airport to 
reduce exposure to particulates and 
leaded fuel emissions.

Gary and Ruth 
Warren

10/20/14 No change recommended to Exhibit C. 

These sources of emissions are outside 
of the scope of the Climate Smart 
Strategy.  The comments have been 
forwarded to City of Hillsboro staff for 
their consideration.

57 Toolbox of 
Possible Actions 
(2015-20) (Exhibit 
C)

Define unfamiliar terms in the toolbox, 
such as Vision Zero Strategy and 
EcoRule, to provide more clarity on the 
actions being recommended. 

City of Hillsboro 10/30/14 Amend as requested. 

Include a glossary of terms, using the 
glossary in Exhibit A as a starting point.

Do not adopt the toolbox as part of 
Ordinance 14-1346 to allow for more 
discussion and refinement of the toolbox 
using the technical work group. In 
addition, include an analysis and 
discussion of how the Toolbox of 
Possible Actions relates to the Statewide 
Transportation Strategy.  The 8th and 
9th clauses on page 3 of the draft 
ordinance should be amended to reflect 
such an effort, and the 4th "be it 
ordained" on Page 5 should be 
reworded as follows "Metro Council 
directs staff to provide opportunities 
for further review and refinement of 
the Toolbox of Actions by local 
governments, ODOT, TriMet and other 
stakeholders."

Toolbox of 
Possible Actions 
(2015-20) (Exhibit 
C)

10/30/14City of Hillsboro56  Amend the 4th "be it ordained" in the 
draft ordinance as follows: 

"Metro Council directs staff to provide 
opportunities for further review and 
refinement of the Toolbox of Actions 
by local governments, ODOT, TriMet 
and other stakeholders as part of the 
RTP update." 

Consultation with DLCD and ODOT staff 
have confirmed the toolbox is a 
necessary component of the adoption 
package.The toolbox contains policies 
and strategies intended to achieve the 
target and is, therefore, a necessary part 
of the overall preferred strategy for 
meeting the target under OAR-660-
0040(3)(c). The toolbox does not 
mandate local adoption of any particular 
policy or action, and serves is a starting 
point for the region to begin 
implementation of the CSC strategy. As 
such, the toolbox reflects near-term 
actions that can be taken in the next 5 
years, recognizing that medium and 
longer term actions will be identified 
through the next scheduled update to the 
RTP. Staff has recommended refinements 
to the toolbox to respond to specific 
comments received during the comment 
period. Adoption of the toolbox directs 
staff to include the toolbox in the RTP 
appendix as a starting point for further 
refinement during the next RTP update. 
Adoption of the toolbox in Ordinance 14-
1346 directs staff to incorporate the 
toolbox into the technical appendix of the 
RTP, recognizing more work is needed 
during the RTP update to identify medium 
and longer-term implementation actions. 
A comparison of the STS and toolbox will 
be developed at that time. 

Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 232 of 246



Updated 12/09/14
MTAC and TPAC Recommendation on Comments Received

32 of 43

# Exhibit Comment Source(s) Date Recommendation
58 Toolbox of 

Possible Actions 
(2015-20) (Exhibit 
C)

The toolbox should also have an action 
to develop new urban areas in ways that 
further the region's efforts in achieving 
greenhouse gas emissions reductions, 
such as planning for complete 
communities with walking, biking and 
transit options as part of concept 
planning to reduce or eliminate vehicle 
trips for every day needs (e.g., 
shopping, school, recreation).

City of Hillsboro 10/30/14 Amend as requested.

In addition, amend Policy 1.7.5(a) and (d) 
of Chapter 1 of the Regional Framework 
Plan as follows:

"a. Help achieve livable communities and 
reduce greenhouse gas emissions." 

"d. Determine the general urban land 
uses, key local and regional multi-
modal transportation facilities and 
prospective components of the regional 
system of parks, natural areas..."

59 Toolbox of 
Possible Actions 
(2015-20) (Exhibit 
C)

Add language to the toolbox to more 
clearly articulate the ability to "locally 
tailor" implementation tools.

Clackamas 
County Board of 
Commissioners, 
City of Hillsboro, 

City of Happy 
Valley

10/22/14, 
10/30/14, 
10/30/14

Amend as requested.

This is addressed in part in the staff 
recommendation on Comment #56 in this 
section.
 
To address comments provided at the 
Nov. 7 joint MPAC/JPACT meeting, staff 
recommends the following additional 
changes to the clauses on page 4 of the 
ordinance:

WHEREAS, while the toolbox provides an 
advisory menu of possible actions and 
does not mandate adoption of require 
local governments, special districts, or 
state agencies to adopt any particular 
policy or action; and 

WHEREAS, MPAC and JPACT 
recommend the toolbox be a living 
document subject to further review 
and refinement by local governments, 
ODOT, TriMet and other stakeholders 
as part of scheduled updates to the 
RTP to reflect new information and 
approaches to reducing greenhouse 
gas emissions; and

WHEREAS, MPAC and JPACT agree 
updates to local comprehensive plans 
and development regulations, transit 
agency plans, port district plans and 
regional growth management and 
transportation plans present continuing 
opportunities to consider implementing 
the actions recommended in the 
toolbox of possible actions in that can be 
locally tailored ways; and

11/7/14Mayor Willey, 
City of Hillsboro
Keith Mays, 
Washington 
County Citizen
Mayor Tim 
Knapp, Cities of 
Clackamas 
County
Marilyn 
McWilliams, 
Washington 
County Special 
Districts
Lise Glancy, 
Port of Portland
Jeff Gudman, 
City of Lake 
Oswego

Remove the toolbox from the adoption 
package, adopt by separate resolution 
and/or delay adoption to allow more time 
for review and refinement.

Toolbox of 
Possible Actions 
(2015-20) (Exhibit 
C)

60

Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 233 of 246



Updated 12/09/14
MTAC and TPAC Recommendation on Comments Received

33 of 43

# Exhibit Comment Source(s) Date Recommendation
61 Toolbox of 

Possible Actions 
(2015-20) (Exhibit 
C)

Draft toolbox introduction does not 
adequately convey the flexibility and 
local control intended for the toolbox. 
The toolbox should be adopted with 
language that more strongly conveys it 
is a flexible, living document that can be 
updated and refined as we learn more.

Ruth Adkins, 
Portland Public 

Schools

11/7/14 This comment was addressed in part in 
staff recommendation on Comment #56 
in this section..

Based on November 7 discussion, staff 
also recommends the following changes 
be made:

Amend toolbox introduction to better 
reflect language included in ordinance 
adopting the Climate Smart Strategy and 
supporting staff report.

62 Toolbox of 
Possible Actions 
(2015-20) (Exhibit 
C)

Add glossary to toolbox to improve 
clarity

Jim Bernards, 
Clackamas 

County 
Commissioner

11/7/14 This comment was addressed in the staff 
recommendation on Comment #58 on in 
this section.

63 Toolbox of 
Possible Actions 
(2015-20) (Exhibit 
C)

Add implementing local transportation 
system plans to toolbox and strategy

Paul Savas, 
Clackamas 

County 
Commissioner

11/7/14 Amend toolbox as requested and amend 
Exhibit A to more clearly describe that 
local transportation system plans (and 
local land use plans) are components of 
the Climate Smart Strategy.

See also recommendation on comment 
#20 in in the Exhibit A section.

64 Toolbox of 
Possible Actions 
(2015-20) (Exhibit 
C)

Revise page 2, Metro Actions:  
“Leverage Metro’s and the region’s 
public investments to maintain and 
create affordable housing options . . .”  

We previously expressed concern 
previously that linking affordable housing 
to climate smart was overly broad.  
Limiting Metro’s actions in this area  to 
what’s within Metro’s control will help 
alleviate concerns.

City of Hillsboro 11/24/14 Amend as requested.

Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 234 of 246



Updated 12/09/14
MTAC and TPAC Recommendation on Comments Received

34 of 43

# Exhibit Comment Source(s) Date Recommendation
65 Toolbox of 

Possible Actions 
(2015-20) (Exhibit 
C)

 Page 5, “Adopt a Vision Zero strategy” 
– as indicated in our October 30 letter, 
this tool needs evaluation of the 
monetary implications.  Specifically, the 
definition provided indicates this can 
include, among other actions, “improved 
engineering, operation and design.”  
What is the cost of this strategy?  Who is 
paying?  A better near-term action would 
be to discuss the implications, costs and 
benefits of this strategy, including how 
the implementations measure may 
already be accounted for in locally 
adopted plans.  We also have a question 
as to who is best to adopt the strategy.

City of Hillsboro 11/24/14 Amend to move this potential action to 
the near-term (2017-20).  As has been 
noted, tthe toolbox is advisory so local 
governments and others may choose to 
implement this action in the near-term, 
longer term or not at all.

66 Toolbox of 
Possible Actions 
(2015-20) (Exhibit 
C)

Add the following definitions to the 
glossary

Workplace charging challenge
Oregon Zero Emission Vehicle Program
Drive Oregon
Energize Oregon Coalition

City of Hillsboro 11/24/14 Amend as requested.

67 Toolbox of 
Possible Actions 
(2015-20) (Exhibit 
C)

Page 9, secure adequate funding for 
transportation investments, add a new 
action that reads "Seek and advocate 
for funding the adopted RTP" 
recognizing the intent is to seek and 
advocate for funding aligned with the 
adopted State RTP for transit and 
system and demand management 
strategies and the federal-financially 
constrained RTP for roads and active 
transportation.

TPAC 11/24/14 Amend as requested

One of the three Early Actions TPAC will 
be discussing is to advocate for 
increased funding for all transportation 
modes and well over half of the 
recommended investments in the draft 
approach are road projects that will not 
help the region reduce greenhouse gas 
emissions. 

Given the technical analysis that shows 
that investments in transit and active 
transportation have the greatest climate 
benefit, the recognized multiple social, 
environmental, and economic benefits of 
improving our transit and active 
transportation systems, and the strong 
support that the public has shown in 
elevating transit and active 
transportation above the other strategies 
– the Approach, Toolbox, Performance 
Monitoring, and Early Actions should all 
be aligned to prioritize investments in 
transit and active transportation.  We 
support the language of Early Action #3. 

We would like to see similar language 
that makes clear the necessity to 
prioritize greenhouse gas emissions-
reducing projects, and recommend that 
Metro convene an oversight committee 
made up of transportation, land use, 
public health, environmental, and social 
justice advocates and professionals.

Toolbox of 
Possible Actions 
(2015-20) (Exhibit 
C)

68 Transportation 
Justice Alliance

10/30/14 No change to Exhibit C recommended. 
The Climate Smart Strategy will be 
further implemented through the next 
update to the Regional Transportation 
Plan, which will consider the relative 
greenhouse gas emissions reduction 
potential of investments and other fiscal, 
economic, public health, environmental 
and equity outcomes to inform prioritizing 
investments. 

See also the recommendation on 
Comments #13, 14, 17 in the Exhibit A 
section and Comment #18 in the Exhibit 
D section for additional context and 
explanation.

Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 235 of 246



Updated 12/09/14
MTAC and TPAC Recommendation on Comments Received

35 of 43

# Exhibit Comment Source(s) Date Recommendation

End of comments and recommended changes to Exhibit C

One of the three Early Actions TPAC will 
be discussing is to advocate for 
increased funding for all transportation 
modes and well over half of the 
recommended investments in the draft 
approach are road projects that will not 
help the region reduce greenhouse gas 
emissions. 

Given the technical analysis that shows 
that investments in transit and active 
transportation have the greatest climate 
benefit, the recognized multiple social, 
environmental, and economic benefits of 
improving our transit and active 
transportation systems, and the strong 
support that the public has shown in 
elevating transit and active 
transportation above the other strategies 
– the Approach, Toolbox, Performance 
Monitoring, and Early Actions should all 
be aligned to prioritize investments in 
transit and active transportation.  We 
support the language of Early Action #3. 

We would like to see similar language 
that makes clear the necessity to 
prioritize greenhouse gas emissions-
reducing projects, and recommend that 
Metro convene an oversight committee 
made up of transportation, land use, 
public health, environmental, and social 
justice advocates and professionals.

Toolbox of 
Possible Actions 
(2015-20) (Exhibit 
C)

68 Transportation 
Justice Alliance

10/30/14 No change to Exhibit C recommended. 
The Climate Smart Strategy will be 
further implemented through the next 
update to the Regional Transportation 
Plan, which will consider the relative 
greenhouse gas emissions reduction 
potential of investments and other fiscal, 
economic, public health, environmental 
and equity outcomes to inform prioritizing 
investments. 

See also the recommendation on 
Comments #13, 14, 17 in the Exhibit A 
section and Comment #18 in the Exhibit 
D section for additional context and 
explanation.

Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 236 of 246



Updated 12/09/14
MTAC and TPAC Recommendation on Comments Received

36 of 43

# Exhibit Comment Source(s) Date Recommendation

1 Performance 
Monitoring 
Approach (Exhibit 
D)

Use model assumptions or outputs for 
2035 to define targets for purposes of 
monitoring and assessing whether key 
elements of the Climate Smart Strategy 
are being implemented.

Metro staff in 
consultation 

with DLCD staff

10/24/14 Amend as requested.

The measure and target will be reviewed 
as part of the next scheduled update to 
the RTP.

2 Performance 
Monitoring 
Approach (Exhibit 
D)

The performance monitoring should 
explicitly include measurement of equity 
outcomes. For example, share of low-
income households near transit.

Safe Routes to 
School National 

Partnership

10/28/14 Amend as requested.  

The measure and target will be reviewed 
as part of the next scheduled update to 
the RTP.

3 Performance 
Monitoring 
Approach (Exhibit 
D)

Ensure social equity and health goals 
are considered when prioritizing 
investments by explicitly and 
transparently addressing how 
investments link low-income and other 
vulnerable households to health-
promoting resources.

Oregon Health 
Authority

10/7/14 No change recommended to Exhibit D. 
See also recommendation on Comments 
#4 and #5 in this section. 

This project underscored the significant 
public health, economic and equity 
benefits of actions and investments that 
reduce greenhouse gas emissions. 
Metro's Equity Strategy (currently under 
development) and the Climate Smart 
Strategy Health Impact Assessment and 
recommendations will inform how future 
regional planning efforts (including RTP 
updates) will consider equity and public 
health. 

4 Performance 
Monitoring 
Approach (Exhibit 
D)

Maximize health benefits by monitoring 
key health indicators, expanding 
partnerships that promote health and 
developing tools to support the 
consideration of health impacts in future 
land use and transportation decisions 
throughout the region.

Oregon Health 
Authority

10/7/14 No change recommended to Exhibit D. 

This comment has been forwarded to the 
Metro staff responsible for Metro's Equity 
Strategy (currently under development). 
The process has identified potential 
health indicators for Metro and other 
partners to monitor given the link 
between health and social equity. A 
baseline report and performance 
measures recommendations are 
expected in 2015.

5 Performance 
Monitoring 
Approach (Exhibit 
D)

ODOT and Metro should continue 
working with other State and regional 
partners, such as the Oregon Modeling 
Steering Committee and Health and 
Transportation Subcommittee of the 
OMSC, to develop tools to support 
assessments that measure the impact 
future plans have on air quality, safety, 
active transportation and climate 
change.

Oregon Health 
Authority

10/7/14 No change recommended to Exhibit D; 
however amend Exhibit C, Toolbox of 
Possible Actions, as follows: 

"Continue participating in the Oregon 
Modeling Steering Committee Health 
and Transportation Subcommittee to 
make recommendations to ODOT on 
tools and methods to support future 
health assessments by local, regional 
and state partners."

This would be a new action for the State 
and for Metro. The work will continue in 
2015 and 2016.

Comments on Performance Monitoring Approach (Exhibit D)

Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 237 of 246



Updated 12/09/14
MTAC and TPAC Recommendation on Comments Received

37 of 43

# Exhibit Comment Source(s) Date Recommendation
6 Performance 

Monitoring 
Approach (Exhibit 
D)

Page 1, add transit ridership as a 
measure.  Transit revenue hours only 
tells part of the story.

Community 
leaders meeting

10/1/14 Amend as requested. 

This measure is currently reported every 
two years by Metro in response to ORS 
197.301 and as part of federally-required 
updates to the RTP. 

The measure and target will be reviewed 
as part of the next scheduled update to 
the RTP.

7 Performance 
Monitoring 
Approach (Exhibit 
D)

Page 1, add a transit affordability 
measure, such as tracking transit fares 
over time compared to inflation.

Community 
leaders 

meeting, 
Transportation 
Justice Alliance

10/1/14, 
10/30/14

Amend as requested.

The measure and target will be reviewed 
as part of the next scheduled update to 
the RTP.

8 Performance 
Monitoring 
Approach (Exhibit 
D)

Page 1, add household 
housing/transportation cost burden 
measure to monitor housing and 
transportation affordability in the region 
and link it to a goal to reduce the 
percentage of cost-burdened 
households, by increasing affordable 
housing, in transit centers and corridors.

Community 
leaders 

meeting, 1000 
Friends of 

Oregon, Oregon 
Environmental 

Council, 
Coalition for a 
Livable Future, 
Transportation 
Justice Alliance

10/1/14, 
10/15/14, 
10/22/14, 
10/30/14, 
10/30/14

Amend as requested. 

Chapter 1, Objective 1.3.3 of the 
Regional Framework Plan includes a 
policy to reduce the share of housing and 
transportation cost-burdened households. 
This measure is  currently reported as 
part of scheduled updates to the RTP and 
the Urban Growth Report. The RTP also 
identifies a target to reduce the 
percentage of cost-burdened households.

The measure and target will be reviewed 
as part of the next scheduled update to 
the RTP.

9 Performance 
Monitoring 
Approach (Exhibit 
D)

Add daily pedestrian and bicycle miles 
traveled or time measure, and set a 
target of meeting or exceeding 1.8 miles 
walked and 3.4 miles cycled per person 
per week by 2035 as projected in the 
Draft Approach to emphasize the health 
benefits. The largest public health 
benefits come from increases in active 
transportation distance and/or time. 

Community 
leaders 

meeting, 
Oregon Health 
Authority, 1000 

Friends of 
Oregon

10/1/14, 
10/7/14, 
10/22/14

No change recommended to Exhibit D. 

Average daily miles of bicycle and 
pedestrian travel is already proposed as 
a measure, using model outputs to 
establish a 2010 baseline and 2035 
target for daily bicycle and pedestrian 
miles traveled. This measure will be 
reported as part of federally-required 
updates to the RTP (currently every four 
years).

The measure and target will be reviewed 
as part of the next federally-required 
update to the RTP.

10 Performance 
Monitoring 
Approach (Exhibit 
D)

Add a measure to track regional ambient 
concentrations of PM 2.5 and set target 
to reduce to 6.41 ug/m3 or below as 
projected in the draft Approach analysis.

Oregon Health 
Authority, 1000 

Friends of 
Oregon

10/7/14, 
10/22/14

Amend as requested to use model 
outputs to monitor for PM 2.5 as part of 
monitoring approach. 

This measure is currently reported every 
two years by Metro in response to ORS 
197.301 and scheduled updates to the 
RTP as part of the region's air quality 
conformity analysis.  

The measure and target will be reviewed 
as part of the next scheduled update to 
the RTP.

Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 238 of 246



Updated 12/09/14
MTAC and TPAC Recommendation on Comments Received

38 of 43

# Exhibit Comment Source(s) Date Recommendation
11 Performance 

Monitoring 
Approach (Exhibit 
D)

Revise target for fatalities and serious 
injury crashes for all modes to be zero 
by 2035.

Community 
leaders 

meeting, 
National Safe 

Routes to 
School 

Partnership

10/1/14, 
10/28/14

No change recommended to Exhibit D. 

The target reflects targets adopted in the 
2014 RTP, which calls for reducing 
serious and severe injury crashes by 50 
percent from 2010 levels. The adopted 
target will be reviewed as part of the next 
scheduled update to the RTP in 2016-18 
and the Regional Transportation Safety 
Action Plan in 2015-16.

12 Performance 
Monitoring 
Approach (Exhibit 
D)

Add specific actions that Metro will take 
to incent, reward success and penalize 
failure in achieving progress toward 
meeting the adopted Climate Smart 
Strategy.

1000 Friends of 
Oregon, 

National Safe 
Routes to 

School 
Partnership

10/22/14, 
10/28/14

No change recommended to Exhibit D. 
See also recommendation on comment 
#21 in Exhibit B section.

The performance monitoring approach 
calls for Metro to report identified 
performance measures to DLCD and the 
region to inform policymakers on the 
region's progress toward implementing 
the Climate Smart Strategy. Chapter 7 
(Management), Action 7.8.6 of the 
Regional Framework Plan calls for Metro 
to "Take corrective actions if anticipated 
progress is found to be lacking or if Metro 
goals or policies need adjustment..." 

13 Performance 
Monitoring 
Approach (Exhibit 
D)

Set benchmark dates for evaluating 
progress on the immediate and near-
term actions and a commitment to take 
appropriate steps, if necessary, to 
maintain progress towards the target 
GHG reduction.

1000 Friends of 
Oregon, 

National Safe 
Routes to 

School 
Partnership

10/22/14, 
10/28/14

No change recommended to Exhibit D. 
See also Comment 12 in this section and 
comments 20-21 in Exhibit B section.

The performance monitoring approach 
calls for Metro to report identified 
performance measures to DLCD and the 
region every 2-4 years to inform 
policymakers on the region's progress 
toward implementing the Climate Smart 
Strategy. Chapter 7 (Management), 
Action 7.8.6 of the Regional Framework 
Plan calls for Metro to "Take corrective 
actions if anticipated progress is found to 
be lacking or if Metro goals or policies 
need adjustment..." 

Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 239 of 246



Updated 12/09/14
MTAC and TPAC Recommendation on Comments Received

39 of 43

# Exhibit Comment Source(s) Date Recommendation
14 Performance 

Monitoring 
Approach (Exhibit 
D)

Review the indicators developed for 
Mosaic, the value and cost informed 
transportation planning tool recently 
developed by ODOT, to determine 
whether any of the quantitative and 
qualitative indicators are appropriate to 
use.

Oregon 
Environmental 

Council

10/15/14 No change recommended to Exhibit D. 

Staff reviewed the Mosaic indicators, 
some of which are still under 
development by ODOT. Several Mosaic 
indicators are already included in the 
performance monitoring approach. All of 
the measures and recommended targets 
will be reviewed, and possibly refined, as 
part of the next federally-required update 
to the RTP. The next update will also 
address MAP-21 performance-based 
planning provisions and 
recommendations from Metro's Equity 
Strategy initiative. Staff will review the 
Mosaic indicators again at that time to 
determine whether additional indicators 
may be appropriate to use. 

15 Performance 
Monitoring 
Approach (Exhibit 
D)

Page 3, add public EV charging stations 
as measure for the policy related to 
Oregon's transition to cleaner fuels and 
more fuel-efficient vehicles

Oregon 
Environmental 

Council

10/15/14 No change recommended to Exhibit D. 

Tracking the share of light duty vehicles 
registered in Oregon that are electric or 
plug-in hybrid electric is a more direct 
measure of Oregon's transition to more 
fuel efficient vehicle technologies.

16 Performance 
Monitoring 
Approach (Exhibit 
D)

Page 1, adopt a measure for 20-minute 
neighborhood for the policy “Implement 
the 2040 Growth Concept and local 
adopted land use and transportation 
plans.”

Oregon 
Environmental 

Council

10/15/14 Amend as follows: 

Add a new measure to track the share of 
households living in areas with relatively 
good, walkable access to a mix of 
destinations that support a range of daily 
needs (e.g., jobs, retail and commercial 
services, transit, parks, schools). 
GreenSTEP estimated 26% of the 
region's households lived in these types 
of areas in 2010, and that the share of 
households would grow to 37% by 2035. 

The measure and target will be reviewed 
as part of the next scheduled update to 
the RTP.

17 Performance 
Monitoring 
Approach (Exhibit 
D)

Page 3, develop a more specific 
measure for the policy area “secure 
adequate funding for transportation 
investments,"such as  e.g., 60% of 
transit needs met by 20XX, 75% of 
sidewalk infrastructure complete by 
20XX.

Community 
leaders 

meeting, 
Oregon 

Environmental 
Council

10/1/14, 
10/15/14

No change recommended to Exhibit D. 

The performance monitoring approach 
includes measures to track system 
completeness. In addition, the next 
update to the Regional Transportation 
Plan (due in 2018) will update financial 
assumptions and define performance 
measures to track implementation.

Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 240 of 246



Updated 12/09/14
MTAC and TPAC Recommendation on Comments Received

40 of 43

# Exhibit Comment Source(s) Date Recommendation
No change recommended to Exhibit D. 

The Climate Smart Strategy will be 
implemented through existing regional 
planning and decision-making processes, 
including RTP updates, RFFA processes, 
growth management decisions and 
corridor planning, as well as through local 
and state planning and decision-making 
processes, rather than a specific Climate 
Smart implementation program. Through 
its planning processes, in coordination 
with its Equity Strategy (currently under 
development), Metro is committed to 
continue to improve its engagement 
practices to ensure more diverse 
perspectives – especially those of 
traditionally underrepresented 
communities – are meaningfully engaged 
in regional planning, decision-making, 
and on-going implementation activities. 

Future public engagement processes will 
be developed in coordination with Metro’s 
diversity, equity and inclusion program 
and Metro's existing advisory 
committees, and follow the best practices 
and processes set out in Metro’s Public 
Engagement Guide. 

Staff will begin scoping the work plan and 
engagement process for the next 
scheduled update to the RTP in 2015. 
Consideration will be given to the type of 
committee to provide oversight of 
engagement, technical and policy work, 
including use of existing advisory 
committees. The update is expected to 
occur over multiple years in order to 
address federal and state planning 
requirements and policy considerations 
and engagement recommendations 
identified through the Climate Smart 
Communities effort and the 2014 RTP 
update. 

10/22/14, 
10/30/14

1000 Friends of 
Oregon, 

Transportation 
Justice Alliance

Metro should establish a public 
engagement process that is diverse and 
inclusive to oversee implementation of 
the Climate Smart Strategy.

Performance 
Monitoring 
Approach (Exhibit 
D)

18

Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 241 of 246



Updated 12/09/14
MTAC and TPAC Recommendation on Comments Received

41 of 43

# Exhibit Comment Source(s) Date Recommendation
19 Performance 

Monitoring 
Approach (Exhibit 
D)

Add measure to track congestion Paul Savas, 
Clackamas 

County 
Commissioner

11/7/14 Amend Exhibit A to add definition of travel 
time reliability and amend Exhibit D to 
include travel time and reliability as part 
of the monitoring approach.

The draft performance monitoring 
approach includes travel time reliability in 
regional mobility corridors, which 
complements other system performance 
measures identified in the Regional 
Transportation Plan and that are also 
used to regularly update the Regional 
Mobility Atlas to meet federally-required 
reporting and monitoring of the region’s 
congestion management process. 

The Regional Mobility Atlas will be 
updated as part of the next RTP update. 
The 2010 atlas can be viewed online at 
/www.oregonmetro.gov/mobility-corridors-
atlas

No change to Exhibit D recommended. 

The proposed performance measures are 
intended to track regional progress 
towards meeting greenhouse gas 
reduction goals. While jobs/housing 
balance is important from the perspective 
of local community design, staff believes 
that cities are best positioned to decide 
how to produce more housing or jobs in 
their communities. Consequently, staff 
does not recommend a change to the 
proposed regional performance 
monitoring approaching. Cities and 
counties may wish to track local 
jobs/housing balance to inform their 
efforts.

11/7/14Mayor Tim 
Knapp, Cities of 
Clackamas 
County

Add jobs/housing balance measurePerformance 
Monitoring 
Approach (Exhibit 
D)

20

Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 242 of 246



Updated 12/09/14
MTAC and TPAC Recommendation on Comments Received

42 of 43

# Exhibit Comment Source(s) Date Recommendation
Amend as follows: 

(1) Add new measure for share of 
households living in mixed-use 
development as this is a key planning 
element of the Climate Smart Strategy. 

The other land use measures identified 
reflect planning assumptions of the 
adopted 2012  growth distribution used 
for purposes of analyzing the Climate 
Smart Strategy and will continue to be 
monitored as part of ongoing reporting 
required by ORS 197.301.

(2) Amend Exhibit D to further explain the 
following:
(a) the 2035 targets and planning 
assumptions identified in the table are 
performance monitoring targets (not 
policy targets) 
(b) together the measures and 
performance monitoring targets reflect  
planning assumptions and/or desired 
outcomes for key elements of the Climate 
Smart Strategy; 
(c) monitoring and assessment will occur 
through scheduled updates to the RTP, 
Urban Growth Report and reporting in 
response to ORS 197.301 and OR. 
197.296;
(d) if the assessment finds the region is 
deviating significantly from the Climate 
Smart Strategy assumptions/ 
performance monitoring target, then 
Metro will work with local, regional and 
state partners to consider the revision or 
replacement of policies, strategies and 
actions to ensure the region remains on 
track with meeting the per capita 
greenhouse gas emissions reduction 
target; and
(e) the measures and targets will be 
reviewed and potentially refined prior to 
being incorporated in the RTP as part of 
the next scheduled RTP update.
In addition, at the Dec. 3 MTAC meeting, 
DLCD staff indicated the performance 
monitoring approach must include a 
measure and performance monitoring 
target for each of the key elements 
recommended in the Climate Smart 
Strategy. As part of addressing the above 
amendments and DLCD staff comments, 
update the table in Exhibit D to add the 
key planning assumptions included in the 
Climate Smart Strategy for arterial and 
freeway delay reduction and parking 
management and add “parking 
management” to the list of measures 
identified in Section 7.8.6 of the Chapter 
7 of the RFP amendments as a measure 
that will be monitored

11/24/14city of HillsboroNew measure 1a is relevant to the 
regional target for reduction of 
greenhouse gas emissions from light 
duty vehicles. Lliving in a walkable, 
mixed use area will provide the 
opportunity to meet daily needs without 
driving.  However, the proposed targets 
of 1b and 1c – increasing percentage of 
infill development while decreasing 
development in vacant lands, 
respectively – do not necessarily 
contribute to the region’s ability to meet 
targets, as all infill/new development is 
created equal.  

For the following considerations, we 
propose reverting back to tracking v. 
setting specific targets:
o   Development in newly added areas 
to the UGB (e.g. vacant land) can be 
developed in a manner to create 
walkable/bikeable, complete 
communities.  This would have a more 
positive impact than infill in areas that 
are not well served by transit or active 
transportation.
o   The assumptions in the modeling are 
not backed up by policy.  As we’ve heard 
from around the region, a few 
jurisdictions would like to see more effort 
on jobs/housing balance. 
o   Before targets are set, the region 
needs to have an engaged policy 
discussion. 

 Similarly, 1d should revert to tracking 
with no target.  One of the policy 
questions for 2015 to inform Metro’s 
growth management decision is what is 
the correct assumption for new urban 
areas.  As is being recognized by raising 
that question, assuming high density 
housing in new urban areas may not be 
realistic nor may it meet housing type 
demand.    

Performance 
Monitoring 
Approach (Exhibit 
D)

21

Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 243 of 246



Updated 12/09/14
MTAC and TPAC Recommendation on Comments Received

43 of 43

# Exhibit Comment Source(s) Date Recommendation

End of comments and recommended changes to Exhibit D

Amend as follows: 

(1) Add new measure for share of 
households living in mixed-use 
development as this is a key planning 
element of the Climate Smart Strategy. 

The other land use measures identified 
reflect planning assumptions of the 
adopted 2012  growth distribution used 
for purposes of analyzing the Climate 
Smart Strategy and will continue to be 
monitored as part of ongoing reporting 
required by ORS 197.301.

(2) Amend Exhibit D to further explain the 
following:
(a) the 2035 targets and planning 
assumptions identified in the table are 
performance monitoring targets (not 
policy targets) 
(b) together the measures and 
performance monitoring targets reflect  
planning assumptions and/or desired 
outcomes for key elements of the Climate 
Smart Strategy; 
(c) monitoring and assessment will occur 
through scheduled updates to the RTP, 
Urban Growth Report and reporting in 
response to ORS 197.301 and OR. 
197.296;
(d) if the assessment finds the region is 
deviating significantly from the Climate 
Smart Strategy assumptions/ 
performance monitoring target, then 
Metro will work with local, regional and 
state partners to consider the revision or 
replacement of policies, strategies and 
actions to ensure the region remains on 
track with meeting the per capita 
greenhouse gas emissions reduction 
target; and
(e) the measures and targets will be 
reviewed and potentially refined prior to 
being incorporated in the RTP as part of 
the next scheduled RTP update.
In addition, at the Dec. 3 MTAC meeting, 
DLCD staff indicated the performance 
monitoring approach must include a 
measure and performance monitoring 
target for each of the key elements 
recommended in the Climate Smart 
Strategy. As part of addressing the above 
amendments and DLCD staff comments, 
update the table in Exhibit D to add the 
key planning assumptions included in the 
Climate Smart Strategy for arterial and 
freeway delay reduction and parking 
management and add “parking 
management” to the list of measures 
identified in Section 7.8.6 of the Chapter 
7 of the RFP amendments as a measure 
that will be monitored

11/24/14city of HillsboroNew measure 1a is relevant to the 
regional target for reduction of 
greenhouse gas emissions from light 
duty vehicles. Lliving in a walkable, 
mixed use area will provide the 
opportunity to meet daily needs without 
driving.  However, the proposed targets 
of 1b and 1c – increasing percentage of 
infill development while decreasing 
development in vacant lands, 
respectively – do not necessarily 
contribute to the region’s ability to meet 
targets, as all infill/new development is 
created equal.  

For the following considerations, we 
propose reverting back to tracking v. 
setting specific targets:
o   Development in newly added areas 
to the UGB (e.g. vacant land) can be 
developed in a manner to create 
walkable/bikeable, complete 
communities.  This would have a more 
positive impact than infill in areas that 
are not well served by transit or active 
transportation.
o   The assumptions in the modeling are 
not backed up by policy.  As we’ve heard 
from around the region, a few 
jurisdictions would like to see more effort 
on jobs/housing balance. 
o   Before targets are set, the region 
needs to have an engaged policy 
discussion. 

 Similarly, 1d should revert to tracking 
with no target.  One of the policy 
questions for 2015 to inform Metro’s 
growth management decision is what is 
the correct assumption for new urban 
areas.  As is being recognized by raising 
that question, assuming high density 
housing in new urban areas may not be 
realistic nor may it meet housing type 
demand.    

Performance 
Monitoring 
Approach (Exhibit 
D)

21

End of comments on Short List of Actions  (Exhibit E)

Comments on Short List of Actions  (Exhibit F)
No change to Exhibit F recommended, 
however recommend amending Exhibit C 
(Toolbox) to acknowledge geometric 
designs and smaller scale improvements 
to address intersection bottlenecks in 
combination with other strategies can 
help address delay and associated 
greenhouse gas emissions. See also 
recommendation on Comment #14 and 
#19 on Exhibit A. 

11/7/14Paul Savas, 
Clackamas 
County 
Commissioner

Add congestion reduction as a potential 
demonstration project in the short list of 
actions

Short List of 
Actions for 2015 
and 2016

1

Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 244 of 246



	  

	  

Appendix	  G.	  

	  

	  

Verbatim	  comments	  
from	  online	  survey	  

Questions	  1-‐7	  
	  

	  

	  

	  

	  

	  

	  

Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 245 of 246

http://rim.metro-region.org/webdrawer/webdrawer.dll/webdrawer/rec/340471/view/
http://rim.metro-region.org/webdrawer/webdrawer.dll/webdrawer/rec/340471/view/
kimellis
Typewritten Text
Click on box to download

kimellis
Typewritten Text

kimellis
Typewritten Text



	  

	  

Appendix	  H.	  

	  

	  

Verbatim	  comments	  
from	  online	  survey	  

Question	  8	  
	  

Attachment 3 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B Page 246 of 246

http://rim.metro-region.org/webdrawer/webdrawer.dll/webdrawer/rec/340474/view/
http://rim.metro-region.org/webdrawer/webdrawer.dll/webdrawer/rec/340474/view/
kimellis
Typewritten Text
Click on box to download

kimellis
Typewritten Text



Updated 12/09/14
MTAC and TPAC Recommendation on Comments Received

Attachment 4 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B

1 of 43

# Exhibit Comment Source(s) Date Recommendation
1 Climate Smart 

Strategy (Exhibit 
A)

Add a description of the Statewide 
Transportation Strategy and state fleet 
and technology assumptions included in 
the Climate Smart Strategy in the 
document to provide broader context of 
the relationship of the Climate Smart 
Strategy to state actions.

Angus Duncan, 
Drive Oregon

10/2/14, 
10/28/14

2 Climate Smart 
Strategy (Exhibit 
A)

Support state efforts to transition to 
cleaner, low carbon fuels, more fuel-
effiicient vehicles and transit fleet 
upgrades.

Oregon Health 
Authority

10/7/14

3 Climate Smart 
Strategy (Exhibit 
A)

Support active transportation and transit 
levels of investment, but deprioritize 
road widening and highways projects 
given the relative low greenhouse gas 
emissions reduction. Recommending 
$20.8 billion of spending on road 
projects likely overstates the regions real 
road funding priority, which is fixing and 
maintaining existing roads, not building 
new or expanded roads and highways.

BTA and 45 
community 
members

10/21-
10/30/14

4 Climate Smart 
Strategy (Exhibit 
A)

Prioritize expanding transit and providing 
travel information and incentives to 
reduce VMT and encourage active 
modes.

Oregon Health 
Authority

10/7/14

5 Climate Smart 
Strategy (Exhibit 
A)

Rather than a blanket statement of 
prioritizing transit, local governments 
within transportation corridors needs to 
prioritize improvements. While transit 
may be a priority where there is a 
complete road network, in other 
locations completing road connections 
may be a prerequisite to transit. Simply 
stating that transit is a funding priority is 
too simplistic given the diversity and 
complexity of the region.

City of Hillsboro 10/30/14

Comments On the Climate Smart Strategy (Exhibit A)

The public review drafts of the Climate Smart Strategy (Exhibit A), Regional Framework Plan Amendments (Exhibit B), Toolbox of Possible 
Actions (2015-20) (Exhibit C) and Performance Monitoring Approach (Exhibit D) were released for final public review from Sept. 15 to Oct. 
30, 2014. The Short List of Actions for 2015 and 2016 (Exhibit E) was developed from Exhibit C by TPAC and MTAC for consideration by 
MPAC, JPACT and the Metro Council.

Metro's technical and policy advisory committees discussed and identified potential refinements to the public review materials at their 
October and November meetings. Public agencies, advocacy groups and members of the public submitted comments in writing, through 
Metro's website and in testimony provided at a public hearing held by the Metro Council on Oct. 30, 2014. 

This document summarizes recommended changes to respond to all substantive comments received during the comment period and 
subsequent advisory committee discussions. New wording is shown in bold underline; deleted words are bold crossed out. Wording in 
unbolded underline text was included in the public review drafts of each exhibit. Amendments identified below are reflected in Exhibits A-E to 
Ordinance No. 14-1346B.

Climate Smart Communities Scenarios Project
Summary of Recommended Changes
(comments received Sept. 15 through Oct. 30, 2014 and subsequent advisory committee discussions)

Amend Exhibit A as requested to add a 
description of the Statewide 
Transportation Strategy and state fleet 
and technology assumptions included in 
the Climate Smart Strategy.

In addition, the Toolbox of Possible 
Actions identifies specific actions that the 
state, Metro, local government and 
special districts are encouraged to take to 
support Oregon's transition to cleaner, 
low carbon fuels, more fuel-effiicient 
vehicles and transit fleet upgrades.

No change recommended to Exhibit A. 
See also recommendation for Comment 
#15 in Exhibit B comments section.

Comments 3 and 4 have been forward to 
the Regional Transportation Plan (RTP) 
project team. The next scheduled update 
to the RTP will provide the forum for 
reviewing the plan's investment priorities 
within the context of updated financial 
assumptions, a new growth forecast, 
updated ODOT, TriMet and local TSP 
priorities, new policy guidance from the 
state or federal level, and the more 
comprehensive set of outcomes the RTP 
is working to achieve. 



Updated 12/09/14
MTAC and TPAC Recommendation on Comments Received

Attachment 4 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B

2 of 43

# Exhibit Comment Source(s) Date Recommendation
6 Climate Smart 

Strategy (Exhibit 
A)

Adding High Capacity Transit (HCT) in 
Tigard will NOT significantly reduce 
congestion now or in the future.

John Smith 9/19/14 No change recommended to Exhibit A . 

This comment has been forwarded to the 
Southwest Corridor project team for 
consideration in the planning process 
currently underway. SW Corridor Study 
recommendations will be incorporated in 
the Regional Transportation Plan.

7 Climate Smart 
Strategy (Exhibit 
A)

20% by 2035 is ridiculous too slow. We 
should be doing 20% by 2015. The 
Germans have reduced their emissions 
by 25%. The planet is cooking. By 2035, 
will we even be here? How can we 
speed this up? Set higher reductions.

Karen Davis 9/19/14 No change recommended to Exhibit A.  

The Climate Smart Strategy, when 
implemented, will result in a 29% 
reduction by 2035.  

8 Climate Smart 
Strategy (Exhibit 
A)

Adopt and implement investments and 
strategies that reduce per capita VMT 
from 130 to less than 107 miles per 
week.

Oregon Health 
Authority

10/7/14 No change needed to Exhibit A. 

The Climate Smart Strategy as proposed 
is expected to achieve these VMT per 
capita reductions when implemented.

9 Climate Smart 
Strategy (Exhibit 
A)

Protect communities who live, work and 
attend school near highways and major 
roads through siting, design and/or 
mechanical systems that reduce indoor 
pollution.

Oregon Health 
Authority

10/7/14 No change recommended to Exhibit A. 
This comment has been forwarded to 
RTP project staff for consideration in the 
next scheduled plan update. 

While this is an important issue that 
needs to be addressed, policies and best 
practices should be developed through 
other efforts such as the Regional 
Transportation Plan. Noise pollution is 
another related issue.

10 Climate Smart 
Strategy (Exhibit 
A)

Commuter rail between Salem and 
Portland is needed; existing vanpools 
are not frequent enough and get stuck in 
traffic.

Mike DeBlasi 10/16/14 No change recommended to Exhibit A.   

This strategy is idientified in the Toolbox 
of Possible Actions (Exhibit B). The 2014 
RTP and Oregon Statewide 
Transportation Strategy (STS) includes a 
policy to support expanded commuter rail 
and intercity transit service to neighboring 
communities. Analysis completed in 2010 
as part of the High Capacity Transit 
(HCT) plan showed the Portland to 
Salem/Keizer area as the most promising 
of the commuter rail corridors evaluated. 
Responding to House Bill 2408, ODOT 
and other partners are currently 
developing proposals to improve the 
speed, frequncy and reliability of 
passenger rail service in this corridor and 
beyond. Improvements are anticipated in 
the 2017-2020 time period. More 
information can be found at 
http://www.oregonpassengerrail.org



Updated 12/09/14
MTAC and TPAC Recommendation on Comments Received

Attachment 4 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B

3 of 43

# Exhibit Comment Source(s) Date Recommendation
11 Climate Smart 

Strategy (Exhibit 
A)

Find opportunities to add references on 
the need to prepare for and adapt to the 
changing climate and begin work to 
address climate preparation at a 
regional level building on the Climate 
Smart Communities work and other work 
completed by the City of Portland and 
Multnomah County, which can be found 
at: www.portlandoregon.gov/bps/64079

Urban 
Greenspaces 

Institute, 
Coalition for A 
Livable Future, 

Citizen's 
Climate Lobby

10/27/14, 
10/30/14, 
10/30/14

Amend Exhibit A as follows: 

Include references on the expected 
climate impacts in Oregon and the need 
for both mitigation and adaption 
strategies. In addition, updates to Metro's 
Best Practices in Street Design 
handbooks in 2015 and the next RTP 
update present opportunities to further 
address climate preparation as it relates 
to transportation infrastructure. Staff will 
begin scoping the work plan for the next 
scheduled update to the RTP in 2015. 
The update is expected to occur over 
multiple years in order to address federal 
and state planning requirements and 
policy considerations and engagement 
recommendations identified through the 
Climate Smart Communities effort and 
the 2014 RTP update. 

Amend Exhibit A as follows:  

Clarify the transit element allows for local 
or supplemental service such as the 
South Metro Area Regional Transit 
(SMART) district and the GroveLink 
service in Forest Grove to complement 
regional transit service. 

In this example, Ride Connection 
partnered with TriMet and the city of 
Forest Grove to operate this 
supplemental local service. The service 
need was identified through TriMet's 
Westside Service Enhancement Plan 
effort and past planning by the City of 
Forest Grove. TriMet will continue 
working with local governments, 
businesses and other partners to develop 
a SEP for other parts of the regionthat 
identify and prioritize opportunities to 
improve bus service as well as pedestrian 
and bike access to transit. SEP 
recommendations will be addressed as 
part of the next update to the RTP.  

More information about the SEPs can be 
found at future.trimet.org

10/22/1412 Clackmas 
County Board of 
Commissioners

Assure the Climate Smart Communities 
Strategy provides opportunity to 
experiment and innovate with local or 
supplemental transit service, such as the 
GroveLink service in Forest Grove.

Climate Smart 
Strategy (Exhibit 
A)



Updated 12/09/14
MTAC and TPAC Recommendation on Comments Received

Attachment 4 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B

4 of 43

# Exhibit Comment Source(s) Date Recommendation
13 Climate Smart 

Strategy (Exhibit 
A)

The Climate Smart Strategy, Toolbox, 
Performance Monitoring and Early 
actions should all be aligned to prioritize 
investments in transit and active 
transportation. These investments will 
have the greatest greenhouse gas 
emissions reductions, provide multiple 
social, environmental and economic 
benefits and have strong public support.

Transportation 
Justice Alliance

10/30/14 No change recommended to Exhibits A, 
B, C and D. 

While the analysis and other national 
research show these investments do 
have the greatest greenhouse gas 
emissions reduction potential, provide 
multiple benefits and have strong public 
support, addressing climate change is 
one of six desired outcomes the region is 
working to achieve. The six desired 
outcomes are: economic prosperity, 
vibrant communities, safe and reliable 
transportation, equity, clean air and water 
and leadership on climate change. 
Therefore, the strategy, toolbox, 
performance monitoring and early actions 
include a balanced approach that 
implements adopted local and regional 
plans, and provides for locally-tailored 
implementation approaches.

14 Maintain an emphasis on increased 
highway capacity as a method of 
reducing greenhouse gas emissions and 
ensure the region has the ability to 
continue investing in highway capacity

Climate Smart 
Strategy (Exhibit 
A)

No change recommended to Exhibit A. 
See also recommendation on Comment 
#19.

The Climate Smart Strategy includes 
priority street and highway investments 
adopted in local plans and the Financially 
Constrained 2014 Regional 
Transportation Plan (RTP) as part of a  
balanced approach to support vibrant 
communities and economic prosperity 
and planned development in the region's 
centers, corridors and employment areas.

Increasing highway capacity to reduce 
congestion (and related greenhouse gas 
emissions) does not have a lasting 
impact on reducing greenhouse gas 
emissions due to advancements in fleet 
and technology (e.g., low carbon fuels, 
electric and plug-inhybrid electric 
vehicles) and the unintended effect of 
inducing additional vehicle miles traveled 
(called latent demand). This effect was 
shown in the CSC results and has been  
through national research. More 
information can be found at 
http://www.sightline.org/wp-
content/uploads/downloads/2012/02/anal
ysis-ghg-roads.pdf and 
www.arb.ca.gov/cc/sb375/policies/hwyca
pacity/highway_capacity_brief.pdf.

10/22/14, 
10/30/14

Clackamas 
County Board of 
Commissioners, 
City of Happy 
Valley



Updated 12/09/14
MTAC and TPAC Recommendation on Comments Received

Attachment 4 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B

5 of 43

# Exhibit Comment Source(s) Date Recommendation

16 Climate Smart 
Strategy (Exhibit 
A)

Concern that future funding will be 
directed by what supports Metro goals, 
not local goals 

Need a better roadmap of future funding 
discussions and who/how priorities will 
be determined if region is not able to 
secure funding needed to implement 
strategy

Should not pursue new projects; focus 
on funding existing priorities 

Mayor Tim 
Knapp, Cities of 
Clackamas 
County 
Dick Jones, 
Clackamas 
County Special 
Districts
Jim Bernards, 
Clackamas 
County 
Commissioner

11/7/14 This comment was addressed in part in 
the staff recommendation on Comments 
# 3-5 in this section.

Based on the November 7 discussion, 
staff recommends amending Exhibit A to 
include a discussion on funding-related 
implementation 

Climate Smart 
Strategy (Exhibit 
A)

15 Funding of the strategy needs more 
explanation to ensure the project meets 
OAR 660-044-0040(2)(i) given that the 
strategy relies on new investments and 
funding sources to meet the target. It is 
important for the region to not over 
commit funding we do not have.

No change recommended to Exhibit A.

OAR 660-044-0040(2)(i) provides that “if 
the preferred scenario relies on new 
investments or funding sources to 
achieve the target,” then Metro shall 
“evaluate the feasibility of the new 
investments or funding sources.”  

The overall cost identified for the 
preferred scenario is $24 billion over 25 
years, which is $5 billion less than the 
$29 billion in funding identified in the 
2014 RTP.  The $29 billion in funding 
identified in the 2014 RTP includes the 
same assumptions regarding funding 
sources that were adopted by JPACT and 
the Metro Council in 2010 for purposes of 
developing a funding target for the 2035 
RTP.  Therefore, these are not “new” 
funding sources, but are the same 
sources adopted by JPACT and the 
Metro Council in 2010, and again in 2014, 
for purposes of describing full RTP 
funding.

10/30/14City of Hillsboro



Updated 12/09/14
MTAC and TPAC Recommendation on Comments Received

Attachment 4 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B

6 of 43

# Exhibit Comment Source(s) Date Recommendation
Amend page 12 of Exhibit A to broad 
explanation of how climate benefit 
ratings, in combination with fiscal, 
economic, equity, public health, 
transportation and environmental criteria 
and public input, informed development 
of the Climate Smart Strategy and will 
continue to inform future implementation 
and investment decisions.

The generalized climate benefit ratings 
were developed to provide qualitative 
information for policymakers to consider 
when comparing the different strategies 
and investments under discussion. 
The ODOT model used for the Climate 
Smart Communities analysis (and that 
ODOT used for their Statewide 
Transportation Strategy) accounts for the 
synergies between the policy areas and 
other variables, including vehicle miles 
traveled (VMT), fuel consumption, fleet 
mix, vehicle technology as well as the 
location of future growth.

It is important to note that the ratings are 
consistent with national and academic 
research that has been completed by 
others, including the University of 
California. The UC research, in particular, 
was developed in partnership with the 
California Air Resources Board to inform 
similar GHG planning work being 
conducted by each of California's MPOs 
and reflects the most current research on 
this particular topic. Policy briefs are also 
available at: 
http://arb.ca.gov/cc/sb375/policies/policie
s.htm

11/7/14Jim Bernards, 
Clackamas 
County 
Commissioner

Remove greenhouse gas emissions 
reduction star ratings from document

Climate Smart 
Strategy (Exhibit 
A)

17



Updated 12/09/14
MTAC and TPAC Recommendation on Comments Received

Attachment 4 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B

7 of 43

# Exhibit Comment Source(s) Date Recommendation
18

This is addressed in part in the staff 
recommendation on Comment #14 of this 
section.  Additional context  on the 
region's approach to managing 
congestion is provided below in response 
to November 7 discussion.

The region's congestion management 
approach was developed in 2000, as part 
of the Regional Transportation Plan 
update, and includes all of the policies, 
investments and strategies 
recommended in the Climate Smart 
Strategy, including strategically adding 
capacity to the region’s arterial streets 
and highways. 

The Climate Smart Strategy, including 
nearly $21 billion to maintain and expand 
the existing arterial street and highway 
network, $12.4 billion for transit capital 
and service enhancements, $2 billion for 
active transportation and $400 million for 
system and demand management 
programs and investments to make the 
most of the existing transportation 
system.

There continues to be strong support for 
the mobility policy adopted at that time 
and it has since been adopted in state 
plans and policies. The region continues 
to focus on using ITS and other 
technologies to better manage roads for 
reliability, better street connectivity, 
building freeway overcrossings to 
improve community circulation, 
strategically addressing bottlenecks and 
expanding capacity to streets and 
highways, expanding transit, improving 
multi-modal safety and completing the 
region’s bicycle and pedestrian networks. 

11/7/14Paul Savas, 
Clackamas 
County 
Commissioner

Strategy lacks commitment to 
addressing congestion and funding road 
projects as part of the region’s 
greenhouse gas emissions reduction 
strategy

19 Climate Smart 
Strategy (Exhibit 
A)

No change to Exhibit A recommended. 

This assumption was included in the 
2035 growth distribution adopted by the 
Metro Council in 2012 by Ordinance No. 
12-1292A and was used for purposes of 
analysis to serve as the land use 
assumptions to reflect “adopted local and 
regional land use plans.” 

A footnote at the bottom of Page 10 of the 
staff report states “The adopted 2035 
growth distribution reflects locally 
adopted comprehensive plans and zoning 
as of 2010 and assumes an estimated 
12,000 acres of urban growth boundary 
expansion by 2035. Metro’s assumption 
about UGB expansion is not intended as 
a land use decision authorizing an 
amendment through this ordinance.  
Instead, the assumption about UGB 
expansion is included for purposes of 
analysis to assure that UGB expansion – 
if subsequently adopted by Metro and 
approved by LCDC – would be consistent 
with regional efforts to reduce 
greenhouse gas emissions. Review of 
any UGB expansion will occur through 
the UGB Amendment process provided 
for by ORS 197.626(a) and OAR Chapter 
660, Division 24.

11/7/14Jeff Gudman, 
City of Lake 
Oswego

Urban growth boundary assumptions 
(12,000 acres) included in the draft 
strategy seems overly large given the 
amount of time it has taken to make past 
expansions development-ready

Climate Smart 
Strategy (Exhibit 
A)



Updated 12/09/14
MTAC and TPAC Recommendation on Comments Received

Attachment 4 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B

8 of 43

# Exhibit Comment Source(s) Date Recommendation

20 Climate Smart 
Strategy (Exhibit 
A)

Add implementing local transportation 
system plans to toolbox and strategy

Paul Savas, 
Clackamas 
County 
Commissioner

11/7/14 Amend toolbox (Exhibit C)  as requested 
and amend Exhibit A to more clearly 
describe that local transportation system 
plans (and local land use plans) are 
components of the Climate Smart 
Strategy.

See also recommendation on Comment 
#63 in the Exhibit C section.

End of comments and recommended changes to Exhibit A

This is addressed in part in the staff 
recommendation on Comment #14 of this 
section.  Additional context  on the 
region's approach to managing 
congestion is provided below in response 
to November 7 discussion.

The region's congestion management 
approach was developed in 2000, as part 
of the Regional Transportation Plan 
update, and includes all of the policies, 
investments and strategies 
recommended in the Climate Smart 
Strategy, including strategically adding 
capacity to the region’s arterial streets 
and highways. 

The Climate Smart Strategy, including 
nearly $21 billion to maintain and expand 
the existing arterial street and highway 
network, $12.4 billion for transit capital 
and service enhancements, $2 billion for 
active transportation and $400 million for 
system and demand management 
programs and investments to make the 
most of the existing transportation 
system.

There continues to be strong support for 
the mobility policy adopted at that time 
and it has since been adopted in state 
plans and policies. The region continues 
to focus on using ITS and other 
technologies to better manage roads for 
reliability, better street connectivity, 
building freeway overcrossings to 
improve community circulation, 
strategically addressing bottlenecks and 
expanding capacity to streets and 
highways, expanding transit, improving 
multi-modal safety and completing the 
region’s bicycle and pedestrian networks. 

11/7/14Paul Savas, 
Clackamas 
County 
Commissioner

Strategy lacks commitment to 
addressing congestion and funding road 
projects as part of the region’s 
greenhouse gas emissions reduction 
strategy

19 Climate Smart 
Strategy (Exhibit 
A)



Updated 12/09/14
MTAC and TPAC Recommendation on Comments Received

Attachment 4 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B

9 of 43

# Exhibit Comment Source(s) Date Recommendation

1 Regional 
Framework Plan 
Amendments 
(Exhibit B)

Chapter 1, page 2, Objective 1.1.4 - 
revise to read "Incent and encourage 
elimination of unnecessary barriers to 
compact, mixed-use, pedestrian-friendly 
and transit-supportive development 
within Centers, Corridors, Station 
Communities and Main Streets."

Mayor Neeley, 
MPAC member

10/22/14 Amend as requested.

2 Regional 
Framework Plan 
Amendments 
(Exhibit B)

Chapter 1, page 2, Objective 1.1.4 - 
revise to read "Encourage elimination of 
unnecessary barriers to compact, mixed-
use, pedestrian- and bicycle-friendly 
and transit-supportive development 
within Centers, Corridors, Station 
Communities and Main Streets."  for 
consistency with 2014 RTP policy 
language.

Metro staff 10/22/14 Amend as requested.

3 Regional 
Framework Plan 
Amendments 
(Exhibit B)

Chapter 1, page 3, Objective 1.10.(c)(ii) - 
revise to read "Makes biking and walking 
the most convenient and  safe and 
enjoyable transportation choices for 
short trips, encourages transit use and 
reduces auto dependence and related 
greenhouse gas emissions" for 
consistency with 2014 RTP policy 
language.

Metro staff 10/22/14 Amend as requested.

4 Regional 
Framework Plan 
Amendments 
(Exhibit B)

Chapter 1, page 3, Objective 1.10.(c)(iii) - 
revise to read "Provides access to 
neighborhood and community parks, 
trails, and walkways, bikeways and 
other recreation and cultural areas and 
public facilities"  for consistency with 
2014 RTP policy language.

Metro staff 10/22/14 Amend as requested.

5 Regional 
Framework Plan 
Amendments 
(Exhibit B)

Chapter 1, page 3, Objective 1.10.(c)(iii) - 
revise to read "Provides access to 
neighborhood and community parks, 
trails, schools, and walkways, and other 
recreation and cultural areas and public 
facilities" to acknowledge the importance 
of providing access to schools.

Ruth Adkins, 
MPAC member

10/22/14 Amend as requested.

6 Regional 
Framework Plan 
Amendments 
(Exhibit B)

Chapter 2, page 3, revise 6th bullet to 
read, "Provide access to more and 
better choices for travel in this region 
and serve special access needs for all 
people, including youth, elderly, 
seniors and disabled people with 
disabilities and low incomes." for 
consistency with 2014 RTP policy 
language.

Metro staff 10/22/14 Amend as requested.

7 Regional 
Framework Plan 
Amendments 
(Exhibit B)

Chapter 2, page 3, revise 10th bullet to 
read, "Make walking and bicycling the 
most safe and convenient, safe and 
enjoyable transportation choices for 
short trips." for consistency with 2014 
RTP policy language.

Metro staff 10/22/14 Amend as requested.

Comments on Regional Framework Plan Amendments (Exhibit B)



Updated 12/09/14
MTAC and TPAC Recommendation on Comments Received

Attachment 4 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B

10 of 43

# Exhibit Comment Source(s) Date Recommendation
8 Regional 

Framework Plan 
Amendments 
(Exhibit B)

Chapter 2, page 3, revise 11th bullet to 
read, "Limit dependence on any single 
mode of driving alone travel and 
increase biking, walking, carpooling and 
vanpooling and use of transit." to provide 
more clarity.

Metro staff 10/22/14 Amend as requested.

9 Regional 
Framework Plan 
Amendments 
(Exhibit B)

Chapter 2, page 4, revise objective 2.1 
to read, "Provide for reliable and efficient 
multi-modal local, regional, interstate 
and intrastate travel and market area 
access through a seamless and well-
connected system of throughways, 
arterial streets, freight services, transit 
services and bicycle and pedestrian 
facilities." to recognize importance of 
local travel and accessiblity.

Metro staff 10/22/14 Amend as requested.

10 Regional 
Framework Plan 
Amendments 
(Exhibit B)

Chapter 2, page 5, revise objective 3.3 
to read, "Provide affordable and 
equitable access to travel choices and 
serve the needs of all people and 
businesses, including people with low 
incomes, childrenyouth, elders older 
adults and people with disabilities, to 
connect with jobs, education, services, 
recreation, social and cultural activities." 
for consistency with 2014 RTP policy 
language.

Metro staff 10/22/14 Amend as requested.

11 Regional 
Framework Plan 
Amendments 
(Exhibit B)

Chapter 2, Page 8, Objective 11.1 - 
Delete last bullet on demonstrating 
leadership on climate change given it is 
repetitive with the goal statement.

MTAC 10/15/14 Amend as requested.

12 Regional 
Framework Plan 
Amendments 
(Exhibit B)

Chapter 2, Page 8, Objective 11.1 - 
Delete reference to “regional plans and 
functional plans adopted by the Metro 
Council for local governments” because 
this is already defined in Chapter 8 
(Implementation) of the RFP.

MTAC 10/15/14 Amend as requested.

13 Regional 
Framework Plan 
Amendments 
(Exhibit B)

Chapter 2, • Page 8, Objective 11.1 - 
Add reference to alternative fuel vehicles 
and fueling stations as part of supporting 
Oregon’s transition to cleaner, low 
carbon fuels and more fuel efficient 
vehicle technologies.

MTAC 10/15/14 Amend as requested.

14 Regional 
Framework Plan 
Amendments 
(Exhibit B)

Chapter 2, Page 8, Objective 11.1 - 
Revise sub-bullet listed under 3rd bullet 
to read "Making bikingbiking and 
walking the safemost and convenient, 
safe and enjoyable transportation 
choices for short trips and for all ages 
and abilities by completing gaps and 
addressing deficiencies in the region’s 
pedestrian and bicycle networks of 
sidewalks and bike paths that 
connect people to their jobs, schools 
and other destinations;" for 
consistency with 2014 RTP policy 
language.

Metro staff 10/22/14 Amend as requested.



Updated 12/09/14
MTAC and TPAC Recommendation on Comments Received

Attachment 4 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B

11 of 43

# Exhibit Comment Source(s) Date Recommendation

16 Regional 
Framework Plan 
Amendments 
(Exhibit B)

Chapter 2, Page 9, Objective 11.2 – 
delete bullet with reference to the 
Oregon Modeling Steering Committee 
because this seems to be unnecessary 
detail for a policy document.

MTAC 10/15/14 Amend as requested.

No change to Exhibit B recommended. 
This comment has been forwarded to the 
Metro staff responsible for the 
Community Development Grant Program 
(CDPG) and Regional Flexible Fund 
Allocation (RFFA) processes. 

Chapter 8 of the Framework Plan 
provides language linking policies and 
funding. Specifically Section 8.2.1 states 
that “In formulating the Regional Funding 
and Fiscal Policies, the following should 
be considered: (a) General regional 
funding and fiscal policies which support 
implementation of this Plan and related 
functional plans including but not limited 
to a policy requiring Metro, in approving 
or commenting on the expenditure of 
regional, state, and federal monies in the 
metropolitan area, to give priority to 
programs, projects and expenditures that 
support implementation if this Plan and 
related functional plans unless there are 
compelling reasons to do otherwise.”  

Additionally, the Metropolitan 
Transportation Improvement Program 
2015-18 Report states “Efforts currently 
being undertaken at the federal level and 
in the... region will become policy 
frameworks to provide direction for future 
cycles of the MTIP.” Climate Smart 
Communities is identified as one of the 
policy frameworks and “The development 
of the next MTIP cycle will incorporate 
recommended strategies from the 
Climate Smart Communities project.” 

JPACT and the Metro Council provide 
policy direction for prioritizing allocation of 
the federal flexible funds at the beginning 
of each RFFA cycle. The next CBDG 
cycle and RFFA cycle (and policy update) 
will begin in 2015. 

15 Regional 
Framework Plan 
Amendments 
(Exhibit B)

Chapter 2, Page 8, Objective 11.2 - 
Policy language should be more direct 
and aspirational about linkages between 
the policies that reduce greenhouse gas 
emissions and Metro funding, such as 
the Community Development Grant 
Program and Regional Flexible Fund 
Allocation (RFFA) process. Use GHG 
emissions reduction as a filter for 
awarding funding to demonstrate 
leadership on climate change.

Community 
leaders 
meeting, MTAC, 
1000 Friends of 
Oregon

10/1/14, 
10/15/14, 
10/22/14



Updated 12/09/14
MTAC and TPAC Recommendation on Comments Received

Attachment 4 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B

12 of 43

# Exhibit Comment Source(s) Date Recommendation
17 Regional 

Framework Plan 
Amendments 
(Exhibit B)

Chapter 2, Page 9, Objective 11.3 – add 
reference to Toolbox of Possible Actions 
in policy statement and delete sub-
bullets listing examples of possible 
actions because the actions are 
voluntary and could appear to be 
defacto priorities or criteria for funding 
eligibility. In addition, the level of policy 
detail for Goal 11 is much greater than 
other Chapter 2 goals and objectives. 

Add language to the Regional 
Framework Plan amendments to more 
clearly articulate the ability to "locally 
tailor" implementation tools identified in 
the Toolbox of Possible Actions.

MTAC 
members, 
Clackamas 

County Board of 
Commissioners, 
City of Hillsboro, 

City of Happy 
Valley, TPAC, 

MTAC

10/15/14, 
10/22/14, 
10/30/14, 
10/30/14, 
11/19/14, 
11/21/14

18 Regional 
Framework Plan 
Amendments 
(Exhibit B)

Chapter 2, Page 9, Objective 11.3 – add 
reference to safe routes to school 
programs to list of possible actions.

Ruth Adkins, 
MPAC member

10/22/14

Amend Exhibit B, Objective 11.2 and 11.3 
as follows:

Objective 11. 9 Metro Actions
Take actions to implement the regional 
strategy to meet adopted targets for 
reducing greenhouse gas emissions from 
light-duty vehicle travel, such as:
i. Maintain and periodically update a 
toolbox of possible actions and 
encourage local, state and federal 
governments and special districts to 
implement the toolbox actions in locally 
tailored ways.

ii. Work with local, state and federal 
governments, community and business 
leaders and organizations, and special 
districts to implement the strategy, 
including securing adequate funding for 
transportation and other investments 
needed to implement the strategy. 

iii. Provide technical assistance, best 
practices and grant funding to local 
governments and other business and 
community partners to encourage and 
support implementation of the strategy.

iv. Report on the potential light-duty 
vehicle greenhouse gas emissions 
impacts of Metro’s major land use and 
RTP policy and investment decisions to 
determine whether they help the region 
meet adopted targets for reducing 
greenhouse gas emissions.

v. Monitor and measure the progress of 
local and regional efforts to meet adopted 
targets for reducing greenhouse gas 
emissions from light-duty vehicle travel as 
described in Chapter 7 of the Regional 
Framework Plan, report the results to the 
region and state on a periodic basis, and 
guide the consideration of revision or 
replacement of the policies and actions, if 
performance so indicates, as part of 
scheduled updates to the Regional 
Transportation Plan.

Objective 11.10 Partner Actions
Encourage local, state and federal 
governments and special districts to 
consider implementing actions in the 
toolbox in locally tailored ways to help the 
region meet adopted targets for reducing 
greenhouse gas emissions from light-duty 
vehicle travel.

For context, Chapter 2 of the Framework 
Plan reflects the goals and objectives 
included in Chapter 2 of the Regional 
Transportation Plan exactly, which 
provides less policy detail than other 
Framework Plan chapters. The 2018 RTP 
update presents an opportunity to update 
Chapter 2 of the Framework Plan to 
better match the level of policy detail 
contained in the other Framework Plan 
chapters. In addition, unless the Regional 
Framework Plan specifies that Metro 
require local governments to take a 
particular action, the RFP only directs 
Metro actions.

10/22/14MPAC membersChapter 2, Page 9, Objective 11.3 – 
retain but shorten the list of example 
actions and revise the language to read, 
”Encourage local, state and federal 
governments and special districts to take 
actions recommended in the Toolbox of 
Possible Actionsregional climate 
strategy to help meet adopted targets for 
reducing greenhouse gas emissions 
from light vehicle travel, including such 
as…”

Regional 
Framework Plan 
Amendments 
(Exhibit B)

19



Updated 12/09/14
MTAC and TPAC Recommendation on Comments Received

Attachment 4 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B

13 of 43

# Exhibit Comment Source(s) Date Recommendation

20 Regional 
Framework Plan 
Amendments 
(Exhibit B)

 Chapter 7 (Management), page 8, to 
incorporate  performance measures 
recommended to be tracked every two 
years as part of required reporting that 
responds to ORS 197.301. OAR 660-
044-0040 requires that the preferred 
scenario include performance measures. 
The preferred scenario is to be adopted 
as part of the Regional Framework Plan, 
and, as a result, performance measures 
also need to be “adopted” as part of the 
Regional Framework Plan.

Metro staff in 
consultation 

with DLCD staff

10/23/14 Amend as requested. See 
recommendation on comment #21 on 
Exhibit B in this section.

Performance measures recommended to 
be added to Section 7.8.4 are: vehicle 
miles traveled; motor vehicles, pedestrian 
and bicycle fatalities and serious injury 
crashes; transit revenue hours; transit 
ridership; access to transit; travel time 
and reliability; and air quality. Other 
performance measures, including 
greenhouse gas emissions, are 
recommended to be reported as part of 
scheduled updates to the Regional 
Transportation Plan.

Amend as requested. In addition amend 
policy 7.8.6 to read as follows:

7.8.6 Take corrective actions if 
anticipated progress is found to be 
lacking or if Metro goal and policies need 
adjustment. in order to allow adjustments 
soon after any problem arices and so that 
relatively stable conditions can be 
maintained."

Measures not currently monitored as part 
of federally-required RTP updates will be 
incorporated into the plan as part of the 
next scheduled update (due in 2018) in 
coordination with other performance 
measure updates needed to address 
federal MAP-21 requirements related to 
performance-based long-range 
transportation planning. In addition, this is 
a more appropriate location to direct 
monitoring and reporting on the progress 
of local and regional efforts to meet 
adopted targets for reducing greenhouse 
gas emissions.

Amend Exhibit B, Objective 11.2 and 11.3 
as follows:

Objective 11. 9 Metro Actions
Take actions to implement the regional 
strategy to meet adopted targets for 
reducing greenhouse gas emissions from 
light-duty vehicle travel, such as:
i. Maintain and periodically update a 
toolbox of possible actions and 
encourage local, state and federal 
governments and special districts to 
implement the toolbox actions in locally 

tailored ways.

ii. Work with local, state and federal 
governments, community and business 
leaders and organizations, and special 
districts to implement the strategy, 
including securing adequate funding for 
transportation and other investments 
needed to implement the strategy. 

iii. Provide technical assistance, best 
practices and grant funding to local 
governments and other business and 
community partners to encourage and 
support implementation of the strategy.

iv. Report on the potential light-duty 
vehicle greenhouse gas emissions 
impacts of Metro’s major land use and 
RTP policy and investment decisions to 
determine whether they help the region 
meet adopted targets for reducing 
greenhouse gas emissions.

v. Monitor and measure the progress of 
local and regional efforts to meet adopted 
targets for reducing greenhouse gas 
emissions from light-duty vehicle travel as 
described in Chapter 7 of the Regional 
Framework Plan, report the results to the 
region and state on a periodic basis, and 
guide the consideration of revision or 
replacement of the policies and actions, if 
performance so indicates, as part of 
scheduled updates to the Regional 
Transportation Plan.

Objective 11.10 Partner Actions
Encourage local, state and federal 
governments and special districts to 
consider implementing actions in the 
toolbox in locally tailored ways to help the 
region meet adopted targets for reducing 
greenhouse gas emissions from light-duty 
vehicle travel.

For context, Chapter 2 of the Framework 
Plan reflects the goals and objectives 
included in Chapter 2 of the Regional 
Transportation Plan exactly, which 
provides less policy detail than other 
Framework Plan chapters. The 2018 RTP 
update presents an opportunity to update 
Chapter 2 of the Framework Plan to 
better match the level of policy detail 
contained in the other Framework Plan 
chapters. In addition, unless the Regional 
Framework Plan specifies that Metro 
require local governments to take a 
particular action, the RFP only directs 
Metro actions.

10/23/14Metro staff in 
consultation 
with DLCD staff

Delete Objective 11.4 in Exhibit  B and 
add to Chapter 7 (Management), Page 
8, to add new objective that reads 
"Monitor the following performance 
measures for Chapter 1 and 2 of this 
Plan as part  of scheduled updates to 
the Regional Transportation Plan: (a) 
light duty vehicle greenhouse gas 
emissions; (b) household 
transportation/housing cost burden; 
(c) registered light duty vehicles by 
fuel/energy source; (d) workforce 
participation in commuter programs; 
(e) household participation in 
individualized marketing programs; 
(f) bike and pedestrian travel; (g) 
bikeways, sidewalks and trails 
completed.

Regional 
Framework Plan 
Amendments 
(Exhibit B)

21

10/22/14MPAC membersChapter 2, Page 9, Objective 11.3 – 
retain but shorten the list of example 
actions and revise the language to read, 
”Encourage local, state and federal 
governments and special districts to take 
actions recommended in the Toolbox of 
Possible Actionsregional climate 
strategy to help meet adopted targets for 
reducing greenhouse gas emissions 
from light vehicle travel, including such 
as…”

Regional 
Framework Plan 
Amendments 
(Exhibit B)

19



Updated 12/09/14
MTAC and TPAC Recommendation on Comments Received

Attachment 4 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B

14 of 43

# Exhibit Comment Source(s) Date Recommendation
22 Regional 

Framework Plan 
Amendments 
(Exhibit B)

Chapter 2, Page 9, Objective 11.3 - 
require, rather than encourage, climate 
responsive actions listed.

Oregon 
American 
Planning 

Association

10/29/14 No change recommended to Exhibit B. 

Existing Metro functional plans, first 
adopted in 1996, already identify land use 
and transportation actions that local 
governments must implement that will 
help implement the Climate Smart 
Strategy. As noted, implementation of the 
Toolbox of Possible Actions does not 
mandate adoption of any particular policy 
or action and instead was developed with 
the recognition that existing city and 
county plans for creating great 
communities are the foundation for 
reaching the state target. Implementation 
actions in the toolbox are encouraged 
and allow local flexibility in how, when 
and where different actions may be 
applied, recognizing that some tools and 
actions may work better in some 
locations than others. 

23 Regional 
Framework Plan 
Amendments 
(Exhibit B)

Chapter 1, larger issues of community 
design and jobs/housing balance appear 
unaddressed in the Regional Framework 
Plan. Opportunities for housing near job 
rich locations is important to reduce 
commute distances and demand on the 
region's roadways.

City of 
Wilsonville

10/30/14 Amend Exhibit B, Chapter 1, page 10, 
Policy 1.10.1, as follows:

"iv) Reinforces nodal, mixed-use, 
neighborhood-oriented community 
designs to provide walkable access to 
a mix of destinations to support 
meeting daily needs, such as jobs, 
education, shopping, services, transit 
and recreation, social and cultural 
activities."

24 Regional 
Framework Plan 
Amendments 
(Exhibit B)

Amend Framework Plan, Chapter 1, 
page 4, Policy 1.3.2(c) as follows:

Allow affordable housing, particularly in 
Centers and Corridors and other areas 
well-served with public services and 
frequent transit service."

Staff 
recommendatio
n on Comment 
#4 in Exhibit C 

section 

10/30/14 Amend as recommended.

25 Regional 
Framework Plan 
Amendments 
(Exhibit B)

Too much detail included in the Chapter 
2 Regional Framework Plan 
amendments, compared to existing 
goals and objectives

Remove the toolbox sub-bullets listed in 
Chapter 2, Policy 11.3

Susie Lahsene, 
Port of Portland

Paul Savas, 
Clackamas 

County 
Commissioner

11/7/14 Amend as requested by re-drafting Goal 
11 to better fit with structure of existing 
goals and objectives, remove the toolbox 
sub-bullets and further amend Objective 
11.10 Partner Actions to include language  
to reflect the living document 
expectations for the “Toolbox of Possible 
Actions" and expectations it will be 
updated to reflect new information and 
approaches. See also recommendations 
on Comments #17-19 in this section.



Updated 12/09/14
MTAC and TPAC Recommendation on Comments Received

Attachment 4 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B

15 of 43

# Exhibit Comment Source(s) Date Recommendation

27 Regional 
Framework Plan 
Amendments 
(Exhibit B)

Language needs to call out incentivizing 
the kind of development needed to 
support implementation

Mayor Doug 
Neeley, City of 
Oregon City

11/7/14 This is addressed in the recommendation 
on Comment #1 on in this section.

28 Regional 
Framework Plan 
Amendments 
(Exhibit B)

Amend Policy 1.7.5(a) and (d) of 
Chapter 1 of the Regional Framework 
Plan to reflect that planning for new 
urban areas can also help further the 
region's efforts in reducing greenhouse 
gas emissions:

"a. Help achieve livable communities 
and reduce greenhouse gas 
emissions." 

"d. Determine the general urban land 
uses, key local and regional multi-
modal transportation facilities and 
prospective components of the regional 
system of parks, natural areas..."

Metro staff 11/14/14 Amend as requested. See 
recommendation on Comment #58 in the 
Exhibit C section of this document.

Mayor Tim 
Knapp, Cities of 
Clackamas 
County
Mayor Doug 
Neeley, City of 
Oregon City

Policy language not strong enough on 
influence of land use on transportation 
and importance of jobs/housing balance 
as a greenhouse gas emissions 
reduction strategy

Regional 
Framework Plan 
Amendments 
(Exhibit B)

11/7/1426 This is addressed in part in the staff 
recommendation on Comment #23 in this 
section as follows:

Amend Exhibit B, Chapter 1, page 10, 
Policy 1.10.1, as follows:

"iv) Reinforces nodal, mixed-use, 
neighborhood-oriented community 
designs to provide walkable access to 
a mix of destinations to support 
meeting daily needs, such as jobs, 
education, shopping, services, transit 
and recreation, social and cultural 
activities."

In addition, other Framework Plan 
policies currently address jobs/housing 
balance, including Chapter 1, Policy 
1.4.2, that were not included in the public 
review document:

“Balance the number and wage level of 
jobs within each subregion with housing 
cost and availability within that subregion. 
Strategies are to be coordinated with the 
planning and implementation activities of 
this element with Policy 1.3, Housing 
Choices and Opportunities and Policy 
1.8, Developed Urban Land."



Updated 12/09/14
MTAC and TPAC Recommendation on Comments Received

Attachment 4 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B

16 of 43

# Exhibit Comment Source(s) Date Recommendation
29 Regional 

Framework Plan 
Amendments 
(Exhibit B)

Metro staff 11/14/14 Amend page 1 of Chapter 1 and Chapter 
2 of the Regional Framework Plan to add 
the following sentence:

"The policies in this chapter are also a 
key component of the regional 
strategy to reduce per capita 
greenhouse gas emissions from light- 
duty vehicles."

This change further clarifies that the 
existing (and amended) policies in this 
Plan are a key part of the region's 
strategy for meeting OAR 660-044.

30 Regional 
Framework Plan 
Amendments 
(Exhibit B)

 Objective 1.10.1(c ), Chapter 2, page 3 
(10th bullet) and Objective 11.4 – 
change making biking and walking the 
“most convenient . . .” (which is a bit of a 
stretch), to “more convenient. . .”  (same 
where it says “safest,” change to 
“safer”).

City of Hillsboro, 
City of 
Beaverton

11/24/14, 
11/24/14

No further changes recommended as this 
language reflects policy language 
adopted in the 2014 RTP. See also staff 
recommendation on Comments #3, #7 
and #14.

31 Regional 
Framework Plan 
Amendments 
(Exhibit B)

Page 6, Chapter 1, Policy 1.4.2 
This policy appears to be a bit of an 
overreach. What mechanism is at the 
region’s disposal to directly “balance the 
number and wage level of jobs within 
each sub-region”
Consider adding: “Promote policies that 
seek to” balance the number..

City of 
Beaverton

11/24/14 No change recommended. This is 
existing policy language and the 
proposed change goes beyond the scope 
of the Climate Smart Strategy 
implementation. This comment has been 
forwarded to long-range land use 
planning staff for consideration as part of 
future updates to the Regional 
Framework Plan.

End of comments and recommended changes to Exhibit B



Updated 12/09/14
MTAC and TPAC Recommendation on Comments Received

Attachment 4 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B

17 of 43

# Exhibit Comment Source(s) Date Recommendation

1 Toolbox of 
Possible Actions 
(2015-20) (Exhibit 
C)

Page 1,  implement 2040 Growth 
Concept and local adopted plans, under 
Metro actions, add an action that calls 
out that 2018 RTP update will be a tool 
to implement the Climate Smart 
Strategy.

1000 Friends of 
Oregon

10/22/14 Amend as requested. 

This is also called out in the legislation 
adopting the Climate Smart Strategy.

2 Toolbox of 
Possible Actions 
(2015-20) (Exhibit 
C)

Page 1, implement 2040 Growth 
Concept and local adopted plans policy, 
revise language "Restore local control of 
housing policies and programs" to 
ensure that it’s about achieving housing 
affordability, not just restoring local 
control. Be explicit about need for 
removal of statewide ban on inclusionary 
zoning.

Community 
leaders 

meeting, 
Oregon 

Environmental 
Council, 1000 

Friends of 
Oregon, 

Coalition for a 
Livable Future, 
Transportation 
Justice Alliance

10/1/14, 
10/15/14, 
10/22/14, 
10/30/14, 
10/30/14

Amend  toolbox actions as follows: 

"Restore local control of housing policies 
and programs to ensure local 
communities have a full range of tools 
available to meet the housing needs of all 
residents and income levels and expand 
opportunities for households of modest 
means to live closer to work, services and 
transit."

This change will be reflected in Metro, 
local government and special district 
actions.

In addition, Policy 1.3.5 in Chapter 1 of 
the Regional Framework Plan 
encourages local governments to 
consider a range of tools and strategies 
to achieve affordable housing goals, 
including a voluntary inclusionary zoning 
policy.

3 Toolbox of 
Possible Actions 
(2015-20) (Exhibit 
C)

Page 1, implement 2040 Growth 
Concept and local adopted plans policy, 
too broad of a spectrum of policies have 
been identified in some toolbox actions. 
The Climate Smart Strategy should not 
be used as a cure all for any perceived 
shortcomings in the land use regulatory 
system - for example connection to 
brownfield redevelopment and removal 
of statewide ban on inclusionary zoning.

City of Hillsboro 10/30/14 No change to Exhibit C recommended.  

Chapter 1 of Regional Framework Plan 
(Policy 1.3) includes these types of 
policies as ways to support implementing 
the 2040 Growth Concept - a key 
component of the Climate Smart 
Strategy. The toolbox actions identified 
are intended to support these existing 
policies and addresses implementation 
issues that have been consistently raised 
by community stakeholders throughout 
the Climate Smart Communities effort. 

Comments on Toolbox of Possible Actions (Exhibit C)



Updated 12/09/14
MTAC and TPAC Recommendation on Comments Received

Attachment 4 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B

18 of 43

# Exhibit Comment Source(s) Date Recommendation

5 Toolbox of 
Possible Actions 
(2015-20) (Exhibit 
C)

Page 1, implement 2040 Growth 
Concept and local adopted plans policy, 
under Metro actions, add new action to 
support increased funding for affordable 
housing, particularly along frequent 
transit lines.

Coalition for a 
Livable Future, 
Transportation 
Justice Alliance

10/30/14, 
10/30/14

Amend as follows:

"Support increased funding for 
affordable housing, particularly along 
corridors with frequent transit 
service."

6 Toolbox of 
Possible Actions 
(2015-20) (Exhibit 
C)

Page 1, implement 2040 Growth 
Concept and local adopted plans policy, 
under Metro actions, add new action  
"Ensure major investments in transit 
and other community development 
projects are accompanied with 
policies that protect against 
economic displacement of lower-
income residents."

1000 Friends of 
Oregon

10/22/14 No change to Exhibit C recommended. 
See also recommendation on Comment 
#11 in this section. 

While this would address a significant 
implementation issue raised during the 
Climate Smart Communities effort, this 
comment has been forwarded to staff 
working on Powell-Division Transit Study 
and Metro's Equity Strategy and 
Equitable Development work programs to 
address. Recommendations from these 
efforts may lead to Regional Framework 
Plan amendments and will be further 
addressed in the next federally-required 
RTP update.

10/22/141000 Friends of 
Oregon

Page 1, implement 2040 Growth 
Concept and local adopted plans policy, 
under Metro actions, add new action to 
leverage Metro and the region's public 
investments to maintain and create 
affordable housing in transit-served 
areas.

Toolbox of 
Possible Actions 
(2015-20) (Exhibit 
C)

4 Amend toolbox as follows: 

"Leverage Metro's public investments 
to maintain and create affordable 
housing options in areas served with 
frequent transit service." 

Amend Framework Plan, Chapter 1, page 
4, Policy 1.3.2(c) as follows:

Allow affordable housing, particularly in 
Centers and Corridors and other areas 
well-served with public services and 
frequent transit service."

In addition, this comment has been 
forwarded to staff working on Powell-
Division Transit Study and Metro's Equity 
Strategy and Equitable Development 
work programs to further address through 
that work. Recommendations from these 
efforts may lead to Regional Framework 
Plan additional amendments and will be 
addressed in the next federally-required 
RTP update.



Updated 12/09/14
MTAC and TPAC Recommendation on Comments Received

Attachment 4 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B

19 of 43

# Exhibit Comment Source(s) Date Recommendation
7 Toolbox of 

Possible Actions 
(2015-20) (Exhibit 
C)

Page 2,  implement 2040 Growth 
Concept and local adopted plans policy, 
under Metro actions, add an action to 
implement the 2040 Growth Concept's 
Climate Smart Strategies in the 2018 
RTP.

Safe Routes to 
School National 

Partnership
TPAC, MTAC

10/28/14
11/19/14, 
11/21/14

Amend as requested as follows: 

Add a new action under demonstrate 
Climate leadership that reads "Review 
and evaluate Climate Smart Strategy 
investments and actions for adoption 
in the 2018 RTP."

This amendments reflects the overall 
strategy will be further implemented 
through the 2018 RTP update as part of 
the process and in coordination with other 
policy considerations to be addressed as 
part of the update. 

8 Toolbox of 
Possible Actions 
(2015-20) (Exhibit 
C)

Page 2,  implement 2040 Growth 
Concept and local adopted plans policy, 
under Metro actions, add an action to 
provide guidance to cities and counties 
on location of new schools, services, 
shopping and other health promoting 
resources and community destinations 
close to neighborhoods.

Safe Routes to 
School National 

Partnership

10/28/14 No change recommended  to Exhibit C. 

A significant amount of best practices and 
other guidance is available related to the 
location of new schools, services, 
shopping and other health promoting 
resources and community destinations 
close to neighborhoods, such as Metro's 
Community Investment Toolkit series, 
publications prepared by Oregon's 
Transportation Growth Management 
program and federal agencies.  See: 
www.oregon.gov/LCD/TGM/Pages/public
ations.aspx and 
www.epa.gov/smartgrowth/pdf/brochure_
0906.pdf for more information.

9 Toolbox of 
Possible Actions 
(2015-20) (Exhibit 
C)

Page 1, implement 2040 Growth 
Concept and local adopted plans policy, 
under Metro actions, revise 2nd near-
term bullet to read "Expand on-going 
technical assistance and grant funding 
to local governments, developers and 
others to advance implementation of 
local land use plans, and 
incorporate…"

Metro staff 10/24/14 Amend as requested.

10 Toolbox of 
Possible Actions 
(2015-20) (Exhibit 
C)

Page 2, transit policy,  revise last sub-
bullet under development of TriMet 
SEPs to read, "Consider Use ridership 
demographics in service planning." This 
revision should be reflected in bullet 
under local government and special 
district actions.

Community 
leaders meeting 

and 1000 
Friends of 

Oregon

10/1/14, 
10/22/14

Amend as requested.

11 Toolbox of 
Possible Actions 
(2015-20) (Exhibit 
C)

Page 2, transit policy, under Metro 
actions, move "Research and develop 
best practices to support equitable 
growth and development…" to 
immediate time period.

Community 
leaders 

meeting, 1000 
Friends of 
Oregon

10/1/14, 
10/22/14

Amend as requested. 

Work is underway as part of the Powell-
Division Transit Study and Metro's Equity 
Strategy and Equitable Development 
work programs. Recommendations from 
these efforts may lead to Regional 
Framework Plan amendments and will be 
addressed in the next federally-required 
RTP update.



Updated 12/09/14
MTAC and TPAC Recommendation on Comments Received

Attachment 4 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B

20 of 43

# Exhibit Comment Source(s) Date Recommendation
12 Toolbox of 

Possible Actions 
(2015-20) (Exhibit 
C)

Page 2, transit policy, under Metro 
actions, immediate term, delete 2nd 
bullet "Consider local funding 
mechanism(s) for local and regional 
transit service." This is already listed 
under the first action.

City of Hillsboro 10/30/14 Amend as requested.

13 Toolbox of 
Possible Actions 
(2015-20) (Exhibit 
C)

Page 2, transit policy, under Metro 
actions, add an action to implement the 
transit actions in the Climate Smart 
Strategy in the 2018 RTP.

1000 Friends of 
Oregon, Safe 

Routes to 
School National 

Partnership

10/22/14, 
10/28/14

"Amend as requested as follows: 

Add a new action under demonstrate 
Climate leadership that reads ""Review 
and evaluate Climate Smart Strategy 
investments and actions for adoption 
in the 2018 RTP.""

This amendments reflects the overall 
strategy will be further implemented 
through the 2018 RTP update as part of 
the process and in coordination with other 
policy considerations to be addressed as 
part of the update.

14 Toolbox of 
Possible Actions 
(2015-20) (Exhibit 
C)

Convert school bus and transit fleets to 
electric and/or natural gas buses to 
reduce greenhouse gas emissions and 
youth exposure to diesel and other 
emissions from existing fleets.

Craig Stephens, 
City of 

Wilsonville

9/18/14, 
10/30/14

Amend page 2 of the toolbox of actions to 
list these as possible actions in the near-
term. 

The state mandated greenhouse gas 
emissions reduction target applies to 
vehicle weighing 10,000 pounds or less, 
which includes Type A-1 buses. While 
most SMART and TriMet buses weigh 
more than 10,000 pounds, the agencies 
are exploring and testing alternative fuel 
buses to assess fueling infrastructure 
needs and vehicle performance, 
maintenance and cost-effectiveness 
compared to the diesel buses it currently 
uses.

15 Toolbox of 
Possible Actions 
(2015-20) (Exhibit 
C)

Page 2, transit policy, add new actions: 
"Fund reduced fare programs and 
service improvements for transit 
dependent communities such as 
youth, older adults, people with 
disabilities and low-income families, 
Expand and sustain Youth Pass 
program, including expanding routes 
and frequency along school 
corridors."

Safe Routes to 
School National 

Partnership

10/28/14 Amend existing toolbox language as 
follows: 

"Fund reduced fare programs and service 
improvements for transit dependent 
communities such as youth, older 
adults, people with disabilities and low-
income families." 

Add new special district action that reads, 
"Expand and sustain Youth Pass 
program, including expanding routes 
and frequency along school 
corridors."



Updated 12/09/14
MTAC and TPAC Recommendation on Comments Received

Attachment 4 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B

21 of 43

# Exhibit Comment Source(s) Date Recommendation
16 Toolbox of 

Possible Actions 
(2015-20) (Exhibit 
C)

Page 2, transit policy, add the following 
new actions to recognize the emissions 
reductions can come from electric transit 
vehicles or other low carbon alternative 
fules: "Support transit partners in 
seeking federal grant funds for 
electric buses;" "Seek increased state 
funding for electric buses;" and 
"Increased funding flexbility to allow 
for greater upfront capital spending 
on electric buses if those expenses 
are offset by operating savings."

Drive Oregon, 
City of 

Wilsonville

10/28/14, 
10/30/14

Amend to add the following new actions 
given that some transit vehicles do weigh 
less than 10,000 pounds:

 "Support transit partners in seeking 
federal grant funds for electric  and 
other low-carbon alternative fuel 
buses;" 

"Seek increased state funding for 
electric and other low-carbon 
alternative fuel buses;" and 

"Seek increased funding flexbility to 
allow for greater upfront capital 
spending on electric and other low-
carbon alternative fuel buses if those 
expenses are offset by operating 
savings."

17 Toolbox of 
Possible Actions 
(2015-20) (Exhibit 
C)

Pages 3 and 4, expand bullets on using 
green street design to not only call out 
planting trees to support carbon 
sequestration and using materials that 
reduce infrastructure-related heat gain. 
Add reference to green street designs 
for capturing, absorbing and cleaning 
stormwater and making more use of 
pervious, rather than impervious, 
surface materials. These strategies will 
help the region save money and adapt 
to the unwelcome effects of climate 
change.

Oregon 
Environmental 
Council, Urban 
Greenspaces 

Instititute, 
Coalition for a 
Livable Future

10/15/14, 
10/27/14, 
10/30/14

No change to Exhibit C recommended. 

These benefits are important for the 
reasons stated. This comment has been 
forwarded to the Metro staff responsible 
for updating the region's best practices 
handbooks for street design with a 
recommendation to link the broader 
stormwater benefits of green street 
designs to climate adaptation strategies 
that will complement the greenhouse gas 
emissions reduction strategies identified 
through this project. The handbooks are 
scheduled to be updated in the 2015-16 
time period. The update is listed as an 
immediate action in Exhibit C.

18 Toolbox of 
Possible Actions 
(2015-20) (Exhibit 
C)

Page 3, biking and walking policy, add 
new immediate action for local 
governments - "Complete an inventory 
of sidewalk/bike lane gaps to help 
prioritize where limited funding could 
best be directed to encourage multi-
modal movement."

City of Hillsboro 9/24/14 Amend as follows: 

"Review community inventory of 
sidewalk and bike lane gaps and 
definiciencies to help prioritize where 
limited funding could best be directed 
to encourage multi-modal movement. " 

The Transportation Planning Rule and 
and Regional Transportation Functional 
Plan already require local governments to 
complete an inventory of bicycle and 
pedestrian facilities as part of their 
adopted local transportation system plan.  



Updated 12/09/14
MTAC and TPAC Recommendation on Comments Received

Attachment 4 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B

22 of 43

# Exhibit Comment Source(s) Date Recommendation
19 Toolbox of 

Possible Actions 
(2015-20) (Exhibit 
C)

Page 3, biking and walking policy, under 
Metro actions, add an action to 
implement the bicycle and pedestrian 
actions in the Climate Smart Strategy in 
the 2018 RTP.

1000 Friends of 
Oregon

10/22/14 "Amend as requested as follows: 

Add a new action under demonstrate 
Climate leadership that reads ""Review 
and evaluate Climate Smart Strategy 
investments and actions for adoption 
in the 2018 RTP.""

This amendments reflects the overall 
strategy will be further implemented 
through the 2018 RTP update as part of 
the process and in coordination with other 
policy considerations to be addressed as 
part of the update.

20 Toolbox of 
Possible Actions 
(2015-20) (Exhibit 
C)

Page 3, biking and walking policy, add 
new Metro action: "Complete a region-
wide active transportation needs 
assessment, including needs around 
schools and access to transit."

National Safe 
Routes to 

School 
Partnership

10/28/14 Amend as follows: 

add Metro action (near term) that reads, 
“Update the Regional Active 
Transportation Plan needs 
assessment in the 2018 RTP.” 

add cities and counties action (near term) 
“Conduct needs assessments for 
schools and access to transit during 
updates to TSPs and other plans.”

21 Toolbox of 
Possible Actions 
(2015-20) (Exhibit 
C)

Page 3, biking and walking policy, add 
new Metro action: “Build a diverse 
coalition working together to build 
and monitor local and state 
commitment to implement and fund 
the Regional Active Transportation 
Plan, including Safe Routes to 
Schools and Safe Routes to Transit”

National Safe 
Routes to 

School 
Partnership

10/28/14 Amend as follows, under Metro actions: 

"Build and monitor local and state 
commitment to implement the Active 
Transportation Plan, and Safe Routes 
to Schools and Safe Routes to 
Transit." 

Monitoring would occur through periodic 
updates to the Regional Transportation 
Plan. Funding active transportation is 
addressed in a separate action in the 
funding portion of the toolbox.

22 Toolbox of 
Possible Actions 
(2015-20) (Exhibit 
C)

Page 3, biking and walking policy, add 
new actions to recognize potential role 
of electric bikes in the future: "Simplify 
and clarify policy on e-bike use of 
bike lanes and other 
infrastructure;"Clarify that e-bikes are 
part of the region's active 
transportation strategy;" and "Fund 
pilot project to test the efficacy of e-
bikes in attracting new riders."

Drive Oregon 10/28/14 Amend as follows:  

"Simplify and clarify policy on e-bike 
use of bike lanes and other 
infrastructure;"Clarify that e-bikes are 
part of the region's active 
transportation strategy;" and "Partner 
with Portland State University to 
develop a pilot project to test the 
efficacy of e-bikes in attracting new 
riders."



Updated 12/09/14
MTAC and TPAC Recommendation on Comments Received

Attachment 4 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B

23 of 43

# Exhibit Comment Source(s) Date Recommendation
23 Toolbox of 

Possible Actions 
(2015-20) (Exhibit 
C)

Page 3, biking and walking policy, under 
Metro actions, add an action to prioritize 
or commit regional flexible funds to 
active transportation.

1000 Friends of 
Oregon, John 
Carr, National 
Safe Routes to 

School 
Partnership, 

Coalition for a 
Livable Future

10/22/14, 
10/27/14, 
10/28/14, 
10/30/14

No change recommended to Exibit C. 
See also recommendation on Comment 
#15 in the Exhibit B section.

This comment has been forwarded to the 
Metro staff responsible for the Regional 
Flexible Fund Allocation (RFFA) process. 
JPACT and the Metro Council provide 
policy direction for prioritizing allocation of 
the federal flexible funds at the beginning 
of each RFFA cycle. The next RFFA cycle 
(and policy update) will begin in 2015.  

24 Toolbox of 
Possible Actions 
(2015-20) (Exhibit 
C)

Page 3, biking and walking policy, under 
Metro actions, add an action to use the 
Climate Smart Strategy as a filter for 
evaluating individual transportation 
projects to construct or widen major 
roads and arterials.

1000 Friends of 
Oregon, 

National Safe 
Routes to 

School 
Partnership

10/22/14, 
10/28/14

No change recommended to Exhibit C. 
See also recommendation on Comment 
#15 in the Exhibit B section.

Metro does not apply a single filter to 
individual projects included in the 
Regional Transportation Plan, and most 
RTP projects are locally-funded and 
reflect locally adopted investment 
priorities. Adoption of the Climate Smart 
Strategy will incorporate reducing 
greenhouse gas emissions from light duty 
vehicles in system-level regional 
transportation planning and investment 
decisions. 

25 Toolbox of 
Possible Actions 
(2015-20) (Exhibit 
C)

Page 3, biking and walking policy, 
include the following actions to support 
increased physical activity: integrate 
multi-modal designs in road 
improvement and maintenance to 
support all users, implement complete 
streets strategies and complete the 
active transportation network.

Oregon Health 
Authority

10/7/14 No change recommended to Exhibit C. 

The draft toolbox currently identifies 
these actions.

26 Toolbox of 
Possible Actions 
(2015-20) (Exhibit 
C)

Page 4, streets and highways policy, 
under Metro actions, delete first bullet 
under "Build a diverse coalition" as 
ensuring adequate funding for local 
maintenance is a local responsibility, not 
a Metro responsibility. 

City of Hillsboro 10/30/14 Amend as requested. See also 
recommendation on Comment #12 in this 
section.

This amendment also applies to other 
references of local funding under Metro 
actions on Page 2, transit. 

27 Toolbox of 
Possible Actions 
(2015-20) (Exhibit 
C)

Page 4, streets and highways policy, 
add "Adopt a vision zero strategy to 
eliminate all traffic fatalitlies" for each 
partner (e.g., state, Metro, local 
governments and special districts) to be 
consistent with reference in bike and 
pedestrian policy actions on page 3.

Community 
leaders 

meeting, Safe 
Routes to 

School 
Partnership

10/1/14, 
10/28/14

Amend as requested under the near-term 
actions (2017-2020), recognizing time will 
be needed to understand policy and fiscal 
implications of this type of strategy.



Updated 12/09/14
MTAC and TPAC Recommendation on Comments Received

Attachment 4 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B

24 of 43

# Exhibit Comment Source(s) Date Recommendation
28 Toolbox of 

Possible Actions 
(2015-20) (Exhibit 
C)

Page 4, streets and highways policy, 
page 5, use technology policy and 
provide travel information and incentives 
policy, and page 6 parking policy, under 
Metro actions, add an action to 
implement the actions and investments 
identified for these policy areas in the 
Climate Smart Strategy in the 2018 
RTP:  "Implement the Climate Smart 
Communities Strategy streets and 
highways investments and actions in 
the 2018 RTP";  "Implement the 
Climate Smart Communities Strategy 
transportations system management 
investments and actions in the 2018 
RTP"; and  "Implement the Climate 
Smart Communities Strategy 
transportation demand management 
investments and actions in the 2018 
RTP"

Metro staff 10/24/14 Amend as requested as follows: 

Add a new action under demonstrate 
Climate leadership that reads "Review 
and evaluate Climate Smart Strategy 
investments and actions for adoption in 
the 2018 RTP."

This amendment reflects the overall 
strategy will be further implemented 
through the 2018 RTP update as part of 
the process and in coordination with other 
policy considerations to be addressed as 
part of the update.                                                                               

29 Toolbox of 
Possible Actions 
(2015-20) (Exhibit 
C)

Page 5, using technology policy, add a 
new immediate term local government 
action to help implement the draft 
approach: "Complete an inventory of 
the installed intelligent transportation 
systems (ITS) along arterials to help 
prioritize areas where limited funding 
could best be directed to increase 
roadway performance."

City of Hillsboro 9/24/14 Amend as requested. 

30 Toolbox of 
Possible Actions 
(2015-20) (Exhibit 
C)

Page 5, using technology policy, add 
new actions for all partners to recognize 
expanding role of ITS in the future: 
"Pursue opportunities and funding for 
pilot projects that help establish the 
region as a living laboratory for 
sustainable and multi-modal 
ITS;"Seek opportunities to leverage 
Oregon's road user fee pilot project 
to provide additional services to 
participating drivers;" and "Develop a 
pilot project to test wireless charging 
of electric vehicles, ideally 
encompassing both transit vehicles 
and passenger cars."

Drive Oregon 10/28/14 Amend as requested. 



Updated 12/09/14
MTAC and TPAC Recommendation on Comments Received

Attachment 4 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B

25 of 43

# Exhibit Comment Source(s) Date Recommendation
31 Toolbox of 

Possible Actions 
(2015-20) (Exhibit 
C)

Page 5, providing information and 
incentives policy, add new actions to 
integrate promotion of efficient vehicles 
and fuel choices in the promotion of 
other travel options:

Drive Oregon 10/28/14 Amend as requested as follows:

 "Clarify that e-bikes are part of the 
regional toolkit of travel options;" 
Encourage regional carsharing 
services to increase their use of 
electric vehicles and other clean fuel 
alteratives; 

"Integrate promotion of workplace 
charging into employer-based 
outreach programs that encourage 
transit, walking, bicycling and 
carpooling;" and 

"Integrate education about vehicle and 
fuel efficiency into public awareness 
strategions such as eco-driving 
promotion."

32 Toolbox of 
Possible Actions 
(2015-20) (Exhibit 
C)

Page 5, provide information and 
incentives, add new action to commit a 
larger portion of funds to expand travel 
options that will include grade-school 
populations and school staff through 
education and encouragement programs 
such as Safe Routes to School.

Safe Routes to 
School National 

Partnership

10/28/14 No change recommended to Exhibit C. 
See also recommendation on Comment 
#15 in the Exhibit B section.

This comment has been forwarded to the 
Metro staff responsible for the Regional 
Flexible Fund Allocation (RFFA) process 
and ODOT staff responsible for Connect 
Oregon and the STIP process. JPACT 
and the Metro Council provide policy 
direction for prioritizing allocation of the 
federal flexible funds at the beginning of 
each RFFA cycle. The next RFFA cycle 
(and policy update) will begin in 2015.  

33 Toolbox of 
Possible Actions 
(2015-20) (Exhibit 
C)

Page 5, provide information and 
incentives, add new action to link 
completion of transportation and parking 
demand management initiatives to 
scoring criteria for infrastructure funding 
opportunities, e.g., regional flexible 
funds, ConnectOregon, and the Oregon 
Statewide Transportation Improvement 
Program.

Safe Routes to 
School National 

Partnership

10/28/14 No change recommended to Exhibit C. 
See also recommendation on Comment 
#15 in the Exhibit B section.

The toolbox already includes separate 
actions to link system and transportation 
demand management to capital 
investments. In addition, this comment 
has been forwarded to the Metro staff 
responsible for the Regional Flexible 
Fund Allocation (RFFA) process and 
ODOT staff responsible for Connect 
Oregon and the STIP process. JPACT 
and the Metro Council provide policy 
direction for prioritizing allocation of the 
federal flexible funds at the beginning of 
each RFFA cycle. The next RFFA cycle 
(and policy update) will begin in 2015.  



Updated 12/09/14
MTAC and TPAC Recommendation on Comments Received

Attachment 4 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B

26 of 43

# Exhibit Comment Source(s) Date Recommendation
34 Toolbox of 

Possible Actions 
(2015-20) (Exhibit 
C)

Page 5, provide information and 
incentives, add new action on integrating 
use of new people mover services (Lyft, 
Uber, Car2Go)  into urban transportation 
strategies.

Angus Duncan 10/2/14 Amend as follows: 

add new action "Integrate promotion of 
carsharing and new people mover 
services into employer-based 
outreach programs that encourage 
transit, walking, bicycling and 
carpooling;" 

add new action "Integrate education 
about carsharing programs into public 
awareness strategies."

35 Toolbox of 
Possible Actions 
(2015-20) (Exhibit 
C)

Page 6, parking policy, fully utilize 
parking pricing strategies. Parking 
spaces are not truly “free, and pricing is 
one of the most effective ways to 
manage demand. Cities should charge 
the fair market price for on-street 
parking, using the revenues to finance 
added public services in the metered 
neighborhoods. Likewise, parking 
minimums hurt housing affordability.

Oregon 
Environmental 

Council

10/15/14 No change recommended to Exhibit C. 
See alo recommendations on Comments 
#36 and #37 in this section. 

The draft toolbox currently identifies an 
action to research and update regional 
parking policies to reflect the range of 
parking approaches available for different 
types of development. The existing action 
is recommended to moved to the 2015-16 
time period to inform the 2018 RTP 
update. 

36 Toolbox of 
Possible Actions 
(2015-20) (Exhibit 
C)

Page 6, parking policy, under Metro 
actions, move the "near-term" action to 
research and update regional parking 
policies to "Immediate" time period. It 
will take time to complete the research 
and conduct pilot projects to inform the 
2018 RTP update.

1000 Friends of 
Oregon

10/22/14 Amend as requested with the following 
change: 

move immediate action to "discuss priced 
parking as a revenue source" to list of 
near-term actions as this should be 
informed by the parking research 
conducted in the "Immediate" time period.

See also recommendations on 
Comments #35 and #37 in this section. 

37 Toolbox of 
Possible Actions 
(2015-20) (Exhibit 
C)

Page 6, parking policy, under Metro 
actions, add a new action to link 
providing different parking policies in 
mixed-use transit corridors and centers 
with maintaining and providing 
affordable housing (e.g., recoup some of 
the private savings from providing fewer 
parking spaces in a development served 
by frequent transit service and use the 
savings to provide for or preserve 
affordable housing in the corridor)."

1000 Friends of 
Oregon

10/22/14 Amend as follows:

add "and linking parking policies in 
mixed-use transit corridors and 
centers with maintaining and 
providing affordable housing."

See also recommendations on 
Comments #35 and #36 in this section. 

38 Toolbox of 
Possible Actions 
(2015-20) (Exhibit 
C)

Page 6, parking policy, under Metro 
actions, move near-term action to 
"expand on-going technical assistance 
to local governments and others…" to 
immediate term.

Metro staff 10/24/14 Amend as requested.



Updated 12/09/14
MTAC and TPAC Recommendation on Comments Received

Attachment 4 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B

27 of 43

# Exhibit Comment Source(s) Date Recommendation
39 Toolbox of 

Possible Actions 
(2015-20) (Exhibit 
C)

Page 7, support Oregon's transition to 
cleaner, low carbon fuels and more fuel 
efficient vehicles, move near-term action 
on updating development codes to 
encourage the installation of electric 
vehicle charging stations to immediate 
time period and revise as follows, 
"Update development codes to 
streamline/incentivize/encourage the 
installation of electric vehicle 
charging stations and infrastructure, 
particularly in new buildings."

Technical work 
group member

10/9/14 Amend as requested. 

40 Toolbox of 
Possible Actions 
(2015-20) (Exhibit 
C)

Page 5, parking policy, add new actions 
to integrate electric vehicles in parking 
plans and policies: "Join the Workplace 
Charging Challenge as a partner;" 
"Develop and support pilot projects 
and model planning approaches to 
encourage highly visible charging 
infrastructure on-street and in the 
public right-of-way;" "Develop and 
support "charging oases" with 
multiple chargers, modeled on the 
Electric Avenue project at Portland 
State University;" "Support efforts to 
future proof new developments, 
particularly multi-family housing and 
large parking lots, by installing 
conduit for future charging of at least 
20% of parking spaces, similar to 
standards in Hawaii, California and 
elsewhere."

Drive Oregon 10/28/14 Amend as requested, with the last action 
to read as follows:

"Support efforts in new developments 
(particularly multi-family housing and 
large parking lots) by installing 
conduit for future charging of 20% or 
more  parking spaces (see similar 
standards in Hawaii and California)."

41 Toolbox of 
Possible Actions 
(2015-20) (Exhibit 
C)

Page 5, parking policy, add a new Metro 
action: "Convene regional 
transportation and planning officials 
to develop strategies for developing 
cost-effective charging infrastructure 
that also reinforces regional planning 
goals."                                                                  

Drive Oregon 10/28/14 Amend as requested. 

42 Toolbox of 
Possible Actions 
(2015-20) (Exhibit 
C)

Page 5, Support Oregon's transition to 
cleaner fuels and more fuel efficient 
vehicles policy, add new Metro actions: 
"Increase Metro fleet use of electric 
vehicles, including non-passenger 
cars (e-bikes and utility vehicles);" 
"Expand availability of charging at 
Metro venues (Oregon Zoo, Expo 
Center, Convention Center, P5, etc.)."                                                                  

Drive Oregon 10/28/14 Amend as requested. 



Updated 12/09/14
MTAC and TPAC Recommendation on Comments Received

Attachment 4 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B

28 of 43

# Exhibit Comment Source(s) Date Recommendation
43 Toolbox of 

Possible Actions 
(2015-20) (Exhibit 
C)

Page 5, Support Oregon's transition to 
cleaner fuels and more fuel efficient 
vehicles policy, add new actions for all 
partners: "Support renewal of 
Oregon's tax credits for charing 
stations and other alternative fueling 
infrastructure;" "Support legislation 
being promoted by Drive Oregon and 
the Energize Oregon Coalition to 
create a purchase rebate for electric 
vehicles;" and "Join Drive Oregon an 
Energize Oregon Coalition as a 
member organization and participate 
as an active partner in promoting 
electric vehicle readiness and 
deployment."                                                                  

Drive Oregon 10/28/14 Amend as requested. 

44 Toolbox of 
Possible Actions 
(2015-20) (Exhibit 
C)

Page 5, Support Oregon's transition to 
cleaner fuels and more fuel efficient 
vehicles policy, it is important to keep the 
region's options open to new 
technological advancements beyond 
what the state assumed in the setting 
the region's target. Periodic review is 
needed.

City of Hillsboro 10/30/14 Amend to include a new state action as 
follows: 

"Review the state greenhouse gas 
emission reduction targets, including 
assumptions related to fleet and 
technology advancements." 

This reflects OAR 660-044-0035, which  
directs LCDC and state agencies (e.g., 
DEQ, ODOT, DOE and DLCD) to 
periodically review the targets. The first 
review is due by June 1, 2015. 

Updated fleet and technology information 
will be accounted for in future analysis to 
determine whether the region is on track 
with meeting state targets for greenhouse 
gas emissions reduction. The next update 
to the RTP (due in 2018) will reflect the 
updated information.  



Updated 12/09/14
MTAC and TPAC Recommendation on Comments Received

Attachment 4 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B

29 of 43

# Exhibit Comment Source(s) Date Recommendation
45 Toolbox of 

Possible Actions 
(2015-20) (Exhibit 
C)

Page 6, funding policy, Metro should use 
its leadership and role as the region's 
MPO to support and seek opportunities 
to advocate for new, dedicated funding 
mechanisms for active transportation 
and transit and leverage local, regional, 
state and federal funding to achieve 
local visions that align with region's 
desired outcomes.                                                                 

Safe Routes to 
School National 

Partnership

10/28/14 No change recommended to Exhibit C. 

These actions are already identified on 
page 6 of the toolbox.

46 Toolbox of 
Possible Actions 
(2015-20) (Exhibit 
C)

Page 6, funding policy, under Metro 
actions, to include an action to prioritize 
active transportation and transit for 
funding.

Coalition for a 
Livable Future

10/30/14

47 Toolbox of 
Possible Actions 
(2015-20) (Exhibit 
C)

Page 6, funding policy, under Metro 
actions, to include an action to increase 
funding for active transportation through 
the Regional Flexible Fund Allocation 
process.

Coalition for a 
Livable Future

10/30/14

See recommendation on comment #26 in 
this section for recomended change.

The intent of the actions in this section is 
for Metro and others to work together to 
secure adequate funding to implement 
adopted plans, recognizing it will take a 
combination of local, regional, state and 
federal funding sources. Metro has and 
continues to support maintaining local 
options for funding; as documented in 
past state and federal legislative agendas 
adopted by the Metro Council and 
JPACT. Funding efforts undertaken by 
Washington County and its cities are a 
model for other communitiesn, and also 
present an opportunity for the region to 
show federal and state partners the 
efforts to fund transportation needs 
locally. 

The next RTP update will include 
updating the region's funding strategy, 
considering any new actions taken at the 
local, state and federal levels. 

10/30/14City of HillsboroPage 6, funding policy, under Metro 
actions, focus efforts on any funding 
coalition on federal and state funds. 
Funding strategies should not include a 
regional tax or jeopardize local funding 
sources, such as the sources 
Washington County and its cities have 
developed to serve existing communities 
and new growth areas.

Toolbox of 
Possible Actions 
(2015-20) (Exhibit 
C)

48

No change recommended to Exhibit C. 
See alsorecommendation on Comment 
#15 in the Exhibit B section. 

This comment has been forwarded to the 
Metro staff responsible for the Regional 
Flexible Fund Allocation (RFFA) process 
and ODOT staff responsible for Connect 
Oregon and the STIP process. JPACT 
and the Metro Council provide policy 
direction for prioritizing allocation of the 
federal flexible funds at the beginning of 
each RFFA cycle. The next RFFA cycle 
(and policy update) will begin in 2015.  



Updated 12/09/14
MTAC and TPAC Recommendation on Comments Received

Attachment 4 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B

30 of 43

# Exhibit Comment Source(s) Date Recommendation
49 Toolbox of 

Possible Actions 
(2015-20) (Exhibit 
C)

Page 8, expand the list of Metro actions 
under "Demonstrate leadership on 
climate change" to include more specific 
actions like sharing development of the 
Climate Smart Strategy with other 
metropolitan areas and helping build 
understanding of how different tools and 
actions work, how they can help a 
community achieve its vision, and how 
everyone needs to be part of the 
solution. The actions listed are primarily 
focused on inventories, reports and 
plans. 

Community 
leaders meeting 

and Oregon 
Environmental 

Council

10/1/14, 
10/15/14

Amend as requested.

50 Toolbox of 
Possible Actions 
(2015-20) (Exhibit 
C)

Page 8, expand the list of Metro actions 
under "Demonstrate leadership on 
climate change" to include using Climate 
Smart Strategy as a filter for Metro's 
land use and transportation policy and 
investment decisions.  Add language 
indicating these policy and investment 
decisions help the region achieve the 
target.

1000 Friends of 
Oregon, 

National Safe 
Routes to 

School 
Partnership, 

Coalition for a 
Livable Future

10/22/14, 
10/28/14, 
10/30/14

Amend as follows: 

"Evaluate Metro's major land use and 
RTP policy and investment decisions 
to determine whether they help the 
region meet adopted targets for 
reducing greenhouse gas emissions." 

See also recommendation on comments 
#20 and #21 in Exhibit B section.

51 Toolbox of 
Possible Actions 
(2015-20) (Exhibit 
C)

Page 8, expand the list of Metro actions 
under "Demonstrate leadership on 
climate change" to include an action that 
states "Update the Regional 
Transportation Plan to implement the 
Climate Smart Communities 
Strategy." The update represents an 
opportunity to update performance 
measures, policies and the Regional 
Transportation Functional Plan.

Coalition for a 
Livable Future

10/30/14 Amend as follows:

Add a new action under demonstrate 
Climate leadership that reads ""Review 
and evaluate Climate Smart Strategy 
investments and actions for adoption in 
the 2018 RTP.""

This amendment reflects the overall 
strategy will be further implemented 
through the 2018 RTP update as part of 
the process and in coordination with other 
policy considerations to be addressed as 
part of the update.

52 Toolbox of 
Possible Actions 
(2015-20) (Exhibit 
C)

Reduce emissions by addresing the use 
of gas-powered lawn mowers and leaf-
blowers.

Fran Mason 9/20/14 No change recommended to Exhibit C. 

These sources of emissions are outside 
of the scope of the Climate Smart 
Strategy. 

53 Toolbox of 
Possible Actions 
(2015-20) (Exhibit 
C)

Require all tires be finished at the 
manufacturer to reduce friction.

Zephyr Moore 9/22/14 No change recommended to Exhibit C. 

This is beyond the scope of the project.

54 Toolbox of 
Possible Actions 
(2015-20) (Exhibit 
C)

Page 8, demonstrate leadership on 
climate change policy, add a new 
immediate term action for each partner: 
"Review the Toolbox of Possible 
Actions to identify actions that are 
already being implemented and new 
actions public officials are willing to 
commit to."

City of Hillsboro 9/24/14 Amend as requested. 



Updated 12/09/14
MTAC and TPAC Recommendation on Comments Received

Attachment 4 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B

31 of 43

# Exhibit Comment Source(s) Date Recommendation
55 Toolbox of 

Possible Actions 
(2015-20) (Exhibit 
C)

Ban wood burning and touch-and-go 
flight training at the Hillsboro airport to 
reduce exposure to particulates and 
leaded fuel emissions.

Gary and Ruth 
Warren

10/20/14 No change recommended to Exhibit C. 

These sources of emissions are outside 
of the scope of the Climate Smart 
Strategy.  The comments have been 
forwarded to City of Hillsboro staff for 
their consideration.

57 Toolbox of 
Possible Actions 
(2015-20) (Exhibit 
C)

Define unfamiliar terms in the toolbox, 
such as Vision Zero Strategy and 
EcoRule, to provide more clarity on the 
actions being recommended. 

City of Hillsboro 10/30/14 Amend as requested. 

Include a glossary of terms, using the 
glossary in Exhibit A as a starting point.

Do not adopt the toolbox as part of 
Ordinance 14-1346 to allow for more 
discussion and refinement of the toolbox 
using the technical work group. In 
addition, include an analysis and 
discussion of how the Toolbox of 
Possible Actions relates to the Statewide 
Transportation Strategy.  The 8th and 
9th clauses on page 3 of the draft 
ordinance should be amended to reflect 
such an effort, and the 4th "be it 
ordained" on Page 5 should be 
reworded as follows "Metro Council 
directs staff to provide opportunities 
for further review and refinement of 
the Toolbox of Actions by local 
governments, ODOT, TriMet and other 
stakeholders."

Toolbox of 
Possible Actions 
(2015-20) (Exhibit 
C)

10/30/14City of Hillsboro56  Amend the 4th "be it ordained" in the 
draft ordinance as follows: 

"Metro Council directs staff to provide 
opportunities for further review and 
refinement of the Toolbox of Actions 
by local governments, ODOT, TriMet 
and other stakeholders as part of the 
RTP update." 

Consultation with DLCD and ODOT staff 
have confirmed the toolbox is a 
necessary component of the adoption 
package.The toolbox contains policies 
and strategies intended to achieve the 
target and is, therefore, a necessary part 
of the overall preferred strategy for 
meeting the target under OAR-660-
0040(3)(c). The toolbox does not 
mandate local adoption of any particular 
policy or action, and serves is a starting 
point for the region to begin 
implementation of the CSC strategy. As 
such, the toolbox reflects near-term 
actions that can be taken in the next 5 
years, recognizing that medium and 
longer term actions will be identified 
through the next scheduled update to the 
RTP. Staff has recommended refinements 
to the toolbox to respond to specific 
comments received during the comment 
period. Adoption of the toolbox directs 
staff to include the toolbox in the RTP 
appendix as a starting point for further 
refinement during the next RTP update. 
Adoption of the toolbox in Ordinance 14-
1346 directs staff to incorporate the 
toolbox into the technical appendix of the 
RTP, recognizing more work is needed 
during the RTP update to identify medium 
and longer-term implementation actions. 
A comparison of the STS and toolbox will 
be developed at that time. 



Updated 12/09/14
MTAC and TPAC Recommendation on Comments Received

Attachment 4 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B

32 of 43

# Exhibit Comment Source(s) Date Recommendation
58 Toolbox of 

Possible Actions 
(2015-20) (Exhibit 
C)

The toolbox should also have an action 
to develop new urban areas in ways that 
further the region's efforts in achieving 
greenhouse gas emissions reductions, 
such as planning for complete 
communities with walking, biking and 
transit options as part of concept 
planning to reduce or eliminate vehicle 
trips for every day needs (e.g., 
shopping, school, recreation).

City of Hillsboro 10/30/14 Amend as requested.

In addition, amend Policy 1.7.5(a) and (d) 
of Chapter 1 of the Regional Framework 
Plan as follows:

"a. Help achieve livable communities and 
reduce greenhouse gas emissions." 

"d. Determine the general urban land 
uses, key local and regional multi-
modal transportation facilities and 
prospective components of the regional 
system of parks, natural areas..."

59 Toolbox of 
Possible Actions 
(2015-20) (Exhibit 
C)

Add language to the toolbox to more 
clearly articulate the ability to "locally 
tailor" implementation tools.

Clackamas 
County Board of 
Commissioners, 
City of Hillsboro, 

City of Happy 
Valley

10/22/14, 
10/30/14, 
10/30/14

Amend as requested.

This is addressed in part in the staff 
recommendation on Comment #56 in this 
section.
 
To address comments provided at the 
Nov. 7 joint MPAC/JPACT meeting, staff 
recommends the following additional 
changes to the clauses on page 4 of the 
ordinance:

WHEREAS, while the toolbox provides an 
advisory menu of possible actions and 
does not mandate adoption of require 
local governments, special districts, or 
state agencies to adopt any particular 
policy or action; and 

WHEREAS, MPAC and JPACT 
recommend the toolbox be a living 
document subject to further review 
and refinement by local governments, 
ODOT, TriMet and other stakeholders 
as part of scheduled updates to the 
RTP to reflect new information and 
approaches to reducing greenhouse 
gas emissions; and

WHEREAS, MPAC and JPACT agree 
updates to local comprehensive plans 
and development regulations, transit 
agency plans, port district plans and 
regional growth management and 
transportation plans present continuing 
opportunities to consider implementing 
the actions recommended in the 
toolbox of possible actions in that can be 
locally tailored ways; and

11/7/14Mayor Willey, 
City of Hillsboro
Keith Mays, 
Washington 
County Citizen
Mayor Tim 
Knapp, Cities of 
Clackamas 
County
Marilyn 
McWilliams, 
Washington 
County Special 
Districts
Lise Glancy, 
Port of Portland
Jeff Gudman, 
City of Lake 
Oswego

Remove the toolbox from the adoption 
package, adopt by separate resolution 
and/or delay adoption to allow more time 
for review and refinement.

Toolbox of 
Possible Actions 
(2015-20) (Exhibit 
C)

60



Updated 12/09/14
MTAC and TPAC Recommendation on Comments Received

Attachment 4 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B

33 of 43

# Exhibit Comment Source(s) Date Recommendation
61 Toolbox of 

Possible Actions 
(2015-20) (Exhibit 
C)

Draft toolbox introduction does not 
adequately convey the flexibility and 
local control intended for the toolbox. 
The toolbox should be adopted with 
language that more strongly conveys it 
is a flexible, living document that can be 
updated and refined as we learn more.

Ruth Adkins, 
Portland Public 

Schools

11/7/14 This comment was addressed in part in 
staff recommendation on Comment #56 
in this section..

Based on November 7 discussion, staff 
also recommends the following changes 
be made:

Amend toolbox introduction to better 
reflect language included in ordinance 
adopting the Climate Smart Strategy and 
supporting staff report.

62 Toolbox of 
Possible Actions 
(2015-20) (Exhibit 
C)

Add glossary to toolbox to improve 
clarity

Jim Bernards, 
Clackamas 

County 
Commissioner

11/7/14 This comment was addressed in the staff 
recommendation on Comment #58 on in 
this section.

63 Toolbox of 
Possible Actions 
(2015-20) (Exhibit 
C)

Add implementing local transportation 
system plans to toolbox and strategy

Paul Savas, 
Clackamas 

County 
Commissioner

11/7/14 Amend toolbox as requested and amend 
Exhibit A to more clearly describe that 
local transportation system plans (and 
local land use plans) are components of 
the Climate Smart Strategy.

See also recommendation on comment 
#20 in in the Exhibit A section.

64 Toolbox of 
Possible Actions 
(2015-20) (Exhibit 
C)

Revise page 2, Metro Actions:  
“Leverage Metro’s and the region’s 
public investments to maintain and 
create affordable housing options . . .”  

We previously expressed concern 
previously that linking affordable housing 
to climate smart was overly broad.  
Limiting Metro’s actions in this area  to 
what’s within Metro’s control will help 
alleviate concerns.

City of Hillsboro 11/24/14 Amend as requested.



Updated 12/09/14
MTAC and TPAC Recommendation on Comments Received

Attachment 4 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B

34 of 43

# Exhibit Comment Source(s) Date Recommendation
65 Toolbox of 

Possible Actions 
(2015-20) (Exhibit 
C)

 Page 5, “Adopt a Vision Zero strategy” 
– as indicated in our October 30 letter, 
this tool needs evaluation of the 
monetary implications.  Specifically, the 
definition provided indicates this can 
include, among other actions, “improved 
engineering, operation and design.”  
What is the cost of this strategy?  Who is 
paying?  A better near-term action would 
be to discuss the implications, costs and 
benefits of this strategy, including how 
the implementations measure may 
already be accounted for in locally 
adopted plans.  We also have a question 
as to who is best to adopt the strategy.

City of Hillsboro 11/24/14 Amend to move this potential action to 
the near-term (2017-20).  As has been 
noted, tthe toolbox is advisory so local 
governments and others may choose to 
implement this action in the near-term, 
longer term or not at all.

66 Toolbox of 
Possible Actions 
(2015-20) (Exhibit 
C)

Add the following definitions to the 
glossary

Workplace charging challenge
Oregon Zero Emission Vehicle Program
Drive Oregon
Energize Oregon Coalition

City of Hillsboro 11/24/14 Amend as requested.

67 Toolbox of 
Possible Actions 
(2015-20) (Exhibit 
C)

Page 9, secure adequate funding for 
transportation investments, add a new 
action that reads "Seek and advocate 
for funding the adopted RTP" 
recognizing the intent is to seek and 
advocate for funding aligned with the 
adopted State RTP for transit and 
system and demand management 
strategies and the federal-financially 
constrained RTP for roads and active 
transportation.

TPAC 11/24/14 Amend as requested

One of the three Early Actions TPAC will 
be discussing is to advocate for 
increased funding for all transportation 
modes and well over half of the 
recommended investments in the draft 
approach are road projects that will not 
help the region reduce greenhouse gas 
emissions. 

Given the technical analysis that shows 
that investments in transit and active 
transportation have the greatest climate 
benefit, the recognized multiple social, 
environmental, and economic benefits of 
improving our transit and active 
transportation systems, and the strong 
support that the public has shown in 
elevating transit and active 
transportation above the other strategies 
– the Approach, Toolbox, Performance 
Monitoring, and Early Actions should all 
be aligned to prioritize investments in 
transit and active transportation.  We 
support the language of Early Action #3. 

We would like to see similar language 
that makes clear the necessity to 
prioritize greenhouse gas emissions-
reducing projects, and recommend that 
Metro convene an oversight committee 
made up of transportation, land use, 
public health, environmental, and social 
justice advocates and professionals.

Toolbox of 
Possible Actions 
(2015-20) (Exhibit 
C)

68 Transportation 
Justice Alliance

10/30/14 No change to Exhibit C recommended. 
The Climate Smart Strategy will be 
further implemented through the next 
update to the Regional Transportation 
Plan, which will consider the relative 
greenhouse gas emissions reduction 
potential of investments and other fiscal, 
economic, public health, environmental 
and equity outcomes to inform prioritizing 
investments. 

See also the recommendation on 
Comments #13, 14, 17 in the Exhibit A 
section and Comment #18 in the Exhibit 
D section for additional context and 
explanation.



Updated 12/09/14
MTAC and TPAC Recommendation on Comments Received

Attachment 4 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B

35 of 43

# Exhibit Comment Source(s) Date Recommendation

End of comments and recommended changes to Exhibit C

One of the three Early Actions TPAC will 
be discussing is to advocate for 
increased funding for all transportation 
modes and well over half of the 
recommended investments in the draft 
approach are road projects that will not 
help the region reduce greenhouse gas 
emissions. 

Given the technical analysis that shows 
that investments in transit and active 
transportation have the greatest climate 
benefit, the recognized multiple social, 
environmental, and economic benefits of 
improving our transit and active 
transportation systems, and the strong 
support that the public has shown in 
elevating transit and active 
transportation above the other strategies 
– the Approach, Toolbox, Performance 
Monitoring, and Early Actions should all 
be aligned to prioritize investments in 
transit and active transportation.  We 
support the language of Early Action #3. 

We would like to see similar language 
that makes clear the necessity to 
prioritize greenhouse gas emissions-
reducing projects, and recommend that 
Metro convene an oversight committee 
made up of transportation, land use, 
public health, environmental, and social 
justice advocates and professionals.

Toolbox of 
Possible Actions 
(2015-20) (Exhibit 
C)

68 Transportation 
Justice Alliance

10/30/14 No change to Exhibit C recommended. 
The Climate Smart Strategy will be 
further implemented through the next 
update to the Regional Transportation 
Plan, which will consider the relative 
greenhouse gas emissions reduction 
potential of investments and other fiscal, 
economic, public health, environmental 
and equity outcomes to inform prioritizing 
investments. 

See also the recommendation on 
Comments #13, 14, 17 in the Exhibit A 
section and Comment #18 in the Exhibit 
D section for additional context and 
explanation.



Updated 12/09/14
MTAC and TPAC Recommendation on Comments Received

Attachment 4 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B

36 of 43

# Exhibit Comment Source(s) Date Recommendation

1 Performance 
Monitoring 
Approach (Exhibit 
D)

Use model assumptions or outputs for 
2035 to define targets for purposes of 
monitoring and assessing whether key 
elements of the Climate Smart Strategy 
are being implemented.

Metro staff in 
consultation 

with DLCD staff

10/24/14 Amend as requested.

The measure and target will be reviewed 
as part of the next scheduled update to 
the RTP.

2 Performance 
Monitoring 
Approach (Exhibit 
D)

The performance monitoring should 
explicitly include measurement of equity 
outcomes. For example, share of low-
income households near transit.

Safe Routes to 
School National 

Partnership

10/28/14 Amend as requested.  

The measure and target will be reviewed 
as part of the next scheduled update to 
the RTP.

3 Performance 
Monitoring 
Approach (Exhibit 
D)

Ensure social equity and health goals 
are considered when prioritizing 
investments by explicitly and 
transparently addressing how 
investments link low-income and other 
vulnerable households to health-
promoting resources.

Oregon Health 
Authority

10/7/14 No change recommended to Exhibit D. 
See also recommendation on Comments 
#4 and #5 in this section. 

This project underscored the significant 
public health, economic and equity 
benefits of actions and investments that 
reduce greenhouse gas emissions. 
Metro's Equity Strategy (currently under 
development) and the Climate Smart 
Strategy Health Impact Assessment and 
recommendations will inform how future 
regional planning efforts (including RTP 
updates) will consider equity and public 
health. 

4 Performance 
Monitoring 
Approach (Exhibit 
D)

Maximize health benefits by monitoring 
key health indicators, expanding 
partnerships that promote health and 
developing tools to support the 
consideration of health impacts in future 
land use and transportation decisions 
throughout the region.

Oregon Health 
Authority

10/7/14 No change recommended to Exhibit D. 

This comment has been forwarded to the 
Metro staff responsible for Metro's Equity 
Strategy (currently under development). 
The process has identified potential 
health indicators for Metro and other 
partners to monitor given the link 
between health and social equity. A 
baseline report and performance 
measures recommendations are 
expected in 2015.

5 Performance 
Monitoring 
Approach (Exhibit 
D)

ODOT and Metro should continue 
working with other State and regional 
partners, such as the Oregon Modeling 
Steering Committee and Health and 
Transportation Subcommittee of the 
OMSC, to develop tools to support 
assessments that measure the impact 
future plans have on air quality, safety, 
active transportation and climate 
change.

Oregon Health 
Authority

10/7/14 No change recommended to Exhibit D; 
however amend Exhibit C, Toolbox of 
Possible Actions, as follows: 

"Continue participating in the Oregon 
Modeling Steering Committee Health 
and Transportation Subcommittee to 
make recommendations to ODOT on 
tools and methods to support future 
health assessments by local, regional 
and state partners."

This would be a new action for the State 
and for Metro. The work will continue in 
2015 and 2016.

Comments on Performance Monitoring Approach (Exhibit D)



Updated 12/09/14
MTAC and TPAC Recommendation on Comments Received

Attachment 4 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B

37 of 43

# Exhibit Comment Source(s) Date Recommendation
6 Performance 

Monitoring 
Approach (Exhibit 
D)

Page 1, add transit ridership as a 
measure.  Transit revenue hours only 
tells part of the story.

Community 
leaders meeting

10/1/14 Amend as requested. 

This measure is currently reported every 
two years by Metro in response to ORS 
197.301 and as part of federally-required 
updates to the RTP. 

The measure and target will be reviewed 
as part of the next scheduled update to 
the RTP.

7 Performance 
Monitoring 
Approach (Exhibit 
D)

Page 1, add a transit affordability 
measure, such as tracking transit fares 
over time compared to inflation.

Community 
leaders 

meeting, 
Transportation 
Justice Alliance

10/1/14, 
10/30/14

Amend as requested.

The measure and target will be reviewed 
as part of the next scheduled update to 
the RTP.

8 Performance 
Monitoring 
Approach (Exhibit 
D)

Page 1, add household 
housing/transportation cost burden 
measure to monitor housing and 
transportation affordability in the region 
and link it to a goal to reduce the 
percentage of cost-burdened 
households, by increasing affordable 
housing, in transit centers and corridors.

Community 
leaders 

meeting, 1000 
Friends of 

Oregon, Oregon 
Environmental 

Council, 
Coalition for a 
Livable Future, 
Transportation 
Justice Alliance

10/1/14, 
10/15/14, 
10/22/14, 
10/30/14, 
10/30/14

Amend as requested. 

Chapter 1, Objective 1.3.3 of the 
Regional Framework Plan includes a 
policy to reduce the share of housing and 
transportation cost-burdened households. 
This measure is  currently reported as 
part of scheduled updates to the RTP and 
the Urban Growth Report. The RTP also 
identifies a target to reduce the 
percentage of cost-burdened households.

The measure and target will be reviewed 
as part of the next scheduled update to 
the RTP.

9 Performance 
Monitoring 
Approach (Exhibit 
D)

Add daily pedestrian and bicycle miles 
traveled or time measure, and set a 
target of meeting or exceeding 1.8 miles 
walked and 3.4 miles cycled per person 
per week by 2035 as projected in the 
Draft Approach to emphasize the health 
benefits. The largest public health 
benefits come from increases in active 
transportation distance and/or time. 

Community 
leaders 

meeting, 
Oregon Health 
Authority, 1000 

Friends of 
Oregon

10/1/14, 
10/7/14, 
10/22/14

No change recommended to Exhibit D. 

Average daily miles of bicycle and 
pedestrian travel is already proposed as 
a measure, using model outputs to 
establish a 2010 baseline and 2035 
target for daily bicycle and pedestrian 
miles traveled. This measure will be 
reported as part of federally-required 
updates to the RTP (currently every four 
years).

The measure and target will be reviewed 
as part of the next federally-required 
update to the RTP.

10 Performance 
Monitoring 
Approach (Exhibit 
D)

Add a measure to track regional ambient 
concentrations of PM 2.5 and set target 
to reduce to 6.41 ug/m3 or below as 
projected in the draft Approach analysis.

Oregon Health 
Authority, 1000 

Friends of 
Oregon

10/7/14, 
10/22/14

Amend as requested to use model 
outputs to monitor for PM 2.5 as part of 
monitoring approach. 

This measure is currently reported every 
two years by Metro in response to ORS 
197.301 and scheduled updates to the 
RTP as part of the region's air quality 
conformity analysis.  

The measure and target will be reviewed 
as part of the next scheduled update to 
the RTP.



Updated 12/09/14
MTAC and TPAC Recommendation on Comments Received

Attachment 4 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B

38 of 43

# Exhibit Comment Source(s) Date Recommendation
11 Performance 

Monitoring 
Approach (Exhibit 
D)

Revise target for fatalities and serious 
injury crashes for all modes to be zero 
by 2035.

Community 
leaders 

meeting, 
National Safe 

Routes to 
School 

Partnership

10/1/14, 
10/28/14

No change recommended to Exhibit D. 

The target reflects targets adopted in the 
2014 RTP, which calls for reducing 
serious and severe injury crashes by 50 
percent from 2010 levels. The adopted 
target will be reviewed as part of the next 
scheduled update to the RTP in 2016-18 
and the Regional Transportation Safety 
Action Plan in 2015-16.

12 Performance 
Monitoring 
Approach (Exhibit 
D)

Add specific actions that Metro will take 
to incent, reward success and penalize 
failure in achieving progress toward 
meeting the adopted Climate Smart 
Strategy.

1000 Friends of 
Oregon, 

National Safe 
Routes to 

School 
Partnership

10/22/14, 
10/28/14

No change recommended to Exhibit D. 
See also recommendation on comment 
#21 in Exhibit B section.

The performance monitoring approach 
calls for Metro to report identified 
performance measures to DLCD and the 
region to inform policymakers on the 
region's progress toward implementing 
the Climate Smart Strategy. Chapter 7 
(Management), Action 7.8.6 of the 
Regional Framework Plan calls for Metro 
to "Take corrective actions if anticipated 
progress is found to be lacking or if Metro 
goals or policies need adjustment..." 

13 Performance 
Monitoring 
Approach (Exhibit 
D)

Set benchmark dates for evaluating 
progress on the immediate and near-
term actions and a commitment to take 
appropriate steps, if necessary, to 
maintain progress towards the target 
GHG reduction.

1000 Friends of 
Oregon, 

National Safe 
Routes to 

School 
Partnership

10/22/14, 
10/28/14

No change recommended to Exhibit D. 
See also Comment 12 in this section and 
comments 20-21 in Exhibit B section.

The performance monitoring approach 
calls for Metro to report identified 
performance measures to DLCD and the 
region every 2-4 years to inform 
policymakers on the region's progress 
toward implementing the Climate Smart 
Strategy. Chapter 7 (Management), 
Action 7.8.6 of the Regional Framework 
Plan calls for Metro to "Take corrective 
actions if anticipated progress is found to 
be lacking or if Metro goals or policies 
need adjustment..." 



Updated 12/09/14
MTAC and TPAC Recommendation on Comments Received

Attachment 4 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B

39 of 43

# Exhibit Comment Source(s) Date Recommendation
14 Performance 

Monitoring 
Approach (Exhibit 
D)

Review the indicators developed for 
Mosaic, the value and cost informed 
transportation planning tool recently 
developed by ODOT, to determine 
whether any of the quantitative and 
qualitative indicators are appropriate to 
use.

Oregon 
Environmental 

Council

10/15/14 No change recommended to Exhibit D. 

Staff reviewed the Mosaic indicators, 
some of which are still under 
development by ODOT. Several Mosaic 
indicators are already included in the 
performance monitoring approach. All of 
the measures and recommended targets 
will be reviewed, and possibly refined, as 
part of the next federally-required update 
to the RTP. The next update will also 
address MAP-21 performance-based 
planning provisions and 
recommendations from Metro's Equity 
Strategy initiative. Staff will review the 
Mosaic indicators again at that time to 
determine whether additional indicators 
may be appropriate to use. 

15 Performance 
Monitoring 
Approach (Exhibit 
D)

Page 3, add public EV charging stations 
as measure for the policy related to 
Oregon's transition to cleaner fuels and 
more fuel-efficient vehicles

Oregon 
Environmental 

Council

10/15/14 No change recommended to Exhibit D. 

Tracking the share of light duty vehicles 
registered in Oregon that are electric or 
plug-in hybrid electric is a more direct 
measure of Oregon's transition to more 
fuel efficient vehicle technologies.

16 Performance 
Monitoring 
Approach (Exhibit 
D)

Page 1, adopt a measure for 20-minute 
neighborhood for the policy “Implement 
the 2040 Growth Concept and local 
adopted land use and transportation 
plans.”

Oregon 
Environmental 

Council

10/15/14 Amend as follows: 

Add a new measure to track the share of 
households living in areas with relatively 
good, walkable access to a mix of 
destinations that support a range of daily 
needs (e.g., jobs, retail and commercial 
services, transit, parks, schools). 
GreenSTEP estimated 26% of the 
region's households lived in these types 
of areas in 2010, and that the share of 
households would grow to 37% by 2035. 

The measure and target will be reviewed 
as part of the next scheduled update to 
the RTP.

17 Performance 
Monitoring 
Approach (Exhibit 
D)

Page 3, develop a more specific 
measure for the policy area “secure 
adequate funding for transportation 
investments,"such as  e.g., 60% of 
transit needs met by 20XX, 75% of 
sidewalk infrastructure complete by 
20XX.

Community 
leaders 

meeting, 
Oregon 

Environmental 
Council

10/1/14, 
10/15/14

No change recommended to Exhibit D. 

The performance monitoring approach 
includes measures to track system 
completeness. In addition, the next 
update to the Regional Transportation 
Plan (due in 2018) will update financial 
assumptions and define performance 
measures to track implementation.



Updated 12/09/14
MTAC and TPAC Recommendation on Comments Received

Attachment 4 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B

40 of 43

# Exhibit Comment Source(s) Date Recommendation
No change recommended to Exhibit D. 

The Climate Smart Strategy will be 
implemented through existing regional 
planning and decision-making processes, 
including RTP updates, RFFA processes, 
growth management decisions and 
corridor planning, as well as through local 
and state planning and decision-making 
processes, rather than a specific Climate 
Smart implementation program. Through 
its planning processes, in coordination 
with its Equity Strategy (currently under 
development), Metro is committed to 
continue to improve its engagement 
practices to ensure more diverse 
perspectives – especially those of 
traditionally underrepresented 
communities – are meaningfully engaged 
in regional planning, decision-making, 
and on-going implementation activities. 

Future public engagement processes will 
be developed in coordination with Metro’s 
diversity, equity and inclusion program 
and Metro's existing advisory 
committees, and follow the best practices 
and processes set out in Metro’s Public 
Engagement Guide. 

Staff will begin scoping the work plan and 
engagement process for the next 
scheduled update to the RTP in 2015. 
Consideration will be given to the type of 
committee to provide oversight of 
engagement, technical and policy work, 
including use of existing advisory 
committees. The update is expected to 
occur over multiple years in order to 
address federal and state planning 
requirements and policy considerations 
and engagement recommendations 
identified through the Climate Smart 
Communities effort and the 2014 RTP 
update. 

10/22/14, 
10/30/14

1000 Friends of 
Oregon, 

Transportation 
Justice Alliance

Metro should establish a public 
engagement process that is diverse and 
inclusive to oversee implementation of 
the Climate Smart Strategy.

Performance 
Monitoring 
Approach (Exhibit 
D)

18



Updated 12/09/14
MTAC and TPAC Recommendation on Comments Received

Attachment 4 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B

41 of 43

# Exhibit Comment Source(s) Date Recommendation
19 Performance 

Monitoring 
Approach (Exhibit 
D)

Add measure to track congestion Paul Savas, 
Clackamas 

County 
Commissioner

11/7/14 Amend Exhibit A to add definition of travel 
time reliability and amend Exhibit D to 
include travel time and reliability as part 
of the monitoring approach.

The draft performance monitoring 
approach includes travel time reliability in 
regional mobility corridors, which 
complements other system performance 
measures identified in the Regional 
Transportation Plan and that are also 
used to regularly update the Regional 
Mobility Atlas to meet federally-required 
reporting and monitoring of the region’s 
congestion management process. 

The Regional Mobility Atlas will be 
updated as part of the next RTP update. 
The 2010 atlas can be viewed online at 
/www.oregonmetro.gov/mobility-corridors-
atlas

No change to Exhibit D recommended. 

The proposed performance measures are 
intended to track regional progress 
towards meeting greenhouse gas 
reduction goals. While jobs/housing 
balance is important from the perspective 
of local community design, staff believes 
that cities are best positioned to decide 
how to produce more housing or jobs in 
their communities. Consequently, staff 
does not recommend a change to the 
proposed regional performance 
monitoring approaching. Cities and 
counties may wish to track local 
jobs/housing balance to inform their 
efforts.

11/7/14Mayor Tim 
Knapp, Cities of 
Clackamas 
County

Add jobs/housing balance measurePerformance 
Monitoring 
Approach (Exhibit 
D)

20



Updated 12/09/14
MTAC and TPAC Recommendation on Comments Received

Attachment 4 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B

42 of 43

# Exhibit Comment Source(s) Date Recommendation
Amend as follows: 

(1) Add new measure for share of 
households living in mixed-use 
development as this is a key planning 
element of the Climate Smart Strategy. 

The other land use measures identified 
reflect planning assumptions of the 
adopted 2012  growth distribution used 
for purposes of analyzing the Climate 
Smart Strategy and will continue to be 
monitored as part of ongoing reporting 
required by ORS 197.301.

(2) Amend Exhibit D to further explain the 
following:
(a) the 2035 targets and planning 
assumptions identified in the table are 
performance monitoring targets (not 
policy targets) 
(b) together the measures and 
performance monitoring targets reflect  
planning assumptions and/or desired 
outcomes for key elements of the Climate 
Smart Strategy; 
(c) monitoring and assessment will occur 
through scheduled updates to the RTP, 
Urban Growth Report and reporting in 
response to ORS 197.301 and OR. 
197.296;
(d) if the assessment finds the region is 
deviating significantly from the Climate 
Smart Strategy assumptions/ 
performance monitoring target, then 
Metro will work with local, regional and 
state partners to consider the revision or 
replacement of policies, strategies and 
actions to ensure the region remains on 
track with meeting the per capita 
greenhouse gas emissions reduction 
target; and
(e) the measures and targets will be 
reviewed and potentially refined prior to 
being incorporated in the RTP as part of 
the next scheduled RTP update.
In addition, at the Dec. 3 MTAC meeting, 
DLCD staff indicated the performance 
monitoring approach must include a 
measure and performance monitoring 
target for each of the key elements 
recommended in the Climate Smart 
Strategy. As part of addressing the above 
amendments and DLCD staff comments, 
update the table in Exhibit D to add the 
key planning assumptions included in the 
Climate Smart Strategy for arterial and 
freeway delay reduction and parking 
management and add “parking 
management” to the list of measures 
identified in Section 7.8.6 of the Chapter 
7 of the RFP amendments as a measure 
that will be monitored

11/24/14city of HillsboroNew measure 1a is relevant to the 
regional target for reduction of 
greenhouse gas emissions from light 
duty vehicles. Lliving in a walkable, 
mixed use area will provide the 
opportunity to meet daily needs without 
driving.  However, the proposed targets 
of 1b and 1c – increasing percentage of 
infill development while decreasing 
development in vacant lands, 
respectively – do not necessarily 
contribute to the region’s ability to meet 
targets, as all infill/new development is 
created equal.  

For the following considerations, we 
propose reverting back to tracking v. 
setting specific targets:
o   Development in newly added areas 
to the UGB (e.g. vacant land) can be 
developed in a manner to create 
walkable/bikeable, complete 
communities.  This would have a more 
positive impact than infill in areas that 
are not well served by transit or active 
transportation.
o   The assumptions in the modeling are 
not backed up by policy.  As we’ve heard 
from around the region, a few 
jurisdictions would like to see more effort 
on jobs/housing balance. 
o   Before targets are set, the region 
needs to have an engaged policy 
discussion. 

 Similarly, 1d should revert to tracking 
with no target.  One of the policy 
questions for 2015 to inform Metro’s 
growth management decision is what is 
the correct assumption for new urban 
areas.  As is being recognized by raising 
that question, assuming high density 
housing in new urban areas may not be 
realistic nor may it meet housing type 
demand.    

Performance 
Monitoring 
Approach (Exhibit 
D)

21



Updated 12/09/14
MTAC and TPAC Recommendation on Comments Received

Attachment 4 to Staff Report to Ordinance No. 14-1346B

43 of 43

# Exhibit Comment Source(s) Date Recommendation

End of comments and recommended changes to Exhibit D

Amend as follows: 

(1) Add new measure for share of 
households living in mixed-use 
development as this is a key planning 
element of the Climate Smart Strategy. 

The other land use measures identified 
reflect planning assumptions of the 
adopted 2012  growth distribution used 
for purposes of analyzing the Climate 
Smart Strategy and will continue to be 
monitored as part of ongoing reporting 
required by ORS 197.301.

(2) Amend Exhibit D to further explain the 
following:
(a) the 2035 targets and planning 
assumptions identified in the table are 
performance monitoring targets (not 
policy targets) 
(b) together the measures and 
performance monitoring targets reflect  
planning assumptions and/or desired 
outcomes for key elements of the Climate 
Smart Strategy; 
(c) monitoring and assessment will occur 
through scheduled updates to the RTP, 
Urban Growth Report and reporting in 
response to ORS 197.301 and OR. 
197.296;
(d) if the assessment finds the region is 
deviating significantly from the Climate 
Smart Strategy assumptions/ 
performance monitoring target, then 
Metro will work with local, regional and 
state partners to consider the revision or 
replacement of policies, strategies and 
actions to ensure the region remains on 
track with meeting the per capita 
greenhouse gas emissions reduction 
target; and
(e) the measures and targets will be 
reviewed and potentially refined prior to 
being incorporated in the RTP as part of 
the next scheduled RTP update.
In addition, at the Dec. 3 MTAC meeting, 
DLCD staff indicated the performance 
monitoring approach must include a 
measure and performance monitoring 
target for each of the key elements 
recommended in the Climate Smart 
Strategy. As part of addressing the above 
amendments and DLCD staff comments, 
update the table in Exhibit D to add the 
key planning assumptions included in the 
Climate Smart Strategy for arterial and 
freeway delay reduction and parking 
management and add “parking 
management” to the list of measures 
identified in Section 7.8.6 of the Chapter 
7 of the RFP amendments as a measure 
that will be monitored

11/24/14city of HillsboroNew measure 1a is relevant to the 
regional target for reduction of 
greenhouse gas emissions from light 
duty vehicles. Lliving in a walkable, 
mixed use area will provide the 
opportunity to meet daily needs without 
driving.  However, the proposed targets 
of 1b and 1c – increasing percentage of 
infill development while decreasing 
development in vacant lands, 
respectively – do not necessarily 
contribute to the region’s ability to meet 
targets, as all infill/new development is 
created equal.  

For the following considerations, we 
propose reverting back to tracking v. 
setting specific targets:
o   Development in newly added areas 
to the UGB (e.g. vacant land) can be 
developed in a manner to create 
walkable/bikeable, complete 
communities.  This would have a more 
positive impact than infill in areas that 
are not well served by transit or active 
transportation.
o   The assumptions in the modeling are 
not backed up by policy.  As we’ve heard 
from around the region, a few 
jurisdictions would like to see more effort 
on jobs/housing balance. 
o   Before targets are set, the region 
needs to have an engaged policy 
discussion. 

 Similarly, 1d should revert to tracking 
with no target.  One of the policy 
questions for 2015 to inform Metro’s 
growth management decision is what is 
the correct assumption for new urban 
areas.  As is being recognized by raising 
that question, assuming high density 
housing in new urban areas may not be 
realistic nor may it meet housing type 
demand.    

Performance 
Monitoring 
Approach (Exhibit 
D)

21

End of comments on Short List of Actions  (Exhibit E)

Comments on Short List of Actions  (Exhibit F)
No change to Exhibit F recommended, 
however recommend amending Exhibit C 
(Toolbox) to acknowledge geometric 
designs and smaller scale improvements 
to address intersection bottlenecks in 
combination with other strategies can 
help address delay and associated 
greenhouse gas emissions. See also 
recommendation on Comment #14 and 
#19 on Exhibit A. 

11/7/14Paul Savas, 
Clackamas 
County 
Commissioner

Add congestion reduction as a potential 
demonstration project in the short list of 
actions

Short List of 
Actions for 2015 
and 2016

1



	  
This page left blank for printing purposes.


	12-18-14 Council Agenda
	Agenda Item No. 2.0: Metro Budget Process Audit
	Budget Process Audit

	Agenda Item No. 3.0: Metro Budget Performance Measures Audit
	Budget Performance Measures Audit
	Management Response to Performance Measures Audit

	Agenda Item No. 4.1: Res. No. 14-4594
	Res. No. 14-4594
	Staff Report
	Attachment A

	Agenda Item No. 4.2: Consideration of Council Meeting Minutes for Dec. 11, 2014
	Agenda Item No. 5.1: Ord. No. 14-1350 (Second Read)
	Ord. No. 14-1350
	Exhibit A
	Staff Report

	Agenda Item No. 5.2: Ord. No. 14-1346B (Second Read) 
	Ord. No. 14-1346B
	Exhibit A
	Exhibit B
	Exhibit C
	Exhibit D
	Exhibit E
	Exhibit F
	Staff Report
	Attachment 1
	Attachment 2
	Attachment 3
	Attachment 4




